
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 
224 North Edwards 

Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

June 7, 2022 - 8:30 A.M.                         *AMENDED* 

  
  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator. 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. 
County designated representatives – County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Assistant County Administrator Sue Dishion, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Health and Human Services Director Marilyn 
Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. 
Individual Board members may participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meeting law 
requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public 
Health orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CalOSHA).  

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be 
accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 
205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public comment or 
a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in 
writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call 
on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a 
part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
  

 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
  

 

  8. PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Roeser will present and request approval of a 
proclamation honoring the heroic actions of Big Pine Fire Captain Jason Morgan and 
citizen Everett Holland on May 15, 2022. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
  

9. Auditor-Controller - Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and CentralSquare (formally known as Superion LLC and 
SunGard Public Sector) to increase the contract amount by $87,360.00, contingent 
upon the adoption of future budgets; and authorize the Auditor-Controller to sign. 

  
  

10. County Administrator - Emergency Services - Request Board approve 
Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA extending the term end date from 
December 31, 2021 to August 31, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

11. County Administrator - Personnel - Request Board ratify and approve the CPS HR 
Consulting services agreement in an amount not to exceed $17,500 and authorize 
the Assistant County Administrator to sign. 

  
  

12. County Administrator - Public Defender - Request Board: A) approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Gerard B. Harvey of Bishop, CA for the provision of 
Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $486,000 for the period of July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; B) cancel the current contract with Gerard B. Harvey, effective June 30, 
2022; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

13. County Administrator - Public Defender - Request Board: A) approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Terry K. Walker of Bishop, CA for the provision of 
Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $396,000 for the period of July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; B) cancel the current contract with Terry K. Walker, effective June 30, 2022; 
and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

14. County Administrator - Public Defender - Request Board approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at Law, A Professional 
Corporation of Bishop, CA for the provision of Public Defender services in an amount 
not to exceed $432,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

 
15. County Administrator - Public Defender - Request Board ratify and approve the 

agreement between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A 
Professional Corporation of Bishop, CA for the provision of Public Defender services 
in an amount not to exceed $234,630 for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 
2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

16. County Administrator - Public Defender - Request Board approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Mark A. Johnson of Atwater, CA for the provision of 
Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $493,650 for the period of June 
14, 2022 through June 30, 2025 , contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

  
  

17. County Administrator - Purchasing - Request Board: A) declare FloridAquatic of 
North Fort Myers, FL the successful bidder for the purchase of a Truxor Amphibious 
Tool Machine, cutting tools and trailer per Bid No. PR1021; B) authorize the purchase 
of one (1) Truxor Amphibious Tool Machine, tools and trailer from FloridAquatic in an 
amount not to exceed $190,000; C) approve the creation of a purchase order and 
payment up to $86,000 or approximately 50% of the bid amount to be issued on or 
around June 8, 2022 so that the machine can be ordered and started to be built; and 
D) authorize the Senior Budget Analyst to sign the Truxor Amphibious Machine 
Contract of Sale. 

  
  

18. County Administrator - Risk Management - Request Board approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC of 
Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract by $100,000, for a total amount not to 
exceed $200,000, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

19. County Administrator - Risk Management - Request Board approve the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and Porter Scott, A Professional Corporation 
of Sacramento, CA for the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed 
$400,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

20. Coroner - Request Board: A) declare Eva S. Wasef, M.D. a sole-source provider of 
autopsy services in Inyo County; B) approve the contract between the County of Inyo 
and Eva S. Wasef for the provision of autopsy services in an amount not to exceed 
$175,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

21. Coroner - Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Central Valley Toxicology of Clovis, CA for the provision of toxicology services in an 
amount not to exceed $45,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

22. Health & Human Services - Request Board: A) approve the Agreement between the 
County of Inyo and County of Santa Cruz for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 
30, 2025 for hosting the Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and Targeted Case 
Management Local Government Agency Consortium, contingent on the Board's 
approval of future budgets; B) authorize the Chairperson and Melissa Best-Baker as 
the LGA Coordinator to sign the agreement; and C) authorize payment up to $4,000 
in participation fees per year for 2022-2023, 2023-2024, and 2024-2025, contingent 
upon the approval of future budgets. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

 
23. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board ratify and approve 

Amendment No. 01 to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 contract between the County of 
Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the 
contract to an amount not to exceed $41,500.00, and ratify the signature of the HHS 
Director.  

  
  

24. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of 
Sacramento, CA for the provision of Residential Treatment services in an amount not 
to exceed $60,000.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
  

25. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve the 
participation agreement between the County of Inyo and California Mental Health 
Services Authority of Sacramento, CA for the provision of consulting services in an 
amount not to exceed $74,800 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 

  
  

26. Health & Human Services - EMCC - Request Board: A) approve the appointment of 
Pete Schlieker to represent Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department for an unexpired 
term ending December 31, 2023; and B) ratify and approve the reappointment of the 
following individuals to the Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC) for 
unexpired terms ending December 31, 2023: 

• Joe Capello, representing Independence Fire Department 

• Charles Abbott, representing Olancha-Cartago Fire Department 

• Lisa Davis, Member at Large 

• Michael Patterson, representing Sierra Life Flight 

• Judd Symons, representing Symons Ambulance 

  
  

27. Health & Human Services - ESAAA - Request Board approve Contract No. AP-
2223-16 with the California Department of Aging for regional services to seniors, 
provided through the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging, in the amount of 
$1,564,373 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the 
Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign the Standard Agreement, Information Integrity and Security 
Statement Certification, Contractor Certification Clause, and the California Civil 
Rights Laws Certification. 

  
  

28. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Harshwal & Company from July 1, 2022 to 
June 30, 2024 for auditing services in an amount not to exceed $22,000, contingent 
upon the approval of future budgets, and authorize Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

29. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board: A) ratify and 
approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 20-10008 between the County of lnyo 
and California Department of Health Care Services, for the contract period of July 1, 
2020 through June 30, 2023 for the maximum amount of the agreement 
reimbursement of $600,000, for approved Medi-Cal Administrative Activities; and B) 
authorize the HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement, California Civil Rights 
Laws Certification, Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement, and Contractor Certification 
Clause 307. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       5                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

 
30. Health & Human Services - Social Services - Request Board approve the contract 

between the County of lnyo and the Regents of the University of California, on behalf 
of its Davis Campus University Extension, for training services in amount not to 
exceed $118,575.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent 
upon the Board's adoption of a FY 2022/23 budget; and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

  
  

31. Planning Department - Request the Board approve Amendment No. 6 to the 
contract between County of Inyo and the Hydrodynamics Group (Hydrodynamics) to 
amend Section 2 – Term  of the agreement to be July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget; and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
  

32. Planning Department - Request the Board of Request Board approve the contract 
between Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) and Inyo County for the 
provision of  staff services in an amount not to exceed 19,313.46 for the period of 
July 1, 2022 through June 30,2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

33. Probation - Request Board approve reimbursement using AB109 monies to Bishop 
Police Department in the amount of $42,189.91 for the purchase of in-car Mobile 
Data Computers (MDC). 

  
  

34. Public Works - Request Board: A) approve Resolution No. 2022-18, titled, 
“Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, Annual 
Certification of the 2021 Maintained Mileage Log," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign; and B) authorize the Department of Public Works to file the Resolution with the 
District 9 Office of the State of California Department of Transportation. 

  
  

35. Public Works - Request Board: 
A) Accept and approve the Letter of Non-Objection for the Construction of Walker 
Creek Bridge Over the Los Angeles Aqueduct Right-of-Way, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to sign; and 
B) Accept and approve the Letter of Non-Objection for the Construction of Carroll 
Creek Bridge Over the Los Angeles Aqueduct Right-of-Way, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to sign. 

  
  

36. Public Works - Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo 
and Bishop Building Maintenance Janitorial Services & Carpet Cleaning of Bishop, 
CA for the provision of County Floor Cleaning Services in an amount not to exceed 
$137,323.53, or  $45,774.51 annually, for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2025, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and B) authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

37. Public Works - Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Owens Valley Pest of Bishop, CA for the provision of Insect and Pest Control 
Services for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 in the amount not to 
exceed $46,800.00, contingent upon the Boards' adoption of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

  
  

38. Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and  Chuck Stewart of Olancha, CA for the 
provision of maintenance of the Olancha Transfer Station in an amount not to exceed 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       6                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

$16,776 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent 
upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

39. Sheriff - Request Board: A) declare Proforce Law Enforcement of (Prescott, AZ) the 
successful bidder for sixty (60) Glock service pistols per Bid No. 2022-01 Glocks; and 
B) authorize the purchase of Sixty (60) Glock Duty Pistols from Proforce Law 
Enforcement of (Prescott, AZ) in an amount not to exceed $27,716.00.  

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

  
40. Board of Supervisors - Request Board approve the letter supporting the 

reappointment of Fifth District Supervisor Matt Kingsley to the Bureau of Land 
Management Central California Resource Advisory Council, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

41. District Attorney - Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of proposed 
ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors Adopting the 
Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military Equipment Pursuant to AB 
481," and set enactment for Tuesday, June 14 in the Board of Supervisors 
Chambers, Independence.  

  
  

42. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board change the 
Authorized Strength in the Health and Human Services Department by deleting one 
(1) Limited-Term Prevention Specialist I-III and adding one (1) full-time Prevention 
Specialist I-III, Range 60-66 ($3,908 - $5,464). 

  
  

43. County Administrator - Information Services - Request Board hear an update 
from Information Services Director Scott Armstrong on Inyo County's Broadband 
Task Force activities to date. 

  
  

44. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of May 17, 2022. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

Changed to: 

10:30 A.M. 45. Agricultural Commissioner - Cannabis - Request Board: A) conduct a public 
hearing on the consideration of county commercial cannabis business licenses for 
cultivation classification licenses in cannabis zones 4 and 5G; B) conditionally 
approve those applications that exceeded the 80% minimum scoring threshold as set 
forth in Inyo County Code section 5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of licenses 
contingent on the application paying the fees established by your board as well as 
payment of all other required fees and taxes; and C) deny those applications that 
failed to meet the 80% minimum scoring requirement and authorize final letters of 
rejection. 

Changed to: 
 

10:30 A.M. 46. County Administrator - Request Board receive presentation on housing and 
development related activities.   

  
 

1 P.M. 47. Planning Department - Receive a presentation from staff on an updated status of 
short-term rentals in Inyo County; discuss possible changes to the short-tern rental 
ordinance; and, provide direction to staff.  

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       7                                                                                                              June 7, 2022 

 
  

 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  
  

 

  48. Northern Inyo Healthcare District - Request to consolidate the Healthcare District 
election of directors with the Statewide General Election to be held on November 8, 
2022, pursuant to NIHD Resolution No. 22-09. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  49. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 

 

  
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  50. California Fish & Game Commission - Agenda for the June 15-16, 2022 Fish & 
Game Commission meeting, to be held in-person and via webinar. 

  
 

 



Commemorating the 
100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct

Whereas, in commemoration of the 100th Anniversary of the Los Angeles Aqueduct, artist
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and mule wranglers mostly from Inyo County, took 100
mules from the Intake in the Owens Valley to the Cascades in Los Angeles, in recognition of the
essential labor force used in the building of the Aqueduct; and

Whereas, the walk commenced on October 18, 2013 traveling the length of the Aqueduct
through Inyo, Kern, and Los Angeles counties, culminating at the Cascades on November 5,
2013, 100 years to the day from the date William Mulholland opened the gates delivering
Owens River watershed water to the City of Los Angeles; and

Whereas, this project raised awareness of the mules, water source, and the direct line
between Inyo County and the City of Los Angeles, highlighting how their history and futures
are intertwined; and

Whereas, without the reliability, strength, and endurance of the mule, the Aqueduct could
not have been built; and

Whereas, the mules were all obtained in Inyo County thanks to the Eastern Sierra packing
industry, with most of the staff, equipment, and mule gear coming from the Eastern Sierra,
including 17 trucks hauling everything from a mobile kitchen, to mule gear, corrals, hay,
water and supplies; and

Whereas without the support, vision, and determination of Lauren Bon, the Metabolic
Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser of Independence, this historic and memorable event would
not have been possible; and

Whereas on November 11, 2013, the Great American Mules marched strong and proud, so
fittingly honoring the defenders of our freedoms, at the Veterans Parade in the City of
Glendale, and after many photographic opportunities at Griffith Park and the L.A. State
Historic Park, the 100 mules and their wrangler team headed home to the Owens Valley to a
heartwarming welcome home tribute in Bishop, not only the “Mule Capital of the World” but
the home of Bishop Mule Days Celebration, and the future home of the American Mule
Museum.

Now therefore be it proclaimed the Inyo County Board of Supervisors thanks the artist
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser, for raising awareness of the
importance of the mule to the history of the Owens Valley, congratulates all those who
embraced the true pioneer spirit, blazing new trails of understanding and possibilities, and
commemorates this highly creative and innovative living art exhibit:

“100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct,” 
Passed and proclaimed this 17th day of December, 2013, by the Inyo County Board of

Supervisors.

________________________________________________________________
Linda Arcularius, Chairperson Board of Supervisors

HONORING THE HEROISM OF JASON MORGAN AND 

EVERETT HOLLAND
WHEREAS, tragedy can strike at any moment, without warning; and

WHEREAS, tragedy can oftentimes be averted thanks to the quick and brave actions of our fellow citizens; and  

WHEREAS, this was exactly the case on Sunday, May 15, when Jason Morgan, a 14-year Los Angeles Department of Water 
employee and seven-year member of the Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department, and local citizen Everett Holland aided in saving 
several people from drowning in Klondike Lake; and 

WHEREAS, the Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department was dispatched to the lake at 1:48 p.m. to a report of six people and a dog 
who were possibly drowning; and

WHEREAS, it was discovered that an individual suffered a medical emergency and fell out of her kayak and that two companions 
overturned their kayak trying to rescue her; and

WHEREAS, two paddleboarders also attempted to help, as did a bystander who swam to their aid from shore; and

WHEREAS, none of the six individuals were wearing flotation devices, and now one other additional was experiencing a medical 
emergency, Big Pine Fire Chief Damon Carrington launched a rescue effort and search for additional resources; and 

WHEREAS, LADWP sent a boat from Bishop, which would take 15 minutes to arrive; and

WHEREAS, Fire Captain Morgan was listening to radio traffic and knew that time was of the essence, he hauled his personal boat 
to the lake from the community of Big Pine – saving precious minutes in the rescue effort; and 

WHEREAS, Captain Morgan’s quick thinking and decisive action saved the lives of everyone involved, including the two individuals 
suffering medical injuries who would have died if rescuers had to wait an additional 10 minutes for the boat from Bishop; and

WHEREAS, a Big Pine resident also leaped into action, following Captain Morgan to the lake, helping him launch the boat, and 
jumping in to help;

WHEREAS, this individual, Everett Holland, dove into the water to secure a life vest on the victim who was having seizures, and 
then maneuvered both victims into the boat; and 

WHEREAS, first responders agree that the outcome of May 15 would have been tragic were it not for the actions of Captain 
Morgan and Mr. Holland.

NOW, THEREFOR BE IT PROCLAIMED, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors recognizes, with respect and gratitude, the heroic 
actions and selfless courage of Captain Jason Morgan and Everett Holland in the act of saving the lives of several individuals in 
danger of drowning, which they did without hesitation and with their own welfare at risk.

APPROVED AND PROCLAIMED this 7th day of June 2022.

Chairperson Dan Totheroh



County of Inyo

Auditor-Controller
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Amy Shepherd
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment #3 to Contract between the County of Inyo and CentralSquare
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and CentralSquare 
(formally known as Superion LLC and SunGard Public Sector) to increase the contract amount by $87,360.00, 
contingent upon the adoption of future budgets; and authorize the Auditor-Controller to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County currently uses CentralSquare’s ONESolution (formally known as Superion LLC and SunGard Public 
Sector) for its Accounting, Purchasing, Personnel, and Payroll functions to track and manage all of the County’s 
financial data. Periodically,  software vendors require a major upgrade to keep the software relevant and maintain 
supportability. The  County's last major upgrade was in July 2017. Since then, Central Square has put out a new 
version of ONESolution called Financial Enterprise, version 21.x. An upgrade will provide additional support and 
reduce the risk of system failures by having the most up-to-date software support and technical services. 

Financial Enterprise offers the opportunity for the County to take advantage of a new module Employee Online, which 
is a web-based reporting program that will provide County employees instant and easy access to their employment 
records. Key features include access to paystubs, pay history, and W2 reports. The interactive nature of Employee 
Online enables end-users to have better access to, and greater input into, their employment records. In addition to 
Employee Online, Financial Enterprise also provides technological advances of our current reporting system by 
allowing users to easily create customized reports and dashboards transforming the mass of data into crisp 
visualizations and reports for better decision making.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this amendment to the contract.  The project team does not recommend 
the alternative because the County will lose more support and our current financial system and be at risk for 
failure in processing major functions like payroll and mandatory reporting.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The funding for this amendment is budgeted in the IFAS UPGRADE budget (011806) and will be requested in the 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Department Requested Budget. The majority of the project expenses will not be incurred 
until the Fiscal Year 2022-2023.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County, CA Sales Order 5.5.22
2. Original Agreement
3. Amendment 1
4. Amendment 2 
 
APPROVALS:
Amy Shepherd Created/Initiated - 5/10/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/11/2022
Scott Armstrong Approved - 5/11/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/11/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/11/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/11/2022



 

SALES ORDER 
PURSUANT TO EXISTING AGREEMENT 

 

Order Number: [____________] 
 

This Sales Order is intended as a binding Agreement between Inyo County, CA and Superion, LLC, succesor in interest 
to Sunguard Bi-Tech, LLC (a CentralSquare company) and shall be effective as of the date of the last signature herein. 
 
Quote Number: Q-92405 is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  The Quote contains a description of all products and 
services sold pursuant to this Sales Order. The Quote is hereby incorporated by reference as a term of this Sales Order. 
 
Payment Terms.  

 
• Software fees are due upon execution. 
• Service fees are due as incurred on a time and material basis. 

 
Other Terms. 
Terms and Conditions for On-Prem Subscriptions are applicable to this Sales Order (Exhibit “B”). 
 
Master Agreement.  This Sales Order shall be goverened by the terms and conditions of the  existing Agreement 
between the parties, more specifically described as: Software License Agreement dated December 18, 2006 (the “Master 
Agreement”). NO OTHER TERMS OR CONDITIONS OF THE MASTER AGREEMENT ARE NEGATED OR 
CHANGED AS A RESULT OF THIS DOCUMENT. 
 
Purchase Order.  Customer may provide CentralSquare with a valid purchase order, upon execution of this Sales Order. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, purchase orders are to be used solely for Customer’s accounting 
purposes and any terms and conditions contained therein shall be deemed null and void with respect to the parties’ 
relationship and this Sales Order. Any such purchase order provided to CentralSquare shall in no way relieve Customer 
of any obligation entered into pursuant to this Sales Order including, but not limited to, its obligation to pay 
CentralSquare in a timely fashion. 
 
Acceptance of Order Terms. By signing this Sales Order below, Customer represents and warrants that: (a) it has read 
and understands the Master Agreement and Quote that are incorporated by reference into this Sales Order and agrees to 
be bound by the terms thereof, and (b) it has full power and authority to accept this Sales Order. 

 
 

Superion, LLC (“a CentralSquare company”) Inyo County, CA (“Customer”) 

1000 Business Center Dr. 
Lake Mary, FL  32746 

 
P.O. Box 477 

Independence, CA 93526 
 

By:                                     By:                           

Print Name:       Print Name:   

Print Title:          Print Title:      

Date Signed:    Date Signed:    

 



Exhibit A 

(Attached) 

   



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
MORE INFORMATION AT CENTRALSQUARE.COM 

Quote prepared on:  

May 03, 2022 

Quote prepared by: 

Sage Brownchweig 

sage.brownchweig@centralsquare.com 
 

 

 
 
Thank you for your interest in CentralSquare. CentralSquare provides software that powers over 8,000 communities. More 
about our products can be found at www.centralsquare.com. 
 

WHAT SOFTWARE IS INCLUDED? 
_____ 
 

ANALYTICS 
 PRODUCT NAME QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1.  AnalyticsNOW On-Premise Annual 
Subscription Fee 

1 7,500.00 7,500.00 

 

 

  Analytics Software Total 7,500.00 USD 
 

 

EMPLOYEE ONLINE 
 PRODUCT NAME QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

2.  ONESolution Employee Online License 
Fee 

1 8,400.00 8,400.00 

 

 

  Employee Online Software Total 8,400.00 USD 
 

SOFTWARE SUMMARY 

_____ 
 

Software Total 15,900.00 USD 
 
 

WHAT SERVICES ARE INCLUDED? 
_____ 
 

ANALYTICS 
 DESCRIPTION TOTAL 

1.  Public Administration Consulting Services - As Incurred 7,200.00 
2.  Public Administration Development Services - As Incurred 14,400.00 
3.  Public Administration Project Management Services - As Incurred 5,580.00 

Quote #: Q-92405 

Primary Quoted Solution: Finance Enterprise 

Quote expires on: June 27, 2022 

 

Quote prepared for:  

Kortni Girardin 

Inyo County 

P.O. Box 477 

Independence, CA  93526  

(760) 878-0398 

http://www.centralsquare.com/


 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
MORE INFORMATION AT CENTRALSQUARE.COM 

Quote prepared on:  

May 03, 2022 

Quote prepared by: 

Sage Brownchweig 

sage.brownchweig@centralsquare.com 
 

4.  Public Administration Technical Services - As Incurred 4,320.00 
5.  Public Administration Training Services - As Incurred 2,160.00 

 
 

Analytics Services Total 33,660.00 USD 
 
 

EMPLOYEE ONLINE 
 DESCRIPTION TOTAL 

6.  Public Administration Consulting Services - As Incurred 11,520.00 
7.  Public Administration Project Management Services - As Incurred 2,700.00 
8.  Public Administration Technical Services - As Incurred 720.00 
9.  Public Administration Training Services - As Incurred 1,440.00 

 
 

Employee Online Services Total 16,380.00 USD 
 
 

UPGRADE TO FINANCE ENTERPRISE 
 DESCRIPTION TOTAL 

10.  Public Administration Consulting Services - As Incurred 7,200.00 
11.  Public Administration Project Management Services - As Incurred 3,600.00 
12.  Public Administration Technical Services - As Incurred 4,320.00 
13.  Public Administration Training Services - As Incurred 6,300.00 

 
 

Upgrade to Finance Enterprise Services Total 21,420.00 USD 
 
 

SERVICES SUMMARY 

_____ 
 

Services Total 71,460.00 USD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUOTE SUMMARY 
_____ 
 
 

Software Subtotal 

 
 

 

15,900.00 USD 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
MORE INFORMATION AT CENTRALSQUARE.COM 

Quote prepared on:  

May 03, 2022 

Quote prepared by: 

Sage Brownchweig 

sage.brownchweig@centralsquare.com 
 

Services Subtotal 

 
 

 

71,460.00 USD 

Quote Subtotal 87,360.00 USD 

Quote Total 87,360.00 USD 

 

 

WHAT ARE THE RECURRING FEES? 
_____ 
 

TYPE AMOUNT 

FIRST YEAR MAINTENANCE TOTAL 1,680.00 

FIRST YEAR SUBSCRIPTION TOTAL 7,500.00 

 

The amount totals for Maintenance and/or Subscription on this quote include only the first year of software use and 
maintenance.  Renewal invoices will include this total plus any applicable uplift amount as outlined in the relevant purchase 
agreement. 
 

 
This Quote is not intended to constitute a binding agreement. The terms herein shall only be effective once incorporated into a 

definitive written agreement with CentralSquare Technologies (including its subsidiaries) containing other customary 

commercial terms and signed by authorized representatives of both parties. 

BILLING INFORMATION 
_____ 
 

Fees will be payable within 30 days of invoicing. 
 
Please note that the Unit Price shown above has been rounded to the nearest two decimal places for display purposes only. 
The actual price may include as many as five decimal places. For example, an actual price of $21.37656 will be shown as a 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
MORE INFORMATION AT CENTRALSQUARE.COM 

Quote prepared on:  

May 03, 2022 

Quote prepared by: 

Sage Brownchweig 

sage.brownchweig@centralsquare.com 
 

Unit Price of $21.38. The Total for this quote has been calculated using the actual prices for the product and/or service, rather 
than the Unit Price displayed above. 
 
Prices shown do not include any taxes that may apply. Any such taxes are the responsibility of Customer. This is not an 
invoice. 
 
For customers based in the United States or Canada, any applicable taxes will be determined based on the laws and 
regulations of the taxing authority(ies) governing the "Ship To" location provided by Customer on the Quote Form. 
 

 

PURCHASE ORDER INFORMATION 
_____ 
 

Is a Purchase Order (PO) required for the purchase or payment of the products on this Quote Form? (Customer to complete) 
 
Yes [  ]   No [  ] 
 
Customer’s purchase order terms will be governed by the parties’ existing mutually executed agreement, or in the absence of 
such, are void and will have no legal effect. 
 

 

PO Number:       
                              _______________________________________ 

Initials: 
                  _____________________________________________ 
 



EXHIBIT 2  

Terms and Conditions for On‐Prem Subscriptions 

BY INDICATING YOUR ACCEPTANCE, OR BY USING THE SOFTWARE, YOU ACCEPT THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS AS STATED HEREIN.  

 

1. Subscription Access. Customer is purchasing subscription priced software under this Sales 
Order. So long as Client has paid the annual subscription fees and is current at all times with the 
subscription fees as stated herein, CentralSquare grants to Client a limited non‐exclusive, non‐
transferable access to use the subscription software granted in this Sales Order. Client 
understands and acknowledges no ownership or any form of intellectual property rights transfer 
under the terms of this Sales Order.  
 
Annual subscription fees are invoiced upon execution and shall be invoiced on an annual basis 
thereafter, subject to increase at 5% year over year. If customer terminates this Sales Order in 
accordance with the termination for convenience provision below, customer shall be entitled to 
a pro‐rata refund of the annual subscription fee, calculated by the remaining months in the 
applicable annual subscription.  

 

2. Termination for Convenience. This Sales Order may be terminated without cause by either 
party by providing written notice to the other party thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
termination.  

 

3. Termination of Access Rights. Upon termination of this Sales Order, (i) all rights granted herein 
shall terminate immediately and automatically upon the effective date of such termination; (ii) 
Customer’s right to the accessed software granted herein shall terminate; and (iii) Customer will 
cease using such software and at CentralSquare’s direction return or destroy the software and 
any supplemental confidential information or documentation.  

 

4. Right to Audit. Customer shall maintain for a reasonable period, but in no event less than three 
(3) years after expiration or termination of this Sales Order, the systems, books and records 
necessary to accurately reflect compliance with software access and the use thereof under this 
Sales Order.  Upon request, Customer shall permit CentralSquare and its directors, officers, 
employees, and agents to have on‐site access at Customer’s premises (or remote access as the 
case may be) during normal business hours to audit such systems, books, and records for the 
purpose of verifying Customer’s use of the Software to monitor compliance with this Sales Order 
no more than once per year.  If an audit reveals that Customer has exceeded the restrictions on 
use or non‐compliance with this Sales Order, Customer shall be responsible for the 
reimbursement of all costs related to the audit and prompt payment by Customer to 
CentralSquare of any underpayment. 

 



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supetwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of Califomia,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l2'h dayof DECEMBER,2006 an orderwas

duly made and entered as follows:

CAO-lnfo Serv./
SunGard-BiTech
Agreement

The County Administrator provided additional information and further justification for the contract with'
SunGard-BiTech. He explained that the Financial Oversight Committee had met, yesterday, and voted
to support approval of this Contract. He also noted that this Contract is a planned expenditure for the
Network Project and that the County is receiving a discount for approving the Contract prior to the end
of ihe year, because SunGard wanted to book the sale in this calendar year. Moved by Supervisor
Cervantes and seconded by Supervisor Arcularius to approve the Agreement between the County of
lnyo and SunGard-BiTech LLC for proprietary software license and fees, professional services, t-hird
party software and licenses, third party services, computer hardware and first year support and
maintenance fees in an amount not to exceed $478,500''plus applicable taxes and authorize the
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon the appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried
unanimously.

,VITNESS my ltand and the seal of said Board this l2rH

Days of _DECEMBER 2006

@w
RONALD,IULIFF

Clerk ofthe Board ofSuperyisors

Routing

cc

Personnel
Auditot
cAo
Other lnfo Serv.

DATE: Decenber 20, 2006

By
P atric i a Gunso I I ey,A ss istant



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF II\^YO

For Clerk's Use
Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

tq
I consent X Departmental

n scheduted rime for

FRoM: Financial System Oversight Committee

n Correspondence Action I puUti" Hearing

f]ctosea Session fl lnformational

FoR THE BoARD MEETING oF: December 12,2006

suBJEGT: Agreement between SunGard-BiTech LLC and the County of lnyo for Software, Software Licenses,

Computer Hardware, Annual Support and Maintenance (Financial lnformation System)

ITFP YTMFNT T RFCOMMFNITITION:
A) Recommend your Board approve an Agreement between SunGard-BiTech LLC and the County of Inyo for proprietary

software license and fees, professional services, third party software and licenses, third party services, computer hardware and

first year support and maintenance fees in an amount not to exceed $478,500 (plus applicable taxes) and B) Authorize the

Chairperson to sign contingent upon obtaining the appropriate signatures.

^sf 
tMM 4v tr4gc(t,s,qroN:

At the Board of Supervisors meeting of February 1, 2005 your board approved the County of Inyo Financial Infbrmation

System Project. At the April i2, 2005 meeting your board approved project funding. A Request for Proposal was developed

in the spring and summer of 2005 and responses were received in the fall of 2005. Four responses were received and, after

review, two vendors were invited to demonstrate their proposed solution on-site in Independence in December of 2005.

Based on the evaluation of the solutions by over 30 County employees who attended the demonstrations, the County selected

the solution proposed by SunGard-BiTech.

Contract negotiations began in February 2006 and in December 2006 an Agreement deemed acceptable to the County and

SunGard-BiTech was reached. The Agreement is broad in scope covering not only the initial software license agreement and

hardware acquisition but also annual support and maintenance.

r TFRN T|W,I:
your Board could choose not to approve the Agreement or request that the Agreement be brought back after signatures have

been obtained. It is strongly recommended that your Board approve the Agreement; the process that has brought the County to

this point in the Financial Information System project has been very open and supported by your Board. It would be unrealistic

to believe the County could identiff and negotiate with a different software provider before the collapse of the present financial

system. Your Board is encouraged to approve this Agreement contingent on signatures being obtained due to the timing of this

item. The vendor has offered a $5,000.00 incentive (reduction in license fees) if the Agreement can be executed prior to
December 24,2006, due to the Board's schedule and off-site commitments of sorne signatories, some signatures could not be

obtained before bringing this item to the Board while maintaining any hope of executing the Agreement prior to December 24,

2006.

OTHFR GFNCY INVOT VFMFNT:
The Financial System project will substantially impact every County functional group. County Counsel was instrumental in the

County's effort to negotiate the Agreement.

FINANCING:
The Financial Information System Project is being funded from proceeds from the loan secured to fund the Financial

Information System project and Network Project. Full funding is available in the FY2005-06 011805 Board approved budget.



Agenda
Page 2

Request

DEPARTME NT HEAD SIGNATU RE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are /h ru,*

Illlll{llvl7rlh'
AGREEMENTS, CONTFACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSI bE TEV\EWEd ANd

clerk.)approved by county counsel priot to submission to
7 '5 'tt(uApproved:

COUNTY COUNSEL:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATEO 6EMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditorcontroller pior to

submission to the boad clerk.)
AUDITOF/CONTROLLER:

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director

,//,+
of personnel services prior to

submission to lhe board clerk.)
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:



SOFTWARE LI CENSE AGR EEM ENT

BETWEEN

SunGard Bi-Tech LLC
a Delaware Corporation
with Headquarters at:
890 Fortress Street
Ghico, CA 95973

("SunGard')

AND

County of lnyo
168 North Edwards Street
lndependence, CA 93526

("Gustomer")

By the signatures of their duly authorized representatives below, sunGard and customer,intending to be legally bound, agree to all of the'provisions oi tnir ngr""r"ni anJail schedules,Appendices, Exhibits, and/orAddenda to this Agreement- 
-

BY

PRINT NAME: c*rz-tGL^
PRINT Qra,"l*+

BY:

PRINT NAME:

PRINT TITLE:

DATE SIGNED: tei,slor

I

DATESIGNED: /7- /3-06
/a

}QaLL!/ A. tZ lnlou
fruD t.-ro n- - Co *yTtaut e*A-z

/R/il/l/r- / a 'tK'0 t?

4g>r . Co "'I Y hvw eu

CONFIDENTIAL

SUNGARD" BI-TECH



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Definition of Terms.

Limited License (Grant, Scope of Use, Source Gode)..

Software lnstallation and professional Service Terms .

SunGard's Other Obligations

Customer's Other Obligations

Payments..

Wananties and Limitations ...........

Confidentiality, Ownership and Restrictive Covenant..

Termination

Other Provisions .....,

..2

4

4

A

5

6

...8

....10

.16

.20

.21

.22

,25

Appendix 1

Appendix 2

Appendix 3

Appendix 4

Appendix 5

Appendix 6

Appendix 7

Price schedure: software, support, services, Third party products

lntentionally Left Btank

Payment Schedule ......

Application Software Maintenance and Support .......

Statement of Work

lnfrastructure/Technical Req uirements........,.... .........,35

Functional Checktist

1 CONFIDENTIAL



DEFINITION OF TERMS

As used in this Agreement, the foilowing terms have the foilowing meanings:

1' 'Account" means a single and unique combination of database and Software.

2' "Amendment" means a written document stating itself to be an amendment to thisAgreement, which is properry executed uv uotn partits to nis Agreement.

3' "Affiliate," whether capitalized or not, means, with respect to a specified person, anyPerson which directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common controlwith the specified person as of the daie of this ngreement, for as long as suchrelationship remains in effect. "i

4' "Gonfidential lnformation" means all business information disclosed by one party to theother in connection with this Agreement unless it is or later becomes publicly avai6blethrough no fault of the other pa-rty or it was or-lateii rightfuly developed or obtained bythe other party from independeni sources free from 
"ny 

orty of confidentiality. withoutlimiting the generality of the foregoing, contioeni[r'iniimation shail include customer,sdata and shall include sunGarl's Froprietaty ri;;;: confldentiat lnformation shallinclude the terms. of this Agreement, but noi the ract tnat this Agreement has beensigned' the identity of the parties hereto or the identity of the products licensedhereunder.

5' "Goncurrent user" means the number of people using the software (IFAS) asAdministrative users (e.g. data 
"ltly: rep.ort d.rigr, w.orkfrow design, processing,analysis, etc.) as part of their main job iunction atlnJ uusiest time of the year.

The definition of concurrent User specifically excludes se/f-serube users (users ofApplicant onrine, Time onrine, Emproy-ee cjrri"",-o"cuments onrine, web Forms,cDD'net, Portql, Dashboard, etc.). beft-service ;;; may access the software withno user rimitation except that which may be irp*"0 by supporting third partysoftware. r' -- !'rrFv\

6' "Gopy," whether capitarized or not, meSns any paper, disk, tape, firm, memory device, orother material or object on or in which 
"nv 

r5ilr, blilr, code, or other symbols arewritten, recorded or encoded, whether permanent or transitory. --'-' 'r

7' "Documentation" means sunGard's. standard user guides and manuals as deliveredwith the software and soJtware Updates ano on-iinJ help, as updated and amendedfrom time to time, provided by sundard to assist crrtor", with the use of software.

8' "Execution Date" means the latest date shown on the signature line of this Agreement.

9. "Export Laws" means all laws, administrative regulations, and executive orders of anyApplicable Jurisdiction relating to the control or imiorts and exports of commodities andtechnical data, software and related groperty, use or r.rot" use of softwaie and relatedproperty, or registration of this ngrbement, inctuJing the Export AdministrationRegulations of the u.s. Department oI commerce, ;;J il" lntemational rraffic in ArmsRegulations of the U.s, Department of st t"- lnpiffi; 
Jurisdiction" ,"un, the U.s.,

2 CONFIDENTIAL



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15

16.

17.

18.

and any other jurisdiction where any Proprietary ltems will be located or from where anyProprietary ltems wiil be accessed under this Agreement. 
- -

]'Go.od.Faith Dispute" means a good faith dispute by customer of certain amountsinvoiced under this Agreement. A Good F_aith oispute r,Jill ne oeemeo to exist onrv it (t)customer has siven written notice of the dispute td sunea;-ffifuty;ft.ffi;iJng the
1tv,9ice- and (2) the notice explains customer's position ln- r"uron"ble detail. A GoodFaith Dispute will not exist as to an invoice ih its entiiety merely because certainamounts on the invoice have been disputed.

"lncluding" rneans including but not limited to.

"lnitial lnstallation or lnitial software lnstallation" means the first instance of Softwareinstallation or software loading onto the computer system from which it will operate.

"Latest softivare Update" means those software Updates which SunGard has madegenerally available to its customers within the preceding t 
"lu" 

months,

"New Product" means a set of functionality available to be licensed to Customer (whichis not included in a software U-pdate) by sunGard wnicn was not previously licensed tocustomer either because the function"iity,"", not availablqor customer chose not tolicensg it, 
v v. vsefvr..er ul rvDEi I

"Person," whether capitalized or not, means any iridividual, sole proprietorship, jointventure, partnership, corporation, company, firm, 
-bank, 

association, cooperative, trust,

;:lil? 
government, governmentar agency, reguratory authority, or'oin"i 

"nti'iv-ot 
,nv

"Proprietary ltems" means,-collectively, the software and Documentation, the objectcode and the source code for the soitware, the_ visual expressions, screen formats,report formats and other design features of the sonwaie ,iiii"ur, methods, algorithms,formulae and concepts useJ._in developing and/or ir"lrp"r"t"d into the software orDocumentation, all f{yt" modifications,'revisions, upoatei, reflnements, improvementsand enhancements of the software or Documentation, allderivative works (as such termis used in the U's. copyright laws) based upon any of the foregoing, and all copies of theforegoing.

"software" means sunGard sproprietary application software identified in Appendix 1 ofthisAgreement, known as IFAS.

"software Update" means general release version Software revisions and updates tothe software, which sunGard; in its sole discretion, in.oipoiut"s into the software as asoftware update per.Appendix 4 - Application software rtr"ini.nrn.e and support alsoreferred to as "AnnualSupport".

"source Gode" means the human readable computer instructions that cause thesoftware to perform a task. such computer instiuctions and data definitions areexpressed in a form suitable for input to third party compiteis.-

3

19

CONFIDENTIAL



1 LIMITED LICENSE

1'1 Grant' sunGard grants to customer a personal, non-transferable, non-exclusive' perpetual license to use, in accoidance with this Agreement, thesoftware identifled on Appendix 1 and its relateo Documentation as the softwareand Docurnentation may be revised ano upoated in accordance with thisAgreement.

1'2 scope' ln consideration of customer's payment of the associated fees as setforth in Appendix 3, customer may use the 
-software 

and Documentation only inthe ordinary course of its business operations and for its own business purposes,subject to the use restrictions as setiorth in section 8.3. Access to and use of thesoftware by customer shall be limited to the rlrro"t of concurrent users statedon Appendix 1 and the limitations of this section i (collectivety, ,,Scope of Use,'),subject to increase by Amendme.lt(s) to sucn parameters. iustomer may copyand use the software for inactive'back-up ano oisaste, ;";;;;t prrpor.r.customer 
Ta-y copy the Documentation to irre extent reasonably necessary foruse of the Software under this Agreement.

1'3 source co{e' su1c11d has placed source code in escrow with lron Mountainlntellectual property Management (,,lron Mountainl, formerty ;USi-i""nnology
Escrow services lnc." or "Dsl"; and will ,po"t.l"re annually. source codeshall remain sealed in escrow except that lion Mountain may release the sourcecode to Preferred Beneficiaries as provided in the Master preferred EscrowAgreementt 

,c.ustgmgr may at its opiion oe a Frererred Beneficiary by signinglron Mountain's prefe'ed Beneficiary ncceptanle Form and paying rronMountain aRgloximately $zoo per year (which amount is determin"o ny lronMountain and is subject to change).

SOFTWARE INSTALLAflON AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICE TERMS
2'1 lnitial software lnstallation. sunGard shall deliver, F.o.B. sunGard,s offices,to customer the initial Copies of the Software rno oo.rrentation stated onAppendix 1' The date of such detivery shall be referred to as ihe ,,Delivery

Date'" sunGard shall install the softwarl as indicated in Appendix 5. customermay at its option instail software independent of sunbard.
2'2 Professional services and Annual support. sunGard shall provide toCustomer, Professional Services.as.set rorth'in Appendix 5, and nnnuatsupportservices as.set forth in Appendix 4 for th; .n"'[!. ristei on-npp""Ji"- 1 andsection 6'2 hereof' ln accordance with section I.3, suncaro .[!lr pi*iu" tocustomer additional Professional services or.onJrv requested by customer.

2'3 Additional Professional services. At customer's reasonabte request andsubject to the availability of SunGard'r p"tronn"l, SunGard .n"ll-pluio" tocustomer additional installation services, iJoition"iiraining, consulting services,custom modification programming, 
"rpport 

,"ri.., -relating - 
6 

--custom
modifications, assistance with data lransfeir, ryrt"r restarts and reinstallationsand other specialized support services. 

'such 
services will be offered atsunGard's then prevailing service rates. custom- programming services areprovided in accordance with the terms and conditions as d'efineo in nppenJix s.

HARDWARE AND HARDWARE INSTALLATION AND SUPPORT

2.

4

3.

CONFIDENTIAL



3.1

3.2

3.3

Hardware Prices. 
.SunGard hereby agrees to sell to customer and customeragrees to purchase the Hardware identified in Appendix 2 1'Hardwar";iioi in"prices as set forth on Appendix 2.

Hardware lnstallation Services

g'2'1 sunGard shall use its standard system assurance programs to individuallytest each unit of the Hardware accoroinj L the manufacturer,s
specifications, and when practicar, integrate eicn unit for a 6t"[Gt",.ntest prior to shipment and installation at tle lnitiailnsiailation Location.

3'2'3 For Hardware listed on Appendix 2, sunGard or its designee shalt performthe instailation seMces, for the fees stated on-nppenoix z. Hardwareinstailation sla[ be compreted on.a mutuaily agreed date, subje.i to tn.oblig.ations of Customer to prwide tne of6rationat environment for theHardware as provided berow under "customeiiesponsibirities".

3'2'4 SunGard will provide the Customer with any manufacturer-provided
reference documentation for operation of the Hardware uv cu!i"m"i,trained personnel.

Gustomer Responsibilities Related to Hardware

3.3.1 The customer acknowredges a need for and agrees to provide, at itscost, a suitabre operating environment, appropriite power supplies andadequate workspace for the Hardware to be inaintained in "il;Jr;;;with SunGard's recommendations. The Customei iurtner 
".Lno*l"Jg",and agrees to provide access to customer,s hardware system(s) and/oroperational system software wh^ere necessary for sunGard to rii6uo. it,services hereunder. The customer rurfrei acknowredg", ii;responsibirity to provide adequatery trained personner, 

"i"qr"t"hardware and system software backupi r

3.3.2 The customer is responsible for the cost of all cabling, phone hardware,services and facilities needed to attach servers, workstations, videoterminals, terminal printers and the like to tne ttaioware. This includesinstalling the cables and the labor or installation fees associated with thepreparation of terminal locations.

3'3'3 The customer shall provide SunGard or its designee full and free access tothe Hardware to provide the installation servicesl

3'3'4 The Customer shall pay all costs of transportation and in-transit insurancefor the Hardware to its facilities and all ot"t r"rui"J.o.tr that may includespecial rigging, storage, packaging and simirar.n"rg"., sunGard shafi notbe responsible for any loss or damage to the Hardr,rjare caused by the faultor negligence of customer or its agents or emproyees, by non_suncaiJ
alterations or seMcing, by common carriers, forci m4eure, fire or othercasualty.

Hardware warranty. sunGard warrants that the Hardware will be installed ingood working order ready for use according to the manufacturer, puoiirn.Jspecifications' sunGard will assign to cust6mer atl manuiacturer,s warranties

5

3.4

CONFIDENTIAL



4.

5.

related to the Hardware. sunGard lqkes no expressed or implied warranties withrEgArd tO thc HArdWArE. ALL WARMNTIES NS iO MERCHANTABILIry ORFITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE .XPNCSSIY EXCLUDED.

3.5 Other Terms Applicable to Hardware Sales

3'5'1 sunGard's installation personnel shall remain on Custome/s site notmore than one day in the event of Customer's failure to fulfill its sitepreparation obligations. Return trips, if necessary, shall be invoiced tocustomer at sunGard's then prevailing service mi"r, pirr 
"xp.nlr"r.

SUNGARD'S OTHER OBLIGATTONS

4'1 ongoing Annual support. Beginning on the Execution Date, sunGard shallprovide software maintenance and lupport ."ri.", "Annual support,, toCustomer throughout the lnitialAnnual subbort Term as provided in Appendix 4.ln addition, customer may renew Annuar Slrpport irom year to year as providedin section 6.2 hereof.

4'2 optional Products. Beginning upon the Execution Date of this Agreement,sunGard shall offer to customlr ihe opporil;itt-i; license New products atSunGard's then prevailing fees,

CUSTOMER'S OTHER OBLIGATIONS

5'1 Procurement of Hardware and other Third Party ltems. Customer shall beresponsible, at its expense, for procuring and 
-maintaining 

tne comiuil]hardware, systems software and .other iniro 
-prrty 

software, data feeds,telecommunications, networks, peripherals and' other items and services(collectively referred to as "Third eariy nroorG;t. 
-Customer 

shal contract forand maintain appropriate agreementi for the use and maintenance of ThirdPartv Products during the teim of this Agreemeni. 
-r 

curior;;Hffi";zed bySunGard to use the Software in an tn[ernet 
"nuirorrm"ni; 

cil#e;ii.,"ll o"solely responsible for all aspects of Internet use,- including any Third party
Products, and the installation and maintenance of its home page on the lnternet.sunGard is an authorized resellet lgl th.". t11ro party sonware ii.tJ on nppenoix1; however the third party software listed is licensed" and support"J oii"tiiv ov it,respective developer. while this Agreement includes tre inirJ prrtv-iii"nr",
listed on Appendix 1, the customer's-actual use or sonrryare ruv ii.ir't""iieate,or fewer authorized third party licenses than are provided in ir,e-ngi;;ent.customer is aware that third party software o"ueiop"r. may define a ,,usero
differently than that definition for soitware provioed neiein. odenlinr<l,io ui.roFocus support will be billed to customer birectiy irom sunc"ro in rutrre y"u*and customer agrees to purchase all other Third party sofiw"r" ,,ipportseparately in future years and maintain current versions of tnirO prriy Soitrir"r".Furthermore, when required by the Third eariy-Solt rr" vendor,'crrior",.
agrees to sign a license agreement directly with the Third party sottrruare venoor.lf any self-service features of the soitware 

"r" io be deproyed, it is theCustomer's option to purchase lnternet .n.rvption- separately. Third partysoftware provid.ed hereunder may be used only in conlunction with SunGard Bi-Tech's application software, eicept as othlrwise'provided in the licenseagreements of the respective third party software provid'ers.

6 CONFIDENTIAL



5.2

5.3

5.5

5.6

6. PAYMENTS

6.1

5.4

Data security' lf the software or data. maintained by the software is accessiblethrough the lnternet or other net"oi[eO 
"nvironmenf 

ir"tor"r shall maintajn, inconnection with the,.softwale, adequate tectrnicat ano p.Lorrraccess controrsand system security requiremeni!- lno devices, n"!"rr"rv for data privacy,confidentiality, integrity, authorization, autheni["tio,i 
"no 

non-repudiation andvirus detection and eradication T; the extent trat Customer,s Affiliates orcustomers have access to the software through the l;te;;et or other networkedenvironment, customer sha, maintain agreements with such end-users thatadequately protect the confidentiality and intellectual property rights of sunGardin the software and Documentation, ano oisclaim anv iir[ilitv or responsibility ofSunGard with respect to such enO-users.

Access to Faciritie^s-and, Efplovees. customer shail provide to sunGardaccess to the customer's faciriiies, hardware anJ'eroproyees, and shailothenrvise cooperate. with sunG"ro, 
"" *"ronrbry nl"Jrrrrv for sunGard toperform its instarflion,, training, support and other olrigations under thisAgreement' customer shall oevite ail.naroware, facilities, personnel and otherresources reasonabry_n?.."::urv.to (a) inslarrrne'sotwaie, to) o" trained in theuse of the softwarg qld (c) begin u'siirg tne sortware-in froouction on a timerybasis as contemplated by inis ndreement.

Remote Access. customer shail permit sunGard, at sunGard,s option, toremotery access, per the method described in npp"n|i* +,-tn" software for thepurpose of providing maintenance and .rpport'r"ri."* to Customer undersection 4.1 and othenrvise imprementinf ft,. prrposes of this Agreement.
Notices and certifications. customer shat give written notice to sunGardwhenever customer intends to increase the s-cope ;i'u;". customer sha'promptly complete and return to sunGard periodic i"rtirirrtilns which sunGard,in its sole discretion, may from time to time send to customer, certifying the thencurrent scope of use of the sofrware and that customei r,as compried and isthen in comptiance with the provisioni oi tnn nti"";;rt -' '

Gustomer operation of software. customer sha[ be excrusivery responsibrefor the supervision: 
rar.ge.Tent, operation and .ontroi of its use of thesoftware, incruding but not timiteo to: 

-irl.estauri.ningl;iuate 
backup prans inthe event of computer or softwar" ,"ltrn.tion oriisaier, (z) imprementingsufficient procedures and checkpoints 1o satisfy crrtor"r;, requirements forsecurity and accuracy of inpu.t and output data ai wert as iestart and recovery inthe event of malfunciion oi cir".Gi t5l intormed ,ra oi o-r-tput data insofar astechnical expertise or professionar ';udgmelt -i. -iqrir"o, 

(4) security,maintenance and distribution of system passwords, and (5) other responsibiritiesas deflned in Appendix S.

6.2

License Fee. customer.shail pay to sunGard the software ricense fee in theamount stated on Appendix 1, in iccordance *itii n" p"vrent schedure statedon Appendix 3. t,qJrrrr

Annual Maintenance and support Fees, (Annuar support). customer shailpay Annuar support fees as set'rortn on Appendi" 1;;illppendix 3. Annuarsupport shat be a_utomaticatv renewla 
'on 

each 
'*ni*rury 

date of thisAgreement unress customer firovroes sunGard with thirty (30) days writtennotice prior to each annual anniversary date of its inteni io terminate Annual

7
CONFIDENTIAL



6.3

6.4

support. Annual support may be terminated without terminating this LicenseAgreement.

sunGard reserves the right to increase Annual s_upRort upon each renewal by anamount equal to the change in the consumer Price lndex (cpl-w for selectedAreas, west urban, ail items) pubrished by the u.s. gur;au of Labor statistics,over the prior year, plus two percent (2o/o).

ln the event that sunGard desires to terminate Annual support to Customer,sunGard shallprovide customerwith one trunoreo eignt/tiidii"i, ori"lt"rili].notice of its intent.

6'2'1 customer believes that sufficient funds can be obtained to pay allAnnualsupport amounts due sunGp. un$e1. tnir 
-ngi."ment 

and herebycovenants and agrees that it wiil do ail things tar,#urty;itil it, p",rJ"il;obtain, maintain and properry request 
"ni 

puiru. funds from whichpayments hereunder may be made, including making provisions for suchpayments to the extent necessary in eac[ budgel submitted ror lnepurpose of obtaining funding, using its best efforts io nuu" rr.n portion'oi
the. budget approved and exhaustrhg all availabie aoministrative reviewsand appears.in the event such portioi of the urog"ii, not apfroveJ. ril;customer's intent to make ari payments due Jnder this Agreement iffunds are regaily avairabre tnereror 

"nJ in 
-inat 

.regaro customerrepresents and warrants to sunGard that the Annualsuppirt irport".ii"its proper, efficient and economic operatid. li despite customer,sefforts, sufficient funds are not appropriateo ano budgeted or areothenvise regaily unavairabre by any means whatsoever in any fiscarperiod for Al,ngar sugno! payments due under this Agreeme;t,'tl!icustomer wiil immediatery 
.notify 

suncard oi .r.n occurrence andSunGard may notify Customer tn'at Rnnuaibrpp"rt wilt expire effectiveon the rast day of the frscar period for which 
"pfffirmns were received.Notwithstanliry. the foregoing, customer 
"ji""J inut the provisions ofthis section 6.2.1wir not appry if anv frlnds ;i; upp;;priateo'to it, oi ov it,for the acquisition, retention br operation of soitware or other servicessimitar to the.Annuar support, ano th"t it wiil ;;lluring the term of thisAgreement give priority in the application of funds to any other similarsoftware or seryices. Further, nothing in this section 6.2.1 wiil beconstrued so as to permit customer to lffect a prlmature expiration ofthe Annual Support in order to acquire any otner software or similarservices.

service Fees. customer shall pay to sunGard the service fees stated onAppendix 3 for ail services specifieo in this Agreement. rn the event thatrequested services are not specified in this ngree;Lni,1n"n tne rees'il;r;;;services shall be based upon'sunGard's standJro proressionat ree rates in effectat the time of the request

Expense Reimbursements. whenever.any services are provided by sunGardat a customer location or any other location r"qu"rt"Joy"Curtomer other thanone of SunGard's locations, Customer shall reimbu* sinc"rd for reasonabletravel (including travel from.origination points other than Srnguro', headquarterslocation), lodging, mear and retateo expenses incurred by sunGard personner inproviding such services. Airfares shall be coach 'oi- 
".onory. Mealreimbursement for consurting or training*o_r traver days wiil be at the per diemrate for Gustomer's area as let by tne ins. erornof*n.fortation may incruderental cars (intermediate or economy), bus, tr*ilrnuitr" jin-"lroing tips) and/or

CONFIDENTIAL



6.5

6.6

personal car mileage (at current IRS rate). Lodging arrangements will be madewith safety, cost, proximity to the customer, andieiutation of the facility jn mind.Items of a personar nature wiil not be charged to the cur1or"r.

The parties urd:r.:11!1 tfal !e,imprementation pran assumes approximateryfour (4) days of customer training/consurting per trip 
".0 

," weekend stays.

The customer will be provided with a copy of the Traverefs expense report;however copies of receipts will not be provided without an additionat rranjlingcharge.

customer shall also reimburse sunGard for freight costs (including in-transitinsurance, if necessary) associated with lhe deriv|rv Jstn*"re, Hardware, orThird Party Software provided under this Agreement.' 
- -'

Taxes' The fees and other amounts payable by customer to sunGard under thisAgreement do not include any taxes'of-any lurisoiction tn"i r"y be assessed orimposed upon the copies or tne softwir6 ano oocumentation delivered tocustomer, the ricense granted under this Agreem.ni oi in" services providedunder this Agreement, or othenrise assessed or imposed in connection with thetransactions contemprated by this Agreement, including ,"1"r, use, excise, valueadded, personar property, eiport, import ano witfnoriing iu*"r, excruding onrytaxes based upon sunGard's net income. customer stra'ir direcfly pay any suchtaxes assegsed against it, and customer shail promptty-ieimourse sunGard forany such taxes payabre or coilectabre by sunbard.' li customer has prouro"oSunGard with proof of its.tax exempt staius, then, in the event that Customer,stax exempt status should become aitered in anyway ft,rougnout the term of thisAgreement, customer shalt be obligated to noiity 6r;c;; immediately of anysuch modification of tax exempt staius and Customer shall-become liable for alltaxes as set forth above. rn the event customer raits to noift il;c;;J"f;;such change, and penalties occur as a result of customer's failure to notifysunGard in a timery manner, customer shail be riabre for puvr"ni oi ;;ipenalties assessed against sunGard or customer as a iesult thereof.
Payment rerms. software license fees and rhird party product fees (if any)shall be invoiced by.sunGard per the payment schedure in Appendix 3. Annuarsupport fees for software shali be involceo by sunGard annually in advance andall other fees and all expense reimbursements shall be invoiced by sunGard asand when incurred. (Forthird partybilling see 5.1.) All invoices shall be senttocustomer's address for invoicei as -designatei 

oy- cr.torer or, if notdesignated, then the address printed on thii ngreement. eayments may bemade by check to the sunGard address listed on the invoice. customer,spayments 
_shail be past due. thirty (30) days after ,"."ipi oi invoice. fid;;i 

"ithe rate of eighteen percent (ltirt"\ p"r 
"nnr;n 

(or, if rower, the maximum ratepermitted by appricabre raw) shail accrue on any irbrninoi paid by customer tosunGard when due under ihis Agreement, and snail ne p"v"or" by Gustomer toSunGard on demand 
zY Yv'e

Except as provided 
-in section 7.2.3, all fees and other amounts paid bycustomer under this Agreement are non-refundaote, inclucing any fees paid forThird Party Products.

currency. All dollar amounts referred to in this Agreement are in United statesDollars. '.-''v'

I

6.7

CONFIDENTIAL



7 WARRANTI ES AN D LIMITATIONS

7'1 Performance' sunGard warrants to customer that the software, as and whenderivered to customer by sunGa,td ?il;h;" o.plnv used for the purpose andin the manner 
-specifiially 

authorized nv tlir'ngreement, will perform asdescribed in the Documentition and in npp6njix? attached hereto inail materiatrespects' sunGard's only obligation undei inir r"ir"nty is to correct any failureto so perform in accordan.e tiitn srncriot"goiii.tionr under the maintenanceand support provisions of this Agreement. 
- 

iniJ r"rrng shall terminate oneyear after the Execution Date.
7'2 Right to L!:9n:9; No lnfringement. sunGard warrants to customer that it hasthe full legal right to grant to du-slmgr tne ricenselranted under this Agreement,.and that the software and Documentation, as ani when delivered to bustomerby sunGard and when propI.ry ui"o-ifr-ini'|rrpor" and in the mannerspecifically authorized by this Agreement, do not infringe upon any United statespatent' copyright, trade iecret o-r_other pi"pri"i"w right of any person, sunGardshall defend and indemnify customer dgui;ri;ni'tniro party claim to the extentattributabre to a vioration of the foregJiil ,*;;;iy. sunGard shail have noobligation under this section 7.2 unless c;"i;;; promptty gives written noticeto sunGard after any applicable inrring"m-.ft;i;- ir initiated against customerand allows sunGard to'have sole cintrot 

"i d; l;fense or setflement of theclaim' The remedies provided in this section"T2-are the sole remedies for abreach of the warranty contained ir lnir sec-tiJn 2.2, rf any appricabreinfringement claim is initiateo, or in sunGardis Jole opinion is likely to beinitiated, then sunGard shat have the option, aiitJ e-xpense, to,
7,2.1 modify or reprace ail 

.or. the infringing part of the soffuare orDocumentation so that it is no r"rgE;'hfringing, provided that the
f;nware 

functionarity does not changdin ,nv materiai adverse iespect;

7'2'2 procure for customer the right to continue using the infringing part of theSoftware or Documentation; or
7'2'3 remove.all or the infringing part of the software or Documentation, andrefund to customer the corresponding portion of the initial license feepaid by customer to sunGaro unoei d;i;, 6.1 with respect to theapplicable software, less a reasonable rental charge equal to one-sixtieth(1/60) of the initial license fee for 

"".rt 
r"rtn of use, in which case the

fs;eement 
shall terminate with r"rp""t'lo'ine sortware or part thereof

7'3 customer Material' customer warrants to sunGard that customer has the fulllegal right to grant to sunGard the right to u."Jr," JJsigns, plans, specificationsor other materials provided by or on behalf of cusiomer for inclusion in thesoftware or the Documentation ("custor* rti"tJrirr;,; and that the customerMateriar does not infringe upon any uniteGtai", p"j"nt, copyright, trade secretor other proprietary right oi any ierson. d;l;;J,iar indemnify and defendsunGard (and any sunGard Rtiitiates prouiJing roni,Lr" or services under thisAgreementl 
"n,:t:l_?.!ythird 

party ctaim to tneixleni'atrributabte to (a) a breachof the foregoing warrinty oi toj an .infringer"ni oi a united states patent,copyright' trade secret oi othei oroprietary-righi or 
-a-ny 

person arising from amodification of the software o, noirr"lti^i,., oi dustomer (or a third partypermitted by Customer to make such modifl."ti"ni, -

10
GONFIDENTIAL



7.4

7.5

7.6

Exclusion for unauthorized Actions and Results of use. sunGard shall haveno liability under any provision of this ngre"ment with respect to anyperformance problem, claim of infringement"oi- oinei matter to the extentattributable to any unauthorized or improper use or modification of the Software,any unauthorized combination of the software witn olnei software, 
""v 

,r"'orany version of the software other than the Latest sortware updates, ,i,v iniroParty Product, anyact or omission by customer, its a*iliates or its customers, orany breach of this Agreement by Customer.
Force Majeure. Except with respect to customer,s payment obrigationshereunder, neither party shall be liabie for, not.nrii"itnei partv be considered inbreach of this Agreement due to any fairure to p"rrorr'it.-Jri!"t"*,1';;;rlhl,
Agreement as a resurt of a ca.use beyond its contror, in.ilohg any act of God ora public enemy, act of any miritary, civiror,"grr"tot'"uitlritv, change in any rawor regulation, fire, frgod,. earthquake, storm or other. rike event, disruption oroutage of communications linctuding the rnt"inui 

'or 
other networkedenvironment), power or other utitity, hb6r prootem, unavairabirity of suppries orany other cause, whether simirar 

-or 
oissimita, i; ;;t;i the foregolrg, ,rni"ncould not have been prevented by the non-performing party with reasonabrecare.

Disclaimer. ExcEpr AS ExpREssLy STATED rN sEcroN 2.1 oF THrsAGREEMENT, THE SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTATION IS PROVIDED ,AS
IS." WTH RESPECT TO THE SOFrU'ARE, 

.-TiOCLT,,IENTATION, 
THESERVICES PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMEI\iT Oi N-T.TV OTHER MATTERPERTAINING TO THIS AGREEMENTAND EXCEPT AS CiPNCSSIY STATEDIN SEC'ON 7.1 OF THIS AGREEMENT, SU^TOENO MAKES NOREPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, ORAL bN WNiiTEN, EXPRESS ORIMPLIED, ARISING FROM COURSE OF OCEr-ir.rC, COURSE OF

IE-IFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE, OR OiHEiWISE, INCLUDINGIMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTAEI.ITY, FITNESS FOR A
'ARTTCULAR 

pulLggE, T'TLE, NON-,NTERFERENCE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT. SUNGARD UEKES NO NiP-NESCruTATIONS ORWARRANTIES, NOR SHALL SUNGARD HAVE At,ii LIABILITY WTHRESPECT TO, ANY THIRD PARTY PRODUGTS OR SERVICES.
Limitations. ExcEpr FoR A THIRD pARTy cLArM uNDER sEciloN 7.2 oFTHIS AGREEMENT, SUNGARD'S TOTAL LIABIIITY UNDER THISAGREEMENT SHALL UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANGES EiCCEO THE INITIALSUNGARD SOFTWARE LICENSE FEES ACTUALLY FNIO AV CUSTOMERTO SUNGARD UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

consequential Damage Exclusion. UNDER No crRcunlrsrANcEs SHALL
!y!c_4ED (oR ANy oF rrs AFFTLTATEs pnovrolna sorrwnRE oRSERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT) BE LIABLE TO iLSTOMER OR ANYOTHER PERSON FOR LOST REVENUES, LOST PiOTITS, LOSS OFBUSINESS, OR ANY INCIDENTAL, TT.TOiNCii, EXEMPLARY,GONSEQUENTIAL, $PECIAL OR PUNITIVE -OEMNCiS OF ANY KIND,IN-C-LUDING SUCH DAMAGES ARISING FROM Erui}NEACH OF THISAGREEMENT OR ANY TERMINATION OF THIS AEiCCTVICNT, WHETHERSUCH LIABILIry IS ASSERTED ON THE BASIS Oi.OTTRACT, TORT(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT r.rAErr-lTY1, ON-OTNCRWSE ANDWHETHER OR NOT FORESEEABIE, EVEN IT'bUIICENO HAS BEENADVISED OR WAS AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS ORDAMAGES

7.7

7.8

11 CONFIDENTIAL



8.

7'9 9P9n Negotiation. cUsToMER AND 
'UNGARD 

HAVE FREEL' ANDoPENLY NEGoTIATED rHls 1955err,ler,ri,-lircluDtNc rrii- pnlqr,rc,
WTH THE KNOWLEDGE THAT THE I.IEEIITV-bT THE PARTIES IS TO BELlMlrED lN AccoRDANcE wrrH rnr pnovisioirs oF THrs AGREEMENT.

7 '10 other Limltations. The warranties. made by sunGard in this Agreement, andthe obligations of sunGard under this Agreem""i, iln only to customer and notto its Affiliates, its customers or any other Persons. under no circumstancesshall any Affiliate or customer of cuitom"r or 
"r,y 

oiher person be considered athird party beneficiary of this Agreement or othenvise entifled to any rights orremedies under this Agreement, even if sucn 
-Rtrinates, 

customers or otherPersons are provided access to the software oi oaia maintained in the softwarevia the lnternet or other networked environment. customer shall have no rightsor remedies against sunGard except.as specificatty provided i. inlr egi"ement.No action or craim of any type reiating d, this Ajreement may be brought ormade by customer more than one (1) y6ar attei cultomer first nas nnowtedge ofthe basis for the action or claim.

CON FI DENTIALIry, OWN ERSHI P AN D RESTRICTIVE COVENANT
8'1 Disclosure Restrictions. All confidential tnformation of one party (',DisclosingParty") in the possession of the oter 1;ie;"ili;g party,,), whether or notauthorized, shall be held in strict confid"n.b, 

"nJ 
inineceiving Fartv'sna1 tateall steps reasonably necessary to preserve the tonfidentiality thereof. TheDisclosing Party's Gonfidential lnformation snatt not u" used or disclosed by theReceiving Party for any purpose except as necessary to implement or performthis Agreement, or except as required uv r"w, piouided that the other party isgiven a reasonable opportunity to obtain i pi"iir"ti" order. Tne Receivin! eartyshall timit its use of and accesi to the oir"ioring F;rti;. i;";id;iiriT.i"ir",,".to only those of its employees whose responsibi'iities require such use or access.The Receiving party shail advis," qll .y.l;il"y""s, before they receiveaccess to or possession of any of the Disclosilg lirty's confidential lniormation,of the confidential nature ot ine confidential infoiniation and require them toabide by the terms of this Agreement.- fhe i"""iui"g party shall u"'ri"ur"io,. ,nvbreach of this Agreement by any of its emprov""i or any other person whoobtains access to or possession- of any of ine'oisclosing party,s confidentiallnformation from or through the Receivinb p"rty. - --

8-2 sunGard's proprietary rtems, ownership Rights. The proprietary rtems aretrade secrets and. proprietary property of-sunbard, having great commerciarvatue to sunGard. Ail proprietary items tro;id; to customer under thisAgreement are. being provided on a strictly confidential and limited use basis.customer shail not, direcfly or indirecfly, .orruni."te, pubrish, dispray, roan,give or othenryise disclose any proprietary rtem to anv person, or permit anyPerson to have access to or 
-possession 

of any Froprietary ltem. Tifle to allProprietary rtems and arr rerated patent, copviigil; trademark, trade secret,intellectual property and other ownership rign6'sn";ii be and remain exclusivelywith sunGard, even with respect to such iibms tnai were created by sunGardspecifically for or on behalf of customer. This Ago"r"nt is not an agieeilent otsale' and no title, patent, copyright, trademark, irade secret, intellectual propertyor other ownership rights to any-eroprietary ltems arl iransferreo to custlmer oyvirtue of this Agreement' All copies or nropiiltary ltems in customefspossession shall remain the exclusive property or'suncaro and shall be deemedto be on roan to customer during the term of tfiis ngieement.

12 CONFIDENTIAL



8.3

8.4

8.5

9. TERMINATION

use Restrictions. customer shall not do, attempt to do, nor permit any otherPerson to do, any of the following:

8'3.1 use any proprietary rtem for any purpose, at any location or in any
manner not specifically authorized by this Agreement; or )

8-3-2 make or retain any copy of any proprietary rtem except as specificaily
authorized by thisAgreement; or

8'3'3 create or recreate the source code for the Software, or re-engineer, reverse
engineer, decompile or disassemble the Software; or

8.3.4 with respect to Source Codq modify, adapt, translate or create derivative
works based upon the software or combine or merge any part of thesoftware wi.th. or into any other software not ", Jtn"*i..i 

"*pi.rrivprovided by this Agreernent; or
8'3'5 refer to or othenrise use any Proprietiary ltem as part of any effort either (i)

to develop a proqram having any functional attributes, visuai expressions oiother features simirar to those of the software, oi tiil to .6rp"1" ,itnSunGard;or

8.3.6 remove, erase or tamper with any copyright or other proprietary noticeprinted or stamped on, affixed to, or encoded or recorded in any prdprietarv
Item, or fail to preserve all copyright and other proprietary n,itrc"Jin *v
Copy of any proprietary ltem ma-OJOy Customer; or'

8.3.7 sell, market, ricense, sublicense, distribute or othenuise grant to any
Person, incrud.ing any outsourcer, vendor, consurtant or partner, any right to
use any Proprietary rtem, whether on customer's behalf'or othenviJ"; ii '-

8'3'8 become a service lureau utilizing Software in competition with SunGard,
whereby its use of software, wourd provide services where 

" ,"p"rrtu
Chart of Accounts or book of record would be established forcn-"ntiiv
outside the Customer's jurisdiction.

Notice and Remedy of Breaches. Each party shall prompfly give written notice
lg.tng other of any actuar or suspected bieach oy it'orrny-oitn" provisions oithis section 8, whether or not intentional, and the oreacr,ing party shall, at itsexpense, take all steps reasonably requested by the other party io prevent orremedy the breach.

Enforcement. Each.party acknowledges that the restrictions in this Agreementare reasonable and necessary to protect the othefs legitimate 
-nusiness

intere^sts. Each party acknowledges that any breach oi anv or the provisions ofthis section 8 shall resurt in irreparable injury to the otner ror ;hich ;;;tdamages could not adequately compensate. 
- 

tr there is a breach, then theinjured party shall be entitted, in addition to all other ritnt ano remedies which itmay have at law or in equity, to have a decree of s"peciric performance or aninjunction iss_ued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured orenjoining all Persons involved from continuing the bieach. ihe existence of anyclaim or cause of action lfrat a party or any other person may have against theother party shall not constitute a defbnse oi bar to the enforcement of any of theprovisions of this Section g.

The parties agree that Annual support may be terminated as per 6.2 without

GONFIDENTIAL



9.1

9.2

terminating this Agreement.

Termination by customer. customer may terminate this Agreement, by giving
written notice of termination to sunGard, only upon the occuir:ence of 

"ny 
of tn6

following events:

9;1.1 SunGard breaches any of its material obligations under this Agreement
and does not cure the breach within ninety (90) days (provided that the
breach is susceptible to cure) (or such other time period as may be
reasonable under the circumstances) after Customer gives written notice
to SunGard describing the breach in reasonable detail.

9.1.2 sunGard (or a surviving company in the event of a merger or sale of
SunGard) dissolves or liquidates or othenrise discontinues all or a
significant part of its business operations. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
SunGard reserves the right to outsource professional services which wilt
not be deemed grounds for Customer termination hereunder.

Termination by sunGard. sunGard may terminate this Agreement, by giving
written notice of termination to Customer, only upon the occurrence of any of the
following events:

9'2.1 Customer fails to pay to SunGard Software License fees within ten
(10) days after SunGard makes written demand therefore, that are
not the subject of a Good Faith Dispute, or

9,2.2 customer: (a) breaches any of its obligations under section(s) 1.1,
1.2, 5.2, 5.5, 6.1, 7.3, 8, 10.2, 10.9 or 10.8, or (b) breaches any of
its obligations with respect to SunGard's intellectual property rights,
or (c) misuses sunGard's Proprietary ltems, and does not cure the
breach within ninety (90) days (provided that the breach is
susceptible to cure) (or such other time period as may be
reasonable under the circumstances) after SunGard gives written
notice to Customer describing the breach in reasonable detail, or

9.2.3 Customer dissolves or liquidates or otherwise discontinues all or a
significant part of its business operations.

Expiration of Term. Unless othenvise stated on Appendix 1 of this Agreement,
the software specified on Appendix 1 shall have a perpetual term, and customer
shall continue to have a license to use the Software in accordance with the terms
of this Agreemgnt, from the Delivery Date for such Software unless and until
terminated in accordance with this Section 9.

Effect of Termination.

TERMINATION OF ONGOING MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES
(see Appendix 4). ln accordance with the notice provisions of section 6.2,
Customer may terminate its use of ongoing maintenance and support services
without terminating this Agreement, and may therefore continue to use the
Software unsupported under this Agreement after such a termination of ongoing
maintenance and support services, as further described in this Section 9.4.1-.
Upon the effective date of a termination of the maintenance and support services
by sunGard or customer, or at anytime when customer has failed to pay the
annual maintenance and support fees required pursuant to Section 6.2
("ongoing Maintenance and support rermination Date"), (a) sunGard shall
discontinue providing all ongoing maintenance and support services, including
sunGard's obligation under section 4.1, (b) any sunGard warranties and

9.3

9.4

9,4.1

14 CONFIDENTIAL



9.4.2

9.5

indemnities under this Agreement shall cease to apply for the period after the
ongoing Maint€nance and support rermination Date, and (c) sunGard shall
have no liability with respect to Customer's use of the Software or Services after
the Ongoing Maintenance and Support Termination Date.

TERMINATION oF THE LlcENsE AGREEMENT. Upon a termination of this
Agreement under Section 9.1 and/or Section 9.2, Customer shall: (a) discontinue
all use of all affected software and Documentation, (b) prompfly retum to
SunGard all copies of the affected Software and Documentation and any other
affected Proprietary ltems then in customer's possession, and (c) give written
notice to sunGard certifying that all copies of the affected Software and
Documentation have been permanently deleted from its computers. Customer
shall remain liable for all payments due to SunGard with respect to the period
ending on the date of termination. The provisions of sections 6, 7 (except 7.1), g
and 10 shall survive any termination of this Agreement, whether under this
Section 9 or othenrvise.

Gertain other Remedies for Nonpayment. lf customer fails to pay to
SunGard, within ten (10) days after SunGard makes written demand therefore,
any past-due amount payable under this Agreement (including interest thereon)
that is not the subject of a Good Faith Dispute, in addition to all other rights and
remedies which sunGard may have at law or in equity, sunGard may, in its sole
discretion and without further notice to customer, suspend performance of any
or all of its obligations under this Agreement (including its ongoing maintenance
and support services under Section 4.1) until all past due amounts are paid in
full.

OTHER PROVISIONS

Notice. All notices, consents and other communications under or regarding this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been received on the
earlier of the date of actual receipt, the third business day after being mailed by
first class certified air mail, or the first business day after being sent by a
reputable overnight delivery service. Any notice may be given by facsimile,
provided that a signed written original is sent by one of the foregoing methods
within twenty-four (24) hours thereafter. Customefs address for notices is 168
North Edwards street, lndependence, cA ggs26, Attention: lnformation
Services. SunGard's address for notices is SunGard Bi-Tech LLC 890 Fortress
street chico, cA Attention: contract Administration. Either party may change its
address for notices by giving written notice of the new address to the other party in
accordance with this Section 10.1.

Parties in lnterest.

10.2.'l rhis Agreement shall bind, benefit and be enforceabre by and against
sunGard and customer and, to the extent permitted hereby, their
respective successors and assigns.

10.2.2 Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any of its rights hereunder,
nor delegate any of its obligations hereunder, without the other party's
prior written Gonsent, except that such consent shall not be required in
the case of an assignment to (i) a purchaser of or successor to
substantially all of such party's business (unless such purchaser or
successor is a software, data processing or computer seryices vendor
that is a competitor of SunGard, its parent company or any of its
Affiliates) or (ii) an Affiliate of Customer, provided that the scope of each

10.

10.1

fi.2

15 GONFIDENTIAL



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

license granted under this Agreement does not change and customer
guarantees the obligations of the assignee. Any assignment by a party in
breach of this Section shall be void.

10.2.3 Any express assignment of this Agreement, any change in control of
customer, any acquisition of additional business by customer (by asset
acquisition, merger or otheruvise by operation of law), i'io any
assignment by merger or otherwise by operation of law, shall constitute
an assignment of this Agreement by customer for purposes of this
Section 10.2 ("CustomerAssignment"). Customer shall give'written notice
to sunGard at least thirty (30) days before a customer Assignment
certifying the expected use of the Software to process any additional
business related to such Customer Assignment ("Additional Busineis").
lf any Gustomer Assignment occurb, customer may continue to process
its business to the extent it existed before such Customer Assignment,
but customer may not use the software to process any Additional
Business until and unless Customer has paid to SunGard an Additional
Business fee, to be negotiated at the time of the Customer Assignment.
Any use of the Software to process any Additional Business before the
payment of such fee shall be deemed a material breach of this
Agreement. customer shall prompfly complete and return to sunGard
periodic certifications which sunGard, in its sole discretion, may from
time to time send to Customer, certifying the actual use of the Software to
process any Additional Business.

Export Laws and use outside of the united states. customer shall comply
with the Export Laws. Customer shall not export or re-export directly or indirecfly
(including via remote access) any part of the Software or Confidential
lnformation to any Applicable Jurisdiction to which a license is required under the
Export Laws without first obtaining a license.

Relationship. The relationship between the parties created by this Agreement is
that of independent contractors and not partners, joint ventures or agents.

Entire Understanding. This Agreement, which includes and incorporates the
Appendices, and any other schedules, exhibits and addenda hereto states the
entire understanding between the parties with respect to its subject matter, and
supersedes all prior agreements, proposals, marketing materials, negotiations
and other written or oral communications between the parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement.

conflicts. ln the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the
Appendices, the terms of the Appendices shall govern.

Modification and Waiver. No modification of this Agreement, and no waiver of
any breach of this Agreement, shall be effective unless in writing and signed by
an authorized representative of the party against whom enforcement is soughi.
This Agreement may not be modified or amended by electronic means without
written agreement of the parties with respect to formats and protocols. No
waiver of any breach of this Agreement, and no course of dealing between the
parties, shall be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this
Agreement.

Audit. sunGard may, at its expense and by giving reasonable advance written
notice to Customer, enter Customer locations during normal business hours and
audit the number of copies of the Software and Documentation in Customer's
possession, the scope of Use and information pertaining to customer's

10.8

16 CONFIDENTIAL



10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

compliance with the provisions of Sections 1.1,5.2,8.2, 8.3 and 10.2. lf
SunGard discovers that there is an unauthorized Scope of Use or that Gustomer
is not in compliance with the provisions of Sections 1.1, 5.2, 8.2, 8.3 and 10.2 in
any material respect, then Customer shall reimburse SunGard for the expenses
incurred by SunGard in conducting the audit.

Severabitity. A determination that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or
unenforceable shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement.

Headings. Section headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not
affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

Jurisdiction and Process. ln any action relating to this Agreement, (a) each of
the parties irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the
federal and state courts located in the State of California, (b) each of the parties
irrevocably consents to service of process by first class certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the address at which the party is to
receive notice in accordance with Section 10.1, and (c) the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees (including, if applicable,
charges for in-house counsel), court costs and other legal expenses from the
other party

Gounterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. lf this Agreement is executed via
facsimile, each party hereto shall provide the other party with an original
executed signature page within five (5) days following the Execution Date of this
Agreement.

Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AND
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA EXCLUDING CHOICE OF LAW; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT
THE TERMS OF ANY APPLICABLE LAW NOW OR HEREAFTER ENACTED
THAT IS BASED ON OR SIMILAR TO THE UNIFORM COMPUTER
INFORMATION TMNSACTIONS ACT DRAFTED BY THE NATIONAL
CONFERENCE OF COMMISSIONERS ON UNIFORM STATE LAWS SHALL
NOT APPLY.

Piggy Back Glause. Whereas Customer has conducted a competitive
evaluation and has concluded such efforts with this negotiated Agreement;
therefore this Agreement may serve as the basis for similarAgreements whereby
other governmental entities may contract separetely with SunGard.

17 CONFIDENTIAL



APPENDIX 1

TO SOFTWARE LIGENSE AGREEMENT
Price/Product schedule: software, support, Services, Third Party Products, etc.

Summary Page

IFAS is licensed for 25 Concurrent Users

IFAS Application Software License and Fees $58.768
IFAS Professiorial Services $31 1.760
Third Party Products and Services $26,874

$24,s41

$2,32s

s26.866

$424,26b

Selected Hardware and Services Fee Support

Fees and Profeisional gervices Fee

1 SafetyNet Engine 3,225
2 Win2003 7i Server 15,240
1 Win2000 IFAS Production Application Server 7.850
1 Win2000 IFAS Test Application/SOV7i Server 11,050
1 Win2003 IFAS Production Database Server 12,275
1 Windows OS Media 30

1 st Y. ear
Supp-ort

750

1,500

1.500

750

$4,s00

$s4,170

$31,366

The Parties aqree that in the event this Agreement is signed bv both parties bv December 24h and an
orisinal copv of the exeqyted contract is provided to SunGard bv December 27. 2006 then the licensg
price show above ($58.769) shall be discounted bv $5.000 dollars to $53.768. All other prices above
shallremain as shown.

Fees and Services TOTAL $3e7

Hardware and ces

IFAS TOTAL

18 CONFIDENTIAL



IFAS Application Software License & Hardware Fees 25 Concurrent Userc

,,Sof-tware Li ce ri,ses

Finance

General Ledger Licensed 4,250 4,250

Budgeting (lncludes Budget ltem Detail) New 4,048 971 5,019

Accounts Payable Licensed 1,093 1,093

Accounts Receivable/Cash Receipts Licensed 1.093 1,093

Bank Reconciliation New

Purchasing Licensed 1,572 1,572

Fixed Assets New 4.124 990 5,1 14

HR & Payroll

Payroll Licensed 2,429 2,429

Timecard Online New

Human Resources (lncludes Position Budgeting) New 10,119 2,429 12,548-

Employee Online New 5,312 1,275 6,587

Applicant Online New 5,060 1,214 6,274
Tools and Adjunct Software

Click, Drag, & Drill (Report Writer) New 8,855 2,125 10,980

Easy Laser Forms New 1.898 455 2,353

Documents Online New 5,312 1,n5 6,587

Architecture New 14,040 3,370 17,410

& First Year rt Fees $58,768 s24,54'l $83,309

19 CONFIDENTIAL



IFAS Professional Services

il$ffi ;,P+*Fss i o na l' S ervice s Ucense
Staius

I r.aln Paii-e6nvert .:

J..
I asl(.

Finance

General Ledger Licensed 8 8

Budgeting (lncludes Budget ltem Detail) New I 4 12

Accounts Payable Licensed 4 4

Accounts Receivable/Cash Receipts Licensed 2 2

Bank Reconciliation New 16 16 36 68

Purchasing Licensed 4 4
Fixed Assets New 28 8 20 56
FIR & Payroll

Payroll Licensed I I
fimecard Online New 32 32

Human Resources (lncludes Position Budgeting) New 136 56 80 44 316

Employee Online New 32 't2 20 64

Applicant Online New 40 16 56 112
foolc and Adjunct Software

Click, Drag, & Drill (Report Writer) New 128 64 192
Easy Laser Forms New 48 48

Documents Online New 't6 16 32

7i Architecture (Finanbe/H R) New 64 64
Setup for Workflow New 70 28 9B

Subtotal Component Professional Services Hours 500 hrs 300 hrs 1 16 hrs 204 hrs '1,120 hrs

Services Fees $67 $40,500 $17,400 $30,600 $156,000

Services Rbte Hours Cost

Remote Account Management Fixed Fee N/A 5,400
Special Needs Consulting 135 48 6,480
Hardware lntegration (NetworkMorkstations/Printers) 135 32 4,320
IFAS lnstallation and lnitial Data Migration Fixed Fee N/A 1 0,800

SA/DBA Technical Training At Client Site 13s 32 4,320
On-Site Project Mentor for 15 months (1 week/month) 't75 600 '105,000

New Functionality Training: Financial Modules 135 80 10,800

Final Data Migration & Test Envirbnment Creation 135 64 8,640

subtotal I ect Services 856 hrs $1 55,760

lServices 1,976hrs $31 1,760

20 CONFIDENTIAL



Third Party Products and Services 25 Concurrent Uses

ffi1E"8t"ty+P+ l g :i ma,S e rvr ce s First Yegr. ,
,Suppoii

Pioflssiohal
'Sefultes .

Usgt't,pr
Friiteisors

SOUServer Standard Edition (RDBMS) with 2 CPU(s)

- SOL Server Standard Edition 11,000 2 cpu

Media for SQL Server 30 1 svr

D-tsAM96 312 2 usr

MKS Sys Admin Toolkit 450 1 svr

MKS Connectivity Suite 2s0 50 1 svr

OueriXfor'12.5 Users 2,188 475 13 usr

Microfocus COBOL NetExpress 3.1

- Net Express Run-Tiine License Bundles (10 seats ea.) 4,960 1,040 4 bdl
TEST: SOUServer Standard with 20 CAL Users

- SOUServer Standard Edition (Base). 723 1 svr

- SOUServer Client Access Licenses 2,720 20 usr

IEST: Media for SOL Server 30 1 svr

TEST: D-|SAM96 156 1 usr

TEST: MKS Sys Admin Toolkit 450 1 svr

IEST: MKS Connectivity Suite 250 50 1 svr

IEST: OuerX for 5 Users 875 190 5 usr

TEST; Microfocus COBOL NetExpress 3.1

- Net Express Run-Time License Bundles (10 seats ea.) 2,48A 520 2 bdl

Tetal Third Party Products $26,874 $2,325 $o

21 CONFIDENTIAL



APPENDIX 2
TO SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

Hardware and Related Services

22 CONFIDENTIAL



Hardware & Hardware Related Services

1,900 600 2,500
will a Windows server as a Engine) for support servtces use. requrresthe lnternet with stx (6) IP Addresses (1 llv visible) routab

a connection to
externa le to the target server(s) being supported. The unit includes a number oicomponents, including 2.4-Ghz lntel Pentium 4 Processor with 5 1 2 Mb memory, Two (2) hot-swappable (mirrored) 73-Gb disc drives. Hot-swappable scst ,Adaptec 2 120 RAID Controller, CD.ROM and Floppy Drives, Dual (2t 10/1 00/1000 Ethernet cards,

MS Windows 2003 Server Software /5 Seats 725 725
1 OneYear Extended Hardware Warranty {Renewable)

750

Win2003 7i Server 13. 1 90 600
will

1 3,790
(2) IFAS 7i use IFAS count 25concurrent administrative and 7 on-demand users), 0

on a
users test server and 1 reserve s€rver The unit ts tn 19" 4U rackmount with dualswappable 500

a casewatt power supplies. Dual (2) 3.06-Ghz Xeon Processors with 4 Gb memory. Two (2t hot-swappabie (mirrored) 36-cb disc drives.Hot-swappable scsr u320 RAID Controller DVD and Floppy Drives. Dual l2l 1 ol100t1000 Ethernet cards. The network between the dataand the Windows 2003 Standard Serve(s) shou td be 00 mb/second switched
server

Ethernet.

Windows 2003 Standard Server Software
1 1,450

OneYear Extended Hardware
1

6, I 00 300 6,400
provide Production Server unit ts tn a case 600 wattsupplies. Dual (2t 3.06-G hz Xeon Processors with 4 G b Two (2) hot-5wappable

power

RAID Control ler DVD and Floppy
memory. (mirrored) 73-Gb disc drives, Hot-swappa ble scst u320

Drives. Dual (2t 1 ot 00/1000 Ethernet cards, The network between the data server and the Windows 2003Standird Server(s) sho uld be 1 mb/second switched Ethernet.

1 Win2000 IFAS Test Server 10, 750 300
SunGard ll

1 ,050
(1 IFAS Test The unit ts tn a 1 I 4U rackmount case with dual hot-swappable 500 wattsupplies. Dual (2) 3.064hz Xeon Processors with 4 G b rnemory. Seven (7) hot-swappable (m irrored)

power

RAID Contro ler. DVD and Floppy
7 3-G b disc drives. Hot-swappable SCSI u320

Drives. Dual (2) 1 0/'l00/1000 Ethernet cards. The network between the data server and the Windows 2003Standard Server(s) sho uld be 1 mb/second switched Ethernet.

2 Windows Standard Server Software 1,450
OneYear Extended Hardware

1,500
'l Win2003 IFAS Production Database Server 1,250 300

provide
1 1 ,550

use as the IFAS 7i Database server unit ts ln a 4U rackmount case duaswappable 600 watt power supplies. Dual (2t 3.06-c hz Xeon Processors with 4 Gb memo ry. Seven (7) hot-swappable (mirrored) 73-cb discdrives, Hot-swappable scst u320 RAID Controller DVD and Floppy Drives- Dual (2) 1 0/'lo0/1 000 Ethernet cards- The network betweenselver and the Windows 2003 Standard Server(s) shou td be 1 00 mb/seco
the data

nd switched Ethernet.

2 Windows 2003 Standard Server Software 725
2 OneYear Extended Hardware Wa

725

750

1 Windows OS Media
30 30

190 380 100 ,670

$54,1 70

23 CONFIDENTIAL



APPENDIX 3

TO SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT
Payment Schedule

Due Upon Gontract Execution:
IFAS Software License Fees
Hardware Fees (Hardware, Annual Support, & Fixed Fee Services)
Third Party Software License Fees .

IFAS AnnualSupport
Third Party Annual Support
Fixed Fee Services

$58,768*
$54,170
$26,874
$24,541
$2,325

$16,200

2.

lf applicable, 10Oo/o of the salesluse tax due on the taxable amount for the entire Agreement.

Due Monthly as Delivered or lncurred:
10A% of Professional SeMces Delivered (excluding Fixed Fee Services) $295,560

. The Parties aqree tha
an oriqinal copv of the executed contract is provided to SunGard bv December 27. 2006 then the
license price show above ($58.768) shall be discounted bv $5.000 dollars to $53.768. All other prices
above shallremain as shown.

24 CONFIDENTIAL



1

APPENDIX4

Application Software Maintenance and Support Agreement
(Su nGard Assistance, Softvyare Updates, Gustomer Obli gations)

SUNGARD ASSISTANCE

1.1. Remote Assistance. sunGard shall provide to customer, from sa.m. to
5p.m. PT, Monday through Friday (SunGard Holidays excepted),
telephone, fax, and e-mail supported assistance regarding customerls
authorized use of the Latest software Update. customer agrees to
attempt to locate information provided in Documentation prior to use of
Remote Assistance. ln addition, SunGard shall provide setf service-based
assistance via sunGard's web based support online. The Gustomer
agrees to stay current on the Latest Software Update for their chosen
Delivery option (see 2.1). sunGard will provide herp desk support for a
single production account and, at a reduced priority, a single test account.

1.2. Resolution Assistance. Customer shall provide to SunGard reasonably
detailed documentation and explanation of issues to be resolved, together
with underlying data, to substantiate any problem or failure and to assist
SunGard in its efforts to diagnose, reproduce and correct the problem or
failure.

1.3. Non software Assistance. Non software Assistance requests (e.g.
requests for assistance with hardware, operating systems, database
management systems, networks, printer configuration, etc.) are outside
the scope of this Annual support Agreement. However, at customer's
request, Non'Software Assistance may be provided on a time and
materials basis, as available, at the sole discretion of SunGard.

1.4 sunGard may request customer to cease using software during certain
repair or maintenance operations. lf sunGard requests in writing that
customer cease operation of its production account for a specific time, and
customer approves, sunGard will commence with maintenance or repairs at
the appointed time. lf sunGard fails to commence maintenance or repair
work after requesting customer to cease using the production software
(unless sunGard gives written notice to Gustomer at least 6 business hours
before the appointed time it cannot commence work as planned), then
sunGard shall refund to customer one month's maintenance fee for each
such day for which sunGard fails to commence the maintenance or repair
work in question. The maximum of all amounts refunded to customer under
this section 1.4 for each annual period under this Agreement shall not
exceed two month's maintenance fees.

SOFTWARE UPDATES

2.1. Delivery options. customer may select from two delivery options:
Express and Mainstream. The Express option provides the Customer with
up to two primary software updates per year, plus the year-end payroll tax
update, the W2 update, and the 1099 update. The Mainstream option

2.

25



provides the Customer with one major consolidated Software Update per
year, plus the year-end payroll tax update, the W2 update, and the 1099
update. The default option is Mainstream.

Delivery Method. SunGard shall provide to the Customer Software
Updates for the application server based Software via Hassle Free
SupportrM (HFS). HFS means that SunGard will log-on to Customer's
designated seryer, with authorization from Customer, and load the seryer-
based Software Update into a single Account for the Customer. HFS is
strictly lnternet delivered. Therefore, the exchange of magnetic/optical
media for server-based Software Updates is not available. lf SunGard, in
its sole discretion, determines that delivery of the server-based Software
Update via lnternet is not practical, then Customer will receive
magnetic/optical media along with instructions on assisting SunGard in
applying the server based Software Update. For Software Updates for
WindowsrM based Software, media will be sent to Customer, including
Customer loading instructions. Software Updates shall be accompanied
by updates to the Documentation on optical media whenever SunGard
determines, in its sole discretion, that such updates are necessary. ln
addition, between Software Updates, seMce packs may be available for
Customer download and installation. For those Customer's that choose
not to utilize the HFS method of Software Update delivery; the Software
Updates are available for download by the Customer from SunGard's FTp
site.

Compatibility. SunGard shall provide Customer with Software Updates
to maintain the compatibility of the Software with new releases of the
operating system under which the Software is licensed.

Gustom Modifications. This Agreement specifically does not include any
custom modifications to the Software.

Functional Gompliance. SunGard will use commercially reasonable
efforts to provide Software Updates to cause the Software to continue to
conform to GASB and GAAP requirements, and to maintain accurate
Federal and State payroll tax tables (as published by the taxing authorities)
and their related calculation processes.

Software Reliability, ln the event that there arises a defect in the Latest Software
Update which is a material failure to perform as described in the Documentation
attributed solely to SunGard and the Software is therefore unavailable for use in
Customer's production account for more than two consecutive hours in a business day,
then SunGard agrees, as SunGard's sole obligation (excluding SunGard's ongoing
support services obligations) and Customer's sole remedy for such failure to perform, to
refund 1/30th of the monthty maintenance fee for each such business day subject to the
following:

3.1 Customer must give written notice to SunGard of the material failure to perform
describing it in reasonable detail, and requesting the refund referenced herein.

3.2 SunGard and Customer will investigate the defect and if there was a material failure to
perform as described above, then SunGard will promptly provide such refund to
Customer and will address the defect in accordance with its ongoing support services

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2,5.

3

26



obligations hereunder.

3. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS

3.{ lnternet Connection. The Customer agrees to use SunGard's SafetyNet
Server (provided in Appendix 1) which is a dedicated pre-configured
server that resides at the Customer location, and which utilizes Microsoft's
Virtual Private Network . This SafetyNet Server restricts the firewall
opening to an authenticated port, and establishes a connection between
SunGard and the Customer only. ln addition the SafetyNet Server allows
the establishment of a VPN tunnel where the encryption of data passing
through the lnternet safeguards the authentication and data transfer. This
is the best solution for premium support and is necessary for access to
PC/Web based clients products as well as access to multiple servers
onsite.

Customer is responsible for the costs related to maintaining the SafetyNet
Engine (including the applying updates and patches), and for telephone
tollcharges associated with remote on-line support.

3.2. Modifications by Gustomer. Any modifications not made by SunGard,
and the results caused thereby to the Software shall be the sole
responsibility of the Customer.

3.3. Third Party Products. From time to time new optional features may be
added to the Software as a result of a Software Update. Optionalfeatures
may require the use of third party software or hardware. Customer shall
have the option to procure or not to procure such third party products to
enable such optional features. ln addition, future Software Updates may
require Customer to procure specific third party software or hardware to
allow Customer to utilize the Latest Software Update.

3.4. Remain Gurrent with New Releases. Customer agrees to accept and
install and stay current on the Latest Software Update.

4. TERM OF MAINENTANCE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

4.1 lnitial Maintenance and support rerm: The lnitial Maintenance and
Support Term shall be for a period of one year commencing upon
execution of this Agreement.

4.2 Renewal Maintenance and Support Term: Upon conclusion of the lnitial
Maintenance and Support Term, SunGard shall continue to offer
maintenance and support services to Customer, at the fees and for the
terms specified in this Agreement, for one additional one-year period.

Upon conclusion of the Renewal Maintenance and Support Term,
SunGard may offer maintenance and support services to Customer on a
year-to-year basis, provided ihat SunGard shall give Customer one
hundred eighty (180) days written notice if SunGard intends to terminate
maintenance and support services.

27



APPENDIX 5
Statement of Work

1.0 Executive Summary

Training Room

Migration: The Plan
3.1 Migration Methodology

3.1.1 Update of MPE Account
3.1.2 lnstallation of Software
3.1.3 Data Rolland Cleansing
3.1.4 Gore User Orientation
3.1.5 CustomerTesting
3.1.6 End User Familiarization
3.1.7 Final Data Roll
3.1.8 Migration Completed

Prdect Planning

4.1 GeneralAssumptions
4.2 Project Planning and Steps

SunGard Personnel

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

28



1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The implementation project described in this Appendix 1 will result in the migration of
Customer's data currently residing on an HP3000 system to a new Windows 2003 SQL Server
envitonment. The migration will include all previously licensed and implemented modules and
will span a project timeline of approximately six (6) months. Once the migration is finished,
Customer and SunGard will implement new Software modules, including IFAS 7i, Workflow,
Human Resources, Fixed Assets, Click, Drag and Drill and lmaging. The introduction and
deployment of the new Software modules will span a project timeline of approximately nine (9)
additional months.

SunGard and Customer will use SunGard's proprietary OnTrack implementation methodology
for this project. Following is a high level overview of the phases for this project

Phase l- Misration

Update of MPE account (if needed)
lnstall Software on Windows 2003/SQL servers
Roll client data from MPE to SQL
SunGard runs through a test plan on all modules
SunGard and Customer resolve any discovered issues
Customer Core User Orientation
Client tests their specific business processes
SunGard and Customer resolve any issues discovered
Customer End User Orientation
Final roll of data and backup of MPE
Live on SQL Server (target of - 6 months)

Phase ll - Updating Production Environment to most current. released version
Update Software to latest release in Test account (Windows 2003 ISQL test server)
Client tests their specific business processes
SunGard and Customer resolve any discovered issues
Updates applied to Production account
Live on latest release

Phase lll- lmplementation of New Modules

lmplement New Modules
Live on New Modules

a

a

29 CONFIDENTIAL



2.0 TRAINING ROOM

A training classroom should be reserved for the purpose of IFAS training during the
implementation. The room should be large enough to allow classroom-style work space for
approximately 10 people. This room is to be used for both core group consultingitraining
performed by SunGard, and end user training performed by Customer. The room should
be equipped with 10 workstations, consisting of the following:

The desktop computers in the training room should be configured with Windows 2003 pro or
XP Pro. The minimum training room workstation should be a Pentium lll BOoMhz with
256M8 of RAM and 4 GB of free disk space. Video support ot 1024x768 with 17" monitors
is required.

The consultant or trainer will also require a workstation with the above treatments, set up in
the front of the room, off to one side. Additional requirements for the trainer and the room
are as follows:

. Laser printer with network connection

. LCD Projector
r Retractable Screen
o White Board and pens
r Cabinet for storage
. Laser pointer

30 GONFIDENTIAL



3.0 MIGRATION - THE PLAN

3.1 Migration Methodology

The migration process is purposefully and distinctly separated from the
implementation of any new IFAS modules. This will result in a reduction in
complexity, an initial reduction in perceived differences and changes from an end
user's perspective, an early accomplishment of a significant milestone (no further
dependence of Software on the HP3000 platform), and will provide the abitity to
keep both Customer and SunGard resources focused on the migration.

The following steps assume that all hardware is in place and ready for the
installation and configuration of the IFAS Software.

3.1.1 Update of MPE Account
The first step in the Migration process is to get the MPE production
environment onto an HFS version that is consistent with what will be installed
on the Windows 2003iSQL Server. The amount of time and resources
needed to achieve rthis is dependent upon the version which exists in the
MPE Production environment, Clearly the number of updates needing to be
applied will increase the scope of work associated with this step. This will
allow the most seamless path for migrating data, processes, and
configuration settings from one platform to another.

3.1.2 Installation of Software
The Windows 2003 System must be configured, and the current version of
the IFAS Software must be installed. Additionally, any Windows 2003 Server
applications must be installed and made accessible via the Customers
network.

3.1.3 Data Roll
The initial data roll will be performed by SunGard. This process consists of
the unloading of data from the MPE lmage database into flat files, the
transfer of these files from the HP3000 onto the Windows 2003 Database
Server, and the uploading of this data into the SQL database. Although the
database schemas are practically identical in structure, not all data will
convert without the need for adjustment. Some of these adjustments can be
automated and scripts developed to 'clean' this data for subsequent data
rolls. An example of data that may not convert in this manner may include
dates, user defined number fields, and/or custom tables and columns.
SunGard and Customer must evaluate the converted data and identify any
'mapping' or 'conversion' issues necessary so that subsequent data rolls will
result in clean data within the database.

3.1.4 Gore User Orientation
SunGard Consulting staff will conduct Core User Orientation training; in
which the new and slightly different ways in which the system operates is
discussed and explored in detail. Customer's Core Users will receive
specific, hands on training associated with core business functions.

31 CONFIDENTIAL



3.1.5 Gustomer Testing
Upon the successful completion of the Data Roll, Customer is responsible for
testing specific processes and comparing the resulting data and results with
a focus on accuracy. ldeally, parallel processing would occur between the
SQL environment and the MPE environment of all key business processes.

3.1.6 End User Familiarization
Customer must ensure that all end users have the ability to connect to the
Windows 2003 environment in a manner consistent with how they currently
connect to the HP3000. Customer should also ensure that all end users are
oriented to the minor changes associated with this migration.

3.1.7 Final Rollover
Once Customer is confident with the manner in which the Software functions
in the Windows 2003 environment, and the Customer's Testing confirms the
accuracy of parallel processing, preparation for the final data roll may occur.

Typically this process will begin on a Friday with the objective of having all
end users connect only to the new Windows 2003 Production Account the
following Monday morning. SunGard's staff will work closely with Customer's
staff through this process, applying any of the automated data cleaning
scripts or programs that have been previously defined.

Note: lf not done so previously, all end users systems (desktops/notebooks)
used to connect to IFAS should be configured to have the Windows 2003
connections in place.

3.1.8 Migration Completed

32 CONFIDENTIAL



4.0 PROJECT PLANNING

4.1 General Assumptions

Upon Execution of this Addendum, Customer and SunGard will mutually develop a
project plan for this project that will include anticipated dates of the activities for the
implementation, such as installation, training, data migration, and other various
other milestones that will ensure the success of the implementation. Both parties
agree to work together to define the project plan within four (4) weeks of execution
of this Addendum.

4.2 Project Planning and Steps

A description of the high level tasks associated with project planning, as well as the party
responsible for each of these steps has been outlined below.

Steps Description of
Step/Deliverable

Gustomer SunGard

Plan all of the
sequences of major
steps in the project,
from contract signing
to go-live.

Project Plan - High Level
The high level project plan is
an MS Project based visual
representation of the
summary activities,
deliverables and milestones
of the project. lt will be
organized around OnTrack's
Stages, Tracks and
deliverables.

Project Manager SunGard Account
Manager

Plan the detailed
hours required for
each person on the
project team to
accomplish all of the
work they are
assigned.

Proiect Plan - Detailed
The detailed project plan is
an MS Excel based
representation of activities
and deliverables assigned to
specific people on the project
team. Each task assignment
will include an estimate of
expected hours and
remaining hours by person.
The use of Excel to update
remaining hours by task is a
simple means to measure at
a detailed levelthe On Time
status of the proiect.

Project Manager SunGard Account
Manager

Establish a central
place for all issues to
be entered, tracked
and managed
towards resolution.
Establish a place for
key project decisions
to be documented

lssues Log
The issues log is an MS
Excel spreadsheet that will be
established in a public
repository for easy access by
every project stakeholder.
The key principle is to foster
an environment, technically
and culturally, where many
oeople will use one central

Project Manager SunGard Account
Manager

33 CONFIDENTIAL



Steps Description of
Step/Deliverable

Customer SunGard

place to log issues, in as
easy a medium as possible.
An additionaltab in the
lssues log will be used to
document key decisions
made on the proiect.

Establish a
mechanism and
process to maintain
visibility on the overall
project costs -
budget vs. actual

Budget Plan
The Budget Plan is an MS
Excel spreadsheet that is
established to track all
aspects of actual
implementation costs against
the budqet

Project Manager Account Manager

Create a
communications plan
that will identify allof
the necessary
communications to
keep allstakeholders
informed throughout
the project

Communication Plan
The Communication Plah is
an MS Word document that
first identifies all of the
internaland external
stakeholders, and the details
the messages they need to
receive, how often the
messages should be sent,
and in what medium. Once
this is established, a calendar
is used to create specific
communications tasks for the
proiect manaqer.

Proiect Manager Account Manager

Document all
necessary activities
to ensure the
organization is aware
of and prepared for
all change implied by
the new system

Ghange Management Plan
The Change Management
Plan is an MS Word
document that describes all
of the communications and
activities required to prepare
the organization for upcoming
changes

Project Manager Accounts Manager

Create an
organization chart
ihat clearly depicts
project team roles

Project Team Org Chart
The Project Team Org Chart
is an MS Powerpoint
document that shows the
structure of the project team,
identifying all necessary roles
and the people assigned to
perform them on the project
team.

Project Manager Account Manager

Draft a statement that
establishes the
authority of the client
project manager

Project Authority Statement
The Project Authority
Statement is an MS Word
document signed by the
project sponsor that
expresses the responsibilities
and authority of the client

Project Manager Account Manager

34 CONFIDENTIAL



Steps Description of
Step/Deliverable

Customer SunGard

project manager

Compile all Plan
Stage deliverables
into a Project
Summary document
that provides an
overall understanding
of the project
direction and
requirements

Proiect Summary Plan
The Project Summary is a 3
ring binder that compiles all
of the Plan Stage
deliverables into a
comprehensive description of
the direction of the project,
and allthe necessary
requirements to get to Go-
Live.

Project Manager Account Manager

Conduct a Technical
Planning
Teleconference that
will plan and prepare
all activities for the
Technical Track's
Planning stage.

The Technical Planning
Summary will summarize on
paper all aspects of the
technical planning
teleconference, including
responsibilities of all parties,
hardware specifications and
ordering instructions,
database specifications,
network specifications,
backup processes. etc.

Project Manager

System
Administrator

Account Manager

Computer
Services
Department

Review Hardware
Specifications.
Customer will provide
SunGard with
specifications of
hardware order;
SunGard will review
final specifications
prior to purchase to
ensure it meets all
appropriate
requirements.

The Hardware
Specifications
Documentation will provide
details regarding all
requirements for ensuring the
overall hardware architecture
willfunction effectively. lt is
the basis for placing both the
Hardware Order and the 3d
Party Products Order.

Project Manager

System
Administrator

Account Manager

Gomputer
Services
Department

Order all required
Hardware elements.
Customer will provide
SunGard with
notification of order
and expected arrival
dates.

The Hardware Order
Documentation is simply a
copy of the order(s) placed
with vendors to procure the
underlying system hardware,
as specified in the Hardware
Specifications

System
Administrator

Account Manager

Computer
Services
Department

Order all required 3"
Party Product
elements. SunGard
will provide customer
with notification that
3'd party products
have been ordered.

The 3'" Party Products
Order Documentation is
simply a copy of the orde(s)
placed with vendors to
procure the required 3'd party
products, as specified in the
Hardware Specifications.

System
Administrator

Account Manager

Conduct an analysis The End User Workstation System Account Manaoer

35 CONFIDENTIAL



Steps Description of
Step/Deliverable

Gustomer SunGard

of existing
workstation
specifications for use
in determining
workstation upgrade
and/or installation
requirements.

Plan provides the customer
with an outline for managing
End User Workstations.

Administrator
Computer
Services
Department

SunGard will provide
customer with a list of
recommended 3'd
party training classes;
customer will
schedule attendance
for classes where
appropriate.

The 3'o Party Glass
Schedule will document
when custorner's lT staff will
attend 3'd Party Classes.

System
Administrator

Account Manager

Hardware Staging
and IFAS Software
lnstallation

Once the hardware arrives at
SunGard's office, SunGard
will stage the hardware and
install IFAS and the 3'd party
software (including SQL
Server to be provided by
Customer) on the server
farm. Both a production
account and test account will
be confiqured.

Gomputer
Services
Department

Ship Hardware to
Customer's location

Arrange for shipping to
Customer's location. Track
hardware and ensure arrival
of hardware is consistent'with
project plan

SunGard Account
Manager

Computer
Services
Department

Hardware/Network/
Systeml Database
Preparation

Ensure existing network is
operational. Ensure that
Customer support staff have
been trained on the
Hardware, Operating System
and Database

Project Manager

System
Adrninistrator

Hardware lntegration
/ lnstallation

lnstalland integrate the new
hardware on the Customer's
network. Test to ensure
hardware has an active
connection to Customer's
network.

System
Administrator

Network
Manager

Gomputer
Services
Department

PC lnstallation &
Training

lnstall PC products on two
end user PCs that need to
develop reports or create
workflows and train Customer
Staff in subsequent PC
lnstallation. Test and assess
knowledge transfer from
SunGard to Customer Staff.

System
Administrator

lT Department

Computer
Services
Department

36 CONFIDENTIAL



Steps Description of
Step/Deliverable

Gustomer SunGard

Help Desk Forms Gomplete forms which
provide phone numbers,
networking information, etc.
required to begin using the
SunGard Help Desk

Project Manager Account Manager

5.0 SunGard Personnel

5.1 SunGard Account Manager

SunGard will appoint a qualified member of its staff to act as Project
Manager (the "SunGard Manager") whose duties shall be to act as
liaison between Customer and SunGard and all other vendors, who
shall have the responsibility for managing SunGard's technical resource
staff (the "SunGard Technicians") in relationship to the Project and
who shall take an active role in resolving processing problems and
operational questions. The SunGard Manager shall be available as
reasonably requested by Gustomer.

The SunGard Project Manager will work closely with Customer personnel
and the ability to do so is fundamental to the success of this project.
lf a situation should arise that Customer personnel and the Project
Manager are unable to effectively cooperate to complete the tasks in
this agreement, Customer may request replacement of the Project
Manager and SunGard shall do so in a reasonable period. Customer
shall only make such a request for cause. Such cause may include,
without limitation, performance deficiencies, unreliability,
unresponsiveness, or personality conflicts with Customer staff.

5.25unGard Consultants and Consultant Qualifications

SunGard will provide sufficient SunGard Consultants with the appropriate
professional, technical and applications skill to enable them to perform
their duties hereunder in a professional manner and to successfully
complete the Services and Deliverables specified in the Project Plan
(hereinafter defined) within the timeframe set forth in the Project Plan
(hereinafter defined).

SunGard shall disclose to Customer in writing the names, qualification and
experience of the SunGard Consultants, other employees, consultants,
professional and other personnel SunGard wishes to assign to the
Project and provide Customer with such additional information
regarding any such personnel as Customer may reasonably request
from time to time.

The SunGard Consultants will work closely with Customer personnel and
their ability to do so is fundamental to the success of this project. lf a
situation should arise that Customer personnel and a SunGard
Consultant are unable to effectively cooperate to complete the tasks in
this agreement, Customer may request replacement of the SunGard
Consultant and SunGard shall do so in a reasonable period. Customer
shall only make such a reguest for cause, Such cause may include,

37 CONFIDENTIAL



without limitation, performance deficiencies, unreliability,
unresponsiveness, or personality conflicts with Customer staff .

Customer understands that changing SunGard change could negatively
impact the timeljne of the Project.

38 CONFIDENTIAL



APPENDIX 6
I nfrastructureffechnical Requirements

The following specifications define required network, server hardware, and peripherals required
to support the IFAS software.

t.0 Network.

1.1 Network Requirements. IFAS uses TCP/IP on the network. The network speed
between the database server and Windows 2003 servers must be at least 100
MBPS. The network speed from the individual workstations may be 10 MPBS,
with 100 MBPS recommended. For Wide Area Networking, ATM, DSL, Frame
Relay, Point-to-Point T-1 are allsupported. Macintosh workstations are supported
for use of CDD.net and the Dashboard by simply using an lnternet Explorer or a
Netscape browser. Additionally, all other IFAS functions are supported on
Macintosh so long as Citrix is deployed to support them. SunGard Bi-Tech
recommends that hubs, routers, and bridges be "Managed Devices". We also
recommend the customer have network monitoring and diagnosis software
available for network administration.

2.0 Platform.

2.1 lnfrastructure Overview. SunGard has provided in this section the infrastructure
required to deploy the Software system. We have included the necessary
diagrams to show the requirements for the hardware platform, as well as a
description of the PC workstation requirements.

SafetyNet Oracle/lnformix/SOL
Database

Windows 2K3 Servers
dnstwork load balancing

ffiffi ffi
100 Mblsec Ethernet

WAN

ffi

UNIX Server
HE IBM, SUN
SQL Server

Windows 2K3 Server

{ggffi

LAN

lntemet

W

Workstations:
Windows 2K, 2K3, or XP
with lnterhet Explorer 6.0 or greater

Mac

ffi

39 CONFIDENTIAL



2.2 Database Server(s). IFAS ls deployed in an N-tier architecture and resides on a
either a Windows or UNIX database server and hosts backend portions of the
application. SunGard will create the database instance on the database server.

The database server should be configured with two tape drives (DLT, DAT or
Ultrium Drives), a system printel performance monitoring software, Gigabit
Ethernet and or FDDI network card(s), operating system, Gonsole/Monitor, UPS,
a separate test account, and disk space sized for the amount of historical data to
be kept online. UNIX-based servers require an ANSI-C Compiler provided by the
vendor.

2.3 Application Server(s). ln a Windows databgse environment, the IFAS
application is installed on an application server that connects to the database and
application web servers. A DVD-ROM drive is required for receiving IFAS
updates.

2.4 Web Server(s). Portions of the IFAS application reside on Windows 2003 web
seryers. SunGard recommends a Windows 2003 Server with dual lGhz processors
(minimum), dual NIC cards, 2 disk drives in a mirrored RAID configuration, and 2 GB of
memory. One such server should be configured for each increment of 50 concunent
users for tte 'Production" environment. We also recommend a Windows 2003 server to
be available for a test environment. The test environment can be used to test
configuration choices, fain new users, and to stage software upgrades. The Windows
2003 servers are configured as a server farm using Windows load balancing so
the servers equally share the client load and have automatic fail-over support.
This configuration also simplifies server maintenance and upgrades. Also note
that if Documents Online is to be used, one server must be configured with a
DVD ReadMrite drive.

2.5 Customer Server Hardware

Customer agrees to purchase the following hardware from SunGard as part of this
Agreement.

Production Account

o One (1) Production SQL Database Server
- DualXeon 3.06 GHz Processors
- 4GBRAM
- 7 - hot-swappable 73GB Disk Drives
- DVD Drive
- Floppy Drive
- Dual 1A110011000 NlCs
- Windows 2003 Server License with 5 CALS, plus media

o One (1) IFAS Production Application Server
- DualXeon 3.06 GHz Processors
- 2GBRAM
- 2 - hot-swappable 73GB Disk Drives
- DVD Drive
- Floppy Drive
- Dual 10/100/1000 NlCs
- Windows 2003 Server License with 5 CALS, plus media

40 CONFIDENTIAL

l



. Two (2) 7i Production Web Servers
- DualXeon 3.06 GHz Processors
. 4GBRAM
- 2 - hot-swappable 36GB Disk Drives

DVD Drive
- Floppy Drive
- Dual 10/100/1000 NlCs
- Windows 2003 Server License with 5 CALS, plus media

Test Account

. One (1) SOL / IFAS Application / TiTest Server
- DualXeon 3.06 GHz Processors
- 4GBRAM
- 7 - hot-swappable 73GB Disk Drives
- DVD Drive
- Floppy Drive
- Dual 10/100/1000 NlCs
- Windows 2003 Server License with 5 CALS, plus media

3.0 Workstations.

3.1 Desktop workstations. ln addition to the uNlX server and the windows 2003
servers, the desktop systems should meet the specifications below

3,1.1 Hardware for Light Users (light data entry and data retrieval):
Pentium 1.SGHz
256M8 RAM
4 GB of free disk space
17" Monitor 1024x768

3.1.2 Hardware for Heavy users (heavy data entry, workflow design and
report design):
Pentium 2+GHz,
512MB+ RAM
4 GB free disk space
l9" Monitor 1280x1024

3.1.3 Software. Supported software for desktop computers are:

3.1.3.1 Windows 2000

3.1.3.2 Windows XP Professional (preferred)

3.1.4 Windows 95, 98, ME, NT, and XP Home are not supported.

3.1.5 Workstations are required to be running Microsoft lE 6.0

Peripherals.
It is recommended that all peripherals be configured with Network tnterface Cards
(Nlcs).

4.0

41 CONFIDENTIAL



4.1 Printers. IFAS will support any PCLS compatible printer with the exception of the
HPSsi or any Troy printers.

Scanners, For workstations used to view or process lmages or Documents, there
are a few additional requirements beyond the standard SunGard
recommendations:

4.2.1 lf lmages or Documents will be viewed on the workstation then extra
screen real estate is very important, namely 128Ax1024 on a 19' monitor.

4.2.2 Workstations with a significant amount of lmage or Document Capture
should support '1280x1024 (or higher) on a 21" monitor. Approximately
1OGB of free disk space should be available for temporary storage.

4.9 Documents Online Scanner l.lardware Requirements.

4.3.1 Simple Attachment. This method of image acquisition is intended for
simple documents or images and therefore does not require anything
other than the minimum TWAIN functionality listed below. ln the event that
a scanner is to be used for this attachment type that does not have a
TWAIN driver or its driver fails to meet the minimum scanner
requirements, a work around is to scan the image to the file system and
then attach from that location within the capture program.

4.3.2 Batch Attachment. This method of image acquisition is intended for
Document attachment (example: Scanning Purchase Orders) and
provides a more complex user interfaoe. lt also requires a scanner with a
sheet feeder. In most cases, this limits the hardware to mid to high end
scanners.

4.3.3 TWAIN Requirements. Any scanner to be used with Documents Online
must also come with a TWAIN driver and be a TWAIN compatible device.
The following are the capabilities Documents Online will expect from the
scanner and the TWAIN messages used during the scanning process.
For the most part this should fall well within any minimum TWAIN
implementation.

4.3.3.1 Required Capabilities.

CAP_XFERCOUNT
CAP_FEEDERENABLED
ICAP_UNITS
ICAP-PIXELTYPE
ICAP-BITDEPTH
ICAP-XRESOLUTION
ICAP_YRESOLUTION
ICAP_BRIGHTNESS
ICAP_CONTRAST
ICAP_THRESHOLD
TW_IMAGEINFO
TW_IMAGELAYOUT
TW-PENDINGXFERS

4.2

42 CONFIDENTIAL



4.3.3.2 Standard TWAIN Messages Used.

MSG-GET
MSG_SET
MSG_OPENDSM
MSG_GETDEFAULT
MSG-CLOSEDSM
MSG-OPENDS
MSG-USERSELECT
MSG_ENABLEDS
MSG_IMAGENATIVEXFER
MSG_ENDXFER
MSG RESET

5.0 Required 3'd Party Software. The following 3'd Party applications are required for
IFAS. A separate license may be required for each product if a Test environment will be
created.

5.1 Windows Platform.

5.1,1 Micro Focus Cobol. A runtime license is required for executing compiled
Cobol. A development license is not necessary.

5.1.2 MKS for System Administrators. Provides a UNIX scripting
environment.

5.1.3 DBMS. Microsoft SQL Server 2000 and 2005 are both supported,

5.1.4 QueriX. A runtime license is required for executing cornpiled 4GL code.
A development license is not necessary.

6.0 SafetyNet Support.

SafetyNet is a dedicated, pre-configured server that resides at the client site, utilizing
Microsoft Virtual Private Network to provide connectivity to the client's IFAS system for
support. SafetyNet uses a single technology for VPN connections as a mechanism to
improve reliability, ease of administration, and provide tighter control for security and
support staff access to your network. The SafetyNet server restricts the firewall opening
to an authenticated port, and establishes a connection between SunGard, Bi-Tech and
the client site only. ln addition the SafetyNet server allows the establishment of a VPN
tunnel where the encryption of data passing through the lnternet safeguards the
authentication and data transfer. The SafetyNet solution assures premium support and
is necessary for Help Desk access to PCAffeb based software. SafetyNet does not
support other VPN mechanisms.

Customer is responsible for the costs related to maintaining the SafetyNet engine
(including the applying updates and patches), and for telephone toll charges associated
with remote on-line support.

Test Environment Recommendation. SunGard recommends the Customer plan
hardware configurations to include a designated test environment. Such reserved

7,0

43 CONFIDENTIAL



accounts can reside on a production server or on a separate server, and are used for
software testing, internal training, and for processing software updates prior to moving
such updates to production accounts.

7.1 There are two options for providing test environments:

7.1.1 A separate and distinct test account to be configured on the production
database server, with one of the windows 2009 7i servers designated for
testing.

7'1:2fl 
,.'r":":ffi :':#::n::"5,il;iiH,T8Si"t?,':ffi :i"t:il::::,I-""'J::J

should plan and budget for such an environment, which may also act as a
possible disaster recovery server. Servers allocated to test accounts are
typically smaller than production servers because they are intended to
support fewer concurrent users and contain a sub-set of production data.

When both a production server and a test server are installed at a site, supporting
third party software must be licensed for both systems, but SunGard's |FAS
softurare requires no added licensing and can be copied into accounts residing on
both servers.

8.0 Backup and Recovery.

We recommend using a RAID solution that incorporates mirroring, such as RAID 1/0.
Backups of both the file system and the database should be done on a daily basis. lf
automated backups are desired, then a third party backup software solution (e.g.,
Veritas, Omniback, etc.) would have to be purchased separately. Tools and facilities to
backup the software are included with your selected hardware system and database
engine.

Tools and utilities to backup the software or database may be included with your selected
hardware system (HP, lBM, X86 or SUN) and database engine (Oracle, lnformix or
soL).

8.1 Types of backups to perform.

8.1.1 The OS file system.

8.1.2 The database server (data plus logs).

8.2 Recommended backup frequency.

8.2.1 Daily' Partial file system backup and full database backup. Retain for 1

to 2 weeks.

8.2.2 Weekly. Fullfile system backup and fulldatabase backup. Retain for 1 to
3 months.

8.2.3 As needed (typically at least daily). Database transaction logs. Retain
for 1 week. For the file system backup commands, prease reier to your
specific OS manual.

44 CONFIDENTIAL



The setup and configuration of the backup and recovery process is the Customer's
responsibility.

9.0 SystemAdministrationResponsibilities.

Throughout the life cycle of IFAS, the lT department plays a critical role. The success of
IFAS at an organization is dependent upon the lT staff's understanding and participation.
Regular maintenance by the lT staff ensures an efficient and productive environment for

end users. ln an attempt to prepare the lT staff for it's role, we have provided an outline
of the responsibilities of the lT staff.

At SunGard Bi-Tech lnc., we understand that each client is unique. Each of the following
client responsibilities may be a separate employee position or a single individual make
take responsibility for all. Each duty listed may have different levels of significance for
each installation.

9.1 RDBMSDatabaseAdministration.

9.1.1
9.1.2
9.1.3
9.1.4
9.1.5
9.1.6
9.1.7
9.1.8
9.1.9
9.1.10
9.1.11
9.1.12
9.1.13

Management of backup processes and procedures.
Management of transaction log files; backup and restoration of log files.
lmplementation and verification of disaster recovery plan.
Monitor database table extents and adjust as needed.
Update database statistics and table indices.
Monitor database engine performance and tune as needed
Monitor database size and growth.
Maintain database security.
Maintain production and test databases.
Upgrade and installation of database software and configuration.
lnvolvement in the upgrade/installation of IFAS software.
Manage database products support contracts, products support calls.
Attend appropriate database classes for system administration, seL and
database tuning.

9.2 Operating SystemAdministration Responsibilities.

Management of file system backup processes and procedures.
lmplementation and management of disaster recovery plan.
Disk space management.
Printer/spooler setup and management.
File system maintenance.
Backup and removal of temporary files (e.9., /tmp, /ifas/admin/tmp).
Backup and removalof posted files (e.9., /ifas/admin/posted).
Creation oT user logins.
System performance monitoring and tuning as needed.
Login scripts.
Backup scripts.
Cron jobs.
Term inal configurations.
Manage 3'd party support contracts as well as update and instail 3rd party
products.
Kernal configurations and adjustments.
Monitor console messages.
Manage support calls to hardware vendor.

9.2.1
9.2.2
9.2.3
9.2.4
9.2.5
9.2.6
9.2.7
9.2.8
9.2.9
9.2.10
9.2.11
9.2.12
9.2.13
9.2.14

9.2.15
9.2.16
9.2.17

45 CONFIDENTIAL



9,2,18 Attend appropriate system management classes offered by hardware
vendors.

9.3 NetworUPGApplicationAdministrationResponsibilities

9.3.1
9.3.2

9.3.3
9.3.4
9.3.5

9.4.1

Connectivity of host to LAN.
lnstallation/configuration of networking software on workstations (e.g.,
TCP/|P).
lnstallation/configuration of terminal emulation software on workstations.
Configuration of LDAP.
Setup/configuration of network print queues.

9.4 IFAS Application Administration Responsibitities.

9.4.2
9.4.3
9.4.4

Setup of IFAS security (e.9., Database and Job Running Security
classes).
Creation of IFAS users.
Setup and configuration oJ printers through IFAS.
lmplementation of subsystem maintenance (see subsystem User Guides
for details).
Customizations to question defaults, menus.
Monthly run of Batch Status Reports (e.9., SYUTBS).
Monthly run of Name Match utility in subsystems (e.9., ARUTMT).
Manage batch jobs, priorities
Contact for SunGard Bi-Tech support calls, problems descriptions, HFS
release information.
Assistance in data uploadingidownloading.
Attend appropriate training classes offered by SunGard Bi-Tech.
Management of production, training and test environments.
Management of custom softwafe changes.
Management of IFAS software upgrades (i.e. HFS).

9,4.5
9.4.6
9.4.7
9.4.8
9.4.9

9.4.10
9.4.11
9.4.12
9.4.13
9.4.14

46 CONFIDENTIAL



DocuSign Envelope lD: 5247601 3-4E04-4420-8EDF-27436317F ACB

AMENDMENT #1 TO THE SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT
And Add-On Quote 00013379

INYO COUNTY, GA
("Customer")

and

SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR, LLC.
("SunGard Public Sector")

This Amendment (the "Amendment") amends the parties' Software License and Services Agreement to
with an Execution Date of March 10,1992 (the "Agreement") expressly as provided for in this Amendment.

The Execution Date of this Amendment is the latest date shown on the signature page of this Amendment.

Customer and SunGard Public Sector, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms. Except as othenrvise set forth herein, each defined term in the Agreement has the
meaning ascribed to that term in the Agreement when the term is used in this Amendment.

2. Amendment to and Modification of Software License Aqreement.

The Agreement is amended and modified as follows:

(a) The following Products and Services have been added to the Agreement:

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 1

3. lnteqration Provision. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect. As of the Execution Date, the Agreement, as further amended by this
Amendment constitutes the entire understandlng of the parties as regards the subject matter hereof and
cannot be modified except by written agreement of the parties.

INYO COUNTY, CA

BY:

SunGard

BY:

PRINT

PRINT TITLE:

r, LLC

sa Neumann

l{t;.lnou;^l..

PRINT NAME:

PRINT TITLE:
controller

DATE SIGNED: DATE SIGNED:
r0/L7 /201.6

Page 1 of2



DocuSig n Envel ope I D : 524760 1 3-4E04-4 420 -9EDF -27 4363 17 F ACg

Exhibit I

<lnsert>

Quote #00013379

Page 2 of 2



DocuSign Envelope lD: 52A7 6O134E04-4420-BEDF -27 436217F ACB

srrilGllBD'
FUBLIC SECTOR

Exhibit 1

Add-On Quote

Quote Prepared By:

Jim Nelson
1000 Business Center Dr
Lake Mary, FL32746
Phone: (407) 304-3866

com
Fax: lndependence, CA 93526

Quote Prepared For:

Amy Shepherd
lnyo County, CA

Q-00013379 11t11t2015 02t11t2016

License Fees

Tools
Product Gode MaintenanceExt PriceProduct Name TotalQua

ion Cash ReceiptsOS-CRCPT 1,410.00
0.00

MaintenanceExt PriceProduct Name TotalProduct Code
Party

0.00
1,428.00

0.00
1,428.00 230.001ONESolution Global Core-IFAS

igrationMKS SQL to
OS.GCOREIF

-MIGR

OS-UPG-7.9-S ONESolution 7.9 SQL to SQL
QL-FINHP Migration-ONEsolution Current

Version Upgrade-Finance & HR/PY

0.00 0.00 0.00 12,800.00 88,000.00Base Price: 19,200.00 28,000.00 28,000.00

1,750.00 '1,750.000.000.000.00Base PriceWeekend Uplift 0.000.000.00

2,560.000.000.00ONESolution Cash Receipts 0.000.00

$0.00$o.oo $0.00 $12,800.00 $89,750.00

0.00 1,280.00

Totals: $19,200.00 $29,750.00 $28,000.00

Base Price: 1,280.00OS-CRCPT

oo

Totals: $1,280.00 $0.00 $2,560.00$0.00$o.oo$o.oo$0.00 $1,280.00

SunGard Products and Services

$92,310.00

$1,410.00

Professional Services :

Maintenance:

Confidential



DocuSign Envelope lD : 52A7601 3-4EO4-442O-8EDF -27 436317 F AC8 Exhibit 1

rd Party Products and Services

Third Party License Fees:
Maintenance: $230.00

.00

$93,738.00Quote Total:
Product Notes

the rocessed ubscriptio Transaction Manag (KT) requiredISreGardunStonSapbetoarecardscreditntercourovetfPT:

Review of client's
customizations,

customizations is required. A pre-contract call between funded developer and client must be scheduled to scope any existing

It is recommended that the Business Process Review (BPR) (BPR-OS-FIN or BPR-OS-FIN-HR) is completed pre-contract so findings can be included in
pricing and Statement of Work. (This is included on a separate stand-alone proposal. **PLEASE NOTE THAT THE OUTCOME OiTHE BpR MAy
RESULT tN MOD|F|CAT|ONS TO TH|S PROPOSAL)

o lution Cash Receipts (os-c RC PT) S requ ired if cl ient a lready owns or ts purchasing oN ESolutio n Accounts Receivable OS-FI N-AR). Exchange
cense fees if os-cRCPT IS a like-for-li ke app cation.

Per lnyo County's request, due to current staffing levels, the Cognos Business lntelligence/Business Analytics Reporting and Dashboard software and
related services have been removed from this proposal and will be considered during a later date.

SUMMARY OF UPGRADE SERVICES PROPOSED

lnstall and lnitial Data Migration-4O
Post I nstallation Verification-4O
SA/DBA Training-8
Mock Data Roll-24
Final Data Rolland Go Live-24

est Account Creation-24
*lnstallation Total-1 60

ow/Report Dev Asst.-40
Review of Custom-24
"Development Total -64

Finance Training-138
HR/PY Training-37
*Training Total -175

P Man nt-120



DocuSign Envelope lD: 52A7 6O13-4EO4-4420-BEDF -27 436912 F ACB
Exhibit 1

Payment terms as follows, unless otherwise notated below for Special Payment Terms by product:

License, Project Management, Consulting, Technical Services, Conversion, Third Party Product Software and Hardware Fees are due upon execution of this euote.
Training fees and Travel & Living expenses are due as incurred monthly. lnstallation is due upon completion. Custom Modifications, Conversions, System Change
Requests or SOWs for customization, and Third Party Product lmplementation Services fees are due 50% on execution of this euote and S0% due upon invoice, upon
completion. Unless othenrise provided, other Professional Services are due monthly, as such services are delivered. Additional services, if requested, will be invoiced at
then-current rates. Any shipping charges shown are estimated only and actualshipping charges will be due upon invoice, upon delivery.

SunGard Public Sector Application Annual Support: Customer is committed to the initial term of Maintenance and Support Services for which the support fee is included
in the License fee(s) and begins upon execution of this Quote and extends for a twelve (12) month period. Subsequent terms of support will be for twelve (12) month
periods, commencing at the end of the prior support period. Support fees shown are for the second term of support for which SunGard public Sector is committed and
which shall be due prior to the start of that term. Fees for subsequent terms of support will be due prior to the start of each term at the then-prevailing rate. Subsequent
terms will renew automatically until such time SunGard Public Sector receives written notice from the Customer thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the then current
term. Notification of non-renewal is required prior to the start of the renewal term. Customer will be invoiced, and paymeni is due, upon renewal.

Third Party Product Annual Support Fees: The support fee for the initial annual period is included in the applicable Third Party Product License fees(s) unless othenivise
stated. Subsequent terms invoiced by SunGard Public Sector will renew automatically at then-prevailing rates until such time SunGard Public Sector receives written
notice of non-renewal from the Customer ninety (90) days in advance of the expiration of the then-current term. Notification of non-renewal is required prior to the start
of the renewal term- Customer will be invoiced, and payment is due, upon renewal. As applicable for certain Third Party Products that are invoiced direcly by the third
party to Customer, payment terms for any renewal term(s) of support shall be as provided by the third party to Customer.

Gonfidential Page 3 of 4



Envelope lD: 52A760'1 3-4E04-4420-8EDF -27 436317F ACB
Exhibit 1

ird
interfaces listed above are interfaces only. Customer shall be responsible for obtaining the applieable software, hardware and system software from the appropriate
party vendor.

Compo nent Systems identified above are "Licensed Prog rams or Licensed Systems" rce nsed by SunGa rd Pu bt tc Sector and are provided tn and may be used in
ine-readab le object code form only

addition to
taxes are not included, and, if applicable, will be added to the amount in the payment of invoice(s) being sent separately. Travel and living expenses may be in
the prices quoted above and shall be governed by the SunGard Public Sector Corporate Travel and Expense Reimburjement policy.

The date of delivery is the date on which SunGard Public Sector delivers, F.O.B. SunGard Public Sector's place of shipment, the Component Systems to Customer

SunGard Pubt ic Sector application software warranty shall be for a period of one 1 year after delivery There is no Testin g and Acceptance period on the Licensed
herei n.

rinted conditions and all other terms not IN cluded n this Quote or n the c ntract and Agreeme nt, stated on any pu rchase order or other docu ment submitted
by custome are of no fo rce or effect, and the term S and conditions of the Contract and Ag reement and any amendments thereto shal control UN less expressly

accepted n writing by SunGa rd Public Sector to customer

Third party hardware/software maintenance and/or warranty will be provided by the third party hardware and software manufacture(s). SunGard public Sector makes no

in this Quote. The return and refund policy of each individual third party hardware/software supplier shall apply.

Agreement is based on the current licensing policies of each third party software manufacturer as well as all hardware manufacturers. ln the event that a
changes any of these respective policies or prices, SunGard Public Sector reserves the right to adjust this proposal to reflect those changes

td customer terminate th IS ag reement per any "Term of Contract" Section of he Contract and Agreeme nt, as may be appl icable for certain custo me rs, customer
to pay mmed iately upon termination the remain ing balance fo all hardwa re software, and SE rvtces delivered prior to the termination date together with trave

reimbu rseme nts, if any related to the foregoing Notwithstanding any lan uage in the Contract and Ag reement to the contrary the pu rchase of upport services is NOT
necessary for the conti nuation of Customer's License.

Pricing for professional services provided under this quote is a good faith estimate based on the information available to SunGard Public Sector at the time of execution
of this Quote. The total amount that Customer will pay for these services will vary based on the actual number of hours of services required to complete the services. lf
required, additional services will be provided on a time and materials basis at hourly rates equal to SunGard Public Sector's then-current rates for the services at issue.

For training and on-site project management sessions which are cancelled at the request of Customer within fourteen (14) days of the scheduled start date, Customer is
responsible for entire price of the training or on-site project management plus incurred expenses.

Confidential Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5742EC14-2B71-4D51-80D0-35972A16018F 
 

AMENDMENT # 2 TO THE SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

INYO COUNTY, CA 

(“Customer”) 

and 

SUPERION, LLC 

(“Superion”) 

 
This Amendment (the “Amendment”) amends the parties’ Software License and Services Agreement to 
with an Execution Date of December 18, 2006, and Amendment #1 (Quote No. 00013378) with an 
Execution Date of February 9, 2016 (collectively, the “Agreement”) expressly as provided for below. 

 
WHEREAS, Superion, LLC (“Superion”) is a limited liability company formed on November 18, 2016, under 
the laws of the State of Delaware and is the successor in interest to SunGard Bi-Tech, LLC, a limited liability 
company formed under the laws of the State of Delaware; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to amend the Agreement to include the software licenses, related services, 

maintenance and third party products identified in Add-On Quote No. 00013379 to upgrade Customer’s 

current Financial and Payroll software applications through a migration from IFAS Version 7.9.12 to 

Superion’s current and supported software, ONESolution V16.2, which includes new features in support of 

Federal and State reporting compliance and current hardware and operating systems release requirements. 

 
Customer and Superion intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 

1. Parties. Superion shall replace SunGard Bi-Tech, LLC as a party to the Agreement. 
 

2. Defined Terms. Except as otherwise set forth herein, each defined term in the Agreement has the 
meaning ascribed to that term in the Agreement when the term is used in this Amendment. 

 

3. Amendment to and Modification of Software License Agreement. 

The following Exhibits, including the services and costs therein, are added to the Agreement: 

EXHIBIT 1 - Add-On Quote 00013379 
EXHIBIT 2 – Travel Expense Guidelines 
EXHIBIT 3 – Statement of Work 

 
3. Integration Provision. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect. As of the Execution Date, the Agreement, as further amended by this 
Amendment constitutes the entire understanding of the parties as regards the subject matter hereof and 
cannot be modified except by written agreement of the parties. 

 

4. Effective Date. The Execution Date of this Amendment is the latest date shown on the signature page 
of this Amendment. 

 

INYO COUNTY, CA 

BY:   

SUPERION, LLC 

BY:      
 

PRINT NAME:   PRINT NAME: 

PRINT TITLE:   PRINT TITLE: 

  

DATE SIGNED:   DATE SIGNED:    
 
 

1 



Add-On Quote

Quote Prepared By:

1000 Business Center Dr
Lake Mary, FL 32746

Phone: (407) 304-3866 Fax:
Email: james.nelson@superion.com

Jim Nelson

Quote Prepared For:

(760) 878-0343
Independence, CA 93526

Inyo County
Amy Shepherd, Auditor-Controller

      Quote Date Valid Until
06/30/201705/09/2017Q-00027206

License Fees

Product Name MaintenanceProduct Code

Tools

Quantity Ext Price
ONESolution Cash Receipts  1,072.001OS-CRCPT  0.00

$1,072.00Totals: $0.00

Third Party License Fees
Product Code Quantity MaintenanceProduct Name Ext Price
OS-EC-IF ONESolution Enterprise Core SQL to SQL-IFAS  395.20 1.00  2,470.00

Totals: $395.20$2,470.00

Professional Services

Product Name Proj Mgmt Training DevelopmentConsulting Total ServicesImpl SvcsProduct Code

Services

 Tech SvcsInstallation

 88,000.00OS-UPG-7.9-SQL-FINH

P

ONESolution 7.9 SQL to SQL 

Migration-ONESolution Current Version 

Upgrade-Finance & HR/PY

Ext Price:   19,200.00 28,000.00  -   -   12,800.00- 28,000.00

2,800.00PS-WU Weekend Uplift Ext Price:  -  -   -   -  - -  2,800.00

$12,800.00Totals: $19,200.00 $28,000.00 - $90,800.00-$30,800.00  -  

Product Name Proj Mgmt Training DevelopmentConsulting Total ServicesImpl SvcsProduct Code

Tools

 Tech SvcsInstallation

 2,560.00OS-CRCPT ONESolution Cash Receipts Ext Price:   1,280.00  1,280.00  -   -   -   -   -  

 -  Totals: $1,280.00 $1,280.00  -  $2,560.00 -  -  -  

Product & Services

Professional Services: $93,360.00
Third Party License Fees: $2,470.00

Subtotal: $95,830.00

Page 1 of 3Superion, LLCConfidential

Exhibit 1

mailto:james.nelson@sungardps.com


Total: $95,830.00

$1,072.00Maintenance:
Third Party Maintenance: $395.20

OS-CRCPT: If over the counter credit cards are to be processed, a subscription to Superion Transaction Manager (KT) is required.

Product Notes

Page 2 of 3Superion, LLC

Payment terms as follows, unless otherwise notated below for Special Payment Terms by Product:

License, and Third Party Product Software and Hardware Fees are due upon execution of the Amendment. Third Party Product Implementation Services are due 50% on 
the execution of the Amendment and 50% upon invoice, upon completion.

Project Management, Consulting, Technical Services, Conversion, Custom Modifications, System Change Requests, or SOW s for customizations are due as incurred 
and subject to prior Acceptance of Services (as defined below).

Acceptance of Services: Customer will notify Superion in writing of its acceptance non-acceptance of the applicable within twenty (20) days after receipt of invoice. If 
Customer fails to give written notice within the specified timeframe, the services will be deemed accepted. Any notice of non-acceptance must be based solely upon non-
performance in accordance with the provisions and specifications contained in this Exhibit 1 or the Amendment or applicable SOW.

Training fees are due as incurred monthly. Travel & Living expenses are due pursuant to the Superion corporate reimbursement guidelines in the attached Exhibit 2  
Travel Expense Guidelines. Installation is due upon completion. Unless otherwise provided, other Professional Services are due monthly, as such services are delivered. 
Additional services, if requested, will be invoiced at then-current rates. Any shipping charges shown are estimated only and actual shipping charges will be due upon 
invoice, upon delivery. 

Superion Application Annual Support: Customer is committed to the initial term of Maintenance and Support Services for which the support fee is included in the License 
fee(s) and begins upon execution of this Quote and extends for a twelve (12) month period. Subsequent terms of support will be for twelve (12) month periods, 
commencing at the end of the prior support period. Support fees shown are for the second term of support for which Superion is committed and which shall be due prior 
to the start of that term. Fees for subsequent terms of support will be due prior to the start of each term at the then-prevailing rate. Subsequent terms will renew 
automatically until such time Superion receives written notice from the Customer thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the then current term. Notification of non-
renewal is required prior to the start of the renewal term. Customer will be invoiced, and payment is due, upon renewal. 

Third Party Product Annual Support Fees: The support fee for the initial annual period is included in the applicable Third Party Product License fees(s) unless otherwise 
stated. Subsequent terms invoiced by Superion will renew automatically at then-prevailing rates until such time Superion receives written notice of non-renewal from the 
Customer ninety (90) days in advance of the expiration of the then-current term. Notification of non-renewal is required prior to the start of the renewal term. Customer 
will be invoiced, and payment is due, upon renewal. As applicable for certain Third Party Products that are invoiced directly by the third party to Customer, payment terms 
for any renewal term(s) of support shall be as provided by the third party to Customer.

Confidential

Exhibit 1



Page 3 of 3Superion, LLC

Any interfaces listed above are interfaces only. Customer shall be responsible for obtaining the applicable software, hardware and system software from the appropriate
third party vendor.

The Component Systems identified above are "Licensed Programs" or "Licensed Systems" licensed by Superion and are provided in and may be used in
machine-readable object code form only.

Applicable taxes are not included, and, if applicable, will be added to the amount in the payment of invoice(s) being sent separately. Travel and living expenses may be in
addition to the prices quoted above and shall be governed by the Superion Corporate Travel and Expense Reimbursement Policy.

The date of delivery is the date on which Superion delivers, F.O.B. Superion's place of shipment, the Component Systems to Customer.

The Superion application software warranty shall be for a period of one (1) year after delivery. There is no Testing and Acceptance period on the Licensed
System(s) herein.

Preprinted conditions and all other terms not included in this Quote or in the Contract and Agreement, stated on any purchase order or other document submitted
hereafter by Customer are of no force or effect, and the terms and conditions of the Contract and Agreement and any amendments thereto shall control unless expressly
accepted in writing by Superion to Customer.

Third party hardware/software maintenance and/or warranty will be provided by the third party hardware and software manufacturer(s). Superion makes no
representations as to expected performance, suitability, or the satisfaction of Customer's requirements with respect to the hardware or other third party products specified
in this Quote. The return and refund policy of each individual third party hardware/software supplier shall apply.

This Agreement is based on the current licensing policies of each third party software manufacturer as well as all hardware manufacturers. In the event that a
manufacturer changes any of these respective policies or prices, Superion reserves the right to adjust this proposal to reflect those changes.

Should Customer terminate this agreement per any "Term of Contract" Section of the Contract and Agreement, as may be applicable for certain customers, Customer
agrees to pay, immediately upon termination, the remaining balance for all hardware, software, and services delivered prior to the termination date together with travel
reimbursements, if any, related to the foregoing. Notwithstanding any language in the Contract and Agreement to the contrary, the purchase of support services is NOT
necessary for the continuation of Customer's License.

Pricing for professional services provided under this quote is a good faith estimate based on the information available to Superion at the time of execution
of this Quote. The total amount that Customer will pay for these services will vary based on the actual number of hours of services required to complete the services. If
required, additional services will be provided on a time and materials basis at hourly rates equal to Superion's then-current rates for the services at issue.

Except when training has been scheduled by Superion with less than fourteen (14) days  notice, Customer is responsible for entire price of the training or on-site project
management plus incurred expenses for training and on-site project management sessions which are canceled at the request of Customer within fourteen (14) days of
the scheduled start date. All training is to be approved by the Customer prior to being booked.

Confidential

Exhibit 1
Additional Terms:



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5742EC14-2B71-4D51-80D0-35972A16018F 

Exhibit 2 

SUPERION TRAVEL EXPENSE GUIDELINES 

Superion will adhere to the following guidelines when incurring travel expenses: 

All arrangements for travel are to be made through the Superion Corporate Travel Agent unless other arrangements 

have been made with the Customer and are documented in writing.   

AIR TRAVEL – Superion will use the least expensive class of service available with a minimum of seven (7) day, 

maximum of thirty (30) day, advance purchase. Upon request, Superion shall provide the travel itinerary as the receipt for 

reimbursement of the airfare and any fees.  Fees not listed on the itinerary will require a receipt for reimbursement.  

Trips fewer than 250 miles round are considered local. Unless a flight has been otherwise approved by the Customer, 

Customer will reimburse the current IRS approved mileage rate for all local trips.  

LODGING –Superion will use the most reasonable accommodations possible, dependent on the city.  All food items, 

movies, and phone/internet charges are not reimbursable.  

RENTAL CAR – Compact or Intermediate cars will be required unless there are three or more Superion employees sharing 

the car in which case the use of a full size car is authorized.  Gas is reimbursable however, pre-paid gas purchases will not be 

authorized and all rental cars are to be returned with a full tank of gas. Upon request, receipts for car rental and gas purchases 

will be submitted to Customer.  Superion shall decline all rental car insurance offered by the car rental agency as staff 

members will be covered under the Superion auto insurance policy. Fines for traffic violations are not reimbursable expenses. 

OTHER TRANSPORTATION – Superion staff members are expected to use the most economical means for traveling to 

and from the airport (Airport bus, hotel shuttle service). Airport taxi or mileage for the employee’s personal vehicle (per IRS 

mileage guidelines) are reimbursable if necessary.  Upon request, receipt(s) for the taxi will be submitted to Customer.  Proof 

of mileage may be required and may be documented by a readily available electronic mapping service. The mileage rate will 

be the then-current IRS mileage guideline rate (subject to change with any change in IRS guidelines).   

OTHER BUSINESS EXPENSES – Parking at the airport is reimbursable.  Tolls to and from the airport and while traveling 

at the client site are reimbursable. Tipping on cab fare exceeding 15% is not reimbursable. Porter tips are reimbursable, not 

exceeding $1.00 per bag. Laundry is reimbursable when travel includes a weekend day or Company Holiday and the hotel 

stay is four nights or more.  Laundry charges must be incurred during the trip and the limit is one shirt and one pair of 

pants/skirt per day. With the exception of tips, receipts shall be provided to Customer upon request for all of the 

aforementioned items.  

MEALS – Standard per Diem.  Subject to change due to cost of living. 

5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5742EC14-2B71-4D51-80D0-35972A16018F 
 

 

Exhibit 3 
 

<Insert> 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6 



 
 

Version 1 
 

Introduction 
This document is the Statement of Work (SOW) for the implementation of Services with respect to the migration from IFAS to the Solution software expressly 
identified in the Order (the “Agreement”). This SOW is incorporated into the Agreement.     
The SOW is intended to be a planning and control document, not the detailed requirements or design of the solution. 
 
The Deliverables listed herein are considered requirements of the project and have an assigned lead which has been noted in the columns below.  Upon project 
initiation your organization will be provided a Welcome Packet that encompasses all of the tools available to manage the project with your organization.   

Definitions of Terms and Services 
 

Scope Definition 
 

Scope Description 

 

Customer 
Deliverables/Actions 

 

 Superion 
Deliverables/Actions 

Installation Services Scope 

Installation and Initial 
Data Migration 

Initial Installation and Data Migration is the installation of 
the ONESolution file system and the migration of data 
from the existing production environment to a pre-
production environment. 

 Hardware Set Up  

 Completed  

Pre-Install 
Checklist 

 Attend Discovery Call 

 Review and Signoff on 

Completed SOW 

 Pre-Install Checklist 

 Discovery Call 

 Statement of Work 

 Post Action Report 

Post Installation 
Verification 

Post Install Verification is an in depth validation of the 
system post install.  Customer specific set up, 
configuration and data validation is the customer 
responsibility for testing and validation.  The intent of the 
verification is to ensure system readiness for customer 
and consulting activities. 

 Upon System 

Turnover and 

Completed Test Plans, 

Customer to Test and 

Validate System 

 Completed Test Plans 

SA/DBA Training SA/DBA Training is ONESolution system administration 
training.  These sessions will be handled via remote 
distance learning.   

 Attend Training  Agendas – One week 

prior to session. 

 Distance Learning Log 



 
 

Version 1 
 

– Within one week of 

session. 

Mock Data Roll Mock Data Roll is a ‘dress rehearsal’ of the Go-Live 
Cutover process. Fully scripted with all tasks, resources 
and people identified and participating.  

 Attend Discovery Call 

 Review and Signoff on 

Completed SOW 

 Provide Installer with 

Items, Setup, or 

Configuration to be 

Preserved for Mock 

Migration 

 Test and Validate 

System 

 Discovery Call 

 Statement of Work 

 

Final Data Roll Final Data Roll is the Go-Live Cutover where pre-
production becomes the live production environment.  
The Final Data Roll typically starts on a Thursday 
afternoon/evening and runs through the weekend with 
the live ONESolution production the following Monday. 

 Attend Discovery Call 

 Review and Signoff on 

Completed SOW 

 Provide Installer with 

Items, Setup, or 

Configuration to be 

Preserved for Final 

Migration 

 Discovery Call 

 Statement of Work 

 

Test Account Creation Test Account Creation is the creation of the test account 
which is cloned from the new production environment. 

 Validate Account  Discovery Call 

 Statement of Work 

Weekend Uplift Weekend Uplift covers the weekend go-live activities.   



 
 

Version 1 
 

 

Installation Scope Requirements and Notes:  

 Customer is responsible for the procurement and installation of hardware based upon Superion’s Recommended Hardware Specifications. 

  Superion will perform one initial migration, one mock migration and one final migration as part of the Agreement.   Superion will create one 

Production Account and one Test Account as part of the Agreement.  Additional accounts will require additional hours added to the Agreement 

by mutual written agreement at Superion’s prevailing rates.   

Development Services Scope 

Custom Development 
Discovery  

Custom Development Discovery is the review and 
specification writing for any possible changes that may be 
required to any custom development a customer may 
have had done in the past.  If the specification work is 
more extensive than what has been quoted in good faith 
under the Agreement then additional hours for Custom 
Development may be required.  Additional hours will be 
added to the Agreement by mutual written agreement at 
Superion’s prevailing rates.  Unless otherwise specifically 
stated within the Agreement, Superion has not included 
services for Custom Development in the Agreement.   
Note: Existing custom development items may need to be 
amended to work in ONESolution.  If so, the hours herein 
will be used for discovery and specification development.  
Software development hours will be outside of the scope 
of this agreement. 
 

If applicable, the following is 
the process for Custom 
Development Services:  

 Identify Custom 

Software 

 Complete Work 

Request Form – 

Details customization 

or change requested  

 Discovery Call(s) 

 Review and Signoff on 

Completed Task 

Specifications 

 Test and Validate 

Customizations 

If applicable, the following is 
the process for Custom 
Development Services:  

 Discovery Call(s) 

 Task Specification(s)  

Examples include, but are not 
limited to Check Writer and 
ELF Changes, Web Forms, 
Custom Modifications, 
Conversions, and Integration 
with 3rd Party Applications. 

Workflow and CDD 
Report Development 
Assistance 

Workflow and CDD Report Development Assistance is to 
aid with any workflow or report development that may 
be required by the upgrade to ONESolution.   Superion 
will migrate all existing workflow models and reports to 
ONESolution from the organization’s production 
environment as part of our migration process. We expect 

If applicable, the following is 
the process for Custom 
Development Services:  

 Identify Workflow or 

CDD Report Changes 

If applicable, the following is 
the process for Custom 
Development Services:  

 Discovery Call(s) 



 
 

Version 1 
 

the workflow models and reports to achieve the same 
business functions in ONESolution.  The organization’s 
workflow models and reports must be tested and may 
require updating due to software, schematic or table 
changes in the updated version of ONESolution.  
Customer will test all required reports and workflow 
models and  Superion will update the workflow models 
and reports as necessary up to the hours included in this 
SOW. 

 Complete Work 

Request Form – 

Details change 

requested 

 Discovery Call(s) 

 Task Specification(s) 

 Task Specification(s) 

Development Scope Requirements and Notes:  

 Customer will have 30 days upon delivery to test and validate functionality unless otherwise stated.  Upon the 30 day delivery date the task will 

be considered complete and any additional requests for engagement will be handled under a new task and will be scheduled based on next 

availability of the  Superion resource. 

Consultant Services Scope 

Consulting/Training Consulting/Training is a combination of consultative 
efforts guiding and advising of best practice set up and 
configuration based on how the system is used, while 
enhancing the core teams’ knowledge on current 
functions and features as well as the differences between 
the current live version and the ONESolution version.   
Consulting/Training consists of: 

o Navigation/Desktop Overviews 

o Module and Functional Overviews 

o Training on the New Security Model 

o Training on new Features/Changes 

o Tools Analysis 

o Go Live Preparation and Testing Support 

o Go Live and Post Go Live Support 

 

 Attend Training 

 Complete Homework 

(if applicable) 

 Review and Sign 

Trip/Distance Learning 

Log 

 Review Milestone 

Tracking 

 Training and End User 

Guides 

 Agendas – One week 

prior to scheduled 

session. 

 Trip/Distance Learning 

Log – Within one week 

of session. 

 Milestone Tracking 

 

Business Process Review 
(if applicable) 

Business Process Review is an in-depth review of current 
organization business practices and processes.  Superion 
will make best practice recommendations for process 

 Provide Current “As 

Is” Processes 

 Onsite BPR Interview 

Sessions 



 
 

Version 1 
 

change and design to the organization based on use of 
Superion software.  
Note: It is our recommendation that a BPR be conducted 
prior to this engagement for a full scope and analysis for a 
successful migration to ONESolution. 

 Attend Interview 

Sessions per Schedule 

 Review BPR 

Recommendations 

 Signoff on Completed 

BPR 

 Determine Which 

Recommendations to 

be Implemented 

During Project 

 BPR Findings 

Document with 

Recommendations 

 

Business Process Review 
Consulting (if applicable) 

If a BPR was conducted the Customer will want to 
implement some of the recommendations from the BPR 
report. The hours in this area will be used to assist the 
Customer in implementing the recommendations. These 
may be used for consulting, configuration, training, or 
development. This effort will be integrated into the 
project plan. 

 Identify the 

recommendations to 

be implemented. 

 Incorporate the 

recommendations to 

be implemented 

within the project 

plan. 

Consulting/Training Scope Requirements and Notes:  

 This project takes a train the trainer approach.  Superion will train the Customer core users and the core users will train end users (if applicable) 

prior to cutting over and going live. This includes creating Customer specific manuals if necessary. If Customer requests End User Training 

Services, additional hours will be required and will be added to the Agreement by mutual written agreement at  Superion’s prevailing rates.   

 Customer is responsible for Testing all aspects of ONESolution. This includes but is not limited to the following: 

o All business processes including payroll 

o Reports and Workflow 

o Security 

o Interfaces 



 
 

Version 1 
 

Project Management Services Scope 

Project 
Management 

 Superion will provide a Remote Project Manager (RPM) 
who will dedicate an estimated average of 10 
hours/month with approximately 24 hours spent during 
the Initiation Phase of the project, unless the Agreement 
hours states otherwise.  Throughout the project, the RPM 
will keep the project organized from the Superion 
perspective, on schedule and on budget.  A series of 
project tools are provided to assist your organization’s 
Project Manager in leading the project effort as well.   

 Review and Sign 

Charter 

 Attend Project Kickoff 

 Provide Organization 

Schedule Timely for 

SG PM to complete 

Project Plan 

 Participate in Weekly 

Call with SG PM 

 Test and Validate the 

System Timely to 

Provide Feedback in 

Weekly Calls 

 Complete Go Live 

Checklist 

 Project Charter 

 Project Kickoff 

 Project Plan 

 Open Items Log 

 Weekly Status Call 

with  Agenda 

 Monthly Stakeholder 

Report 

 Go Live Checklist 

 

Project Management Scope Requirements and Notes:  

 Both Superion and Customer will assign Project Manager’s with the requisite skills and leadership authority within the organization to 

effectively accomplish the goals and complete the scope of the services in this SOW.  Superion has allocated hours to cover a 9-12 month 

project. If the project runs over the allotted RPM hours the Customer may contract for additional hours. 

 Customer will participate in weekly project team calls with Superion’s Project Manager.  

 Customer is responsible for completing the Go-Live Checklist no less than 30 days before go live to ensure full testing has occurred and the 

customer organization is ready for go live. 

Project Governance and Requirements 

Customer 



 
 

Version 1 
 

Project Sponsor 
The project sponsor provides support to the project by allocating resources, providing strategic direction, communicating key issues about the project 
and the project’s overall importance to the organization.  The project sponsor will be involved in the project as needed to provide necessary support, 
oversight, and guidance, but will not participate in day-to-day activities.  The project sponsor will empower the steering committee to make critical 
business decisions for the organization. 

Steering Committee 
The Steering Committee will understand and support the cultural change necessary for the project and foster throughout the organization an 
appreciation of the value of an integrated ERP system.  The Steering Committee oversees the project team and the project as a whole.  Through 
participation in regular meetings the Steering Committee will remain updated on all project progress, project decisions, and achievement of project 
milestones.  The Steering Committee will also provide support to the project team by communicating the importance of the project to each member’s 
department along with other department directors in the organization.   The Steering Committee is responsible for ensuring that the project has 
appropriate resources, providing strategic direction to the project team, and is responsible for making timely decisions on critical project or policy issues.   

 Provide staff and facilities to the implementation effort as described herein. 

 Make final decisions on policy changes as necessary. 

 Communicate to governing body as necessary. 

 Final escalation point for project issues. 

 Meet bi-weekly or more frequently as needed to review progress. 

 Approve material changes in the project plan. 

 Advise Project Managers on resolution of project issues. 

 Immediately resolve any delay in decision-making that could affect the project timeline. 

Project Manager 
The customer project manager will coordinate project team members, subject matter experts, and the overall implementation schedule.  The Project 
Manager will be responsible for reporting to the Steering Committee and providing the majority of the organizations change management 
communications and coaching.  The project manager will also be the primary point of contact for the project and will coordinate all activities with the 
Superion Project Manager. 

 Fulfill Go Live dates established in the project plan. 

 Monitor and report overall implementation progress (duties of both the Customer and  Superion). 

 Monitor and report progress on the Customer’s responsibilities. 

 Immediately notify  Superion Project Manager and Executive Steering Committee of any issue that could delay the project 

 Supervise the Customer Project Team. 

 Fulfill all the Customer project deliverables.   

 Provide availability to the infrastructure and facilities as per the project schedule.   



 
 

Version 1 
 

 Provide Staff according to the project plan.   

 Ensure change management, training and communication are effective (and adjusted accordingly if goals are not met). 

 Coordinate, direct, and define pre-Go Live testing by the staff. 

 Review and approve staffing changes. 

 Foster a learning environment. 

Project Functional Team Leads 
Project team members will be the core functional leads for each area in the system.  The project team members have detailed subject matter expertise 
and are empowered to make appropriate business process and configuration decisions in their respective areas.   

 Team Leads should include individuals from all major functional areas. 

 Coordinate with the project manager in communications and issue resolution. 

 Make recommendations to the Project Manager concerning any policy or implementation issues. 

 Participate in pre-Go Live testing. 

 Assist Superion with configuration of ONESolution.  

 Assist with the resolution of issues. 

 Identify end users to attend training.  Create end-user training documentation.  Deliver End-User Training Classes. 

 Provide support to the user community in the post production timeframe. 

 Define specifications for Development of Interfaces, Workflow, Reports, Forms, and Conversions as necessary. 

 Test Interfaces, Workflow, Reports, Forms, Conversions and software functionality as necessary. 

 Validate Data. 

 Set up security profiles. 

 Superion  

Project Manager 
 The  Superion Project Manager will: 

 Manage and monitor go live dates. 

 Support Customer Project Manager in monitoring and reporting overall implementation progress. 

 Immediately notify Customer Project Manager and Project Sponsor of any issue that could delay the project.   

 Fulfill all  Superion project deliverables outlined in the SOW. 

 Ensure a completed software installation as per the project schedule.  

 Provide Superion Staff according to the project plan. 

 Facilitate coordination between all Superion departments. 

 Monitor the work plan and schedule and make course corrections as necessary. 

 Serve as the point person for all project issues (First escalation point). 



 
 

Version 1 
 

 Prepare weekly status along with weekly project call. 

 Provide issue resolution status, tracking, and procedures. 
 

Functional Leads (Consultants, Developers, and Technical resources) 
 Work with Customer SMEs to design and configure the functional components of the ONESolution system for optimal long-term use. 

 Participate in ONESolution software configuration with assistance from the Customer’s Functional Leads. 

 Check that Software operates after configuration as per its documentation. 

 Assist with the resolution of issues. 

 Trains the Customer core group during the configuration of software. 

 Provide agenda and trip/distance learning reports for each session. 

Escalation Procedures 
The Customer and Superion should anticipate challenging issues to arise throughout the implementation process due to the complexity of this project. In order 
for challenging issues to be remedied in a timely fashion, the Customer and Superion will utilize the following Escalation Procedure: 
 
All communication regarding the project should be directed to Superion and the Customer’s Project Managers in order to maintain consistent communication 
between the parties. Scheduled weekly meetings will be maintained between the Superion Project Manager and the County’s Project Team (including the 
County’s Project Manager). 
All issues or concerns will be discussed actively and openly between Superion’s Project Manager and the County’s Project Manager.  If issues begin to interfere 
with the progression of the implementation project, the Customer and/or Superion Project Managers should escalate challenges to  Superion and the Customer 
management in the sequence below, as needed: 
Michele Leaf – Manager, Professional Services 530.879.5126 michele.leaf@sungardps.com 

Paul Tovey – Director, Professional Services for Public Administration 530.879.5139 paul.tovey@sungardps.com 

Tom Amburgey – General Manager, Public Administration 407.304.3022 tom.amburgey@sungardps.com 
Kevin Lafeber – COO,  Superion  407.304.3102 kevin.lafeber@sungardps.com  

 
 

mailto:michele.leaf@sungardps.com
mailto:paul.tovey@sungardps.com
mailto:tom.amburgey@sungardps.com
mailto:kevin.lafeber@sungardps.com


County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Mikaela Torres
 
SUBJECT:  Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC Amendment No. 3
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA extending the term end date from December 31, 2021 to 
August 31, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On May 1, 2020, Inyo County entered into a contract agreement with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC 
(NPA), to provide consulting services to update the Inyo County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and its 
annexes.  
 
When the contract came before your Board for consideration, noted within the Agenda Request 
Summary/Justification language was the comment: “Update of the EOP and annexes, and completion of the 
validation workshop, are currently scheduled to be complete by August 31, 2021.  If the COVID-19 Pandemic 
event should cause delay in some of the stakeholder meetings and collaboration efforts, it may become 
necessary to amend the contract by extending the term.”
 
The COVID-19 Pandemic brought challenges to Department Heads and their staff, the community, and the 
nation as a whole. Departmental staff shortages led to adjustments being made to the EOP annex review 
timeline, which has resulted in a delayed project completion date.
 
The EOP update project manager continues to meet regularly with the contractor to coordinate the base plan and 
annex editing.  As time has allowed, departments have been reviewing and editing their assigned annexes and 
returning them to the project manager upon completion.
 
On August 3, 2021, your Board approved Amendment No. 1 to the NPA contract, extending the term date from 
August 31, 2021 to December 31, 2021.  With the rapid spike of Inyo COVID cases that began in late August 
2021, your Board approved Amendment No. 2 to the NPA contract, extending the term date from December 31, 
2021 to June 30, 2022.

With the vacancy in the Emergency Services Manager position for almost 4 months, it has become apparent that 
a contract extension is once again necessary to allow appropriate time on the NPA contract to ensure CalOES, 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Departments, and the Planning Team all have an adequate amount of time to thoroughly review the final draft of 
the EOP and annexes before being presented to your Board for adoption. 
 
At this time, no increase in the contract amount is found to be necessary.    
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approving this amendment will cause additional stress on departments and stakeholders. Additional time for 
completion of the EOP Update Project would be the appropriate action to take at this time.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
The amount of the contract will remain the same.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA Contract Amendment No. 3
2. NPA Contract Amendment No. 2
3. NPA Contract Amendment No. 1
4. NPA Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Mikaela Torres Created/Initiated - 6/1/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2022
Mikaela Torres Approved - 6/1/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/1/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/1/2022
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 6/2/2022



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No ____ 
Page 1 

04/30/2020  

AMENDMENT NUMBER  _3__ 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC_____  

FOR _______________Consulting_____________SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and __Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC_____________(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into 
an Agreement for the Provision of Independent Contractor  Services dated  _May 1, 2020____________ , 
on County of Inyo Standard Contract No._113__, for  the term from  _May 1, 2020________ through 
_August 31, 2021__________. 

WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set 
forth below; 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be from _May 1, 2020________ to
_August 31, 2022__________, unless sooner terminated as provided below.

///  NOTHING FOLLOWS \\\ 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. 

AMENDMENT NUMBER  __3__ 



Page 2 

04/30/2020 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
______________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC__________________ 

FOR ___________Consulting____________SERVICES  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: ____________________________________       By: __________________________________ 
    Signature 

Dated:_________________________________   
      ___________________________________ 

    Type or Print 

Dated: ________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

________________________________________ 
County Counsel  

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

______________



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No ____ 
Page 1 

 04/30/2020   

  

AMENDMENT NUMBER  _2__   
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC_____  

FOR _______________Consulting_____________SERVICES 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and __Navigating 
Preparedness Associates, LLC_____________(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into 
an Agreement for the Provision of Independent Contractor  Services dated  _May 1, 2020____________ , 
on County of Inyo Standard Contract No._113__, for  the term from  _May 1, 2020________ through 
_August 31, 2021__________. 
 
 WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set 
forth below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be from _May 1, 2020________ to 
_June 30, 2022__________, unless sooner terminated as provided below.  
 

 
 
 

///  NOTHING FOLLOWS \\\ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER  __2__  



Page 2 

04/30/2020

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
______________Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC__________________  

FOR ___________Consulting____________SERVICES  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: ____________________________________       By: __________________________________ 
    Signature  

Dated:_________________________________ 
      ___________________________________ 

    Type or Print 

Dated: ________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

________________________________________ 
County Counsel  

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  

_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

Lee Rosenberg

11/17/2021



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 3'd day of August 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Emergency Seryices

- Navigating
Preparedness
Contract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment
No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Navigating Preparedness Associates,
LLC of Layfayette, CA, extending the term end date from August 31,2021to December 31,

2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being
obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CA) EmergencyServhes
Other:

DATE: August 9, 2021

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 3,d

Doy of4t4&;!,2_84

LESLIE CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

fd*X u'tA+4^a,"
By:



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: August 3,2021

FROM: Kelley Williams

SUBJEGT: Request Board approve Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC Amendment No. 1

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Navigating
Preparedness Associates, LLC of Layfayette, CA, extending the term end date from Augusl31,2021 to
December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being
obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

On April 28,2020,1nyo County entered into a contract agreement with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC
(NPA), to provide consulting services to update the lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan and its annexes.

When the contract came before your Board for consideration, noted within the Agenda Request
Summary/Justification language was the comment "Update of the EOP and annexes, and completion of the
validation workshop, are currently scheduled to be complete by August 31 ,2021. lf the COVID-19 Pandemic
event should cause delay in some of the stakeholder meetings and collaboration efforts, it may become
necessary to amend the contract by extending the term."

The COVID-19 Pandemic event has made the last 16 months extremely difficult for everyone, globally. The
duration of this event (which stillcontinues) has really challenged the Department Heads and their staff, the
community, and the nation as a whole. Departments struggled with reduced staffing; employees found it
necessary to adapt to an out of office work environment that sometimes proved to be awkward and difficult; work
assignments were focused on COVID related response activities while normal day to day work activities and
projects were put on hold until time permitted.

Allof these challenges, and the continuous evolvement of the COVID event status, has led to a delay in the EOP
project timeline and project completion date.

The lnyo County assigned EOP Update Project Manager has been meeting monthly with NPA to finalize the draft
base plan and collaborate on the edit/review of all of the drafted annexes. As time permits, assigned
Departments will continue with their task of reviewing the annexes that detail their specific responsibilities.

Though the contract does not expire until August 31 , 2021, it has become apparent that a contract extension is



Agenda Request
Page 2

necessary to make sure an appropriate timeline is remaining to ensure Departments and stakeholders have an
adequate amount of time to thoroughly review the final draft before it is presented to your Board for finalization

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approving this amendment will cause additional stress on Departments and stakeholders, whom all continue
to be challenged with COVID related impacts. Additionaltime for completion of the EOP Update Project would be
the appropriate action to take at this time. As mentioned in the Summary, the COVID event is still evolving and
the impacts that may occur over the next few months are unknown.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
The amount of the contract will remain the same.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA - Signed Amendment #1

APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams
Kelley Williams
Darcy Ellis
Kelley Williams
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Sue Dishion
Leslie Chapman

Created/l n itiated - 7 I 1 I 12021

Approved - 711912021
Approved -711912021
Approved -712012021
Approved - 712012021
Approved - 712112021

Approved - 712112021

Final Approval - 7 129 12021



AMENDMENTNUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Navioatino Preoaredness Associates. LLC

FOR Consultinq SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Naviqatinq
Preparedness Associates. LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into
an Agreement for the Provision of lndependent Contractor Services dated Mav 1.2020
on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 113 , for the term from Mav 1, through
Auoust 31 2021

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. The term of this Ag reement shall be from Mav 1. 2020 to
December 31 2021 unless sooner terminated as provided below

/// NOTHING FOLLOWS \\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

AMENDMENTNUMBER 1

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No _
Page 1

04t30t2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Naviqatlns Preoarednass Associates, LLG

FOR Consultinq SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THISgth DAY OF Auoust 2021

COUNTY OF IN CONTRACTOR

By: By: t.
Signature

Lee Rosenbero
Type or Print

Dated: 7l'1912021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

APPROVED AS TO RISK NT:

County Risk

Page 2

04t30t2020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
n

FOR Consulfino ERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: By:
,) ./

:l

Dated
Signature

leeR ro
Type or Print

Dated: 711912021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

/+-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

nnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASS MENT:

County Risk

:-4 t

Page 2

04t30/2020



In the Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 28'h day of Lpril 2020 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-Emergency
Servrces -
NPA LLC Contract

Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to declare Navigating
Preparedness Associates, LLC, of Lafayette, CA, the successful respondent to lnyo County
RFP NO. OES-2020-02-01 lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan & Annexes Update; B)
authorize a contract be entered into with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC in an
amount not to exceed $77,100 for the term of May 1, 2020 through August 31, 2021,
contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to
sign the contract, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried
unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 28th

oay of APRIL, 2020

CLINT G, QUILTER
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors/ .-

/ . I r, \/il a,l v-t l_(F'<J Eri;>=*

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

CAO: Emergency Seruices
Other
DATE: May 6,2020

By:



*\/ 1l o\r\I

*tt"

County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: April28,2020

FROM: Kelley Williams

SUBJECT: Request Board approve a contract with Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC for consulting
services to update the lnyo County Emergency Operation! Plal and FunctionalAnnexes

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC, of Lafayette, CA, the successful
respondent to lnyo County RFP NO. OES-2020-02-01 lnyo County Emergency Operations plan & Annexes
Update; B) authorize a contract be entered into with Navigating Preparediess Associates, LLC in an amount not
to exceed $77'100 for the term of May 1 , .2020 through nugusist , )021, contingent upon the Board's adoption of
future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to iign tn1 contract, contingeit upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

Qlfebruary 1,2020, the.County of lnyo office of Emergency Services advertised Request For proposal No.
OES-2020-02-01, for contract consulting services to updlte t"he lnyo County ir"ig"n.y Operations plan and
Annexes.

Three (3) proposals were received by the submittal due date of March 6,2020. An evaluation panel consisting ofthe lnyo County Administrative Officer/Director of Emergency Services, ihe lnyo County Sheriff and the lnyo
County Emergency Services Manager, reviewed and raied all three of ine proposals.

The proposal submitted on behalf of Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC (NpA) was determined to be theproposal that could best address and fulfill the needs of lnyo County in the successfuf completion of an approveo
EOP.

NPA's proposaladdressed all of the requirements that were stipulated in the RFp, they had excelent references
and their proposal was also the lowest. As an added option, upon completion of the u[date of the EOp and
Annexes, NPA offered to conduct an EOP validation workshop. Tne validation workshop will require additional
funds, but the total cost of the EOP update and the validation workshop, is still under the estimated preliminary
budget for this project' The validation workshop will be a great opportunity to test and review the new EOp and
the functional annexes.

Update of the EoP and annexes, and completion of the validation workshop, are currenly scheduled to be
complete by August 31 , 2021. lf the COVID-19 Pandemic event should cauie Oetiy in some of the stakeholder
meetings and collaboration.efforts, it may become necessary to amend the contrait by extending the term.
However, the not to exceed amount will not change.



Agenda Request
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS

APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams
Darcy Ellis
Kelley Wlliams
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Jeffrey Hollowell
Clint Quilter

Created/lnitiated - 41812020
Approved - 41812020
Approved - 411212020
Approved - 411312020
Approved - 411312020
Approved - 411412020
Final Approval - 41 1 512020

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this consulting contract with Navigating preparedness Associates, LLCto update the County of lnyo's Emergency Operations Plan. This action w6uH iot be in the best interest of the
County. This project has been identified a:.T gpqrgved project within the 2018 Homeland Security Grant
Program' A portion of the non matching 2018 HSGP funds have already been allocated to this project.

lf these allocated 2018 HSGP funds are not used before the end of the grant program performance period of May
2021, these allocated funds will revert back to the State.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Cal OES

FINANCING:
Funding for this contract is included in Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Board Approved Budget. $35,000 is included in
the 2018 Homeland Se.curity gFnt (Budget #623718) Professionat Services (Onjeci cooe +bzos) and gso,ooo is
included in the General Relief (Budget #010205) Professional Services lgbjett iode #5265)

ATTACHMENTS:
1. NPA-Emergency Operations plan Update Contract No. 113



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Navi Preparedness Associates, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF

The term of this Agreement shall be ftom
terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDEMTION

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter refened to asConsulting services
"County") has the need for the

of Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC

Consu cEs

of
Lavfavette. California hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the

mutual promises, corcnants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto
and by reference incorporated herein.

Senices and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be performed in
a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, and County laws,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not
limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and in Exhibit A-1.

2. TERM

May 1,2020 to August 31,2021

A.
Seventy seven

Compensation. Countv s
lhoGnci-one hundr6d

Contractor for all services and work to be

unless sooner

um total of

The total sum of all payments made by the County to
under this Agreement shall not exceed

no/100********************** cgnts
77 1 00. 00*************************************************** for performance of all of the services and completion of all of

the work described in Attachment A.
B. Tralel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for tralel expenses or per diem which

Contractor incurs in proVding services and work under this Agreement.
C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall not be

entitled to, nor receire, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other type of
remuneration for seruices rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled, by virtue of this
Agreement, to consideration in the form of or,ertime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement
benefits, sick leate, \acation time, paid holidays, or other paid leales of absence of any type or kind whatsoerer.

D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement.

seven thousand one hundred and no/1 00*******************
77 1 00, 00************************************************** (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly

resenes the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which
is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and Payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of allservices and work
set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all ser.vices and work performed by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. This statement will identiff the date on which the services were performed and describe the natureof the

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1

Itlodified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



services and work which was performed on each day. Upon receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth)day of the month,
County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and State Taxes.

(1) Except as proMded in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security fom any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes fom payments made under this Agreement
to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Contractor under
this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth abote, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums
is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or
assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld ftom payments to non-
Califomia residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lntemal Revenue Service and the Califomia State Franchise
Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an lnternal Rerenue Senrice
(lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in Attachment A. lt
is understood by Contractor that the performance of these seruices and work will require a r,aried schedule. Contractor
will anange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by
County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal gor,emments
for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by Contractor and be lalid
at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otheruyise may be required. Further, during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses,
certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drileds licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and
business licenses. Such licenses, certifcates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no
expense to the County. Contractor will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with eMdence of current and
lalid licenses, ce(ificates and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where
there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to pedorm
the services identified in Attachment A, County resenes the right to make such determinations for purposes of this
Agreement.

B. Contractor wanants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or loluntarily excluded from participation in corered transactions by any federal department or agency.
Contractor also wanants that it is not suspended or debaned from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties
Excluded ftom Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration
awilable at: http://www.sam.gov. Contractorfurtherwarrants and agrees to all provisions in Exhibit A-1,112.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall proVde such offce space, supplies, equipment, rehicles, reference materials, and telephone
service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this Agreement. County is
not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining such items
is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propedv of Countv. Any personal propefty such as, but not limited to, protectile or safety
devices, badges, identifcation cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and
at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusile property of County. Contractor will use reasonable
care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's
negligence.

B. Products of Contracto/s Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs,
specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer
disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-Vsual presentations, exhibits,
reports, studies, works of art, inrentions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which
are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or
work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusire property of the
County. At the termination of the Agreement, Contractor will con\ey possession and title to all such properties to
County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall proVde Statutory California Worke/s Compensation co\erage and Employer's Liability co\erage
for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services oroperations underthis Agreement.
The County of lnyo, its agents, offcers and employees shall be named as additional insured orawairerof subrogation
shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and amount
specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, offcers, and employees, relating to the performance of this Agreement, shall
be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, offcers, oremployees of County. Contractor, byvirtueof
this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of County. Except as expressly prouded in
Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No
agent, offcer, or employee of the County is to be considered an employee of Contractor. lt is understood by both
Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an
employer-employee relationship or a joint r,enture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and services to be
proVded by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in this
Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's controlwith respect
to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, offcers, and employees are, and at all times duringtheterm of this Agreement
shall, represent and conduct themsehes as independent contractors, and not as employees of County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFIGATION.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemni$ County and its offcers, offcials, employees and
rolunteers fom and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without limitation costs and
fees of litigation) of ewry nature arising out of or in connection with Contracto/s performance of work hereunder or its
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the agreement, except such loss or damages which was
caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

12. RECORDS AI{D AJDIT.

A' Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the larious provisions of this
Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions, including the provisions set forth
in Exhibit A-1, 11 7. Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or
completion of this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B' lnsoections and Audits. Any authorized representatire of County shall hale access to any books,
documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which County determines to
be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, eraluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts
during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. Further, County has the right, at all reasonable
times, to audit, inspect, or otheruise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement. Additional
rights of access and audit are agreed to as specified in Exhibit A-1, flil6 and 7.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not unlavyftrlly
discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or Contractor for employment, or
person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical
handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents, offcers, and employees shall
comply with the proVsions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12gOO, et seq.), and the
applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the
Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. S8-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administratire rules and regulations
issued pursuant to said act. Contractor further agrees to comply with all laws, rules and regulations set forth in Exhibit
A-1.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giMng to Contractor
thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement without cause, and at
will, for any reason whatsoerer by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel to Cou nty.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, experience,
and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not assign or subcontract
this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further, Contractor shall not assign
any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by County in a
timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by County, County may
declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor. Upon

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4
Modified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for services and work
satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waircr of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be wailer of any subsequent
default' Wailer or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a wairer ol'any other or
subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless this
Agreement is modified as proVded in paragraph twentythree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the rarious provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the
course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. Contractor
agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected
information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written consent of the County. Any disclosure of
confidential information by Contractor without the County's written consent is solely and exclusirely the legal
responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social services
are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tlfle 45, Code of Federal
Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and Sections 10850 and
14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. For the purpose of this
Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to beneficiaries shall be protected by the proVder from
unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from the
County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the
term of this Agreement, has had an adrerse or confficting interest with the County, or who has been an adlerse party in
litigation with the County, and conceming such, Contractor by Mrtue of this Agreement has gained access to the
County's confi dential, privi leged, protected, or proprietary i nformation.

21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared inr,alid by
a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contrarention of any federal, state, or county statute, ordinance, or
regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereot shall not be inralidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and efiect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are sererable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5
Modified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon arailable funding from r,arious sources. ln the elent
that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, ftom one or more sources, County has the option to cancel, reduce,
or modifi7 this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifiTing Contractor of the cancellation,
reduction, or modifcation of awilable funding. Any reduction or modification of this Agreement made pursuant to this
proVsion must comply with the requirements of paragraph twentythree (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of
the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same formalities as this
Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change of
address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or may desire,
to make, shall be in writing and may be personally sened, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the respectile parties
as follows:

County of lnyo
Administration Department

Address
City and State

P-O. Drawer N

Name
Address
City and State

lndenendence cA 93526

Contractor:

Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC
3245 Driftwood Drive
Lafayette, CA 94549

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, promises,
or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any
force or efiect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, wailed, discharged, or terminated, unless the
same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6
lModified Contract No. 1 13

0110312020



AGREEi'ENT BETWEEI{ COUT{TY OF INYO
AND

FOR THE PROVISION OF

IN WITNESS THEREOF, TTIE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SETTIIEIR HANDS AND SEALS TTIIS
DAY 

-,

t

nt Neme

Dated s I 94

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Co

APP

CountyArditor

DAS REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel SeMces

APPROVEDAS TO NC RE ENTS

CONTRACTOR

By

Lee Rosenberq
TlDe or Ptint Name

Datea: 411812020

County R k

s:CountyCounsoyOontracts/Msc/EIrlRi Trainingi.l3

Countyof lnp Strandard Contract- EOP and AnnexUpdab Serr,ices
(lndependont Co ntractor)

Page 7
ttihdifiod Conbact No. 113

01t032020



ATTAGHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF Consulting SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM May 1,2020 August 31,2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

The Scope of Work includes the following, which are all incorporated into this agreement:

o All Contract Documents
o lnyo County Emergency Operations Plan & Annexes Update RFP No. OES-2020-02-01. Navigating Preparedness Associates, LLC response to the Request for Proposals

Countyof lnp Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8
Modified Contract No. 113

01t03t2020



EXHIBIT A.1

1. ProofofAuthority

The Applicant will obtain written authorization from the city council, golerning board, or authorized body in
support of this project. This written authorization must specifiy that the Applicant and the city council, gorerning
board, or authorized body agree:

(a) To proMde all matching tunds required for the grant project and that any cash match will be
appropriated as required;

(b) nny liability arising out of the peformance of this agreement shall be the responsibility of the Applicant
and the city council, gorerning board, or authorized body;

(c) Grant funds shall not be used to supplant expenditures controlled by the city council, goreming board,
or authorized body, and

(d) fne offcial executing this agreement is, in fact, authorized to doso.

This Proof of Authority must be maintained on f le and readily arailable upon request.

2. Period of Peformance

The Applicant will initiate work after approral of the award and complete all work within the period of performance
specified in the grant.

3. Lobbying and Potitical Activities

As required by Section 1352, lltle 31 of the United States Code (U.S.C.), for persons entering into a contract,
grant, loan, or cooperatire agreement ftom an agency or requests or receir,es ftom an agency a commitment
proVding for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the Applicant certifies that:

(a) No federal appropriated funds hare been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an oftcer or employee of an agency, a Member
of Congress, an offcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of
any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperatire agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(b) lf any funds other than federal appropriated funds hare been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an offcer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
offcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatire agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions.

(c) ne undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents
for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperatire agreements) andthat all subrecipients shall certiff and disclose accordingly.

The Applicant will also comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. SS 1501-1508 and SS 7324-7328)
which limit the politlcal actiVties of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in
part with federalfunds.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9
Modified Contract No. 1 13

01t03t2020



Finally, the Applicant agrees that federal funds will not be used, directly or indirectly, to support the enactment,
repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation or policy without the express written approlal from the
California Gorernods Offce of Emergency Services (Cal OES) orthe federal awarding agency.

4. Debarment and Suspenslon

As required by Executire Orders 12549 and 12689, and 2 C.F.R. S 200.213 and codified in 2 C.F.R. part 1g0,
Debarment and Suspension, the Applicant will provide protection against waste, faud, and abuse by debaning
or suspending those persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the federal gorernment. The Applicant
certifies that it and its principals, subgrantees, recipients or subrecipients:

(a) nre not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or loluntarily
excluded ftom corered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) Hare not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract
under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or
receiVng stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or othenrvise criminally or civilly charged by a gorernmental entity (federal,
state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (2)(b) of this
ceftification; and

(d) Hare not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transaction
(federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the Applicant is unable to certiff to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an
explanation to this application.

5. Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Oppoftunity

The Applicant will comply with all federal statutes relating to non-discrimination. These include, but are not limited
to, the following:

(a) titte Vl of the ciMl Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law (P.1.) 88-352 and 42 U.S.C. S 2OOOd et. seq.) which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin and requires that recipients of
federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited
English proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services;

(b) Titte lX of the Education Amendments of 1972, (20 U.S.C. SS 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in any federally funded educational program or actiMty;

(c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. S 794), which prohibits discrimination against
those with disabilities or access and functionalneeds;

(d) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabitity
and requires buildings and structures be accessible to those with disabilities and access and
tunctional needs (42 U.S.C. gg 12101-12213);

(e) nge Discrimination Act of 1975, (42 U.S.C. SS 6101-6107), which prohibits discriminationonthebasis
ofage;

(f) euOtic Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. SS 290 dd-2), retating to confidentiatity of patient records
regarding substance abuse treatment;

(g) lltle Vlll of the civl Rights Act of 1968 (42 u.s.c. s 3601 et seq.), retating to nondiscrimination in the
sale, rental or financing of housing as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract- EOP and AnnexUpdate SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10

Mo d ifi ed 
"" 

t o"it 
|."rrll1



Derelopment at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the
requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units-i.e., the public and
common use areas and indiVdual apartment units (all units in buildings with elerators and ground-floor
units in buildings without elelators)- be designed and constructed with certain accessible features
(See 24 C.F.R. S 100.201);

(h) Executirc Order 11246, which prohibits federal contractors and federally assisted construction
contractors and subcontractors, who do owr $'10,000 in Gor,ernment business in one year from
discriminating in employment decisions on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identification or national origin;

(i) Executir,e Order 11375, which bans discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identification, or national origin in hiring and employment in both the United States
federal workforce and on the part of gor,emment contractors;

0) California Public Contract Code S 10295.3, which prohibits discrimination based on
domestic partnerships and those in same sex marriages;

(k) DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith-based organizations, under which all
applicants and recipients must comply with equal treatment policies and requirements contained
in 6 C.F.R. Part 19;

(l) Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for federal
assistance is being made; and

(m) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the
application.

ln addition to the items listed in (a) through (m), the Applicant will comply with Califomia's Fair Employment
and Housing Act (FEHA). FEHA prohibits harassment and discrimination in employment because of
ancestry, familial status, race, color, religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices), sex
(which includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth or
breastfeeding), gendel gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
ancestry, mental and physical disability, genetic information, medical condition, age, pregnancy, denial of
medical and family care leare, or pregnancy disability leare (California Goremment Code SS1294O, 12945,
12945.2), military and reteran status, and/or retaliation for protesting illegal discrimination related to one of
these categories, or for reporting patient abuse in tax supported institutions.

6. Drug-Free Workptace

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 19S8 (41 U.S.C. $ 701 et seq.), the Applicant certifies that it will
maintain a drug-free workplace and a drug-free awareness program as outlined in the Act.

7. Environmentat Standards

The Applicant will comply with state and federal environmental standards, which may be prescribed pursuant to
the following, as applicable:

(a) Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (California Public Resources Codegg 21OOO-21177),to
include coordination with the city or county planning agency;

(b) CEOA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, DiVsion 6, Chapter3, SS 15000- 15387);
(c) Federat Clean Water Act (CWA) (33 U.S.C. S 1251 et seq.), which estabtishes the basic structure

for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality
standards for surface waters;

(d) Federal Clean Air Act of 1955 (42 U.S.C. S 7401) which regulates air emissions fom
stationary and mobile sources;

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 1

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



(e) lnstitution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) of 1969 (P.L. 91-190); the Council on EnVronmental Quality Regulations for lmplementing the
Procedural Provisions of NEPA; and Executire Order 12898 which focuses on the environmental and
human health effects of federal actions on minority and low-income populations with the goal of
achieMng enMronmental protection for all communities;

(f) Eraluation of flood hazards infloodplains in accordance with Executire Order 11988;
(g) Executir,e Order 11514 which sets forth national enVronmentalstandards;
(h) Executire Order 11738 instituted to assure that each federal agency empowered to enter into

contracts for the procurement of goods, materials, or services and each federal agency empowered to
extend federal assistance by way of grant, loan, or contract shall undertake such procurement and
assistance actiMties in a mannerthat will result in effectire enforcement of theCleanAirActandthe
FederalWater Pollution ControlAct Executile Order 11990 which requires presenation of wetlands;

(i) The Safe Drinking WaterAct of 1974, (p.L.93-523);

0) fhe Endangered Species Act of 1973, (P.1. 93-205);
(k) Assurance of project consistency with the approled state management program deleloped under the

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. SS1451 et seq.);
(l) Conformity of Federal Actions to State (Glear Air) lmplementation Plans under Section 176(c) of

the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. SS7401 et seq.);
(m) Wild and Scenic Riwrs Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. S 1271 et seq.) related to protecting

components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rir,ers system.

The Applicant shall not be: 1) in Volation of any order or resolution promulgated by the State Air Resources
Board or an air pollution district; 2) subject to a cease and desist order pursuant to g 13301 of the Califomia
Water Code for Volation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or 3) determined to be in
violation of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

8. Audits

For subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in federal grant funds annually, the Applicant will cause to be
performed the required f nancial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements.

9, Access to Records

ln accordance with 2 C.F.R. S 200.336, the Applicant will girc the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of
the United States and, if appropriate, the state, through any authorized representatire, access to and the right
to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award. The Applicant will require any
subrecipients, contractors, successors, transferees and assignees to acknowledge and agree to comply with
this provision.

10. Conflict of lnterest

The Applicant will establish safeguards to prohibit employees ftom using their positions for a purpose that
constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

11. Financiat Management

False Claims for Pavment
The Applicant will comply with 31 U.S.C SS 3729-3733 which sets forth that no subgrantee,
recipient, or subrecipient shall submit a false claim for payment, reimbursement or adrance.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 12

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



12. Reponing - Accountabitity

The Applicant agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) (P.L. 109-282), specifically (a) the reporting of subawards obligating $25,000 or more
in federal funds and (b) executile compensation data for first-tier subawards. This includes the provisions of
FFATA, which includes requirements for executire compensation, and also requirements implementing the Act
for the non-federal entity at 2 C.F.R. Part 25 Financial Assistance Use of Unirersal ldentifier and Central

Contractor Registration and 2 C.F.R. Parl 170 Reporting Subaward and Executire Compensation lnformation.

13. W hi stl eb I ovve r P rotecti on s

The Applicant also must comply with statutory requirements for whistleblower protections at 10 U.S.C. $ 2409,
41 U.S.C. S 4712, and 10 U.S.C. 5 2324,41 U.S.C. S 4304 and g 4310.

'14. Human Trafficking

The Applicant will comply with the requirements of Section 106(9) of the Traffcking Victims Protection Act of
2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. S 7104) which prohibits grant award recipients or a subrecipient from: (1)
engaging in trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in efiect; (2) procuring a commercial
sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or (3) using forced labor in the performance of the
award or subawards under the award.

15. Labor Standards

The Applicant will comply with the following federal labor standards:
(a) The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. SS 276a to 276a-7), as applicable, and the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. S

3145 and 18 U.S.C. S 874) and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. SS 327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction contracts or subcontracts, and

(b) The Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. $ 201 et al.) as they apply to emptoyees of institutes
of higher learning (lHE), hospitals and other non-profit organizations.

16. Wo*ets Compensation

The Applicant must comply with proMsions which require elery employer to be insured to protect workers who
may be injured on the job at all times during the performance of the work of this Agreement, as per the
workers compensation laws set forth in California Labor Code SS 3700 et seq.

17. Property-Related

lf applicable to the type of project funded by this federal award, the Applicant will:
(a) Comply with the requirements of Tltles lland lllof the Uniform RelocationAssistanceand Real Prooerty

Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of
persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of federal or federally-assisted programs.
These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of
federal participation in purchase;

(b) Comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood DisasterProtection
Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires subrecipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in
the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is
$10,000 or more;

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 13

lvlodified Contract No. 'l 13
01103t2020



(c) Assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Presenation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. S 470), Executire Order 11593 (identification and
protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preserr,ation Act of 1974 (16
U.S.C. 9469a-1 et seq.); and

(d) Comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prewntion Act (42 U.S.C. S 4831 and 24 CFR Part 35)
which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residencestructures.

18. certifications Applicabte only to Federalty-Funded construction projects

For all construction projects, the Applicant will:
(a) Not dispose of, modifi the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or other interest in

the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record
the federal awarding agency directiles and will include a corenant in the title of real property acquired
in whole or in part with federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of
the project;

(b) Comply with the requirements of the awarding agency with regard to the drafting, reVew and approral of
construction plans and specifications; and

(c) Provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to
ensure that the complete work conforms with the approred plans and specifications and will furnish
progressire reports and such other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency
or State.

19. Use of Cetlutar Device White Diving is Prohibited

Applicants are required to comply with California Vehicle Code sections 23123 and 23123.5. These laws
prohibit driving motor rehicle while using an electronic wireless communications device to write, send, or read a
text-based communication. Drirers are also prohibited ftom the use of a wireless telephone without hands -fee
listening and talking, unless to make an emergency call to 91 1, law enforcement, or similar services.

20. California Public Records Act and Freedom of tnformation Act

The Applicant acknowledges that all information submitted in the course of applying for funding under this
program, or provided in the course of an entity's grant management activities that are under Federal control, is
subject to the Freedom of lnformation Act (FOIA), 5 U.S.C. S 552, and the Catifomia Pubtic Records Act,
California Goremment Code section 6250 et seq. The Applicant should consider these laws and consult its
own State and local laws and regulations regarding the release of information when reporting sensitiw matters in
the grant application, needs assessment, and strategic planning process.

HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM - PROGRAM SPECIFIC ASSURANCES
/ CERTIFICAIIONS

2f . Reporting Accusations and Findings of Discrimination

lf during the past three years the recipient has been accused of discrimination on any basis the recipient must
provide a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of setflement
agreements to the DHS Financial Assistance Offce and the DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties
(CRCL) by e-mail at CROL@hq.dhs.gov or by mail at U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Ofiice for Civil
Rights and Civil Liberties, Building 410, Mait Stop #0190, Washington, D.C.20528.

ln the courts or administratire agencies make a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national
origin (including LEP), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the recipient, or the recipients

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 14

Modified Contract No. 1 13
0110312020



settle a case or matter alleging such discrimination, recipients must fonrr,ard a copy of the complaint and
findings to the DHS Financial Assistance Offce and the CRCL by e-mail or mail at the addresses listed abore.

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.

22. lcknov'tedgment of Federat Funding from DHS

All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests
for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with
federal funds.

23. Activities Conducted Abroad

All recipients must ensure that project actiVties canied on outside the United States are coordinated as
necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approrals are
obtained.

24. Best Practices for Cottection and lJse of Personalty tdentifiable Information (Ptt)

DHS def nes personally identifiable information (Pll) as any information that permits the identity of an individual
to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. Alt
recipients who collect Pll are required to har,e a publically-awilable priwcy policy that describes standards on
the usage and maintenance of Pll they collect. Recipients may also find the DHS Priracy lmpact Assessments:
Prilacy Guidance and Priwcy template a useful resource respectircly.

25. Copynght

All recipients must affx the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. SS 401 or 402 and an acknowledgement
of U.S. Goremment sponsorship (including the award number) to any work first produced under federal financial
assistance awards.

26. Duplication of Benefits

Any cost allocable to a particularfederalfinancial assistance award provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E
may not be charged to other federal financial assistance awards to orercome fund deficiencies, to aloid
restrictions imposed by federal statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and
conditions, or for other reasons. Howerer, these prohibitions would not preclude recipients from shifting costs
that are allowable under two or more awards in accordance with existing federal statutes, regulations, or the
federal financial assistance award terms and conditions.

27. Energy Policy and Conseruation Act

All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. S 6201 which contain policies relatingtoenergy
effciency that are defined in the state energy consenation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

28. Federal Debt Status

All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal debt. Examples of relelant debt
include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit disallowances, and beneft orerpayments. See OMB Circular
A-129.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update SeMces
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 15

Modified Contract No. 1'l 3
01t03t2020



29. ny nmerica Act of 1974

All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (aircaniers holding certificates under4g
U.S.C. S 41102) for intemational air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is
arailable, in accordance with the lntemational Air Transportation Fair Competitile Practices Act of 1974 (49
U'S.C. S 40118) and the interpretatirc guidelines issued by the ComptrollerGeneralof the United States in the
March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.

30. tlotet and Motet Fire Safety Act of 1990

ln accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, all Applicants must ensure that all
conference, meeting, conrention, or training space funded in whole or in part with federal funds complies with
the fire prer,ention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prercntion and Control Act of 1g74, as amended,
15 U.S.C. $2225a.

31. Non-s u ppl anti ng Req u i rem ent

All recipients who receire federal financial assistance awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting
by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that hare been budgeted for the same
purpose through non-federal sources.

32. Patents and tntettectual Property Rights

Unless othenrvise provided by law, recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub. L. No. g6-517, as amended,
and codified in 35 U.S.C. $ 200 et seq. All recipients are subject to the specific requirements golerning the
derclopment, reporting, and disposition of rights to inrentions and patents resulting from financial assistance
awards located at 37 C.F.R. Parl401and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. S 401.14.

33. sarpcou

All recipients who receire federal financial assistance awards made under programs that proVde emergency
communication equipment and its related activities must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency
Communication Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance interoperable
communications.

34. Tenoist Financing

All recipients must comply with Executire Order 13224 and U.S. law that prohibit transactions with, and the
provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with tenorism. Recipients are
legally responsible to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.

35. Repofting of Matters Related to Recipient Integity and performance

lf the total ralue of the recipient's cunently actir,e grants, cooperatire agreements, and procurement contracts
ftom all federal assistance offces exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance
of this federal financial assistance award, you must comply with the requirements set forth in the gorernment-
wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient lntegrity and Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200,
Appendix Xl, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 16

Modified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



36. UsA Patriot Act of 2oo1

All recipients must comply with requirements of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate
Tools Required to lntercept and Obstruct Tenorism Act (USA PATRIOTAct), which amends 18 U.S.C. SS 175-
175c.

37. Use of DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags

All recipients must obtain permission fom their DHS Financial Assistance Offce, prior to using the DHS
seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United
States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard oficials.

IMPORTANT

The purpose of the assurance is to obtain federal and state financial assistance, including any and all federal and
state grants, loans, reimbursement, contracts, etc. The Applicant recognizes and agrees that state financial
assistance will be extended based on the representations made in this assurance. This assurance is binding on the
Applicant, its successors, transferees, assignees, etc. Failure to comply with any of the abore assurances may
result in suspension, termination, or reduction of grant funds.

All appropriate documentation, as outlined abore, must be maintained on file by the Applicant and alailable for Cal
OES or public scrutiny upon request. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of
payments under the grant or termination of the grant or both and the subrecipient may be ineligible for award of any
future grants if the Cal OES determines that any of the following has occuned: (1) the recipient has made false
certification, or (2) violates the certification by failing to cany out the requirements as noted abor,e.

All of the language contained within this document must be included in the award documents for all subawards at
all tiers. All recipients are bound by the Department of Homeland Security Standard Terms and Conditions 2018,
Version 8.1, hereby incorporated by reference, which can be found at: https://www.dhs.gov/publication/V1S-dhs-
standard- terms-and-conditions.

Countyof lnyo Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 17

It4odified Contract No. 1 13
01t03t2020



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR THE PROVISION OF
Preoaredness Associafes LLC.

TERM:

May 1 ,2020 ust 31 2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

Countyof ln;o Standard Contract - EOP and Annex Update Services
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 18

FROM

lttlodified Contract No. 1 13
01103t2020



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for professional services
contract for review and update to the lnyo county Emergency operations plan

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees. The minimum scope and limits of insurance coverage shall be at least as broad as
the following:

Commercial General tiability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, pirts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG Z0 gT
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 [non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifliing that
contractor has no employees.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to
subrogation which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of
the payment of any loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement
that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless
of whether or not Inyo County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from insurer.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the spe.ifi.d
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo county.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by

County of lnyo Custom lnsurance Standards



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for professional services
contract for review and update to the lnyo county Emergency operations plan

Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1' The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2' Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veri$r that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modifii these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

County of lnyo Custom lnsurance Standards



COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

NUMBER:

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

R

DATE (MM/ODIYYYY}

0411312020
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSU|NG TNSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: lf the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. lf SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USAA INSURANCE AGENCY INC/PHS
65812846
The Hartford Business Service Center
3600 Wiseman Blvd
San Antonio, TX78251

443-6112
(A/C, No):

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

FAX

E-I\4AIL

ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURED

NAVIGATING PREPAREDNESS ASSOCIATES LLC
3245 DRIFTWOOD DR
LAFAYETTE CA 94549-5629

rNsuRER A : Hartford Casualty lnsurance Company 29424
rNsuRER B: Lloyds, Undenvriters at Lloyds 15792
lNsuRER c : Continental Casualty Co. 20443

INSURER D

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUMNCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INSF
ITD TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL

INqF
SUBR POLICY NUMBER POLIGY EFF

IMM/Dnmt
POLICY EXP

LIMITS

B

x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

X OCCUR

X X PSt0616387967 04t11t2020 04111t2021

EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMISFS /Fa d..r'rren^a\ $250,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY PRO-
JECT

LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

PRODUCTS . COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000

B

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS
HIRED
AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNED
AUTOSX X

X X PSt0616387967 04t11t2020 04t11t2021

COMtsINEIJ SINGLE LIMIT $2,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PT(OPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB
EXCESS LIAB

(JUUUK

CLAllilS-
MADE 652067315 04t01t2020 04t01t2021

EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
K AGGREGATE $1,000,000

RETENTION $

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY
PROPRI ETORYPARTN ERYEXECUTIVE

OFFICERYMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIoNS haldw

f N/A X 65 WEC AK3651 0410112020 0410112021

X PER
qTATI ITtr

OTH-
FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LllillT $1,000,000

B Professional Liability
PSl061 6387967 04111t2020 04111t2021

Each Claim
Aggregate

,000,000
$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 1Ol, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the lnsured's Operations. Please see Additional Remarks Schedule Acord Form 101 attached.Those usual to the lnsured's
Operations. lnsurer B - Professional Liability - MPLl 4381 8 420 - 0410112020-04101t2021 - Each Ctaim:
$2,000,00O/Aggregate: $2,000,000. Please see Additional Remarks Schedule Acord Form 101 attached.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE wlLL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

lnyo County
168 N EDWARDS ST
INDEPENDENCE CA 93526

dtaa.r8 Cazfr-zta-a-:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016t031



,e.c'fu

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 ol 2

AGENCY

USAA INSURANCE AGENCY INC/PHS
NAMED INSURED

NAVIGATING PREPAREDNESS ASSOCIATES LLC
3245 DRIFTWOOD DR
LAFAYETTE CA 94549-5629

POLICY NUMBER

SEE ACORD 25
CARRIER

SEE ACORD 25
NAIC CODE

EFFEcrlvE DArE: SEE ACORD 25
REMARKS

@ 2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.
The AGORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCEFORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE:

lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the General Liability
policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. Coverage is primary & non-contributory per the
General Liability Coverage. Notice of Cancellation will be provided in accordance with the General Liability Coverage.Blanket
Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of the Certificate Holder per the General Liability Coverage and Waiver of Our Right to
Recover from Others Endorsement WC040306, attached to this policy.

ACORD 101(2O14rO1l



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Sue Dishion
 
SUBJECT:  CPS HR Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the CPS HR Consulting services agreement in an amount not to exceed 
$17,500 and authorize the Assistant County Administrator to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This agreement will provide for CPS HR to do the recruitment for the vacant Deputy Public Health/Prevention 
Director. The County has been recruiting and it has been unsuccessful in finding a candidate. CPS HR 
specializes in these types of recruitments.    
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Health and Human Services
 
FINANCING:
 Health and Human Services Budget Unit (045100) will be funding this agreement.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CPS HR Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/1/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022



Agenda Request 
Page 2



CPS HR-CONSULTING
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

Countv of lnvo - Executive Recruitment Services for
HHS Deputv Director - Public Health and Prevention

This Consulting Services Agreement (Agreement)
is by and between Cooperative Personnel
Services, dba CPS HR Consulting, a California
Joint Powers Authority (CPS HR) and the Agency
named in the signature block at the end of this
Agreement (Agency, hereafter referred to as
Client), and is effective as of May 10,2022
(Effective Date). CPS HR and the Glient shall be
collectively referred to herein as the "Parties" and
individually as a "Party."

A. Purpose. This Agreement defines CPS HR
consulting services, policies and procedures

B. Services. CPS HR will provide certain
consulting services (Services) to Client as set
forth in the Statements of Work (attached
hereto as Exhibit ('A). CPS HR shall perform
only the Services requested by Client, at the
times, dates, and locations specified by
Client.

C. Compensation

1. Payment. Client will compensate CPS HR
for Services by paying certain fees as set
forth in the Statement of Work. Client will
reimburse CPS HR for business expenses as
set forth in the Statement of Work. Client will
pay all invoices within thirty (30) days from
receipt of invoice.

2. Funding. Client certifies that funding for
compensation payable to CPS HR under this
Agreement has been approved by Client's
governing body, either as a part of the general
operating budget or as a specific item. Client
further certifies that it anticipates sufficient
cash will be available for payment of
compensation as required above.

3. Late Payment. Any invoices not paid
within thirty (30) days may incur a service
charge of the lesser of two percenl (2%) or
the maximum allowable by law per month on
any outstanding overdue balances. ln
addition, reasonable collection costs may be
added to any invoice not paid within ninety
(90) days.

D. Taxes. Except as expressly stated in the
Statement of Work, the fees listed therein are
in addition to, and not in lieu of, any additional
fees, assessments, levies, taxes, etc.

assessed against the transactions
contemplated herein (Taxes). With the
exception of Taxes imposed on CPS HR' net
income, all Taxes shall be Client's
responsibility. Client shall pay any Taxes,
which CPS HR may be required to collect and
remit, upon invoice.

E. Term and Termination of Agreement.

1. Term. The term of this Agreement is from
the Effective Date through December 31 ,

2022.

2. lmmediate Termination upon Material
Breach. Either Party may terminate this
Agreement immediately upon any material
breach by the other Party.

3. Termination without Cause. Either Party
may terminate the Agreement without cause
upon thirty days written notice to the other
Party.

4. Payment on Termination. Upon
termination without cause, Client shall pay
CPS HR for all work performed through the
effective date of termination. For termination
upon material breach, Client shall pay CPS
HR for all work performed which is in
compliance with the terms of the Statement of
Work.

F. Limited Warranty.

1. Warranty. CPS HR represents and
warrants that: (i) it has the authority to enter
into this Agreement; (ii) it will comply with
applicable law; and (iii) it will provide Services
in a workmanlike manner consistent with
industry standards.

2. Warranty Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, CPS HR
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
ORAL OR WRITTEN, WITH RESPECT TO
THE SERVICES AND THE WORK
PRODUCT INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIM ITATION, ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR IN
RESPECT OF ANY THIRD-PARTY
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES AND ALL

Page 1 ofS



WARRANTIES IMPLIED FROM ANY
COURSE OF DEALING AND NO
REPRESENTATIVE OF CPS HR IS
AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY ADDITIONAL
WARRANTY.

G. Work Product.

1. Ownership. Upon CPS HR' receipt of fees
due under the Agreement, all studies, reports,
documents and other writings prepared by
CPS HR and its subcontractors, produced as
a result of CPS HR' work, or delivered by
CPS HR to Client in the course of performing
services (collectively, "Work Product") shall
become the property of Client and Client shall
have the right to use the materials without
further compensation to CPS HR or its
subcontractors.

2. Retention of Rights. Notwithstanding
Client's ownership of the Work Product, Client
acknowledges and agrees that: (i) CPS HR
has the right to re-use any of its know-how,
ideas, concepts, methods, processes, or
similar information, however characterized,
whether in tangible or intangible form, and
whether used by CPS HR in the performance
of Services or not, at any time and without
limitation, and (ii) CPS HR retains ownership
of any and all of its intellectual property rights
that existed prior to the Effective Date
including, but not limited to, all methods,
concepts, designs, reports, programs, and
templates as well as all training materials,
testing or assessment products, survey
content and copyrightable works.

H. Release of lnformation to Third Parties.
Each Party understands that information
provided to government entities may be
subject to disclosure under a public records or
freedom of information act. Each Party hereto
(each, a Recipient) shall protect and keep
confidential all non-public information
disclosed to Recipient by the other Party
(each, a Discloser) and identified as
confidential by Discloser, and shall not,
except as may be authorized by Discloser in
writing, use or disclose any such Confidential
lnformation during and after the term of this
Agreement. lf CPS HR or Client receives a
request for disclosure of Confidential
Materials, such as a subpoena or a public
records or freedom of information request,
that Party shall immediately notify the other
Party of the request. Upon request, Client or
CPS HR shall maintain the confidentiality of
the Confidential Materials pending the grant
or denial of a protective order or the decision
of a court or administrative body as to
whether the requested materials must be
disclosed under the applicable public records

statute. Client and CPS HR shall cooperate
with each other in seeking any relief
necessary to maintain the confidentiality of
the Confidential Materials. Each Party shall
defend, indemnify and hold the other
harmless from any claim or administrative
appeal, including costs, expenses, and any
attorney fees, related to that Party pursuing
protection of the Confidential Materials from
disclosure.

lndemnification. CPS HR shall defend,
indemnify, and hold harmless Client, its
agents, officers, and employees from and
against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other
costs, including litigation costs and attorney's
fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in
connection with, the performance of this
Agreement by CPS HR, or CPS HR's agents,
officers, or employees. CPS HR's obligation
to defend, indemnify, and hold the Client, its
agents, officers, and employees harmless
applies to any actual or alleged personal
injury, death, or damage or destruction to
tangible or intangible property, including the
loss of use. CPS HR's obligation under this
paragraph extends to any claim, damage,
loss, liability, expense, or other costs which is
caused in whole or in part by any act or
omission of the CPS HR, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or
indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone
for whose acts or omissions any of them may
be liable.

J. Limitation of Liability.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN,
NEITHER PARTY HERETO SHALL HAVE
ANY LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES ARISING
FROM LOSS OF PROFTTS OR DATA),
EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGES. CPS HR' LIABILITY
FOR DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL NOT
EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID BY
CLIENT TO CPS HR.

K. Miscellaneous.

1. Notices. Any notice to the parties
required or permitted under this Agreement
shall be given in writing and shall be sent to
the persons at the address listed in the
Statement of Work.

2. Dispute Resolution; Remedies.
(a) ln the event of a dispute, the parties may

agree to pursue mediation or either binding or

Page 2 of 5



nonbinding arbitration to resolve their dispute,
under such rules as the parties may agree.

(b) lf either CPS HR or Client determines it
appropriate to file a judicial action, then, in
addition to any other remedies available at
law or in equity, Client acknowledges that
breach of this Agreement may result in
irreparable harm to CPS HR for which
damages would be an inadequate remedy
and, therefore, CPS HR shall be entitled to
seek equitable relief, including injunction.

3. Attorneys Fees. lf any legal action or
arbitration or other proceeding is brought to
enforce or construe the term of this
Agreement or because of an alleged dispute,
breach or default in connection with any
provision of this Agreement, the successful or
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover
reasonable attorneys fees and other costs
incurred in that action, arbitration or
proceeding in addition to any other relief to
which it may be entitled.

4. Governing Law. This Agreement will be
governed by the laws of the State of California
without regard to its rules concerning conflict
of laws.

5. Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be
liable for delays caused by fire, accident,
labor dispute, war, insurrection, riot, act of
government, superior force, or any other
cause reasonably beyond its control.

6. Waiver. The failure of any Party at any
time or times to require performance of any
provision of this Agreement shall in no
manner affect its right to enforce that
provision at a later time. Nor shall the waiver

Cooperative Personnel Services dba
CPS HR Gonsulting
2450 Del Paso Rd. Ste 220, Sacramento, CA 95834

By:

Authorized Signature

Name

Title:

by either Party of a breach of any provision of
this Agreement be taken or held to be a
waiver of the provision itself. No waiver shall
be enforceable unless made in writing and
signed by the Party granting the waiver.

7. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties regarding the subject
matter hereof and supersedes all other
agreements, representations and warranties
All modifications and supplements to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by
both parties.

8. Counterparts; Facsimile Signature;
Electronic Signature. This Agreement may
be executed in any number of counterparts. lf
this Agreement or any counterpart is signed
and then faxed or e-mailed by PDF or
otherwise, the faxed or -mailed copy bearing
the signature shall be as good as the original,
wet-ink signed copy for all intents and
purposes.

9. Authority to Sign. The person signing
this Agreement on behalf of the Client (the
Principal Signer) represents that he or she is
the head of the agency or is otherwise duly
authorized to sign this Agreement and to bind
the Client.

10. Ambiguities. As this Agreement has
been voluntarily and freely negotiated by both
parties, the rule that ambiguous contractual
provisions are construed against the drafter of
the provision shall be inapplicable to this
Agreement.

Inyo Gounty
1360 N. Main Street, Suite 269
Bishop, CA 93526

Authorized Signature

Name

Title:

Page 3 of 5



Exhibit A
Statement of Work

All changes to this SOW must be mutually agreed to and executed in writing by duly authorized representatives of
both parties as an amendment to this SOW. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them
in the Agreement.

1. SERVICES: CPS HR shall assist lnyo County ("County") with the recruitment of a Health and Human Services
Deputy Director, Public Health and Prevention by providing the following services:

Phase l:

o Meet with appropriate stakeholder(s) to gather information on the organization and to develop the
specifications and ideal candidate profile for the position

r Coordinate with the County on development of recruitment brochure for the desired
position; prepare brochure design

r Complete recruitment brochure and post brochure on CPS HR website

o Place ads in agreed upon trade journals, web sites and other appropriate sources

o Print and distribute brochure/job announcement

. Receive all resumes and acknowledge receipt thereof
r Respond to inquiries from applicants and potential applicants

. Keep client posted on recruitment progress

r Conduct aggressive outreach by initiating contact with potential applicants and with referral
sources

Phase ll:

. Review application materials and identiff candidates forfurther consideration

o Conduct preliminary screening interviews

r Submit "Client Report" (includes resumes, summary of resumes, notes, overview)

o Meet with County to discuss the report and the results of the screening interviews in order for the
Agency to identify an appropriate number to interview as finalists (or semi- finalists)

o Notiry all applicants of status in the recruitment

Phase lll:

. Prepare an assessment process forfinalists in coordination with the County

r Schedule candidates for participation in finalist assessment; send invitations to candidates
and coord inate travel/accom modations

. Prepare evaluation materials

o Facilitate finalist assessment process in coordination with the County
r Conduct reference and background checks on top identified candidate(s) following assessment

process

2. CLIENTRESPONSIBILITIES:

a. Client must timely perform all those Client roles and responsibilities set forth in this SOW. Successful
completion of this project within the time specified depends largely upon an effective working relationship between
Client and CPS HR project staff. For this reason, CPS HR requests that Client designate an individual to
coordinate communication, meetings, interview schedules, and review of products with the project team. Client's
Project Representative will be responsible for the following activities:

1. Coordinating all meeting schedules, conference calls, facilities and equipment needs
2. Coordinating interview schedules and facilities and distributing project update information

Page 4 of 5



b. Any work products developed during the activities described above will be submitted to Client's Project
Representative for review, comment and/or approval. This is a critical step to ensure accurate, reliable, and valid
products.

3. CPS HR PROJECT MANAGER: Pamela Derby Phone: (916) 471-3126 Email: pderbv@cpshr.us

4. CLIENT PROJECT MANAGER: Sue Dishion Phone: (760) 878-0377 Email: sdishion@inyocountv.us

5. SERVICE FEES and EXPENSES: Fixed Fee $17,500 (discounted rate for a full recruitment)

a. All Services provided to Client by CPS HR hereunder are priced on a FIXED PRICE basis. All amounts are
based upon the following assumptions. Any deviations from the following assumptions may result in an
increase in the Fees: (i) Client will timely perform its responsibilities as set forth in this SOW; and (ii) Services
will normally be performed during normal business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.,
excluding CPS HR holidays ("Normal Business Hours").

b. Professional Services Fees: The professional fixed fee of $17,500 covers all CPS HR services associated with
Phases l, ll, and lll of the recruitment process, including the necessary field visits to develop the candidate
profile and recruitment strategy, assist the Client with finalist selection, and facilitate candidate interviews. The
professional fixed fee includes the following expenses: brochure design and printing, advertising, background
check on the selected finalist candidate, supplies, shipping, and consultant travel.

c. Additional Expenses Not lncluded: Travel expenses for candidates who are invited forward in the interview
process are NOT included. However, should the Client desire CPS HR's Travel Team to assist with these
arrangements, CPS HR can provide assistance. This might require an amount be added to the Agreement.

d. lnvoices: CPS HR will invoice Client at the fixed fee rate of $'17,500 billed in three monthly installments of
$5,000 and a fourth installment of $2,500. Client will pay CPS HR within thirty (30) days following receipt of
invoice.

One-Year Guarantee: lf the employment of the candidate selected and appointed by the Client, as a result of a
full executive recruitment (Phases l, ll, and lll), comes to an end before the completion of the first year of
service, CPS HR will provide the Client with professional services to appoint a replacement. Professional
consulting services will be provided at no cost. The Client would be responsible only for reimbursable
expenses. This guarantee does not apply to situations in which the successful candidate is promoted or re-
assigned within the organization during the one-year period. Additionally, should the initial recruitment efforts
not result in a successful appointment, CPS HR will extend the aggressive recruiting efforts and screen
qualified candidates until an offer is made and accepted. CPS HR does not provide a guarantee for
candidates placed as a result of a partial recruitment effort.

6. ln the event the project is terminated early, CPS HR will be paid such amount as is due for professional services
performed and out-of-pocket expenses incurred up to and including the effective date of termination.

7. This SOW covers work requested and performed prior to the commencement of this SOW

e

Page 5 of 5



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Public Defender
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Agreement for Public Defender Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Gerard B. Harvey of Bishop, CA for the 
provision of Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $486,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; B) cancel the current contract with 
Gerard B. Harvey, effective June 30, 2022; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through 
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services, 
or conflicts between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorney's ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorney's appointed by the 
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control 
by the County.

There have been several vacancies this current year, and the County Administrator met with all of the current 
Public Defenders to go over the caseloads and contract amounts. The current contract Public Defenders and her 
came to a reasonable conclusion that the caseloads between North and South County could be distributed 
differently, along with who would be considered first, second, etc. for each case being handled (felonies, 
misdemeanors, etc.).

Mr. Harvey has a current contract with the County that will be canceled once this one takes effect. He will 
continue to cover North County Misdemeanors first, but priorities have changed slightly as referenced in 
Attachment B of the contract. The dates of this new contract will also have the same dates as all other Public 
Defenders to make it easier for future County Administrators to work directly with them all at the same time to 
make sure that the caseloads and reimbursements are still in line.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract, however, this is not advised as this will assist in satisfying 
the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract will be included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and future budgets in the Public Defender 
Budget (022600) in Professional Service (5265). The negotiated contract amount is $13,500 per month, for a 
total not to exceed $162,000 each year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Harvey Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/31/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/31/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/31/2022



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") requires professional services
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various courts, for certain qualified indigent
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:

Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on felony charges
(hereinafter referred to as "Felony cases");

Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on misdemeanor
charges (hereinafter referred to as "Misdemeanor cases");

Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of lnyo County for proceedings under Welfare
and lnstitutions Code Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred to as "Delinquency
cases");

Minors and/or parents brought before the Superior Court of lnyo County and/or appropriate
Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare and lnstitutions Code section 300
(hereinafter referred to as "Dependency cases");

Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of lnyo County re contempt for
alleged failure to pay child support or before said court in proceedings to establish paternity
and support (hereinafter referred to as "Child Support cases");

Persons involuntarily detained by Inyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to
sections 5150 and 5170 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, or for prolonged subsequent
detention pursuant to Welfare and lnstitutions Code sections 5250, 5260, 5300, 5304 or
6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservatees brought before the lnyo
County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal pursuant to sections 5350 or
5352.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code; or persons brought before the lnyo County
Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal for post adjudication of criminal mental
health status proceeding under Penal Code 1026 et. seq.; Children in proceedings to
declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code section 7861), or indigent
parents in proceedings to declare child free from parentalcustody and control (Family Code
section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedings to terminate the parent's
rights for willful failure to communicate and support (Family Code section 7860); or
conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legal capacity or unable
to retain legal counsel and requesting the appointment of counsel in proceedings to
establish a conservatorship or appoint a proposed conservator, terminate conservatorship,
remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a temporary conservatee
from the temporary conservatee's place of residence (Probate Code section 1471),

[hereinafter all referred to as "Mental Health cases"];

Patients for whom the Contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pursuant to
Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 5520, by the lnyo County Mental Health Director
(hereinafter referred to as "Patient Rights Advocate Cases");

Persons brought before the lnyo County Superior Court for determinations and
commitments under Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter
referred to as "Sexually Violent Predator cases");

County of Inyo Standard Contract -l 60
(Independent Contractor- Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page I

1

2.

3.

4.

5

6

7

8.

06092021



Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the lnyo County Superior Court to the
Appellate Division of the Superior Court of lnyo County (hereinafter referred to as
"Misdemeanor Appeal cases");

10. Persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 109; and

11 Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender
services.

WHEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services
described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors ("Contract Public
Defenders") to perform public defender services for the County. The purpose of said contracts for public
defender services is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons
appearing before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of County funds for the payment of
court appointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore as public defenders, in cases where the Contract
Public Defenders are unable to appear due to attorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.

WHEREAS, the County has the need for GERARD B. HARVEY of Bishop. GA (hereinafter
referred to as "Contracto/') to provide professional legal services as a Contract Public Defender for lnyo
County (North and South).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set forth
in the Scope of Work, Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by
the County to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges of the Superior
Court of lnyo County. Requests to the Contractor forwork or services to be performed under thisAgreement
will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of
any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or required of the
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to compensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreement, for the
performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standards established by
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this
Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement is for the period lrom Julv 01,2022 to June 30, 2025.

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees,
Attachment B, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services
and work described in Attachment A.

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per
diem for any in-county travel performed by Contractor in providing services and work under this

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page2

9

06092021



Agreement. County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized out-of-county travel expenses and per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement. Contractor shall on a
case by case basis, and prior to incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive written
authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-county on the case from the assigned judge. Properly
authorized out-of-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the
same extent as County reimburses its permanent status employees for such expenses. County reserves
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county travel or per diem expenses which are either
in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status employees, or which are incurred
by Contractor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.

C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work
under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies. Reimbursement for actual costs will not exceed
the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation,
salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for any public defender services provided. ln addition,
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of overtime, health
insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid
holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

E. Billinq and pavment. County shall pay to Contractor the monthly payments set forth in
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contractor. Within 30 days of
Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a
statement to the County. The statement will itemize each incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identify
the date and case in which the expense was incurred. The statement will include a conformed copy of the
court authorization for travel andior incidental expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County'accounting procedures and rules. County will make payment to
Contractor for all authorized reimbursable expenses for which a statement is properly submitted, within 30
days of the County's receipt of such statement.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total
annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety
nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments
from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility
or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 3

06092021



4, WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require
a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange hisiher own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of lnyo
County, other lnyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to ensure
that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs
issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES.

County will provide Contractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in
the Schedule of County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and by reference
incorporated herein. County incurs no obligation or requirement to reimburse or compensate Contractor if
he/she for any reason either does not use the County provided services and supplies, or procures similar
services and supplies from other sources.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY,

Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety devices, badges, identification
cards, keys, etc., provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor will use reasonable care
to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of
Contractor's neg ligence.

8. PRODUCTS OF CONTRACTOR'S WORKAND SERVICES.

Any and allcompositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas,
processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes,
memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies,
works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are
created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's
services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and
exclusive property of the Contractor.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page4
06092021



9. OFFTCE SPACE, SUPPL|ES, EQUTPMENT, ETC.

Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above, Contractor
shall provide all such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and books, postage,
letterhead, stationery, secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services, telephone
services, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the work and services
required of Contractor by this Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense
or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services. Responsibility for the
costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining items or services not specifically
set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B) as lncidental Expenses, is the sole responsibility and
obligation of Contractor.

10. INSURANCE

For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment E and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

11. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
Coun$. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise
any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered
an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under
any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.
As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement,

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

12. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall defend, indemnifo, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of this
Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to defend,
indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged
personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use.
Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other
cost which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, his/her agents, employees,
supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone forwhose acts or omissions any
of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemniff, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 5
06092021



To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnifo, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

13. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions
of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions. Contractor shall
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute
photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which are not
otherwise legally privileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement,
for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such
records are to be maintained by Contractor.

C. Workload Data. Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and all workload or case
data, which is not otherwise legally privileged information upon the written request of either the County
Administrator or the County Board of Supervisors.

14. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees shall
not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant
for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and his/her
agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
Galifornia Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

15. CANCELLATION

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

16. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such
compensation due, if any, prorated to the date of termination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and
inactive case files to the attorney or law office as the County Administrator shall designate in writing.

17. TERMINATIONOFPREVIOUSAGREEMENT.

Contractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement by the parties hereto, any prior written
Agreement for the provision of professional services as a Contract Public Defender for the Gounty of lnyo
shall be terminated, and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the
County of lnyo shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this
Agreement. lt is further understood between the parties hereto that there are no oral agreements or
representations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement supersedes and
cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, and none
thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreement.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor- Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 6 
0609202l



18. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Furthel
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of County.

19. DEFAULT

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely mannel or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor.

20. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twen$-eight (29) below.

21. CONFIDENTIALITY-

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under thisAgreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or
confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County.Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

22. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor's performance of the work and services under
this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contractor's abili$ to represent clients under this Agreement.
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agrees not to advise or represent any person,
corporation or enti$ with a claim or cause of action against the County of lnyo, its officers, agents, or
employees.

23. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained in
the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

PageT
06092021



24. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or coun$
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are severable.

25. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify thisAgreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiffing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
seven (27) (Amendment).

26. RENEGOTIATION.

Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) and Schedule of Fees (Attachment B). lf as a result of
renegotiations, both parties agree to modiff the Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees, such modification must
comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-seven (27) (Amendment).

27. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

28. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to thisAgreement, including change
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required,
or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail
to, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:
Countv Administrator
224 North Edwards

Department
Street

P.O. Drawer N
lndependence. CA 93526

CONTRACTOR:

Gerard B. Harvev

City and State

PO Box {701
Name

Street
City and StateBishop. CA 93515

29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 8

ilil ilil

06092021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GER,ARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTYOF INYq

Signature

Dated Ceurw 6- Ml
.f

APPROVED

TOACCOUNTING FORM:

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE MENTS:

County Risk

County of lnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 9
0609202t



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1,2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES.

A. WARRANTY. Contractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of all the other
attorneys engaged by the County to provide professional services as public defenders (hereinafter referred to
as "Contract Public Defenders") during the term of this Agreement. Such Agreements are by reference
incorporated herein as though set forth in full. Contractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult,
confer, and agree with all the other Contract Public Defenders to, and shall provide legal representation and
substitute handling and coverage of Contract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions below.
Contractor agrees and understands that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the
other Contract Public Defenders, and does not entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this
Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS.

1. "Aftorney-Conflict of lnterest" cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of
another Contract Public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender.
Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable law.

2. "Time Conflict" cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Contract
Public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent
the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary
illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or attendance at attorney education courses.

C. ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CASES. Except as may be provided in F. below, or
where Contractor's own aftorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall
provide legal representation for attorney-client conflict of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts
Coverage Table, AttachmentA-1 to this Agreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.

D. TIME CONFLICT CASES. Except as may be provided in E and F below, or where Contractor's
own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide substitute
handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time conflict cases in accordance with
the Conflicts Coverage Table, AttachmentA-1 to thisAgreement.

E. TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION. Contractor shall provide coverage for time conflict cases for
which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such
other Contract Public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thir$ (30) consecutive calendar
days.

F. WAIVER. The requirements for Contractor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time conflict
cases as required by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating demands
are placed upon Contractor during his/her representation of the following:

County of Inyo Standard Contract -l 60
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page l0
06092021



ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. A defendant charged with a Felony;

2. A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty

or life imprisonment without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;

3. A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life
imprisonment without the possibility of parole;

4. A minor or parent(s) on a Writ arising out of a dependency case in which the Contractor
represents such minor or parent(s).

G. DECLARATIONS FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER FEESAND COSTS.

1. ln the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to court
Order, each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the
invoice represents a service provided in the defense of the matter from which the Order issued

and shall be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B

"Schedule of Fees" paragraph 3.A.]

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing
file with the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a
Contract Public Defender, the requisite form or forms declaring the amount of time expended on

the case by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Contractor's representation of
the client, including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate
reimbursement hearings.

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code
section 987.8 or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the County for
the cost of public defender services.

4. Contractor shall provide the County copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County.

H. MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS. Contractor shall provide monthly
reports specif,Ting the total hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific category of cases on

which the Contractor provides services under the terms of this Agreement. [See lntroduction paragraphs 1-

11 .l County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, which shall be transmitted in electronic format.
County is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the attorney/client
privilege or other confidentiality laws.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Conhactor- Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page ll
06092021



ATTACHMENTA-{

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

COVERAGE TABLE:

During the period of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide public defender services as set forth below:

Primary Obligations:

First Priority: Misdemeanors, North County
1st Conflict - Felonies - North and South
2nd Conflict - Misdemeanors - South
Dependency - 3rd

3rd Conflict - Delinquency (600)
Adoptions

Secondary Obligations:

All other Conflict matters, including Delinquency, Dependency, Child Support, Mental
Health and Conservatorship Cases, Patient Rights Advocate Cases, AB 109 Revocation
Hearings and any other matter in which the County is obligated to provide public defender
services.

Note The Table listed above will be followed for the majority of the cases assigned to
this Public Defender. However, a Judge, when assigning a case, will consider
the experience, caseload, complexity of the case and prior representation of the
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the
listed sequence. ln addition, the County reserves the right to modify the conflicts
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other Public Defender
contracts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislative
changes which may impact the County's obligation to provide Public Defender
services.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 12

06092021



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. GOMPENSATION:

County shall pay to Contractor on or before the first (1"1) day of each month during the term of the
Agreement, the amount set forth below as full and complete compensation for Contractor's performance of
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Contractor:

A. From July 1,2022 through June 30, 2025: $162,000 annual/ $13,500 per mo.

For a total amount not to exceed $486,000

2. TIME GONFLICT LIMITATION AND COMPENSATION:

A. ln addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to provide
coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible, but for
whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not been performed or provided for
more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rate of $75.00 per hour for
those time conflict cases.

B. Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County
Administrative Officer for review and payment. The request shall include the case name and number, the
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contract Public Defender or former Contract Public
Defender subject to the time conflict, and any other information requested by the County. Contractor shall be
paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment.

3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

A. Coun$ will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.
"Consideration," paragraphs C and F of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized professional services
required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which Contractor is
required by this Agreement to represent. Professional services shall include, but not be limited to,
investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists,
psychiatrists, physicians, and other legal counsel with specialized expertise. Contractor shall on a case by
case basis, and prior to incurring any expense for professional services, received written authorization for
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professional services as well as the
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses for such services. County reserves the right to deny
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of
Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge. [See Attachment A "Scope of Work" paragraph G.1 .]

County of Inyo Standard Contract -l 60
(Independent Contractor- Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 13

06092021



ATTACHMENT B - Gontinued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B. HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

B. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and
Conditions, "Consideration," Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to
provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Contractor is required
by this Agreement to represent. Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any expense
for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the County that Contractor has at his/her own
expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization for
Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case. Such
authorization shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopies in excess of 5,000 pages, shall
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and the authorized cost of such copying.
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for copying expenses which are in excess
of Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, or which were incurred by the Contractor in making
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.

C. Contractors providing public defender services for cases arising under WC section 300
("dependency" cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the
event the Court reduces or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or
either the Court or County otherwise terminates its agreement regarding the provision of these services:

i. The reduction will be calculated based on the Contractor's ratio of dependency related
cases to the total number of dependency related cases for which public defender
services were provided as reported on the Contract Public Defender's immediate prior
Monthly Case Report submitted under Section H of AttachmentA, and applied to the
amount that dependency funding is reduced by the Court.

ii. ln the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Contractor
shall continue to be responsible for performing all other services set forth in this
Agreement in Attachment A-1, with the exception of the representation of parties in

matters arising under WC section 300.

County of Inyo Standard Conhact -l 60
(Independent Conhactor- Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 14
06092021



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND GERARD B, HARVEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES:

1. County will set up a Centrix phone line in Contractor's office for Contractor's use in providing the
services and work required under this Agreement. County will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone
line in Contractor's Office. However, Contractor will pay the monthly cost of this phone line plus the cost of
any calls or other services billed to this line.

2. County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to Coun$'s copying facilities for duplicating
documents, and FAX facilities for transmitting documents necessary to perform the work and services required
under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County the County's actual cost of providing such
copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.

3. lt is Contractor's obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender services
under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the California Rules of Court or local rule. ln keeping
with this obligation Contractor shall maintain an electronic record retention program for each case in which
the Contractor appears under this contract identiffing for each case file the type of case (i.e. misdemeanor,
felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, conservatorship etc.), and the year when the individual
case is closed by Contractor.

4. ln the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to direct all active pending files to
that attorney or law firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each case and to retain
any electronic records of closed files for such time as is set by law. lt is the Contractor's obligation to
personally maintain any closed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event Contractor
is no longer able to do so.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Gerard B. Harvey )

Page 15

06092021



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Public Defender
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Agreement for Public Defender Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Terry K. Walker of Bishop, CA for the 
provision of Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $396,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets; B) cancel the current contract with Terry 
K. Walker, effective June 30, 2022; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through 
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services, 
or conflicts between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorney's ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorney's appointed by the 
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control 
by the County.

There have been several vacancies this current year, and the County Administrator met with all of the current 
Public Defenders to go over the caseloads and contract amounts. The current contract Public Defenders and her 
came to a reasonable conclusion that the caseloads between North and South County could be distributed 
differently, along with who would be considered first, second, etc. for each case being handled (felonies, 
misdemeanors, etc.).

Ms. Walker has a current contract with the County that will be canceled once this one takes effect. She will 
continue to cover South County Misdemeanors first, but priorities have changed slightly as referenced in 
Attachment B of the contract. The dates of this new contract will also have the same dates as all other Public 
Defenders to make it easier for future County Administrators to work directly with them all at the same time to 
make sure that the caseloads and reimbursements are still in line.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract, however, this is not advised as this will assist in satisfying 
the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract will be included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and future budgets in the Public Defender 
Budget (022600) in Professional Service (5265). The negotiated contract amount is $11,000 per month, for a 
total not to exceed $132,000 each year.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Walker Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/31/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/31/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/31/2022



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRY K. WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") requires professional services
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various courts, for certain qualified indigent
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:

Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on felony charges
(hereinafter referred to as "Felony cases");

Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on misdemeanor
charges (hereinafter referred to as "Misdemeanor cases");

Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of lnyo County for proceedings under Welfare
and lnstitutions Code Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred to as "Delinquency
cases");

Minors and/or parents brought before the Superior Court of lnyo County and/or appropriate
Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare and lnstitutions Code section 300
(hereinafter referred to as "Dependency cases");

Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of lnyo County re contempt for
alleged failure to pay child support or before said court in proceedings to establish paternity
and support (hereinafter referred to as "Child Support cases");

Persons involuntarily detained by lnyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to
sections 5150 and 5170 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, or for prolonged subsequent
detention pursuant to Welfare and lnstitutions Code sections 5250,5260,5300, 5304 or
6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservatees brought before the lnyo
County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal pursuant to sections 5350 or
5352.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code; or persons brought before the lnyo County
Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal for post adjudication of criminal mental
health status proceeding u4der Penal Code 1026 et. seq.; Children in proceedings to
declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code section 7861); or indigent
parents in proceedings to declare child free from parentalcustody and control (Family Code
section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedings to terminate the parent's
rights for willful failure to communicate and support (Family Code section 7860); or
conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legalcapacity or unable
to retain legal counsel and requesting the appointment of counsel in proceedings to
establish a conservatorship or appoint a proposed conservator, terminate conservatorship,
remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a temporary conservatee
from the temporary conservatee's place of residence (Probate Code section 1471),
[hereinafter all referred to as "Mental Health cases"];

Patients for whom the Contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pursuant to
Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 5520, by the lnyo County Mental Health Director
(hereinafter referred to as "Patient Rights Advocate Cases");

Persons brought before the lnyo County Superior Court for determinations and
commitments under Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter
referred to as "Sexually Violent Predator cases");

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(ndependent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page I

2

3.

4.

5.

6.

7

8.

06092021



Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the lnyo County Superior Court to the
Appellate Division of the Superior Court of lnyo County (hereinafter referred to as
" Misdemeanor Appeal cases") ;

1 0. Persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 1 09; and

11 Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender
services.

WHEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services
described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors ("Contract Public
Defenders") to perform public defender services for the County. The purpose of said contracts for public
defender services is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons
appearing before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of County funds for the payment of
court appointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore as public defenders, in cases where the Contract
Public Defenders are unable to appear due to attorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.

WHEREAS, the County has the need for TERRY K. WALKER of Bishop. CA (hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor") to provide professional legal services as a Contract Public Defender for lnyo
County (North and South).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set forth
in the Scope of Work, AttachmentA, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by
the County to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges of the Superior
Court of lnyo County. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement
will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of
any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or required of the
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to compensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreement, for the
performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standards established by
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this
Agreement.

2. TERM.

I

3

The term of this Agreement is for the period from Julv 01.2022 to June 30. 2025.

CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees,
Attachment B, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services
and work described in AttachmentA.

B. Traveland Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per
diem for any in-county travel performed by Contractor in providing services and work under this

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page2
06092021



Agreement. County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized out-of-county travel expenses and per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement. Contractor shall on a
case by case basis, and prior to incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive written
authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-county on the case from the assigned judge. Properly
authorized out-of-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the
same extent as County reimburses its permanent status employees for such expenses. County reserves
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county travel or per diem expenses which are either
in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status employees, or which are incurred
by Contractor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.

C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work
under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies. Reimbursement for actual costs will not exceed
the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additionalconsideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation,
salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for any public defender services provided. ln addition,
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of overtime, health
insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid
holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

E. Billinq and oavment. County shall pay to Contractor the monthly payments set forth in
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contractor. Within 30 days of
Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a
statement to the County. The statement will itemize each incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identify
the date and case in which the expense was incurred. The statement will include a conformed copy of the
court authorization for travel and/or incidental expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County' accounting procedures and rules. County will make payment to
Contractor for all authorized reimbursable expenses for which a statement is properly submitted, within 30
days of the County's receipt of such statement.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of thisAgreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total
annual payments to Contractor underthisAgreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety
nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments
from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility
or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board.

County oflnyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 3

06092021



4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require
a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of lnyo
County, other lnyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to ensure
that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in AttachmentA must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in fullforce and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in AttachmentA. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs
issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.oov.

6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES.

Gounty will provide Contractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in
the Schedule of County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and by reference
incorporated herein. County incurs no obligation or requirement to reimburse or compensate Contractor if
he/she for any reason either does not use the County provided services and supplies, or procures similar
services and supplies from other sources.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety devices, badges, identification
cards, keys, etc., provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor will use reasonable care
to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of
Contractor's neg ligence.

8. PRODUCTS OF CONTRACTOR'S WORKAND SERVICES

Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas,
processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes,
memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies,
works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are
created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's
services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and
exclusive property of the Contractor.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 4
06092021



9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above, Contractor
shallprovide allsuch office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and books, postage,
letterhead, stationery, secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services, telephone
services, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the work and services
required of Contractor by this Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense
or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services. Responsibility for the
costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining items or services not specifically
set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B) as lncidental Expenses, is the sole responsibility and
obligation of Contractor.

10. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment E and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

11. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided inAttachmentA, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise
any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered
an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under
any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.
As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under thisAgreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

12. DEFENSEANDINDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnifiT, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of this
Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to defend,
indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged
personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use.
Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other
cost which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, his/her agents, employees,
supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone forwhose acts or omissions any
of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

County of Inyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Conhactor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 5

06092021



To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

13. RECORDSANDAUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions
of thisAgreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions. Contractorshall
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute
photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which are not
othenruise legally privileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement,
for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such
records are to be maintained by Contractor.

C. Workload Data. Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and allworkload or case
data, which is not otherwise legally privileged information upon the written request of either the County
Administrator or the County Board of Supervisors.

14. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees shall
not unlavufully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant
for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and his/her
agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 8S-
352) and allamendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

,l5. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

16. TERMINATION OF THISAGREEMENT.

Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such
compensation due, if any, prorated to the date of termination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and
inactive case files to the attorney or law office as the County Administrator shall designate in writing.

17. TERMINATION OF PREVIOUS AGREEMENT,

Contractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement by the parties hereto, any prior written
Agreement for the provision of professional services as a Contract Public Defender for the County of lnyo
shall be terminated, and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the
County of lnyo shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this
Agreement. lt is further understood between the parties hereto that there are no oral agreements or
representations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement supersedes and
cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, and none
thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreement.

County of Inyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 6 
0609202l



18. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further,
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of County.

19. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor.

20. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-eight (29) below.

21. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or
confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express wriften
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability andAccountabilityAct of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

22. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor's performance of the work and services under
this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contracto/s ability to represent clients under this Agreement.
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agrees not to advise or represent any person,
corporation or entity with a claim or cause of action against the County of lnyo, its officers, agents, or
employees.

23. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained in
the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement.

County of Inyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

PageT
06092021



24. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of thisAgreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are severable.

25. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modiff thisAgreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notiffing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
seven (27) (Amendment).

26. RENEGOTIATION.

Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) and Schedule of Fees (Aftachment B). lf as a result of
renegotiations, both parties agree to modify the Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees, such modification must
comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-seven (27) (Amendment).

27. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

28. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to thisAgreement, including change
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required,
or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail
to, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:
Corrnfu Admin Department

Street224 North Edwards
P.O. Drawer N
M

CONTRACTOR:

Terru K- Walker Name
Street
City and State

1488 Bear Creek Drive

29

Bishop. CA 93514

ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil
County of Inyo Standard Contract -160

(Independent Conhactor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )
Page 8

06092021

City and State



Fnort: rlllltit iOlE ror dllllE l0.l0l!

O^r6rtn 
WINE88 IHEnEOF' fiE PARIIES HEREXT HAtE 8EI THEIR HAitDOAttD SEALS TH;S

collilwotnyo

AOnrEillTT rrnwEil cout{tY oF nvo
foi tHE piourso', or pnociStnlffFffffidllcorwnncr pulrc DE!!ilDln

rum

cot{tn4c'nlF

er 'rj,'fJm-\ c/r-t

APrcVEO

TOIDCOUNITNO FOR|UT

APPROVED A8 IO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

. ftuuof try! g,ndr{oonmcr_lf0
(Ind.DdGl (tnlld0r- hrbllo Dlttndr lb?y K f&!,.r,swt

0a092mt



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND IEEELSSEts

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES.

A. WARRANry. Contractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of all the other
attorneys engaged by the County to provide professional services as public defenders (hereinafter referred to
as "Contract Public Defenders") during the term of this Agreement. Such Agreements are by reference
incorporated herein as though set forth in full. Contractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult,
confer, and agree with all the other Contract Public Defenders to, and shall provide legal representation and
substitute handling and coverage of Contract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions below.
Contractor agrees and understands that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the
other Contract Public Defenders, and does not entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this
Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS.

1. "Attorney-Conflict of lnterest" cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of
another Contract Public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender.
Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable law.

2. "Time Conflict" cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Contract
Public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent
the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary
illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or attendance at attorney education courses.

C. ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CASES. Except as may be provided in F. below or
where Contractor's own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall
provide legal representation for attorney-client conflict of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts
Coverage Table, AftachmentA-1 to this Agreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.

D. TIME CONFLICT CASES. Except as may be provided in E and F below, orwhere Contractor's
own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide substitute
handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time conflict cases in accordance with
the Conflicts Coverage Table, Attachment A-1 to this Agreement.

E. TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION. Contractor shall provide coverage for time conflict cases for
which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such
other Contract Public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar
days.

F. WAIVER. The requirements for Contractor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time conflict
cases as required by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating demands
are placed upon Contractor during his/her representation of the following:

County of Inyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Conhactor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 10

0609202r



ATTACHMENT A - Gontinued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRYK.WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. A defendant charged with a Felony;

2. A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty
or life imprisonment without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;

3. A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life
imprisonment without the possibility of parole;

4. A minor or parent(s) on a Writ arising out of a dependency case in which the Contractor
represents such minor or parent(s).

G. DECLARATIONS FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER FEESAND COSTS.

1. ln the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to courl
Order, each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the
invoice represents a service provided in the defense of the mafter from which the Order issued
and shall be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B
"Schedule of Fees" paragraph 3.A.1

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing
file with the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a
Contract Public Defender, the requisite form or forms declaring the amount of time expended on
the case by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Contractor's representation of
the client, including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate
reimbursement hearings.

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code
section 987.8 or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the County for
the cost of public defender services.

4. Contractor shall provide the County copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County.

H. MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS. Contractor shall provide monthly
reports specifiTing the total hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific category of cases on
which the Contractor provides services under the terms of this Agreement. [See lntroduction paragraphs 1-
11.1 County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, which shall be transmitted in electronic format.
County is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the attorney/client
privilege or other confidentiality laws.

County of lnyo Standard Contract -160
(ndependent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page I I
06092021



ATTACHMENTA.l

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRYK.WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022TO: JUNE 30.2025

COVERAGE TABLE:

During the period of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide public defender services as set forth below:

Primary Obligations:

First Priority: Misdemeanors, South County
Dependency
Delinquency (600)
Adoptions
Conservatorship
LPS
Adoptions
3d Conflict - Misdemeanors, North County

Secondary Obligations

All other Conflict matters, including Delinquency, Dependency, Child Support, Mental
Health and Conservatorship Cases, Patient Rights Advocate Cases, AB 109 Revocation
Hearings and any other matter in which the County is obligated to provide public defender
services.

Note: The Table listed above will be followed for the majority of the cases assigned to
this Public Defender. However, a Judge, when assigning a case, willconsider
the experience, caseload, complexity of the case and prior representation of the
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the
listed sequence. ln addition, the County reserves the right to modify the conflicts
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other Public Defender
contracts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislative
changes which may impact the County's obligation to provide Public Defender
services.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(ndependent Contractor- Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 12

06092021



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRYK.WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1 COMPENSATION

County shall pay to Contractor on or before the first (1't) day of each month during the term of the
Agreement, the amount set forth below as full and complete compensation for Contractor's performance of
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Contractor:

A. From July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025: $132,000 annual / $11 ,000 per mo.

For a total amount not to exceed $396,000

2. TIME CONFLICT LIMITATION AND GOMPENSATION:

A. ln addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to provide
coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible, but for
whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not been performed or provided for
more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rate of $75.00 per hour for
those time conflict cases.

B. Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County
Administrative Officer for review and payment. The request shall include the case name and number, the
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contract Public Defender or former Contract Public
Defender subject to the time conflict, and any other information requested by the County. Contractor shall be
paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment.

3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

A. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.
"Consideration," paragraphs C and F of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized professional services
required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which Contractor is
required by this Agreement to represent. Professional services shall include, but not be limited to,
investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists,
psychiatrists, physicians, and other legal counsel with specialized expertise. Contractor shall on a case by
case basis, and prior to incurring any expense for professional services, received written authorization for
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professional services as well as the
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses for such services. County reserves the right to deny
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of
Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge. [See Attachment A "Scope of Work' paragraph G.1.]

County oflnyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Conhactor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 13

06092021



ATTACHMENT B - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRYK.WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

B. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and
Conditions, "Consideration," Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to
provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Contractor is required
by this Agreement to represent. Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any expense
for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the County that Contractor has at his/her own
expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization for
Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case. Such
authorization shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopies in excess of 5,000 pages, shall
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and the authorized cost of such copying.
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for copying expenses which are in excess
of Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, or which were incurred by the Contractor in making
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.

C. Contractors providing public defender services for cases arising under WC section 300
("dependency" cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the
event the Court reduces or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or
either the Court or County othenrvise terminates its agreement regarding the provision of these services:

The reduction will be calculated based on the Contractor's ratio of dependency related
cases to the total number of dependency related cases for which public defender
services were provided as reported on the Contract Public Defender's immediate prior
Monthly Case Report submitted under Section H of AttachmentA, and applied to the
amount that dependency funding is reduced by the Court.

ii. ln the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Contractor
shall continue to be responsible for performing all other services set forth in this
Agreement in Attachment A-1, with the exception of the representation of parties in
matters arising under WIC section 300.

County oflnyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page 14

0609202t



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TERRYK.WALKER

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICESAND SUPPLIES:

1. County will set up a Centrix phone line in Contractor's office for Contractor's use in providing the
services and work required under this Agreement. County will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone
line in Contractor's Office. However, Contractor will pay the monthly cost of this phone line plus the cost of
any calls or other services billed to this line.

2. County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to County's copying facilities for duplicating
documents, and FAX facilities for transmitting documents necessary to perform the work and services required
under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County the County's actual cost of providing such
copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.

3. lt is Contractor's obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender services
under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the California Rules of Court or local rule. ln keeping
with this obligation Contractor shall maintain an electronic record retention program for each case in which
the Contractor appears under this contract identifrTing for each case file the type of case (i.e. misdemeanor,
felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, conservatorship etc.), and the year when the individual
case is closed by Contractor.

4. ln the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to direct all active pending files to
that attorney or law firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each case and to retain
any electronic records of closed files for such time as is set by law. lt is the Contractor's obligation to
personally maintain any closed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event Contractor
is no longer able to do so.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor- Public Defender Terry K. Walker )

Page l5
06092021



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Public Defender
 

COMMENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Agreement for Public Defender Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at Law, A 
Professional Corporation of Bishop, CA for the provision of Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed 
$432,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through 
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services, 
or conflicts between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorney's ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorney's appointed by the 
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control 
by the County.

There have been several vacancies this current year, and the County Administrator met with all of the current 
Public Defenders to go over the caseloads and contract amounts. The current contract Public Defenders and her 
came to a reasonable conclusion that the caseloads between North and South County could be distributed 
differently, along with who would be considered first, second, etc. for each case being handled (felonies, 
misdemeanors, etc.).

Ms. Corpora will continue to cover South County Misdemeanors first, per her latest amendment to her current 
contract, but priorities have changed slightly as referenced in Attachment B of the contract. The dates of this new 
contract will also have the same dates as all other Public Defenders to make it easier for future County 
Administrators to work directly with them all at the same time to make sure that the caseloads and 
reimbursements are still in line.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract, however, this is not advised as this will assist in satisfying 
the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract will be included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and future budgets in the Public Defender 
Budget (022600) in Professional Service (5265). The negotiated contract amount is $12,000 per month, for a 
total not to exceed $144,000 each year.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Corpora Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/31/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/31/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

ESASA PUBLICE

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") requires professional services
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various codrti, for certain qualified indigent
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:

'l' Criminal.defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on felony charges
(hereinafter referred to as ,,Felony cases");

2' Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Gourts of lnyo County on misdemeanor
charges (hereinafter referred to as ,,Misdemeanor 

cases',);

3. Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of lnyo County for proceedings under Welfare
and lnstitutions Gode Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred tols "Delinquency
cases");

4 ' Minors anllgr parents brought before the Superior Court of lnyo County and/or appropriate
Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare anc tnititutions Code seciion 300
(hereinafter refened to as,, Dependency cases");

5' Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of lnyo County re contempt for
alleged failure to pay child support or before said court in proceedings to eitablisn paternity
and support (herelnafter referred to as ,,Child Support cales',);

6. Persons involuntarily detained by lnyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to
sections 5150 and 51 70 of the Welfare and lnsiitutions Code, or for prolonged subsequent
detention pursuant to Welfare and lnstitutions Code sections 5250, 5260; b300, s304 or
6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservalees brought before the lnyo
County SlPerior Court and/or appropriate Courls of Appeal pursuant t6 sections 5350 or
5352.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code; or persons brought before the lnyo County
Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appe'al for post acljurlication of criminal mental
health status- proceeding under Penal Coue iozo et, seq.; bhildren in proceedings to
declare child free from parental custody and control (Famity Code section Zde t;; or indigent
parents in-proceedings to declare child free from parbntaliustody and control (Camity Cide
section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedingi to terminate the p-arent's
rights for willful failure to communicate and supfort (Family Code section ZeOOy; or
conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legal capacity or unable
to retain legal counsel.and requesting the appointmlnt of couniel in'procledings to
establish a conservatorship or appoint a-proposed conservator, terminate conservatoiship,
remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a temporary conservatee
from the temporary conservatee's place of residence (Probate CoOe sl*on 1471),
[hereinafter all referred to as ,,Mental 

Health cases'];

Patients for whom the contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pu
welfare and lnstitutions code section 5520, by the tnyo couity Mental neann
(hereinafter referred to as "patient Rights Advoiate Cajes,); '

7

8.

rsuant to
Director

Persons brought before the lnyo County Superior Court for determinations and
commitments under Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter
referred to as "Sexually Violent predator cases");

(rndependent conhactor- *r,, orfililltJfjln"thtHffi[tiHHlr lf?."* o r,ofessionar Law corporarion )
Page I

06092021



9. Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the lnyo County Superior Court to the
Appellate Division of the Superior Court of lnyo County (hereinafter referred to as
"Misdemeanor Appeal cases");

1 0, Persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 1 09; and

11. Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender
services.

MEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services
described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors ("Contract Public
Defenders") to perform public defender services for the County. The purpose of said contracts for public
defender seryices is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons
appearing before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of County funds for the payment of
court appointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore as public defenders, in cases where the bonkact
Public Defenders are unable to appear due to aftorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.

WHEREAS, the county has the need for ELTZAEETH coRpoRArATTojtNEyALLAW.A
PRPFqSSPNAL goRPORAfpN of er'tlqp,'.c iOe
professional legal services as a Contract pubiic Oefender for lnyo County (North and South).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and condilions
hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:

TERMSAND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set forth
in the Scope of Work, Attachment A, attached herelo and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by
the County to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges of the'superior
Co!.rt of lnyo.County, Reguests to the Contractor for wbrk or services to be performed under this Agreement
will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or walrranty, of
any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or required of-the
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this ngreement incurs no 6Uigation or
requirement to compensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreemen[ for the
performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standar<ts established by
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such lawj,
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this
Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of thisAgreement is for the period from July 01, 2022 to June 30. 2025.

3. CONSIDERATION.

. A. _ Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees,
Attachment B, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services
and work described in Attachment A,

B' Travel and fer Piem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per
diem for any in-county travel performed by Contractor in providing services and work under ihis

County of Inyo Standard Contrac( -l 60
(lndependent Contractor- PublicDefender ElizabethCorpor4AttomcyatLaw,AProfessional LawCorporation)

Page2
0609202r



Agreement. County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized oui-of-county travel expenses and per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement. Contractor shall on a
case by case basis, and prior lo incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive written
authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-county on the case from the assigned judge. Properly
authorized ouhof-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the
same extent as Gounty reimburses its permanent status employees for such expenses, County reserves
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county kavel or per diem expenses which are either
in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status employees, or which are incurred
by Contraotor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.

C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees, Attiachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically ictentified in the
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work
under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expen'ses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies. Reimbursement lor actual costs wiil not exceed
the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D No additionalconsideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation,
salary wages, or other type of remuneration for any puOtic defenOer services provided. ln ad<tition,
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of overtime, health
insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid
holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

. ^ . E, . Eillino and paymenl. County shall pay to Gontractor the monthly payments set forth in
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contrait6r. 

-Within 
30 days of

Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a
statement to the County. The statement will iternize each incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identiff
the date and case in which the expense was incurred. The statement will initude a confbrmed copy of thi
court authorization for travel and/or incidental expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the Counly'accounting procedures and rubJ. County will make payment to
contractor for all authorized reimbursable expenseJfor which a statement is propeily submitted, 

'it 
itnin So

days of the County's receipt of such statement.

F. Federaland $tate taxes.

(t I Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Conhactoiunder the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors wheh fu is anticipated that total
annual payments to Conttactor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety
nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(gl Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments
from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agieement. Payment oi all taxes an'd other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility
or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue sirvice and the
California State Franchise Tax Board.

(rnriependent conhactor- ,.0,,, o.Slxil;fj.lil:,it.3:ffil."il#fr:,'.for.*, o o.*ssionar Law corporation )
Page 3

06092021



4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is lo perform, in a timely manne( those services and work identified in
AttachmentA. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require
a varied schedule. Gontractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of inyo
County, other lnyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to ensure
that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.

5, REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|F|CATES, AND PERMITS.

A, Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in AttachmentA must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be requireci.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Conlractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and efftct. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Conlractor at no expense to the Gounty. Gontractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of cunent and valid licenses, certiftcates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in AttachmentA. Wtrere there is a dispute between Contractor
and Coun$ as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B, Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from reCeiving federal
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Piograms
issued by the General servicesAdministration avaitable at: http://wwwsa_xngE4

6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICESAND SUPPLIES.

_ County will provide Contractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in
the Schedule of County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and-by reference
incorporated herein, County incurs no obligation or requirement to reimburse or compensate iontractor if
he/she for any reason either does not use the County provided services and suppliei, or procures similar
services and supplies from other sources.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

, Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety devices, badges, identification
cards, keys, etc., provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and it ttre termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and excluslve property of County. Contractor will use reasonable care
!o protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contiactor's possession. Contractor will be
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial oi total, which is the result of
Contractor's negligence.

8. PRODUCTS OF CONTRACTOR'S WORKAND SERVICES.

Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas,
processes., photographs,. slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer ciisfs, computer tapes,
memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visu-al presentations, exhibits, reports, stuOies,
works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are
created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are ihe result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's
services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and
exclusive propefty of the Contractor.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabcth Corpora, Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 4

0609202t



9. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above, Contractor
shallprovide all such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and books, postage,
letterhead, stationery secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services, telephone
services, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the work and services
required of Contractor by this Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense
or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services, Responsibili$ for the
costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining items or services not specifically
set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B) as lncidental Expenses, is the sole responsiOitity ani
obligation of Contractor.

'0. 
INSURANCE,

For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment E and with the provisions specified in that attachment,

11. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the perfolmance of this
Agreement, shall be perfotmed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. _Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authorig to bind or incur any obligation on tr'enaf of
County. Except as expressly provided in AttachmentA, Contractoi has no authority or iesponsibility to exercisa
any righls or po$rer vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered
an employee of Coun$. lt is understood by both Gonfactor and Coung that this Agreement shall not under
any circumstiances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.
As an independent contractor:

A. Conhactor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Alreement, shall nbt be subjected to Couniy's control
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreemenl.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not-as employees of
County,

12. DEFENSEANDINDEMNIFIGATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnifrT, and hold harmless County, its agents, oflicers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, 

-expenJes, 
and othei costs, including

litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of thii
Agreement by Contractor, or Conhactor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to defend,
indemnifiT, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees liarmless applies to anyictual or alleged
personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible oi intangible prop6rty, including the loss of use.
Conkactor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, Clmage, ioss,'tiaOility, jxpense, or oth€r
cost which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Conlractor, tris/her igents, employees,
supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose actJ or omissioni any
of them may be liable.

Gontracto/s obllgation to defend, indemnify, and hold the county, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricte-d by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

Clounty of Inyo Standard Contract-160
(Independent contractor- Public Defender Elizabeth Corpor4 Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

page 5

0609202 r



To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, offtcers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of,'or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

13. RECORDSANDAUDIT.

- A. Reg-otdS. Contractor shall prepare and maintain allrecords required by the various provisions
of thisAgreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and direitions. Contractorshall
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from tne termination or completion of thisAgreement.
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by lubstitute
photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

.B' !0Sm!!glg-endl5ud!!9. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which are not
othenuise legally privileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement,
for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such
records are to be maintained by Contractor.

C, Workload Data, Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and all workload or case
data, which is not otheruise legally privileged information upon the written request of either the County
Administrator or the Coung Board of Supervisors.

14. NONDISCRIMINATION.

Dulng the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees shall
not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or tocal law, igainst any employee, oi applicant
for employment, or person receiving services under thisAgreement, becaule of rad, religion, coton nitional
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, mirital stratus, age, or sex. Con'iractor and his/her
agents, offtcers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promuliated thereunder in the
!3]itorniS Code of Regulations. Contractor shatt atso auice uy the Federat Civit RigFts Act of 1964 (p.1, 88-
352)and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issuel pursuant to said act.

15. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may 
_be 

canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Conhactor sixty (60) days written notice of such inient to cancel. Contractor may cincel this Rgieenient
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days writteh nofice of such intent to
cancelto County.

16. TERMINATIONOFTHISAGREEMENT

Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such
compensation due, if any, prorated to the date of termination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and
inactive case files to the attorney or law office as the County Administrator shall designate in writing.

17. TERMINATIONOFPREVIOUSAGREEMENT.

. Cgltractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement by the parties hereto, any prior written
A.Orggme$ fol the provision of professional services as a dontract Pu'blic oetencer for *re cbunty of lnyo
shall be terminated, and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the
County of lnyo shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this
Agreement. lt is further understood between the parties hereto 

-that 
there are no oral agreements or

representations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement sup-ersedes and
cancels any_ and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and underitandings, if any, and none
thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreementl

(rndependent contracror- oro,," o.r?llll;,iffiiHfi:fiHffirufl.n*, ,r r,orffsional Law corporation )Page6 
a6ogzo2r



I8. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enler into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further,
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the piior wriften
consent of County.

19. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 

-

Goynty, C,ounty may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) d'ays written
notice to Contractor.

20. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

. Mivgr of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph tweng-eight (29) below.

21. CONFIDENTIALIW.

(rndepentrent conrracror - ,"0,," o"fflllt;ijlil:-tHffih"iHffituf?.o*, o ,,or.rsionar Law corporation )
Page 7

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessi-ble by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, oi
confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such infoimation and record's. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosuie in accordancJwittr llfle 45,
Code of Federal Re-gulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adoiteO pursuani
thereto. .For lhe purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and dlta elements pertiining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure,

22. CONFLIGTS.

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,
which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor's performairce of the work and services under
this.Agreement. Specific_ally, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contractor's abitity to reirbsent clients under this Agreemeni.
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agiees not to advise or represent any person,
corporation or entity with a claim or cause of aition against the County of lnyo, its officers, ag6nts, oi
employees.

23. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

.. Contractor agrees not 1o use any confidentiat, protected, or privileged information which is gained in
the course of providing services and work under this Agreemeht, foi any personal benefit, 

-gain, 
Jr

enhancement.

06092021



24. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of thisAgreementorapplication thereof to any person orcircumstance shallbe declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in conlravention of any federal, state, or county
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or th6 appllcation thereof, shail
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are severable.

25, FUNDING LIMITATION.

The abili$ of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources,
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more s6urces, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modifry this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification-
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the re-quirements of paragraph twenty-
seven (27) (Amendment).

26. RENEGOTIATION.

Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) ino Scnedirte dt f6es (Aftachment B). tf as i result of
renegotialions, both parties agree to modiff the Scope of Work and Sched-ule of Fees, such modification must
comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-seven (27) (Amendment).

27. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
gonsent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed witn the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

28. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor jr County'shall be iequire-d,
or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class maii
to, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:

Department
Street

City and State

CONTRAGTOR:

Name

Street
Ci$ and State

29. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

t

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parlies noi embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference' shall be of any ficrce or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be'changed, waiveci,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereio.ilil tilt

(rndependent contracror - 0"0,,, o.;ill%llf#f 3:[1L:ifiH;lf?."* 
^ "roresionaj 

Law corporation )
Page 8

06092021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR TH

DAYOF

ER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1. 2022TO: JUNE 30. 2025

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

COUNTYOF INYO CONTRACTOR

APPROVEDAS
LEGALITY:

ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE ENTS:

County

County of Inyo Standard Contract-160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defendsr Elizabcth Corpor4 Aftomey at Law, A Profossional Law Corporation )

Page 9
06092021

D



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR SERVIGES AS A

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1,2022TO: JUNE 30. 2025

SCOPE OF WORK:

1, PRIMARYRESPONSIBILITIES.

A. WARRANTY. Contractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of all the other
attorneys engaged by the County to provide professionalservices as public defenders (hereinafter refened to
as "Contract Public Defenders") during the term of this Agreement. Such Agreements are by reference
incorporated herein as though set forth in full. Contractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult,
confer, and agree with all the other Contract Public Defenders to, and shall provide legal representation and
substitute handling and coverage of Gonlract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions below.
Contractor egrees and understands that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the
other Contract Public Defenders, and does not entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this
Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS.

1. "Attorney-Conflict of lnterest" cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of
another Contract Public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender,
Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable taw.

2. "Time Conflict" cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Conhact
Public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent
the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary
illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or aftendance at attorney education courses.

C. ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CASES. Except as may be provided in F. beloq or
where Contractor's own aftorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall
provide legal representation for attorney-client conflicl of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts
Coverage Table, AttachmentA-1 to thisAgreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.

D. TIME CONFLICT CASES. Except as may be provided in E and F below, or where Contractor's
own attorney'client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide substitute
handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time conflict cases in accordance with
the Conflicts Coverage Table, Atachmenttul to thisAgreement.

E' TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION. Contractor shall provide coverage for time conflict cases for
which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such
other Contract Public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar
days,

F. WAIVER. The requirements for Contraclor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time conflict
cases as requhed by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating demands
are placed upon contractor during his/her representration of the following:

County of Inyo Standard Contract-160
(Independent Contractor- Public Defendel Elizabeth Corpora, Altomey at Law, AProfessional Law Corporation )

Page l0

R

06092021



ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. ATTORNEY AT LAW. A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT FUELE OEFEruDCN

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022TO: JtrNE 30.202i

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. A defendant charged with a Felony;

2. A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty
or life imprisonment without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;

3. A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life
imprisonment without the possibility of parole;

4. A minor or parent(s) on a Writ alising out of a dependency case in which the Contractor
represents such minor or parent(s).

G. DECLARATIONS FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER FEESAND COSTS.

1. ln the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to court
Order, each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the
invoice represents a service provided in the defense of the matter ftom which the Order isiued
and shall be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B
"Schedule of Fees" paragraph 3.A.1

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing
file with the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a
Contract Public Defender, the requisite forrn or forms declaring the amount of time expended on
the case by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Conkactor's representation of
the client, including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate
reimbursement hearings.

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code
section 987.8 or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the Coung for
the cost of public defender services.

4. Contractor shall provide the Gounty copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County.

H' MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS. Contractor shall provide monthly
rqports specifying the total .hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific categbry of cases on
which the Contractor provides services under the terms bf this Agreement. [Sei lntroduction faragraphs 1 -
1 1 .l County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, wnich shall be hansmitted in ebtkonic format.
CglltY is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the attorney/client
privilege or other confidentiality laws.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Conractor - Public Defcnder Elizabettr Corpor4 Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

page I I

0609202t



ATTACHMENTA.I

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR OFP NTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1. 2022 TO: JUNE 30. 202s

COVERAGE TABLE:

During the period of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide public defender services as set forth below:

Primary Obligations:

First Priority: Felonies, South County
1d Conflict- Misdemeanors, South County
2nd Conflict- Felonies, North County
Dependency - 2nd

1 
st Conflict - Conservatorship/Guardiansh ip

Secondary Obligations:

All other Conflict mafters, including Delinquency, Dependency, Child Support, Mental
Health and conservatorship cases, Patient Rights Advocate cases, AB 109 Revocation
Hearings and any other matter in which the County is obligated to provide public defender
services.

Note The Table listed above will be foltowed for the majority of the cases assigned to
this Public Defender. However, a Judge, when assigning a case, will consider
the experience, caseload, complexity of the case and pribr representation of the
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the
listed sequence. ln addition, the county reserves the right to modify the conflicts
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other public Defender
conkacts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislaiive
changes which may impact the county's obligation td provide publiC Defender
services.

County of Inyo Standud Contract -l 60
(Independent Contactor '- Public Defender Elizabcth Corpor4 Attorney at Law, A professionat Law Corporation )

Page 12

0609202 I



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR L PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY tl. 2022 TO: JUNE 30.2029

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. COMPENSATION

(rndependent conrr'ctor- oro,* o.rlllll;i#n:dtE:[if,:iHilFlf?."* n nrofessionarLaw corporation )
Page 13

06092021

. County shall pay to Contractor on or before the first (1ot) day of each month during the term of the
Agreement, the amount set forth below as full and complete compensation for Contractor'J performance of
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Conhactor:

A. From July 1,2022 through June 30, 2025: $144,000 annual/ $12,000 per mo.

For a total amount not to exceed $432,000

2. TIME CONFLICT LIMITATION AND COMPENSATION:

A' ln addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to provide
coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible,'but for
whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not bebn perf6rmed or provided for
more than thitty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rite of $75.00 per hour for
those time conflict cases.

_ 
Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County

Administrative Officer for review and payment. The request shall include the case name and numbel the
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contract Public Defender or former Contract Public
Defender subject to the time conflict, and any other information requested by the County. contractor shall be
paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment

3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

A' County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3,
"Consideration," paragraphs C and F of thisAgreement, forthe actualcost of authoi'ized professionalservices
required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which Contractor is
required by this Agreement to represent. Professional services shall include, but not be limited to,
investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists,
psychiatrists, physicians,.and other legal counsel with specialized expertise. Contractor shall'on a case by
case basis, and prior to incuning any expense for professional services, received written authorization for
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professionit servides as well as the
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses-foi such services. bounty reserves the right to deny
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of
Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assig ned Judge, [See Attach-ment A "Scope of WorlC' paragraph G.1 .]



ATTACHMENT B . Gontinued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FOR THE F A PUBLIC

TERM:

FROM: JULY t. 2022 TO: JUNE 30. 2025

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

B. Gounty will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and
Conditions, "Consideration," Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to
prwide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Contractor is required
by this Agreement to represent. Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any expense
for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the County that Contractor has it ni-smer own
expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization for
Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case. Such
authorizalion shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopiei in exc-ess of 5,000 pages, shall
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and ihe authorized cost of sricn copying.
C-ognty reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contraitor for copying expenses which are in exceJs
of Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Gontractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, oi which were incurred by the Contractor in making
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.

C. Contractors providing public defender services for cases arising under WC section 300
("dependency" cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the
event the Court reduces or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or
either the Court or County otherwise terminates its agreement regarding lhe provision of these services:

i. The reduction will be calculated based on the Contractor's ratio of dependency related
cases to the total number of dependency related cases for which public defender
services were provided as reported on the Contract Public Defender's immediate prior
Monthly Case Report submitted under Section H of AttachmentA, and applied to fhe
amount that dependency funding is reduced by the Court.

ii- ln the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Gontractor
shall continue to be responsible for performing all other services set forth in this
Ag reement in Attachment A-1 , with the exception of the representation of parties in
matters arising under WC section 300.

Counly of lnyo Standmd Contract -l 60
(lndependent Contraotor- PublicDefender Elizabeth Corpor4AttorneyatLaw,AProfessional t,arv Corporation )

page 14

06092021



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FORTHE L SERVICESAS DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1.2022 TO: JUNE 30.2025

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES:

1, Coun$ willset up a Centrix phone line in Contractor's office forGontractor's use in providing the
services and work required under thisAgreement. Coun$ will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone
line in Contractor's Office. However, Contractor will pay the monthly cost of this phone line pluJ the cost of
any calls or other services billed to this line.

?, County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to County's copying facilities for duplicating
documents, and FAX facilities ficr transmitting documents necessary to periorm the work and services required
under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County tlie County's actual cost of providing such
copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.

3, lt is Contractor's obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender servlces
under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the Galifornia Rules of Court or local rule, ln keeping
with-this obligation Contractor shall maintiain an electronic record retention program for each case in which
the Conhactor appears under this contract identifrTing for each case file the type of case (i.e. misdemeanor,
felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, cbnservatorship etc.), ani'the yearwhen the individuai
case is closed by Contractor.

4. ln the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to direct all active pending files to
lhat attorney or iaw firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each caie and lo retain
any electronic records of closed files for such time as is set by law, lt is the Contractor's obligation to
personally maintain any closed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event Contractor
is no longer able to do so.

of Inyo Standard Contraot-160
Elizaheth Corpora, Atlomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page I 5

06092021

County
(Independent Conlractor - Public Dcfcndcr



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND

FORTHE PROVISION DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: JULY l. 2022 TO: JUNE 30. 2025

FORM W.9

Request for Taxpayer
ldentification Number and Certification

(Please submitW-9form with Conhecl, available on-llne orby County)

(rndependcnt contrador- *o',"o,fillll;l1#:fElffiiltiHHl"lfr,u*,er,or.,sionarLawcorporarion)
Pege l6

06092021



ATTACHMENT E

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND FORTHE

TERM:

FROM: JULY l. 2022 To: JUNE.lg. 2025

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of Inyo SAndard Contract -160(Independent Confactor - Public Defender Elizabeth Coryora, Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )
Paga 17

06092021



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Public Defender
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Amendment #3 for Public Defender Contract
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At 
Law, A Professional Corporation of Bishop, CA for the provision of Public Defender services in an amount not to 
exceed $234,630 for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2022, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This amendment increases the contract by a total amount of $7,626. Currently Ms. Corpora's contract reimburses 
her at a monthly rate of $9,458.33. This will increase her monthly reimbursement to $12,000 per month.

There have been several vacancies this current year, and the County Administrator met with all of the current 
Public Defenders to go over the caseloads and contract amounts. The current contract Public Defenders and her 
came to a reasonable conclusion that the caseloads between North and South County could be distributed 
differently, along with who would be considered first, second, etc. for each case being handled (felonies, 
misdemeanors, etc.). 

Ms. Corpora had a change in duties as of April 1st and started providing those services, with the agreement that 
her monthly rate would increase based on that caseload. This amendment meets that criteria. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny the approval of the amendment, however this is not advised as the Public 
Defender is currently providing the additional duties. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding in the Public Defender Budget (022600) in Professional Services (5265) to cover this 
increase. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Corpora Amendment No. 3
2. Corpora Original Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/31/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/31/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/31/2022



AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Coroora. Attornev At Law. A Professional Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Elizabeth Cornora,
Attornev At [aw,. A Professional Corporation , of Bishon, California " (hereinafter referred to as

"Contractot"), have entered into an Agreement to provide professional legal services as a Contract public

Defender for lnyo County (North and South) dated June 16. 2011, tune 27. 2017. and June 9, 2020, on
county of lnyo standard contract No. 160, for the term from Julv 1. 2015 to -lg!s 30,-2o2.e.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below.

WHEREAS , such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity,

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

ln Attachment A-1, Agreement Between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A
Professional Corporation for the provlsion of professional services as a Public Defender, the following is
amended to read as follows.

Primary Obligations: South Felonies

15t Conflict South Misdemeanor

2nd Conflict North Felonies

Dependency - #2

1st Conflict Conservatorship/Guardianship

ln Attachment B, Agreement Between County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney At Law, A
Professional Corporation for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender, the following is

amended to read as follows:

1. COMPENSATION.

Change the following:

A. From July L, 2015 through March 31,2022
From April I,2022 through lune 30,2022:

$1tg,sO0 per year/$9,458 per month
$144,000 per year/$t2,000 per month

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is Aorll L,2CI22.
All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Conttact - No.Jqg_
(lndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth corpore, Attorney At Law, A professlona I Law Corporation)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Elizabeth Corpora, Attornev At Law. A professlonel Corporatlon
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAT SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

DAY OF
I

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

Byr By: t&ehA,n^
Gsn.rur. - f-

Dated:
Type or Print

Dated: 21 Ha,. &op Z
d

AND LEGALIW

D AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel rvtces

AP TO.RISK

Risk

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. _160
(hdependent contracto. - Publlc Defender Ellrabeth corpora, Attornev At Law, A p.ofesslonal Law Corporatlon)

Page 2



In the Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 16'h day of J(INE,2015an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Defender/
Corpora Contract

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Puccito approve the Agreement
between the County of lnyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at Law, a Professional
Corporation, for the provision of professional services as a Public Defender (dependency
cases, delinquency cases, child support cases, patient rights advocate cases, mental health
and conservatorship cases) for the period of July 1,2015 through June 30, 2017 in an amount
not to exceed $227,000, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this Idh

oryoy_fafle _2015

KEVIN D, CARUNCHIO
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

-.;,*,

Purchasing
Personnel
Audftor_
cAo x
Ather

2015

Routing

OATE:

By:
Patricia



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO
X Consent I Departmental ECorrespondence Action

E Scheculed Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDANUMBER

3?
E PuUtic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: fune 16,2015

SUBfECT: Approval of Agreement for Public Defender Services

DEPARTM ENTAL RECOMMEN DATION :
Recommend Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Elizabeth Corpora, Attorney at LaW a
Professional Corporatior! for the Provision of Professional Services As a Public Defender [Dependency Cases,
Delinquency Cases, Child Support Cases, Patients Rights Advocate Cases, Mental Health and Conservatorship Cases]
for the period of fuly L, 2015 through fune 30, 2A77 , in an amount not to exceed $227 ,OOO pending appropriate
signatures and adoption offuture County Budgets, and authorize the Chair to sign.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigen! and currently does so through
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services,
or conflicts exist between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorneys (,,Non-
Contract" or "Out'of-Contract" Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorneys appointed by the
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control
bythe County.

The County's current contract with attorney Elizabeth Corpora for the provision of public defender services for the
Welfare and Institutions, Family Support and fuvenile Court public defender services will be expiring fune 30,
2A75.

To ensure the provision of adequate Public Defender services, and in an effort to minimize potential conflicts (and
provide coverage when conflicts exist), the Coun!y's Public Defender contracts are generaly structured to divide
Public Defender services between the juvenile and the adult courts, and each Publicbefender is assigned primary
and secondary responsibilities; usually with priorities for conflict coverage assigned within each iesponsibility
area. In this manner, the County is able to ensure reasonable coverage for iegal rCpresentation that the County is
required to provide before the various courts for qualified indigent persons. Working with County Counsel, ihis
public defender contract and associated scope of work for the agreement presented for your Board,s
consideration today has been revised to provide greater accountability in the proviJion ofindigent iegal services,
including providing the County a means of possibly recouping public defender iosts.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract with Elizabeth Corpor4 however, this is not advised - the
contract is fair and willsatisfy the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services more efficiently and cost-
effectively than paying for out-of-contract legal services.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT :
County Counsel



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANCING:
Funding for this contract exists in the Fiscal Year 20L5-20L6 Preliminary Budge! and in the outlying years the
contract is contingent on approval offuture County Budgets,

DE PARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATII RE :
(Not to be signed
(Ihe Original plus

until all approvals are
20 copies of this document

AA -.t/ - 2?4 -

COUNTY COUNSEL:

ooltr lt1 Dat"_-|--

IATEDREEMENTSAG ANDCONTRACTS ANDORDINANCES CLOSED sEssroN REAND ITEMS be(Must
andnvlewed oounselbvapproved suDmissionto to boardplor alark,J

J{,;n
AUDITORYCONTROLLER:

epp*ft%-Dab&y't/Jaf
ITEMS (Musf be and apprcved by the auditor-controllar pior to

submrisslon to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: the director

ut' 6-

PERSONNEL AND REI3TED TTEMS (Mu3i-5e reviewed and approved by of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

r\l)l'ltO\ \l.S



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INVO
AND ELIZABETH. CORPORA. A,TTORIIEY AT LAW. A PR9FESSIONAL CORqORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") requires professionalservices
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various courts, for certain qualified indigent
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:

1. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on felony charges
(hereinafter referred to as !'Felony cases");

2. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of lnyo County on misdemeanor
charges (hereinafter referred to as "Misdemeanor cases");

3. Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of lnyo County for proceedings under Welfare
and lnstitutions Code Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred to as "Delinquency
cases");

4. Minors and/or parents brought before the Superior Court of lnyo County and/or
appropriate Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare and lnstitutions Code section
300 (hereinafter referred to as "Dependency cases");

5. Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of lnyo County re contempt for
alleged failure to pay child support or belore said court in proceedings to establish
paternity and supporl (hereinafter referred to as "Child Support cases");

6. Persons involuntarily detained by lnyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to
sections 5150 and 5170 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, or for prolonged

subsequent detention pursuant to Welfare and lnstitutions Code sections 5250, 5260,

5300, 5304 or 6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservatees brought
before the lnyo County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal pursuant to

sections 5350 or 5352.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code; or persons brought before
the lnyo.County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal for post adjudication
of criminal mental health status proceeding under Penal Code 1026 et. seq.; Children in

proceedings to declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code section
7861); or indigent parents in proceedings to declare child free'from parental custody and

control (Family Code section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedings to

terminate the parent's rights for willful failure to communicate and support (Family Code
section 7860); or conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legal

capacity or unable to retain legal counsel and requesting the appointment of counsel in

proceedings to establish a conservatorship or appoint a proposed conservator, terminate
' conservatorship, remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a

temporary conservatee from the temporary conservatee's place of residence (Probate

Code section 1471), {hereinafter all referred to as "Mental Health cases"l;

7. Patients for whom the Contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pursuant to

Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 5520, by the lnyo County Mental Health Director
(hereinafter referred to as "Patient Rights Advocate Cases");

B. Persons brought before the lnyo Gounty Superior Court for determinations and

commitments under Welfare and lnstitutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter
referred to as "Sexually Violent Predator cases");

Counry of Inyo Standard Contract -l 60

(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )
Page I

0611t5



''!

9.

10.

11.

Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the lnyo County Superior Court to the

Appellate Divlsion of the Superior Court of lnyo County (hereinafier referred to as

"Misdemeanor Appeal cases"); and

persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 109; and

Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender

services.

WHEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services

described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors ("Contract Public

OetenOersl to perform public defender services for the County. The purpose of said contracts for public

defender services is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons

"pp""ring 
before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of Gounty funds for the payment of

ibirrt app-ointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore.as public defenders, in cases where the Contract
public befenderi are unable to appear due to attorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.

WHEREAS, the County has the need lor Elizabeth Gornor?. Attorney at Law. ajroj.essi.onal

Qorporation of Bishop, CA (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor") to provide professional legal

seruices a53 Contract Public Defender for lnyo County (North and South).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions

hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set

forth in the Scope of Work, Attachment A, attiched hereto and by refe.rence incorpolated herein.

Requests by the bounty to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges.of

the'Superioi Court of lnyo County. Requests io the Contractor for work or services to be performed under

this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee

or wairanty, of any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or

iequiieO oi'tn" Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by.this. Agreement incurs no

obligation or requirement to cbmpensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreement,

tor i'tre performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement.will

be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standards established by

ippiiiJnf" federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions' Such laws,

Jii1inancer, regulaiions, and resolution-s include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this

Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement is for the period from July 1. 2015 to June 30. 2017.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees,

Attachment g, attacffid hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services

and work described in Attachment A.

B. Traveland Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per

diemforanyi@rmedbyContraclorinprovidingservicesandworkunderthis
County oflnyo Standard Contract -160

(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page2

061 1 l5



Agreement. County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized out-of-county travel expenses and
per diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement. Contractor shall
on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive
written authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-counly on the case from ihe assigned judge. Properly
authorized out-of-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the
same extent as County reimburses its permanent status emplOyees for sUch expenses. County reserves
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county travel or per diem expenses which are
either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County's permanent status employees, or which are
incurred by Contractor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.

C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically identified in the
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work
under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies, Reimbursement for actual costs will not
exceed the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation,
salary wages, or other type of remuneration for any public defender services provided. ln addition,
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of ovefiime,
health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid

holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

E. Billinq and pavment County shall pay to Contractor the monthly payments set forth in
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contractor, provided that
Contractor shall on no more frequently than a monthly basis submit to the County and/or Court a
,statement showing Contractor's charges for time and expenses as incurred if the Court has ordered the
client to pay such charges. Within 30 days of Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per
diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a statement to the County. The statement will itemize each
incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identify the date and case in which the expense was incurred.
The statement will include a conformed copy of the cou.rt authorization for travel and/or incidental
expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental expenses in accordanc'e with the County'
accounting proceduies and rules. County will make payment to Contractor for all authorized reimbursable
expenses for which a statement is properly submitted, within 30 days of the County's receipt of such
statement.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or
state income taxei or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independenl contractors when it is anticipated that total
annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred
ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments

from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility
or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Gounty to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to
non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board.

County oflnyo Standard Conhact -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corpofation )

Page 3

061115



4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in

Attachment A. lt is undeistood by Gontractor that the performance of the services and work will require a

varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of lnyo

County, other lnyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to insure

that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments, for Cbntractor to provide the serviies and work described in Attachment A must be procured

5y Contractoi and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement: Furthet during the term of

this Agreement Conlractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits.in.full force and effect.

LicenJes, certilidates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's license, professional

licenses.or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured

and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contraclor will provide County, upon

execution of this Agreemeht, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits_which are

required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor

and Countyas to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the-services identified in

Attachmeni A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal

department oi agency. Contraitor also warrants'that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving

federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement

Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://wwwepls.gov.

6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES.

County will provide Gontractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in

the Schedule 6t County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and byreference
incorporated herein. iounty incurs no obligation nor requirement to reimburse or compensate Contraclor

if helshe for any reason does not use the County provided services and supplies, or procures similar

services and supplies from other sources.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or. safety devices, badges,

identification cards, keys, etc.,-provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at

the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and ilxclusive property of County. Contractor will use

reasonable'care to proteit, safeguard and maintain such items while they.are in Con-tractor's possession.

Contractor will be financially resfonsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the

result of Contractor's negligence.

8. PRODUCTS OF CONTHACTOR'S WORK AND SERVICES.

Unless otherwise legally privileged, any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs,

specifications, blueprints, mips, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer

piograms, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-

uis,iat presentaiions, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trade.marks, copyrights, or

intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,

product, oi manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the

iermination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the Contractor.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Laq A Professional Law Corporation )

Page4

061 I 15



9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENI ETC.

Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above,

Contractor shall provide all such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and

books, postage, letterhead, stationery secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services,

telephohe seirices, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the-work

and services required of Contractor by this Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically
identified in the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor

for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services.

Respohsibiiity for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing a1! maintaining items or

services not ipecifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Ailachment B) as lncidental Expenses, is the
sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

10. WORKERS'COMPENSATPN.

To the extent required by law, Contractor shall provide statutory Galifornia Worker's Compensalion
coverage and Employe/s Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees

engaged in services-or operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents; officers and

em-ptoyees shall be named as additional insured and a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

11. INSURANCE.

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, conlract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder and the results ol that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives

or employees.

A. Minimum Scope of lnsurance. Coverage shallbe at least as broad as:

1. lnsurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG
oo01 ).

2. lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, code 1

(any auto).

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of Galifornia and Employer's
Liability lnsurance.

B. Minimum Limits of lnsurance. Contractor shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations as applicable):

$l_09-000.0q per occurrence for bodily injury personal injury and property damage. .lf
CommerCial Gerier:al Liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is
used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecUlocation or

the general aggregate limit shallbe twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $300,000.00 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Employer's Liability: $5gQJ00=49-per accident for bodily injury or disease.

4. Malpractice/ Professional Liability: $1.000.000.00 peroccurrence.

C. Deductibles and Sellinsured Retentions. Any deductibles or sellinsured retentions must be

declared io and approved by the County. At the option of the County, either the insurer shall reduce or

eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions aS respects the County, its officers, officials, employees

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
Qndependent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 5

061115



and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the County guaranteeing

pu'r.nl of U.."s and related investigaiions, claims administration, and defense expenses'

D. Other lnsurance provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are

to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The county, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

insureds *,iih respect to liability arising but of automobiles owned, leased, hired or

OonoweO UV or on'n"half of if'e Contraci-or; and with respect to liability arising out of work

or op"13tiois performeO by or on behalf of the Gontractor including materials, Pfrts..gr

equiilment turnisfred in cbnnection with such work or operations. General liability

.ou"rug; ."n be-proviOed in the form of'an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance, or

as a separate owner's policy (CG 20 10 11 B5)'

Z. For any claims related to this project,_ the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be

primary insurance as respects ttie bounty, its offiiers, otficials, employees-,. and

votuni6ert. Any insurance or self-insuranc-e maintained by the. County, its officers.,

oficiJ6, emptoy6es, or volunteers shall be excess ol the Contractor's insurance and'shall

. not contribute with it.

g. ' Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage

shall not be canieled ny iitner pirty, e"cept after thirty (30)_days prior written notice by

certified mail, return rec6ipt requested, has been given to the County.

4. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coveiage for. the .active 
negligence. of the

addition'al insured in any case *here an agreement to indemnify- the additional insured

woufO OJ invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

E. Acceptability of lnsurers. lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating

otnorcffiuntyatitsoptionmaywaivethisrequirement.

F. Verification of coverage. Contractor shall furnisfl 
. 
the County with .original certilicates and

amendai6[6E66ments effecting coverage. required.by this clause. The endorsements should be on

ffi; ilid"o 6v in" county, or if on tormJiirrerirran tn6 county's forms, provide such endorsements or

b;ti;tl th"ilont'orm-to in" 6*ntv's r"quii"r"nts. All certificates and endorsements are to be received

ffi 
"pp;;";d 

by the Cor"iv u"ior" work'commences. The county reserves.the right to require complete,

certified copies of all required insuranc" poti.ir., including endorsements affecting the coverage required

by the specifications at anY time.

12. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, his/her agenls, officers, and employees, relating to lhe performan?e ?l]hil
Agreement, sf,ln U" p"tforr6O as indelendent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees ot

C;*ty. cl;ntrjcror, by virtue of thisAgreerlnt, r,ir no authority to bind orlncur any obligation on behalf of

county. Except ur .i*pi"iilv provio6o.in Attachment A, coniractor has no authority or responsibility.to

exercise any rights 
"i li.*ii'"rit"o in ttre county. No.igent, officer, or employee of the county is to be

considered an emptoy#-oi conti".ior. it is undeistoodby both contractor and county that this Agreement

shall not under any circumstances be consirued or consid'ered to create an employer-employee relationship

or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and

services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement'

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results spe-cified in

this Agreement, and ;;""pt ; e*presily provided in_ $s A[reement, shall not be subjected to Gounty's

controlwith respect to irre inysical action or'activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - public Defend"i eUru'U"ttt Corn6ora Attomey at Law A Professional Law Corporation )

061115



C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this

Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of

County.

13. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICAilON.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees

from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and.other costs, including

litigation coslts and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance.of this

A{reement by Contractor,-or Coniractorls agents, officers, or employees- Contracto/s obligation to defend,

inlemnify, an-d hold the County, its agents, oticers, and employees harmless applies t9 any actual or alleged

personal'injury death, or damage oi destruction to tangible or intangible propeff,.including the loss of use.

bontracto/i oUtigation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, o,r other

cost which is carJsed in whole or in pari by any act or omission of the Contractor, his/her agents, employees,

supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any

of them may be liable.

. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agelts, officers, and employees

harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
,.Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and.hold harmless Contractor, its

agents, officers, and 
'employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,- judgments, liabilities'

eipenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the

active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

14. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the- various

provisions of th'ts Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.

bontractor shall mairitain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of

this Agreement. Gontractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by

substiiuting photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records'

B. lnspectiq.ns and Audits. Any authorized representative of Gounty shall have access to any

books,documen@ludirig,butnotlimitedto,financialrecordsofContractor,whichare
not otherwise legaliypiivileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, 

.

for the purposei of makinj audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such

records are to be maintained by Gontractor.

C. Workload Data. Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and all workload or case

data, which is not otnenrvise tegally privileged information upon the written request of either the County

Administrator or the County Board of Supervisors'

15. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees.shall

not unlawfully?iscriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant

for employment, or person receiving servicei under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, natio_nal

origin,'ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex- Contractor and his/her

ag6nts, officers, anb employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act

(dovernment Code section-12900, et seq.), an_d the applicable_ regulations promulgated thereunder in the

balifornia Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. BB-

852) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

PageT

061115



16. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to

Contractor sixti (OO) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement

without cause,'ariO it will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to

cancelto County.

17. TERMINATION OFTHIS AGREEMENT.

Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such

"omp"n#ion 
due, if any, prorated tittre date of teimination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and

inaciive case files to the attorney or law office as the CountyAdministrator shall designate in writing.

Should the County terminate that portion of this Agreement requiring legal sgMces in Dependency

cases, the payment for C6ntractor's serviies will be reduced by twenty percent (20%) as more particularly

discussed in Attachment B.

18. TERMINATIONOFPREVIOUSAGREEMENT.

Contractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement pythe_parties hereto, any prior ryr'Ien
Agreement for the piovision of professional seMces as a Contract Public Defender for the County of lnyo

sliall be terminated', and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the

dounty oi lnyo shalibe subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this

Agre"inent. lt is further understood between the parties hereto that there are no oral agreements or

reiresentations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement supersedes and

cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, and none

thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreement.

19. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience,-and traiiing of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor-shall not

asbign or subcontract irris Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

Furtfier, Contractor shall not aisign any mo;ries due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of CountY.

20. DEFAULT.

ll the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by

County in itimely ranner, or fails in any way as required tb conduct the work and seMces as required by..

filil County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written

notice to Contractor.

21. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any

subsequent default. Waiver or bieach of any'provision oJ this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver

oi any'otner or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-nine (29) below.

22. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordiiances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by

Contractor in the course of providing sirvices and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 8

061 I l5



or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only in compliance with law.

23. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,

which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor's performance of the work and services under
this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contractor's ability to represent clients under this Agreement.
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agrees not to advise or represent any person,

corporation or entity with a claim or cause of action against the County of lnyo, its officers, agents, or
employees.

24. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained in

the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or
enhancement.

25. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

26. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
.,ln.the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

Gontractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-nine
(29) (Amendment).

27. ATTORNEV'S FEES.

lf either of the parties hereto brings an action or proceeding against the other, including, but not
limited to, an action to enforce or declare the cancellation, termination, or revision of lhe Agreement, the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to receive from the other party all reasonable
attorney's fees and costs incurred in connection therewith.

28. RENEGOTIAilON.

Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) and Schedule of Fees (Attachment B). lf as a result of
renegotiations, both parties agree to modify the Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees, such modification

must complywith the requirements of paragraph twenty-nine (29) (Amendment).

29. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
lormalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

Counry oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 9

061 l l5



30. NoTlcE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of iddress ot eiilrei party oJring the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be

ffiii"a, or may oesire, to nijr.d, shall'be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:

Countv Administrator
224 North Edwards
P.O. N

CONTRAGTOR:

P.O; Box 1161
Eishoo. cA 93514

Department
Street

City and State

Name

Street
City and State

31. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement.oi the parties, 
-and 

no representations, inducements,

promises, or alreements otherwise betweeri the parties noi embodied herein or incorporated herein by

ietereniq shalibe ot-Jnv ioice oi efec. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

Oisctrjrge'd, or terminatedl unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ttil lltl

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 10

061 I 15



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND
CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDERFORTHE PROVISION PRO SERVICESASA

TERM:

FRoM: J91il'?9l5- ro: JtlNE4€12

IN PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THB L 
T

DAYOF

COUNTYOFII.IYO

APPROVEDASTO FORMAND
LEGALITY:

ASTOACCOUNTING

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS;

dg/ConlractdPubDeferder/Elizabeth Oorpora 0611 15

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Conhactor - Publio Defendei Elizabcth Corpora Attorney at taw, A Professional Law Corporadon )

Page l1

*.'

06lll5



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AN D ELTZAB ETH CO RPORA ATTORN EY AT LAW A PROFESSIONAL L4W,.qO R PO RATIO N

FffiF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30' 2017

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. PRIMARYRESPONSIBILITIES.

A. WARRANTY Gontractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of allthe other

uttorn"yr engaged by the County to provide professional services as public defenders (hereinafter referred to

is "Contract-p-unncbefenders') during the term of this Agreement. Such Agreements are by reference
'rntorporated herein as though sbt forth-in full. Gontractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult,

Confri and agree with all t[e other Contract Public Defenders, and shall provide legal representation and

substiiute franlOling and coverage of Contract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions. be-loy.

Contractor agreeJand understa-nds that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the

other Contrait public Defenders, and does noi entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this

Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS.

1. "Attorney-Gonflict of lntbrest" cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of

another Contiact public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender.

Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable law.

Z. ,,Time Conflict" cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Contract
public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent

the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary

illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or attendance at attorney education courses'

c. ATTORNEY-GL|ENT CONFLTCT OF INTEREST CASES. Except as may be provided in F. below, or

where Contractor's own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall

provide legal representation for-attorney-client conflict of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts

bou"r"ge iable,'AttachmentA-1 to this Agreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.

D. TIME CONFLICT CASES. Except as may be provided in E and F beloW or where Contractor's

own aftorney-client conflict of interest'or time conilict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide.substitute

handling and coverage of court calendars and legal repr6sentation in time conflict cases in accordance with

the Conflicts Coverage Table, AttachmentA-1 to this Agreement.

E. TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION. Contractor shall provide coverage for time conflict cases for

which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such

other Contract public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thirty (30) consecutive

calendar days.

F. WAIVER. The requirements for Contractor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time

conflict cases as required by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating

demands are placed'upon Contractor during his/her representation of the following:

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page12

061 I 15



G

ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND EL|ZABETH COBPORA. ATTORNEY AT LAW. A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

FROM:

TERM:

Julv 1. 2015 TO: JUNE 30. 2017

SCOPE OFWORK:

1. A defendant charged with a Felony;

2. A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty or
life imprisonment without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;

3. A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life
imprisonment without the possibility of parole;

4. A minor or parent(s) on a Writ arising out ol a dependency case in which the Gontractor
represents such minor or parent(s).

DECLARATIONS AND STATEMENTS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF PUBLIC DEFENDER FEES
AND COSTS.

1. ln the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to court Ordel
each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the invoice
represents a seruice provided in the defense of the matter from which the Order issued and shall
be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B "Schedule of Fees'
paragraph 3.A.1

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing file
wilh the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a Contract
Public Defender, the requisite form or forms declaring the amount of time expended on the case
by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Contractor's represenlation of the client,
including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate reimbursement
hearings.

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code
section 987.B or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the County for the

. cost of public defender services.

4. Contractor shall prepare and submit to the County and the Gourt statemenls, no more frequently
than monthly, showing time and cost charges as incurred for those cases in which the court has
ordered that Contractor's client is responsible to pay for such charges.

5. Contractor shall provide the County copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County.

H. MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS. Contractor shall provide monthly
reports specifying the total hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific category of cases on
which the Contractor provides services under the terms of this Agreement. [See lntroduciion paragraphs 1-

11.1 County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, which shall be transmitted in electronic
format. County is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the
attorney/client privilege or other conf identiality laws.

County of Inyo Standard Contract -1 60
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page l3

061115



ATTACHMENTA-1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. ATTORNEYAT LAW. APROFESSIONAL CORPORAtrION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSTONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE30.2017

COVERAGETABLE:

During the period of this Agreement, Gontractor shall provide legal representation for attorney-client conflict
of interest cases, and substitute handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time
conflict cases as required by this Agreement, in the following tlpes of cases and in the following priority
among other Contract Public Defenders:

Primary Obligations: Dependency Cases
Delinquency Cases
Child Support Cases
Patient's Rights Advocacy Cases
Mental health and Conservatorship Cases

Secondary Obligations: Allother Conflict matters, including felony, misdemeanor, sexually
violent predator cases, AB 109 Revocation Hearings and any other
matter in which the Gounty is obligated to provide public defender
services.

Note: The Table listed above will be followed for the'majority of the cases assigned to
this Public Defender. However, a Judge, when assigning a case, will consider the
experience, caseload, complexity of the case and prior representation of the
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the
listed sequence. ln addition, the County reserves the right to modify the conflicts
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other Public Defender
contracts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislative
changes which may impact the County's obligation to provide Public Defender
services.

(rndependenr contractor- pouri. o"?"xlYiltiilLi 3lH"x""ilffil;lfl,o or-r*sionar Law corporarion )
Page 14

061 I l5



ATTACHMENT B.

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

A.
B.

AND
FOR PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30,2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. COMPENSATION:

County shall pay to Gontractor on or before the first (t') day of each month during the term ol the
Agreement, the amount set forth below as fulland complete compensation for Contractor's performance of
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Contractor:

From July 1 , 201 5 through June 30, 201 7;$11 3,500 per year/$9,458 per month,
ln the event the Gounty terminates that portion of the contract requiring services in
Dependency Cases, Contractor's compensation will be adjusted downward by 20% to
$90,800 a yearl$7,567 per month.

2. TIME CONFLICT LIMITATION AND GOMPENSATION:

A. ln addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to
provide coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible,
but for whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not been performed or
provided for more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rate of $75.00
per hour for those time conflict cases.

B. Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County
Administrative Officer for review and payment, The request shall include the case name and number, the
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contracl Public Defender or former Contract
Public Defender subject to the time conflict, arid any other information requested by the County. Contractor
shall be paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment.

3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

A. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.
"Consideration," paragraphs C and F of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized professional

services required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which
Contractor is required by this Agreement to represent. Professional services shall include, but not be limited
to, investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists,
psychiatrists, physicians, and other legal counsel with specialized expertise. Contractor shall on a case by
case basis, and prior to incurring any expense for professional services, receive written authorization for
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professional services as well as the
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses for such services. County reserves the right lo deny
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of
Contractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge. [See Attachment A "Scope of Work" paragraph G1.]

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Laq A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 15

061 I 15



AilTACHMENT B - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. AfiORNEY AT LAW. A.PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2015 TO: JUNE 30.2017

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

B. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and
Conditions, "Consideration," Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to
provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Gontractor is required
by this Agreement to represent. Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any
expense for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the Oounty that Contractor has at
his/her own expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization
for Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case. Such
authorization shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopies in excess of 5,000 pages, shall
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and the authorized cost of such copying.
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for copying expenses which are in excess
of Gontractor's actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, or which were incurred by the Contractor in making
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.

C. Gontractors providing public defender services for cases arising under WIC section 300
("dependency''cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the
event the Court reducbs or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or
either the Court or County otherwise terminates its agreement regarding the provision of these services:

i. The reduction will be the amount set forth above in section 17 Termination of this
Agreement and in Schedule B Compensationparagraph 1. B.

ii. ln the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Contractor
. shall continue to be responsible for performing all other seruices set forth in this

Agreement in Attachment A-1, with the exception of the r'epresentation of parties in
matters arising under WIC section 300.

County oflnyo Standard Contract -160
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attomey at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 1 6

061 I 15



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ELIZABETH CORPORA. ATTORNEY AT LAW. A PROFESSIONAL CORPORAtrION

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1. 5 TO: JUNE 30.2017

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES:

1. County will set up a Centrix phone line in Contractor's office for Contractor's use in providing the
services and work required under this Agreement. County will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone

line in Gontractor's Office. However, Contractor. will pay the monthly cost of this phone line plus the cost of
any calls or other services billed to this line.

2. County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to County's copying facilities for duplicating
documents, and FAX facilities for transmitting documents necessary to perform the work and seMces
required under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County the County's actual cost of providing

such copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.

3. lt is Contractor's obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender
services under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the California Rules of Court or local rule. ln
keeping with this obligation Contractor shall maintain an electronic record retention program for each case in
which the Contractor appears under this contract identifying for each case file the type of case (i.e.

misdemeanor, felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, conservatorship etc.), and the year when
the individual case is closed by Contractor.

4. ln the event of termination of this Agreement, Gontractor agrees to direct all active pending files to
that attorney or law firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each case and to retain

any electronic records of closed files lor such time as is set by law. lt is the Contractorrs obligation to
personally maintain any clqsed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event
Contractor is no longer able to do so.

County of lnyo Standard Contract -1 60
(Independent Contractor - Public Defender Elizabeth Corpora Attorney at Law, A Professional Law Corporation )

Page 17

061I l5



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Public Defender
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Agreement for Public Defender Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Mark A. Johnson of Atwater, CA for the 
provision of Public Defender services in an amount not to exceed $493,650 for the period of June 14, 2022 
through June 30, 2025 , contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County is required to provide Public Defender services for the indigent, and currently does so through 
independent contracts with qualified attorneys. If the County fails to provide adequate Public Defender Services, 
or conflicts between the County's Contract Public Defenders, the Court may appoint other attorney's ("Non-
Contract" or "Out-of-Contract Public Defenders) to provide indigent legal services. Attorney's appointed by the 
Court as Out-of-Contract Public Defenders are entitled to charge the County at a rate set without input or control 
by the County.

As of June 1, 2022, one of the Public Defender contracts became vacant. Mr. Johnson has had previous 
experience as a Public Defender and turned in a letter of interest to fill the contract position. After discussion with 
the County Administrator the decision was made to move forward with entering into a contract with Mr. Johnson. 
His priority obligation will be North County felony appointments. All other obligations are listed in Attachment B. 
This contract will round out all of the other contracts to make sure that all obligations of the Public Defenders are 
covered. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract, however, this is not advised as this will assist in satisfying 
the County's obligation to provide indigent legal services. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
Funding for this contract will be included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and future budgets in the Public Defender 
Budget (022600) in Professional Service (5265). The negotiated contract amount is $13,500 per month, for a 
total not to exceed $162,000 each year. The first month of the contract will be pro-rated at an amount of $7,650.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Johnson Contract 06.14.2022
2. Insurance_2
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/31/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/31/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/1/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/1/2022



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 1 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND MARK A. JOHNSON  

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) requires professional services 
for the purpose of providing legal representation before the various courts, for certain qualified indigent 
persons who fall within any of the following classifications:  
 

1. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of Inyo County on felony charges 
(hereinafter referred to as “Felony cases”); 

 
2. Criminal defendants brought before the Superior Courts of Inyo County on misdemeanor 

charges (hereinafter referred to as “Misdemeanor cases”); 
 

3. Minors brought before the Juvenile Court of Inyo County for proceedings under Welfare 
and Institutions Code Sections 601 and 602 (hereinafter referred to as “Delinquency 
cases”);  

 
4. Minors and/or parents brought before the Superior Court of Inyo County and/or appropriate 

Courts of Appeal for proceedings under Welfare and Institutions Code section 300 
(hereinafter referred to as “Dependency cases”);  

 
5. Persons ordered to show cause before the Superior Court of Inyo County re contempt for 

alleged failure to pay child support or before said court in proceedings to establish paternity 
and support (hereinafter referred to as “Child Support cases”); 

 
6. Persons involuntarily detained by Inyo County for treatment and evaluation pursuant to 

sections 5150 and 5170 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, or for prolonged subsequent 
detention pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code sections 5250, 5260, 5300, 5304 or 
6500; or proposed L.P.S Conservatees and L.P.S. Conservatees brought before the Inyo 
County Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal pursuant to sections 5350 or 
5352.1 of the Welfare and Institutions Code; or persons brought before the Inyo County 
Superior Court and/or appropriate Courts of Appeal for post adjudication of criminal mental 
health status proceeding under Penal Code 1026 et. seq.; Children in proceedings to 
declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code section 7861); or indigent 
parents in proceedings to declare child free from parental custody and control (Family Code 
section 7860); or indigent non-custodial parents in proceedings to terminate the parent’s 
rights for willful failure to communicate and support (Family Code section 7860); or 
conservatees, proposed conservatees, or persons alleged to lack legal capacity or unable 
to retain legal counsel and requesting the appointment of counsel in proceedings to 
establish a conservatorship or appoint a proposed conservator, terminate conservatorship, 
remove the conservator, or obtain an order authorizing removal of a temporary conservatee 
from the temporary conservatee’s place of residence (Probate Code section 1471), 
[hereinafter all referred to as “Mental Health cases”];  

 
7. Patients for whom the Contractor is appointed the patients rights advocate pursuant to 

Welfare and Institutions Code Section 5520, by the Inyo County Mental Health Director 
(hereinafter referred to as “Patient Rights Advocate Cases”);  

 
8. Persons brought before the Inyo County Superior Court for determinations and 

commitments under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 6600 et seq. (hereinafter 
referred to as “Sexually Violent Predator cases”);  

 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 2 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

9. Persons taking misdemeanor criminal appeals from the Inyo County Superior Court to the 
Appellate Division of the Superior Court of Inyo County (hereinafter referred to as 
“Misdemeanor Appeal cases”);  

 
10. Persons requiring Public Defender representation under the provisions of AB 109; and 
 
11. Any other persons for whom the County is statutorily required to fund Public Defender 

services. 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has by contract divided performance of the required professional services 
described above between private attorneys retained as independent contractors (“Contract Public 
Defenders”) to perform public defender services for the County.  The purpose of said contracts for public 
defender services is to provide competent and effective legal representation to qualified indigent persons 
appearing before the various courts and to minimize the expenditure of County funds for the payment of 
court appointed private attorneys appearing pro tempore as public defenders, in cases where the Contract 
Public Defenders are unable to appear due to attorney-client and/or time conflicts of interest.  
 
 WHEREAS, the County has the need for Mark A Johnson  of  Atwater, CA   (hereinafter referred 
to as “Contractor”) to provide professional legal services as a Contract Public Defender for Inyo County 
(North and South).  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, the County and Contractor agree as follows:  
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK.  
 
 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, all of those services and work set forth 
in the Scope of Work, Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by 
the County to the Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by the judges of the Superior 
Court of Inyo County. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement 
will be based upon the County’s need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of 
any nature, as to the level or amount of services or work which will be requested or required of the 
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or 
requirement to compensate Contractor, over and above that provided for in this Agreement, for the 
performance of any services or work required to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.   
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County’s request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and professional standards established by 
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, 
ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this 
Agreement.  
 
2. TERM.  
 
 The term of this Agreement is for the period from   June 14, 2022   to June 30, 2025. 
 
 3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.     County shall pay Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees, 
Attachment B, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein, for the performance of the services 
and work described in Attachment A.   
 
 B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed travel expenses or per 
diem for any in-county travel performed by Contractor in providing services and work under this  



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 3 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

Agreement.  County shall reimburse Contractor for Court authorized out-of-county travel expenses and per 
diem which Contractor incurs in providing work and services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall on a 
case by case basis, and prior to incurring any out-of-County travel expenses or per diem, receive written 
authorization for Contractor to travel out-of-county on the case from the assigned judge.  Properly 
authorized out-of-county travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the 
same extent as County reimburses its permanent status employees for such expenses.  County reserves 
the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for out-of-county travel or per diem expenses which are either 
in excess of the amounts that may be paid to County’s permanent status employees, or which are incurred 
by Contractor without the prior authorization of the assigned judge.  
 
 C. Incidental Expenses.  County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the 
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, for those incidental expenses which are specifically identified in the 
Schedule of Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work 
under this Agreement.  Reimbursement by County for such incidental expenses will be limited to 
Contractor’s actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor 
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies.  Reimbursement for actual costs will not exceed 
the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.  
 
 D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, 
Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, 
salary, wages, or other type of remuneration for any public defender services provided.  In addition, 
Contractor shall not, by virtue of this Agreement, be entitled to consideration in the form of overtime, health 
insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid 
holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.  
 
 E. Billing and payment. County shall pay to Contractor the monthly payments set forth in 
the Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, without any billing or statement from Contractor.  Within 30 days of 
Contractor incurring any authorized incidental, travel, or per diem expenses, Contractor shall submit a 
statement to the County.  The statement will itemize each incidental, travel, or per diem expense and identify 
the date and case in which the expense was incurred.  The statement will include a conformed copy of the 
court authorization for travel and/or incidental expenses and receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental 
expenses in accordance with the County’ accounting procedures and rules.  County will make payment to 
Contractor for all authorized reimbursable expenses for which a statement is properly submitted, within 30 
days of the County’s receipt of such statement.  

 
F. Federal and State taxes.  

 
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.  
 
(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total 
annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety 
nine dollars ($1,499.00).  
 
(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments 
from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility 
or liability for payment of Contractor’s taxes or assessments.   
 
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the 
California State Franchise Tax Board.  
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 4 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

4. WORK SCHEDULE.  
 
 Contractor’s obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A. It is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require 
a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with the courts of Inyo 
County, other Inyo County Contract Public Defenders, other counsel, and parties, as necessary, to ensure 
that all services and work under this Agreement will be performed in a timely manner.  
 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.  
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
  
 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal 
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs 
issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
 
6. COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES.  
 
 County will provide Contractor with those services and supplies which are specifically identified in 
the Schedule of County Provided Services and Supplies, Attachment C, attached hereto and by reference 
incorporated herein.  County incurs no obligation or requirement to reimburse or compensate Contractor if 
he/she for any reason either does not use the County provided services and supplies, or procures similar 
services and supplies from other sources.  
 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety devices, badges, identification 
cards, keys, etc., provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  Contractor will use reasonable care 
to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor’s possession.  Contractor will be 
financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of 
Contractor’s negligence.  
 
8.  PRODUCTS OF CONTRACTOR’S WORK AND SERVICES.  
 
 Any and all compositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas,  
processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, 
memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, 
works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are 
created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor’s 
services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and 
exclusive property of the Contractor.   

http://www.sam.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 5 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.  
 
 Except for the County Provided Services and Supplies provided for in Section 6 above, Contractor 
shall provide all such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials and books, postage, 
letterhead, stationery, secretarial services, receptionist services, legal assistant services, telephone 
services, duplicating services, and case storage facilities as are necessary to provide the work and services 
required of Contractor by this Agreement.  Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the 
Schedule of Fees, Attachment B, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense 
or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items or services.  Responsibility for the 
costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in providing and maintaining items or services not specifically 
set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B) as Incidental Expenses, is the sole responsibility and 
obligation of Contractor.  
 
10. INSURANCE. 

 
For the duration of this Agreement, Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and 

amount specified in Attachment E and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  
 

11. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 
 
 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise 
any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered 
an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under 
any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  
As an independent contractor: 
 
 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control 
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
12. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees 
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including 
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of this 
Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees.  Contractor's obligation to defend, 
indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or alleged 
personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use.  
Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or other 
cost which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, his/her agents, employees, 
supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or omissions any 
of them may be liable. 
 
 Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees 
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this 
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 6 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

 To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its 
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, 
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the 
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees. 
 
13. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions 
of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  Contractor shall 
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.  
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute 
photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which are not 
otherwise legally privileged information, and which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, 
for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such 
records are to be maintained by Contractor.   
 
 C. Workload Data.  Contractor shall promptly provide to County any and all workload or case 
data, which is not otherwise legally privileged information upon the written request of either the County 
Administrator or the County Board of Supervisors.  
 
14. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, his/her agents, officers, and employees shall 
not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant 
for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and his/her 
agents, officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 
15. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving sixty (60) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 
 
16. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
 Upon the termination of this Agreement or any extension thereof, County shall pay Contractor such 
compensation due, if any, prorated to the date of termination; and Contractor shall deliver all active and 
inactive case files to the attorney or law office as the County Administrator shall designate in writing.  
 
17. TERMINATION OF PREVIOUS AGREEMENT.  
 
 Contractor agrees that upon the execution of this Agreement by the parties hereto, any prior written 
Agreement for the provision of professional services as a Contract Public Defender for the County of Inyo 
shall be terminated, and the consideration for the continued representation of clients in the courts of the 
County of Inyo shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement as of the effective date of this 
Agreement.  It is further understood between the parties hereto that there are no oral agreements or 
representations between the parties affecting this Agreement and that this Agreement supersedes and 
cancels any and all previous negotiations, arrangements, agreements and understandings, if any, and none 
thereof shall be used to interpret or construe this Agreement.  



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 7 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

 
18. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  Further, 
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of County. 
 
19. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  
 
20. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-eight (29) below. 
 
21. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or 
confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
  
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
22. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Contractor agrees that he/she has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, 
which would conflict in any manner or degree with Contractor’s performance of the work and services under 
this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor agrees not to engage in any private legal representations of any 
matter which would conflict or interfere with Contractor’s ability to represent clients under this Agreement.  
Additionally, Contractor, during the term of this Agreement agrees not to advise or represent any person, 
corporation or entity with a claim or cause of action against the County of Inyo, its officers, agents, or 
employees.  
 
23.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained in 
the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, or 
enhancement.  
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 8 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

24. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county 
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall 
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this 
Agreement are severable. 
 
25. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification  
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
seven (27) (Amendment). 
 
26. RENEGOTIATION.  
  
 Either the County or the Contractor may, upon sixty (60) days written notice, initiate renegotiation of 
the Scope of Work (Attachment A and A-1) and Schedule of Fees (Attachment B).  If as a result of 
renegotiations, both parties agree to modify the Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees, such modification must 
comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-seven (27) (Amendment). 
 
27. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
28. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, 
or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail 
to, the respective parties as follows: 
 
   COUNTY OF INYO: 
   County Administrator   Department 
   224 North Edwards   Street 
   P.O. Drawer N     
   Independence, CA 93526  City and State 
 
   CONTRACTOR: 
 
   Mark A. Johnson            _______             Name 
   2006 Bridgewater Street            Street 
   Atwater, CA 95301      City and State 
 
29. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  
   
   ////       //// 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 9 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS              
DAY OF  _______________________________.                                             
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:                                    By:                                               
                                                                                                                            Signature  
 

Dated:                                                        _____________________   
       
       Dated:                                                          
 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND      
LEGALITY: 
                   
 
__________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
 
                                                              
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
                          
County Risk Manager 
 

 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 10 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 

 SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
1. PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES. 
 
A.     WARRANTY.      Contractor warrants that he/she has read and reviewed the contracts of all the other 
attorneys engaged by the County to provide professional services as public defenders (hereinafter referred to 
as “Contract Public Defenders”) during the term of this Agreement.  Such Agreements are by reference 
incorporated herein as though set forth in full.  Contractor agrees and understands that he/she shall consult, 
confer, and agree with all the other Contract Public Defenders to, and shall provide legal representation and 
substitute handling and coverage of Contract Public Defender cases as required by the provisions below.  
Contractor agrees and understands that these provisions are of mutual benefit to Contractor and each of the 
other Contract Public Defenders, and does not entitle Contractor to any additional compensation under this 
Agreement.   
 
B.   DEFINITIONS.  
 
 1.     “Attorney-Conflict of Interest” cases are those that would be within the primary responsibilities of 

another Contract Public Defender but for an attorney-client conflict of interest of that public defender.  
Attorney-client conflicts are those that are defined and recognized by applicable law.   

 
              2.    “Time Conflict” cases are those that are within the primary responsibilities of another Contract 

Public Defender who is unable to fulfill his/her contractual duties to attend the courts and represent 
the clients in such cases for whatever reason including, but not limited to vacations, temporary 
illnesses, conflicting court calendars, or attendance at attorney education courses.   

 
C.    ATTORNEY-CLIENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST CASES.     Except as may be provided in F. below, or 
where Contractor’s own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall 
provide legal representation for attorney-client conflict of interest cases in accordance with the Conflicts 
Coverage Table, Attachment A-1 to this Agreement, attached hereto and by referenced incorporated herein.   
 
D.    TIME CONFLICT CASES.     Except as may be provided in E and F  below, or where Contractor’s 
own attorney-client conflict of interest or time conflict prohibits such, Contractor shall provide substitute 
handling and coverage of court calendars and legal representation in time conflict cases in accordance with 
the Conflicts Coverage Table, Attachment A-1 to this Agreement.  
 
E.    TIME CONFLICT CASES LIMITATION.     Contractor shall  provide coverage for time conflict cases for 
which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible but for whatever reason, the duties of such 
other Contract Public Defender cannot performed for a period of not more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar 
days.   
  
F.     WAIVER.     The requirements for Contractor to handle attorney-client conflict of interest and time conflict 
cases as required by this Agreement may be waived by the County Administrator where extenuating demands 
are placed upon Contractor during his/her representation of the following:  



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 11 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT A - Continued 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
  

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

1. A defendant charged with a Felony; 
 

2.  A defendant charged with a capitol or other serious offense in which the death penalty 
or life imprisonment  without possibility of parole is a possible sanction;  

 
               3.  A minor, who, if charged and tried as an adult, may face the death penalty or life  

imprisonment without the possibility of parole;  
 

4.   A  minor or parent(s) on a Writ arising out of a dependency case in which the Contractor 
represents such minor or parent(s).    

 
G.         DECLARATIONS FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER FEES AND COSTS. 
 

1. In the event Contractor seeks reimbursement for costs spent in defense pursuant to court 
Order, each invoice submitted for payment shall be accompanied by a declaration affirming the 
invoice represents a service provided in the defense of the matter from which the Order issued 
and shall be signed by the attorney seeking payment of the invoice. [See Attachment B 
“Schedule of Fees” paragraph 3.A.] 
 

2. Pursuant to Penal Code section 987.8 Contractor shall prior to disposition or the final hearing 
file with the appointing court in each and every case in which Contractor appeared as a 
Contract Public Defender, the requisite form or forms declaring the amount of time expended on 
the case by Contractor and any costs incurred in connection with Contractor’s representation of 
the client, including but not limited to any expert or investigative fees and costs, to facilitate 
reimbursement hearings.  
 

3. Contractor shall provide needed documentation required by the reviewing court to support the 
value of all public defender services for which reimbursement is sought pursuant to Penal Code 
section 987.8 or any other provision of law providing for the reimbursement to the County for 
the cost of public defender services. 
 

4. Contractor shall provide the County copies of any forms or declarations provided to the court 
under this section in electronic format and at intervals specified by the County. 

 
 H.          MONTHLY CASE REPORTING OF HOURS AND COSTS.   Contractor shall provide monthly 
reports specifying the total hours and costs expended by Contractor for each specific category of cases on 
which the Contractor provides services under the terms of this Agreement.  [See Introduction paragraphs 1-
11.] County may provide Contractor the format for such reports, which shall be transmitted in electronic format.  
County is not requesting, nor shall Contractor provide, information which is protected by the attorney/client 
privilege or other confidentiality laws. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 12 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT A-1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
                 

COVERAGE TABLE: 
  
During the period of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide public defender services as set forth below:  
 
 Primary Obligations: 
   
  First Priority:  Felony Appointments, North County  
  First Priority:  Sexually Violent Predator Cases 
  Second Priority:  1st Conflict – North Misdemeanor 
     2nd Conflict – South Felonies 
  Third Priority:  Dependency – 4th 
   

Secondary Obligations:  
 

All other Conflict matters, including Delinquency, Dependency, Child Support, Mental 
Health and Conservatorship Cases, Patient Rights Advocate Cases, AB 109 Revocation 
Hearings and any other matter in which the County is obligated to provide public defender 
services. 

 
Note: The Table listed above will be followed for the majority of the cases assigned to 

this Public Defender.  However, a Judge, when assigning a case, will consider 
the experience, caseload, complexity of the case and prior representation of the 
same client, which may result in a Public Defender assigned a case out of the 
listed sequence. In addition, the County reserves the right to modify the conflicts 
coverage table as necessary to make consistent with other Public Defender 
contracts as they may be amended and as necessary to address legislative 
changes which may impact the County’s obligation to provide Public Defender 
services. 

 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 13 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
 
1. COMPENSATION: 
 
 County shall pay to Contractor on or before the first (1st) day of each month during the term of the 
Agreement, the amount set forth below as full and complete compensation for Contractor’s performance of 
all of the work and services required to be performed during that month by Contractor:  
 

A. From June 14, 2022 through June 30, 2025:   $162,000 annual / $13,500 per mo.  
(1st Month Prorated) 
 
For a total amount not to exceed $493,650  

 
2. TIME CONFLICT LIMITATION AND COMPENSATION:   
 
 A. In addition to the compensation set out in Section 1 above, if Contractor is required to provide 
coverage for time conflict cases for which another Contract Public Defender is primarily responsible, but for 
whatever reason the duties of such other Contract Public Defender have not been performed or provided for 
more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, the Contractor is entitled to the rate of $75.00 per hour for 
those time conflict cases.  
 
 B.  Any requests for compensation under this section shall be submitted monthly to the County 
Administrative Officer for review and payment.  The request shall include the case name and number, the 
hours worked, a brief description of services provided, the Contract Public Defender or former Contract Public 
Defender subject to the time conflict, and any other information requested by the County.  Contractor shall be 
paid within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment. 
  
3. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES: 
 
 A. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Section 3. 
“Consideration,” paragraphs C and F of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized professional services 
required to provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person which Contractor is 
required by this Agreement to represent.  Professional services shall include, but not be limited to, 
investigators, photographers, accident reconstruction experts, chemists, criminalists, psychologists, 
psychiatrists, physicians, and other legal counsel with specialized expertise.  Contractor shall on a case by 
case basis, and prior to incurring any expense for professional services, received written authorization for 
Contractor to engage the providers of specific professional services from the Judge assigned to the case.  
Such authorization shall specifically approve engaging each provider of professional services as well as the 
amount of any fees, costs, and other expenses for such services.  County reserves the right to deny 
reimbursement to Contractor for the expenses of professional services which are either in excess of 
Contractor’s actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor 
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge.  [See Attachment A “Scope of Work” paragraph G.1.] 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 14 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT B - Continued 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 

 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
 
 

B. County will reimburse Contractor in accordance with the provisions of Terms and 
Conditions, “Consideration,” Sections 3C. and 3F. of this Agreement, for the actual cost of authorized 
document photocopying which is in excess of 5,000 pages in any single case, and which is required to 
provide an adequate and competent defense and representation of a person whom Contractor is required 
by this Agreement to represent.  Contractor shall on a case by case basis, and prior to incurring any expense 
for reimbursable photocopying, provide documentation to the County that Contractor has at his/her own 
expense made 5,000 copies of documents in a single case, and received written authorization for 
Contractor to incur reimbursable photocopying expenses from the Judge assigned to the case.  Such 
authorization shall specifically approve incurring expenses for photocopies in excess of 5,000 pages, shall 
set forth the number of additional pages authorized to be copied, and the authorized cost of such copying.  
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for copying expenses which are in excess 
of Contractor’s actual costs, or the amount authorized by the Judge, or which were incurred by Contractor 
without the prior authorization of the assigned Judge, or which were incurred by the Contractor in making 
the first 5,000 photocopy pages in any single case.  

 
C.         Contractors providing  public defender services for cases arising under WIC section 300 

(“dependency” cases),will have their compensation set forth in this Attachment B Section 1 reduced in the 
event the Court reduces or eliminates its contribution toward the cost of such public defender services, or 
either the Court or County otherwise terminates its agreement regarding the provision of these services: 

 
i. The reduction will be calculated based on the Contractor’s ratio of dependency related 

cases to the total number of dependency related cases for which public defender 
services were provided as reported on the Contract Public Defender’s immediate prior 
Monthly Case Report submitted under Section H of Attachment A, and applied to the 
amount that dependency funding is reduced by the Court.   
 

ii. In the event of termination of representation in dependency related cases, Contractor 
shall continue to be responsible for performing all other services set forth in this 
Agreement in Attachment A-1, with the exception of the representation of parties in 
matters arising under WIC section 300.     



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 15 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON  

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 

SCHEDULE OF COUNTY PROVIDED SERVICES AND SUPPLIES: 
 

1.  County will set up a Centrix phone line in Contractor’s office for Contractor’s use in providing the 
services and work required under this Agreement.  County will pay the reasonable cost of installing this phone 
line in Contractor’s Office.  However, Contractor will pay the monthly cost of this phone line plus the cost of 
any calls or other services billed to this line.   
 
2. County will provide Contractor with reasonable access to County’s copying facilities for duplicating 
documents, and FAX facilities for transmitting documents necessary to perform the work and services required 
under this Agreement. Contractor will promptly pay to County the County’s actual cost of providing such 
copying and FAX services and facilities to Contractor.   
 
3.       It is Contractor’s obligation to maintain his/her files arising from the provision of public defender services 
under this Agreement for such time as required by law, the California Rules of Court or local rule.  In keeping 
with this obligation Contractor shall maintain an electronic record retention program for each case in which 
the Contractor appears under this contract identifying for each case file the type of case (i.e. misdemeanor, 
felony, juvenile dependency, juvenile delinquency, conservatorship etc.), and the year when the individual 
case is closed by Contractor. 

 
4.  In the event of termination of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to direct all active pending files to 
that attorney or law firm which has agreed to assume representation of the client in each case and to retain 
any electronic records of closed files for such time as is set by law.    It is the Contractor’s obligation to 
personally maintain any closed files or to arrange for the proper handling of those files, in the event Contractor 
is no longer able to do so. 
 
   



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 16 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT D 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND  MARK A. JOHNSON   

FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JUNE 14, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 
 
 

FORM W-9 
 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification  

(Please submit W-9 form with Contract, available on-line or by County) 



County of Inyo Standard Contract –160 
(Independent  Contractor –  Public Defender  Mark A. Johnson )  

Page 17 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     06092021 

ATTACHMENT  E 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND  MARK A. JOHNSON  
FOR THE PROVISION OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AS A CONTRACT PUBLIC DEFENDER 

 
 TERM: 
 

FROM: JULY 7, 2022 TO:  JUNE 30, 2025 

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Specifications 2  

Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 

 
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 

for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 

01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis for bodily injury and property damage, 
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, 
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit 
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 
occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) 
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.  
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no      

employees) 
1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant’s 

profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity 

requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. 

Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 

coverage shall be available to the Entity. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Additional Insured Status 
 

1. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered 
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work 
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts, 
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant’s 
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG 
20 37 forms if later revisions used).   



Other Insurance Provisions  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to the Entity. 
Waiver of Subrogation 

Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 

Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 

insurance.  Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay 
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses 
within the retention.   
Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 
Claims Made Policies 
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:     

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract 
or the beginning of contract work. 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for 
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, 
the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of 
five (5) years after completion of contract work.   
Verification of Coverage 
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the Entity before work commences.  However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant’s 
obligation to provide them.  The Entity reserves the right to require complete, 



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time.  

Subcontractors 
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 

requirements stated herein. 

Special Risks or Circumstances 

Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on 
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances.     

 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Purchasing
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Award bid and approval of Purchase Order
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare FloridAquatic of North Fort Myers, FL the successful bidder for the purchase of a 
Truxor Amphibious Tool Machine, cutting tools and trailer per Bid No. PR1021; B) authorize the purchase of one 
(1) Truxor Amphibious Tool Machine, tools and trailer from FloridAquatic in an amount not to exceed $190,000; 
C) approve the creation of a purchase order and payment up to $86,000 or approximately 50% of the bid amount 
to be issued on or around June 8, 2022 so that the machine can be ordered and started to be built; and D) 
authorize the Senior Budget Analyst to sign the Truxor Amphibious Machine Contract of Sale.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Parks and Recreation Division has been contemplating the purchase of a Truxor Amphibious Machine for 
the past several years but it was considered cost-prohibitive in prior fiscal years. The request was made this 
fiscal year to move forward with the purchase and funds were appropriated. Bids were sent out, and 
FloridAquatic was the only respondent to the bid, plus the amount was higher than originally budgeted. The bid 
was reviewed by the Budget Team and due to revenues being much higher than originally anticipated in the 
Board Approved Budget, the Senior Budget Analyst was able to increase revenue and move expenditures to 
facilitate the purchase of this valuable piece of machinery during the Third Quarter Review.

The Truxor Amphibious Machine is used to cut down tules in lakes, and will be highly useful in both Diaz Lake 
and Millpond. This bid also came with the purchase of a trailer in order to move the machine up and down the 
valley as needed. The quote for everything is a bit lower than the $190,000 requested. However, the Budget 
Team felt it safer to account for higher shipping and/or taxes as the machine would not actually be received in the 
County until sometime after October, and rates could change by that time.

This vendor does require a 50% deposit upon approval of the bid, so we request a Purchase Order be issued 
and that we have the authority to issue payment for an amount up to $86,000 as soon as the Board approves the 
purchase. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the purchase of this machine, which will continue to result in the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

overflow of tules in our lakes and ponds. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Purchasing
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding in the Parks & Recreation Budget (076999) in the Equipment object code (5650). 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. FloridAquatic Bid
2. Truxor Amphibious Machine Contract of Sale
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/18/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/18/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/18/2022
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/18/2022
John Pinckney Approved - 5/18/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/19/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/19/2022



I.

BID FORM
INYO COLTNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

BID NO: PRl02l - Amphibian Tool Carrier

The purpose of this specification is to describe a new TRUXOR Amphibian Tool Carrier. It is required
t-hal the unit(s) will be delivered FoB Counry of Inyo Park & Recreation, 220 Sawmill Rd. Bishoj,
Califomia, Ready to operate. The use of a biand name does not indicate preference for that brand. It is
intended to establish a level of quality, function and reliability.

BID ITEM(S)
The County of Inyo is requesting bids for ONE (1) NEW TRUXOR MODEL T30 Amphibian Tool
Canier. ONE (l) Doro Cutter ESM 20. ONE (l)Doro Cutter ESM 30. ONE (i) Reed Rake.

MINIMUM BID SPEEIFICATIONS

Sequentially number any exceptions and explain on a separate sheet if needed. If you would like to
submit a product as an ',or equal", provide full specifications and a request a minimum of 7 days before
the bid date. Email these

u.

to
(Place n)DESCRI PTION an rxr!

mnu ber/ ln athe riate mcolupprop COMPLY EXCEPTION
GENERAI: New
Model# T30 X

TRUXO& Amphibious Tool Machine.

605-G E3KubotaMOTOR: WG1 E PA +3Tier EUTier2lCARB v33 KWStage /un p
ta 6002 x

ss TIER 3/Stage 3 A CARB Compliant or equalCla
X

equipped with Combination hydraulic/engine
air intake of the radiator with fi

COOLING SYSTEM: shatl be

Iter. X
DASHBOARD: Engine speed (RpM),
oiltemperature,

Motor temperature, Control ligh! Hydraulic

H raulic ressure and fuel X
have an adjustable seat with thermostat-controlled

electric heat with foldable cab with
DRIVER'S SEAT: Unit shall

ustable X
ETECTRICAT SYSTEM sha 12be volt with 60a m Ah45p battegenerator ry X

pump. control system with cAN bus signaling technology. Auto stop hydraulic
low levelsensor.

ucHVDRAU SYSTEM ra licu nta shak beilhvd nstructe withd onecycl
tech 5.02nology gal luVO e-m .239 t.systemHydraulic itiveload-sensga tichydrau

X

r, gallmi
JTEFT STICK:OY oTo the achm tne uraperate olic 1utlet -workhvd 140urepress

ba leb flowadjusta 0-6 .6 n ra rcul outlethvd 2-work 130 bapressure
flow a-2.9

X

STICK:JOYRIGHT ifti wetilting,rg, distribution liu cight out-letHydra 3-working
uress ba200 ble 0-15.8flow 22.2tn

X

Driving speed: 0-110 yd/min X
lbs, changeFront Lift: I77 .6 bracketx4 fastfor of tools X

BID # Bid PR102I - Amphibian TooI Carrier
Page 3 of 6



Semi-resistant automatic locking of tools

caterpillar track: (paddle track) shall be made of rubber. paddles and slide
rails in strong plastic.
Material: Pontoons shall be manufactured of saltwater resistant aluminum.
Hot-d Ga lvanized steel structure

X

XOil: shall be environmental

Cutting Tools

20: Cutter shall be front mountable with
of 1.9 ft and a width of 6.9ft

Doro Cutter EMS
double-action knives. 1

Cutter shall be front mountable with double-actionDoro Cutter EMS 30:
d of 0.98 ft. and a worki width of 7.05 ft.Knives. X

shall be front mountable with foldable side sections.
X

Reed Rake: Rake

Wo width of LL.5 feet

DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS:

Amphibian Tool Carrier and all specified attachments shall be delivered to Millpond Recreation Area.
220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, California. 93514

ilI. EXCEPTIONS

E*pPF aly ang all.exceptiols identified in Section II, above (attach additional sheets if necessary)
1 = Workinq depth is 1.6 feet

BID # Bid PR1021 - Amphibian Tool Carrier
Page 4 of 6



ry. BID

I a_eree to furnish Inyo County with the products specified on the Bid Form for the prices indicated
below.

1. Amphibian Tool Carrier (Year, Make, and Model) : 2022 Truxor T30

2. LTNIT PRICE:

3. SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75%)

4. DELIVERY to Inyo County Parks & Recreation
FOB 220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, Califomia.935t4

QUOTE TOOLS SEPARTLEY

la. Tool Cutter ESM 20

2a. SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75W

3a. DELIVERY to lnyo County Parks & Recreation
FOB 220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, Califomia.93514

lb. Tool Cutter ESM Doro Cutter ESM 30

2b. SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75%)

3b. DELIVERY to Inyo County Parks & Reoreation
FOB 220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, Califomia.935t4

lc. Reed Rake

2c. SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75%)

3c. DELIVERY to Inyo County Parks & Recreation
FOB220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, Califomia.93514

$ 1 15,900

$ customer responsible for
paylng county

$31,000

$ 6,559

$ customer responsible for
paying county

gincluded in T30 shipping

$ 9,580

$ Cuqtgmer responsible for
paying county

$ included in T30 shippino

$ 2,209

$ customer responsible for
paying county

g included in T30 shipping

TOTAL PRICE..... ....9134,248

TOTAL SALES TAX (Inyo County @7.75%).
BID # Bid PR1021 - Anphibian Tool Carrier

...$ customer responsible for
paying county

Page 5 of 6



TOTAL DELIVERY to Inyo County Par}s & Recreation
FOB 220 Sawmill Rd. Bishop, California. 93514. g 31,000

FloridAquatic Lake Ma nagement

Melody Farrell

BIDDER;

Company Name:

Contact Name:

Address:

City / State lZip:

Phone Number:

Email Address:

PO Box 3439

North Fort Myers, FL 33918

239-997-8872

Melody@FloridAq uatic.com

Fax Number nla

V

-Lu.
16r;d
L'd

This lri wGS on
@

Atlestr Leslie ChoPmon,
Adminisfrotive Ofllcet ond Cletk of the

#4"F ffiv*t
Ao'.s

CL,*q
no* J

CERTIFICATION
In submitting this bid, I understand that Inyo County reseryes the right to reject any and all bids and/or
reject any and all items of such bids and/or waive any irregularities in a bid. By signature on this bid
document, I agree to the terms outlined in this Request for Bids. I certiff that I am an authorized agent
for the above company. 7Ai's b,iJ ,hcluries AJ dend qA

rvts and Cr:ruliis:ns h/e- afe^ no+ Ctrnar.at +"t<J

Signed: Title: V ,'.u Pres icJ

Date:

VI. BID SUBMITTAL
Please submit your bid in a SEALED envelope labeled with "BID NO. PR1021 -Amphibian Tool
Carrier" and the name of the Bidder printed on the outside of the envelope.

Bids must be submitted by the time and date specified below to the Inyo County Board Clerk, P.O.
Drawer N (mail), Independence, CA 93526, or by delivery to the Board Clerk at224 N. Edwards Street,
Independence, CA 93526 by or before 3:00 P.M. on Anril 1.2022.

Note: PLEASE BE ADVISED that despite information you may receive from mail services,
"Overnight" delivery by UPS, FedEx, and other carriers is often scheduled as a two-day

County.delivery due to the

(\l,vth 3o

o

BID # Bid PRIO2T _
Boord,l Golllbtnlo

Page 6 of 6



oPld&qur c
Lakr ement

ADDENDUM A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Expiration of offer:
This offer shall expire at 5pm EST on May 15, 2002.

Conditions of bid:
The tools/attachments are not able to be delivered separately from the Truxor machine. The Truxor
must be purchased from FloridAquatic Lake Management at the same time and delivered at the same

time as the tools/attachments.

Payment terms:
A50% deposit is required at time of order and remaining balance due when machine leaves Sweden

Taxes:

It is the responsibility of the customer to pay any sales or use tax due to their state or county
FloridAquatic is not held liable for any taxes.

Delivery:

The manufacturer is currently having production delays due to employee illness and supply chain issues.

It is not possible to give a definite date for when the machine will leave the factory. Once it leaves the
factory, in the best of circumstances, we would have it at our warehouse in Florida approximately 8

weeks later. We currently have 2 machines ordered that are scheduled to leave the marrufacturer the
end of June and the end of October. All time lines are subject to change and are not promised.

FloridAquatic Lake Management will not be held liable for any delays.

Contract requirements:
lf bid is accepted, we require a signed contract that will include the agreed upon terms.

P.O. Box 3439 North Fort Myers, Florida 33918
Office: 239-997-8872

Email: Lakes@FloridAquatic.com
www.FloridAquatic.com



lorld&que G
tana ent

ADDITION TO BID NO. PR1O21

TRUXOR AMPHIBIAN TOOI CARRIER

Due to the distance required to deliver the Truxor and attachments/tools, we
require the purchase of a trailer for transporting from Florida to California if our
bid is accepted.

The cost of the trailer will be 56,000. This is in addition to the 5t34,2+8 and
delivery cost of 53t,000.

Same terms and conditions apply that were included with the original bid papers

that we sent.

Thank you,

Melody F

zl zs) za zL

( cof ,l a++achnJ)

P.O. Box 3439 North Fort Myers, Florida 33918
Office: 239-997-8872

Email : Lakes@FloridAquatic. com
www. FloridAquatic.com



COUNTY OF INYO BID TABULATION

Proiect Title & Bid No. P Q t O It /rrrrph I b; *n 'h ol (ar r , e-r
Bid Opening Date 4

Opened By.

Present

Location: County Adm.in Center7>

( rh n

1 FLorid kslmc lAte- (YrtnaaLnit^+ 6tru )4g,ao
2 ' (tnu P.r<u+,rni + V lo,\ao.oo

3 $ l'+ a, 2-rl g aa

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

BIDDER NAME
Bid

..,r



i

orld&qu G
kr

ADDENDUM A

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Expiration of offer:
This offer shall expire at 5pm EST on May L5, 2002.

Conditions of bid:
The tools/attachments are not able to be delivered separately from the Truxor machine. The Truxor
must be purchased from FloridAquatic Lake Management at the same time and delivered at the same
time as the tools/attachments.

Payment terms:
A50% deposit is required at time of order and remaining balance due when machine leaves Sweden.

Taxes:

It is the responsibility of the customerto pay any sales or use tax due to their state or county.
FloridAquatic is not held liable for any taxes.

Delivery:

The manufacturer is currently having production delays due to employee illness and supply chain issues.

It is not possible to give a definite date for when the machine will leave the factory. Once it leaves the
factory, in the best of circumstances, we would have it at our warehouse in Florida approximately 8
weeks later. We currently have 2 machines ordered that are scheduled to leave the manufacturer the
end of June and the end of October. All time lines are subject to change and are not promised.

FloridAquatic Lake Management will not be held liable for any delays.

Contract requirements:
lf bid is accepted, we require a signed contract that will include the agreed upon terms.

J*dl
z3l Lozu

8ro No'Pg\oz\
3

P.O. Box 3439 Nodh Fort Myers, Florida 33918
Office: 239-997-8872

Email : Lakes@FloridAquatic.com
www.FloridAquatic.com



(Ftorldoo;r.*
\\r Lake Manaoement 'l

--

ThuxoR QuorE

"w

. sLa-.*.. -+.

-.ts--'

+#

_;e*..
^. ---I-:

IF+
,<r *__.

4-

-=b/ -

As requested by:

Inyo County Administration

DenelleCarrington

PO Drawer N

Independence, CA 9g526

Created by:

Melody Farrell

May tt, 2o.22

This quote includes all the necessary details
including costs, terms and condition.



Product

94-T3oE Truxor Tgo with Panolin Oil

go-279oo Dorocutter ESMzo

8z-r83oo Dorocutter ESMgo

94-rz8roo Reed Rake

7' x20'Trailer - Steel frame, wood deck, ramps, spare tire

Estimated Shipping, Import, Customs & Delivery Fees

Subject to change at time of shipment from Sweden and delivery to

California.

Price QTY Subtotal

$r15,9oo.oo

$6,ssg.oo

$9,58o.oo

$z,zo9.oo

$6,ooo.oo

$3r,ooo.oo

Total $r7l^rz48.oo

$r15,9oo.oo 1

$6,ss9.oo 1

$9,s8o.oo 1

$z,zo9.oo 1

$6,ooo.oo 1

$3r,ooo.oo 1



Tnuxon AlapHlslous MncHlNr CoNrnncr or Sare

This Truxor Amphibious Machine contract provides the terms and conditions governing the understanding between

Inyo County Administration ('Purchaser'), who agrees to follow this contract, and FloridAquatic Lake Management

('Seller'), whose primary address is 335o Hanson St Unit H Ft Myers, FL 33916.

WHEREAS, TruxorAmphibious Machine and attachments/tools, a description ('Product'), is provided by the Seller

And WHEREAS, the Purchaser intends to buy all the Products listed in the Equipment Quote in accordance with
these terms and conditions.

NOW, THERBFORE, considering the mutual agreements and promises by each of the parties, the Seller and

Purchaser (collectively'Parties' and as individuals 'party') agree to the following:

Thxes

It is the responsibility of the Purchaser to pay any sales or use tax due to their state or county. FloridAquatic is not
held liable for any taxes.

ExnnnnoN oF OFFER

This offer shall expire at 5pm BST on June 30, zo2z.

PnvnnrNr Tsnms

The Purchaser hereby buys the Product of the type and quantity detailed on the previous page and will issue

payment as follows. 5o% deposit at time of order and remaining balance due once container has left manufacturer
in Sweden. Parments may be made by wire transfer or check. Contact us for wiring instructions.

Druveny

The manufacturer is currently having production delays due to employee illness and supply chain issues. It is not
possible to give a definite date for when the machine will leave the factory. Once it leaves the factory, in the best of
circumstances, we would have it at our warehouse in Florida approximately B weeks later. We currently have z

machines ordered that are scheduled to leave the manufacturer the end of October. This gives us an estimated
arrival time in Florida at the end of December. All time lines are subject to change an4 are not promised.

FloridAquatic Lake Management will not be held liable for any delays in production or shipping. Seller will not be
held liable for failure or delay in fulfillment if hindered or prevented by fire, strikes, war, supply chain issues, labor
shortages, orActs of God.



SnrpprNc Fses lNp Drmruny Fer

Shipping fee and delivery fee is subject to change. We do our best to absorb any additional costs but due to the

current economy, it may be necessary to pass some of the cost to the Purchaser. You will be notified as soon as

possible of any changes.

ArrrnnnoNs

This contract cannot undergo any alterations by either Party, except for when submitted in writing and agreed on by

both the Parties.

Tenms oF EqutpMENT WARRANTv

See PDF file attached.

CoNnnmnrroN

IN UITNESS WHEREOF, this contract is executed by their respective authorized officers, as of the date detailed

below.

Inyo County Administration



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Risk Management
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Amendment #1 with Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul 
LLC of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract by $100,000, for a total amount not to exceed $200,000, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC is currently handling litigation for the County. The action of increasing the contract 
amount by another $100,000, for a total amount not to exceed $200,000, will ensure that there is enough funding 
through the end of the litigation. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not increase the contract amount, however, this is not recommended as additional 
funding is needed in order to get through the end of litigation. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel and County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient funding in the Public Liability Budget (500903) in the Professional Services object code 
(5265). 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Rivera Hewitt Paul LLP Amendment 1
2. Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC Contract
 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/23/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/23/2022
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 5/23/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/23/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/23/2022



AMENDMENTNUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

RIVERA HEWTT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

WHEREAS, thE
Rivera Hewitt Paul LLP

County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "Cou nty") and
of Gold River, CA

(herein referred to as "Contractod'), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of lndependent
Contractor Services dated 22,2021 Standard
Contract No. 123 for the term from

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or chinge is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

3. CONSIDERATION.

E. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for
services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem expenses, if any, shall not exceed 5200,000
Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement
requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is June 1,2022

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contract - 116. 123
Page 1

062912



AMENDMENT NUMBER TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

RIVERA HEWTT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

Dated

LEGALITY

AP AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

K.
Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT

nty Risk

By:
Signature

Shanan L. Hewitt
Type or Print

Dated: Mav 9,2022

123
County of lnyo Standard Contract - No._

Page 2

062912



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 2nd day of February 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO-Risk- Rivera
Hewitt Paul LLC
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to ratify and approve the
agreement between the County of lnyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC of Sacramento, CA for the
provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the period of January 22,
2021 until the subject litigation is completed, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal
Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate
signatures being obtained.. Motion carried unanimously.

IVITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2*
Day ofFebruarv, 2021

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO: Risk
Other:
DATE: February 11, 2021

By:

tkAhi,;



t7

County of Inyo

County Administrator - Risk Management

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: February 2, 2021

FROM: Aaron Holmberg

SUBJECT: Approval of contract in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the provision of legal services.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of lnyo and Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC of
Sacramento, CA for the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for the period of January
22,2021 until the subject litigation is completed, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/J USTIFICATION :

Porter Scott usually handles litigation arising from claims against the County; however, Porter Scott is unable to
handle anticipated litigation related to a recent claim for damages. Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC is recommended for
defense of such litigation.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny this contract with Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC. This is not recommended as the defense team
for the subject litigation is needed promptly and we believe this firm is well qualified to handle the matter.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel and PRISM have been consulted in the selection process for this firm for the subject litigation

FINANCING:
Agreement will be budgeted in the Public Liability Budget (500903) in Professional Services (5265). Adjustments
have been made during the Mid-Year Budget Review Process to accommodate this agreement.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Rivera 2021 Agreement Executed by Shanan Hewitt

APPROVALS:
Aaron Holmberg
Darcy Ellis

Created/l nitiated - 1 12612021
Approved - 112612021



Page2

Denelle Carrington
Aaron Holmberg
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Sue Dishion
Aaron Holmberg

Approved - 112612021
Approved - 112612021
Approved - 112612021
Approved - 112612021
Approved - 112812021
Final Approval - 112812021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWITT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for
the legal services of Rivera Hewitt Paul LLP, of Sacramento, Californii,'lhereinafter referred to as
"Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter
contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attrached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreemeni will be made by County Counsel, County Administrator, or their
respective designees. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this
Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County rnakes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or worli wiil be requested of the
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any serviCes or work at all, even i? County
should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by appticable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, iegulations, anJ
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from January 22,zAU until the subject litigation is complete,
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shalt pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

_8. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agieement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travei or per diem Jxpenses.
Requests by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the office
of County Administrator, Risk Management. Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in
accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C).
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are
either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are
incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval of the County.

C' lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the Schedule
of Fees (Attachment B) for those lncidental Expenses which are specifically identified in the Schedule of

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 1 100615



Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work requested by
County under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such lncidental Expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor
in obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies. Reimbursement for actual costs wili not exceed
the amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additional consideratign. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from Coun$, any additional consideration, compensation, salary,
waq9s, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreemenl. Specifically, Contractoi
shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the iorm of overtime, neaith insurance
benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other
paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

^ E' _ Limil gnon amount oayable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including"travel and per diem
expenses, if any, shall not exceed $100,000 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services oi
work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

F. Billinq and oavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Contractor in performing services and work described in Attachment A,
which were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the
fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the flrst (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will'dentry the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each
day. Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any incidental expenses, or
travel or per diem expenses which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor
during that period. The itemized statement for incidental expenses, trtvel exfenses and per diem will
include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental expenses in accordance with ihe County,s
accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the monih,
County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the month.

G. FederalanC State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in suhrparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(41

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated thal
total annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement wlll exceed one thousand four
hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all
taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.
County has no responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

Thelotal amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and
the California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall
complete and submit to the county an lnternal Revenue service (lRS) Form upon
executing this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslSchedule of per Diem)
Page2 100615



4, WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but
will coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by dounty under this Agreement
will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A' Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A mustbe procuied
by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement. Further, during the teim of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, drivei's licenses, professional licenses
or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certiflcates, and permits will be procured and
maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide bounty, upon
execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which'are
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in coveied transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the GeneralServices Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6, OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment
B), County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by iontractor in
procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in
providing and maintaining items not specifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachmenl B), is the sole
responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A' Persgnal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive prdpbrty of Coung.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items wnite- they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to suCh items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

. B. Prodqcts.of Cgntractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, foimutas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes,
computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, fiims,
audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks,
copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, oi
are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 3 100615



the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination
of the Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to ail such properties to Cbunty.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer,s
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occunence for ail employees engiged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees inatt be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9, INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind orlncur any obligation on bbhar of
Coun$. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Coniractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to 

-be

considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee rei-ationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A' Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B' Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C' Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall. represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11, DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION,

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expensls, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out ol resulting from, or in connection with, the performanc* oi
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor,s obligation to
defend, indemnifu, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to aiy actual
or alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the
loss of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any cliim, damage, loss, tia6itity,
expense, or other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, iis
agents, employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose
acts or omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, oi restricted by, any
requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 4 10061s



To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnifrT, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its offieers, or employees.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion
of this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to mainlain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evalulte the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, oi applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
o!ficers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing nct
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 {P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days wrilten notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agieemlnt
without muse, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent
to cancel to County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. Coung has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (S) dayi
written notice lo Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounis
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

Coung of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslSchedule of Per Diem)
Page 5 10061s



17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be i
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-four (24) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALIW.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or eonfidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tiile 4b,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1gg6,
and Sections 10850 and 1410A.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS_

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or ineJirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this
Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any pelsonal
benefit. gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of
this Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person
who, during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who
has been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the exteni that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of Coun$ to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslSchedule of Per Diem)
Page 6 100615



Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
four (24) (Amendment).

23. ATTORNEY'S FEES.

lf either of the parties hereto brings an action or proceeding against the other, including, but not
limited to, an action to enforce or declare the cancellation, terminatibn,-or revlsion of the Agreeiient, the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to receive from the other party ill reasonable
attorney's fees and costs incurred in connection therewith.

24. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted *om, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and exeeuted with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuig.

25. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractoi or County shall b6
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in vwiting and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:
County Administrator, Risk Management
163 May Street

Bishop, CA 93514

CONTRACTOR:

Rivera Hewitt Paul LLP
11341 Gold Express Dr Ste 160
Sacramento, CA 95670

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreernents otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereio.

ilft ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslSchedule of Per Diem)
Page 7 10061 5



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWITT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF

COUNTYOF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

,\furun L, Nttult't, Tat hur

25, 2ozl
Dated:
Type or Print Name

Dated: a

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Confactor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 8 100615



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWITT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: January 22,2021until the subject litigation is comptete

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. Contractor shall represent and advise the County and such of its agents, officers and employees as
the County may designate, in pending and potential litigation before state and federal courts, and-county,
state and federal administrative agencies. Contractor shall receive direction from the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors, County Counsel and/or County Administrator or designees. Contractor shall also provide all
secretarial and clerical support reasonably and customarily necessary to perform such services under this
Agreement.

2. Contractor shall maintain and retain files and materials on cases and other matters upon which he is
working. Electronic copies of documents received and created by Contractor shall be delivered to County
Risk Management Office to be stored.

3. Contractor shall file and serve required pleadings, notices, discovery documents and materials on
behalf of the County its officers or employees. The Office of County Counsel will cooperate with Contractor
with regard to filing and service in lnyo County.

4. Contractor may email to the ffices of County Counsel and Risk Management copies of those
pleadings, notices, discovery, documents and materials to be appropriately delivered to County officers and
employees. The Office of Coun$ Counsel andlor Risk Management will then make necessary copies anC
deliver the pleadings, notices, discovery, documents and materials to the County officers and employees.

5. Contractor shall take the actions necessary to have all pleadings, notices, discovery, documents and
materials, which are to be served upon the County or its officers and employees after their first general
appearance, served upon both Contractor at his office and the County Counsel at the lndependence offiec.
Contractor shall also provide to the County Counsel and Risk Manager one copy of all pleadings, notices,
discovery and other documents served and or filed by Contractor on behalf of the County, its officers or
employees in electronic format.

6. Contractor, shall not bill for attorney's time in perbrming work or services whieh would ordinarily and
customarily be performed by a legal secretary or clerical support.

7. Contractor shall not accept other employment which will interfere or cause a conflict of interest with
representation of the County of lnyo and its agents, officers and employees

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslSchedule of Per Diem)
Page 9 100615



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWIfi PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: January 22,2021until the subject litigation is complete

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. COMPENSATION

Attorney: $210/hour
Paralegal $135/l'rour
Travel: $150lhour

2. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES:

The Firm shall not be obligated to advance costs on behalf of Client; however, for the purposes of
convenience and in order to expedite matters, the Firm reserves the right to advance costs on behalf of the
Client, with Client's prior approval, in the event a particular cost item exceeds $7,500.00 in amount; and
without the prior approval of Client in the event a particular cost item totals $7,500.00 or less. Typical cost
items include, by way of example and not limitation, document preparation and word processing, long
distance telephone charges, faxltelecopy charges (at $0.10 per page), appearance fees, messenger fees,
travel costs, bonds, witness fees, deposition and court reporter fees, transcript costs, expert witness fees,
investigative fees, etc.

Coung of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expense$Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 10 100615



ATTACHMENTC

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWITT PAUL LLP

FORTHE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: January 22,2021until the subJect litigation is complete

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT

Travel shall be at the County's request and will be billed at cost.
Per diem kavel from portal to portal will be at the current IRS rate.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 1 1 100615



IN WITNESS THEREOF

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWIfi PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

, THE PARTIES HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THISHERETO
202111th DAYOF Februa

COUNTYOF INYO

Dated 02t11t21
Type or Prlnt Name

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

t-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

L, t't

25, 2ozl

CONTRAGTOR

a

Slgnature

( ',%ant&&,
County Auditor

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Sa--

County Risk

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expensesl$chedule of Per Diem)
Page I 100615



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND RIVERA HEWITT PAUL LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: January 22,2A2l untilthe subiect litigation is complete

Insurance Reouirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property whioh may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF'INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01
covering CGL on an "occLrrrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury ancl adveftising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
projecUlocation or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurence limit.

2. Automobile Liability; lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no ovrrned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation: lnsurance as required by the State of California, with
statutory limits, and Employer's Liability insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease . (Not reguired if consuttant
provides written verification it has no employees.)

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): lnsurance appropriate to the
Consultant's profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other lnsurance Provisions

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

ExpenseslScheduls of Per Diem)
Page12 100615



The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Additional Insured Sfafus; County of lnyo, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to
liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant
including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or
operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to
the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG
2A 10 and CG 2A 37 forms if later revisions used).

Primary Caverage; For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity,
its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellafion.' Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage
shall not be canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation: Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to
subrogation which any insurer of said Consultant may acquire against the Entity by
virtue of the payment of any loss under such insuranee. Consultant agrees to obtain
any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this
provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has received a waiver of
subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-lnsured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions
must be declared to and approved by the Entity. The Entitv may require the Consultant
to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration,
and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptability of lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M
Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-
made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
af leasf five (5) years after completion af the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made palicy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 13 1 0061 5



the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verificatian of Coverage: Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates
and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received
and approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete, certified
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these
specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors: Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain
insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein.

Specfal Rfsks or Circumstancesi Entity reserves the right to modify these
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer,
coverage, or other special circumstances.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 14 100615



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Risk Management
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Agreement for legal services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Porter Scott, A Professional Corporation 
of Sacramento, CA for the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $400,000 for the period of July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Porter Scott has been a vital resource for years and is currently representing the County in a number of ongoing 
and potential legal matters.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny this request, however, this is not recommended as Porter Scott is currently representing 
the County in a number of ongoing matters and is a valuable resource to the County. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel, CAO 
 
FINANCING:
This contract will be budgeted in the County Liability Trust (500903), in Professional Services (5265).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Porter Scott Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 6/1/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 6/1/2022



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Aaron Holmberg Approved - 6/2/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022































County of Inyo

Coroner
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Contract Services for Autopsy Services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Eva S. Wasef, M.D. a sole-source provider of autopsy services in Inyo County; B) 
approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Eva S. Wasef for the provision of autopsy services in an 
amount not to exceed $175,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Dr. Eva Wasef's current contract expires on June 30, 2022. She has graciously worked with the Coroner's Office 
since January, 2013 as the Coroner's autopsy surgeon. She is also pathologist at Northern Inyo Hospital and is 
currently the only pathologist in Inyo County. There is no one in the County with her expertise and laboratory 
availability  to assist the Coroner. She provides microscopic studies and immediate toxicology services when 
needed to determine the cause of death. Her services are a tremendous benefit to the County.

The Sole Service justification is warranted based on her expertise, lower expense and local proximity to the 
Coroner's Office. Her prior experience with the Coroner's Office and prior contracts with the County also have an 
impact on the Sole Source. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract, however this is not recommended as the Coroner would 
be directly impacted, autopsies would have to be sent out of county at a much higher cost and the Coroner would 
be unable to fulfill his duties. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
This expense will be budgeted in the Coroners Budget (023500) each year in Professional Services (5265). 

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Wasef Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/23/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/23/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/23/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/23/2022



Autopsy
Pasadena, CA (hereinafter referred to as , and in consideration of the

mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement

The term of this Agreement shall be from
terminated as provided below

SERVICES

have the need for the
of

by Jason Molinar

07t01t2022 to 0613012025 unless sooner

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eva S. Wasef, M.D.

FOR THE PROVISION OF

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County to as "County'') may
M.

willbe made
Coronerwhose title

-t

Requests to the Contractor for
work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such
services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of
services or work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this
Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or
work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this
Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, county, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations,
and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment C) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractorwill not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or
per diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

County oflnyo Standard Contract
(ndependent Contractor - Physicians II)

Page 1 Modified ContractNo. I l6
03172016



$175,000
Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit')

County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for
services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon
timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor
on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, Countywill not withhold any federalor state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine
dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or
liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and
submit to the County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Fudher, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

County oflnyo Standard Contract

Qndependent Contractor - Physicians II)
Page2 Modified Contract No. I 16

03172016



B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: httn://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and allcompositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

County oflnyo Standard Conhact

Qndependent Conhactor - Physicians II)
Page 3 Modified Contract No. I 16

03172016



A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
controlwith respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at alltimes during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss
of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or
other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or
omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, orwrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

12. RECORDS ANDAUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

County oflnyo Standard Contract
(ndependent Contractor - Physicians tr)

Page 4 Modified ContractNo. I 16

03t72016



14. CANCELLATION.

^ This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agieemlnt
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of sucli intent to
cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

. This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the pri6r
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as rilquired by
County, C_ounty may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay io Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVEROF DEFAULT.

. Waivel of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waivei
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of he Gounty. Any disclosure of confidential information by Gonfactor witrout tre County's wriften
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this

County oflnyo Standard Contract
(ndependent Contractor - Physicians II)

Page 5 Modified ContractNo. I 16

03172016



Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
three (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

Countu of lnvo:
Coron'er Department

Address
City and State

325 West Elm Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Contractor:

Eva S. Wasef, M.D Name
Address
City and State

500 Madeline Drive
Pasadena, CA 91 105

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil llll

County oflnyo Standard Contract

Qndependent Contractor - Physicians II)
Page 6 Modified Contract No. I 16

03172016



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYOAND Eva S. Wasef, M.D.

FORTHE PROV ERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNWOF INYO: CONTRAGTOR:

cJnset
Type or Print Name

re

J/

APPROVED LEGALITY:

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

APPROVEDAS TO PERSONNEL REQU IREMENTS:

INSUMNCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk

s:County Counsel/Contracts/MiscContracts/physl l, 1 1 6

County oflnyo Standard Contract
(Independent Conhactor . Physicians tr)

PageT Modifred Contract No, I 16

031720t6



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Eva S. M.D

FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 0710112022 06t30t2025

SCOPE OFWORK:

Autopsy Services

County oflnyo Standard Conhact
(Independent Contractor - Physicians tr)

Page 8 Modified Contract No. 1 16

03172016



ATTACHMENT B

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

Eva S. Wasef, M.D.

FORTHE PROVISION OF Autopsy

TERM

FROM 0710112022 TO 0613012025

SCHEDULE OF FEES

External examination and review of medical records to determine the cause of death............S 600.00

SERVICES

Processing ....s 120.00

Reimbursement of microscopic tests required to determine the cause of death......,.........,........S 300.00

County oflnyo Standard Contact
(Independent Contractor - Physicians II)

Page 9 Modified Contract No. I 16

03172016



County of Inyo

Coroner
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract for toxicology services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Central Valley Toxicology of Clovis, CA for 
the provision of toxicology services in an amount not to exceed $45,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract is an essential function for the Coroner's Office. Central Valley Toxicology, Inc. has been providing 
toxicology services for this office for many years and it benefits the department to continue with this contract.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this contract, which would impact the job of the Coroner, and not allow 
him to move forward appropriately and fulfill his duties as the Coroner.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
This expense will be budgeted each year in the Coroner's Budget (023500) in Professional Services (5265). 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Central Valley Toxicology Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 6/1/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 6/1/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/2/2022



Agenda Request 
Page 2

John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022































County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement between the County of Inyo and County of Santa Cruz
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the Agreement between the County of Inyo and County of Santa Cruz for the period 
of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 for hosting the Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and Targeted Case 
Management Local Government Agency Consortium, contingent on the Board's approval of future budgets; B) 
authorize the Chairperson and Melissa Best-Baker as the LGA Coordinator to sign the agreement; and C) 
authorize payment up to $4,000 in participation fees per year for 2022-2023, 2023-2024, and 2024-2025, 
contingent upon the approval of future budgets.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County of Santa Cruz acts as the host county for the LGA Consortium for the purpose of collecting and 
disbursing funds for the  Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) and Targeted Case Management (TCM)  trust 
fund. The State Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) coordinates with the Host County to coordinate 
administration of the MAA/TCM programs for the Local Government Agency. This allows DHCS to coordinate 
with just one county, instead of all of the counties that participate in MAA and TCM, relieving administrative costs 
for all involved. We are requesting approval to enter into this agreement.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Santa Cruz County 
which will result in Inyo County losing access to consulting and legal services that the Consortium provides.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County of Santa Cruz, California State Department of Health Services
 
FINANCING:
There is no current funding request at this time.  We do pay participation fees that are paid out of the Health 
budget (045100), Professional Services object code(5265).
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Master Agreement - County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and/or Targeted Case Management 
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 5/14/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/18/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/18/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 5/19/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/19/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/19/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/19/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/27/2022



CMAATCM_FY22-25 LGA  PAGE 1 OF 7 
 23R0238 

COUNTY-BASED MEDI-CAL 
 ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (CMAA)  

/ TARGETED CASE MANAGEMENT (TCM) AGREEMENT 
Between the 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
and 

Inyo County Health & Human Services 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Inyo County Health &
 Human Services, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred 
to as “LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY (LGA)” and the COUNTY OF SANTA 
CRUZ, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “HOST 
ENTITY.” 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, LGA desires to promote access to health services to residents, through the 
provision of County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (CMAA) and/or Targeted Case 
Management (TCM) and desires certain administrative services to be provided by 
HOST ENTITY; and 

WHEREAS, LGA has executed separate agreements with the California Department of 
Health Care Services (DHCS) to promote access to health services to residents for County-Based 
Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and Targeted Case Management and agrees to pay a 
participation fee under the terms of those agreements; and 

WHEREAS, HOST ENTITY was selected by CMAA/TCM LGA 
Consortium (“Consortium”) to collect and disburse LGA participation fees; and 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors has authorized entering 
into this Agreement as HOST ENTITY; and 

WHEREAS, the authorizing entity of LGA has authorized entering into 
this AGREEMENT;  

NOW, THEREFORE, for in and in consideration of the mutual covenants 
and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
1. HOST ENTITY, Responsibilities:

1.1. HOST ENTITY shall perform host entity duties for CMAA and/or TCM listed in
attached Exhibits A and B for CMAA and/or TCM program(s). 

1.2. HOST ENTITY is the “Host Entity” solely for the purpose of collecting and disbursing 
funds for the Consortium trust fund (“Trust Fund”), as described in the Consortium 
bylaws and terms of this AGREEMENT.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6
29.d
Approved 4/26/2022
Board of Supervisors
DOC-2022-376



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA» PAGE 2 OF 7 
23R0238 

1.3. HOST ENTITY shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations governing the 
Trust Fund and public funds, generally, in the collection and disbursement of funds for 
and from the Trust Fund pursuant to the terms of this AGREEMENT.   

1.4. HOST ENTITY will receive a total annual compensation in the amount of Seventy-One 
Thousand, Five Hundred dollars ($71,500) for the performance of its HOST ENTITY 
services under Sections 1.1 thru 1.3 of this contract paid from the Trust Fund. 

2. LGA Responsibilities:

2.1. LGA shall perform the LGA duties listed in the attached Exhibits A and B for CMAA
and/or TCM program(s). 

3. Disclaimers:

3.1. LGA is solely and exclusively responsible for the processing of its CMAA/TCM claims
for reimbursement, including, but not necessarily limited to, compliance with all 
applicable federal and state laws and California Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) guidelines and procedures. 

3.2. LGA is solely and exclusively responsible for the payment of its costs under the terms of 
this AGREEMENT as well as any and all its costs related to its participation in the 
CMAA and/or TCM program(s).   

3.3. LGA is solely and exclusively responsible for all audit exceptions arising from its 
participation in the CMAA and/or TCM program(s). 

4. Insurance and Indemnification:

4.1. Insurance:
Each of the parties agrees to maintain liability coverage for its negligent or 
intentionally wrongful acts and/or omissions arising from the performance 
of its duties under this Agreement.  

4.2. Indemnification: 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the parties shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold each other, their officers, agents and employees harmless from 
any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, demands and actions (all 
collectively referred to as “liability” herein) arising from each parties’ 
respective performance of this Agreement, but only to the extent such 
liabilities are caused by or result from the negligent or intentionally 
wrongful act or omission of the indemnifying party, its officers, agents or 
employees. 

5. Termination:

5.1. LGA may give written notice of its intent to terminate this AGREEMENT, and
accordingly, relinquish its membership and rights to participate in the Consortium, at 
any time. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA» PAGE 3 OF 7 
23R0238 

5.2. The effective date of termination shall be concurrent with the payment of the LGA’s 
final claim for reimbursement for the period of the contract. 

5.3. Participation fees shall be calculated and payable to the Host Entity for any and all 
claims reimbursements received by LGA after LGA’s notice of intent to terminate.  
LGAs failing to pay participation fees arising from reimbursements received after the 
termination date shall be in breach of this AGREEMENT. 

6. Term:

This AGREEMENT shall be effective upon execution and for the period July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2025, unless previously terminated as provided herein or as otherwise agreed to in 
writing by the parties. 

The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the exhibits below, which are 
integral parts of this agreement and are deemed incorporated by reference herein. 

Exhibits: 

Exhibit A - Scope of Work - Agreement Concerning County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities / Targeted Case Management  
Exhibit B - Payment and Fee Structure 

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA» PAGE 4 OF 7 
23R0238 

“HOST ENTITY” 
Duly Authorized 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 

By_________________________ 
Monica Morales, Director  
Health Services Agency 
1800 Green Hills Road, Suite 240 
Scotts Valley, California 95066 

“LGA” 
Duly Authorized 

Inyo County Health & 
Human Services

By 
Melissa Best-Baker
LGA Coordinator
P.O. Drawer H
Independence, CA 93526 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________ 
Office of the County Counsel  Date 
Approved as to Insurances: 

_________________________________ 
Risk Management    Date 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6

4/8/2022

4/10/2022



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA»  PAGE 5 OF 7 
  23R0238 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 
1. Local Government Agency (LGA) – A local public health office or county agency in a 

county or chartered city that oversees the County Based Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities (CMAA) and Targeted Case Management (TCM) programs. 
 

2. CMAA/TCM LGA Consortium (“Consortium”) – A collaboration of LGA CMAA/TCM 
coordinators and/or designees who meet regularly and pursue the proper and efficient 
administration of the CMAA and TCM Programs. 
 

3. Participation Fee (“Participation Fee”) – Payment to the Consortium for the consortium’s 
CMAA/TCM administrative costs and the program costs of the California Department of 
Health Care Services (DHCS).   

 
4. Executive Committee (EC) – A team of elected LGA coordinator members of the 

Consortium who meet regularly and are responsible for the executive management of the 
Consortium.  Duties include, but are not limited to, the review of fiscal revenue and 
expenditure reports; the approval of the annual budget; and the approval of payments by 
the Consortium.  

 
5. Consortium Trust Fund (“Trust Fund”) – Fund established and maintained by the HOST 

ENTITY, for the benefit of the respective LGA members of the Consortium, to hold and 
account for Participation Fees paid by the members to cover the administrative costs of the 
Consortium and the costs of DHCS.  

 
6. Membership – All California county and/or chartered city CMAA/TCM coordinators or 

designees are eligible to join the Consortium and serve as their LGA representative.  
Membership is contingent on the annual payment of Participation Fees.  
 

7. HOST ENTITY - The LGA designated by all LGAs participating in the CMAA/TCM 
programs, to be the administrative and fiscal intermediary between DHCS and all 
participating LGAs. 

 
8. Termination – To discontinue or cancel an active membership, contract or agreement.  

Acceptable notice of intent to terminate an active membership must have an effective date 
that is concurrent with any final CMAA and/or TCM payments.  All fees are due and 
payable during this time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA»  PAGE 6 OF 7 
  23R0238 

 
EXHIBIT A:  Scope of Work – Agreement Concerning County-Based Medi-Cal 

Administrative Activities / Targeted Case Management 
 
HOST ENTITY shall: 
 
1. Prepare and transmit Host Entity/Local Government (LGA) AGREEMENT and Participation 

Fee (“Participation Fee”) invoice to the LGA pursuant to Exhibit B. 
 

2. Maintain an interest-bearing trust fund solely for the accounting for County Based 
Administrative Activities (CMAA)/Targeted Case Management (TCM) LGA Consortium 
(“Consortium”) participation fees as required by the Consortium bylaws. 

 
3. Enter into a separate agreement with the California Department of Health Care Services 

(DHCS) to coordinate administration of the CMAA/TCM programs on behalf of the LGAs. 
 
4. Pay the DHCS CMAA/TCM administrative costs pursuant to the agreement between DHCS 

and HOST ENTITY and as agreed to by the Consortium, each fiscal year, within sixty (60) 
days of receipt of invoice with documented costs from DHCS. 

 
5. Pay the LGA consultant(s) costs pursuant to the contract(s) between LGA consultant(s) and 

HOST ENTITY and as agreed to by the Consortium, each fiscal year, within twenty-one (21) 
days of Executive Committee approval of invoices submitted by the LGA consultant(s).  The 
approved invoices for consultant(s) costs pursuant to the contract(s) are paid through the 
Host Entity trust fund. 

 
6. Manage and oversee all contracts on behalf of the Consortium. 
 
7. Provide to Executive Committee of the Consortium, for review, quarterly revenue and 

expenditure reports. 
 

8. Provide to Executive Committee of the Consortium, for approval, an annual budget.   
 
9. Pay all expenses incurred as HOST ENTITY, including costs related to coordinating the 

Annual Medical Administrative Activities (MAA) Conference hosted by the Consortium. 
 

10. Carry out other duties and responsibilities as defined and delineated in the Consortium by-laws. 
 
LGA shall: 
 

1. Pay Participation Fee to HOST ENTITY within thirty (30) days from receipt of invoice. 
 

2. Have sole and exclusive responsibility for the processing of all CMAA\TCM claims for 
reimbursement of the LGA as well as any audit exceptions arising from those claims for 
reimbursement. 

 
3. Carry out the duties and responsibilities of membership as defined and delineated in the 

Consortium by-laws. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6



CMAATCM_FY22-25«LGA»  PAGE 7 OF 7 
  23R0238 

 
 

EXHIBIT B:  Payment and Fee Structure 
 

1. Initial or Reinstate Membership Fee: The LGA shall pay a one-time $500 fee to initially 
join or reinstate membership into the County Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
(CMAA)/Targeted Case Management (TCM) Consortium (“Consortium”).   This initial 
membership fee will only cover Consortium expenses.  Any LGA requesting 
reinstatement that left the Consortium in bad standing will be required to pay the balance 
of its outstanding participation fees plus interest plus penalties as determined by the Host 
Entity. 
 

2. Annual Participation Fee:   
 

a. The LGA shall be assessed an annual participation fee calculated as the LGA’s 
proportionate share of the LGA Consortium’s approved current fiscal year budget.  

b. The LGA’s proportionate share percentage shall be calculated as the actual MAA 
and TCM revenue received from DHCS by the LGA during the prior fiscal year 
divided by the total MAA and TCM revenue received from DHCS by all LGAs 
for that same period. 

c. The LGA’s proportionate share of the LGA Consortium’s approved current fiscal 
year budget shall be calculated by multiplying the proportionate share percentage 
by the LGA Consortium’s total budgeted expenditures for the MAA and TCM 
programs for the current fiscal year.  
 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: ADA8AB70-ECD7-487A-B7B3-17E67A3155A6



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: ADA8AB70ECD7487AB7B317E67A3155A6 Status: Completed

Subject: Contract 23R0238 (12441) 4/26/22 BOS

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 7 Signatures: 3 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Mary Chavez

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & 

Canada)

Stamps: 1 701 Ocean Street

Santa Cruz, CA  95060

Mary.Chavez@santacruzcounty.us

IP Address: 107.3.171.147  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             4/8/2022 2:58:49 PM

Holder: Mary Chavez

             Mary.Chavez@santacruzcounty.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: FedRamp

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: County of Santa Cruz Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
John Nguyen

John.Nguyen@santacruzcounty.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Signed by link sent to 

John.Nguyen@santacruzcounty.us

Using IP Address: 63.194.190.100

Sent: 4/8/2022 3:00:31 PM

Viewed: 4/8/2022 3:56:26 PM 

Signed: 4/8/2022 4:03:31 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 4/8/2022 3:56:26 PM
      ID: 89022582-a883-4623-9092-d3c66c6467f3

Enrique Sahagun

Enrique.Sahagun@santacruzcounty.us

Risk Manager

County of Santa Cruz

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Signed by link sent to 

Enrique.Sahagun@santacruzcounty.us

Using IP Address: 63.194.190.100

Sent: 4/8/2022 4:03:33 PM

Viewed: 4/10/2022 12:44:17 PM 

Signed: 4/10/2022 12:45:18 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 2/28/2022 5:38:23 PM
      ID: 53dded50-e6e0-41af-93b9-11ee12d5835c

CBD eSignature

CBD.eSignature@santacruzcounty.us

County of Santa Cruz

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signed

Using IP Address: 63.194.190.100

Sent: 4/10/2022 12:45:19 PM

Viewed: 4/26/2022 2:56:37 PM 

Signed: 4/26/2022 2:57:13 PM

Freeform Signing

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/1/2022 5:29:04 PM
      ID: c4e5a2a3-4d71-4795-ac63-16aaad036e28



Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jessica Randolph

jessica.randolph@santacruzcounty.us

Director of Admin Services

County of Santa Cruz

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Signed by link sent to 

jessica.randolph@santacruzcounty.us

Using IP Address: 71.93.37.150

Sent: 4/26/2022 2:57:15 PM

Viewed: 4/26/2022 3:05:25 PM 

Signed: 4/26/2022 3:05:31 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 2/28/2022 8:46:59 PM
      ID: 957179c9-b101-4630-bd39-2d1a034a766f

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Nikki Yates

Nikki.Yates@santacruzcounty.us

County of Santa Cruz

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 4/26/2022 3:05:32 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/2/2022 4:00:48 PM
      ID: fd2061df-9203-4a6d-b61c-0cb696122ca7

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 4/8/2022 3:00:31 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 4/26/2022 3:05:25 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 4/26/2022 3:05:31 PM

Completed Security Checked 4/26/2022 3:05:32 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Lucy Vincent
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. Contract
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 01 to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 contract between the County 
of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to 
exceed $41,500.00, and ratify the signature of the HHS Director. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This Amendment is necessary to add inpatient mental health rehabilitation services to the current agreement to 
accommodate the placement of a person conserved under the Lanterman Petris Short (LPS) Act at the 
Bakersfield Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC), a treatment facility operated by Crestwood.  The 
current contract amount is not sufficient to cover the costs associated with the recent, urgently needed placement 
of a resident into the treatment program.  The department's LPS Conservator is responsible for ensuring 
conserved individuals with serious mental illness are provided necessary treatment and when a conserved 
individual was recently in need of placement at the MHRC, the department consulted with County Counsel to 
navigate how to authorize the placement within the existing contract.  County Counsel reviewed the contract 
amendment, and advised the department to sign the amendment to ensure appropriate treatment of the 
individual, and then request your Board ratify the signature.  The HHS Director signed the amendment 
authorizing the placement and is bringing the item forward to your Board to ratify and approve the amendment 
the signature of the HHS Director.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny approval of Amendment Number One (1) to this contract.  This would result in the 
possible loss of this placement option for LPS conserved adults.  This would result in limited placement options, 
which might eventually necessitate placement in the State Hospital at great expense to the County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Courts
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
100% Mental Health Realignment Funds. This expense is budgeted in Mental Health (045200) in Support & Care 
(5508). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Crestwood-Inyo County Contract Amendment 1
2. Crestwood-Inyo Contract 157 
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/23/2022
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/23/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/27/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/31/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/31/2022



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

CRESlWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH, INC. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') and 
Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of California 

-----------------

(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Independent 
Contractor Services dated April 21, 2021 
Contract No. 157 , for the term from July 1, 2021 

, on County of Inyo Standard 
to June 30, 2022 ----------

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity. 

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 
To add inpatient mental health rehabilitation services to the current agreement. Please see the attached Scope 
of Services. 

The schedule of fees for inpatient mental health rehabilitation services at Bakersfield MHRC is as follows: 
Level 1 (1 :1) 696.00 

Level   2 370.00 
337.00 

304.00 

Level 3 

Level   4 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is _____________ _ 

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. 

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. _15_7 __ 
Page 1 

062912 

The limit on the amount payable under the Contract (section 3(D)) is raised to $41,500 to account for the additional inpatient mental 
health rehabilitation services that will be provided by Crestwood. 



12 May 2022

Marilyn Mann

5/12/2022



Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC) 
Program Description 

 
Mission 
Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. is providing sub-acute psychiatric inpatient treatment in a secure 
setting for severely mentally ill individuals who also have co-occurring substance use disorders 18 years 
old and older, who are within the following target populations: 

• Adults diagnosed as having a disabling psychiatric disorder such as schizophrenia or  
affective disorders and who require treatment in a 24-hour locked residential setting 

• Lanterman-Petris-Short Act (LPS) Conservatorship 
• Murphy Conservatorship 
• Post Certification/ 180 Day Hold 
• Misdemeanants Incompetent to Stand Trial (MIST) 

These individuals with severe mental disorders would otherwise be placed in a more acute facilities such 
as the State or local Psychiatric Hospital.   
The program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), with 
the environmental focused milieu recognized by both CARF and Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA).  
The mission of this program is to restore a sense of hope, empowerment, community/natural support 
inclusion, and realized potential in each client, as well as psychiatric stabilization during the crisis. 
 
Services 
Program staff are screening, admitting, assessing, and treating clients utilizing recovery-oriented services 
requiring sub-acute psychiatric services. Our services support each client to recover with an enhanced 
sense of resilience, accessing a wide range of wellness tools, peer, staff and natural supports. These 
services are instrumental in supporting each individual's transition to the most independent level of 
services including peer support, wellness and recovery programs, housing and natural supports.  
There are three or four levels of service with varying costs per day per client. MHRC Levels 1-4 offers 
increasingly enhanced services for clients at higher acuity levels, with Level 1 being the highest and 4 
being the lower. 
Level 1 – 1:1 supervision. Clients who display frequent severe behavioral problems, physically assaultive 
behavior and require one-to-one supervision to maintain their safety. These individuals are the most 
unstable, require medication observation and unable to do self-care. 
Level 2 - clients, who are subacute with behaviors that may require some additional supervision and have 
high level of behavioral interventions.  
Level 3 - clients, who will be significantly impaired, may be more chronic and require routine and frequent 
interventions, intensive programing and supervision and support.  
Level 4- clients with greater stabilization, who are low-level of need, require fewer but regular behavior 
intervention, psychoeducation, and community living skills development for a successful transition to 
independence. Usually, it’s the clients who have been stabilized and looking for appropriate placement.  
The professional staff, paraprofessionals including peer providers, and the system of services 
provided at the MHRC are a vital point of access for many clients. Crestwood’s staff are providing hope, 
choice, empowerment, and a restored belief in the self, that people will recover and that the future 
hospitalization will be reduced.  
 
Target Population 
The description of the population group to be served includes the following: 

-     age range -18 years old and older 
-     gender- male and female 
-     ethnicity - all threshold populations and all referred clients 



-     degree or level of impairment - mild to severe impairment 
-     diagnosis as listed in the most current edition of the diagnostic and statistical manual of  

mental disorders 
- expected needs of the population: behavioral challenges, social skills deficits, nursing 

complexity, social skills deficits 
 
Program Features: 

- 24-hour nursing supervision and care. 
- 24-hour psychiatric and mental health consultation. 
- Staff trained in treatment of significant and long-term mental health issues 
- Individual therapy with a licensed clinician. 
- Integrated treatment planning process. 
- Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) - individual and team approach. 
- Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) 
- Psycho-educational groups, individual counseling and support. 
- Independent Living skills training. 
- Dual recovery training and support 
- Motivational strategies to engage and continue engagement for this population. 
- Care and education for medical complexities not requiring skilled nursing. 
- Linkage to community supports. 
- Individualized recovery plans to achieve personal goals. 
- Wellness and fitness support. 
- Nutritional education, counseling and support. 
- Yoga, meditation and support for a spirituality path. 
- Peer support. 
- Dreamcatchers Empowerment Network vocational services as needed. 
- Meditation groups. 
- Family support. 
- Discharge and transition planning to create and support movement as possible. 

 
Program Goals 
1. Clients shall demonstrate improved functional behavior, as measured by movement through the 

facility levels of (1) assessment and evaluation, (2) recovery engagement and (3) community 
reintegration phase. 

2. Clients shall have sustainable medication levels reflecting Evidenced-Based Practice Guidelines, 
as measured through medication administration records. 

3. The program shall offer benefit to clients through a variety of rehabilitation services such as (but 
not limited to) the following: Individualized Counseling; AA/12 step groups.  
educational sessions; wellness and recovery groups; art therapy; relapse prevention groups; 
nutritional counseling; life skills training; stress reduction; self-management skills; exercise group, 
social skills groups; DBT; CBT; peer support; voc/rehab groups; personal motivation groups; 
pharmacology groups; and anger management. 

4. Contractor shall be successful in preventing direct placements of its clients in acute  
psychiatric hospitals, state hospitals or other locked long-term care facilities. 

 
Clinical Program Description - Major Component 

1. Basic needs rehabilitation is an integrated approach to the treatment of clients who have a serious 
and persistent mental illness with the following goals: 
- Stabilization from acute psychiatric symptoms 
- Resolution or reduction of psychiatric symptoms or problems 
- Treatment and stabilization of medication 



- Improvement in function: physical, emotional, social, family, interpersonal and spiritual 
development of recidivism prevention skills 

- Early intervention in the process of relapse of the psychiatric disorder 
2. Vocational rehabilitation program with the following goals: 

- Achievement of fundamental scholastic skills with assessment and testing by qualified 
professional staff 

- Training of vocational skills 
- Improvement in functioning: social, interpersonal, financial, occupational and academic 
- Improve cognitive, behavioral, interpersonal coping skills 
- Positive lifestyle change 
- Integration back into the community 

3. Dual Diagnosis rehabilitation is an integrated approach to treatment of clients who have a 
psychiatric disorder and a comorbid substance use disorder with the following goals: 
- Achievement and maintenance of abstinence from alcohol and/or other drugs of abuse 
- Development of relapse prevention skills 
- Early intervention in the process of relapse to either the substance use or psychiatric disorder 
- Helping the client to identify, prioritize and work on problems and recovery issues he/she 

identifies as important 
- Monitoring addiction recovery issues 
- Helping client develop specific recovery skills 
- Developing relapse prevention strategies 

 
Assessment Process 
The following assessments are completed within the designated time frames. 
 
24 hr. Admission 

-   Nursing Health Assessment 
-   Initial admission screening 
-   Primary Assessment initiated 
-   Recovery Service plans initiated 
-   Inventory of belongings 

  -   Records include program orientation, inventory of behavior and client rights 
-   Sexual risk assessment 

7 Days 
-   Primary Assessment 

10 Days 
-   Behavioral Assessment 
-   Psychiatric Evaluation- Basis 32 
-   Reinforcement Assessment 
-   Dietary Assessment 
-   Brief Psychiatric Rating Scale 
-   Vocational Assessment 

 -   Psycho-Social Assessment 
-   Recreation Assessment 
-   Group Referral Assessment 
-   Self-Appraisal 

 -   Transitional Appraisal 
-   Level Assessment 

14 Days 
- Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) Summary 

 



30 Days 
- Psychological Evaluation 
- Psychiatrist Evaluation 
- History and Physical 

 
Admission Process 
1.  Admissions will only be accepted with authorization from the County.  
2. Crestwood is providing services with the expectation that clients have co-occurring substance use 
issues and disorders that require integrated attention to achieve successful outcomes. 
3. Approval or Denial of Acceptance of all LPS, Murphy, MIST, and 180 Day Hold referrals is determined 
by Crestwood within 24-48 hours.  Referrals shall include the most recent psychiatric evaluation, 
Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) plan, Plan of Care, medication list, intake assessment, current health and 
physical note within the past year for LPS, Medical/Mental Health Information Transfer Summary to 
include known medical/mental health problems and current medications for MIST and 180- Holds, and 
Purified protein derivative (the PPD skin test for tuberculosis) whenever possible. Denials must include 
justification for basis of decision. 
 
Discharge Process 
Prior to any client discharge, Crestwood is notifying County designee to ensure coordination and transfer 
of care to appropriate community outpatient team. 
 
Crestwood's treatment program is developed with brief lengths of stay, anticipated for most clients. All 
clients are expected to demonstrate increased self-control and autonomy in preparation for discharge to 
less restrictive placements within the community. 
Crestwood is providing a restoration program to include restoration services specific to the needs of MIST 
clients.  
 
 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20th day of April 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health - Crestwood
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the contract
between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. for residential placement
for adults in a locked facility or an enhanced board and care in the amount not to exceed
$23,000 forthe period of July 1,2021to June 30,2022, contingent upon the Board's adoption
of the Fiscal Year 202112022 Budget, and authorize Chairperson to sign. Motion carried
unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 20th

Doy ,2021

CLINT G. QUILTER
C lerk oJ the Board of Supervisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: HHS
DATE: April 21, 2021

By:

&Ab;,,r-



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crestwood Behavioral Health. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') may have the need for the
Residential treatment services of Behavioral Health. lnc.
of California (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Gail Zwier Ph.D , whose
title is: HHS Deputy Director of Behavioral Health Requests to the Contractor for work or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The
County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement
incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all,
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

Julv 1,2021 to June 30.2022

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

Twenty-Three Thousand Dollars and no cents
23.000 (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly

reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work
performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 1

04t08t2020



E. Billinq and paylent. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Aftachment A, which were done at the County's request.
This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement
to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the
last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon
timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor
on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, and municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must-be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page2
04t08t2020



6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety
devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement
are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor
will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's
possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total,
which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Workers' Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers, and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County, its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses
including attorney fees arising out of the performance of work described herein, caused in whole or
in part by any alleged or proven negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor -f,,;:l"*'"' Treatment Services)

04t08t2020



be liable, except to the proportionate extent that such loss or damage was caused by the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

B. The County shall hold harmless, defend, and indemniflT Contractor and its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against liability, loss, damage, expense, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) arising out of or in connection with the
County's performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained
in the agreement except for the proportionate percentage that liability, loss, damage, expense, or
costs were caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor. ln no event shall the
cost to defend charged to the County exceed the County's proportionate percentage of fault.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, certification and licensing
regulations, and directions. Records shall be permanent, either typewritten or legibly written in ink and shall
be kept on all patients accepted for treatment. All health records of discharged patients shall be completed
and filed within thirty (30) days after termination of each episode of treatment and such records shall be kept
for a minimum of seven (7) years, except for minors whose records shall be kept at least until one (1) year
after the minor has reached the age of 18, but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California
Code of Regulations, Tille 22 Section 75054, and 75343. All psychologist records shall also be maintained
on each patient for seven years from the patient's discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after
the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent with California Business and Professions Code Section 2919.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of Gounty shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, ancestry,
gender, sexual orientation, age, national origin, or mental or physical handicap. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. PATIENTS RIGHTS.

Contractor shall comply with applicable patients' rights provisions in W&l Division 5, Part l; Title 9,
California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in the provision of services to
patients hereunder. Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a written policy on patient rights
in accordance with Section70707 of Title 22 ol lhe California Code of Regulations and Section 5325.1 of the
Welfare and lnstitutions Code. Complaints by patients or beneficiaries with regard to substandard conditions
may be investigated by the County's Patients' Rights Advocate, County or State Department of Mental
Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or such other agency, as
required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting information on grievance and appeal
processes accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries receiving services at the facility. Contractor
shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at Contractor sites, without requiring either written
or verbal request, grievance and appeal forms and lnyo County Mental Health self-addressed envelopes.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 4
04t08t2020



15. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days' written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days'written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

16. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

17. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days'
written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

18. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-four (24) below

19. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's wriften
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

20. coNFLtcTs.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

21. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 5 
o4n',o2o



Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

22. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

23. FUNDING LIMITATION

The abilfty of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
four (24) (Amendment).

24. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

25. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or sent by prepaid first
class mailto the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
HHS - Rchavinral Department

Street
City and State

162 J Grove
Bishop, CA 93514

Contractor:
Flena lVlashkcvieh Name
520 CapitolMall. Suite 800 Street
Sacramento, CA 95814 City and State

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 6

ilil ilil

04t08t2020



IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
21st DAyOF April ,2W,

AGREEiIENT BEIWEEN COUNW OF INYO
AND Creetwood l{aellh lne

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATT'ENT SERVICES

CONTRACTORCOUNTYOF INYO

Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson
Type or Print Neme

Dated: 04t2112021

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Elena Mashkevidr, Dhec{or of County Contrac{s
Type or Pdnt Name

,@
Signature

e f/42J /

By

Dated

0u^/^t

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

flfni*ZVilarhr,hla-
County Auditor

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REAUIREMENTS:

County Risk

County of lnyo Standard Contrad,- No, 157 (modilled)
(lndependent Contactor - Residential Treatnent Suvicec)

PageT
un8nv20



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crestwood Behavioral Health. lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv'1.2021 TO: June3O,2O22

SCOPE OFWORK:

Residential care in a locked Psychiatric Skilled Nursing Facility Provided by Crestwood Behavioral Health lnc.
Facility shall maintain skilled nursing licensure and certification. Treatment services to include daily needs:
food, bed, monthly barber, hairstyling services, and basic hygiene products. Special needs to be provided:
activities, nursing services, special treatment program to provide a structured educational living environment,
which provides for each resident's psychosocial needs.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor- Residential Treatment Services)

Page 8
04t08t2020



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO
AND c reshlrnnal Rehaviar:rl lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVIGES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1. 1 TO: June3O.2O22

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

See attached schedule of fees for treatment sites and programs. Refer to Stockton facility fees for
current services. Fee is for the special rreatment program patch rate of $61.00 per day.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 9
04108t2020



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

  
       

 CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2021 
 

 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity 
program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are 
not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22. 

 

 

 

 
 

SNF/STP - IMD Designation 
 Room and Board/Per 

Diem Patch/Enhancement 
 

Crestwood Wellness and Recovery Ctr 
 

 235.16 
 

25.00  
Redding SNF/STP (IMD) - 1122 

 
   

 
46.00  

NPI - 1194743088 
 

   
 

61.00  

 
   

 
117.00  

 
 Negotiated 

 
 

SNF/STP  
 Room and Board/Per 

Diem Patch/Enhancement 
 

Crestwood Manor - Stockton 
 

 Medi-Cal Published Rate 
 

25.00 
San Joaquin SNF/STP - 1104 

 
 **Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 36.00 

NPI - 1730128174 
 

   
 

38.00 
  

 
   

 
61.00 

 
 88.00 

 
 117.00 

 
 Negotiated 

  
 

 

Crestwood Manor - Modesto 
 

 Medi-Cal Published Rate 
 

25.00 
Stanislaus SNF/STP - 1112 

 
 **Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 41.00 

NPI - 1508884487 
 

   
 

61.00 
  

 
   

 
88.00 

 
     117.00 

 
 Negotiated 

 
 

Crestwood Manor - Fremont 
 

 Medi-Cal Published Rate 
 

25.00 
Alameda SNF/STP - 1134 

 
 **Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 33.00 

NPI - 1902828403 
 

 61.00 

 
 96.00 

 
   

 
140.00 

 
   

 
Negotiated 

SNF  
Crestwood Treatment Center - Fremont 

 
 Medi-Cal Published Rate 

 
140.00 

Alameda SNF - 1120 
 

 **Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 
NPI - 1942228838 
 

 

 
  

 
Negotiated 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

       

  
       

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.      7/1/2021 
 

 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity 
programs, OTC medications, dietary, etc.  Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services 
are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 9. 

 

 

 

 
 

Mental Health Rehabilitation Centers 
(MHRC) 

 
Room and Board/Per Diem 

 

Crestwood Center - Sacramento 
 

Level 1  370.00  
 Sacramento MHRC - 1106 

 
Level 2  337.00  

 NPI - 1356411656 
 

Level 3  306.00  
  

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr – San Jose 
 

Level 1  404.00  
 Santa Clara MHRC - 1107 

 
Level 2   324.00  

 NPI - 1376623256 
 

Level 3  315.00  
  

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr - Eureka 
 

 318.00  
 Humboldt MHRC - 1110 

 
 

NPI - 1124046008 
 

 

 

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr - Bakersfield 
 

Level 1 (1:1)  696.00  
 Kern MHRC - 1115 

 
Level 2   370.00  

 NPI - 1275610800 
 

Level 3  337.00  
 Level 4  304.00  
  

Crestwood Center at Angwin, Napa Valley 
 

Level 1  362.00  
 Napa MHRC - 1116 

 
Level 2  288.00  

 NPI - 1316024953 
 

Level 3  235.00  
  

Kingsburg Healing Center 
 

Level 1  475.00  
 Fresno MHRC - 1140 

 
Level 2  416.00  

 NPI – 1073989661 
 

Level 3  357.00  
 Bedhold  297.00  
  

Crestwood Recovery and Rehab Ctr– Vallejo 
 

Level 1  372.00  
 Solano MHRC - 1141 

 
Level 2  316.00  

 NPI - 1508935834 
 

Level 3  280.00  
 Level 4  263.00  
  

       

       



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

       

Crestwood San Diego 
 

Level 1  454.00  
 San Diego MHRC - 1154 

 
Level 2  389.00  

 NPI - 1295146934 
 

Level 3  323.00  
 Bedhold  314.65  
  

Crestwood Chula Vista 
 

Level 1 
 

454.00  
 San Diego MHRC - 1164 

 
Level 2  389.00  

 NPI - 1023495181 
 

Level 3  323.00  
 Bedhold  314.65  
  

San Francisco Healing Center 
 

SF Blended Rate   495.00  
 San Francisco MHRC - 1166 

 
Bedhold      486.65 

 NPI - 1447758024 
 

   
  

Fallbrook Healing Center 
 

Level 1 
 

464.00  
 San Diego MHRC - 1167 

 
Level 2  397.00  

 NPI - 1639738297 
 

Level 3  331.00  
 Bedhold  317.00  
  

Champion Healing Center - Lompoc  Level 1 
 

530.00    

Santa Barbara MHRC - 1170  Level 2  440.00    

NPI - 31487282273  Level 3  362.00    

       

       
 
                                                 

 
   

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 
                                                
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

   



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.    7/1/2021 
 

 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity 
program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services 
are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22. 

 

 

 

 
 

Psychiatric Health Facilities (PHF) 
Room and Board/Per 

Diem 
 

 

Crestwood PHF - Carmichael 
 

900.00   
 American River, Sacramento - 1153 

 
 

NPI - 1972827343 
 

 

 

Crestwood Center PHF - Sacramento 
 

900.00   
 Sacramento - 1156 

 
 

NPI - 1669734075 
 

 

 

Crestwood PHF – San Jose 
 

1,082.00   
 Santa Clara - 1157 

 
 

NPI - 1598065047 
 

 

 

Crestwood Bakersfield PHF  
 

975.00   
 Kern – 1158 

 
 

NPI - 1194034645 
 

 

 

Crestwood Solano PHF – Vallejo 
 

998.00   
 Solano PHF - 1159 

 
 

NPI - 1780009142 
 

 

 
Crestwood Sonoma PHF   1,000.00 

 

  

Sonoma PHF - XXXX      

NPI - XXXXXXXXXX      
 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

  
      

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2021 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity 
program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services 
are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22. 

 Pathways ARF - Eureka 
 

198.00  
Humboldt, Social Rehabilitation Center - 1125 

 NPI - 1811374564 
 

Crestwood Solano Our House, ARF at Vallejo 
 

150.00  
Solano ARF - 1136 

 NPI - 1750452199 
 

Bridge Program – Bakersfield ARF 
 

209.00  
Bakersfield, Social Rehabilitation Center-1137 

 NPI - 1265501597 
 

American River Resident. Services-Carmichael 
 

150.00  
Sacramento ARF - 1139 

 NPI - 1104905645 
 

Bridge Program - Pleasant Hill 
 

150.00  
Contra Costa ARF - 1143 

 NPI - 1669543005 
 

The Pathway - Pleasant Hill 
 

203.00  
Contra Costa, Social Rehab Center- 1144 

 NPI - 1578634911 
 

Bridge Program - Fresno 
 

209.00  
Fresno, Social Rehabilitation Center - 1145 

 NPI - 1093892663 
 

Crestwood Hope Center – Vallejo 
 

150.00  
Solano RCFE - 1152 

 NPI - 1962702324 
 

Hummingbird Healing House – San Diego 
 

195.00  
San Diego Social Rehabilitation Center - 1168 

 NPI - 1992206734 
  



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Creshunori Health. lnc-

FORTHE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM

FROM: Julv 1,2021 TO: June 3O.2O22

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 10
04108t2020



Attachment C: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services 

Page  

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 
Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL 
on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, 
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of 
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or 
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage 
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad 
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 
forms if later revisions used).  
 
Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 
Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that 
contractor has no employees. 
 
Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor’s profession, 
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.  
 
Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be 
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information (PII) or personal medical 
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations 
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims 
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of 
copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to 
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic 
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach 
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses 
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.  
 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher 



Attachment C: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services 

Page  

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 
Primary Coverage  
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, as additional insureds. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be 
excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  
 
Notice of Cancellation  
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except 
with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation  
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer 
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions  
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim 
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide, 
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named 
insured or Inyo County.  
 
Acceptability of Insurers  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies  
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the 

beginning of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five 

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy 

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must 
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of 
contract work.  

 
 



Attachment C: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services 

Page  

Verification of Coverage  
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all 
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure 
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at 
any time.  
 
Subcontractors  
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Special Risks or Circumstances  
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

-end- 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Lucy Vincent
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. for the provision of residential treatment 
services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of 
Sacramento, CA for the provision of Residential Treatment services in an amount not to exceed $60,000.00 for 
the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board approved a contract with Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. for the amount of $25,000.00 on May 17, 
2022.  However, just prior to May 17, 2022, the Department needed to make an urgent placement of a conserved 
individual into Crestwood's Bakersfield Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC).  This placement resulted in 
the department needing to amend the current year's contract as well as change the contract for FY 2022/2023. 
 Although your Board approved the FY 2022/2023 contract at the May 17 Board meeting, that contract has not 
yet been forwarded to or signed by Crestwood.  Therefore, in order to incorporate the changes necessary for the 
County to receive MHRC services, HHS is bringing a new version of the FY 2022/2023 contract to the Board. 
 This new version will supersede the version approved on May 17, as the May 17 version was never fully 
executed.  

Crestwood provides specialized services that meet both the physical and emotional needs of the people they 
serve.  Crestwood works closely with our deputy conservators who oversee the needs of persons conserved 
under the Lanterman Petris Short (LPS) Act, and provides treatment updates and planning as appropriate.  In 
addition to an individual who has been placed with Crestwood Behavioral Health for approximately 8 years ago, a 
second individual was recently placed at the Bakersfield MHRC in May 2022 to receive inpatient mental health 
rehabilitation services.

The Department respectfully requests your Board's approval of the contract for FY 2022/2023.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Your Board could choose not to approve this contract.  This would jeopardize the placement of the conservatees. 
 Appropriate placements are often difficult to obtain and there is no guarantee that another facility that offers 
proper care will be found.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Courts
 
FINANCING:
100% Mental Health Realignment Funds. (at least one client's residential cost is partially reimbursed with SSI 
payments). This contract is budgeted in Mental Health (045200) in Support & Care (5508). No County General 
Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Crestwood Contract - FY 22-23 
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/24/2022
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/25/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/27/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/30/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/31/2022
Anna Scott Final Approval - 5/31/2022



04/08/2020 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the 
Residential treatment services of   Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. 
of  California     (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in 
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties 
hereby agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Kimball Pier Ph.D., LMFT , whose 
title is:   HHS Deputy Director of Behavioral Health .   Requests to the Contractor for work or 
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The 
County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or 
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement 
incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, 
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2022  to June 30, 2023 
unless sooner terminated as provided below. 

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  

B. Travel and per diem.  Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement. 

C. No additional consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.  The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 

Sixty Thousand                                         Dollars and             no                               cents
($ 60,000__________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to 
deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in 
excess of the contract limit. 

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
(Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 

Page 1  



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 2      

04/08/2020 

 E. Billing and payment.  Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
 (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
 (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from 
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on 
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
 (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State 
Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 
 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, and municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits 
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
 
 
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 3      

04/08/2020 

 
 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 Personal Property of County.  Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety 
devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement 
are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  Contractor 
will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's 
possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, 
which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 
 

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 

 
9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 
 
 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 
 
 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
  A. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses 
including attorney fees arising out of the performance of work described herein, caused in whole 
or in part by any alleged or proven negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may 
be liable, except to the proportionate extent that such loss or damage was caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the County.  
 

  B. The County shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify Contractor and its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against liability, loss, damage, expense, costs 
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) arising out of or in connection with the 
County’s performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 4      

04/08/2020 

contained in the agreement except for the proportionate percentage that liability, loss, damage, 
expense, or costs were caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor. In no 
event shall the cost to defend charged to the County exceed the County’s proportionate percentage 
of fault. 
  
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, certification and licensing 
regulations, and directions.  Records shall be permanent, either typewritten or legibly written in ink and shall 
be kept on all patients accepted for treatment.  All health records of discharged patients shall be completed 
and filed within thirty (30) days after termination of each episode of treatment and such records shall be kept 
for a minimum of seven (7) years, except for minors whose records shall be kept at least until one (1) year 
after the minor has reached the age of 18, but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California 
Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 75054, and 75343.   All psychologist records shall also be maintained 
on each patient for seven years from the patient’s discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after 
the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent with California Business and Professions Code Section 2919. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. 
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, ancestry, 
gender, sexual orientation, age, national origin, or mental or physical handicap.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 
13. PATIENTS RIGHTS. 
 
 Contractor shall comply with applicable patients’ rights provisions in W&I Division 5, Part I; Title 9, 
California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in the provision of services to 
patients hereunder.  Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a written policy on patient rights 
in accordance with Section 70707 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Section 5325.1 of the 
Welfare and Institutions Code.  Complaints by patients or beneficiaries with regard to substandard conditions 
may be investigated by the County’s Patients’ Rights Advocate, County or State Department of Mental 
Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or such other agency, as 
required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting information on grievance and appeal 
processes accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries receiving services at the facility.  Contractor 
shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at Contractor sites, without requiring either 
written or verbal request, grievance and appeal forms and Inyo County Mental Health self-addressed 
envelopes. 
 
14. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days’ written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days’ written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 5      

04/08/2020 

 
15. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 
 
16. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days’ 
written notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts 
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   
 
17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below. 
 
18. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
19. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 
 
20.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 6      

04/08/2020 

21. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
22. FUNDING  LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three 
(23) (Amendment). 
 
23. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
24. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 
   County of Inyo 
   HHS – Behavioral Health    Department 
   1360 North Main Street, Suite 124  Street 
   Bishop, CA 93514    City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
   Elena Mashkevich     Name 
   520 Capitol Mall, Suite 800   Street 
   Sacramento, CA 95814    City and State 
 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

 
////       //// 





County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
(Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 

Page 8  
04/08/2020 

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
 AND Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. 

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 

TERM: 

 FROM: July 1, 2022 TO: June 30, 2023 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

Residential care in a locked Psychiatric Skilled Nursing Facility Provided by Crestwood Behavioral Health Inc. 
Facility shall maintain skilled nursing licensure and certification.  Treatment services to include daily needs: 
food, bed, monthly barber, hairstyling services, and basic hygiene products.  Special needs to be provided: 
activities, nursing services, special treatment program to provide a structured educational living 
environment, which provides for each resident's psychosocial needs.   

Additionally, Crestwood shall provide Inpatient Mental Health Rehabilitation Services as described on the 
attached document "Mental Health Rehabilitation Center Program Description."



Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC) 
Program Description 

 
Mission 
Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. is providing sub-acute psychiatric inpatient treatment in a secure 
setting for severely mentally ill individuals who also have co-occurring substance use disorders 18 years 
old and older, who are within the following target populations: 

• Adults diagnosed as having a disabling psychiatric disorder such as schizophrenia or  
affective disorders and who require treatment in a 24-hour locked residential setting 

• Lanterman-Petris-Short Act (LPS) Conservatorship 
• Murphy Conservatorship 
• Post Certification/ 180 Day Hold 
• Misdemeanants Incompetent to Stand Trial (MIST) 

These individuals with severe mental disorders would otherwise be placed in a more acute facilities such 
as the State or local Psychiatric Hospital.   
The program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), with 
the environmental focused milieu recognized by both CARF and Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA).  
The mission of this program is to restore a sense of hope, empowerment, community/natural support 
inclusion, and realized potential in each client, as well as psychiatric stabilization during the crisis. 
 
Services 
Program staff are screening, admitting, assessing, and treating clients utilizing recovery-oriented services 
requiring sub-acute psychiatric services. Our services support each client to recover with an enhanced 
sense of resilience, accessing a wide range of wellness tools, peer, staff and natural supports. These 
services are instrumental in supporting each individual's transition to the most independent level of 
services including peer support, wellness and recovery programs, housing and natural supports.  
There are three or four levels of service with varying costs per day per client. MHRC Levels 1-4 offers 
increasingly enhanced services for clients at higher acuity levels, with Level 1 being the highest and 4 
being the lower. 
Level 1 – 1:1 supervision. Clients who display frequent severe behavioral problems, physically assaultive 
behavior and require one-to-one supervision to maintain their safety. These individuals are the most 
unstable, require medication observation and unable to do self-care. 
Level 2 - clients, who are subacute with behaviors that may require some additional supervision and have 
high level of behavioral interventions.  
Level 3 - clients, who will be significantly impaired, may be more chronic and require routine and frequent 
interventions, intensive programing and supervision and support.  
Level 4- clients with greater stabilization, who are low-level of need, require fewer but regular behavior 
intervention, psychoeducation, and community living skills development for a successful transition to 
independence. Usually, it’s the clients who have been stabilized and looking for appropriate placement.  
The professional staff, paraprofessionals including peer providers, and the system of services 
provided at the MHRC are a vital point of access for many clients. Crestwood’s staff are providing hope, 
choice, empowerment, and a restored belief in the self, that people will recover and that the future 
hospitalization will be reduced.  
 
Target Population 
The description of the population group to be served includes the following: 

-     age range -18 years old and older 
-     gender- male and female 
-     ethnicity - all threshold populations and all referred clients 



-     degree or level of impairment - mild to severe impairment 
-     diagnosis as listed in the most current edition of the diagnostic and statistical manual of  

mental disorders 
- expected needs of the population: behavioral challenges, social skills deficits, nursing 

complexity, social skills deficits 
 
Program Features: 

- 24-hour nursing supervision and care. 
- 24-hour psychiatric and mental health consultation. 
- Staff trained in treatment of significant and long-term mental health issues 
- Individual therapy with a licensed clinician. 
- Integrated treatment planning process. 
- Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) - individual and team approach. 
- Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) 
- Psycho-educational groups, individual counseling and support. 
- Independent Living skills training. 
- Dual recovery training and support 
- Motivational strategies to engage and continue engagement for this population. 
- Care and education for medical complexities not requiring skilled nursing. 
- Linkage to community supports. 
- Individualized recovery plans to achieve personal goals. 
- Wellness and fitness support. 
- Nutritional education, counseling and support. 
- Yoga, meditation and support for a spirituality path. 
- Peer support. 
- Dreamcatchers Empowerment Network vocational services as needed. 
- Meditation groups. 
- Family support. 
- Discharge and transition planning to create and support movement as possible. 

 
Program Goals 
1. Clients shall demonstrate improved functional behavior, as measured by movement through the 

facility levels of (1) assessment and evaluation, (2) recovery engagement and (3) community 
reintegration phase. 

2. Clients shall have sustainable medication levels reflecting Evidenced-Based Practice Guidelines, 
as measured through medication administration records. 

3. The program shall offer benefit to clients through a variety of rehabilitation services such as (but 
not limited to) the following: Individualized Counseling; AA/12 step groups.  
educational sessions; wellness and recovery groups; art therapy; relapse prevention groups; 
nutritional counseling; life skills training; stress reduction; self-management skills; exercise group, 
social skills groups; DBT; CBT; peer support; voc/rehab groups; personal motivation groups; 
pharmacology groups; and anger management. 

4. Contractor shall be successful in preventing direct placements of its clients in acute  
psychiatric hospitals, state hospitals or other locked long-term care facilities. 

 
Clinical Program Description - Major Component 

1. Basic needs rehabilitation is an integrated approach to the treatment of clients who have a serious 
and persistent mental illness with the following goals: 
- Stabilization from acute psychiatric symptoms 
- Resolution or reduction of psychiatric symptoms or problems 
- Treatment and stabilization of medication 



- Improvement in function: physical, emotional, social, family, interpersonal and spiritual 
development of recidivism prevention skills 

- Early intervention in the process of relapse of the psychiatric disorder 
2. Vocational rehabilitation program with the following goals: 

- Achievement of fundamental scholastic skills with assessment and testing by qualified 
professional staff 

- Training of vocational skills 
- Improvement in functioning: social, interpersonal, financial, occupational and academic 
- Improve cognitive, behavioral, interpersonal coping skills 
- Positive lifestyle change 
- Integration back into the community 

3. Dual Diagnosis rehabilitation is an integrated approach to treatment of clients who have a 
psychiatric disorder and a comorbid substance use disorder with the following goals: 
- Achievement and maintenance of abstinence from alcohol and/or other drugs of abuse 
- Development of relapse prevention skills 
- Early intervention in the process of relapse to either the substance use or psychiatric disorder 
- Helping the client to identify, prioritize and work on problems and recovery issues he/she 

identifies as important 
- Monitoring addiction recovery issues 
- Helping client develop specific recovery skills 
- Developing relapse prevention strategies 

 
Assessment Process 
The following assessments are completed within the designated time frames. 
 
24 hr. Admission 

-   Nursing Health Assessment 
-   Initial admission screening 
-   Primary Assessment initiated 
-   Recovery Service plans initiated 
-   Inventory of belongings 

  -   Records include program orientation, inventory of behavior and client rights 
-   Sexual risk assessment 

7 Days 
-   Primary Assessment 

10 Days 
-   Behavioral Assessment 
-   Psychiatric Evaluation- Basis 32 
-   Reinforcement Assessment 
-   Dietary Assessment 
-   Brief Psychiatric Rating Scale 
-   Vocational Assessment 

 -   Psycho-Social Assessment 
-   Recreation Assessment 
-   Group Referral Assessment 
-   Self-Appraisal 

 -   Transitional Appraisal 
-   Level Assessment 

14 Days 
- Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) Summary 

 



30 Days 
- Psychological Evaluation 
- Psychiatrist Evaluation 
- History and Physical 

 
Admission Process 
1.  Admissions will only be accepted with authorization from the County.  
2. Crestwood is providing services with the expectation that clients have co-occurring substance use 
issues and disorders that require integrated attention to achieve successful outcomes. 
3. Approval or Denial of Acceptance of all LPS, Murphy, MIST, and 180 Day Hold referrals is determined 
by Crestwood within 24-48 hours.  Referrals shall include the most recent psychiatric evaluation, 
Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) plan, Plan of Care, medication list, intake assessment, current health and 
physical note within the past year for LPS, Medical/Mental Health Information Transfer Summary to 
include known medical/mental health problems and current medications for MIST and 180- Holds, and 
Purified protein derivative (the PPD skin test for tuberculosis) whenever possible. Denials must include 
justification for basis of decision. 
 
Discharge Process 
Prior to any client discharge, Crestwood is notifying County designee to ensure coordination and transfer 
of care to appropriate community outpatient team. 
 
Crestwood's treatment program is developed with brief lengths of stay, anticipated for most clients. All 
clients are expected to demonstrate increased self-control and autonomy in preparation for discharge to 
less restrictive placements within the community. 
Crestwood is providing a restoration program to include restoration services specific to the needs of MIST 
clients.  
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
(Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 

Page 9  
04/08/2020 

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
 AND Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc . 

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 

TERM: 

 FROM: July 1, 2022 TO: June 30, 2023 

SCHEDULE  OF  FEES: 

See attached schedule of fees for treatment sites and programs. Refer to Stockton facility fees 
for current services. Fee is for the Special Treatment Program patch rate of $67.00 per day.   

The schedule of fees for inpatient mental health rehabilitation services at Bakersfield MHRC is 
as follows:

Level 1:1 - $720 per day
MIST - $450 per day 
Level 1 - $389 per day 
Level 2 - $354 per day 
Level 3 - $319 per day 



 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2022 
 
 

1 
 

SNF/STP - IMD Designation Room and Board/Per Diem Patch/Enhancement 

   
Crestwood Wellness and  243.40 28.00 
Recovery Ctr  51.00 
Redding IMD – 1122  67.00 
NPI - 1194743088  129.00 
  Negotiated 
   
SNF/STP Room and Board/Per Diem Patch/Enhancement 
   
Crestwood Manor Medi-Cal Published Rate 28.00 
Stockton SNF/STP – 1104 *Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 40.00 

NPI - 1730128174  42.00 
  67.00 
  97.00 
  129.00 
  Negotiated 
   
Crestwood Manor Medi-Cal Published Rate 28.00 
Modesto SNF/STP - 1112 *Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 45.00 
NPI - 1508884487  67.00 
  97.00 
  129.00 
  Negotiated 
   
Crestwood Manor - Fremont Medi-Cal Published Rate 28.00 
Alameda SNF/STP - 1134 *Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible 36.00 
NPI - 1902828403  67.00 
  106.00 
  154.00 
  Negotiated 
   
SNF Room and Board/Per Diem Patch/Enhancement 
   
Crestwood Treatment Center Medi-Cal Published Rate 154.00 
Fremont SNF - 1120 *Indigent/Medi-Cal Ineligible Negotiated 
NPI - 1942228838 
 

  

 

 

 



 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2022 
 
 

2 
 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, 
activity programs, OTC medications, dietary, etc.  Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary 
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with 
Title 9. 

 

Mental Health Rehabilitation 
Centers 

 

   
Crestwood Center Level 1 389.00  
Sacramento MHRC - 1106 Level 2 354.00  
NPI - 1356411656 Level 3 321.00  
   
Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr Level 1 424.00  
San Jose MHRC - 1107 Level 2  340.00  
NPI - 1376623256 Level 3 331.00  
   
Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr  334.00  
Eureka MHRC - 1110   
NPI - 1124046008   
   
Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr Level (1:1) 720.00  
Bakersfield MHRC - 1115 MIST  450.00  
NPI - 1275610800 Level 1  389.00  
 Level 2 354.00  
 Level 3 319.00  
   
Crestwood C.E.N.T.E.R. Level 1 380.00  
Angwin MHRC - 1116 Level 2 302.00  
NPI - 1316024953 Level 3 249.00  
   
Kingsburg Healing Center Level 1 494.00  
Kingsburg MHRC - 1140 Level 2 437.00  
NPI – 1073989661 Level 3 375.00  
 Bedhold Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost** 
   
Crestwood Recovery and Rehab Level 1 391.00  
Vallejo MHRC - 1141 Level 2 332.00  
NPI - 1508935834 Level 3 294.00  
 Level 4 276.00  
   
Crestwood San Diego Level 1 469.00  
San Diego MHRC - 1154 Level 2 402.00  
NPI - 1295146934 Level 3 334.00  
 Bedhold Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost** 
 
   



 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2022 
 
 

3 
 

 
Crestwood Chula Vista Level 1 469.00  
Chula Vista MHRC - 1164 Level 2 402.00  
NPI - 1023495181 Level 3 334.00  
 Bedhold Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost** 
   
San Francisco Healing Center  519.00 
San Francisco MHRC - 1166 Bedhold Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost** 
NPI - 1447758024   
   
Fallbrook Healing Center Level 1 487.00  
Fallbrook Healing - 1167 Level 2 417.00  
NPI - 1639738297 Level 3 348.00  
 Bedhold Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost** 
   
Champion Healing Center MIST 550.00 
Lompoc - 1170 Level 1 541.00 
NPI - 31487282273 Level 2 458.00 
 Level 3 380.00 

 

 

 

** Bed hold rate raw food reduction is $8.73 for FY 21/22 

  



 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2022 
 
 

4 
 

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, 
activity program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary 
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with 
Title 22. 

 

Psychiatric Health Facilities Room and Board/Per Diem Room and Board/Per Diem 
for indigent client 

   
Crestwood Psychiatric Health 
Facility 

963.00  1,113.00 

American River PHF - 1153   
NPI - 1972827343   
   
Crestwood Psychiatric Health 
Facility 

963.00  1,113.00 

Sacramento PHF - 1156   
NPI - 1669734075   
   
Crestwood Psychiatric Health 
Facility 

1,125.00  1,275.00 

San Jose PHF - 1157   
NPI - 1598065047   
   
Crestwood Psychiatric Health 
Facility 

1,038.00  1,188.00 

Bakersfield PHF - 1158   
NPI - 1194034645   
   
Crestwood Solano PHF Psych 
Health Facility 

1,038.00  1,188.00 

Solano PHF - 1159   
NPI - 1780009142   
   
Crestwood Sonoma PHF Psych 
Health Facility 

1,040.00  1,190.00 

Sonoma PHF - 1175   
NPI - 1043848831   

 

 

 

 

 



 

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.   7/1/2022 
 
 

5 
 

 

 
Adult Residential Facilities/Social Rehabilitation Center 

 
Patch/Enhancement 
Per Day 

 

   
Pathways 218.00   
Eureka Pathways RTF - 1125   
NPI - 1811374564   
   
Our House 165.00   
Solano Our House ARF - 1136   
NPI - 1750452199   
   
Bridge Program - Bakersfield 230.00   
Bakersfield Bridge TRTP - 1137   
NPI - 1265501597   
   
American River Residential Services 165.00   
American River ARF - 1139   
NPI - 1104905645   
   
Bridge Program - Pleasant Hill 165.00   
Pleasant Hill Bridge ARF - 1143   
NPI - 1669543005   
   
The Pathway 223.00   
Pleasant Hill Pathway RTF - 1144   
NPI - 1578634911   
   
Bridge Program Fresno 230.00   
Fresno Bridge RTF - 1145   
NPI - 1093892663   
   
Crestwood Hope Center 165.00   
Vallejo RCFE - 1152   
NPI - 1962702324   
   
Hummingbird Healing House 182.00   
San Diego - 1168   
NPI - 1992206734   

 

 



 
 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified) 
 (Independent Contractor – Residential Treatment Services) 
 Page 10      

04/08/2020 

ATTACHMENT  C 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
                                    AND  Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.  

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 
 

 
TERM: 

 
 
     FROM:  July 1, 2022   TO:  June 30, 2023    
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services; Page  

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an 
“occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily 
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence. If a 
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any 
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less 
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived 
with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be 
used for/during the execution of the contract.  

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that 
contractor has no employees. 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the Contractor’s 
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $4,000,000 aggregate. 
Check with Risk Management if Professional Liability is required for the contract to which these 
requirements are attached. 

5. Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. Provision 
may be waived if contractor will not be receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable 
information (PII) or personal medical information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to 
respond to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall 
include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including 
but not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy 
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The 
policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties 
as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations. 
Professional liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage. 

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services; Page  

Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 



Attachment C: 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
 

2022 County of Inyo Insurance Standards- No. 1 
Professional Services; Page  

Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 

of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 

with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, 
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
-end- 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Participation agreement with California Mental Health Services Authority 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the participation agreement between the County of Inyo and California Mental Health 
Services Authority of Sacramento, CA for the provision of consulting services in an amount not to exceed 
$74,800 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
California Mental Health Services Authority  is pleased to offer a number of projects to support counties in 
meeting required Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program (BHQIP) deliverables and implementing the 
California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) transformation. The projects help satisfy DHCS 
milestone requirements under the categories of payment reform, policy changes, and data exchange.  The 
Contractor will work closely with our Grants and Innovations Manager and other team members to ensure 
compliance with all requirements and timeframes.

The Department respectfully request your Board approve the agreement and authorize the HHS Director to sign 
the participation agreement.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
We would have to navigate the changes ourselves with limited staff.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Health Care Services
 
FINANCING:
State funding.  This agreement will be budgeted in CMH (045200) in Professional Services (5265).  No County 
General Funds.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Participation Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 5/7/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/9/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/11/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/11/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/12/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/12/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/12/2022



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Participation Agreement 

CALIFORNIA MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES AUTHORITY
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

COVER SHEET

1. Inyo County (“Participant”) desires to participate in the Program identified below. 

Name of Program: Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program (BQHIP)

2. California Mental Health Services Authority (“CalMHSA”) and Participant acknowledge that the 
Program will be governed by CalMHSA’s Joint Powers Agreement and its Bylaws, and by this 
participation agreement. The following exhibits are intended to clarify how the provisions of those 
documents will be applied to this particular Program. 

 Exhibit A Program Description and Funding 

 Exhibit B General Terms and Conditions

 Exhibit C County Specific Scope of Services and/or Funding 

 Appendix A Work Order Form

3. The maximum amount payable under this Agreement is $74,800

4. The term of the Program is upon execution through June 30, 2024.

5. Authorized Signatures:

CalMHSA

Signed:                                                     Name (Printed):  Dr. Amie Miller, Psy.D., MFT      

Title: Executive Director Date:

Participant: Inyo County

Signed:                                                     Name (Printed):  Marilyn Mann

Title:  Director Date:



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Exhibit A – Program Description and Funding  
Page 2 of 9

Participation Agreement
EXHIBIT A – PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 

I. Name of Program: Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

II. Term of Program: Upon Execution through June 30, 2024

III. Program Objective and Overview:

CalMHSA will provide the below-described projects to support County Behavioral Health Plans in meeting 
select Milestones required to complete the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) 
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program (BHQIP) deliverables. Projects are responsive to the 
BHQIP requirements under the following categories: 

 Payment Reform
 Policy Changes
 Data Exchange

Participant (County) will select which BQHIP Projects in which they are participating from Table 1 below. 

TABLE 1

BQHIP REQUIRED SERVICES

ITEM # CATEGORY BQHIP REQUIREMENT CalMHSA DELIVERABLE(S) RATE

1 Payment 
Reform

Milestone 1a(iii): Subcontractor 
Boilerplates reflect new code set 
and claiming requirements

CalMHSA will work with 
Participant to draft updated 
subcontracted MHP and DMC-
ODS provider boilerplate language 
to incorporate new code set(s) 
and claiming requirements.

$3,450

2 Policy 
Changes

Milestone 2d(iv): Updated 
Utilization Management Protocol

CalMHSA will conduct a landscape 
analysis of documentation audit 
practices and draft an updated 
Utilization Management protocol 
to comply with best practices and 
updated documentation audit 
standards. 

$4,600

3 Data 
Exchange

Milestone 3d(i): Finder File & 
Follow-up After Emergency 
Department Visit for Alcohol and 
Other Drug Abuse or Dependence 
(FUA), Follow-up After Emergency 
Department Visit for Mental 
Illness (FUM) and 
Pharmacotherapy for Opioid Use 
Disorder (POD) data analysis

CalMHSA will collaborate with 
Participants to receive and 
analyze Managed Care Plan (MCP) 
data for July 2022/July 2023 
measurement period. CalMHSA 
will analyze the data to establish 
Participant baseline performance 
on FUA/FUM/POD.

$5,750



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Exhibit A – Program Description and Funding  
Page 3 of 9

4 Data 
Exchange

Milestone 3d(i), 3d(ii), 3d(iii) Using Participant baseline data 
analysis as described above, 
CalMHSA will support Participant 
in developing and implementing 
Performance Improvement 
Projects (identifying, 
implementing, and tracking 
interventions to improve 
performance related to measures 
indicated under Milestone 3d(i). 
These PIPs will be designed to 
conform to CalEQRO PIP 
requirements.

$46,000

OPTIONAL SERVICES

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES HOURLY

RATE

1 Project Management Services 
(General BHQIP Implementation 
Support)

$175

2 Clinical Services (Clinical Training 
and Policy Changes 
Implementation Support)

$200



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Exhibit B – General Terms and Conditions  
Page 4 of 9

Participation Agreement 
EXHIBIT B – General Terms and Conditions  

I. Definitions

The following words, as used throughout this Participation Agreement, shall be construed to have 
the following meaning, unless otherwise apparent from the context in which they are used:

A. CalMHSA – California Mental Health Services Authority, a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
created by counties in 2009 at the instigation of the California Mental Health Directors 
Association to jointly develop and fund mental health services and education programs.

B. Member – A County (or JPA of two or more Counties) that has joined CalMHSA and 
executed the CalMHSA Joint Powers Agreement.

C. Participant – Any County participating in the Program either as Member of CalMHSA or 
under a Memorandum of Understanding with CalMHSA.

D. Program – The program identified in the Cover Sheet. 

II. Responsibilities

A. Responsibilities of CalMHSA:

1. Act as the Fiscal and Administrative agent for the Program. 

2. Deliver services to support Participants in completing the California Advancing 
and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Behavioral Health Quality Improvement 
Program (BHQIP) requirements. 

3. Manage funds received from, Participant in a manner consistent with the 
requirements of any applicable laws, regulations, guidelines and/or contractual 
obligations.

4. Provide regular fiscal reports to Participant and/or other public agencies with a 
right to such reports. 

5. Comply with CalMHSA’s Joint Powers Agreement and Bylaws.

B. Responsibilities of Participant:

1. Transfer required initial Program funds as specified in Exhibit C, Program 
Description and Funding, which Participant will pay within 30 days of execution 
of this agreement. Thereafter, remaining funds to be paid by Participant to 
CalMHSA on a quarterly basis, upon receiving an invoice from CalHMSA. 

2. Submit a Work Order form for any additional professional services required by 
the Participant if identified post-contract execution.

3. Provide CalMHSA and any other parties deemed necessary with requested 
information and assistance in order to fulfill the purpose of the Program.

4. Cooperate by providing CalMHSA with requested information and assistance in 
order to fulfill the purpose of the Program.

5. Provide feedback on Program performance.



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Exhibit B – General Terms and Conditions  
Page 5 of 9

6. Comply with applicable laws, regulations, guidelines, contractual agreements, 
JPAs, and bylaws.

III. Duration, Term, and Amendment

A. The term of the Program is upon execution through June 30, 2024.

B. This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by the mutual 
agreement of CalMHSA and the Participant, expressed in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 

IV. Withdrawal, Cancellation, and Termination 

A. Participant may withdraw from the Program and terminate the Participation Agreement 
upon six (6) months' written notice.  Notice shall be deemed served on the date of 
mailing. 

B. The withdraw of a Participant from the Program shall not automatically terminate its 
responsibility for its share of the expense and liabilities of the Program. The 
contributions of current and past Participants are chargeable for their respective share 
of unavoidable expenses and liabilities arising during the period of their participation. 

C. Upon cancellation, termination, or other conclusion of the Program, any funds remaining 
undisbursed after CalMHSA satisfies all obligations arising from the administration of the 
Program shall be returned to Participant. Unused funds paid for a joint effort will be 
returned pro rata to Participant in proportion to payments made. Adjustments may be 
made if disproportionate benefit was conveyed on particular Participant. Excess funds 
at the conclusion of county-specific efforts will be returned to the particular County that 
paid them. 

V. Fiscal Provisions

A. Funding required from Participant will not exceed the amount stated in Exhibit C, County 
Specific Scope of Work and/or Funding. 

B. Payment Terms –

a. Upon Execution of Agreement – Initial funding amount, minimum of $200,000 or as 
defined in Exhibit C. 

b. Subsequent Payments – If applicable, Participant shall pay CalMHSA on a quarterly 
basis upon receipt of a CalMHSA invoice for deliverables completed. Payable within 
30 days of receipt of CalMHSA invoice.  

VI. Limitation of Liability and Indemnification

A. CalMHSA is responsible only for funds as instructed and authorized by participants. 
CalMHSA is not liable for damages beyond the amount of any funds which are identified 
on the cover page of this Agreement, without authorization or contrary to Participant’s 
instructions. 

B. CalMHSA is not undertaking responsibility for assessments, creation of case or treatment 
plans, providing or arranging services, and/or selecting, contracting with, or supervising 
providers (collectively, “mental health services”). Participant will defend and indemnify 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County – Exhibit B – General Terms and Conditions  
Page 6 of 9

CalMHSA for any claim, demand, disallowance, suit, or damages arising from Participant’s 
acts or omissions in connection with the provision of mental health services. 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County Exhibit C – County Specific Scope and Funding
 Page 7 of 9

Participation Agreement 
EXHIBIT C –County Specific Scope of Services and Funding  

ITEM 
#

CATEGORY CalMHSA DELIVERABLE(S) RATE SELECTION 
(MARK WITH 

AN X)

TOTAL

1 Payment Reform CalMHSA will work with 
Participant to draft updated 
subcontracted MHP and 
DMC-ODS provider 
boilerplate language to 
incorporate new code set(s) 
and claiming requirements.

$3,450 X $3,450

2 Policy Changes CalMHSA will conduct a 
landscape analysis of 
documentation audit 
practices and draft an 
updated Utilization 
Management protocol to 
comply with best practices 
and updated 
documentation audit 
standards. 

$4,600 X $4,600

3 Data Exchange CalMHSA will collaborate 
with Participants to receive 
and analyze Managed Care 
Plan (MCP) data for July 
2022/July 2023 
measurement period. 
CalMHSA will analyze the 
data to establish Participant 
baseline performance on 
FUA/FUM/POD.

$5,750 X $5,750

4 Data Exchange Using Participant baseline 
data analysis as described 
above, CalMHSA will 
support Participant in 
developing and 
implementing Performance 
Improvement Projects 
(identifying, implementing, 
and tracking interventions 
to improve performance 
related to measures 

$46,000 X $46,000



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County Exhibit C – County Specific Scope and Funding
 Page 8 of 9

indicated under Milestone 
3d(i). These PIPs will be 
designed to conform to 
CalEQRO PIP requirements.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES* HOURLY

RATE

Number of 
Hours

TOTAL

1 Project Management (General BHQIP 
Implementation Support)

$175 40 $7000

2 Clinical (Clinical Training and Policy Changes 
Implementation Support)

$200 40 $8000

GRAND TOTAL $74,800

*NOTE: If the Participant is in need of additional professional services post-contract execution, the 
Participant must complete and submit a work-order form to CalMHSA found in Appendix A. 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program 

April 21, 2022

Inyo County Appendix A – Work Order
 Page 9 of 9

Appendix A

PARTICIPANT(S) WORK ORDER -BHQIP

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Participant (County)
Funding Timeframe 
[Commencement and 
termination dates for 
this Work Order.] 

Start Date  End Date

Total Funding Amount $0,000,000.00

SERVICES TOTAL HOURS NEEDED HOURLY RATE TOTAL

Project Management 
Services (General 
BHQIP Implementation 
Support)

$175

Clinical Services 
(Clinical Training and 
Policy Changes 
Implementation 
Support)

$200

TOTAL $



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - EMCC
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Marilyn Mann
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of members to EMCC
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the appointment of Pete Schlieker to represent Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department 
for an unexpired term ending December 31, 2023; and B) ratify and approve the reappointment of the following 
individuals to the Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC) for unexpired terms ending December 31, 2023:

 Joe Capello, representing Independence Fire Department
 Charles Abbott, representing Olancha-Cartago Fire Department
 Lisa Davis, Member at Large
 Michael Patterson, representing Sierra Life Flight
 Judd Symons, representing Symons Ambulance

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Emergency Medical Care Committee (EMCC) was established to review and report on ambulance service 
operations, the available emergency medical care, and the first-aide practices in Inyo County.  EMCC is 
comprised of 13 members: 10 are designated by the member agencies and three at-large members.  According 
to the EMCC by-laws, representatives from the member agencies are required to submit notification of their 
desire to represent the agency and your Board makes the final appointment.  

Currently, the terms of six (6) EMCC members expired on December 31, 2021.  The Department realized at the 
last EMCC meeting that the terms had expired and forwarded an email to the affected organizations and/or 
individuals to verify interest in continuing their appointment to the committee.  Five of the six representatives 
have all indicated a desire to remain members of the EMCC.  Copies of their email responses are attached. 
 Lloyd Wilson, representative from Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department notified HHS that he would not continue 
as the agency's representative.  HHS contacted Damon Carrington, Big Pine's Department Chief, who indicated 
that the department would be represented by Pete Schlieker.  Mr. Schlieker's email confirming his willingness to 
serve as the Big Pine Fire Department representative is included in the email responses.  HHS, on behalf of the 
EMCC, respectfully request your Board make the following appointment and ratify the re-appointments as listed:

Agency Name Representative New/Reappoint Expiration Date
Big Pine Volunteer Fire Department Pete Schlieker New 12/31/2023
Independence Volunteer Fire Department Joe Capello Reappoint 12/31/2023



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Olancha-Cartago Fire Department Charles Abbott Reappoint 12/31/2023
Symons Ambulance Judd Symons Reappoint 12/31/2023
Sierra Life Flight Michael Patterson Reappoint 12/31/2023
At Large Member Lisa Davis Reappoint 12/31/2023

The Department respectfully submits the list of names for your Board's consideration along with their letters of 
interest.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Should the appointments not be approved, the EMCC would maintain 7 vacancies.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Bishop Fire Department,Sierra Life Flight, Symons Ambulance, Northern Inyo Hospital District, ICEMA, Big Pine 
Volunteer Fire Department, Inyo Fire Protection District, Independence Volunteer Fire Department Olancha-
Cartago Volunteer Fire Department, Lone Pine Volunteer Fire Department, Southern Inyo Hospital District. 
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Email Notification of Desire to Serve on EMCC
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 5/16/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/16/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/19/2022















County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - ESAAA
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of the Standard Agreement for Contract Number AP-2223-16 between California 
Department of Aging and County of Inyo
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Contract No. AP-2223-16 with the California Department of Aging for regional services to 
seniors, provided through the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging, in the amount of $1,564,373 for the period 
of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement, Information Integrity and Security 
Statement Certification, Contractor Certification Clause, and the California Civil Rights Laws Certification.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract is a standard State Contract with total annual funding of $1,564,373, representing an increase of 
$429,619 of the base allocation from the prior year.  This recognizes an increase of $804 in IIIB Supportive 
Services; a decrease of $1,621 in Ombudsman; a decrease of $33,732 in Congregate Meals; an increase of 
$362,525 in Home Delivered Meals; an increase of $110 in Title IIID; an increase of $783 in Title IIIE; an increse 
of $22 Title VII-Elder Abuse Prevention; and an increase of $100,692 in Administrative funds.  Acceptance of this 
contract ensures the receipt of federal and state funds to keep existing services going. Of the $1,564,373, 
funding in the amount of $216,122 will be allocated to Mono County to provide their services to seniors.

The State standard contract includes several changes which are summarized in the Attachment 3-AP-2223 
Summary of Changes.  These include corrections to citations, typographical errors, updated links and 
clarifications.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to ratify and approve this agreement. Failure to move forward on these requested 
actions will disrupt services to seniors in the region.  Receipt of any funding for ESAAA is contingent upon 
execution of this contract.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Aging, County of Mono, CA Indian Legal Services  



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
State and Federal dollars. Total amount of this contract is $1,564,373 and will be budgeted as revenue in the 
ESAAA Budget (683000) in the State and Federal revenue object codes.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CDA Agreement #AP-2223-16
2. Exhibit A, Attachment 1
3. Exhibit B, Attachment 1
4. Exhibits A, B, D, E
5. Contractor Certification Clause
6. Information Integrity and Security Statement
7. Civil Rights Laws Certification
8. Summary of Changes
9. FY 22-23 Inyo-Mono Baseline Allocations
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 4/25/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/25/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/30/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/31/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/31/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/31/2022



16 

SCO ID: 4170-AP222316  
STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES  

STANDARD AGREEMENT 
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020) 

AGREEMENT NUMBER 

AP-2223-16 
PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable) 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below: 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 

California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTOR NAME  

County of Inyo 
2. The term of this Agreement is: 
START DATE 

07/01/2022 
THROUGH END DATE 

06/30/2023 
3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is: 

   $ 1,564,373   One million five hundred sixty-four thousand three hundred seventy-three and 00/100 dollars 
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.  

EXHIBITS TITLE PAGES 

Exhibit A Scope of Work 16 pages 

Exhibit A, Attachment 1 General Information 1 page 

Exhibit B Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 12 pages 

Exhibit B, Attachment 1 Budget Display 1 page 

Exhibit C* General Terms and Conditions – GTC-4/2017* 0 pages 

Exhibit D Special Terms and Conditions 34 pages 

Exhibit E Additional Provisions 17 pages 

   

Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto. 
These documents can be viewed at https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.  

CONTRACTOR 
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

County of Inyo 

CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS 

 1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 
 

CITY 

Bishop 
STATE 

CA 
ZIP 

93514-
3013 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 

 
Marilyn Mann 

TITLE 

 
HHS Director 

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

 
 

DATE SIGNED 

 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME 

California Department of Aging 
CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS 

 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
CITY 

 Sacramento 
STATE 

 CA 
ZIP 

 95833 

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 

Nate Gillen 

TITLE 

Chief, Business Management Branch 
CONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

 
 

DATE SIGNED 

 
 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL EXEMPTION (If Applicable) 

 

AG OP 80-111 
 
 

 

Page 1 of 1

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources


 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is purposefully left blank.



California Department of Aging                                                           AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A, Attachment 1 – General Information 

 

Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT A, Attachment 1 
General Information 

 
 
1. The Contractor agrees to provide to the California Department of Aging (CDA) the 

services described herein Agreement number AP-2223-16. 
 
2. The services shall be performed in Planning and Service Area(s): 16.  
 
3. The services shall be provided as needed. 
 

4. The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be: 
 

State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 

Name: Andrew Sachs,  
     Chief Local Finance Officer 
 Fiscal Management Branch 

Name: Marilyn Mann, Director, 
Contracts Representative 

Phone: (916) 931-1936 Phone: (760) 878-0232 

Email: finance@aging.ca.gov Email: mmann@inyocounty.us  

 
Direct only contract inquiries to: 
 

State Agency: California Department of Aging Contractor: County of Inyo 

Section/Unit: Business Services and Contracts Section/Unit:  

Attention: Sheila Gardner Attention: Melissa Best-Baker 

Address: 2880 Gateway Oaks Dr, Ste 200 
 Sacramento, CA 95834 

Address: 1360 North Main St, Ste 201 
 Bishop, CA, 93514-3013 

Phone: (916) 898-9383 Phone: (760) 873-3305 

Email: Sheila.Gardner@aging.ca.gov Email: mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
The parties may change their representatives upon providing ten days written notice 
to the other party. Said changes do not require an amendment to this agreement. 
 
 



State of California Award #: AP-2223-16
California Department of Aging Date: 7/1/2022

Amendment #:
AREA PLAN BUDGET DISPLAY
Exhibit B, Attachment 1- BUDGET DISPLAY Page 1 of 1
Fiscal Year 2022-23 (Federal Fiscal Years 2022 & 2023)
County of Inyo
12 months (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023)
Program Fund Type Project Number Baseline Adjustments Transfers OTO Updated Total Net Change
Supportive Services Federal Title IIIB 3BSL 100,042 0 0 0 100,042 0
Ombudsman Federal Title IIIB 3BOL 23,483 0 0 0 23,483 0
Ombudsman Federal Title VIIa 7OFL 35,117 0 0 0 35,117 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB B1GL 65,538 0 0 0 65,538 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB- Augmentation B1GL 45,630 0 0 0 45,630 0

Ombudsman Public Health L & C Program 
Fund LCPF 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Ombudsman State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account SDFL 1,233 0 0 0 1,233 0

Ombudsman SNF Quality & Accountability SNFL 16,673 0 0 0 16,673 0
Ombudsman Total Ombudsman blank 191,184 0 0 0 191,184 0
Congregate Nutrition Federal Title IIIC1 3C1L 105,790 0 0 0 105,790 0
Congregate Nutrition General Fund C1 C1GL 44,008 0 0 0 44,008 0
Congregate Nutrition General Fund C1- Augmentation C1GL 87,557 0 0 0 87,557 0
Congregate Nutrition NSIP C1 NC1L 15,001 0 0 0 15,001 0
Congregate Nutrition Total Congregate Nutrition blank 252,356 0 0 0 252,356 0
Home-Delivered Meals Federal Title IIIC2 3C2L 98,989 0 0 0 98,989 0
Home-Delivered Meals General Fund C2 C2GL 530,975 0 0 0 530,975 0
Home-Delivered Meals General Fund C2- Augmentation C2GL 177,739 0 0 0 177,739 0
Home-Delivered Meals NSIP C2 NC2L 25,999 0 0 0 25,999 0
Home-Delivered Meals Total Home Delivered Meals blank 833,702 0 0 0 833,702 0
Disease Prevention Federal Title IIID 3DFL 2,804 0 0 0 2,804 0
Family Caregiver Federal Title IIIE 3EFL 19,761 0 0 0 19,761 0
Elder Abuse Prevention Federal Title VII 7EFL 590 0 0 0 590 0
Administration Administration APAD 63,934 0 0 0 63,934 0
Administration- InformatiFederal Title IIIB APAD 19,520 0 0 0 19,520 0
Administration- InformatiFederal Title IIIC1 APAD 18,678 0 0 0 18,678 0
Administration- InformatiFederal Title IIIC2 APAD 17,477 0 0 0 17,477 0
Administration- InformatiFederal Title IIIE APAD 8,259 0 0 0 8,259 0

Administration General Fund Baseline 
Administration APGA 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0

Funding Summary Federal Funds blank 491,510 0 0 0 491,510 0
Funding Summary General Fund blank 1,051,447 0 0 0 1,051,447 0

Funding Summary Public Health L & C Program 
Fund

blank 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Funding Summary State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account

blank 1,233 0 0 0 1,233 0

Funding Summary SNF Quality & Accountability blank 16,673 0 0 0 16,673 0
All Funds Grand Total - All Funds blank 1,564,373 0 0 0 1,564,373 0
  Comments:

The maximum amount allowed to be transferred from Administration to Title IIIE is: 8,259

The minimum General Fund to be expended for State Match in Title III is: 17,931

CFDA NUMBER Year Award # Award Name
93.041 2022 2201CAOAEA-01 Older American Act Title VII- Elder Abuse Prevention
93.042 2022 2201CAOAOM-01 Older American Act Title VII- Ombudsman
93.043 2022 2201CAOAPH-01 Older American Act Title III- Preventive Health
93.044 2022 2201CAOASS-01 Older American Act Title III- Supportive Services
93.045 2022 2201CAOACM-01 Older American Act Title III- Congregate Meals
93.045 2022 2201CAOAHD-01 Older American Act Title III- Home-Delivered Meals
93.052 2022 2201CAOAFC-01 Older American Act Title III- Family Caregivers
93.053 2022 2201CAOANS-01 Older American Act Nutrition Services Incentive Program

State Funds must be expended by 6/30/23 and final expenditures reported in closeout by 7/31/23.
Federal Funds must be reported in closeout by 7/31/23.  Once closeouts are processed, CDA will determine the amount that can be carried over into next year's co  
Transfers based on the original contract are due with the submission of the AP 2223 Original Budget and final transfers are due by 1/15/23.
The minimum General Fund State Match in Cell H48 does not take into account other program income that may increase that amount of minimum match required.



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 1 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS 

A. Definitions Specific to Title III and Title VII Programs  

1. Caregiver Assessment means a defined process of gathering 
information to identify the specific needs, barriers to carrying out 
caregiving responsibilities, and existing supports of a family caregiver or 
older relative caregiver, as identified by the caregiver involved, to 
appropriately target recommendations for support services described in 
section 373(b).  Such assessment shall be administered through direct 
contact with the caregiver, which may include contact through a home 
visit, the Internet, telephone, or teleconference, or in-person interaction. 
[OAA §372(a)(1)]  

2. Child means an individual who is not more than eighteen (18) years of 
age.   

3. Coordination means activities that involve the active participation of the 
Area Agency on Aging (AAA) staff to include liaison with non-Older 
Americans Act (OAA) funded agencies and organizations for the purpose 
of avoiding duplication, improving services, resolving problems related to 
service delivery, and addressing the service needs of the eligible service 
population. 

4. Eligible Service Population for Title III B and D means individuals 
sixty (60) years of age or older, with emphasis on those in greatest 
economic and social need with particular attention to low-income minority 
older individuals, older individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP), 

and older individuals residing in rural areas.  OAA § 305 (a)(2)(E); 
22 CCR  7119, 7125, 7127, 7130, 7135 and 7638.7] 

5. Eligible Service Population for Title III C-1 and C-2 means individuals 
sixty (60) years of age or older, with emphasis on those in greatest 
economic and social need with particular attention to low-income minority 
older individuals, older individuals with LEP, and older individuals residing 

in rural areas.  OAA § 305 (a)(2)(E); 22 CCR 7125, 7127, 7130, 7135] 

a. Individuals eligible to receive a meal at a congregate nutrition site 
are: 

i. Any older individual. 

ii. The spouse of any older individual. 

iii. A person with a disability, under age sixty (60) who resides 
in housing facilities occupied primarily by older individuals at 
which congregate nutrition services are provided. 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 2 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

iv. A disabled individual who resides at home with and 
accompanies an older individual who participates in the 
program. 

v. A volunteer under age sixty (60), if doing so will not deprive 
an older individual sixty (60) or older of a meal.  
[CCR 7636.9(b)(3); CCR 7638.7(b); and OAA 339(H)] 

b. Individuals eligible to receive a home-delivered meal are individuals 
who are: 

i. Frail as defined by 22 CCR 7119, homebound by reason of 
illness or disability, or otherwise isolated. (These individuals 
shall be given priority in the delivery of services.) 

[45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1321.69(a)]. 

ii. A spouse of a person defined in 22 CCR 7638.7(c)(2), 
regardless of age or condition, if an assessment concludes 
that is in the best interest of the homebound older individual. 

iii. An individual with a disability who resides at home with older 
individuals, if an assessment concludes that it is in the best 
interest of the homebound older individual who participates 
in the program. 

6. Eligible Service Population for Title III E means an adult family 
member, or another individual, who is an informal provider of in-home and 
community care to an older individual or to an individual of any age with 
Alzheimer’s disease or a related disorder with neurological and organic 
brain dysfunction.  [OAA § 302(3)] 

7. Older relative caregiver means a caregiver who is – 

a. Is age 55 or older; and 

b. lives with, is the informal provider of in-home and community care 
to, and is the primary caregiver for, a child or an individual with a 
disability; 

c. In the case of a caregiver for a child -- 

i. is the grandparent, step grandparent, or other relative (other 
than the parent) by blood, marriage, or adoption, of the child; 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 3 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

ii. is the primary caregiver of the child because the biological or 
adoptive parents are unable or unwilling to serve as the 
primary caregivers of the child; and 

iii. has a legal relationship to the child, such as legal custody, 
adoption, or guardianship, or is raising the child informally 

d. In the case of a caregiver for an individual with a disability, is the 
parent, grandparent, or other relative by blood, marriage, or 
adoption, of the individual with a disability.  

[OAA § 372(a)(3)] 

8. Indirect Costs means costs incurred for a common or joint purpose 
benefiting more than one cost objective and not readily assignable to the 
cost objective specifically benefited, without effort disproportionate to the 
results achieved. 

9. Individual with a disability The term ‘‘individual with a disability’’ means 
an individual with a disability, as defined in Section 3 of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12102), who is not less than age 
18 and not more than age 59. [OAA § 372(a)(2)] 

10. In-kind Contributions means the value of non-cash contributions 
donated to support the project or program (e.g., property, service, etc.). 

11. Matching Contributions means local cash and/or in-kind contributions 
made by the Contractor, a subcontractor, or other local resources that 
qualify as match for the Contract funding. 

12. Non-Matching Contributions means local funding that does not qualify 
as matching contributions and/or is not being budgeted as matching 
contributions (e.g., federal funds, overmatch, etc.). 

13. Nutrition Education means an intervention targeting OAA participants 
and caregivers that uses information dissemination, instruction, or training 
with the intent to support food, nutrition, and physical activity choices and 
behaviors (related to nutritional status) in order to maintain or improve 
health and address nutrition-related conditions. Content is consistent with 
the Dietary Guidelines for Americans; is accurate, culturally sensitive, 
regionally appropriate, and considers personal preferences; and is 
overseen by a registered dietitian or individual of comparable expertise as 
defined in the OAA. 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 4 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

14. Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) means the program whose 
purpose is to provide incentives to encourage and reward effective 
performance by AAAs in the efficient delivery of nutritious meals to older 
individuals.  The program consists of a cash allotment based on the ratio 
of the number of meals served by each Planning and Service Area (PSA) 
compared to the total number of meals served in the State in the prior-
prior federal fiscal year. 

15. One-Time-Only Funds means: 

a. Titles III and VII federal funds allocated to the AAA in a State fiscal 
year that are not expended or encumbered for services and 
administration provided by June 30 of that fiscal year as reported to 
the California Department of Aging (CDA) in the Area Plan 
Financial Closeout Report.  [22 CCR 7314(a)(6)] 

b. Title III and VII federal funds recovered from an AAA as a result of 
a fiscal audit determination and resolution by CDA.  
[22 CCR 7314(a)(7)] 

c. Supplemental Title III and Title VII program funds allocated by the 
Administration on Aging to CDA as a result of the federal 
reallotment process.  [22 CCR 7314(a)(8)] 

16. Priority Services for Title III B means those services associated with 
access to services (transportation, outreach, information and assistance, 
and case management); in-home services including supportive services 
such as respite and visiting, for families of older individuals who are 
victims of Alzheimer’s disease and related disorders with neurological and 
organic brain dysfunction; and legal assistance. 

17. Priority Services for Title III E means services provided to:  

a. Caregivers who are older individuals with greatest social need, and 
older individuals with greatest economic need (with particular attention 
to low-income older individuals)  

b. Older relative caregivers of children with severe disabilities, or 
individuals with disabilities who have severe disabilities. 
[OAA§373(c)(2)(A-B)] 

c. Family caregivers who provide care for individuals with Alzheimer’s 
disease and related disorders with neurological and organic brain 
dysfunction. [OAA § 372(b)] 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 5 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

18. Program Development means activities that either establish a new 
service or expand or integrate existing services. 

19. Program Income means revenue generated by the Contractor or the 
subcontractor from contract-supported activities and may include: 

a. Voluntary contributions received from a participant or other party for 
services received. 

b. Income from usage or rental fees of real or personal property 
acquired with grant funds or funds provided under this Agreement. 

c. Royalties received on patents and copyrights from contract-
supported activities. 

d. Proceeds from the sale of goods created under CDA grant funds. 

20. Program Requirements means Title III program requirements found in 
the OAA [42 USC 3001-3058]; [45 CFR 1321]; the California Code of 
Regulations [22 CCR 7000 et seq.]; and CDA Program Memoranda, and 
California Retail Food Code (CRFC). 

21. Title III B (Supportive Services) means a variety of services including, 
but not limited to: personal care, homemaker, chore, adult day health care, 
case management, assisted transportation, transportation, legal 
assistance, information and assistance, outreach, outreach, services that 
promote or support social connectedness and reduce negative health 
effects associated with social isolation, and long-term care ombudsman 
advocacy, as defined in the Older Americans Act Performance System 
(OAAPS) categories and the National Ombudsman Reporting System 
(NORS).  [OAA § 321(a)] 

22. Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition Services) means nutrition services for 
older individuals in a congregate setting.  Services include meals, nutrition 
education, nutrition risk screening, and opportunities for socialization.  
Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes 
(DRI) and comply with the most current Dietary Guidelines for Americans 
(DGA).  To be an eligible Title III C-1 congregate nutrition site, the site 
must meet all of the following criteria: [22 CCR 7638.7(a)] 

a. Be open to the public.  [45 CFR 1321.53(b)(3)] 

b. Not means test.  [OAA § 315(b)(3)] 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 6 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

c. Provide participants the opportunity to make voluntary contributions 
and not deny service for not contributing to the cost of the service.  
[OAA § 315(b)(4); 22 CCR 7638.9] 

d. Not receive funds from another source for the cost of the same 
meal, equipment, or services.  [2 CFR 200.403(f); 45 CFR 
75.403(f)] 

23. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition Services) means nutrition 
services provided to homebound older individuals including meals, 
nutrition education, and nutrition risk screening.   

Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the DRI and comply with the 
most current Dietary Guidelines for Americans.  
[22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR 7638.7(c)] 

24. Title III D (Health Promotion Evidence Based) means disease 
prevention and health promotion programs that are based on scientific 
evidence and demonstrated through rigorous evaluation to be effective in 
improving the health of older adults.  Title III D evidence-based health 
promotion programs include programs related to the prevention and 
mitigation of the effects of chronic diseases (including osteoporosis, 
hypertension, obesity, diabetes, and cardiovascular disease), infectious 
disease, and vaccine-preventable disease, and prevention of sexually 
transmitted diseases.  Evidence-based services also include programs 
focused on alcohol and substance abuse reduction, chronic pain 
management, smoking cessation, weight loss and control, stress 
management, falls prevention, physical activity, and improved nutrition. 
[OAA 102 (14)(D)] 

25. Title III E Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP) Categories are: 

a. Information Services 

b. Access Assistance 

c. Support Services 

d. Respite Care 

e. Supplemental Services 

[OAA 373(b)(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)] 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 7 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

B. Definitions Specific to Title VII-A (Allotments for Vulnerable Elder Rights 
Protection Activities – Long-Term Care Ombudsman Programs) 

1. Eligible Service Population means individuals who are residents of long-
term care facilities (i.e., nursing, skilled nursing, distinct part facilities, 
residential care facilities for the elderly, and other adult care homes similar 
to these facilities), hereinafter referred to as residents, regardless of their 
socio-economic status or area of residence.  [OAA §§ 102(35), 321(a)(10), 
711(6); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9701(b),(e)] 

2. Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator means the individual selected 
by the Governing Board or Executive Director responsible for the Local 
Ombudsman Program and designated by the State Ombudsman to 
represent the Local Ombudsman Program and the Office of the State 
Long-Term Care Ombudsman.  This individual manages the day-to-day 
operations of the Local Ombudsman Program, including implementation of 
federal and State requirements.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(A); Welf. & Inst. Code § 
9701(d)] 

3. Local Ombudsman Program means either a program of the AAA or its 
Subcontractor that is designated by the State Ombudsman to carry out the 
duties of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program with respect to 
the Planning and Service Area.  The selection is in accordance with 
policies and procedures established by the State Ombudsman and which 
meets the State Ombudsman’s criteria for designation and concurrence.  
[OAA §§ 711(3), 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 1324.1; 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9701(a)] 

4. Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman (OSLTCO) means the 
office established by CDA to carry out the State Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman Program, both directly and by contract between CDA and the 
AAAs.  As a program of CDA, OSLTCO is responsible for activities that 
promote the development, coordination, and utilization of Ombudsman 
services.  OSLTCO establishes and maintains effective communication 
with programs that provide legal services for the elderly and advocacy 
services of a similar nature that receive funding or official designation from 
the State.  OSLTCO analyzes data, monitors government actions, and 
provides recommendations pertaining to long-term care facilities and 
services.  OSLTCO periodically updates training procedures for Local 
Ombudsman Programs and provides them with administrative and 
technical assistance.  [OAA §§ 711(1), 712(a)(1), 712(h); 45 CFR 1324.1; 
Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9710, 9716, 9717] 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 8 of 16 

ARTICLE I.  PROGRAM DEFINITIONS (Continued) 

5. Ombudsman Representative means the volunteer or employee of the 
Local Ombudsman Program who is individually certified by the State 
Ombudsman in accordance with policies and procedures established by 
the State Ombudsman to serve as representative of the Office.  [OAA §§ 
711(5), 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5] 

6. State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program means the CDA program 
through which the functions and duties of OSLTCO are carried out, 
consisting of the State Ombudsman, OSLTCO headed by the State 
Ombudsman, and the representatives of the Office.  [OAA § 712(a)(1)(B); 
45 CFR 1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code § 9700] 

7. State Long-Term Care Ombudsman hereinafter referred to as the State 
Ombudsman means the individual who heads OSLTCO and is 
responsible to personally, or through representatives of the Office, fulfill 
the functions, responsibilities and duties set forth in OAA § 712(a)(3) [OAA 
§§ 712(a)(2); 45 CFR 1324.1; Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9701(f), 9711] 

C. Definitions Specific to Title VII-A (Allotments for Vulnerable Elder Rights 
Protection Activities – Programs for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and 
Exploitation) 

Elder Abuse Prevention Programs means activities to develop, strengthen, 
and carry out programs for the prevention, detection, assessment, and treatment 
of, intervention in, investigation of, and response to elder abuse, neglect, and 
exploitation (including financial exploitation).  [OAA § 721] 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK 

A. The Contractor shall: 

1. Implement the statutory provisions of the Title III and Title VII Programs 
[OAA § 306] in accordance with State and federal laws and regulations.  
The Contractor shall make every effort to meet the goals and objectives 
stipulated in the four-year Area Plan and annual updates of the Area 
Plan’s Goals, Objectives, and Service Unit Plan, herein incorporated into 
this Agreement by reference.  Performance shall not be unilaterally 
reduced or otherwise changed without prior consultation with, and written 
approval from CDA.  A service unit reduction of greater than 
ten percent (10%) requires written approval from CDA.  A service unit 
reduction of greater than twenty percent (20%) is a major change that 
effects Area Plan goals and objectives and requires an Area Plan 
Amendment.  [22 CCR 7306(a)] 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 9 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

2. Establish and maintain an organization that shall have the ultimate 
accountability for funds received from CDA and for the effective and 
efficient implementation of the activities as described in the Area Plan and 
all pertinent State and federal laws and regulations including data 
reporting requirements. 

3. Meet the adequate proportion requirements for priority services as 
required under OAA § 306(a)(2); 22 CCR 7312. 

4. Maintain staff time records and documentation to identify the allocation of 
Program Development or Coordination activities to determine the amount 
of Program Development or Coordination expenditures.  Records and 
documentation shall: 

a. Include a written description for each Program Development or 
Coordination activity in the staff time records that is of sufficient 
detail to define the event or type of activity. 

b. Be traceable back to the Program Development or Coordination 
objectives as approved in the Area Plan. 

5. Keep on file a written record/documentation supporting expenditures of 
Program Development or Coordination activities for three (3) years or until 
any audit is resolved, whichever is longer. 

6. Meet the requirements under OAA § 301(a)(1)(A) to secure and maintain 
maximum independence and dignity in a home environment for the eligible 
service population capable of self-care with appropriate supportive and 
nutrition services. 

7. Remove individual and social barriers to economic and personal 
independence for the eligible service population to the extent possible as 
required under OAA § 301(a)(1)(B). 

8. Provide a continuum of care for the vulnerable eligible service population 
as required under OAA § 301(a)(1)(C). 

9. Secure the opportunity for the eligible service population to receive 
managed in-home services as required under OAA § 301(a)(1)(D). 

10. Conduct and/or promote activities for the prevention and treatment of 
elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation, as required under OAA § 721. 

 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 10 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

11. Enter into contracts with subcontractors that require them to provide 
services pursuant to 22 CCR 7352 to 7364, and ensure all applicable 
provisions required within this Agreement are included in the 
subcontract(s). 

12. Review, approve, and monitor subcontractor budgets and expenditures 
and any subsequent amendments and revisions to budgets.  The  

Contractor shall, to the extent feasible, ensure that all budgeted funds are 
expended by the end of each fiscal year. 

13. Monitor, on an ongoing basis, the Subcontractor’s use of federal and State 
funds through reporting, site visits, regular contact, or other means to 
assure the Subcontractor administers federal and State awards in 
compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and that 
performance goals are achieved.  The contractor must follow up and 
ensure that the Subcontractor takes timely and appropriate action on all 
deficiencies pertaining to the Federal programs detected through 
monitoring and on-site review. [CFR 75.352].  Onsite program monitoring 
must be conducted every two (2) years for all programs except Title III C-1 
and Title III C-2, which must be conducted every year.  Onsite Fiscal 
monitoring must be conducted every two (2) years for all programs 
including Title III C-1 and Title III C-2. 

14. Monitor nutrition programs.  Non-food preparation congregate dining sites 
must be inspected using a standardized procedure developed by the AAA 
that assures all sites are seen systematically, but not necessarily every 
year.  The AAA Registered Dietician (RD), annually, must physically 
inspect each food preparation site (central kitchen).  AAA policies and 
procedures must guarantee the following: 

a. Inspection of non-food preparation nutrition sites at least every 
other year. 

b. Inspection of non-food preparation nutrition sites more often if they 
are seen to have an increased risk for food safety violations or a 
history of corrective actions. 

c. Inspection of central kitchens sites annually on-site.  
[22 CCR 7634.3(d)] 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 11 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

15. Maintain or increase the number of Title III C-1 and C-2 meals served if 
federal and/or State funds for meal programs increase.  This Contract 
shall promote and maintain high standards of food safety and sanitation as 
required by the California Retail Food Code (CalCode). 

16. Provide support and technical assistance to subcontractors and respond 
in writing to all written requests for direction, guidance, and interpretation 
of instructions to include client and performance data. 

17. Distribute and maintain up-to-date CDA requirements so that all 
responsible persons have ready access to standards, policies, and 
procedures. 

18. Provide program information and assistance to the public. 

19. Maintain a four-year Area Plan, with annual updates, as specified in 
22 CCR 7300 to 7320.  The Area Plan and annual updates are due by 
May 1st of each year.  The annual update shall be effective during the 
same term as this Agreement. 

20. Maintain a program data collection and reporting system as specified in 
Exhibit E of this Contract. 

21. Contract Title III case management services only to a public or non-profit 
agency, as required by 42 USC 3026(a)(8)(C). 

22. Offer to each older individual seeking Title III case management services, 
a list of agencies that provide similar services within the jurisdiction of the 
AAA as specified in 42 USC 3026(a)(8)(C)(i)-(iii). 

23. Include the identity of each designated community focal point in 
subcontracts as specified in 42 USC 3026(a)(3)(B). 

24. Ensure that meal counts associated with Title III C-1, C-2 and NSIP are in 
accordance 22 CCR 7638.7(a)(1)-(4). 

25. Offer a meal to a volunteer under age of sixty (60) if doing so will not 
deprive an older individual of a meal.  [22 CCR 7638.7(b)(1)]  The 
Contractor or the Subcontractor shall develop and implement a written 
policy for providing and accounting for volunteer meals.  
[22 CCR 7638.7(b)(2)] 

26. Provide a home-delivered meal to an eligible individual.  
[22 CCR 7638.7(c)] 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 12 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

27. Report a meal only once either as a Title III meal or a Title VI meal. 

28. Title IIIC meals are compliant with the Older Californians Nutrition 
Program Menu Guidance. 

29. Adhere to 48 CFR 3.908, implementing section 828, entitled “Pilot 
Program for Enhancement of Contractor Whistleblower Protections,” of the 
National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 
(Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013), applies to this Agreement. 

30. Recognize any same-sex marriage legally entered into in a United States 
(U.S.) jurisdiction that recognizes their marriage, including one of the 
fifty (50) states, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. territory, or in a foreign 
country so long as that marriage would also be recognized by a U.S. 
jurisdiction.  This applies regardless of whether or not the couple resides 
in a jurisdiction that recognizes same-sex marriage.  However, this does 
not apply to registered domestic partnerships, civil unions or similar formal 
relationships recognized under the law of the jurisdiction of celebration as 
something other than a marriage.  Accordingly, recipients must review and 
revise, as needed, any policies and procedures which interpret or apply 
federal statutory or regulatory references to such terms as “marriage,” 
“spouse,” family,” “household member’” or similar references to familial 
relationships to reflect inclusion of same-sex spouse and marriages.  Any 
similar familial terminology references in the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services’ (HHS) statutes, regulations, or policy transmittals 
will be interpreted to include same-sex spouses and marriages legally 
entered into as described herein.  
[1 USC 7 - Section 3 of the Defense of Marriage Act] 

31. To ensure all data is collected for the unmet need as requested by the 
U.S. Legislature, Contractor, either as a direct service provider or through 
a subcontractor must develop and implement a Wait List policy and 
procedure. The policy and procedure must include provisions for: 
prescreening individuals to determine eligibility; managing applicants’ 
placement on and removal from the Wait List; periodically reviewing the 
eligibility and identified needs of applicants on the Wait List; and assigning 
priority for enrollment based on Wait list. 

B. The Contractor shall ensure that the Local Ombudsman Program, in accordance 
with policies and procedures established by OSLTCO, will: 

1. Provide services to protect the health, safety, welfare and rights of 
residents.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(i); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(2); 
Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9701(a), 9712.5(b)] 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d
https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d


California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 13 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

2. Ensure residents in the service area of the Local Ombudsman Program 
have regular, timely access to State Certified Ombudsman 
Representatives and timely responses to complaints and requests for 
assistance.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(ii); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(3); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(d)] 

3. Identify, investigate, and seek to resolve complaints made by or on behalf 
of residents that relate to action, inaction, or decisions, that may adversely 
affect the health, safety, welfare, or rights of the residents.  Regardless of 
the source of the complaint, Ombudsman representatives must act with 
appropriate consent and support and maximize resident participation in 
the process of resolving the complaint. [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(iii); 45 CFR 
1324.19(a)(1), 1324.19(b); Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9701(a), 9712.5(a)] 

4. Identify, investigate, and seek to resolve complaints made by or on behalf 
of residents with limited or no decision-making capacity and who have no 
legal representative.  If such a resident is unable to communicate consent 
to the Ombudsman representative, the Ombudsman representative shall 
seek evidence to indicate what outcome the resident would have 
communicated.  In absence of evidence to the contrary, the Ombudsman 
representative shall assume that the resident wishes to have the 
resident’s health, safety, welfare, and rights protected and work to 
accomplish that outcome. [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(vii); 45 CFR 
1324.19(b)(2)(iii)] 

5. Receive and investigate reports of suspected abuse, neglect and 
exploitation of elder or dependent adults occurring in long-term care 
facilities as defined in Welf. & Inst. Code § 15610.47.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 15630 et seq.] 

6. Witness: 

a. Advance health care directives for residents of skilled nursing 
facilities [Probate Code 4675] 

b. Property transfers with a fair market value of more than $100 from 
residents in long-term health care facilities to owners, employees, 
agents, or consultants of facilities and their immediate families or 
representatives of public agencies operating in facilities and 
members of their immediate families.  [HSC § 1289]   

7. Collect and submit data in accordance with the statewide uniform 
reporting system established by the State Ombudsman and the reporting 
provisions specified in Exhibit E of this Contract.  [OAA § 712(c); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9716(a)]. 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 14 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

8. Represent the interests of residents before governmental agencies and 
seek administrative, legal, and other remedies to protect the health, 
safety, welfare, and rights of residents.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(iv); 45 CFR 
1324.19(a)(4); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(e)] 

9. Review, comment, and facilitate the ability of the public to comment on 
proposed or existing laws, regulations, and other governmental policies 
and actions, that pertain to the rights and well-being of residents.  
[OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(v); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(5); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(g)-(i)] 

10. Support, actively encourage, and assist in the development of resident 
and family councils.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(vi); 45 CFR 1324.19(a)(6); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(3)] 

11. Carry out other activities that the State Ombudsman determines to be 
appropriate, including the following services [OAA § 712(a)(5)(B)(viii); 45 
CFR 1324.19(a)(7)]: 

a. Update, periodically, a plan for maintaining an ongoing presence in 
long-term care facilities.  [OAA § 712(a)(3)(D); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(d)(1)] 

b. Provide public information and technical support pertaining to long-
term care services, including inspection reports, statements of 
deficiency, and plans of correction for long-term care facilities within 
the service area.  [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(1)] 

c. Promote visitation programs and other community involvement in 
long-term care facilities within the service area.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(2), (4)] 

d. Present community education and training programs to long-term 
care facility staff, human service workers, families and the general 
public about long-term care and residents’ rights.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9726.1(a)(5)] 

e. Refer other individuals’ complaints and concerns that a 
representative becomes aware are occurring in the facility to the 
appropriate governmental agency.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9712.5(a)(2)] 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 15 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

12. Ensure that the Local Ombudsman Program, in accordance with policies 
and procedures established by the State Ombudsman, will use Citation 
Penalties Account funds, Licensing and Certification Program funds, 
Skilled Nursing Facility Quality and Accountability funds, CARES Act 
funds, Elder Justice Act funds, Older Americans Act funds, and Older 
Californians Act funds to support activities for the overall program. 

13. Review and approve claims for Citation Penalties Account funds, 
Licensing and Certification Program funds, and Skilled Nursing Facility 
Quality and Accountability funds, CARES Act funds, Elder Justice Act 
funds, Older Americans Act funds, and Older Californians Act funds. 

14. Submit monthly fiscal documents to CDA, as determined by CDA, for 
Citation Penalties Account funds, Licensing and Certification Program 
funds, Skilled Nursing Facility Quality and Accountability funds, CARES 
Act funds, Elder Justice Act funds, Older Americans Act funds, and Older 
Californians Act funds. 

C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Elder Abuse Prevention program shall do 
some or all of the following: 

[OAA § 721] 

1. Provide for public education and outreach to identify and prevent elder 
abuse, neglect, and exploitation; 

2. Provide for public education and outreach to promote financial literacy and 
prevent identity theft and financial exploitation of older individuals; 

3. Ensure the coordination of services provided by AAAs with services 
instituted under the State adult protective service program, State and local 
law enforcement systems, and courts of competent jurisdiction; 

4. Promote the development of information and data systems, including elder 
abuse reporting systems, to quantify the extent of elder abuse, neglect, 
and exploitation in the PSA; 

5. Conduct analyses of local Adult Protective Services and Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman information concerning elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation 
and identifying unmet service, enforcement, or intervention needs; 

6. Conduct training for individuals, including caregivers described in part E of 
Title III, professionals, and paraprofessionals, in relevant fields on the 
identification, prevention, and treatment of elder abuse, neglect, and 
exploitation, with particular focus on prevention and enhancement of self-
determination and autonomy; 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

 

 
Page 16 of 16 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF WORK (Continued) 

7. Provide technical assistance to programs that provide or have the 
potential to provide services for victims of elder abuse, neglect, and 
exploitation and for family members of the victims; and 

8. Conduct special and on-going training, for individuals involved in serving 
victims of elder abuse, neglect, and exploitation, on the topics of self-
determination, individual rights, State and federal requirements concerning 
confidentiality, and other topics determined by CDA to be appropriate. 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 1 of 12 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS 

A. Expenditure of Funds 

1. The Contractor shall expend all funds received hereunder in accordance 
with this Agreement. 

2. Any reimbursement for authorized travel and per diem shall be at rates not 
to exceed those amounts paid by the State in accordance with the 
California Department of Human Resources’ (CalHR) rules and 
regulations.  

In State: 

• Mileage/Per Diem (meals and incidentals)/Lodging 
https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-
reimbursements.aspx 

Out of State: 

• http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201 

This is not to be construed as limiting the Contractor from paying any 
differences in costs, from funds other than those provided by CDA, 
between the CalHR rates and any rates the Contractor is obligated to pay 
under other contractual agreements. No travel outside the state of 
California shall be reimbursed unless prior written authorization is 
obtained from the State. [SCM 3.17.2.A(4)] 

The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it enters 
into with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. 

3. CDA reserves the right to refuse payment to the Contractor or disallow 
costs for any expenditure, as determined by CDA to be: out of compliance 
with this Agreement, unrelated or inappropriate to contract activities, when 
adequate supporting documentation is not presented, or where prior 
approval was required, but was either not requested or not granted. 

B. Accountability for Funds 

1. The Contractor shall maintain accounting records for funds received under 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  These records shall be 
separate from those for any other funds administered by the Contractor, 
and shall be maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles and Procedures and the Office of Management and 
Budget’s (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. [2 CFR 200] [45 CFR 75] 

https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
https://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/Home/ManualItem/1/2201


California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 2 of 12 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

2. Financial Management Systems 

The Contractor shall meet the following standards for its financial 
management systems, as stipulated in 2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 
75.302:  

a. Financial Reporting. 

b. Accounting Records. 

c. Complete Disclosure. 

d. Source Documentation. 

e. Internal Control. 

f. Budgetary Control. 

g. Cash Management (written procedures). 

h. Allowable Costs (written procedures). 

C. Unexpended Funds 

Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of 
the entity, the Contractor shall return to the State immediately upon written 
demand, any funds provided under this Agreement, which are not payable for 
goods or services delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of 
this Agreement, or the dissolution of the entity. 

D. Funding Contingencies 

1. It is understood between the parties that this Agreement may have been 
written before ascertaining the availability or appropriation of funds, for the 
mutual benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays 
that would occur if this Agreement were executed after that determination 
was made. 

2. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made 
available to the State by the United States Government or the Budget Acts 
of the appropriate fiscal years for purposes of this program(s).  In addition, 
this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or 
conditions enacted by the Congress or the Legislature that may affect the 
provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 3 of 12 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

3. Limitation of State Liability 

Payment for performance by the Contractor shall be dependent upon the 
availability of future appropriations by the Legislature or Congress for the 
purposes of this Contract and approval of an itemized Budget   No legal 
liability on the part of the State for any payment may arise under this 
Contract until funds are made available; the itemized Budget is received 
and approved by the State and the Contractor has received an executed 
contract. 

4. Funding Reduction(s) 

a. If funding for any State fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the 
Department of Finance, Legislature, or Congress for the purposes 
of this program, the State shall have the option to either: 

i. Terminate the Contract pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII., A 
of this Agreement, or 

ii. Offer a contract amendment to the Contractor to reflect the 
reduced funding for this Contract. 

b. In the event the State elects to offer an amendment, it shall be 
mutually understood by both parties that: 

i. The State reserves the right to determine which contracts, if 
any, under this program shall be reduced. 

ii. Some contracts may be reduced by a greater amount than 
others, and 

iii. The State shall determine at its sole discretion the amount 
that any or all of the contracts shall be reduced for the fiscal 
year. 

E. Interest Earned 

1. Interest earned on federal advance payments deposited in interest-
bearing accounts must be remitted annually to CDA.  Interest amounts up 
to $500 per year may be retained by the Contractor and subcontractors for 
administrative expenses.  [2 CFR 200.305(b)(9)] [45 CFR 75.305 (b)(9)]  

  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 4 of 12 

ARTICLE I.  FUNDS (Continued) 

2. Interest earned on advances of federal and non-federal funds shall be 
identified as non-match cash. [2 CFR 200.305(b)(8)] [45 CFR 
75.305(b)(8)] 

3. The Contractor must maintain advance payments of federal awards in 
interest-bearing accounts, unless the following apply: [2 CFR 
200.305(b)(8)] [45 CFR 75.305 (b)(8)] 

a. The Contractor receives less than $120,000 in federal awards per 
year. 

b. The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not 
be expected to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on federal 
cash balances. 

c. The depository would require an average or minimum balance so 
high that it would not be feasible within the expected federal and 
non-federal cash resources. 

d. A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes 
interest bearing accounts. 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 

A. The Contractor shall be compensated for expenses only as itemized in the 
approved Budget with the exception of line item budget transfers as noted in this 
Exhibit and shall not be entitled to payment for these expenses until this 
Agreement is approved and executed by CDA.  The approved Budget is hereby 
incorporated by reference into this Agreement as a part of Exhibit B. 

B. The Budget must set forth in detail the reimbursable items, unit rates and 
extended total amounts for each line item.  The Contractor's Budget shall include, 
at a minimum, the following items when reimbursable under this Agreement: 

1. Personnel Costs – annual FTE wage rates and personnel classifications 
together with the percentage of time to be charged, specified for each fund 
source.  

2. Fringe Benefits – specified for each fund source.  

3. Staff Travel – mileage reimbursement, lodging, per diem and other travel 
costs, specified for each fund source. 

4. Staff Training – attendance cost for necessary training, specified for each 
fund source. 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 5 of 12 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

5. Property/Equipment - detailed descriptions and unit costs, specified for 
each fund source. 

6. Supplies – to include items below the $5,000 equipment threshold, 
specified for each fund source. 

7. Vendor/Consultant Agreements – specified for each fund source. 

8. Food – used in delivering Congregate and Home-Delivered Meals. 

9. Other – Facilities and other ordinary and necessary costs specified for 
each fund source.   

10. Allocated Direct Costs – requires submission of a Direct Cost Allocation 
Plan for prior approval. 

11. Subrecipient Contractor Services   - summary costs for subcontracted 
programs specified for each fund source. 

12. Indirect Costs. 

C. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor shall submit a budget, which 
shall be incorporated by reference into the Subcontract and will have, at a 
minimum, the categories listed in Section B. above.   

D. Indirect Costs 

1. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is 
ten percent (10%) of the Contractor’s Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC), 
excluding in-kind contributions and nonexpendable equipment.  Indirect 
costs shall not exceed 10% of the Contractor’s MTDC per funding 
category.   

2. Contractors requesting reimbursement for indirect costs shall retain on file 
an approved indirect cost rate accepted by all federal awarding agencies 
or an allocation plan documenting the methodology used to determine the 
indirect costs.   

3. Indirect costs exceeding the ten percent (10%) maximum may be 
budgeted as in-kind for purposes of meeting matching requirements in 
Title III and VII programs only.  Contractors must receive prior approval 
from federal awarding agency prior to budgeting the excess indirect costs 
as in-kind.   

  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 6 of 12 

ARTICLE II.  BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

4. For major Institutes of Higher Education and major nonprofit 
organizations, indirect costs must be classified within two broad 
categories: “Facilities” and “Administration.”  “Facilities” is defined as 
depreciation on buildings, equipment and capital improvement, interest on 
debt associated with certain buildings, equipment and capital 
improvements, and operations and maintenance expenses.  
“Administration” is defined as general administration and general 
expenses such as the director's office, accounting, personnel and all other 
types of expenditures not listed specifically under one of the subcategories 
of “Facilities” (including cross allocations from other pools, where 
applicable).  [2 CFR 200.414(a)] [45 CFR 75.414(a)] 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS 

A. Program Income 

1. Program Income must be reported and expended under the same terms 
and conditions as the program funds from which it is generated. 

2. Program Income must be used to pay for current allowable costs of the 
program in the same fiscal year that the income was earned (except as 
noted in 4). 

3. For Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman, and VII-A Elder Abuse 
Prevention programs, Program Income must be spent before contract 
funds (except as noted in 4) and may reduce the total amount of contract 
funds payable to the Contractor. 

4. For Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman, and VII-A Elder Abuse 
Prevention programs, if Program Income is earned in excess of the 
amount reported in the Area Plan Budget, the excess amount may be 
deferred for use in the first quarter of the following Contract period, which 
is the last quarter of the federal fiscal year. 

5. If Program Income is deferred for use it must be used by the last day of 
the federal fiscal year and reported when used. 

6. Program Income may not be used to meet the matching requirements of 
this Agreement. 

7. Program Income must be used to expand baseline services. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 7 of 12 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS (Continued) 

B. One-Time Only (OTO) Funds 

1. OTO funds are non-transferable between funding sources.  This means 
that OTO funds can only be used in the program in which they were 
accrued. 

2. OTO funds can only be awarded to a subcontractor that has a valid 
contract with the AAA.  All contracts shall be procured either through an 
open and competitive procurement process pursuant to 22 CCR 7352 or 
through a non-competitive award pursuant to 22 CCR 7360. 

3. Titles III and VII federal Program OTO funds shall only be used for the 
following purposes: 

a. The purchase of equipment that enhances the delivery of services 
to the eligible service population. 

b. Home and community-based projects that are approved in advance 
by CDA, and are designed to address the unmet needs of the 
eligible service population identified in the Area Plan. 

c. Innovative pilot projects that are approved in advance by CDA, and 
are designed for the development or enhancement of a 
comprehensive and coordinated system of services as defined in 
45 CFR 1321.53(a)(b). 

d. OTO funds can be used to maintain or increase baseline services.  
However, AAAs shall assure that services funded with OTO funds 
will not create an expectation of service delivery beyond the current 
Contract period.  Expenditures for baseline services do not require 
advance CDA approval. 

4. NSIP OTO funds shall only be used to purchase food used in the Elderly 
Nutrition Program. 

C. Matching Contributions 

"Matching Contributions" means local cash and/or in-kind contributions made by 
the Contractor, a subcontractor, or other local resources that qualify as match for 
the Contract funding. 

1. Cash and/or in-kind contributions may count as match, if such 
contributions are used to meet program requirements. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 8 of 12 

ARTICLE III.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC FUNDS (Continued) 

2. Any matching contributions (cash or in-kind) must be verifiable from the 
records of the Contractor or a subcontractor. 

3. Matching contributions must be used for allowable costs in accordance 
with the OMB cost principles. 

D. Area Plan Administration 

Area Plan Administration is comprised of federal funds from Title III-B, III-C1, III-
C2, and III-E as well as General Funds in no specific subcategory. Federal Area 
Plan Administration funding may be utilized on Area Plan administration, or 
program activities and services, or both. General Fund Area Plan Administrative 
funding must be utilized on Area Plan administration.   

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION 

A. The Contractor shall submit electronically the original Area Plan Budget with the 
Area Plan and Area Plan annual updates by May 1, unless otherwise instructed 
by CDA. 

B. The Contractor shall submit electronically a budget revision thirty (30) calendar 
days after receiving an amended Area Plan Budget Display with changes in 
funding levels, unless otherwise instructed by CDA. 

C. The final date to submit a budget revision containing allocation transfers is 
January 15th of the Contract period unless otherwise specified by CDA. 

D. Line Item Budget Transfers 

The Contractor may transfer contract funds between line items under the 
following terms and conditions: 

1. The Contractor may transfer any or all administrative funds into program 
without restrictions for each funding source – Title III B, C-1, C-2, & E.  
However, the Contractor shall not transfer funds designated for programs 
into administration line items. 

2. The Contractor shall submit a revised budget to CDA when one or the 
cumulative line item budget transfers exceeds ten percent (10%) of the 
total budget for each funding source.  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 9 of 12 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a written record of all budget changes and 
clearly document line item budget changes.  The record shall include the 
date, amount and purpose of the transfer.  This record shall be available 
to CDA upon request and shall be maintained in the same manner as all 
other financial records. 

4. Final budget revision containing line item adjustments may be submitted 
as necessary, but no later than sixty (60) days prior to the ending date of 
the contract, and shall not include allocation transfers. 

E. Allocation Transfers 

1. The Contractor shall submit a request to CDA to transfer federal or State 
funds between Title III B, C-1 and C-2 programs in accordance with the 
Budget Display in Exhibit B.  The request shall be submitted as instructed 
in the Area Plan Budget forms. 

a. Transfer of federal baseline funds is allowable between Titles III B 
and III C in accordance with OAA § 308(b)(5)(A) and between 
Titles III C-1, and III C-2 in accordance with OAA § 308(b)(4)(A). 

b. Transfer of State funds is allowable between Title III C-1 General 
Fund and Title III C-2 General Fund. 

2. Approved transfers and Area Plan Budgets will be incorporated by 
reference into the current Agreement. 

3. Transfer of funds cannot be processed or approved after the end of the 
specified Contract period. 

F. Matching Requirements 

1. The required minimum administration matching contributions for Title III B, 
not including Ombudsman, III C, & III E combined is twenty-five percent 
(25%). 

2. The required minimum program matching contributions for Title III B, not 
including Ombudsman, and III C is ten percent (10%). 

3. The required minimum program matching contributions for Title III E is 
twenty-five percent (25%). 

4. Minimum matching requirements are calculated on net costs, which are 
total costs less program income, non-matching contributions, and State 
funds.  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 10 of 12 

ARTICLE IV.  PROGRAM SPECIFIC BUDGET AND BUDGET REVISION (Continued) 

5. Program matching contributions for Title III B, not including Ombudsman, 
and III C can be pooled to meet the minimum requirement of ten percent 
(10%). 

6. Matching contributions generated in excess of the minimum required are 
considered overmatch. 

7. Program overmatch from Title III B or C can be used to meet the program 
match requirement for Title III E. 

8. Of the total minimum match required for Title III at least twenty-five 
percent (25%) must be from local public agencies (e.g., city and county 
governments, school districts, special districts, and water districts). 

G. Program Development or Coordination 

The Contractor shall not budget or fund Program Development or Coordination 
activities as a cost of Title III B Supportive Services until it has first budgeted and 
spent the total of its Title III B, C, & E funds allocated for Area Plan administration 
costs.  During the Contract period, Program Development or Coordination 
activities and Area Plan administration activities can occur simultaneously.  (See 
Article VI of this Exhibit for reconciliation during the closeout period.) 

H. Equipment 

Equipment/Property with per unit cost over $5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from the Contractor and approval from 
CDA.  To request approval for specific equipment items, requests with 
justifications shall be sent to cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov.  Such items must 
also be included in Contractor’s approved Area Plan Budget. Please note an 
approved budget is not approval for equipment purchase. 

I. The Title IIIC nutrition augmentation funding may be transferred between 
General Fund C1 and General Fund C2 as needed to provide services. The 
funding must not be transferred to other programs or be used to supplant other 
program funding, including the Federal Title IIIC1 and Federal Title IIIC2. 

ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS 

A. Title III B, III C, III D, III E, VII Ombudsman and VII-A Elder Abuse Prevention 

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a monthly expenditure report in an 
electronic format to CDA no later than the last business day of each month or as 
specified by CDA.  The report shall include all costs and funding sources for the 
month prior. 



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 11 of 12 

ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS (Continued) 

B. Ombudsman Citation Penalties Account, Licensing and Certification Program 
funds, Skilled Nursing Facility Quality and Accountability Funds, CARES Act, 
Elder Justice Act, and Older Californians Act. 

The Contractor shall submit a monthly expenditure report and a request for funds 
to CDA no later than the last business day of each month unless otherwise 
specified by CDA  

C. Payments will be made to reimburse expenditures reported unless contractor 
pre-selects an Advance method on CDA 122 at the time of contract execution. 

D. Contractor shall be charged $75 per program fund source for expedited 
payments to recover the fees charged by the State Controller’s Office.  CDA may 
waive the fees on a case-by-case basis as appropriate. 

E. CDA may require financial reports more frequently than indicated above or with 
more detail (or both), upon written notice to the Contractor, until such time as 
CDA determines that the financial management standards are met. 

F. The funding balances for July 1 through September 30 will be determined from 
the Contractor’s budget (CDA 122). 

G. The funding balances for October 1 through February 28 will be based on the 
contract budget display from the contract amendment until transfers are 
approved by Administration for Community Living. 

H. The funding balances for March 1st (or upon ACL approval whichever is the 
latter) through June 30th, will be based on the Contractor’s final budget (CDA 
122) (i.e., budget submitted with the contract amendment, the January 15th or 
April 30th budget). 

ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout Report (CDA 180) and the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024) shall be submitted annually to the CDA Local 
Finance Bureau.  All contractors are required to submit Closeout Reports as 
instructed by CDA. 

B. Federal funds will be reduced proportionately to maintain the required matching 
ratios if the Contractor fails to report sufficient match. 

C. During the review and approval of the closeout, administration costs will be 
increased to the total amount allocated before approving final costs for Program 
Development or Coordination activities.  



California Department of Aging                                                                   AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit B – Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout 

 

 
Page 12 of 12 

ARTICLE VI.  CLOSEOUT (Continued) 

D. Closeout reporting documents must be addressed to the CDA Local Finance 
Bureau. 

E. Final expenditures must be reported to CDA in accordance with the budget 
display in Exhibit B.  If the expenditures reported by the Contractor exceed the 
advanced amount, CDA will reimburse the difference to the Contractor up to the 
contract amount.  If the expenditures reported by the Contractor are less than the 
advanced amount, CDA will invoice the Contractor for the unspent funds. 

The payment on the invoice is due immediately upon receipt or no later than 30 
days from the date on the invoice. 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 1 of 34 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 

A. General Definitions 

1. “Agreement” or “Contract” means the Standard Agreement (Std. 213), 
Exhibits A, B, C, D and E, an approved Budget Display as identified in 
Exhibit B, and if applicable, a Work Plan or Budget Summary, which are 
hereby incorporated by reference, amendments, and any other documents 
incorporated by reference; unless otherwise provided for in this Article. 

2. “Contractor” means the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) awarded funds 
under this Agreement and is accountable to the State and/or federal 
government for use of these funds and is responsible for executing the 
provisions for services provided under this Agreement. 

3. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

4. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

5. “DUNS” means the nine-digit, Data Universal Numbering System number 
established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc., to uniquely identify 
business entities. 

6. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 

7. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 

8. “Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means the California Public Contract Code. 

9. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 

10. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and “compensable item.” 

11. “State” and “Department” mean the State of California and the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 

12. “Subcontractor” means the legal entity that receives funds from the 
Contractor to carry out part of a federal award identified in this Agreement. 

13. “Subcontract” means any form of legal agreement between the Contractor 
and the Subcontractor, including an agreement that the Contractor 
considers a contract, including vendor type Agreements for providing 
goods or services under this Agreement. 

14. “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the Contractor or 
Subcontractor during the Contractor or Subcontractor’s performance of the 
Agreement. 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 2 of 34 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS (Continued) 

15. “USC” means United States Code. 

16. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

17. “OAA” means Older Americans Act. 

18. “Allocation” means the process of assigning a cost, or a group of costs, to 
one or more cost objective(s), in reasonable proportion to the benefit 
provided or other equitable relationship. The process may entail assigning 
a cost(s) directly to a final cost objective or through one or more 
intermediate cost objectives. (2 CFR 200.4 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

19. “Disallowed costs” means those charges determined to be unallowable, in 
accordance with the applicable Federal statutes, regulations, or the terms 
and conditions of the Federal award. (2 CFR 200.31 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

20. “Questioned Costs” means a cost that is questioned by the auditor 
because of an audit finding which resulted from a violation or possible 
violation of a statute, regulation, or the terms and conditions of a Federal 
award, including for funds used to match Federal funds; where the costs, 
at the time of the audit, are not supported by adequate documentation; or 
where the costs incurred appear unreasonable and do not reflect the 
actions a prudent person would take in the circumstances. (2 CFR 200.84 
and 45 CFR 75.2). 

21. “Recoverable cost” means the state and federal share of the questioned 
cost. 

B. Resolution of Language Conflicts 

The terms and conditions of this federal award and other requirements have the 
following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they require: 

1. The Grant Terms and Conditions. 

2. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and their 
implementing regulations. 

3. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State codes 
and regulations. 

4. Standard Agreement (Std. 213), all Exhibits and any amendments thereto. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 3 of 34 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS (Continued) 

5. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if 
applicable, the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of the 
HHS Grant Policy Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement is 
available under the HHS Policy Requirements Topic at 
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html 

6. Program memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES 

A. Law, Policy and Procedure, Licenses, and Certificates 

The Contractor agrees to administer this Agreement and require any 
subcontractors to administer their subcontracts in accordance with this 
Agreement, and with all applicable local, State, and federal laws and regulations 
including, but not limited to, discrimination, wages and hours of employment, 
occupational safety, and to fire, safety, health, and sanitation regulations, 
directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this Agreement and resolve all 
issues using good administrative practices and sound judgment.  The Contractor 
and its subcontractors shall keep in effect all licenses, permits, notices, and 
certificates that are required by law. 

B. Subcontracts 

The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all 
subcontractors to comply with all applicable State and federal laws. 

C. Nondiscrimination  

The Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  
These include those statutes and laws contained in the Contractor Certification 
Clauses (CCC 307), which is hereby incorporated by reference.  In addition, the 
Contractor shall comply with the following: 

1. Equal Access to Federally-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits recipients of federal 
financial assistance from discriminating against persons based on race, 
color, religion, or national origin. 

2. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 

The Contractor shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 4 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

requirements of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq., and 2 CCR § 11140 et 
seq., which prohibit recipients of state financial assistance from 
discriminating against persons based on race, national origin, ethnic group 
identification, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, color, or disability.  
[22 CCR § 98323] 

3. California Civil Rights Laws 

The Contractor shall, ensure compliance with the requirements of 
California Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed 
California Civil Rights Laws Certification, prior to execution of this 
Agreement. The certificate is available at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx 

The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures Contractor 
compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) and the 
Fair Employment and Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 12960), and ensures 
that Contractor internal policies are not used in violation of California Civil 
Rights Laws. 

4. The Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA.  [42 USC 12101 et seq.] 

5. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it 
enters into with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

D. Standards of Work 

The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted professional 
standards. 

E. Conflict of Interest 

1. The Contractor shall prevent employees, consultants, or members of 
governing bodies from using their positions for purposes including, but not 
limited to, the selection of subcontractors, that are, or give the appearance 
of being, motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, 
such as family, business, or other ties.  In the event that the State 
determines that a conflict of interest exists, any increase in costs 
associated with the conflict of interest may be disallowed by the State and 
such conflict may constitute grounds for termination of the Agreement. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 5 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

2. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of persons 
with whom the Contractor’s officers, agents, or employees have family, 
business, or other ties, so long as the employment of such persons does 
not result in a conflict of interest (real or apparent) or increased costs over 
those associated with the employment of any other equally qualified 
applicant, and such persons have successfully competed for employment 
with the other applicants on a merit basis. 

F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 

1. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been 
employed or retained to solicit this Agreement.  There has been no 
agreement to make commission payments in order to obtain this 
Agreement. 

2. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without liability or at its discretion to deduct from 
the Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full 
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingency fee. 

G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 

The Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and 
contributions, including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Old 
Age Survivors Disability Insurance, and federal and State income taxes withheld, 
to designated governmental agencies as required by law. 

H. Facility Construction or Repair 

This section applies only to Title III funds and not to other funds allocated to other 
Titles under the OAA.  Title III funds may be used for facility construction or 
repair. 

1. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, the 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions contained in the following and 
shall include such provisions in any applicable agreements with 
subcontractors: 

a. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act.  [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] 
[29 CFR 3] 

b. Davis-Bacon Act.  [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5] 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 6 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. [40 USC 3701 et 
seq.] [29 CFR  5, 6, 7, 8] 

d. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 
of October 13, 1967, as supplemented in Department of Labor 
Regulations.  [41 CFR 60] 

2. Payments are not permitted for construction, renovation, alteration, 
improvement, or repair of privately-owned property which would enhance 
the owner’s value of such property except where permitted by law and by 
CDA. 

3. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction activities, 
the Contractor must obtain prior written approval from CDA before making 
any fund or budget transfers between construction and non-construction. 

I. Contracts in Excess of $100,000 

If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall comply with 
all applicable orders or requirements issued under the following laws: 

1. Clean Air Act, as amended.  [42 USC 7401] 

2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.  [33 USC 1251 et seq.] 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations.  [40 CFR 29] [Executive 
Order 11738] 

4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code §10295 et seq.] 

5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010] 

J. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 

1. The Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and 
its subcontractors: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered 
transactions by any federal department or agency.   

b. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, 
been convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them 
for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 7 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 
violation of federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property. 

c. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a governmental entity (federal, State, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) 
of this certification. 

d. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Agreement, had 
one or more public transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated 
for cause or default. 

2. The Contractor shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any incidents of 
alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the Contractor or subcontractors. 

3. The Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other evidence 
of fraud and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 

4. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this 
Agreement or other required documentation relating to the Subcontractor’s 
debarment/suspension status. 

K. Agreement Authorization 

1. If a public entity, the Contractor shall submit to CDA a copy of an 
approved resolution, order, or motion referencing this Agreement number 
authorizing execution of this Agreement.  If a private nonprofit entity, the 
Contractor shall submit to CDA an authorization by the Board of Directors 
to execute this Agreement, referencing this Agreement number. 

2. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the action 
taken. 

3. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the 
Governing Board of the AAA is required for the original and each 
subsequent amendment to this Agreement.  This requirement may also be 
met by a single resolution from the Governing Board of the Contractor 
authorizing the AAA Director or designee to execute the original and all 
subsequent amendments to this Agreement. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 8 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

L. Contractor’s Staff 

1. The Contractor shall maintain adequate staff to meet the Contractor’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

2. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings which 
the State may find necessary from time to time. 

M. DUNS Number and Related Information 

1. The DUNS number must be provided to CDA prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  Business entities may register for a DUNS number at 
http://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html.  

2. The Contractor must register the DUNS number and maintain an “Active” 
status within the federal System for Award Management available online 
at https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1.  

3. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s DUNS 
information, which is related to this federal subaward on the Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Subaward Reporting 
System (SAM.gov) due to errors in the Contractor’s data entry for its 
DUNS number, the Contractor must immediately update the information 
as required. 

N. Corporate Status 

1. The Contractor shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA).  If a private nonprofit corporation or JPA, the 
Contractor shall be in good standing with the Secretary of State of 
California and shall maintain that status throughout the term of this 
Agreement. 

2. The Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors providing services 
under this Agreement shall be of sound financial status. 

3. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing with the 
Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout 
the term of this Agreement. 

4. Failure to maintain good standing by the contracting entity shall result in 
suspension or termination of this Agreement with CDA until satisfactory 
status is restored.  Failure to maintain good standing by a subcontracting 
entity shall result in suspension or termination of the subcontract by the 
Contractor until satisfactory status is restored. 

  

http://www.dnb.com/duns-number.html
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1


California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 9 of 34 

ARTICLE II.  ASSURANCES (Continued) 

O. Lobbying Certification 

The Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on 
behalf of the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency; a Member of Congress; 
an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a Member of 
Congress; in connection with the awarding of any federal contract; the 
making of any federal grant; the making of any federal loan; the entering 
into of any cooperative agreement; and the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will 
be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions. 

3. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be 
included in the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements which exceed 
$100,000) and that all subcontractors shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. 

5. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31 USC 1352. 

6. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each 
such failure. 

P. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with Governor’s 
Executive Order 2-18-2011, which bans expenditures on promotional and 
marketing items colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or “Stuff We All Get.” 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 10 of 34 

ARTICLE III.  AGREEMENT 

A copy of this executed Agreement is on file and available for inspection at the 
California Department of Aging, 2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, 
California 95833. 

ARTICLE IV.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

Should the Contractor or subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice that 
this Agreement is approved, that work may be considered as having been performed at 
risk as a volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated. 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS 

A. The Contractor is responsible for carrying out the terms of this Agreement, 
including the satisfaction, settlement, and resolution of all administrative, 
programmatic, and fiscal aspects of the program(s), including issues that arise 
out of any subcontracts, and shall not delegate or contract these responsibilities 
to any other entity.  This includes, but is not limited to, disputes, claims, protests 
of award, or other matters of a contractual nature.  The Contractor’s decision is 
final and the Subcontractor has no right of appeal to CDA. 

B. The Contractor shall, in the event any subcontractor is utilized by the Contractor 
for any portion of this Agreement, retain the prime responsibility for all the terms 
and conditions set forth, including but not limited to, the responsibility for 
preserving the State’s copyrights and rights in data in accordance with Article XIX 
of this Exhibit, for handling property in accordance with Article VII. of this Exhibit, 
and ensuring the keeping of, access to, availability of, and retention of records of 
subcontractors in accordance with Article VI. of this Exhibit. 

C. The Contractor shall not obligate funds for this Agreement in any subcontracts for 
services beyond the ending date of this Agreement. 

D.  The Contractor shall have no authority to contract for, or on behalf of, or incur 
obligations on behalf of the State. 

E. The Contractor shall maintain on file copies of subcontracts, memorandums 
and/or Letters of Understanding which shall be made available for review at the 
request of CDA. 

F. The Contractor shall monitor the insurance requirements of its subcontractors in 
accordance with Article XI of this Exhibit. 

G. The Contractor shall require language in all subcontracts to require all 
subcontractors to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Contractor, its 
officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing to 
or resulting from any subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person,  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 11 of 34 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS (Continued) 

firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies 
in connection with any activities performed for which funds from this Agreement 
were used and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any 
person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by the 
Subcontractor(s) in the performance of this Agreement. 

H. The Contractor shall ensure that the Subcontractor will complete all reporting and 
expenditure documents requested by CDA.  These reporting and expenditure 
documents shall be sent to the Contractor in a timely manner and at intervals as 
determined by CDA. 

I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of a subcontract to any for-profit 
entity, submit the following to CDA for review and approval: 

1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or Invitation for Bid. 

2. All bid proposals received. 

3. The proposal or bid evaluation documentation, along with the Contractor’s 
rationale for awarding the subcontract to a for-profit entity.  [22 CCR 7362] 

4. Description and documentation of dissemination of information concerning 
the RFP to elicit adequate competition. [22 CCR 7356] 

Where a program may be subcontracted to a for-profit organization, the 
Contractor should include in its contract with the for-profit entity, a requirement 
for performance of a program-specific audit of the subcontracted program by an 
independent audit firm. 

J. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate staff to meet 
the Subcontractor’s Agreement with the Contractor.  This staff shall be available 
to the State for training and meetings which the State may find necessary from 
time to time. 

K. If a private nonprofit corporation, the Subcontractor shall be in good standing with 
the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that status throughout the 
term of the Agreement. 

L. The Contractor shall refer to 2 CFR 200.330, Subpart D - Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations and 45 CFR 75.351, Subpart D - Subrecipient and 
Contractor Determinations in making a determination if a subcontractor 
relationship exists.  If such a relationship exists, then the Contractor shall follow 
the procurement requirements in the applicable OMB Circular. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 12 of 34 

ARTICLE V.  SUBCONTRACTS (Continued) 

M. The Contractor shall utilize procurement procedures as follows: 

1. The Contractor shall obtain goods and services through open and competitive 
awards.  Each Contractor shall have written policies and procedures, including 
application forms, for conducting an open and competitive process, and any 
protests resulting from the process. 

2. For goods and services purchased with Title III or Title VII funds, the 
procurement procedures must include, at a minimum, the requirements set 
forth in 22 CCR 7352.  The only exception is contained in 22 CCR 7360(a).  
The Contractor issuing a noncompetitive award must comply with 
22 CCR 7360(b)-(d). 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete records which shall include, but not be 
limited to, accounting records, contracts, agreements, a reconciliation of the 
“Financial Closeout Report” (CDA Closeout) to the audited financial statements, 
single audit report, and general ledgers, and a summary worksheet identifying the 
results of performing an audit resolution of its subcontractors in accordance with 
Article X. of this Exhibit.  This includes the following: Letters of Agreement, 
insurance documentation, memorandums and/or Letters of Understanding, patient 
or client records, and electronic files of its activities and expenditures hereunder in 
a form satisfactory to CDA.  All records pertaining to this Agreement must be made 
available for inspection and audit by the State or its duly authorized agents, at any 
time during normal business hours.  The reconciliation of the CDA Closeout to the 
Contractor general ledger must be submitted with the CDA Closeout package.   

B. All such records, including confidential records, must be maintained and made 
available by the Contractor: (1) until an audit has occurred and an audit 
resolution has been issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA’s 
Audit Branch, (2) for such longer period, if any, as is required by applicable 
statute, by any other clause of this Agreement, or by Sections A and C of this 
Article, and (3) for such longer period as CDA deems necessary. 

C. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 
terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same periods as specified 
in Section A above.  The Contractor shall ensure that any resource directories and all 
client records remain the property of CDA upon termination of this Agreement, and 
are returned to CDA or transferred to another contractor as instructed by CDA. 

D. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other action 
involving the records, all records relative to such action shall be maintained and 
made available until every action has been cleared to the satisfaction of the State 
and is so stated in writing to the Contractor. 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 13 of 34 

ARTICLE VI.  RECORDS (Continued) 

E. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained relative 
to the allowability of expenditures reimbursed by the State under this Agreement.  
If the allowability of expenditures cannot be determined because records or 
documentation of the Contractor are nonexistent or inadequate according to 
guidelines set forth in 2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302, the expenditures will 
be questioned in the audit and may be disallowed by CDA during the audit 
resolution process. 

F. All records containing confidential information shall be handled in a confidential 
manner in accordance with the requirements for information integrity and 
security, and in accordance with guidelines set forth in this Article, and Article 
XVIII.  After the authorized period has expired, confidential records shall be 
shredded and disposed of in a manner that will maintain confidentiality. 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY 

A. Unless otherwise provided for in this Article, property refers to all assets used in 
operation of this Agreement. 

1. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery, vehicles, 
furniture, tools, and intangibles, etc. 

2. Property does not include consumable office supplies such as paper, 
pencils, toner cartridges, file folders, etc. 

B. Property acquired under this agreement, which meets any of the following criteria 
is subject to the reporting requirements: 

1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit acquisition 
cost of at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is considered a unit, if 
purchased as a unit). 

2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook 
computers, tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including but not 
limited to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 

C. Additions, improvements, and betterments to assets meeting all of the conditions 
in Section B above must also be reported.  Additions typically involve physical 
extensions of existing units.  Improvements and betterments typically do not 
increase the physical size of the asset.  Instead, improvements and betterments 
enhance the condition of an asset (e.g., extend life, increase service capacity,  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 14 of 34 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

and lower operating costs).  Examples of assets that might be improved and 
bettered include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, tunnels, parking lots, streets 
and sidewalks, drainage, and lighting systems. 

D. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable rights to 
the owner.  Examples of intangible property include patents, copyrights, leases, 
and computer software.  By contrast, hardware consists of tangible equipment 
(e.g., computer printer, terminal, etc.).  Costs include all amounts incurred to 
acquire and to ready the intangible asset for its intended use.  Typical intangible 
property costs include the purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to 
obtain title to the asset. 

E. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this 
Agreement that meet the requirements as defined in Exhibit D, Article VII, item B, 
and submit to CDA a Property Acquisition Form (CDA 9023) for all property 
furnished or purchased by either the Contractor or the Subcontractor with funds 
awarded under the terms of this Agreement, as instructed by the CDA.  The 
Contractor shall certify their reported property inventory annually with the 
Closeout by completing the Program Property Inventory Certification (CDA 
9024), unless further restricted by Exhibit E, where applicable. 

The Contractor shall record, at minimum, the following information when property 
is acquired: 

1. Date acquired. 

2. Item description (include model number). 

3. CDA tag number. 

4. Serial number (if applicable). 

5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation. 

6. Fund source 

F. Disposal of Property 

1. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor with funds from this Agreement or any predecessor 
Agreement, the Contractor must obtain approval from CDA for all 
reportable property as defined in Section B of this Article. Disposition, 
which includes sale, trade-in, discarding, or transfer to another agency 
may not occur until approval is received from CDA.  The Contractor shall 
submit to CDA a Request to Dispose of Property (CDA 248).  CDA will 
then instruct the AAA on disposition of the property.  Once approval for 
disposal has been received from CDA and the AAA has reported to CDA 
the Property Survey Report’s (STD 152) Certification of Disposition, the 
item(s) shall be removed from the Contractor’s inventory report. 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 15 of 34 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

2. The Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive, or personal 
information from CDA property prior to disposal, including removal or 
destruction of data on computing devices with digital memory and storage 
capacity.  This includes, but is not limited to magnetic tapes, flash drives, 
personal computers, personal digital assistants, cell or smart phones, 
multi-function printers, and laptops. 

G. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated, fully documented 
and the Contractor shall promptly notify CDA. 

H. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not fully 
consumed in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by 
federal law or regulations or as otherwise agreed by the parties. 

I. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection, and 
preservation of such property during the period of the project, and shall assume 
responsibility for replacement or repair of such property during the period of the 
project, or until the Contractor has complied with all written instructions from CDA 
regarding the final disposition of the property. 

J. In the event of the Contractor’s dissolution or upon termination of this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the State.  The State 
reserves the right to require the Contractor to transfer such property to another 
entity, or to the State. 

K. To exercise the above right, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
termination of this Agreement or notification of the Contractor’s dissolution, the 
State will issue specific written disposition instructions to the Contractor. 

L. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was intended 
under the Agreement.  When no longer needed for that use, the Contractor shall 
use it, if needed, and with written approval of the State for other purposes in this 
order: 

1. For another CDA program providing the same or similar service. 

2. For another CDA-funded program. 

M. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use by 
other programs, upon written approval from CDA.  As a condition of the approval, 
CDA may require reimbursement under this Agreement for its use. 

N. The Contractor or subcontractors shall not use equipment or supplies acquired 
under this Agreement with federal and/or State monies for personal gain or to 
usurp the competitive advantage of a privately-owned business entity. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 16 of 34 

ARTICLE VII.  PROPERTY (Continued) 

O. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be purchased 
will be specified in the Budget Summary. 

P. The Contractor shall include the provisions contained in this Article in all its 
subcontracts awarded under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII.  ACCESS 

The Contractor shall provide access to the federal or State contracting agency, the 
California State Auditor, the Comptroller, General of the United States, or any of their 
duly authorized federal or State representatives to any books, documents, papers, and 
records of the Contractor or subcontractor which are directly pertinent to this specific 
Agreement for the purpose of making an audit, examination, excerpts, and 
transcriptions.  The Contractor shall include this requirement in its subcontracts. 

ARTICLE IX.  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

A. Authorized State representatives shall have the right to monitor and evaluate the 
Contractor’s administrative, fiscal and program performance pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Said monitoring and evaluation may include, but is not limited to, 
administrative processes, fiscal, data and procurement components.  This will 
include policies, procedures, procurement, audits, inspections of project 
premises, interviews of project staff and participants, and when applicable, 
inspection of food preparation sites. 

B. The Contractor shall cooperate with the State in the monitoring and evaluation 
processes, which include making any administrative, program and fiscal staff 
available during any scheduled process. 

C. The Contractor shall monitor contracts and subcontracts to ensure compliance 
with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts that may have a direct 
and/or material effect on each of its CDA funded programs. 

D. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining supporting documentation including 
financial and statistical records, contracts, subcontracts, monitoring reports, and 
all other pertinent records until an audit has occurred and an audit resolution has 
been issued or unless otherwise authorized in writing by CDA. 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

A. General 

1. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State government, 
which includes but is not limited to the State Auditor, CDA Staff, and any  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 17 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

entity selected by State to perform inspections, shall have the right to 
monitor and audit Contractor and all subcontractors providing  

services under this Agreement through on-site inspections, audits, and 
other applicable means the State determines necessary. In the event that 
CDA is informed of an audit by an outside federal or State government 
entity affecting the Contractor, CDA will provide timely notice to 
Contractor. 

2. Contractor shall make available all reasonable information necessary to 
substantiate that expenditures under this agreement are allowable and 
allocable, including, but not limited to books, documents, papers, and 
records. Contractor shall agree to make such information available to the 
federal government, the State, or any of their duly authorized 
representatives, including representatives of the entity selected by State to 
perform inspections, for examination, copying, or mechanical 
reproduction, on or off the premises of the appropriate entity upon a 
reasonable request. 

3. All agreements entered into by Contractor and subcontractors with audit 
firms for purposes of conducting independent audits under this Agreement 
shall contain a clause permitting any duly authorized representative of the 
federal or State government access to the supporting documentation of 
said audit firm(s). 

4. The Contractor shall cooperate with and participate in any further audits 
which may be required by the State, including CDA fiscal and compliance 
audits. 

B. CDA Fiscal and Compliance Audits 

1. The CDA Audits Branch shall perform fiscal and compliance audits of 
Contractors in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing 
Standards (GAGAS) to ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, grants, and contract requirements. 

2. The CDA fiscal and compliance audits may include, but not be limited to, a 
review of: 
 
a. Financial closeouts (2 CFR 200.16 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

b. Internal controls (2 CFR 200.303 and 45 CFR 75.303) 

c. Allocation of expenditures (2 CFR 200.4 and 45 CFR 75.2) 

d. Allowability of expenditures (2 CFR 200.403 and 45 CFR 75.403) 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 18 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

e. Equipment expenditures and approvals, if required (2 CFR 200.439 
and 45 CFR 75.439) 

C. Single Audit Reporting Requirements (2 CFR 200 Subpart F and 45 CFR 75 
Subpart F) 

1. Contractor Single Audit Reporting Requirements 

a. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in federal funds shall 
arrange for an audit to be performed as required by the Single Audit 
Act of 1984, Public Law 98-502; the Single Audit Act Amendments 
of 1996, Public Law 104-156; 2 CFR 200.501 to 200.521 and 45 
CFR 75.501 to 75.521.  A copy shall be submitted to the: 

California Department of Aging 
Attention:  Audits Branch 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
Sacramento, California 95833 

b. The copy shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
the Auditor’s report or nine (9) months after the end of the audit 
period, whichever occurs first, or unless a longer period is agreed 
to in advance by the cognizant or oversight agency. 

c. For purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that State-
funded expenditures are displayed discretely along with the related 
federal expenditures in the single audit report’s “Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards” (SEFA) under the Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number. 

d. For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the Contractor 
shall ensure that the State-funded expenditures are discretely 
identified in the SEFA by the appropriate program name, identifying 
grant/contract number, and as passed through CDA. 

2. The Contractor shall perform a reconciliation of the “Financial Closeout 
Report” to the audited financial statements, single audit, and general 
ledgers.  The reconciliation shall be maintained and made available for 
CDA review. 

3. Contract Resolution of Contractor’s Subrecipients 

The Contractor shall have the responsibility for resolving its contracts with 
subcontractors to determine whether funds provided under this Agreement  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 19 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

are expended in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and 
provisions of contracts or agreements.  The Contractor shall, at a 
minimum, perform Contract resolution within fifteen (15) months of the 
"Financial Closeout Report." 

4. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 2 
CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F-Audit Requirements 

5. Contract resolution includes: 

a. Ensuring that subcontractors expending $750,000 or more in 
federal awards during the subcontractor’s fiscal year have met the 
audit requirements of 2 CFR 200.501 - 200.521 and 45 CFR 75.501 
to 75.521. 

b. Issuing a management decision on audit findings within six (6) 
months after receipt of the Subcontractor’s single audit report and 
ensuring that the Subcontractor takes appropriate and timely 
corrective action. 

c. Reconciling expenditures reported to the Contractor to the amounts 
identified in the single audit or other type of audit if the 
Subcontractor was not subject to the single audit requirements.  For 
a subcontractor who was not required to obtain a single audit and 
did not obtain another type of audit, the reconciliation of 
expenditures reported to CDA must be accomplished through 
performing alternative procedures (e.g., risk assessment [2 CFR 
200.331 and 45 CFR 75.352], documented review of financial 
statements, and documented expense verification, including match, 
etc.). 

6. When alternative procedures are used, the Contractor shall perform 
financial management system testing, which provides, in part, for the 
following: 

a. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results 
of each federal award or program. 

b. Records that identify adequately the source and application of 
funds for each federally funded activity. 

c. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, 
and other assets to ensure these items are used solely for 
authorized purposes. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 20 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

d. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each federal 
award. 

e. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 
2 CFR 200.305. 

f. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 and 45 CFR Part 75, Subparts E - 
Cost Principles. 

[2 CFR 200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302] 

g. The Contractor shall document system and expense testing to 
show an acceptable level of reliability, including a review of actual 
source documents. 

h. Determining whether the results of the reconciliations performed 
necessitate adjustment of the Contractor’s own records. 

7. The Contractor shall ensure that subcontractor single audit reports meet 
2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F - Audit Requirements: 

a. Performed timely – not less frequently than annually and a report 
submitted timely.  The audit is required to be submitted within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of the Auditor’s report or nine (9) 
months after the end of the audit period, whichever occurs first.  
[2 CFR 200 512 and 45 CFR 75.512] 

b. Properly procured – use procurement standards for auditor 
selection.  [2 CFR 200.509 and CFR 75.509] 

c. Performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards.  [2 CFR 200.514 and 45 CFR 75.514] 

d. All inclusive – includes an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) of the 
financial statements; a report on internal control related to the 
financial statements and major programs; an opinion (or disclaimer 
of opinion) on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions 
of contracts; and the schedule of findings and questioned costs.  [2 
CFR 200.515 and 45 CFR 75.515] 

e. Performed in accordance with provisions applicable to this program 
as identified in 2 CFR Part 200, and 45 CFR Part 75, Subpart F, 
Audit Requirements. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 21 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

8. Requirements identified in Sections D and E of this Article shall be 
included in contracts with the Subcontractor.  Further, the Subcontractor 
shall be required to include in its contract with the independent Auditor 
that the Auditor will comply with all applicable audit 
requirements/standards; CDA shall have access to all audit reports and 
supporting work papers, and CDA has the option to perform additional 
work, as needed. 

9. The Contractor shall prepare a summary worksheet of results from the 
contract resolutions performed of all subcontractors.  The summary 
worksheet shall include, but not be limited to, contract amounts; amounts 
resolved; amounts of match verified, resolution of variances; recovered 
amounts; whether an audit was relied upon or the Contractor performed 
an independent expense verification review (alternative procedures) of the 
Subcontractor in making a determination; whether audit findings were 
issued; and, if applicable, issuance date of the management letter; and 
any communication or follow-up performed to resolve the findings. 

10. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by, and 
performed in, accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, 
as implemented by requirements of this part, are allowable.  However, the 
following audit costs are unallowable: 

a. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 
2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements have 
not been conducted or have been conducted but not in accordance 
therewith; and 

b. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted from 
having an audit conducted under the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 
200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F – Audit Requirements because its 
expenditures under federal awards are less than $750,000 during 
the non-federal entity’s fiscal year. 

i. The costs of a financial statement audit of a non-federal 
entity that does not currently have a federal award may be 
included in the indirect cost pool for a cost allocation plan or 
indirect cost proposal. 

ii. Pass-through entities may charge federal awards for the cost 
of agreed-upon-procedures engagements to monitor 
subcontractors who are exempted from the requirements of 
the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, 
Subparts F – Audit Requirements.  This cost is allowable 
only if the agreed-upon procedures engagements are  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 22 of 34 

ARTICLE X.  AUDIT REQUIREMENTS (Continued) 

conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) attestation 
standards, paid for and arranged by the pass-through entity, 
and limited in scope to one or more of the following types of 
compliance requirements: activities allowed or not allowed; 
allowable costs/cost principles; eligibility; and reporting. 

[2 CFR 200.425] 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE 

A. Prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
provide for the term of this Agreement, the following insurance: 

1. General liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury and property damage combined.  Higher limits may be required by 
the State in cases of higher than usual risks. 

2. Automobile liability including non-owned auto liability, of not less than 
$1,000,000 for volunteers and paid employees providing services 
supported by this Agreement. 

3. If applicable, or unless otherwise amended by future regulation, the 
Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the Public Utilities 
Commission General Order No. 115-F which requires higher levels of 
insurance for charter-party carriers of passengers and is based on seating 
capacity as follows: 

a. $750,000 if seating capacity is under 8 

b. $1,500,000 if seating capacity is 8 – 15 

c. $5,000,000 if seating capacity is over 15 

4. Professional liability of not less than $1,000,000 as it appropriately relates 
to the services rendered.  Coverage shall include medical malpractice 
and/or errors and omissions. (All programs except Title V). 

B. The insurance will be obtained from an insurance company acceptable to the 
Department of General Services, Office of Risk and Insurance Management 
(DGS, ORIM), or be provided through partial or total self-insurance acceptable to 
the Department of General Services (DGS). 

C. Evidence of insurance shall be in a form and content acceptable to DGS, ORIM. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 23 of 34 

ARTICLE XI.  INSURANCE (Continued) 

D. The Contractor shall notify the State within five (5) business days of any 
cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that affects required insurance 
coverage. 

E. Insurance obtained through commercial carriers shall meet the following 
requirements: 

1. The Certificate of Insurance shall provide the statement: “The Department 
of Aging, State of California, its officers, agents, employees, and servants 
are included as additional insureds, with respect to work performed for the 
State of California under this Agreement.”  Professional liability coverage 
is exempt from this requirement. 

2. CDA shall be named as the certificate holder and CDA’s address must be 
listed on the certificate. 

F. The insurance provided herein shall be in effect at all times during the term of 
this Agreement.  In the event the insurance coverage expires during the term of 
this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide CDA, at least thirty (30) days 
prior to the expiration date, a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing insurance 
coverage as provided herein for a period not less than the remaining Agreement 
term or for a period not less than one (1) year.  In the event the Contractor fails to 
keep in effect at all times said insurance coverage, CDA may, in addition to any 
other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement. 

G. The Contractor shall require its subcontractors under this Agreement, other than 
units of local government which are similarly self-insured, to maintain adequate 
insurance coverage for general liability, Worker’s Compensation liabilities, and if 
appropriate, auto liability including non-owned auto and professional liability, and 
further, the Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors to hold the Contractor 
harmless.  The Subcontractor’s Certificate of Insurance for general and auto 
liability shall also name the Contractor, not the State, as the certificate holder and 
additional insured.  The Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Insurance for all 
of its subcontractors. 

H. A copy of each appropriate Certificate of Insurance or letter of self-insurance, 
referencing this Agreement number shall be submitted to CDA with this 
Agreement. 

I. The Contractor shall be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code 
and the Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing 
the performance of the work under this Agreement.  [Labor Code § 3700] 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 24 of 34 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION 

A. Termination Without Cause 

CDA may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole or in 
part, without cause, if CDA determines that a termination is in the State’s best 
interest.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice 
to the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall specify the extent of the 
termination and shall be effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice.  
The parties agree that if the termination of the Contract is due to a reduction or 
deletion of funding by the Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature or 
Congress, the Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days from the 
delivery of the Notice.  The Contractor shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as 
specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The parties agree that for the 
terminated portion of the Agreement, the remainder of Agreement shall be 
deemed to remain in effect and is not void. 

B. Termination for Cause 

CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work under 
this Agreement.  CDA may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the Contractor.  The Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) 
days from the delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the grounds for 
termination are due to threat to life, health or safety of the public and in that case, 
the termination shall take effect immediately.  The Contractor shall submit to 
CDA a Transition Plan as specified in Exhibit E of this Agreement.  The grounds 
for termination for cause shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of the 
Agreement shall be effective immediately. 

2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this 
Agreement. 

3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to endanger 
performance of this Agreement. 

4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 

5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 
determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence of a financial 
condition that endangers performance of this Agreement and/or the loss of 
other funding sources. 

6. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for performance of 
this Agreement in the ordinary course of business. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 25 of 34 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 

7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part 
of the Contractor’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization or 
the arrangement of liquidation proceedings by or against the Contractor. 

8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or commencement of 
garnishment proceedings against the Contractor’s assets or income. 

9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 

10. Finding of debarment or suspension.  [Article II J] 

11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 

12. CDA determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high risk” 
agency as described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205.  If such a 
determination is made, the Contractor may be subject to special 
conditions or restrictions. 

C. Contractor’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, the 
Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as 
applicable, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any funds due 
under this clause. 

The Contractor shall: 

1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 

2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as 
necessary, to complete the continued portion of the Contract. 

3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated. 

4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals 
arising from the termination of subcontracts, (the approval or ratification of 
which will be final for purposes of this clause). 

D. Effective Date 

Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of an 
emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public.  The effective 
date for Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty (30) days and  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 26 of 34 

ARTICLE XII.  TERMINATION (Continued) 

Termination without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent to written notice to the 
Contractor.  The notice shall describe the action being taken by CDA, the reason 
for such action and, any conditions of the termination, including the date of 
termination. 

E. Voluntary Termination of Area Plan Agreement (Title III Only) 

Pursuant to 22 CCR 7210, the Contractor may voluntarily terminate its contract 
prior to its expiration either by mutual agreement with CDA or upon thirty (30) 
days written notice to CDA.  In case of voluntary termination, the Contractor shall 
allow CDA up to one hundred eighty (180) days to transition services.  The 
Contractor shall submit a Transition Plan in accordance with Exhibit E of this 
Agreement. 

F. Notice of Intent to Terminate by Contractor (All other non-Title III Programs) 

In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall give CDA Notice of Intent to Terminate.  Such 
notice shall be given in writing to CDA at least one hundred eighty (180) days 
prior to the proposed termination date.  Unless mutually agreed upon, the 
Contractor does not have the authority to terminate the Agreement.  The Notice 
of Intent to Terminate shall include the reason for such action and the anticipated 
last day of work.  The Contractor shall submit a Transition Plan in accordance 
with Exhibit E. 

G. In the Event of a Termination Notice 

CDA will present written notice to the Contractor of any condition, such as, but 
not limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent funds; and 
disposition of property, which must be met prior to termination. 

ARTICLE XIII.  REMEDIES 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and 
not in derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result of 
breach of this Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach occurs before or after 
completion of the project. 

ARTICLE XIV.  DISSOLUTION OF ENTITY 

The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue existence of 
the entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 27 of 34 

ARTICLE XV.  AMENDMENTS, REVISIONS OR MODIFICATIONS 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing, signed and approved through the State amendment process in 
accordance with the State Contract Manual.  No oral understanding or 
agreement not incorporated in this Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

B. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to reflect 
any restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the Legislature 
or as directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 

ARTICLE XVI.  NOTICES 

A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either party to the other may be effected by 
personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, overnight mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the Contractor retains 
receipt, and shall be communicated as of actual receipt. 

B. Any notice given to CDA for the Contractor’s change of legal name, main 
address, or name of the Director shall be completed by submitting a Std. 204 
form to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

C. All other notices with the exception of those identified in Section B of this Article 
shall be addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA Based Teams, 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California, 95833.  Notices 
mailed to the Contractor shall be to the address indicated on the coversheet of 
this Agreement. 

D. Either party may change its address by written notice to the other party in 
accordance with this Article. 

ARTICLE XVII.  DEPARTMENT CONTACT 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications 
affecting this Agreement, will be provided by the State to the Contractor upon full 
execution of this Agreement. 

B. Contractor shall submit to CDA changes to Contractor’s legal name, main 
address, Director, or any key staff to be added or removed from the distribution 
list by submitting a Contact Report to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may 
request the Contact Report by emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

  

mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov
mailto:AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 28 of 34 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY 

A. Information Assets 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall have in place operational 
policies, procedures, and practices to protect State information assets, including 
those assets used to store or access Personal Health Information (PHI), 
Personal Information (PI) and  any information protected under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), (i.e., public, confidential, 
sensitive and/or personal identifying information) herein referred to as Personal, 
Sensitive and Confidential Information (PSCI) as specified in the State 
Administrative Manual, 5300 to 5365.3; Cal. Gov. Code § 11019.9, DGS 
Management Memo 06-12; DOF Budget Letter 06-34; and CDA Program 
Memorandum 07-18 Protection of Information Assets and the Statewide Health 
Information Policy Manual. 

Information assets may be in hard copy or electronic format and may include but 
is not limited to: 

1. Reports 
2. Notes 
3. Forms 
4. Computers, laptops, cellphones, printers, scanners 
5. Networks (LAN, WAN, WIFI) servers, switches, routers 
6. Storage media, hard drives, flash drives, cloud storage 
7. Data, applications, databases 

B. Encryption of Computing Devices 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, are required to use 128-Bit 
encryption for PSCI data that is collected and stored under this Agreement that is 
confidential, sensitive, and/or personal information including data stored on all 
computing devices (including but not limited to, workstations, servers, laptops, 
personal digital assistants, notebook computers and backup media) and/or 
portable electronic storage media (including but not limited to, discs, thumb/flash 
drives, portable hard drives, and backup media). 

C. Disclosure 

1. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all PSCI 
is protected from inappropriate or unauthorized access or disclosure in 
accordance with applicable laws, regulations and State policies.   

2. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall protect from 
unauthorized disclosure, PSCI such as names and other identifying 
information concerning  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 29 of 34 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

persons receiving services pursuant to this Agreement, except for 
statistical information not identifying any participant. 

3. “Personal Identifying information” shall include, but not be limited to: 
name; identifying number; social security number; state driver’s license or 
state identification number; financial account numbers; and symbol or 
other identifying characteristic assigned to the individual, such as finger or 
voice print or a photograph. 

4. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not use PSCI above 
for any purpose other than carrying out the Contractor’s obligations under 
this Agreement.  The Contractor and its Subcontractors are authorized to 
disclose and access identifying information for this purpose as required by 
OAA. 

5. The Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall not, except as 
otherwise specifically authorized or required by this Agreement or court 
order, disclose any identifying information obtained under the terms of this 
Agreement to anyone other than CDA without prior written authorization 
from CDA.  The Contractor may be authorized, in writing, by a participant 
to disclose identifying information specific to the authorizing participant. 

6. The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, may allow a participant 
to authorize the release of information to specific entities, but shall not 
request or encourage any participant to give a blanket authorization or 
sign a blank release, nor shall the Contractor accept such blanket 
authorization from any participant. 

D. Security Awareness Training 

1. The Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors/Vendors, and volunteers 
handling PSCI must complete the required CDA Security Awareness 
Training module located at 
https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources within thirty (30) 
days of the start date of the Contract/Agreement, within thirty (30) days of 
the start date of any new employee, Subcontractor, Vendor or volunteer’s 
employment and annually thereafter. 

2. The Contractor must maintain certificates of completion on file and provide 
them to CDA upon request. 

  

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 30 of 34 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

E. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 

The Contractor agrees to comply with the privacy and security requirements of 
HIPAA and ensure that Subcontractors/Vendors comply with the privacy and 
security requirements of HIPAA. 

F. Information Integrity and Security Statement 

The Contractor shall sign and return an Information Integrity and Security 
Statement (CDA 1024) form with this Agreement.  This is to ensure that the 
Contractor is aware of, and agrees to comply with, their obligations to protect 
CDA information assets, including PSCI, from unauthorized access and 
disclosure. 

G. Security Incident Reporting 

A security incident occurs when CDA information assets are or reasonably 
believed to have been accessed, modified, destroyed, or disclosed without 
proper authorization, or are lost or stolen.  The Contractor, and its 
Subcontractors/Vendors, must comply with CDA’s security incident reporting 
procedure located at https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources. 

H. Security Breach Notifications 

Notice must be given by the Contractor, and/or its Subcontractors/Vendors to 
anyone whose PSCI could have been breached in accordance with HIPAA, the 
Information Practices Act of 1977, and State policy. 

I. Software Maintenance 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall apply security patches and 
upgrades in a timely manner and keep virus software up-to-date on all systems 
on which State data may be stored or accessed. 

J. Electronic Backups 

The Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all electronic 
information is protected by performing regular backups of files and databases 
and ensure the availability of information assets for continued business.  The 
Contractor, and its Subcontractors/Vendors, shall ensure that all data, files and 
backup files are encrypted. 

  

https://www.aging.ca.gov/ProgramsProviders/#Resources


California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 31 of 34 

ARTICLE XVIII.  INFORMATION INTEGRITY, AND SECURITY (Continued) 

K. Provisions of this Article 

The provisions contained in this Article shall be included in all contracts of both 
the Contractor and its Subcontractors/Vendors. 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 

A. Copyrights 

1. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the State 
reserves the right to copyright such material and the Contractor agrees not 
to copyright such material, except as set forth in Section B of this Article. 

2. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by writing to 
the Director of CDA.  The Director shall grant permission, or give reason 
for denying permission to the Contractor in writing within sixty (60) days of 
receipt of the request. 

3. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State reserves 
a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, 
prepare derivative works, publish, distribute and use such materials, in 
whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so, provided written credit is 
given to the author. 

4. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in 
place to ensure that State funds will not be used in the performance of this 
contract for the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of computer 
software in violation of copyright laws. 

B. Rights in Data 

1. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as defined in 
paragraph 2 below, produced or resulting from activities supported by this 
Agreement without the express written consent of the Director of CDA.  
That consent shall be given, or the reasons for denial shall be given, and 
any conditions under which it is given or denied, within thirty (30) days 
after the written request is received by CDA.  CDA may request a copy of 
the material for review prior to approval of the request.  This subsection is 
not intended to prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client 
information authorized by the participant or summary program information 
which is not client-specific. 

2. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, sound 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or graphic 
representations, procedural manuals, forms, diagrams, workflow charts,  

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 32 of 34 

ARTICLE XIX.  COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA (Continued) 

equipment descriptions, data files and data processing or computer 
programs, and works of any similar nature (whether or not copyrighted or 
copyrightable) which are first produced or developed under this 
Agreement.  The term does not include financial reports, cost analyses 
and similar information incidental to contract administration, or the 
exchange of that information between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of 
contract and program administration on a statewide basis. 

3. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may use, 
duplicate, or disclose in any manner, and have or permit others to do so 
subject to State and federal law, all subject data delivered under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES 

A. Needs Assessment 

1. The Contractor shall conduct a cultural and linguistic group-needs 
assessment of the eligible client population in the Contractor’s service 
area to assess the language needs of the population and determine what 
reasonable steps are necessary to ensure meaningful access to services 
and activities to eligible individuals.  [22 CCR 98310, 98314] 

The group-needs assessment shall take into account the following 
four (4) factors: 

a. Number or proportion of persons with Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP) eligible to be served or encountered by the program. 

b. Frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the 
program. 

c. Nature and importance of the services provided. 

d. Local or frequently used resources available to the Contractor. 

This group-needs assessment will serve as the basis for the Contractor’s 
determination of “reasonable steps” and provide documentary evidence of 
compliance with Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq.; 2 CCR 11140, 2 CCR 
11200 et seq., and 22 CCR98300 et seq. 

2. The Contractor shall prepare and make available a report of the findings of 
the group-needs assessment that summarizes: 

  



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 33 of 34 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 

a. Methodologies used. 

b. The linguistic and cultural needs of non-English speaking or LEP 
groups. 

c. Services proposed to address the needs identified and a timeline 
for implementation.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall maintain a record of the group-needs assessment on 
file at the Contractor’s headquarters at all times during the term of this 
Agreement.  [22 CCR 98310, 98313] 

B. Provision of Services 

1. The Contractor shall take reasonable steps, based upon the group-needs 
assessment identified in Section A of this Article, to ensure that 
“alternative communication services” are available to non-English 
speaking or LEP beneficiaries of services under this Agreement. 

[22 CCR 11162] 

2. “Alternative communication services” include, but are not limited to, the 
provision of services and programs by means of the following: 

a. Interpreters or bilingual providers and provider staff. 

b. Contracts with interpreter services. 

c. Use of telephone interpreter lines. 

d. Sharing of language assistance materials and services with other 
providers. 

e. Translated written information materials, including but not limited to, 
enrollment information and descriptions of available services and 
programs. 

f. Referral to culturally and linguistically appropriate community 
service programs. 

3. Based upon the findings of the group-needs assessment, the Contractor 
shall ensure that reasonable alternative communication services are 
available to meet the linguistic needs of identified eligible client population 
groups at key points of contact.  Key points of contact include, but are not 
limited to, telephone contacts, office visits and in-home visits. 

[22 CCR 11162] 



California Department of Aging                                                              AP-2223 Contract 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 

 

Page 34 of 34 

ARTICLE XX.  BILINGUAL AND LINGUISTIC PROGRAM SERVICES (Continued) 

The Contractor shall self-certify to compliance with the requirements of 
this section and shall maintain the self-certification record on file at the 
Contractor’s office at all times during the term of this Agreement.  
[22 CCR 98310] 

4. The Contractor shall notify its employees of clients’ rights regarding 
language access and the Contractor’s obligation to ensure access to 
alternative communication services where determined appropriate based 
upon the needs assessment conducted by the Contractor.  [22 CCR 98324] 

5. Noncompliance with this section may result in suspension or termination 
of funds and/or termination of this Agreement.  [22 CCR 98370] 

C. Compliance Monitoring 

1. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and procedures for 
assessing and monitoring the performance of individuals and entities that 
provide alternative communication services to non-English and LEP 
clients.  [22 CCR 98310] 

2. The Contractor shall monitor, evaluate, and take effective action to 
address any needed improvement in the delivery of culturally and 
linguistically appropriate services.  [22 CCR 98310] 

3. The Contractor shall permit timely access to all records of compliance with 
this section.  Failure to provide access to such records may result in 
appropriate sanctions.  [22 CCR 98314] 

D. Notice to Eligible Beneficiaries of Contracted Services 

1. The Contractor shall designate an employee to whom initial complaints or 
inquiries regarding national origin can be directed.  [22 CCR 98325] 

2. The Contractor shall make available to ultimate beneficiaries of contracted 
services and programs information regarding CDA’s procedure for filing a 
complaint and other information regarding the provisions of Cal. Gov. 
Code § 11135 et seq.  [22 CCR 98326] 

3. The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately of a complaint alleging 
discrimination based upon a violation of State or federal law.  [2 CCR 
11162, 22 CCR 98310, 98340] 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 1 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT 

A. General Assurances 

The Contractor shall assure that the following conditions are met: 

1. Services are provided only to the defined Eligible Service Population. 

2. If the Contractor makes any award of funds to a public or private nonprofit 
agency, for the following purposes:  (1) acquiring, altering, leasing, or 
renovating a facility, including a mobile facility, for use as a multipurpose 
senior center or (2) constructing a facility, including a mobile facility, for 
use as a multipurpose senior center, the Contractor shall adhere to the 
program requirements and to 45 CFR 75.327(2), "Procurement 
Standards" (procurement by contractors and subcontractors for nonprofit 
organizations), and 45 CFR 75.327 (procurement for State and local 
governments), as applicable. 

3. The Contractor shall comply with the standards and guidelines for 
procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services as 
provided in 45 CFR 75.328. 

4. The Contractor assures that when an existing facility has been altered 
(with funds made available by this Agreement) and is used as a 
multipurpose senior center, the period of time in which such facility shall 
be used as a center is as follows: 

a. Not less than three (3) years from the date the Agreement 
terminates, where the amount of the Agreement, including the 
non-federal share, does not exceed $30,000. 

b. If the Agreement amount exceeds $30,000, the fixed period of time 
shall be not less than three (3) years from the date of Agreement 
plus one (1) year for each additional $10,000, or part thereof, to a 
maximum of $75,000. 

c. For Agreement amounts which exceed $75,000, the fixed period of 
time shall be no less than ten (10) years. 

5. Any multipurpose senior center constructed with funds made available by 
this Agreement shall be used for that purpose for at least twenty (20) 
years after completion of that construction. 

6. Any facility to be used as a senior center and acquired with funds made 
available by this Agreement shall be used for that purpose for at least 
ten (10) years from the date of acquisition. 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 2 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

7. Any agency awarded Title III funds for senior center acquisition or 
construction will have a completed and notarized Notice of Assurances to 
the State of California of the Use of Property and the United States’ Right 
of Recapture (CDA 214) recorded with the County Recorder.  The 
Contractor shall periodically validate continuing use of such facility as a 
senior center during the recapture period. 

8. CDA will make funds available only for the support of activities specified in 
an approved and current Area Plan that is in compliance with State and 
federal laws and regulations. 

9. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor shall make use of trained volunteers 
to expand the provision of FCSP activities in accordance with 
OAA § 373(d). 

10. An individual’s receipt of services under the In-Home Supportive Services 
Program shall not be the sole cause for denial of any services provided by 
the AAA or its subcontractors. 

11. Funds made available under Title III E shall be budgeted and expended in 
accordance with the five federal support service components specified in 
OAA § 373(b), and distinguished between “caregiver” and “grandparent” 
support services, as required for Older Americans Act Performance 
System (OAAPS). 

12. Funds made available under Title III E shall enable comprehensive and 
multifaceted systems of support services that include the five federal 
support service components for both “family caregiver” and “older relative 
caregiver” [OAA § 373(a)-(b)], unless the AAA has documented through 
the Area Plan process that one or more of these components is being 
addressed by other sources. 

13. Funds made available under this Agreement shall supplement, and not 
supplant, any federal, State, or local funds expended by a State or unit of 
general purpose local government to provide Title III (excluding III E) and 
Title VII services. 

14. Funds made available under Title III E shall supplement and not supplant 
other services that may directly or indirectly support unpaid caregiving, 
such as Medicaid waiver programs (e.g., the Multipurpose Senior Services 
Program, etc.) or other caregiver services such as those provided through 
the Department of Social Services’ Kinship Support Service Programs,  

  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 3 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

the California Community Colleges’ Foster and Kinship Care Education 
Programs, the Department of Developmental Services’ Regional Centers, 
the California Caregiver Resource Centers, and other Title III funded 
providers. 

15. The following closely related programs identified by CFDA number are to 
be considered as an “other cluster” for purposes of determining major 
programs or whether a program-specific audit may be elected.  The 
Contractor shall identify the CFDA titles and numbers to the independent 
auditor conducting the organization’s single audit along with each of its 
subcontractors.  The funding source (Federal Grantor) for the following 
programs is the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
Administration for Community Living. 

93.041 Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII-A, Chapter 3 – 
Programs for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and 
Exploitation (Title VII-A, Chapter 3). 

93.042 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III B & VII-A, Chapter 2 
– Long-Term Care Ombudsman Services for Older 
Individuals (Title III B & VII-A, Chapter 2). 

93.043 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part D – 
Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Services  

(Title III D). 

93.044 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part B – 
Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers  

(Title III B). 

93.045 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part C – 
Nutrition Services (Title III C). 

93.052 National Family Caregiver Support Program-Title III, Part E. 

93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program. 

“Cluster of programs” means a grouping of closely-related programs that 
share common compliance requirements.  The types of clusters of 
programs are research and development, student financial aid, and other 
clusters.  “Other clusters” are defined by the consolidated CFR in the 
Compliance Supplement or as designated by a state for federal awards  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 4 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

provided to its subcontractors that meet the definition of “cluster of 
programs.”  When designating an “other cluster,” a state shall identify the 
federal awards included in the cluster and advise the subcontractors of 
compliance requirements applicable to the cluster.  A “cluster of programs” 
shall be considered as one program for determining major programs, as 
described in 45 CFR 75.525(a), whether a program-specific audit may be 
elected.  [Federal Office of Management and Budget, 
[45 CFR 75 Requirements], Audits of States, Local Governments 
45 CFR 75 Appendix V to part 75 F. 1., and Non-Profit Organizations 
45 CFR 75 Appendix IV to part 75 C. 2.a.] 

16. The Contractor assures that voluntary contributions shall be allowed and 
may be solicited in accordance with the following requirements 
[OAA § 315(b)]: 

a. The Contractor or any subcontractors for any Title III or Title VII-A 
services shall not use means tests. 

b. Any Title III or Title VII-A client that does not contribute toward the 
cost of the services received shall not be denied services. 

c. Methods used to solicit voluntary contributions for Title III and 
Title VII-A services shall be non-coercive. 

d. Each service provider will: 

i. Provide each recipient with an opportunity to voluntarily 
contribute to the cost of the service. 

ii. Clearly inform each recipient that there is no obligation to 
contribute and that the contribution is purely voluntary. 

iii. Protect the privacy and confidentiality of each recipient with 
respect to the recipient’s contribution or lack of contribution; 
and 

iv. Establish appropriate procedures to safeguard and account 
for all contributions. 

v. Use all collected contributions to expand the services for 
which the contributions were given and to supplement (not 
supplant) funds received under this Act. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 5 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

17. Any Title III and Title VII service shall not implement a Cost Sharing 
program unless approved by CDA. 

18. The Contractor shall comply with OAA § 306(a)(17), which requires an 
AAA to include in its Area Plan information on how it will coordinate 
activities and develop long-range emergency preparedness plans with 
local and State emergency response agencies, relief organizations, local 
and State governments, the Local Ombudsman Program, and any other 
institutions that have responsibility for disaster relief service delivery. 

19. The Contractor, at a minimum, shall identify and make contact with its 
local Office of Emergency Services (OES) to define their respective roles 
and responsibilities.  This contact shall include a discussion of the types of 
clients served by the AAA and how OES will address their needs in the 
community. 

20. The Contractor shall furnish annually, or whenever a change occurs, the 
name of its Disaster Coordinator to the CDA Disaster Coordinator. 

21. The Contractor shall assure that its Information and Assistance staff have 
written procedures in place and are trained at least annually on how to 
handle emergencies.  As specified in 22 CCR § 7547, the training shall 
consist of: 

a. Familiarity with telephone numbers of fire, police, and ambulance 
services for the geographic area served by the provider.  These 
telephone numbers shall be posted near the telephone for easy 
access when an emergency arises. 

b. Techniques to obtain vital information from older individuals and 
persons with disabilities who require emergency assistance. 

c. Making written emergency procedure instructions available to all 
staff who have contact with older individuals or persons with 
disabilities. 

22. The Contractor shall not require proof of age, citizenship, or disability as a 
condition of receiving services. 

23. The Contractor shall develop a policy and procedure to ensure that 
Title III C-1 and Title III C-2 meals are only received by eligible individuals. 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 6 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

24. The Contractor shall annually assess each Title III C-2 client’s nutrition 
risk using the Determine Your Nutritional Risk checklist published by the 
Nutrition Screening Initiative.  [OAA § 339(2)(J); OAA § 207(a)(3)] 

25. The Contractor shall assure that the following publication conditions are met: 

Materials published or transferred by the Contractor and financed with 
funds under this Agreement shall: 

a. state, “The materials or product were a result of a project funded by 
a contract with the California Department of Aging”. 

b. give the name of the entity, the address, and telephone number at 
which the supporting data is available and 

c. include a statement that, “The conclusions and opinions expressed 
may not be those of the California Department of Aging and that the 
publication may not be based upon or inclusive of all raw data.” 

B. Assurances Specific to the Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall assure the following: 

1. Long-Term Care Ombudsman funds from Title III B and VII – A, Chapter 2 
shall be used exclusively for the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program. 

2. The Long-Term Care Program Coordinator shall establish and monitor the 
budget for the Program 

3. Long-Term Care Ombudsman Services in the Planning and Service Area will be 
carried out by the agency that has been designated by the State Ombudsman to 
provide those services.  [OAA § 712(a)(5)(A); 45 CFR 1324.13(c)] 

4. The Local Ombudsman Program, its governing board members, 
representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program, OSLTCO, and 
members of their immediate families shall be free of actual and perceived 
conflicts of interest.  [OAA § 712(f)(1)(B); 45 CFR 1324.21] 

5. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall have 
unescorted, unhindered access to long-term care facilities and long-term 
care facility residents between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., 
seven days a week.  [OAA § 712(b)(1)(A); 45 CFR 1324.11(e)(2)(i); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(a); 22 CCR 8020(a)].  Authorization by the 
State Ombudsman is required for entry outside of these hours. 
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(a); 22 CCR 8020(b)] 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 7 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

6. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall have access to 
the medical and personal records of residents with appropriate  

documentation of consent, or when authorized by the State Ombudsman, 
in accordance with policies developed by the State Ombudsman.  
[OAA § 712(b)(1)(B)] [45 CFR 1324.11(e)(2)(iv)] 
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9724] 

7. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program, upon request to a 
long-term care facility staff, shall be provided with a roster, census, or 
other list of the names and room numbers or room locations of all current 
residents.  [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9722(d)] 

8. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall not carry out the 
responsibilities of the Program until the State Ombudsman accepts them 
for certification.  [OAA § 712(h)(6)(B); 45 CFR 1324.13(c)(3); 
Welf. & Inst. Code § 9719(a)] 

9. All records and files maintained by the local Ombudsman Program relating 
to any complaint or investigation shall remain confidential unless 
disclosure is authorized by the resident, resident representative, State 
Ombudsman, or local Ombudsman Program Coordinator in compliance 
with OSLTCO policies and procedures.  [OAA §§ 705(a)(6)(C); 712)] 
[45 CFR 1324.11(e)(3); 1324.19(b)(6-9)] [Welf. & Inst. Code § 9725] 

10. The Local Ombudsman Program shall enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the Legal Services Provider (LSP) which will 
address conflict of interest, provision of legal advice, procedures for 
referral, and other technical assistance.  The LSP may assist the State in 
providing legal representation to the Program when an Ombudsman 
Representative has been subpoenaed or a suit or other legal action has 
been threatened or brought against the performance of the official duties 
of the Ombudsman Representative.  [OAA § 712(h)(8); 
45 CFR 1324.13(h)(10); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9717(c); Statewide 
Standards for Legal Assistance in California] 

11. Each Local Ombudsman Program shall maintain a separate budget.  The 
Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall be responsible for 
managing the day-to-day operation of the Program, including managing all 
paid staff and volunteers in the Program.  The Local Ombudsman 
Coordinator shall determine budget priorities, develop or participate in 
budget preparation, and be informed of budget allocations by the 
Contractor specific to the Ombudsman Program.  [45 CFR 1324.13(f)] 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 8 of 17 

12. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall provide CDA with an 
organizational chart that includes: 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 9 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

a. All local staff that are wholly or partly funded by Ombudsman 
Program resources. 

b. Their titles/roles within the Program. 

c. The number of hours per week charged to the Local Ombudsman 
Program for each position. 

[45 CFR 1324.13(b),(c)] 

13. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall attend OSLTCO New 
Coordinator Training when initially designated as coordinator and 
OSLTCO biannual training conferences.  [45 CFR 1324.13(c)(2); Welf. & 
Inst. Code § 9719(a)(1)] 

14. The Local Ombudsman Program Coordinator shall inform CDA/OSLTCO 
of issues with local Ombudsman Representatives, complex cases, 
situations with potential legal implications, changes in staffing, emerging 
regional issues with statewide impact, breaches of confidentiality, and 
conflict of interest issues. [45 CFR 1324.13(b),(c)] 

15. Representatives of the Local Ombudsman Program shall conduct 
interviews/investigations in a confidential manner and the Program shall 
have office space and telecommunications that protect the confidentiality 
of all complaint-related communications and records.  
[OAA § 712(a)(3)(D); 45 CFR 1324.19(b)(2)(i); 
Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 9725; 15633(c)] 

16. Each Local Ombudsman Program shall have information systems 
sufficient to run State-approved database systems and to receive and 
send confidential e-mail messages to and from CDA.  [OAA § 712(c); 
45 CFR 1324.13(d); Welf. & Inst. Code § 9716(a)] 

17. The entity providing Ombudsman services must be insured or self-insured 
for professional liability covering all Ombudsman activities including, but 
not limited to, investigation of resident complaints. 

C. Assurances Specific to Legal Service Providers (LSPs)  

In accordance with OAA § 731, the Contractor shall assure that the following 
conditions are met: 

  



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 10 of 17 

ARTICLE I.  ASSURANCES SPECIFIC TO THIS AGREEMENT (Continued) 

1. LSPs will coordinate with State-designated providers of Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman services by developing and executing an MOU which will 
address conflict of interest, provision of legal advice, procedures for 
referral and other technical assistance. 

2. LSPs may provide direct legal assistance to residents of the long-term 
care facilities where the clients are otherwise eligible and services are 
appropriate. 

3. Where both legal and Ombudsman services are provided by the same 
agency, providers must develop and follow policies and procedures to 
protect the integrity, resources, and confidentiality of both programs. 

4. LSPs may assist the State in providing legal representation to the 
Ombudsman Program when an Ombudsman or the program is named as 
a party or witness, in a subpoena, civil suit or other legal action 
challenging the performance of the official duties of the Ombudsman. 

5. LSPs are to coordinate with the local Legal Services Corporation (LSC) 
program, if the provider is not an LSC-funded program. 

6. LSPs are to coordinate with the network of other service providers, 
including but not limited to, other LSPs, Long-Term Care Ombudsman 
Programs, Health Insurance Counseling and Advocacy Programs, senior 
information and assistance, Adult Protective Services, law enforcement, 
case management services and focal points. 

7. LSPs are to coordinate legal assistance activities with the statewide 
hotline and private Bar, including groups within the private Bar furnishing 
services to older individuals on a pro bono or reduced fee basis. 

8. LSPs are to collect required data elements on legal services provided and 
report in CARS.   

9. Waiver of this section of the Contract may be obtained from CDA pursuant 
to Exhibit D, Article XV of this Agreement entitled, Amendments, 
Revisions, or Modifications. 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS 

A. The Contractor shall submit program performance reports to the CDA Data Team 
for:  Title III B, Title III C-1, Title III C-2, Title III D, Title III E, and Title VII-A Elder 
Abuse Prevention Programs in accordance with CDA requirements.  
[Welf. & Inst. Code § 9102 (a)(5] 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 11 of 17 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

B. The Contractor shall have written procedures to assure that all submitted 
performance data is timely, complete, accurate, and verifiable. 

1. Quarterly, the Contractor shall submit data reports for OAA-funded 
programs as follows: 

Quarter Reporting Period Due Date 

Quarter 1 July 1 - September 30 October 31 

Quarter 2 October 1 - December 31 January 31 

Quarter 3 January 1 - March 31 April 30 

Quarter 4 April 1 - June 30 July 31 

2. Annually, the Contractor shall submit performance reports as follows, or 
as instructed by CDA: 

Reporting Period Due Date 

July 1 – June 30 September 30 

3. For reports that will be submitted late, ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
report due date, the Contractor shall submit to the Data Team 
(DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov), a written explanation including the 
reasons for the delay and the estimated date of submission. 

4. For web-based California Aging Report System (CARS) reports, the 
Contractor shall approve all data within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of 
notification of passed status.  If data in the CARS report is not correct and 
approvable within ten (10) days, the Contractor will make a notation in the 
comments area of the CARS report and submit the data using the 
approved status button. 

C. Reporting Requirements specific to Title III B, Title III C-1, Title III C-2, Title III D, 
Title III E, and Title VII-A Elder Abuse Prevention Program services 

The Contractor shall submit program data reports electronically as follows: 

1. Upload the OAAPS State Program Report (SPR) to CARS at 
https://ca.getcare.com. 

 

mailto:DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov
https://ca.getcare.com/


California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 12 of 17 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

2. Submit performance data reports quarterly. 

3. Submit OAAPS SPR reports annually. 

D. The Contractor shall verify the accuracy of all data submitted to CDA by 
reviewing and responding to the Annual Data Error Report in accordance with 
CDA requirements. 

1. The Contractor shall, in accordance with CDA requirements, correct 
and/or explain all logic and questionable errors in the Annual Data Error 
Report. 

a. The Contractor shall return the Annual Data Error Report to CDA, 
verifying that corrections have been made, via email to 
DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov. 

b. The Annual Data Error Reports are due to CDA by a date specified 
by CDA, which can vary from year to year. 

2. The Contractor shall review and verify all quarterly and annual OAAPS 
SPR data for accuracy and make necessary corrections, in accordance 
with CDA requirements. 

E. Reporting Provisions Specific to the Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall take the following actions, or shall require its Subcontractor, 
the Local Ombudsman Program, to enter data into the Internet-based National 
Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS) utilizing software provided by CDA, as 
required.  NORS data entry must be timely, complete, accurate, and verifiable. 

1. Data entry for quarterly NORS reports must be completed no later than 
one month following the end of the reporting quarter (i.e., October 31, 
January 31, April 30, and July 31). Upon request, aggregate data may be 
sent to the corresponding AAA. 

2. On or before the reporting dates, the Local Ombudsman Program must 
submit the Quarterly Ombudsman Data Reporting Form (OSLTCO S301), 
indicating that data for the quarter has been completed or the reason for 
any delay, to the OSLTCO mailbox (stateomb@aging.ca.gov) with a copy 
to the AAA. 

F. The Contractor shall have written reporting procedures specific to each program 
which include: 

  

mailto:DataTeam.Reports@aging.ca.gov
mailto:stateomb@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 13 of 17 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

1. Collection and reporting of program data for the Contractor and 
Subcontractor. 

2. Ensuring accuracy of all data from the Contractor and Subcontractor. 

3. Verification of the Contractor and Subcontractor data prior to submission 
to the CDA Data Team. 

4. Procedures for the Contractor and Subcontractor on correcting data 
errors. 

5. A methodology for calculating and reporting: 

a. Total estimated unduplicated clients in each non-registered service. 

b. Total estimated unduplicated clients in all non-registered services. 

c. Total estimated unduplicated clients across all registered and 
non-registered services. 

6. A performance data monitoring process. 

G. The Contractor shall orient and train staff and Subcontractor staff regarding 
program data collection and reporting requirements.  The Contractor shall have 
cross-trained staff in the event of planned or unplanned, prolonged absences to 
ensure timely and accurate submission of data. 

H. Reporting Provisions Specific to Title VII-A, Chapter 3 Elder Abuse Prevention 

1. The Contractor shall complete and submit the Elder Abuse Prevention 
Quarterly Activity Report (CDA 1037) to the OSLTCO mailbox 
(stateomb@aging.ca.gov) on the following reporting due dates: 

Quarter Reporting Period Due Date 

Quarter 1 July 1 - September 30 October 31 

Quarter 2 October 1 - December 31 January 31 

Quarter 3 January 1 - March 31 April 30 

Quarter 4 April 1 - June 30 July 31 

2. The Contractor shall also enter the quarterly aggregate number of “Elder 
Abuse Prevention, Education and Training Sessions” and “Elder Abuse 
Prevention Educational Materials” into CARS on a quarterly basis. 

mailto:stateomb@aging.ca.gov


California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 14 of 17 

ARTICLE II.  REPORTING PROVISIONS (Continued) 

3. The Contractor shall also report in CARS the total Elder Abuse 
Prevention, Education and Training sessions and Elder Abuse Prevention, 
Education Materials from the Elder Abuse Prevention Quarterly Activity 
Report. 

ARTICLE III.  APPEAL PROCESS 

A. The Contractor may appeal an adverse determination as defined in 22 CCR 7702 
using the appeal process established by CDA in 22 CCR 7700 through 7710. 

Such appeal shall be filed within thirty (30) days of receipt of CDA’s notice of 
adverse determination. 

B. Subcontractors of the Contractor may appeal the Contractor’s final adverse 
determination relating to Title III and Title VII programs using the appeal process 
established in 22 CCR 7700 to 7710. 

C. Any dispute regarding an existing direct service contract or the procurement of 
the direct service contract shall be resolved locally, consistent with 
W&I § 9535(k), and as specified in the procurement documents and contracts of 
the Contractor. 

D. Appeal costs or costs associated with any court review are not reimbursable. 

ARTICLE IV.  TRANSITION PLAN 

A. The Contractor shall submit a transition plan to the State within fifteen (15) days 
of delivery of a written Notice of Termination (pursuant to Exhibit D, Article XII. of 
this Agreement) for a service funded either by Title III or Title VII.  The transition 
plan must be approved by the State and shall at a minimum include the following: 

1. A description of how clients will be notified about the change in their 
service provider. 

2. A plan to communicate with other organizations that can assist in locating 
alternative services. 

3. A plan to inform community referral sources of the pending termination of 
the service and what alternatives, if any, exist for future referrals. 

4. A plan to evaluate clients in order to assure appropriate placement. 

5. A plan to transfer any confidential medical and client records to a new 
contractor. 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 15 of 17 

ARTICLE IV.  TRANSITION PLAN (Continued) 

6. A plan to dispose of confidential records in accordance with applicable 
laws and regulations. 

7. A plan for adequate staff to provide continued care through the term of the 
Contract.  [22 CCR 7206(e)(4)] 

8. A full inventory and plan to dispose of, transfer, or return to the State all 
equipment purchased during the entire operation of the Contract. 

9. Additional information as necessary to effect a safe transition of clients to 
other community service providers. 

B. The Contractor shall implement the transition plan as approved by the State.  
The State will monitor the Contractor’s progress in carrying out all elements of 
the transition plan. 

C. If the Contractor fails to provide and implement a transition plan as required by 
Exhibit D, Article XII. of this Agreement, the Contractor will implement a transition 
plan submitted by CDA to the Contractor following the Notice of Termination. 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM 

A. Transition of Local Ombudsman Services 

1. The Contractor shall, upon receipt of notice of intent to terminate 
Ombudsman services by the subcontractor, notify the State Ombudsman 
in writing, within one (1) working day of the receipt of the notice. 

2. The Contractor shall, upon notice of termination, implement one of the 
following options to ensure continuity of Ombudsman services in 
accordance with federal and State mandates: 

a. Continue the provision of mandated Ombudsman services as a 
subcontract with a provider selected in response to a Request for 
Proposal (RFP).  CDA shall allow the Contractor up to one hundred 
eighty (180) days to transition services to a new subcontractor. 

b. Continue the provision of mandated Ombudsman services as a 
direct service of the Contractor.  CDA shall allow the Contractor up 
to one hundred eighty (180) days to transition services from the 
Subcontractor to the Contractor. 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 16 of 17 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM (Continued) 

B. Transition Plan 

1. The Contractor shall submit a Transition Plan to the State Ombudsman 
within fifteen (15) days from the occurrence of any of the following: 

a. The Contractor’s receipt of written notice of the Subcontractor’s 
intent to terminate Ombudsman services. 

b. The Contractor’s written notice to the Subcontractor of its intent to 
terminate the subcontract for Ombudsman services. 

c. The Contractor’s receipt of written notice of CDA’s intent to 
terminate the Contract for Ombudsman services. 

d. The Transition Plan shall be submitted to: 

CDA OSLTCO 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
Attn: State Ombudsman 

2. The Contractor shall identify in the Transition Plan which option it has 
chosen to ensure that there will be no break in continued services, based 
on the following: 

a. Continue the mandated Ombudsman provisions as a direct service 
of the Contractor, utilizing experienced State Certified Ombudsman 
Representatives and a local Program Coordinator selected by the 
Contractor and designated by the State Ombudsman to represent 
the Local Ombudsman Program. 

b. Continue the mandated Ombudsman provisions as a subcontracted 
service with a subsequent provider selected in response to an RFP 
and designated by the State Ombudsman to carry out Ombudsman 
duties with respect to the PSA. 

3. The Transition Plan shall, at a minimum, include the following: 

a. Details of how the Contractor shall maintain an adequate level of 
State Certified Ombudsman Representatives to ensure continuity of 
services during the transition to a subsequent Local Ombudsman 
Program. 

 



California Department of Aging                                                                    AP 2223 Contract 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions 

 

 
Page 17 of 17 

ARTICLE V.  OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION SPECIFIC TO THE OMBUDSMAN 
PROGRAM (Continued) 

b. Details of how the Contractor shall notify all the impacted facilities 
and community referral sources of the change in the parties 
providing Local Ombudsman Program services. 

c. Details of how the Contractor shall deliver to the subsequent Local 
Ombudsman Program, a full inventory of updated confidential client 
records, public facility records, and records documenting 
Ombudsman certification and training. 

d. A description of how the subsequent Local Ombudsman Program 
will be assisted in assessing the status of all active clients’ records 
at the point of transfer to ensure timely continuation of Ombudsman 
services. 

e. A description of how residents and their families will be notified 
about the changes in their Ombudsman services provider. 

C. The Contractor shall implement the Transition Plan as approved by the State 
Ombudsman.  The State Ombudsman will monitor the Contractor’s progress in 
carrying out all elements of the Transition Plan. 

D. If the Contractor fails to provide and implement the Transition Plan as required 
above, the Contractor agrees to implement a Transition Plan submitted by the 
State Ombudsman to the Contractor.  This Transition Plan may utilize State 
Certified Ombudsman Representatives from either the terminating Subcontractor 
or from a neighboring Local Ombudsman Program. 

 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 

Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  

06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 

Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 

Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 

laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 

Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 

1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 

Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 

information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 

applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 

• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 

stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 

security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 

reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 

safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 

continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 

Security Awareness Training module located at 

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 

Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 

subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 

confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 

Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 

Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 

in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 

compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 

with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 

proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 

agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 

under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 

renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code); and 

 

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 

nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 

certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 

(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 

12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 1 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

    

Exhibit A, 
Article I, 
Section A, 
Item 2 

Child means an individual who is not more 
than eighteen (18) years of age or who is an 
individual with a disability. [OAA § 372(a)(1)] 

Child means an individual who is not more 
than eighteen (18) years of age. or who is an 
individual with a disability. [OAA § 372(a)(1)] 

Current language 
does not match the 
OAA definition of 
child. 

Exhibit A, 
Article I, 
Section A, 
Item 13 

Current language does not exist 13. Nutrition Education means an intervention 
targeting OAA participants and caregivers 
that uses information dissemination, 
instruction, or training with the intent to 
support food, nutrition, and physical activity 
choices and behaviors (related to nutritional 
status) in order to maintain or improve 
health and address nutrition-related 
conditions. Content is consistent with the 
Dietary Guidelines for Americans; is 
accurate, culturally sensitive, regionally 
appropriate, and considers personal 
preferences; and is overseen by a 
registered dietitian or individual of 
comparable expertise as defined in the 
OAA. 

Nutrition education is 
referenced in Exhibit 
A, Article 1, A, (Title 
III C-1 and title III C-
2) and should be 
defined. Definition is 
consistent with the 
New State Program 
Reporting (SPR) 
Data Elements 
Definition. 
(subsequent sections 
are renumbered) 

 

Exhibit A, 
Article I, 
Section A, 
Item 20 

20. Title III B (Supportive Services) means a 
variety of services including, but not limited 
to: personal care, homemaker, chore, adult 
day health care, case management, 
assisted transportation, transportation, legal 
assistance, information and assistance, 
outreach, outreach, services that promote 
or support social connectedness and 

21. Title III B (Supportive Services) means a 
variety of services including, but not limited 
to: personal care, homemaker, chore, 
adult day health care, case management, 
assisted transportation, transportation, 
legal assistance, information and 
assistance, outreach, outreach, services 
that promote or support social 

OAAPS is the name 
of the new system 
that CDA reports into 
for ACL, NAPIS has 
been replaced. 
Functionally nothing 
has changed for the 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 2 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

reduce negative health effects associated 
with social isolation, and long-term care 
ombudsman advocacy, as defined in the 
National Aging Programs Information 
Systems (NAPIS) categories and the 
National Ombudsman Reporting System 
(NORS).  [OAA § 321(a)] 

connectedness and reduce negative 
health effects associated with social 
isolation, and long-term care ombudsman 
advocacy, as defined in the Older 
Americans Act Performance System 
(OAAPS) categories and the National 
Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS).  
[OAA § 321(a)] 

AAA’s. (renumbered 
due to additional 
definition listed 
above) 

Exhibit A, 
Article 1, 
Section A, 
Item 21 
(new 22) 
 

21. Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services for older 
individuals in a congregate setting.  Services 
include meals, nutrition and health promotion 
education, health promotion programs, 
nutrition risk screening, and opportunities for 
socialization.  Each meal shall provide one-
third (1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes 
(DRI) and comply with the most current Dietary 
Guidelines for Americans (DGA).  To be an 
eligible Title III C‑1 congregate nutrition site, 
the site must meet all of the following criteria:  
[22 CCR 7638.7(a)] 

22. III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services for older 
individuals in a congregate setting.  Services 
include meals, nutrition education, nutrition risk 
screening, and opportunities for socialization.  
Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of the 
Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) and comply 
with the most current Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans (DGA).  To be an eligible Title III 
C‑1 congregate nutrition site, the site must 
meet all of the following criteria: [22 CCR 
7638.7(a)] 

Remove “health 
promotion” which 
could be confused 
with IIIB or IIID 
activities. 

Exhibit A, 
Article 1, 
Section A, 
Item 22 
(new 23) 
 

22. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services provided to 
homebound older individuals including meals, 
nutrition and health promotion education, and 
nutrition risk screening.   

23. Title III C-2 (Home-Delivered Nutrition 
Services) means nutrition services provided to 
homebound older individuals including meals, 
nutrition education, and nutrition risk 
screening.   

Remove “health 
promotion” which 
could be confused 
with IIIB or IIID 
activities. 
 

Exhibit A, 
Article 1, 

23. Title III D (Disease Prevention and 
Health Promotion Services) 

24. Title III D (Health Promotion 
Evidence-Based) 

Program name 
change is consistent 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 3 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

Section A, 
Item 23  

with changes to the 
Title III New 
SPR/OAAPS 

Exhibit A, 
Article 1, 
Section D. 

D. Definitions Specific to Title III-C-1 and C-2 
(augmentation funding to provide nutrition 
services to address the unmet need in 
California.) 
1. Meal Goal means the number of meals 

the Contractor will provide to eligible 
clients. These meals may be provided 
through the Title III C-1 Congregate 
Meal program or the Title III C-2 Home 
Delivered Meal program. 

2. Unduplicated Client Goal means the 
number of new eligible clients the 
contractor will provide nutrition services 
to via the Title III C-1 or the Title III C-2 
program. 

3. Wait List means a list of potential Title III 
C-2 clients, established and maintained 
by the Contractor and/or subcontractor, 
after the Contractor and/or 
subcontractor has reached its capacity. 

Remove section. Meal goals, 
unduplicated client 
goals, and wait list 
reporting for nutrition 
augmentation 
funding will not be 
implemented due to 
the pandemic and 
new supplemental 
funding sources. 

Exhibit A, 
Article II, 
Section A, 
Item 28 

Current language does not exist 28. Title IIIC meals are compliant with the 
Older Californians Nutrition Program Menu 
Guidance 

 

Specify that Title IIIC 
meals must be in 
compliance with the 
OCNP Menu 
Guidance. 
(subsequent sections 
are renumbered) 

https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d
https://www.aging.ca.gov/download.ashx?lE0rcNUV0zZ%2fmnswDwFAig%3d%3d


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 4 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

    

Exhibit B, 
Article II, 
Section D, 
Item1. 

1. The maximum reimbursement amount 
allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 
(10%) of the Contractor’s Modified Total 
Direct Costs (MTDC), excluding in-kind 
contributions and nonexpendable 
equipment.   

1. The maximum reimbursement amount 
allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 
(10%) of the Contractor’s Modified Total 
Direct Costs (MTDC), excluding in-kind 
contributions and nonexpendable 
equipment. Indirect costs shall not exceed 
10% of the Contractor’s MTDC per funding 
category. 

Clarification 

Exhibit B  
Article IV, 
SectionH. 

H. Equipment 
Equipment /Property with per unit cost over 
$5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from 
the Contractor and approval from CDA and 
must be included in its approved Area Plan 
Budget. 

H. Equipment  
Equipment /Property with per unit cost over 
$5,000 or any computing devices, 
regardless of cost requires justification from 
the Contractor and approval from CDA. To 
request approval for specific equipment 
items, requests with justifications shall be 
sent to cdaequipment@aging.ca.gov.  Such 
items must also be included in Contractor’s 
approved Area Plan Budget. Please note 
an approved budget is not approval for 
equipment purchase.  

Clarification that an 
approved budget with 
equipment is not an 
approval of that 
equipment purchase.  

Exhibit B, 
Article IV, 
Section I 

I. The Title IIIC nutrition augmentation funding 
may be transferred between General Fund 
C1 and General Fund C2 as needed to 
provide services to meet unduplicated client 
and meal goals. The funding must not be 
transferred to other programs or be used to 
supplant other program funding, including 
the Federal Title IIIC1 and Federal Title 
IIIC2. 

I. The Title IIIC nutrition augmentation funding 
may be transferred between General Fund 
C1 and General Fund C2 as needed to 
provide services. The funding must not be 
transferred to other programs or be used to 
supplant other program funding, including 
the Federal Title IIIC1 and Federal Title 
IIIC2. 

Unduplicated client 
and meal goals 
related to nutrition 
augmentation will not 
be implemented. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 5 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

Exhibit B, 
Article VI, 
Section A. 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout Report 
(CDA 180) and the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024) shall be 
submitted annually to the CDA Fiscal 
Team.  All contractors are required to 
submit Closeout Reports as instructed by 
CDA. 

A. The Area Plan Financial Closeout Report 
(CDA 180) and the Program Property 
Inventory Certification (CDA 9024) shall be 
submitted annually to the CDA Local 
Finance Bureau. All contractors are required 
to submit Closeout Reports as instructed by 
CDA. 

Name change of the 
unit within CDA 
which processes 
closeouts.   

Exhibit B, 
Article VI, 
Section D 

D. Closeout reporting documents must be 
addressed to the CDA Fiscal Team.   

D. Closeout reporting documents must be 
addressed to the CDA Local Finance 
Bureau.   

Name change of the 
unit within CDA 
which processes 
closeouts.   

    

Exhibit D, 
Article V, 
Section I, 
Item 4 

4. No current language. I. The Contractor shall, prior to the awarding of 
a subcontract to any for-profit entity, submit 
the following to CDA for review and 
approval:  
1. The Request for Proposal (RFP) or 

Invitation for Bid.  
2. All bid proposals received.  
3. The proposal or bid evaluation 

documentation, along with the 
Contractor’s rationale for awarding the 
subcontract to a for-profit entity.  
[22 CCR 7362] 

4. Description and documentation of 
dissemination of information concerning 
the RFP to elicit adequate competition. 
[22 CCR 7356]   

Information regarding 
the AAA’s RFP 
publicity is necessary 
to evaluate if the 
RFP process was 
equitable. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 6 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

Exhibit D, 
Article VI, 
Section A 

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete 
records which shall include, but not be 
limited to, accounting records, contracts, 
agreements, a reconciliation of the 
“Financial Closeout Report” (CDA 
Closeout) to the audited financial 
statements, single audit report, and general 
ledgers, and a summary worksheet 
identifying the results of performing an audit 
resolution of its subcontractors in 
accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  
This includes the following: Letters of 
Agreement, insurance documentation, 
memorandums and/or Letters of 
Understanding, patient or client records, 
and electronic files of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder in a form 
satisfactory to CDA.  All records pertaining 
to this Agreement must be made available 
for inspection and audit by the State or its 
duly authorized agents, at any time during 
normal business hours.  

A. The Contractor shall maintain complete 
records which shall include, but not be 
limited to, accounting records, contracts, 
agreements, a reconciliation of the 
“Financial Closeout Report” (CDA 
Closeout) to the audited financial 
statements, single audit report, and general 
ledgers, and a summary worksheet 
identifying the results of performing an audit 
resolution of its subcontractors in 
accordance with Article X. of this Exhibit.  
This includes the following: Letters of 
Agreement, insurance documentation, 
memorandums and/or Letters of 
Understanding, patient or client records, 
and electronic files of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder in a form 
satisfactory to CDA.  All records pertaining 
to this Agreement must be made available 
for inspection and audit by the State or its 
duly authorized agents, at any time during 
normal business hours.  The reconciliation 
of the CDA Closeout to the Contractor 
general ledger must be submitted with the 
CDA Closeout package.  

To improve 
submission 
timeliness and rates 
of the reconciliation. 

 

    

Exhibit E, 
Article I, 

11. Funds made available under Title III E 
shall be budgeted and expended in 
accordance with the five federal support 

11. Funds made available under Title III E 
shall be budgeted and expended in 
accordance with the five federal support 

OAAPS is the name 
of the new system 
that CDA reports into 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 7 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

Section A, 
Item 11 

service components specified in 
OAA § 373(b), and distinguished between 
“caregiver” and “grandparent” support 
services, as required for NAPIS. 

service components specified in 
OAA § 373(b), and distinguished between 
“caregiver” and “grandparent” support 
services, as required for the Older 
Americans Act Performance System 
(OAAPS). 

for ACL, NAPIS has 
been replaced. 
Functionally nothing 
has changed for the 
AAA’s. 

Exhibit E, 
Article I, 
Section A, 
Item 18 

18. The Contractor shall comply with OAA § 
306(a)(17), which requires an AAA to 
include in its Area Plan information on how 
it will coordinate activities and develop 
long-range emergency preparedness plans 
with local and State emergency response 
agencies, relief organizations, local and 
State governments, and any other 
institutions that have responsibility for 
disaster relief service delivery. 

18. The Contractor shall comply with OAA § 
306(a)(17), which requires an AAA to 
include in its Area Plan information on how 
it will coordinate activities and develop 
long-range emergency preparedness plans 
with local and State emergency response 
agencies, relief organizations, local and 
State governments, the Local Ombudsman 
Program, and any other institutions that 
have responsibility for disaster relief service 
delivery. 

Draws specificity to 
including Local 
Ombudsman 
Programs in this 
requirement 

Exhibit E, 
Article I, 
Section B, 
Item 1 & 
Item 2 

None – New Items #1 and #2 are inserted, 
subsequent Items are renumbered (starting at 
#3).  

1. Long-Term Care Ombudsman funds from 
Title III B and VII – A, Chapter 2 shall be 
used exclusively for the Long-Term Care 
Ombudsman Program. 

2. The Long-Term Care Program Coordinator 
shall establish and monitor the budget for 
the Program 

Specifying and 
clarifying the purpose 
of LTCO funding and 
the role of 
coordinators in 
budget development 

Exhibit E, 
Article II, 
Section C, 
Item 1 

1. Upload the NAPIS State Program Report 
(SPR) to CARS at https://ca.getcare.com. 

1. Upload the OAAPS State Program Report 
(SPR) to CARS at https://ca.getcare.com. 

OAAPS is the name 
of the new system 
that CDA reports into 
for ACL, NAPIS has 

https://ca.getcare.com/
https://ca.getcare.com/


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 8 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

been replaced. 
Functionally nothing 
has changed for the 
AAA’s. 

Exhibit E, 
Article II, 
Section C, 
Item 3 

3. Submit NAPIS SPR reports annually. 3. Submit OAAPS SPR reports annually. OAAPS is the name 
of the new system 
that CDA reports into 
for ACL, NAPIS has 
been replaced. 
Functionally nothing 
has changed for the 
AAA’s. 

Exhibit E, 
Article II, 
Section D, 
Item 2 

2. The Contractor shall review and verify all 
quarterly and annual NAPIS SPR data for 
accuracy and make necessary corrections, 
in accordance with CDA requirements. 

2. The Contractor shall review and verify all 
quarterly and annual OAAPS SPR data for 
accuracy and make necessary corrections, 
in accordance with CDA requirements. 

OAAPS is the name 
of the new system 
that CDA reports into 
for ACL, NAPIS has 
been replaced. 
Functionally nothing 
has changed for the 
AAA’s. 

Exhibit E, 
Article II, 
Section E 

E. Reporting Provisions Specific to the 
Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall take the following 
actions, or shall require its Subcontractor, 
the Local Ombudsman Program, to enter 
data into the Internet-based NORS utilizing 
software provided by CDA, as required.  
NORS data entry must be timely, complete, 
accurate, and verifiable. 

E. Reporting Provisions Specific to the 
Ombudsman Program 

The Contractor shall take the following 
actions, or shall require its Subcontractor, 
the Local Ombudsman Program, to enter 
data into the Internet-based National 
Ombudsman Reporting System (NORS) 
utilizing software provided by CDA, as 

Clarifying acronym 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

CONTRACT SUMMARY OF CHANGES 
CDA 9008 (NEW 6/16) 

Program: Area Plan  

Contract Number: AP-2223   

Contract Term:  7/1/22 – 6/30/23  

 

Page 9 of 9 

Section 
Current Language in  

Existing Contract 
New/Amended Language  

in New Contract 
Reason for Change 

required.  NORS data entry must be timely, 
complete, accurate, and verifiable. 

Exhibit E, 
Article II, I 

Reporting Provisions Specific to Title III C-2 
The contractor shall provide quarterly data 
about their Title III C-2 Wait List(s), using a 
template provided by CDA, via email to 
CDANutritionandHealthPromotion@aging.ca.g
ov. The categories may include, but are not 
limited to the following: 
• Number of unduplicated clients on the Wait 
List 
• Number of unduplicated clients removed from 
the Wait List 
• Number of new unduplicated clients added to 
the Wait List 

Remove section. Wait list reporting for 
nutrition 
augmentation 
funding will not be 
implemented at this 
time due to the 
pandemic and new 
supplemental funding 
sources. 
 

 



State of California Award #: AP-2223-16
California Department of Aging Date: 7/1/2022

Amendment #:
AREA PLAN BUDGET DISPLAY
Exhibit B, Attachment 1- BUDGET DISPLAY Page 1 of 1
Fiscal Year 2022-23 (Federal Fiscal Years 2022 & 2023)
County of Inyo
12 months (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023)
Program Fund Type Project Number Baseline Adjustments Transfers OTO Updated Total Net Change
Supportive Services Federal Title IIIB 3BSL 100,042 0 0 0 100,042 0
Ombudsman Federal Title IIIB 3BOL 23,483 0 0 0 23,483 0
Ombudsman Federal Title VIIa 7OFL 35,117 0 0 0 35,117 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB B1GL 65,538 0 0 0 65,538 0
Ombudsman General Fund IIIB- Augmentation B1GL 45,630 0 0 0 45,630 0

Ombudsman
Public Health L & C Program 
Fund

LCPF 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Ombudsman
State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account

SDFL 1,233 0 0 0 1,233 0

Ombudsman SNF Quality & Accountability SNFL 16,673 0 0 0 16,673 0
Ombudsman Total Ombudsman blank 191,184 0 0 0 191,184 0
Congregate Nutrition Federal Title IIIC1 3C1L 105,790 0 0 0 105,790 0
Congregate Nutrition General Fund C1 C1GL 44,008 0 0 0 44,008 0
Congregate Nutrition General Fund C1- Augmentation C1GL 87,557 0 0 0 87,557 0
Congregate Nutrition NSIP C1 NC1L 15,001 0 0 0 15,001 0
Congregate Nutrition Total Congregate Nutrition blank 252,356 0 0 0 252,356 0
Home-Delivered Meals Federal Title IIIC2 3C2L 98,989 0 0 0 98,989 0
Home-Delivered Meals General Fund C2 C2GL 530,975 0 0 0 530,975 0
Home-Delivered Meals General Fund C2- Augmentation C2GL 177,739 0 0 0 177,739 0
Home-Delivered Meals NSIP C2 NC2L 25,999 0 0 0 25,999 0
Home-Delivered Meals Total Home Delivered Meals blank 833,702 0 0 0 833,702 0
Disease Prevention Federal Title IIID 3DFL 2,804 0 0 0 2,804 0
Family Caregiver Federal Title IIIE 3EFL 19,761 0 0 0 19,761 0

Elder Abuse Prevention Federal Title VII 7EFL 590 0 0 0 590 0

Administration Administration APAD 63,934 0 0 0 63,934 0
Administration- Informat Federal Title IIIB APAD 19,520 0 0 0 19,520 0
Administration- Informat Federal Title IIIC1 APAD 18,678 0 0 0 18,678 0
Administration- Informat Federal Title IIIC2 APAD 17,477 0 0 0 17,477 0
Administration- Informat Federal Title IIIE APAD 8,259 0 0 0 8,259 0

Administration
General Fund Baseline 
Administration

APGA 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0

Funding Summary Federal Funds blank 491,510 0 0 0 491,510 0

Funding Summary General Fund blank 1,051,447 0 0 0 1,051,447 0

Funding Summary
Public Health L & C Program 
Fund

blank 3,510 0 0 0 3,510 0

Funding Summary
State Health Facilities Citation 
Penalties Account

blank 1,233 0 0 0 1,233 0

Funding Summary SNF Quality & Accountability blank 16,673 0 0 0 16,673 0

All Funds Grand Total - All Funds blank 1,564,373 0 0 0 1,564,373 0

  Comments:

The maximum amount allowed to be transferred from Administration to Title IIIE is: 8,259

The minimum General Fund to be expended for State Match in Title III is: 17,931

CFDA NUMBER Year Award # Award Name
93.041 2022 2201CAOAEA-01 Older American Act Title VII- Elder Abuse Prevention
93.042 2022 2201CAOAOM-01 Older American Act Title VII- Ombudsman
93.043 2022 2201CAOAPH-01 Older American Act Title III- Preventive Health
93.044 2022 2201CAOASS-01 Older American Act Title III- Supportive Services
93.045 2022 2201CAOACM-01 Older American Act Title III- Congregate Meals
93.045 2022 2201CAOAHD-01 Older American Act Title III- Home-Delivered Meals
93.052 2022 2201CAOAFC-01 Older American Act Title III- Family Caregivers
93.053 2022 2201CAOANS-01 Older American Act Nutrition Services Incentive Program



OTO-SN Inyo Mono FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Net

Baseline Total County County
Inyo 

Baseline 
Allocations

Inyo 
Difference

Mono 
Baseline 

Allocations

Mono 
Difference

Change

  Supportive Services
Legal 20,000      20,000      20,000      20,000     -           -           -           -             

0.2 I&A 15,798      15,798      15,798      15,630     168          -           -           168            
0.15 Transportation (80/20) 11,848      11,848      9,479        2,370     9,378       101          2,344       26            126            
0.6 Assisted Transportation (86/14) 47,394      47,394      40,759      6,635     40,325     434          6,565       70            504            

0.05 Telephone Reassurance 5,002        5,002        5,002        -         4,960       42            -           -           42              
Total Supportive Services 100,042    -         100,042    91,037      9,005     90,293     744          8,909       96            840            

  Ombudsman
Federal Title IIIB 23,483      23,483      23,483      -         23,565     (82)           -           -           (82)             
Federal Title VII Ombudsman 35,117      35,117      35,117      -         35,242     (125)         -           -           (125)           
General Fund IIIB 111,168    111,168    111,168    112,227   (1,059)      (1,059)        

3,510        3,510        3,510        3,574       (64)           (64)             
1,233        1,233        1,233        1,222       11            -           -           11              

SNF Quality & Accountability 16,673      16,673      16,673      16,975     (302)         -           -           (302)           
Total Ombudsman 191,184    -         191,184    191,184    -         192,805   (1,621)      -           -           (1,621)        

  Congregate Nutrition (84/16)
Federal Title IIIC1 105,790    105,790    88,864      16,926   104,454   (15,590)    19,896     (2,970)      (18,560)      
General Fund C1 131,565    131,565    110,515    21,050   126,346   (15,831)    24,066     (3,016)      (18,847)      
NSIP C1 15,001      15,001      12,601      2,400     9,514       3,087       1,812       588          3,675         

Total Congregate Nut 252,356    -         252,356    211,979    40,377   240,314   (28,335)    45,774     (5,397)      (33,732)      

  Home-Delivered Meals (80/20)
Federal Title IIIC2 98,989      98,989      79,191      19,798   80,495     (1,304)      20,124     (326)         (1,630)        
General Fund C2 708,714    708,714    566,971    141,743  279,229   287,742   69,807     71,936     359,678     
NSIP C2 25,999      25,999      20,799      5,200     17,218     3,581       4,304       896          4,477         

Total Home Delivered 833,702    -         833,702    666,962    166,740  376,942   290,020   94,235     72,505     362,525     

  Disease Prevention
Federal Title IIID 2,804        2,804        2,804        -         2,694       110          -           -           110            

Total Disease Prevent 2,804        -         2,804        2,804        -         2,694       110          -           -           110            

  Family Caregiver
Federal Title IIIE 19,761      19,761      19,761      -         18,978     783          -           -           783            

Total Family Caregive 19,761      -         19,761      19,761      -         18,978     783          -           -           783            

  Elder Abuse
Federal Title VII Elder Abuse Pre 590          590          590          -         568          22            -           -           22              

Total Elder Abuse 590          -         590          590          -         568          22            -           -           22              

  Administration
Federal Title IIIB, C1, C3 & E 63,934      63,934      63,934      -         63,242     692          -           -           692            
General Fund 100,000    100,000    100,000    -          100,000   -           -           100,000     

-           -           -          -           -           -           -             
Total Administration 163,934    163,934    163,934    -         63,242     100,692   -           -           100,692     

  Grand Total - All Funds 1,564,373 -         1,564,373 1,348,251 216,122  985,836   362,415   148,918   67,204     429,619     

  Funding Summary
Federal Funds 491,510    -         491,510    438,181    53,329   446,263   (8,082)      55,045     (1,716)      (9,798)        
General Fund 1,051,447 -         1,051,447 888,654    162,793  517,802   370,852   93,873     68,920     439,772     

3,510        3,510        3,510        3,574       (64)           (64)             
SNF Quality & Accountability 16,673      16,673      16,673      16,975     (302)         -           -           (302)           
Special Deposit 1,233        1,233        1,233        -         1,222       11            -           -           11              

1,564,373 -         1,564,373 1,348,251 216,122  985,836   362,415   148,918   67,204     429,619     

Public Health L & C Program 
State Health Facilities Citation 

Public Health L & C Program 

Exhibit B - Budget Detail, Payment Provisions, and Closeout

AREA PLAN
Budget Display

Fiscal Year 2022-23

Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging



From CDA Exhibit B- Budget Detail, Payment Provisions and Closeout

FY 22/23 Baseline Allocations

OTO & Inyo Mono
Baseline Spec. Nut County County

  Supportive Services
Legal 20,000       -         20,000       0

0.2 I&A 15,798       15,798       0
0.15 Transportation (80/20) 11,848       9,479         2,370             

0.6 Assisted Transportation (86/14) 47,394       40,759       6,635             
0.05 In Home 5,002         5,002         -                 

Total Supportive Services 100,042     -         91,037       9,005             

  Congregate Nutrition (84/16)
Federal Title IIIC1 105,790     88,864       16,926           
General Fund C1 131,565     110,515     21,050           
NSIP C1 15,001       12,601       2,400             

Total Congregate Nutrition 252,356     -         211,979     40,377           

  Home-Delivered Meals (80/20)
Federal Title IIIC2 98,989       79,191       19,798           
General Fund C2 708,714     566,971     141,743         
NSIP C2 25,999       20,799       5,200             

Total Home Delivered Meals 833,702     -         666,962     166,740         

  Grand Total - All Funds 1,186,100  -         969,978     216,122         

  Funding Summary
Federal Funds 345,821     -         292,492     53,329           
State General Fund 840,279     -         677,486     162,793         

1,186,100  -         969,978     216,122         

AREA PLAN
Budget Display

Fiscal Year 2022/23
County of Inyo

Eastern Sierra Agency on Aging



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract between the County of Inyo and Harshwal & Company
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Harshwal & Company from July 1, 2022 to 
June 30, 2024 for auditing services in an amount not to exceed $22,000, contingent upon the approval of future 
budgets, and authorize Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Children and Families Commission (First 5 Inyo County) is required by law to have an annual 
independent audit. Inyo First 5 released an Audit RFP in 2015/16 and this vendor received the highest rating by 
the review committee.  State First 5 has been looking at the requirement for each county to do individual audits 
and is considering a statewide approach or even a small county approach.  We are requesting to continue with 
this contractor until changes are made by the State First 5.    
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this contract, which would mean that First 5 Inyo would likely struggle to 
find another qualified independent auditor willing to travel to Inyo and complete the work by the October deadline.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
100% State Funding. This contract will be budgeted in First Five (643000) in Professional Services (5265).  No 
County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Harshwal Contract
2. HCLLP - Insurance Certificate 2022-23
3. HCLLP - Professional Liability Insurance



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 5/14/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/18/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/30/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 5/31/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/1/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/1/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/1/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 6/1/2022



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND F{arqhwal R ilP

FOR THE PROVISION OF auditino SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
auditino services of Harshwal & Comoa LLP of
Oakland. Californi a hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in
consideration of the mutual
hereby agree as follows:

promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1,2022 to June 30 2024
unless sooner terminated as provided below

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor the sum total of
thousand and cents

) for performance of all of the services and
completion of all of the work described in Attachment A.

Bt Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement.

C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compeniation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit Upon Amount Pavable Under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
Cou to Contractor for all services and work to be performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

thousand
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").

County expressly reseryes the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for
services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billins and Pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of all services
and work set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all services and work performed by Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement. This statement will identify the date on which the services were performed and
describe the nature of the services and work which was performed on each day. Upon receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 1 of9 0512012019



F. Federal and State Taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is aniicipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,4ee.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the Cilifornia
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue service (lRS) Form w-g upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require a
varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure that
all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be performed within thetime frame set
forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, GERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver,s
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid iicenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Aftachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federai
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procuremenl
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2 of 9 05t20t2019



7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of County. Any personal propefi such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while ihey are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to suCh items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on bbhalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be
considered an employee of Contractor. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and notis employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 of 9 0512012019



this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.B lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial reiords of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaiuation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be mainta-ined by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenrvise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, oi applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, beciuse of race, retigion, coloi, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. ContrJctor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housin! Rci
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Righ-ts Act of 1g64 (p.L. Sg-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

14. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

I5. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

. Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modifled as provided in paragraph twenty one (21) below.

16. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordancJwith Tile 45,
Code_of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of i9g6,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations aOopteO pursuant

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page4of9 OSl2Ol2019



thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

17. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

18. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

'9. 
SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

20. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modificaiion
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
one (21) (Amendment).

21. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

22. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractoi or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5 of 9 05120t2019



County of lnyo
Health & Human Services
P.O. Drawer H

Department
Address
City and State

Contractor:

LLP Name
Address
City and State

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

lndeoendence. 93526

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6 of 9

CA
Suite

0512012019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INVO
LLPAND

FOR THE PROVISION OF

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS_DAY

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

Type or Print Name Type or

Dated Dated: Mav 19.2022

AND LEGALIW:

AS TOACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel SeMces

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 13
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 7 of 9 o5120t2019



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Harshwal & Companv LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF auditi RVICES

TERM:

FROM :Julv 1 .2022 TO=June 30.2024

SCOPE OFWORK:

The Contractor shall perform an annual independent financial statement and compliance audit of First 5 lnyo County for
fiscal year 202112022 and 202212023 as mandated by section 130140 of the State of California Heatth and Safety iode,
which shall be carried out according to the standards and procedures from administering the California Children ind
Families Act as determined by the California State Controller.

The Contractor shall also draft an audit report:
*Determining that the established contracting and procurements policies and operations follow paragraph 40 of the

subdivision (d) of the California Health and Safety Code section 130140, and ensure that the Commissi6n's grants and
contracts are consistent with the Commission's strategic plan.

*Determine the established administrative cost functions and monitoring process per State Commission's guidelines.*Determine conflict of interest policies and procedures adopted pursuant to the California Health and Safely code
section 130140, and local statutes.

*Determine that the Commission created and adopted a long range financial plan in public hearing.*Determine that the financial condition of the Commission was communicated as required by law.*Document the Commission's program and evaluation expenditure amounts and results.*Determine the established salaries and benefits policies pursuant to paragraph (6) of subdivision (d) of the California
Health and Safety Code 130140.

Said audit report will be completed for approval by the First 5 lnyo Commission by September 25th. An electronic version
of the report shall be made available by the Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8 of 9 05t20t2019



AITACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Harshwal & Comoanv LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF ar rdifina

TERM

FROM:July 1,2022 Tg :June 30- 2024

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 113
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9 of 9

SERVICES

0512012019



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

05/13/2022
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE
POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
CAMICO SERVICES INC/PHS

57141555

The Hartford Business Service Center

3600 Wiseman Blvd

San Antonio, TX 78251

CONTACT
NAME:
PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

(866) 467-8730 FAX
(A/C, No):

(888) 443-6112

E-MAIL

ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURED

HARSHWAL & COMPANY, LLP.

11405 W BERNARDO CT STE A

SAN DIEGO CA 92127

INSURER A :  Sentinel Insurance Company Ltd. 11000

INSURER B :  Hartford Fire and Its P&C Affiliates 00914

INSURER C :

INSURER D :
INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL
INSR

SUBR
WVD

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/Y YYY)

LIMITS

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

57 SBA BM7653 05/12/2022 05/12/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES (Ea occurrence)
$1,000,000

X General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

POLICY
PRO-

JECT
X LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $4,000,000

OTHER:

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

57 SBA BM7653 05/12/2022 05/12/2023

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

(Ea accident)
$2,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

X
HIRED

AUTOS
X

NON-OWNED

AUTOS

PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB
EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY

PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/ A 57 WEC AG8JZ9 07/21/2021 07/21/2022

X PER

STATUTE

OTH-

ER

Y/N E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
Harshwal and Company LLP

11405 W BERNARDO CT STE A

SAN DIEGO CA 92127

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

6/25/2021

Amber Hattendorf

CAMICO Insurance Services 

1800 Gateway Drive, Suite 300 

San Mateo, CA 94404

800-652-1772 800-227-2090

AHattendorf@camico.com

Great Divide Insurance Company                                      25224

HARSHWAL & COMPANY LLP 

16870 W. Bernardo Dr., Ste 250 

San Diego, CA 92127

A Professional Liability CAB201933 7/1/2021 7/1/2022
Per Claim/ 

Aggregate

$2,000,000/ 

$4,000,000

Should any of the above described policies be canceled before the expiration date thereof, CAMICO will mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder.

HARSHWAL & COMPANY LLP 

16870 W. Bernardo Dr., Ste 250 

San Diego, CA 92127



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment No. 1 to agreement between the County of lnyo and California Department of Health 
Care Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) ratify and approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 20-10008 between the County of lnyo 
and California Department of Health Care Services, for the contract period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 
for the maximum amount of the agreement reimbursement of $600,000, for approved Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities; and B) authorize the HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement, California Civil Rights Laws 
Certification, Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement, and Contractor Certification Clause 307.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is an amendment to the agreement between the County of lnyo and California Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS). This agreement allows DHCS to reimburse lnyo County for approved Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities (MAA) up to an amount of $600,000. The funds reimbursed through the MAA/TCM billing process are 
used to support the services/programs that provide these reimbursable activities. 

The changes made include:  alternate contract language for clarification purposes, updating existing exhibits and 
adding new exhibits.  All changes are highlighted in the exhibits.
  
There are currently five active claiming units in lnyo County: First Five, Public Health, Probation, ReEntry and the 
MAA  Coordination Unit. To continue to obtain reimbursement for MAA activities, the County must authorize 
execution of the agreement with DHCS/MAA division.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The County can choose not to sign the Agreement and operate all of the above programs without the 
augmentation from MAA funding.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Health Care Services, First 5 and Probation
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
Federal funding. These funds are deposited into the HHS Supsense Trust (505104) and then distributed to the 
appropriate budgets.  No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Civil Rights Laws Certification
2. Contractor Certification Clause
3. Exhibits
4. Agreement Continuation
5. CDHC Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 5/19/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2022
Anna Scott Approved - 5/19/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/19/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/26/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/26/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/26/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/27/2022



STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 

CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS ATTACHMENT OFFICE OF LEGAL SERVICES 

DGS OLS 04 (Rev. 01/17) 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or proposal to, or 
otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state agency with respect to any 
contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, under penalty of perjury, at the time 
the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is renewed, all of the following: 

1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after
January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section
51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the
Government Code); and

2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES:  For contracts executed or renewed after
January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation or
peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor certifies that such
policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code)
or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Executed in the County of Executed in the State of 

Date Executed 

Proposer/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number



Contractor Certification Clause 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: 

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program 
requirements. (GC 12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to 
public entities.)  

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: 

Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:  

a) Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations.  

b) Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:  

1. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  

2. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

3. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance 

programs; and, 



4. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

c)  Provide that every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

1. receive a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement; and, 

2. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a 
condition of employment on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 
under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may 
be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the Contractor has made 
false certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the 
requirements as noted above. (GC 8350 et seq.)  

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: 

Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of 
contempt of court by a Federal court has been issued against Contractor within the 
immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply 
with an order of a Federal court which orders Contractor to comply with an order of 
the National Labor Relations Board. (PCC 10296) (Not applicable to public 
entities.) 

CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: 

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of 
Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003. 

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of 
hours of pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the 
lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any 
contract period of less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state 
contract for legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the 
award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS: 

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of 
an expatriate corporation within the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 
10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 

SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT: 

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, 
garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, 
materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works 
contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to 
the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in 



whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured 
labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of 
children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced 
labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of 
child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. The contractor 
further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial 
Relations website and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to 
the contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if 
reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to 
determine the contractor’s compliance with the requirements under 
paragraph (a). 

DOMESTIC PARTNERS: 

For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that Contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3. 

GENDER IDENTITY: 

For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that Contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of 
California. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state 
employees. If Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services 
or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately for 
clarification. 

a) Current State Employees (PCC 10410):  

1. No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or 
enterprise from which the officer or employee receives 
compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or 
funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2. No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an 
independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods or 
services. 

b)  Former State Employees (PCC 10411):  

1. For the two-year period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, 
transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


making process relevant to the contract while employed in any 
capacity by any state agency. 

2. For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that 
state agency in a policy-making position in the same general 
subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by 
Contractor shall render this Agreement void. (PCC 10420)  

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not 
receive payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, 
payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (PCC 10430 (e)) 

 LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 

Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be 
insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 
in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. 
(Labor Code Section 3700)  

 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: 

Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well 
as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 
12101 et seq.)  

 CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: 

An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this 
Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of the name change the State will 
process the amendment. Payment of invoices presented with a new name cannot 
be paid prior to approval of said amendment. 

 CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a) When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the 
contracting agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified 
to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the 
state are fulfilled.  

b) "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in 
any transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit. 
Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the 
franchise tax. 

c) Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of 
California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business 
in California. Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 



standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 

 RESOLUTION: 

A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy 
of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which by 
law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the 
agreement. 

 AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: 

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or 
resolution not subject to review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or 
an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to 
review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste 
discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in 
violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 

PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: 

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency 
or other government entity. 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 1 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

1. Service Overview 
 

Contractor agrees to provide to the California Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) the services described herein: 

 
Contractor shall perform County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (CMAA) on 
behalf of DHCS to assist in the proper and efficient administration of the Medi-Cal 
Program by improving the availability and accessibility of Medi-Cal Services to Medi-Cal 
eligible and potentially eligible individuals and their families. These activities include, but 
are not limited to, attending or conducting general, non-medical staff meetings, 
developing and monitoring program budgets and/or site management, and general non-
program supervision of staff. This also includes staff break time and any time spent 
filling out a Time Survey Form; Medi-Cal Outreach; Referral, Coordination, and 
Monitoring of Medi-Cal Services; Facilitating Medi-Cal Application; Arranging or 
Providing Non-Emergency, Non-Medical Transportation to a Medi-Cal Covered Service; 
Contract Administration for Medi-Cal Services; Program Planning and Policy 
Development for Medi-Cal Services; Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA)/Targeted 
Case Management (TCM) Coordination and Claims Administration; MAA/TCM 
Implementation; training, general administration, and paid time off. 

 
2. Service Location 
 

The activities shall be performed at applicable facilities within the County of Inyo 
geographic region. 

 
3. Service Hours 
 

The services shall be provided during Contractor’s regular business hours and days. 
 
4. Project Representatives 
 

A. The project representatives during the term of this Agreement will be: 
   

Department of Health Care Services 
Shelly Taunk, Chief 
County-Based Claiming and Inmate Services 
Section 
Telephone: (916) 345-7934 
Fax: (916) 552-9109 
E-Mail: shelly.taunk@dhcs.ca.gov 

County of Imperial 
Melissa Best-Baker 
Health & Human Services  
Telephone: (760)878-0232 
Fax: (760)878-0266 
E-Mail: mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

Damitra Hawkins, Unit Chief  
County-Based Claiming and Inmate 
Services Section  
Telephone: (916) 345-7867 
E-Mail: Damitra.Hawkins@dhcs.ca.gov 

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

 
B. Direct all inquiries to: 

 
Department of Health Care Services County of Inyo 
County-Based Claiming and Inmate Services 
Section 
Attention: Julia Yang 
1501 Capitol Ave., MS 4603 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436 
Telephone: (916) 345-7863 
Fax: (916) 552-9109 
E-Mail: Julia.Yang@dhcs.ca.gov 
 
County-Based Claiming and Inmate 
Services Section 
Attention: Danny Vasquez 
1501 Capitol Ave., MS 2628 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436 
Telephone: (916) 345-7865  
E-Mail: Danny.Vasquez@dhcs.ca.gov 

Health & Human Services  
Attention: Melissa Best-Baker 
155 E. Market St. 
Independence, CA 93526 
Telephone: (760) 878-0232  
Fax: (760) 878-0266 
E-Mail: mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 
 

 
  

C. Either party may make changes to the information above by giving written notice 
to the other party. Said changes shall not require an amendment to this 
agreement. 
 

5. Services to be Performed 
 

The following CMAA are eligible for Federal Financial Participation (FFP) only when 
they are identified in a CMAA Claiming Plan approved by the State and the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS):  
 

A. Medi-Cal Outreach: This activity may consist of discrete campaigns or ongoing 
activities directed to groups or individuals with two goals:  

 
1. Bringing potential eligibles into the Medi-Cal system for the purpose of 

determining Medi-Cal eligibility. Determining Medi-Cal eligibility; and 
 

2. Bringing Medi-Cal eligibles beneficiaries into Medi-Cal services. 
   

Outreach may consist of discrete campaigns or may be an ongoing activity, such 
as: sending teams of employees into the community to contact homeless, 
alcoholics, or drug abusers; establishing a telephone or walk-in service for referring 
persons to Medi-Cal services or eligibility offices; operating a drop-in community 
center for underserved populations such as minority teenagers where Medi-Cal 
eligibility and service information is disseminated.  



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 3 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

 
NOTE: Public health outreach conducted by Local Government Agencies 

(LGAs) shall not duplicate the requirements of Medi-Cal managed care 
providers to pursue the enrollment of Medi-Cal eligibles in their service 
areas.  

  
3. Medi-Cal only eligibility outreach campaigns directed to the entire population 

to encourage potential Medi-Cal eligibles to apply for Medi-Cal are allowable, 
(e.g., service campaigns directed toward specific Medi-Cal services 
such as Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment) are 
allowable, and the costs do not have to be discounted by the Medi-Cal 
percentage: 
 

a. Outreach campaigns directed toward bringing Medi-Cal eligibles into 
Medi-Cal covered services are allowable and the costs do not have to be 
discounted by the Medi-Cal percentage. In such campaigns, the language 
should clearly indicate that the message is directed only to persons 
eligible for Medi-Cal, and not the general public. These campaigns are 
service campaigns, targeted on specific Medi-Cal services, such as Early 
and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment. 
Such campaigns should clearly indicate that Medi-Cal services are 
directed only to persons eligible for Medi-Cal. 
 

b. A health education program or campaign may be allowable as a Medi-Cal 
administrative cost if it is directed toward specific Medi-Cal services and 
for Medi-Cal eligible individuals, such as an educational campaign on 
immunization addressed to parents of Medi-Cal children. 

 
B. Referral, Coordination, and Monitoring of Medi-Cal Services: Referral, 

Coordination, and Monitoring of Medi-Cal Services includes making referrals for, 
coordinating, and/or monitoring the delivery of Medi-Cal covered services. 

 
C. Facilitating Medi-Cal Application (Eligibility Intake): This activity includes 

explaining Medi-Cal eligibility rules and the Medi-Cal eligibility process to 
prospective applicants; assisting an applicant to fill out a Medi-Cal eligibility 
application; gathering information related to the application and eligibility 
determination or re-determination from a client, including resource information 
and third party liability information, as a prelude to submitting a formal Medi-Cal 
application to the county welfare department; and/or providing necessary forms 
and packaging all forms in preparation for the Medi-Cal eligibility determination. 
This activity does not include the eligibility determination itself. These costs do 
not have to be discounted (i.e., reduced) by the Medi-Cal percentage. 

 
D. Arranging and/or Providing Non-Emergency, Non-Medical Transportation 

to a Medi-Cal covered Service: This activity includes arranging and/or providing 
non-emergency, non-medical transportation for a Medi-Cal eligible client who 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

does not have a physical or mental limitation to a Medi-Cal provider for a Medi-
Cal covered service when medically necessary. It also includes arranging and/or 
providing non-emergency, non-medical transportation and accompaniment by an 
attendant, for a Medi-Cal eligible client who has a physical or mental limitation to 
a Medi-Cal provider for a Medi-Cal covered service when medically necessary. If 
the Medi-Cal eligible client does not have a physical or mental limitation, the 
contractor or governmental unit may provide transportation services, but will be  
unable to accompany the client to the Medi-Cal covered service appointment. 
However, LGAs may not claim arranging transportation as CMAA when 
performed by a TCM Case Manager.  Instead, the cost of this time will be 
included in the TCM encounter rate, which  is not separately claimable through 
CMAA (DHCS CMAA Program Operational Plan). 

 
Examples: Providing transportation services to a Medi-Cal eligible individual to a 
Medi-Cal service provider. Scheduling or arranging transportation to Medi-Cal 
covered services. Accompanying clients (e.g., elderly, young, disabled) at a 
Medi-Cal provider medical appointment because the client has physical 
limitation, pursuant to 42 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 440.170. 

             
E. Contract Administration for Medi-Cal Services: This activity involves entering 

into agreements with community-based organizations or other provider agencies 
for the provision of Medi-Cal services and/or CMAA, other than TCM. The costs 
of TCM subcontract administration should be included in the TCM rate. 

 
NOTE: A Contractor has the option of claiming the costs of contract 

administration for allowable CMAA, such as Outreach, under that 
activity or the costs may be claimed under Contract Administration. 
Under no circumstances are the costs of contract administration for 
allowable CMAA to be claimed under both Contract Administration 
and the activity, such as Outreach. Contracting for Medi-Cal services 
may only be claimed under Contract Administration. 

 
Contracting for Medi-Cal services and/or CMAA is claimable as an administrative 
activity when the administration of those agreements meets all of the following 
criteria: 

 
1. The contract administration is performed by an identifiable unit of one or more 

employees, whose tasks officially involve contract administration, according to 
the duty statements or job descriptions of the employees being claimed.    

 
2. The contract administration involves contractors that provide Medi-Cal 

services and/or CMAA. The costs of contracting for TCM services with non-
LGA providers should be claimed as part of the TCM rate. These costs 
cannot be separately claimed as CMAA. 

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

3. The contract administration must be directed to one or more of the following 
goals: 

  
a. Identifying, recruiting, and contracting with community agencies as Medi-

Cal service contract providers; 
 
b. Providing technical assistance to Medi-Cal subcontractors regarding 

county, state and federal regulations; 
 
c. Monitoring provider agency capacity and availability; and  
 
d. Ensuring compliance with the terms of the agreement. 

 
The contracts being administered must be for Medi-Cal services and CMAA 
or just CMAA and target Medi-Cal populations only or target the general 
population if the general population includes a Medi-Cal eligible population.    
 

F. Program Planning and Policy Development (PP&PD) for Medi-Cal Services: 
This activity may be claimed at the enhanced rate (75 percent FFP) if performed 
by a Skilled Professional Medical Personnel (SPMP), or the non-enhanced rate 
(50 percent FFP) if performed by a non-SPMP.  

     
1. Allowable: This activity is claimable when performed, either part-time or full-

time, by one or more contractor employees and subcontractors whose tasks 
officially involve PP&PD. Contractor employees performing this activity must 
have the tasks identified in the employee’s position descriptions/duty 
statements. If the programs serve both Medi-Cal and non-Medi-Cal clients, 
the costs of PP&PD activities must be allocated according to the Medi-Cal 
percentages being served by the programs. 

 
This activity is claimable as a direct charge for Medi-Cal administration only 
when PP&PD is performed by a unit of one or more contractor employees 
who spend 100 percent of their paid working time performing this activity. This 
activity is claimable only if the administrative amounts being claimed for 
PP&PD persons and activities are not otherwise included in other claimable 
cost pools; and the amounts being claimed for such persons employed by 
(and activities taking place in) a service provider setting are not otherwise 
being reimbursed through the billable service rate of that provider. Costs for 
persons performing this activity less than 100 percent of their time will be 
based on a time survey.   

 
In LGAs with countywide managed care arrangements, PP&PD activities are 
claimable as Medi-Cal administration only for those services that are 
excluded from the managed care contracts.  

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 6 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

Under the conditions specified above, the following tasks are allowable as 
CMAA under these circumstances:  

 
a. Developing strategies to increase Medi-Cal system capacity and close 

Medi-Cal service gaps. This includes analyzing Medi-Cal data related to a 
specific program and/or specific group. 

 
b. Interagency coordination to improve delivery of Medi-Cal services. 

 
c. Developing resource directories of Medi-Cal services/providers. 

 
d. For subcontractors, some PP&PD support services are allowable (e.g., 

developing resource directories, preparing Medi-Cal data reports, 
conducting needs assessments, or preparing proposals for expansion of 
Medi-Cal services). 

 
2. Not allowable: This activity is not allowable if staff performing this function are 

employed full-time by service providers, such as clinics. The full costs of the 
employee’s salary are assumed to be included in the billable fee-for-service 
rate. Claiming this activity separately is not allowed. 
 
This activity is not allowable if staff who deliver services part-time in an LGA 
service provider setting, such as a clinic, are performing PP&PD activities 
relating to the service provider setting in which they deliver services. 

 
G. MAA/TCM Coordination and Claims Administration: Contractor employees 

whose position description/duty statement includes the administration of CMAA 
and TCM on an LGA service region-wide basis, may claim the costs of these 
activities on the CMAA detailed invoice as a direct charge. 

   
Costs incurred in the preparation and submission of CMAA claims at any level, 
including staff time, supplies, and time spent on a computer performing CMAA, 
may be direct charged. If the CMAA/TCM Coordinator and/or claims 
administration staff are performing this function part-time, along with other duties, 
they must certify the percentage of total time spent performing the duties of 
CMAA coordination and/or claims administration. The percentage certified for the 
CMAA/TCM Coordinator and/or claims administration staff activities must be 
used as the basis for federal claiming. Charges for supervisors, clericals, and 
support staff may be included, and if so must be allocated based upon the 
percentage of certified time of the CMAA/TCM Coordinator and claims 
administration staff.  

  
1. The CMAA/TCM Coordinator and claims administration staff may claim the 

costs of the following activities, as well as any other reasonable activities 
directly related to the Contractor’s administration of TCM services and CMAA 
at the LGA-wide level: 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 7 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

 
a. Drafting, revising, and submitting CMAA Claiming Plans, and TCM 

performance monitoring plans. 
 

b. Serving as a liaison and monitoring the performance of claiming programs 
within the LGA and with the State and federal government on CMAA and 
TCM. 
 

c. Administering LGA claiming, including overseeing, preparing, compiling, 
revising, and submitting CMAA and TCM invoices on an LGA-wide basis 
to the State. 
 

d. Attending training sessions, meetings, and conferences involving CMAA 
and/or TCM. 
 

e. Training contractor program and subcontractor staff on State, federal, and 
local requirements for CMAA and/or TCM claiming. 
 

f. Ensuring that CMAA and/or TCM invoices do not duplicate Medi-Cal 
invoices for the same services or activities from other providers. This 
includes ensuring that services are not duplicated when a Medi-Cal 
beneficiary receives TCM services from more than one case manager. 

 
NOTE: The costs of the CMAA/TCM Coordinator’s time and claims 

administration staff time must not be included in the CMAA 
claiming or in the TCM rate since the costs associated with the 
time are to be direct charged. Charges for supervisors, clericals, 
and support staff for these employees may be included, and if 
so must be allocated based upon the percentage of certified 
time of the CMAA/TCM Coordinator and claims administration 
staff. The costs of TCM claiming activity at the TCM provider 
level are to be included in the TCM rate. 

 
H. MAA/TCM Implementation Training: Training activities shall be time studied in 

accordance with the purpose of the training. Training activities include time spent 
providing or attending training related to the performance of CMAA or TCM. 
Training activities also include reasonable time spent on related paperwork, 
clerical activities, staff travel time necessary to perform these activities, including 
initiating and responding to email and voicemail. Training unrelated to CMAA is 
not allowable. 

 
I. General Administration: This includes activities that are eligible for cost 

distribution on a 2 CFR Part 200 et seq. approved cost allocation basis. These 
costs are to be distributed proportionately while performing the following 
activities:    
 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 8 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

1. Attend or conduct general, non-medical staff meetings; 
 

2. Develop and monitor program budgets; 
 
3. Provide instructional leadership, site management, staff supervision, or 

reviews of employee performance; 
 
4. Review departmental or unit procedures and rules; 
 
5. Present or participate in, in-service orientations, and programs;  
 
6. Participate in health promotion activities for employees of the Contractor; and 

 
7. The 15 minutes that a time survey participant spent filling out the Time Survey 

Form at the end of the work day. 
 

J. Paid Time Off: This activity is to be used by all staff involved in CMAA to record 
usage of paid leave, including vacation, sick leave, holiday time and any other 
employee time off that is paid. This does not include lunch or meal breaks, off 
payroll time, or Compensatory Time Off, which shall be allocated as prescribed 
by the State. 

       
6. Americans with Disabilities Act 
                 

Contractor agrees to ensure that deliverables are developed and produced, pursuant 
to this Agreement shall comply with the accessibility requirements of Section 508 of 
the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1973 as amended 
(29 U.S.C. § 794 (d), and regulations implementing that act as set forth in Part 1194 
of Title 36 of the Federal Code of Regulations. In 1998, Congress amended the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 to require Federal agencies to make their electronic and 
information technology (EIT) accessible to people with disabilities.  California 
Government Code section 11135 codifies section 508 of the Act, requiring 
accessibility of electronic and information technology. 
 
Contractor agrees to ensure that deliverables developed and produced, 
pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with the accessibility requirements 
of Sections 7405 and 11135 of the California Government Code, Section 508 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794d), regulations 
implementing the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as set forth in Part 1194 of Title 36 
of the Code of Federal Regulations, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.). In 1998, Congress amended the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 to require Federal agencies to make their electronic and 
information technology (EIT) accessible to people with disabilities.  California 
Government Code Sections 7405 and 11135 codifies Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 requiring accessibility of EIT. 
 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 9 of 9 
 

Exhibit A A1 
Scope of Work 

 

 

 
A. The County of Inyo assures the state that it complies with the ADA, 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all 
applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. 

 
B. The County of Inyo will ensure that deliverables developed and 

produced pursuant to this Agreement comply with federal and state 
laws, regulations or requirements regarding accessibility and effective 
communication, including the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 
§ 12101, et. seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, and section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 
(29 U.S.C. § 794 (d)). Specifically, electronic and printed documents 
intended as public communications must be produced to ensure the 
visual-impaired, hearing-impaired, and other special needs audiences 
are provided material information in the formats needed to provide the 
most assistance in making informed choices. These formats include but 
are not limited to braille, large font, and audio. 
 
Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the 
Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 1 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

1. Invoicing and Payment 
 

A. For administrative activities satisfactorily rendered and upon receipt and approval 
of the invoices, DHCS agrees to compensate the Contractor for actual 
expenditures incurred in accordance with the conditions specified herein. 

 
B. Invoices shall include the Agreement Number and shall be submitted not more 

frequently than quarterly in arrears to: 
 

U.S. Mail Regular Mail Overnight Mail 

CMAA Analyst CMAA Analyst 
Department of Health Care Services Department of Health Care Services 

Local Governmental Financing 
Division 

Local Governmental Financing 
Division 

County-Based Claiming and Inmate 
Services Section 

County-Based Claiming and Inmate 
Services Section 

MS 2628 MS 2628 
PO Box 997436 1501 Capitol Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436 Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
C. Invoices shall: 

 
1. Be prepared on the County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (CMAA) 

Invoice incorporated by reference in Exhibit E, Provision 1. 
 

2. Be prepared on Contractor letterhead and must be signed by an authorized 
official, employee or agent certifying that the expenditures claimed represent 
actual expenses for the activities performed under this agreement on the 
CMAA Invoice Summary page. 

 
3. Bear the Contractor’s name as shown on the agreement on the CMAA 

Invoice. 
 

4. Identify the billing and/or performance period covered by the invoice on the 
CMAA Invoice. 

 
5. Itemize costs for the billing period in the same or greater level of detail as 

indicated in this agreement on the CMAA Invoice. Subject to the terms of this 
agreement, reimbursement may only be sought for those costs and/or cost 
categories expressly identified as allowable in this agreement and approved 
by DHCS. 

 
 
 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 2 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

6. Provide the State with complete invoice and expenditure information to 
include in the CMS 64 no later than 15 months after the end of the quarter 
for which the claim was submitted. This information shall be provided on the 
standardized CMAA Invoice. 

 
7. Identify on the CMAA Invoice, the claim categories to which expenditure data must 

adhere for insertion into the CMS 64. A separate CMAA Invoice shall be submitted 
for each program, clinic, non-governmental entity and subcontractor claiming 
CMAA costs pursuant to this agreement, except for contracted employees under 
the direct control of the Contractor. Contracted employees' costs shall be 
aggregated and reported in accordance with the CMAA Invoice instructions. The 
CMAA Invoice(s) for each of the programs claimed shall correspond to the name 
of the claiming programs identified in the Contractors CMAA Claiming Plan. The 
Invoice instructions are found in the DHCS CMAA/TCM Time Survey Methodology 
and DHCS CMAA Program Operational Plan incorporated by reference in Exhibit 
E, Provision1. 

 
D. Rates Payable 

 
1. The invoices may include the cost of expenses of staff,  the operating 

expenses, and equipment costs necessary to collect data, disseminate 
information, and carry out the staff activities outlined in this agreement. 

 
2. The maximum rate of Federal reimbursement for compensation (salary and 

benefits), of activities qualifying under Federal regulations applying to Skilled 
Professional Medical Personnel (SPMP) of a public agency and their direct 
supporting staff shall be 75 percent of such costs for activities identified as 
"enhanced." The maximum rate of reimbursement for allowable costs of 
activities identified as "non-enhanced", performed by SPMP and their 
direct supporting staff, shall be 50 percent. The maximal rate of 
reimbursement for all allowable costs other than compensation applicable to 
SPMPs and their direct supporting staff shall be 50 percent. 

 
3. A SPMP is defined as an employee of the Contractor who has completed a 

2- year or longer program leading to an academic degree or certification in 
a medically-related profession and who performs duties and responsibilities 
requiring professional medical knowledge and skills. Direct supporting staff 
are also employees of the Contractor. They are secretarial, stenographic, 
copy, file, or record clerks who are directly supervised by the SPMP, and 
who provide clerical services necessary for carrying out the professional 
medical responsibilities and administrative activities of the SPMP. 

 
4. The rate of federal reimbursement is 50 percent FFP for all costs of non- 

SPMPs and all costs of subcontractors (non-governmental entities) 
performing allowable administrative activities as defined in Provision 5, 
Services to be Performed, of Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 3 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

5. The maximum rate of reimbursement for all non-public subcontractors to the 
Contractor shall be 50 percent for all categories of cost. 

 
E. The Contractor shall certify the certified public expenditures (CPEs) from the 

Contractor’s General  Fund, or from any other funds allowed under federal law 
and regulation, for Title XIX funds claimed for CMAA performed pursuant to 
Welfare and Institutions (W&I) Code  section 14132.47. The State shall deny 
payment of any claim submitted under this agreement if it determines that the 
certification is not adequately supported for purposes of FFP. Expenditures 
certified for CMAA costs shall not duplicate, in whole or in part, claims made for 
the costs of direct patient care. DHCS shall provide a certification statement to 
be included with each CMAA Invoice Summary Page submitted to the State for 
payment for the performance of CMAA. 

 
2. Budget Contingency Clause 

 
A. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any 

subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient 
funds for the program, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect. In 
this event, DHCS shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor 
or to furnish any other considerations under this Agreement and Contractor shall 
not be obligated to further provide services under the CMAA  program. 

 
B. If funding for any state fiscal year (SFY) is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act 

for purposes of this program, DHCS shall have the option to either cancel this 
Agreement with no liability occurring to DHCS, or offer an agreement  amendment 
to Contractor to reflect the reduced amount. 

 
3. Prompt Payment Clause 

 
Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, 
Government Code Chapter 4.5, commencing with section 927. 

 
4. Amounts Payable 

 
A. The amounts payable under this agreement shall not exceed: 

 
1. $200,000 for the budgetary period of 07/01/2020 through 06/30/2021, 
2. $200,000 for the budgetary period of 07/01/2021 through 06/30/2022, 
3. $200,000 for the budgetary period of 07/01/2022 through 06/30/2023. 

 
B. Reimbursement shall be made for allowable expenses up to the amount 

annually encumbered commensurate with the SFY in which services are 
performed and/or goods are  received. 

 
 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 4 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

5. Timely Submission of Final Invoice 
 

A. A final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no more than 30 
calendar days following the expiration or termination date of this Agreement, 
unless a later or alternate deadline is agreed to in writing by the Program 
Contract Manager. Said invoice should be clearly marked “Final Invoice”, thus 
indicating that all payment obligations of DHCS under this Agreement have 
ceased and that no further payments are due or outstanding. 

 
B. DHCS may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final invoice if 

the Contractor fails to obtain prior written DHCS approval of an alternate final 
invoice submission deadline. Written DHCS approval shall be sought from the 
Program Contract Manager prior to the expiration or termination date of this 
Agreement. 

 
C. The Contractor is hereby advised of its obligation to submit, with the final invoice, 

a “Contractor’s Release (Exhibit F)” acknowledging submission of the final 
invoice to DHCS and certifying the approximate percentage amount, if any, of 
recycled products used in performance of this Agreement. 

 
6. Participation in Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming Process 

 
A. As a condition of participation in the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming process, 

and in recognition of revenue generated in the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming 
process, the Contractor shall pay an annual participation fee through a 
mechanism agreed to by the State and Contractors, or, if no agreement is 
reached by August 1 of each year, directly to the State. 

 
B. The participation fee shall be used to cover the cost of administering the Medi- 

Cal Administrative Claiming process, including, but not limited to, claims 
processing, technical assistance, and monitoring. The State shall determine  and 
report staffing requirements upon which projected costs will be based. 

 
 

C. The amount of the participation fee shall be based upon the anticipated state 
salaries, benefits, operating expenses, and equipment, necessary to 
administer the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming process and other costs 
related to that process. 

 
7. Non-Federal Matching Funds for CMAA 

 
The Contractor will expend 100 percent of the non-federal share of the cost of 
performing CMAA. By signing this agreement, the Contractor certifies that the funds 
expended for this purpose shall be from the Contractor’s general fund or from any 
other funds allowable under federal law and regulation. 

 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 5 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

8. Claiming Overhead Costs 
 

A. In order to claim administrative overhead costs, also referred to as "External 
Administrative Overhead" costs, the Contractor must have a State Controller’s 
Office approved LGA administrative overhead cost allocation plan for the 
applicable period and these costs must be claimed in accordance with the 
allocation plan. A LGA’s plan is submitted to the California State Controller’s 
Office, which has delegated authority from the Federal Government to approve 
the plan. 

 
B. Internal (departmental) administrative overhead costs are allowable for FFP only if 

there is a departmental overhead indirect cost allocation plan prepared and on 
file for audit purposes for the applicable period and costs are claimed in 
accordance with 2 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R) part 200 et seq. 

 
C. Internal and external administrative cost allocation plans shall comply with 

provisions of 2 C.F.R part 200 et seq., entitled "Cost Principles for State, Local, 
and Indian Tribal Governments “and Federal Publication OASC-10, entitled "A 
Guide for State and Local Governments/Cost Principles and Procedures for 
Establishing Cost Allocation Plans and Indirect Cost Rates for Grants and 
Contracts with the Federal Government." 

 
D. The Contractor must assure that costs claimed as direct costs are not  

duplicate costs claimed through the application of the indirect cost  rate. 
 

9. Offset of Revenues, Non-Duplication of FFP, and Federal Audit  Disallowance 
 

A. To the extent that other funding sources have paid or would pay for the costs at 
issue, FFP is not available and the costs must be removed from the total costs  
(2 C.F.R. part 200 et seq.). The revenue offset categories which must be applied in 
developing the net costs include, but are not limited to: 

 
1. All unallowable federal funds, including not only federal grants but also 

federal payments for services under Medicare fee-for-service or encounter 
rates. 

 
2. All state expenditures which have been previously matched by the Federal 

Government (includes Medicaid funds for medical assistance, such as the 
payment rate for services under fee-for-service or encounter rates). Claims 
submitted will not be duplicative of Medicaid claims for costs that are part 
of the all-inclusive rate for direct patient care. 

 
3. Private insurance and other fees collected from non-governmental sources. 

 
 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 6 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

4. All applicable credits must be offset against claims for Medicaid funds. 
Applicable credits refer to those receipts or reduction of expenditure type 
transactions that offset or reduce expense items allocable to federal 
awards as direct or indirect costs. 

 
5. A program may not claim any federal match for administrative activities if its 

total cost has already been paid by the revenue sources above. A 
government program may not be reimbursed in excess of its actual  costs. 

 
B. Pursuant to W&I Code section 14132.47(g), DHCS shall be held harmless, 

in accordance with this section, from any federal audit disallowance and 
interest resulting from payments made to the Contractor for services 
under this contract, for a disallowed claim. 

 
C. To the extent that a federal audit disallowance and interest results from a 

claim or claims for which the Contractor has received reimbursement for 
Administrative Claiming process activities, the DHCS shall recoup from the 
Contractor that submitted the disallowed claim, through offsets or by a 
direct billing, amounts equal to the amount of the disallowance and interest, 
in that fiscal year, for the disallowed claim. All subsequent claims 
submitted to DHCS  applicable to any previously disallowed administrative 
activity or claim, may be held in abeyance, with no payment made, until the 
federal disallowance issue is resolved. 

 
D. Notwithstanding the above paragraph, to the extent that a federal audit 

disallowance and interest results from a claim or claims for which the 
Contractor has received reimbursement for Administrative Claiming 
process activities performed by an entity under contract with, and on 
behalf of, the Contractor, DHCS shall be held harmless by the Contractor 
for 100 percent of the amount of the federal audit disallowance and 
interest, for the disallowed claim. 

 
10. Requirements for FFP 

 
A. The reimbursement LGAs receive for their Medi-Cal program expenditures is 

known as FFP. 42 Code of Federal Regulations part 433.51 provides that the 
amount expended for providing medical assistance must be “… certified by the 
contribution public agency as representing expenditures eligible for FFP.” Section 
1903(a) of Title XIX of the Social Security Act also provides language indicating 
states may receive an enhancement to the FFP. Section 1903(a) (2)(A) of the 
Social Security Act specifically indicates federal matching at 75 percent is 
attributable to the compensation and/or training of SPMP, and staff direct 
supporting such personnel of the State agency of any other public agency.  

 
 
 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 7 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

For example, when the amounts expended for providing medical assistance “are 
attributable to the compensation or training of SPMP, and staff directly 
supporting such personnel”, the FFP rate shall be 75 percent.Therefore, the 
FFP rate for a LGA claim with eligible and certified Medi-Cal expenditures 
performed by a SPMP, or staff directly supporting a SPMP, in the amount of 
$100 would be $75 ($100 x .75 =$75). 

B. In order to meet the CPE requirements and receive FFP, LGAs must obtain and 
maintain supporting documentation verifying: a) 100 percent of available revenue 
is specifically related to performing the administrative activities and services of 
the Medi-Cal program; b) 100 percent of the expenditures eligible for 
reimbursement are specifically related to performing the administrative activities 
and services of the Medi-Cal program; c) the expenditures eligible for 
reimbursement are restricted to the actual costs incurred; d) the funds expended 
to account for the actual cost are from revenue sources allowable under all 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations; e) the administrative activity 
and service expenditures of the Medi-Cal program are incurred prior to 
requesting FFP reimbursement. The contributing public agency must certify to 
their allowable expenditures for the actual costs of providing services and/or 
activities. Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) may not utilize their private 
funds or certify costs. CBOs may only utilize allowable CPE contributed by a 
Public Agency for the actual costs related to Medi-Cal eligible services and/or 
activities. If a LGA has a question regarding eligible CPE or actual cost at the 
claiming unit or CBO level, it should contact DHCS. 

 
C. Per 42 C.F.R. part 432.2 et seq., and part 433.1 et seq., SPMP, and direct 

supporting staff, eligible for enhanced funding are defined as physicians, dentists, 
nurses, and other specialized personnel who have professional education and 
training in the field of medical care or appropriate medical practice and who are in 
an employer-employee relationship with the Contractor. SPMPs do not include 
other non-medical health professionals such as public administrators, medical 
analysts, lobbyists, senior managers or administrators of public assistance 
programs or of the Medi-Cal program. 

 
D. The seventy-five (75)  75 percent (enhanced) federal matching rate is only 

available for a Contractor that is contractually linked to DHCS to perform Medi-
Cal Administrative Activities. The enhanced federal matching rate can be claimed 
for salaries, benefits, travel and training of SPMP and their direct supporting 
clerical staff who are in an employee-employer relationship with the Contractor 
and are involved in activities necessary for the proper and efficient 
administration of the Medi-Cal Program. 

 
E. Fifty (50) 50 percent (non-enhanced) federal matching rate can be claimed for any 

of the Contractor's staff, or subcontractors, involved in the performance of activities 
that are necessary for the proper and efficient administration of the Medi-Cal 
Program. This includes claiming for SPMP and direct supporting clerical staff 
performing related activities that are non-enhanced.  

 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 8 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

Additionally, the ability to claim SPMP under the MAA program is activity driven, 
not education based. Expenditures for the actual furnishing of medical services by 
SPMP do not qualify for reimbursement via Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming, as 
medical services are paid for in the fee-for-services system and managed care 
system. 

 

F. Qualifying SPMP costs may be matched at the 75 percent rate in proportion to 
the time worked by SPMP in performing those duties that require professional 
medical knowledge and skills, as evidenced by position descriptions, job 
announcements, or job classifications. 
 

11. Expense Allowability/Fiscal Documentation 
 

A. Invoices, received from a Contractor and accepted and/or submitted for 
payment by DHCS, shall not be deemed evidence of allowable agreement 
costs. 

 
B. Contractor shall maintain for review and audit and supply to DHCS upon request, 

adequate documentation of all expenses claimed pursuant to this agreement to 
permit a determination of expense allowability. 

 
C. If the allowability or appropriateness of an expense cannot be determined by 

DHCS because invoice detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is 
nonexistent or inadequate according to generally accepted accounting principles 
or practices, all questionable costs may be disallowed and payment may be 
withheld by the DHCS. Upon receipt of adequate documentation supporting a 
disallowed or questionable expense, reimbursement may resume for the amount 
substantiated and deemed allowable. 

 
D. The LGA is to establish policies and procedures to identify the Federal Award 

amounts passed through to sub-recipients and furnish those amounts to 
DHCS. 

12. Federal Audit Disallowances 
 

A. In addition to the indemnification required by Exhibit C, Provision 5, and 
notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the State shall be held 
harmless, in accordance with Provision 2, Budget Contingency Clause, 
paragraphs A and B, from any federal audit disallowance and interest resulting 
from payments made to the Contractor pursuant to W&I Code section 
14132.47, and this agreement, less the amounts already remitted to the  State. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 9 of 9 
Exhibit B A1 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

B. To the extent that a federal audit disallowance and interest results from a claim or 
claims for the Contractor has received reimbursement for CMAA, the State shall 
recoup from the Contractor which submitted the disallowed claim, through offsets 
or by direct billing, amounts equal to the amount of the disallowance plus interest in 
that SFY, less any amount already remitted to the State for the disallowed claim. 
All subsequent claims submitted to the State applicable to any previously 
disallowed CMAA or claim, may be held in abeyance, with no payment made, until 
the federal disallowance issue is resolved. 

 
C. To the extent that a federal audit disallowance and interest results from a claim or 

claims for which the Contractor has received reimbursement for CMAA 
performed by a non-governmental entity under agreement with, and on behalf of, 
the Contractor, the State shall be held harmless by that particular Contractor  for 
100 percent of the amount of any such final federal audit disallowance and 
interest less the amounts already remitted to the State for the disallowed claim. 

 
13. Dun and Bradstreet Universal Numbering System(DUNS) 

 
Notwithstanding Exhibit E. 7. A. 8. definition for vendor, CMAA providers and their 
subcontractors are considered contractors solely for the purposes of U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R. section 200 et seq., and 
specifically, 2 C.F.R. section 200.330). Consequently, as contractors, a DUNS 
number is not required. 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

 
1. Additional Incorporated Exhibits 

 
A.  The following documents and any subsequent updates are not attached, but are 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference. Contractors are 
required to fully comply with the directives in each document incorporated by 
reference herein and each update thereto. These documents may be updated 
periodically by DHCS, as required by program directives or changes in law or 
policy. Unless otherwise indicated, DHCS shall provide the Contractor with 
copies of said documents at or before the agreement is presented to the 
Contractor for review, acceptance, and signature and will require 
acknowledgment of receipt. Periodic updates to the below listed documents will 
be presented to the Contractor under separate cover and acknowledgment of 
receipt will be required. DHCS will maintain on file, all documents referenced 
herein and any subsequent updates. 

 
1) Policy & Procedure Letters (PPL)* 
2) DHCS CMAA/TCM Time Survey Methodology and DHCS CMAA  

Program Operational Plan * 
3) CMAA Invoice Documents* 
4) CMAA Training Materials* 

 
*View at www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/CMAA.aspx 

 
2. Priority of Provisions 

In the event of a conflict between the provisions of Exhibit A and any other 
exhibit of this contract, the CMAA Claiming Plan and federal and state law 
and policy, the CMAA provisions of Exhibit A shall prevail. 

 

3. Amendment Process 
 

Should either party, during the term of this agreement, desire a change or amendment 
to the terms of this agreement, such changes or amendments shall be proposed in 
writing to the other party, who will respond in writing as to whether the proposed 
changes/amendments are accepted or rejected. If accepted and after negotiations are 
concluded, the agreed upon changes shall be made through the State’s official 
agreement amendment process, unless otherwise stipulated within this agreement. 
No amendment will be considered binding on either party until it is formally approved 
by both parties and the Department of General Services (DGS), if DGS approval is 
required. 

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/CMAA.aspx


County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

 
 
4. Cancellation/Termination 

 
A.  This agreement may be cancelled or terminated without cause by either party by 

giving 30 calendar days advance written notice to the other party. Such 
notification shall state the effective date of termination or cancellation and include 
any final performance and/or payment/invoicing instructions/requirements. 

 
B.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination or cancellation from DHCS, Contractor 

shall take immediate steps to stop performance and to cancel or reduce 
subsequent agreement costs. 

 
C.  The Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all allowable costs authorized 

under this agreement, including authorized non-cancelable obligations incurred 
up to the date of termination or cancellation, provided such expenses do not 
exceed the stated maximum amounts payable. 

 
5. Contractor Responsibilities 

 
A.  The Contractor shall comply with 42 United States Code (USC), part 1396 et 

seq., 42 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 400 et seq., and 45 CFR part 
95, California Welfare and Institutions Code, Division 9, part 3, Chapter 7 
(commencing with part 14000) and Chapter 8 (commencing with part 14200), 
and Title 22 California Code of Regulations (CCR), Division 3 (commencing 
with part 50000), all as periodically amended; State issued policy directives; 2 
CFR part 200 et. Seq., as periodically amended. 

 
B. If the Contractor enters into contracts with other organizations to perform CMAA 

in support of the Contractor claiming administrative reimbursement, the 
Contractor shall have any contract to perform administrative activities under the 
auspices of the Medi-Cal Program available for State and/or Federal  review. 

 
C. The Contractor is responsible for the acts or omissions of its employees and/or 

subcontractors. Submission of a falsified CMAA invoice by a Contractor shall 
constitute a breach of contract. Submission of a CMAA invoice for which there is 
no supporting documentation by a Contractor may constitute a breach of 
contract. 

    
D. The conviction of an employee or subcontractor of the Contractor, or of an 

employee of a subcontractor, of any felony or of a misdemeanor involving fraud, 
abuse of any Medi-Cal applicant or beneficiary, or abuse of the Medi-Cal 
Program, shall result in the exclusion of that employee or subcontractor, or 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

employee of a subcontractor, from participation in the Medi-Cal Administrative 
Claiming process. Failure of a Contractor to exclude a convicted individual from 
participation in the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming process shall constitute a 
breach of contract. 

 
E. Exclusion after conviction shall result regardless of any subsequent order under 

Part 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing a person to withdraw his or her plea of 
guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or 
dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment. 

 
F. Suspension or exclusion of an employee or subcontractor, or of an employee of 

a subcontractor, from participation in the Medi-Cal Program, the Medicaid 
Program, or the Medicare Program, shall result in the exclusion of that employee 
or subcontractor, or employee of a subcontractor, from participation in the Medi- 
Cal Administrative Claiming process. Failure of a Contractor to exclude a 
suspended or excluded individual from participation in the Medi-Cal 
Administrative Claiming process shall constitute a breach of contract. 

 
G. Revocation, suspension, or restriction of the license, certificate, or registration of 

any employee, subcontractor, or employee of a subcontractor, shall result in 
exclusion from the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming process, when such license, 
certificate, or registration is required for the performance of Medi-Cal 
administrative activities. Failure of a Contractor to exclude an individual whose 
license, certificate, or registration has been revoked, suspended, or restricted, 
from participation in the Medi-Cal Administrative Claiming process, may 
constitute a breach of contract. 

 
H. LGA budget units that elect to participate in the CMAA and/or TCM programs are 

required to conduct time surveys to account for staff time spent performing Medi- 
Cal and non-Medi-Cal eligible services and activities. The time survey results are 
used in the determination of allowable Medi-Cal costs. The activities of staff 
providing Medi-Cal administration must be documented in accordance with the 
provisions of 42 CFR parts 432.50, 433.32, and 433.34, and 45 CFR parts 74 
and 95, and 2 CFR part 200 et. Seq. 

 
 I. All non-Medi-Cal related activities and direct patient care services shall be time 

surveyed to Other Programs/Activities” or “Direct Patient Care” on the Time 
Survey form, as appropriate. 

 
J. The Contractor shall comply with enabling legislation, regulations, 

administrative claiming process directives, and the PPLs of DHCS Local 
Governmental Financing Division incorporated by reference in Exhibit E, 
Provision 1, which define program specific allowable CMAA. 

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

 
K. The Contractor shall provide to the State, comprehensive Medi-Cal 

Administrative Claiming Plan, in the format specified by the State. The claiming 
plan must be approved by the State and this agreement must be signed by both 
parties prior to the submission of CMAA invoices. 

 
L. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any eligible person because of 

race, religion, political beliefs, color, national or ethnic origin, ancestry, mental or 
physical disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or  sex. 

 
M. The Contractor shall ensure all applicable State and Federal requirements, as 

identified in Exhibit E, Provision 4, are met in performing CMAA under this 
agreement. It is understood and agreed that failure by the Contractor to ensure 
all applicable State and Federal requirements not met in performing CMAA under 
this agreement shall be sufficient cause for the State to deny or recoup payments 
to the Contractor and/or to terminate this agreement. 

 
N. Abide by the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) (Exhibit G), as incorporated 

herein and made part of this agreement by reference. Data released to LGAs is to 
be used solely for the purpose of verifying Medi-Cal eligibility of the beneficiaries. 
The data elements used are listed in attachment A”. 

 
O. The Contractor shall submit a letter of intent to participate in the CMAA Program 

six months prior to the termination of this agreement for the purpose of 
extending the term of the agreement or initiating a new agreement, whichever is 
preferred by DHCS. 

 
P. When an amendment of the contract is necessary because the original projected 

expenditures shortfall the actual expenditures, a request must be submitted to 
DHCS at least 6 months prior to the end of the state fiscal year (SFY) for which 
additional funding is necessary. If this request is not received timely, the contract 
will not be amended to address the insufficient funding and subsequent affected 
invoices will not be paid. 

 
6. State Responsibilities 

 
A.  Review, approve, as appropriate, and process Contractor claims for 

reimbursement of the allowable actual costs of providing administrative activities 
necessary for the proper and efficient administration of the Medi-Cal Program. 
Reimbursement shall be made subsequent to the quarter for which a claim for 
CMAA is made. Any claim that cannot be approved shall be returned to the 
Contractor with a written explanation of the basis for disapproval. 

 
 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

 
B.  Provide the Contractor with a standardized format for the CMAA Invoice and 

CMAA Claiming Plan which will be disseminated through policy directives issued 
by the State. 

 
C.  Review CMAA Claiming Plan and amendment(s) to the CMAA Claiming 

Plan. Any amendment that cannot be approved shall be returned to the 
Contractor with a written explanation of the basis for disapproval. Any 
amendment to the CMAA Claiming Plan shall not require a formal 
amendment to the agreement but may instead be effective via written approval 
of the amended CMAA Claiming Plan signed by DHCS. 

 
D.  Provide program monitoring and oversight including conducting site reviews at 

least once every four years for compliance with state and federal requirements 
and regulations. DHCS will retain ultimate responsibility for program oversight 
and policy interpretation. 

 
E.  Submit approved CMAA Claiming Plans and amendments to the Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) for review and approval if required. 
 

F. Make available to Contractors, training and technical support on proper 
administrative activities to be claimed, identifying costs related to these activities, 
and billing procedures. Training material is to be developed by and/or approved 
by DHCS. 

 
7. Joint Responsibilities 

 
The State and the Contractor hereby agree to comply with all applicable laws 
governing the confidentiality of client information for Medi-Cal clients served by the 
Contractor, or subcontractor, under this agreement. Applicable laws include, but 
are not limited to, 42 USC. part 1396a (a) 7, 42 CFR part 431.300, 45 CFR 
 parts 160, 162, and 164, Welfare and Institutions Code, section 14100.2, and 
22 CCR, section 51009. 

 
8. Audit 

 
A. This provision supersedes Provision #4, entitled “Audit” in General 

Terms & Conditions (GTC 610). View Exhibit C at the following Internet 
site: https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-
Legal-Services- Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language 

 
 
 

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language


County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

 
 

B. Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General 
Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative, 
and employees of the California Department of Justice, and the United 
States CMS, shall have the right to review, access, examine, monitor, audit, 
and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the 
performance of this agreement. Contractor agrees to allow interviews of 
any employees, or staff of any subcontractor, who might reasonably have 
information related to such records by either state and/or federal 
authorities. Contractor agrees to retain all necessary records for a 
minimum period of three (3) years after the end of the quarter in which the 
Contractor receives reimbursement for the expenditures incurred. If an 
audit is in progress, all records relevant to the audit shall be retained until 
the completion of the audit or the final resolution of all audit exceptions, 
deferrals, and/or disallowances, whichever is later, and if litigation has 
been initiated, all necessary records shall be retained until  the final 
resolution of the litigation. The records shall fully disclose the type and 
extent of administrative activities performed by the appropriate staff. The 
Contractor shall furnish such documentation and any other information 
regarding the performance of and payment for CMAA, upon request, to the 
state or federal government. 

 
9.  Definitions 

 
A. The following definitions are applicable to this Contract. 

 
1) “CFDA number” means the number assigned to a federal program in 

the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). 
 

2) “Federal award” means federal financial assistance and federal cost- 
reimbursement contracts that non-federal entities receive directly from 
federal awarding agencies or indirectly from pass-through entities. It does 
not include procurement contracts, under grants or contracts used to buy 
goods or services from vendors. 

 
3) “Federal awarding agency” means the federal agency that provides an 

award directly to the recipient. 
 

4) “Federal program” means all federal awards to a non-federal entity 
assigned a single number in the CDFA. 

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 7 of 7 
 

Exhibit E A1 
Additional Provisions 

 

 

5) “Pass-through entity” means a non-federal entity that provides a 
federal award to a subrecipient to carry out a federal program. 

 
6) “Recipient” means a non-federal entity that expends federal awards 

received directly from a federal awarding agency to carry out a 
federal program. 

 
7) “Subrecipient” means a non-federal entity that expends federal awards 

received from a pass-through entity to carry out a federal program, but 
does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such a program. A 
subrecipient may also be a recipient of other federal awards directly 
from a federal awarding agency. Guidance on distinguishing between a 
subrecipient and a vendor is provided in OMB Circular A-133 

 
8) “Vendor” means a dealer, distributor, merchant, or other seller providing 

goods or services that are required for the conduct of a federal program. 
These goods or services may be for an organization’s own use or for the 
use of beneficiaries of the federal program. Additional guidance on 
distinguishing between a subrecipient and a vendor is provided on OMB 
Circular A-133. 

 
B. The definitions in Provision 9.A, Subparagraph 7, shall be included in all of 

Contractor’s contracts with subrecipients and vendors. 
 

C. Additional definitions applicable to this Contract: 
 

1) “Direct charge” means to report CMAA costs for staff that perform Medi-Cal 
eligible activities either 100 percent of the time or in distinct and documented 
blocks of time. 
 

2)  “Medi-Cal percentage” means for some CMAA, LGAs claim allowable costs 
based on how many members of a group of people are Medi-Cal beneficiaries; 
this number is the Medi-Cal percentage. Costs are discounted (i.e. reduced) by 
the Medi-Cal percentage when the activity is directed toward a group of people 
that is only partly composed of Medi-Cal eligible persons. The Medi- Cal 
percentage is the fraction of a total population (target population) that consists of 
Medi-Cal beneficiaries. The numerator is the number of clients served by the 
claiming unit that are Medi-Cal beneficiaries, and the denominator is the total 
number of clients served by the claiming unit. Discount methods approved by 
DHCS and CMS for calculating the Medi-Cal percentage discount may be 
utilized. 

 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 1 of 10 

1. This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate 
relationship under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) and its implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 Code of 
Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, and as used in this 
Agreement) 

2. The term “Agreement” as used in this document refers to and includes both this 
Business Associate Addendum and the contract to which this Business Associate 
Agreement is attached as an exhibit, if any. 

3. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Business Associate” shall have the 
same meaning as set forth in 45 CFR section 160.103. 

4. The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) intends that Business 
Associate may create, receive, maintain, transmit or aggregate certain 
information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which information 
may constitute Protected Health Information (PHI) and/or confidential information 
protected by Federal and/or state laws. 

4.1 As used in this Agreement and unless otherwise stated, the term “PHI” 
refers to and includes both “PHI” as defined at 45 CFR section 160.103 
and Personal Information (PI) as defined in the Information Practices Act 
(IPA) at California Civil Code section 1798.3(a). PHI includes information 
in any form, including paper, oral, and electronic. 

4.2 As used in this Agreement, the term “confidential information” refers to 
information not otherwise defined as PHI in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, 
but to which state and/or federal privacy and/or security protections apply. 

5. Contractor (however named elsewhere in this Agreement) is the Business 
Associate of DHCS acting on DHCS's behalf and provides services or arranges, 
performs or assists in the performance of functions or activities on behalf of 
DHCS, and may create, receive, maintain, transmit, aggregate, use or disclose 
PHI (collectively, “use or disclose PHI”) in order to fulfill Business Associate’s 
obligations under this Agreement. DHCS and Business Associate are each a 
party to this Agreement and are collectively referred to as the "parties.” 

6. The terms used in this Agreement, but not otherwise defined, shall have the 
same meanings as those terms in HIPAA and/or the IPA. Any reference to 
statutory or regulatory language shall be to such language as in effect or as 
amended. 

7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate 

Except as otherwise indicated in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or 
disclose PHI, inclusive of de-identified data derived from such PHI, only to 
perform functions, activities or services specified in this Agreement on behalf of 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 2 of 10 

DHCS, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate HIPAA or other 
applicable laws if done by DHCS. 

7.1 Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions 

Except as otherwise indicated in this Agreement, Business Associate may 
use and disclose PHI if necessary for the proper management and 
administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal 
responsibilities of the Business Associate. Business Associate may 
disclose PHI for this purpose if the disclosure is required by law, or the 
Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to 
whom the information is disclosed that it will be held confidentially and 
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for 
which it was disclosed to the person. The person shall notify the Business 
Associate of any instances of which the person is aware that the 
confidentiality of the information has been breached, unless such person 
is a treatment provider not acting as a business associate of Business 
Associate. 

8. Compliance with Other Applicable Law 

8.1 To the extent that other state and/or federal laws provide additional, 
stricter and/or more protective (collectively, more protective) privacy 
and/or security protections to PHI or other confidential information covered 
under this Agreement beyond those provided through HIPAA, Business 
Associate agrees: 

8.1.1 To comply with the more protective of the privacy and security 
standards set forth in applicable state or federal laws to the 
extent such standards provide a greater degree of protection 
and security than HIPAA or are otherwise more favorable to the 
individuals whose information is concerned; and 

8.1.2 To treat any violation of such additional and/or more protective 
standards as a breach or security incident, as appropriate, 
pursuant to Section 18. of this Agreement. 

8.2 Examples of laws that provide additional and/or stricter privacy protections 
to certain types of PHI and/or confidential information, as defined in 
Section 4. of this Agreement, include, but are not limited to the Information 
Practices Act, California Civil Code sections 1798-1798.78, Confidentiality 
of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2, Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 5328, and California Health and Safety Code 
section 11845.5. 

8.3 If Business Associate is a Qualified Service Organization (QSO) as 
defined in 42 CFR section 2.11, Business Associate agrees to be bound 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 3 of 10 

by and comply with subdivisions (2)(i) and (2)(ii) under the definition of 
QSO in 42 CFR section 2.11. 

9. Additional Responsibilities of Business Associate 

9.1 Nondisclosure 

9.1.1 Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI or other 
confidential information other than as permitted or required by 
this Agreement or as required by law. 

9.2 Safeguards and Security 

9.2.1 Business Associate shall use safeguards that reasonably and 
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability 
of PHI and other confidential data and comply, where 
applicable, with subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to 
electronic protected health information, to prevent use or 
disclosure of the information other than as provided for by this 
Agreement. Such safeguards shall be based on applicable 
Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) Publication 
199 protection levels. 

9.2.2 Business Associate shall, at a minimum, utilize a National 
Institute of Standards and Technology Special Publication (NIST 
SP) 800-53 compliant security framework when selecting and 
implementing its security controls and shall maintain continuous 
compliance with NIST SP 800-53 as it may be updated from 
time to time. The current version of NIST SP 800-53, Revision 
5, is available online at; updates will be available online through 
the Computer Security Resource Center website. 

9.2.3 Business Associate shall employ FIPS 140-2 validated 
encryption of PHI at rest and in motion unless Business 
Associate determines it is not reasonable and appropriate to do 
so based upon a risk assessment, and equivalent alternative 
measures are in place and documented as such. FIPS 140-2 
validation can be determined online through the Cryptographic 
Module Validation Program Search, with information about the 
Cryptographic Module Validation Program under FIPS 140-2. In 
addition, Business Associate shall maintain, at a minimum, the 
most current industry standards for transmission and storage of 
PHI and other confidential information. 

9.2.4 Business Associate shall apply security patches and upgrades, 
and keep virus software up-to-date, on all systems on which PHI 
and other confidential information may be used. 

https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/sp800
https://csrc.nist.gov/projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/validated-modules/search
https://csrc.nist.gov/projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/validated-modules/search
https://csrc.nist.gov/Projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/fips-140-2


County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 4 of 10 

9.2.5 Business Associate shall ensure that all members of its 
workforce with access to PHI and/or other confidential 
information sign a confidentiality statement prior to access to 
such data. The statement must be renewed annually. 

9.2.6 Business Associate shall identify the security official who is 
responsible for the development and implementation of the 
policies and procedures required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 
C. 

9.3 Business Associate’s Agent 

Business Associate shall ensure that any agents, subcontractors, 
subawardees, vendors or others (collectively, “agents”) that use or 
disclose PHI and/or confidential information on behalf of Business 
Associate agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to 
Business Associate with respect to such PHI and/or confidential 
information.  

10. Mitigation of Harmful Effects 

Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect 
that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI and other 
confidential information in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  

11. Access to PHI 

Business Associate shall make PHI available in accordance with 45 CFR section 
164.524. 

12. Amendment of PHI 

Business Associate shall make PHI available for amendment and incorporate 
any amendments to protected health information in accordance with 45 CFR 
section 164.526. 

13. Accounting for Disclosures 

Business Associate shall make available the information required to provide an 
accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.528. 

14. Compliance with DHCS Obligations 

To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an obligation of DHCS under 45 
CFR Part 164, Subpart E, comply with the requirements of the subpart that apply 
to DHCS in the performance of such obligation. 

15. Access to Practices, Books and Records 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 5 of 10 

Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books, and records relating 
to the use and disclosure of PHI on behalf of DHCS available to DHCS upon 
reasonable request, and to the federal Secretary of Health and Human Services 
for purposes of determining DHCS’ compliance with 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E. 

16. Return or Destroy PHI on Termination; Survival 

At termination of this Agreement, if feasible, Business Associate shall return or 
destroy all PHI and other confidential information received from, or created or 
received by Business Associate on behalf of, DHCS that Business Associate still 
maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall notify DHCS of the 
conditions that make the return or destruction infeasible, and DHCS and 
Business Associate shall determine the terms and conditions under which 
Business Associate may retain the PHI. If such return or destruction is not 
feasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to 
the information and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that 
make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

17. Special Provision for SSA Data 

If Business Associate receives data from or on behalf of DHCS that was verified 
by or provided by the Social Security Administration (SSA data) and is subject to 
an agreement between DHCS and SSA, Business Associate shall provide, upon 
request by DHCS, a list of all employees and agents and employees who have 
access to such data, including employees and agents of its agents, to DHCS.  

18. Breaches and Security Incidents 

Business Associate shall implement reasonable systems for the discovery and 
prompt reporting of any breach or security incident, and take the following steps: 

18.1 Notice to DHCS 

18.1.1 Business Associate shall notify DHCS immediately upon the 
discovery of a suspected breach or security incident that 
involves SSA data. This notification will be provided by email 
upon discovery of the breach. If Business Associate is unable to 
provide notification by email, then Business Associate shall 
provide notice by telephone to DHCS. 
 

18.1.2 Business Associate shall notify DHCS within 24 hours by email 
(or by telephone if Business Associate is unable to email DHCS) 
of the discovery of the following, unless attributable to a 
treatment provider that is not acting as a business associate of 
Business Associate: 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 6 of 10 

18.1.2.1 Unsecured PHI if the PHI is reasonably believed to 
have been accessed or acquired by an unauthorized 
person; 

18.1.2.2 Any suspected security incident which risks 
unauthorized access to PHI and/or other confidential 
information; 

18.1.2.3 Any intrusion or unauthorized access, use or 
disclosure of PHI in violation of this Agreement; or 

18.1.2.4 Potential loss of confidential information affecting this 
Agreement. 

18.1.3 Notice shall be provided to the DHCS Program Contract 
Manager (as applicable), the DHCS Privacy Office, and the 
DHCS Information Security Office (collectively, “DHCS 
Contacts”) using the DHCS Contact Information in Section 18.6. 

Notice shall be made using the current DHCS “Privacy Incident 
Reporting Form” (“PIR Form”; the initial notice of a security 
incident or breach that is submitted is referred to as an “Initial 
PIR Form”) and shall include all information known at the time 
the incident is reported. The form is available online at the 
DHCS Data Privacy webpage. 

Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, 
intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI, 
Business Associate shall take: 

18.1.3.1 Prompt action to mitigate any risks or damages 
involved with the security incident or breach; and 

18.1.3.2 Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable Federal and State law. 

18.2 Investigation 

Business Associate shall immediately investigate such security incident or 
breach. 

18.3 Complete Report 

To provide a complete report of the investigation to the DHCS contacts 
within ten (10) working days of the discovery of the security incident or 
breach. This “Final PIR” must include any applicable additional information 
not included in the Initial Form. The Final PIR Form shall include an 
assessment of all known factors relevant to a determination of whether a 
breach occurred under HIPAA and other applicable federal and state laws. 

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Documents/Privacy-Incident-Report-PIR.pdf


County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 7 of 10 

The report shall also include a full, detailed corrective action plan, 
including its implementation date and information on mitigation measures 
taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or disclosure. If DHCS 
requests information in addition to that requested through the PIR form, 
Business Associate shall make reasonable efforts to provide DHCS with 
such information. A “Supplemental PIR” may be used to submit revised or 
additional information after the Final PIR is submitted. DHCS will review 
and approve or disapprove Business Associate’s determination of whether 
a breach occurred, whether the security incident or breach is reportable to 
the appropriate entities, if individual notifications are required, and 
Business Associate’s corrective action plan. 

18.3.1 If Business Associate does not complete a Final PIR within the 
ten (10) working day timeframe, Business Associate shall 
request approval from DHCS within the ten (10) working day 
timeframe of a new submission timeframe for the Final PIR. 

18.4 Notification of Individuals 

If the cause of a breach is attributable to Business Associate or its agents, 
other than when attributable to a treatment provider that is not acting as a 
business associate of Business Associate, Business Associate shall notify 
individuals accordingly and shall pay all costs of such notifications, as well 
as all costs associated with the breach. The notifications shall comply with 
applicable federal and state law. DHCS shall approve the time, manner 
and content of any such notifications and their review and approval must 
be obtained before the notifications are made. 

18.5 Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches to Entities Other than 
DHCS 

If the cause of a breach of PHI is attributable to Business Associate or its 
agents, other than when attributable to a treatment provider that is not 
acting as a business associate of Business Associate, Business Associate 
is responsible for all required reporting of the breach as required by 
applicable federal and state law. 

18.6 DHCS Contact Information 

To direct communications to the above referenced DHCS staff, the 
Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated here. DHCS reserves the right 
to make changes to the contact information below by giving written notice 
to Business Associate. These changes shall not require an amendment to 
this Agreement. 
 
 
 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 8 of 10 

18.6.1 DHCS Program Contract Manager 

See the Scope of Work exhibit for Program Contract Manager 
information. If this Business Associate Agreement is not 
attached as an exhibit to a contract, contact the DHCS signatory 
to this Agreement. 

18.6.2 DHCS Privacy Office 

Privacy Office 
c/o: Office of HIPAA Compliance 
Department of Health Care Services 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: incidents@dhcs.ca.gov 

Telephone: (916) 445-4646 

18.6.3 DHCS Information Security Office 

Information Security Office 
DHCS Information Security Office 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: incidents@dhcs.ca.gov 

19. Responsibility of DHCS 

DHCS agrees to not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in 
any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA and/or other applicable 
federal and/or state law. 

20. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement 

20.1 From time to time, DHCS may inspect the facilities, systems, books and 
records of Business Associate to monitor compliance with this Agreement. 
Business Associate shall promptly remedy any violation of this Agreement 
and shall certify the same to the DHCS Privacy Officer in writing. Whether 
or how DHCS exercises this provision shall not in any respect relieve 
Business Associate of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement. 

20.2 If Business Associate is the subject of an audit, compliance review, 
investigation or any proceeding that is related to the performance of its 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, or is the subject of any judicial or 
administrative proceeding alleging a violation of HIPAA, Business 
Associate shall promptly notify DHCS unless it is legally prohibited from 
doing so. 

mailto:incidents@dhcs.ca.gov
mailto:incidents@dhcs.ca.gov


County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 9 of 10 

21. Termination 

21.1 Termination for Cause 

Upon DHCS’ knowledge of a violation of this Agreement by Business 
Associate, DHCS may in its discretion: 

21.1.1 Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate 
does not do so within the time specified by DHCS; or 

21.1.2 Terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has violated a 
material term of this Agreement. 

21.2 Judicial or Administrative Proceedings 

DHCS may terminate this Agreement if Business Associate is found to 
have violated HIPAA, or stipulates or consents to any such conclusion, in 
any judicial or administrative proceeding. 

22. Miscellaneous Provisions 

22.1 Disclaimer 

DHCS makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business 
Associate with this Agreement will satisfy Business Associate’s business 
needs or compliance obligations. Business Associate is solely responsible 
for all decisions made by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI and other confidential information. 

22.2 Amendment 

22.2.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is in conflict with current 
or future applicable Federal or State laws is hereby amended to 
conform to the provisions of those laws. Such amendment of 
this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the 
laws necessitating it, and shall be binding on the parties even 
though such amendment may not have been reduced to writing 
and formally agreed upon and executed by the parties. 

22.2.2 Failure by Business Associate to take necessary actions 
required by amendments to this Agreement under Section 
22.2.1 shall constitute a material violation of this Agreement. 

22.3 Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings 

Business Associate shall make itself and its employees and agents 
available to DHCS at no cost to DHCS to testify as witnesses, or 
otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

 Exhibit H 
Business Associate Addendum 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 10 of 10 

commenced against DHCS, its directors, officers and/or employees based 
upon claimed violation of HIPAA, which involve inactions or actions by the 
Business Associate. 

22.4 No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall confer, upon any third 
person any rights or remedies whatsoever. 

22.5 Interpretation 

The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly 
as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA and other applicable 
laws. 

22.6 No Waiver of Obligations 

No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on 
any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of 
any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 
obligation, on any other occasion. 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 

 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

Business Associate Addendum 
 
 

Exhibit H, Attachment A 
Data Files 

 
 

The following data files will be provided pursuant to this Agreement: 
 
 
Local Governmental Agency (LGA) 

 

Each LGA will receive a list of beneficiaries who received County-Based Medi-Cal 
Administrative Activities (CMAA) from the LGA. The list may provide the following 
information, as necessary, for each beneficiary who received CMAA. 

 
1. Social Security Number 
2. Last Name 
3. First Name 
4. Middle Initial 
5. Date Of Birth 
6. Match Individual 
7. Eligibility 
8. Month of Eligibility 
9. Currently a Medi-Cal beneficiary 
10. Fee for Service or Managed Care beneficiary 
11. Managed Care Organization (MCO) Name (Most recent MCO 

that beneficiary is/was enrolled in) 
12. Alternate Format Selection 



County of Inyo 
20-10008 A01 

Page 3 of 3 
 

STD 213A Continued 

Item #4 

IV.  Paragraph 4 (incorporated exhibits) on the face of the original STD 213 is amended to add 
the following revised exhibits and add new exhibits: 

Exhibit A A1 – Scope of Work     (9 pages) 

Exhibit B A1 – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions      (9 pages) 

Exhibit E A1 – Additional Provisions     (7 pages) 

Exhibit H – HIPAA Business Associate Addendum     (10 pages) 

Exhibit H, Attachment A – Data Files     (1 page) 
 

All references to Exhibit A – Scope of Work in any exhibit incorporated into this 
agreement shall herein after be deemed to read Exhibit A A1 – Scope of Work. Exhibit A – 
Scope of Work is hereby replaced in its entirety by the attached revised exhibit.  
 
All references to Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions in any exhibit 
incorporated into this agreement shall herein after be deemed to read Exhibit B A1 – 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions. Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
is hereby replaced in its entirety by the attached revised exhibit.  
 
All references to Exhibit E – Additional Provisions in any exhibit incorporated into this 
agreement shall herein after be deemed to read Exhibit E A1 – Additional Provisions. 
Exhibit E – Additional Provisions is hereby replaced in its entirety by the attached revised 
exhibit.  
 
All references to Exhibit G – HIPAA Business Associate Addendum in any exhibit 
incorporated into this agreement shall herein after be deemed to read Exhibit H – HIPAA 
Business Associate Addendum. Exhibit G - HIPAA Business Associate Addendum is hereby 
replaced in its entirety by the attached revised exhibit.  
 

V. Provision 4 (incorporated exhibits) on the face of the original STD 213 is amended to add 
the following revised language: 

 
4. Exhibit D(F) – Special Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this agreement. 

Notwithstanding Provision 4.g., 15, 18, 23, 26, and 30 which does not apply to this 
agreement)     (27 pages) 

 
VI. All other terms and conditions shall remain the same. 



Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Tyler Davis
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of contract with the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its Davis Campus 
University Extension, for training services in amount not to exceed $118,575.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of lnyo and the Regents of the University of California, 
on behalf of its Davis Campus University Extension, for training services in amount not to exceed $118,575.00 for 
the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's adoption of a FY 2022/23 budget; 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
lnyo County is part of a training consortium made up of approximately forty small and medium sized counties. 
The consortium pools State Social Services training funds and has a long-standing relationship with UC Davis 
Extension to develop and provide targeted training to address the needs of Social Services employees in those 
counties. UC Davis maintains evidence-based practice research, as well as the most current federal and state 
laws and regulations to ensure their training programs are relevant, high quality, and up to date. The vast 
majority of these trainings are provided on-site at one of our local facilities, thus reducing travel costs and time 
away from the office for employees. This year's contract will provide 30 units (days) of on-site training throughout 
the fiscal year. This will provide for continued training related to not only our technical Social Services program 
needs, but also related to professional employee development, management and supervision development and 
project management, as well as increase our training opportunities for local resource families, formerly referred to 
as foster parents. We coordinate and mutually share training when feasible, with Mono County Social Services, 
as well as invite other lnyo County departments to any relevant training.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The alternative would be not to enter into this training arrangement, which supplies on-site training at no cost to 
the County General Fund. This contract allows our associates to receive on-going, specialized training without 
spending taxpayer's dollars on travel expenses.

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
We routinely invite others to the trainings where appropriate: Additional Health and Human Services staff, 
community partners, and other County departments (past trainings have included staff from Probation, Public 
Works and Child Support).
 
FINANCING:
State and Federal funding and Social Services Realignment. This expense will be budgeted in Social Services 
(055800) in Professional Services (5265). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Training Services Agreement
 
APPROVALS:
Tyler Davis Created/Initiated - 5/4/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/5/2022
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/5/2022
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/6/2022
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 5/10/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/10/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/10/2022
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/10/2022



UCD #A_______ 
Page 1 of 9 

UC Davis Agreement #A_____ 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 

TRAINING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(INYO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between THE REGENTS OF 
THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA (“University”), on behalf of its Davis Campus Continuing and 
Professional Education (the “CPE”) and INYO COUNTY HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
(“User”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, The CPE has been established and is maintained to support University's pursuit of its 
constitutional objectives of instruction, research, and public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, University is a public education institution accredited by the Western Association of 
Schools and Colleges, and has developed a training program (“Program”) and; 
 
WHEREAS, User wishes to obtain major skills training courses for User’s personnel who provide 
related services in fulfillment of their goals and objectives (“Exhibit B”, if applicable) 
NOW, THEREFORE, University shall furnish the following services to User. 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Services:  University shall present the program (“Program”) as more fully described in “Exhibit 
A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein (collectively, the “Services”). Additional work shall 
be performed only if authorized in advance by written amendment to this Agreement executed by 
both parties.  To the extent that any provision of Exhibit A is inconsistent with this Agreement, 
this Agreement shall take precedence.   
 

a. Limit on attendance:  No more than thirty (30) persons per course session may attend 
without the prior written approval of the University. 
 

b. Reschedule/cancel of class:  If User reschedules or cancels any training class within ten 
(10) calendar days of the Program start date, User shall pay for all expenses incurred up 
to the date on which University receives notice of the reschedule or cancellation. 

 
2. Term:  The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2022 and continue through June 30, 

2023.  All courses must be completed by June 30, 2023. 
 

3. Payment:  User shall pay University for Service as set forth in “Exhibit A”, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  CPE will provide User thirty (30) days’ written notice of any proposed rate 
change and an option to amend or terminate the Agreement.  User shall pay for Services within 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 2 of 9 

thirty (30) days of User’s receipt of University’s invoice.  CPE reserves the right to suspend 
performance of Services if User fails to make payment in full within sixty (60) days. 

 
4. Rules, Regulations, Policies and Guidelines:  When on University property, User agrees to 

comply with all federal, state and local laws and University policies, as well as guidelines from 
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, state, county and other local state public health 
officials and University health and wellness standards, which may change from time-to-time 
with little or no notice.  User is responsible for ensuring that its directors, officers, agents, 
employees, and participants who will participate in the Services at University property, comply 
with all applicable requirements. 
 

5. Indemnification:  The parties agree to defend, indemnify and hold one another harmless from 
and against any and all liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims for injury or damages 
arising from the performance of this Agreement, but only in proportion to and to the extent such 
liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused by or result 
from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its officers, agents, 
students, or employees. 

 
6. Insurance:  University is self-insured under California law.  University shall maintain this 

program of self-insurance throughout the term of this Agreement with retentions as follows: 
 

a. General Liability (and professional liability) coverage with a per occurrence limit of a 
minimum of one million dollars ($1,000,000). 
 

b. Auto Liability including non-owned automobiles, with a minimums as follows: 
 

i. Bodily injury 
1. Per person    $1,000,000 
2. Per accident    $1,000,000 

ii. Property damage    $1,000,000 
 

c. Workers Compensation insurance in accordance with California state law. 
 

d. Employer’s Liability coverage in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000). 
 

e. If requested by User in writing University shall provide, upon receipt of a fully-executed 
Agreement, a Certificate of Self-Insurance naming User, its officers, agents, and 
employees, individually and collectively as additional insured (except for Worker's 
Compensation Insurance) for services provided under this Agreement. 
 

f. Coverage shall apply as primary insurance and any other insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the User, its officers, agents, and employees should be excess only.  This 
insurance shall not be canceled or changed without a minimum of thirty (30) days 
advance, written notice given to User. 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 3 of 9 

 
g. Upon University’s request, User shall provide University written evidence of User’s 

insurance coverage relevant to the presence or activity of User, its officers, agents, and 
employees while in, on or about University property or in connection with this 
Agreement.  In the event User’s coverage is not acceptable to University, University shall 
have the right to immediately suspend Services.  If User fails to provide acceptable 
insurance within ten (10) days after University’s written notice, University may terminate 
this Agreement. 

 
7. Non-Liability of University: 

 
a. Consequential Damages:  University shall not be liable for any loss of profits, claims 

against User by any third party, or consequential damages. 
 

b. Delay/Desired Result:  University shall incur no liability to User or to any third party for 
any loss, cost, claim or damage, either direct or consequential, arising from University's 
delay in performance or failure to perform Services, or failure to achieve a desired result. 

 
c. Liability Limitation:  University’s liability for damages shall not exceed the total of all 

charges paid by User.   
 

8. Confidential Information:  During the course of this Agreement, User may provide University 
with information, data, or material that it regards as proprietary or confidential.  Such 
information shall be marked or stamped “CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION”.  If 
communicated orally to University, User shall submit confirmation in writing within five (5) 
days of such disclosure.  Notwithstanding, the foregoing, University agrees to safeguard names 
and addresses of individuals received through the performance of this Agreement in accordance 
with Welfare and Institution Code Section 10850.   

 
a. University’s Obligation:  University shall treat User’s Confidential Information in the 

same manner as University treats its own similar information.  Upon User’s written 
request, University shall use reasonable means to protect User’s Confidential Information 
by means not normally employed by University, however, University shall have no 
obligation to comply with any such request by User. Should such protection occur, any 
related costs shall be borne by User.  University shall not be liable for inadvertent 
disclosure of Confidential Information provided University has exercised reasonable care. 

 
b. Exempt Information:  Confidential Information does not include information that is (i) 

not exempt from disclosure under the California Public Records Act (Calif. Gov. Code 
sec. 6250 et seq.); (ii) otherwise available to the public; (iii) rightfully received from a 
third party not in breach of an obligation of confidentiality; (iv) independently developed 
by University; (v) previously known to University; or (vi) produced in compliance with a 
court order or when required by law.  University shall give reasonable notice to User that 
Confidential Information is being sought by a third party, to afford User an opportunity to 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 4 of 9 

limit or prevent disclosure.  Any defense against disclosure shall be at User’s sole 
initiative, risk, cost, and expense.  University is not obligated to participate in any defense 
against such request for disclosure.  Upon User’s request, University agrees to cease 
using all Confidential Information and to return it promptly to User. 

 
c. Time Limitation:  University shall not divulge User’s Confidential Information for a 

period of three (3) years following termination of this Agreement, or earlier if User 
makes or allows its Confidential Information to become public knowledge, or by 
communicating such Confidential Information to a party not bound by an obligation of 
confidentiality. 
 

d. Disposition of Confidential Information:  Upon completion of Services or termination of 
this Agreement, by User’s written request, University shall return any Confidential 
Information.  Absent such request, CPE shall destroy or dispose of it according to its 
established procedures. 

 
9. Disclaimer of Warranty:  UNIVERSITY MAKES NO WARRANTY AS TO RESULTS TO BE 

OBTAINED BY USER FROM THE USE OF ANY SERVICES AND/OR FACILITIES 
PROVIDED BY UNIVERSITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.  THERE ARE NO EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE.  

 
10. University's Right to Use Data:  University shall have the unrestricted right to use for its own 

purposes, including publication, any data or information which it may develop in connection 
with or as a result of performing the Services described in Exhibit A.   

 
11. Ownership of Workshop Deliverables:  University shall own and retain all rights, including 

copyrights, in all course materials and other works prepared by University under this Agreement. 
 

12. Use of University's Name:  User shall not use the name or mark of University in any form or 
manner in advertisements, reports, or other information released to the public without the prior 
written approval of University. 

 
13. Termination:  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving the other party 

thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice of such action. 
 

14. Force Majeure:  Neither party shall be liable for delays due to causes beyond the party’s control, 
including, but not limited to, acts of God, war, public enemy, civil disturbances, earthquakes, 
fires, floods, epidemics, pandemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, rolling 
blackouts, terrorist threats or actions on University property and unusually severe weather, 
performance shall be excused for a period commensurate with the period of impossibility.   
 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 5 of 9 

University is a land-grant institution with a mission of teaching, research, public service and 
patient care, and it is required to recover the full cost of providing services to non-University 
entities such as User, and as a non-profit entity, makes no profit.  Therefore, University does not 
have reserves from which to pay for expenditures made on behalf of User for which it is not 
reimbursed.  In the event of a force majeure, User shall be responsible for payment of all 
expenses incurred to the point at which University gives or receives notice of the impossibility.  
If the impossibility becomes permanent, University will make best efforts to cancel or mitigate 
all outstanding financial commitments, and User shall be responsible for the cost of any 
remaining obligations. 
 

15. Federal Contract Compliance:  If this Agreement is funded wholly or in part with by a grant or 
contract from an agency of the federal government, University shall comply with all terms and 
conditions applicable to recipients of such funds and their contractors. 
 

16. Conflict of Interest:  User affirms that, to the best of User’s knowledge, no University employee 
who has participated in University’s decision-making concerning this Agreement has an 
“economic interest” in this Agreement or User.  A University employee’s “economic interest” 
means: 
 

a. An investment worth $2,000 or more in User or its affiliate;   
 

b. A position as director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or manager of User or its 
affiliate;  
 

c. Receipt during the past 12 months of $500 in income or $440 in gifts from User or its 
affiliate; or 
 

d. A personal financial benefit from this Agreement in the amount of $250 or more.  
 

In the event of a change in these economic interests, User shall provide written notice to 
University within thirty (30) days after such change, noting such changes.  User shall not be 
in a reporting relationship to a University employee who is a near relative, nor shall a near 
relative be in a decision-making position with respect to User. 
 

17. Tobacco-free Campus:  University is a tobacco-free institution.  Use of cigarettes, cigars, oral 
tobacco, electronic cigarettes and all other tobacco products is prohibited on all University 
owned or leased sites. 
 

18. Equal Opportunity Affirmative Action:  University will abide by the requirements set forth in 
Executive Orders 11246 and 11375.  Where applicable, University will abide by 41 CFR §§ 60-
1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a), incorporated by reference with this statement: “This 
contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-
300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a).  These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified 
individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 6 of 9 

prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.  Moreover, these regulations require 
that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and 
advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.”  With 
respect to activities occurring in the State of California, University agrees to adhere to the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act.  University will provide User on request a 
breakdown of its labor force by groups as specified by University, and will discuss with 
University its policies and practices relating to its affirmative action programs.  University will 
not maintain or provide facilities for employees at any establishment under its control that are 
segregated on a basis prohibited by federal law.  Separate or single-user restrooms and necessary 
dressing or sleeping areas must be provided, however, to ensure privacy. 
 

19. CANRA:  University represents and warrants that it complies with the California Child Abuse 
and Neglect Reporting Act (“CANRA”).  Failure to comply with CANRA will constitute a 
material breach of the Agreement and be grounds for termination. 
 

20. Notices:  Notices shall be directed to the appropriate parties at the following addresses: 
     

 
ADDITIONAL UNIVERSITY ADDITIONAL USER 
Human Services Melissa Best Baker 
Custom Training and Services Senior Management Analyst 
Continuing & Professional Education Inyo County 
University of California, Davis Health and Human Services 
463 California Avenue PO Drawer H    
Davis, CA 95616 Independence, CA 93526 
E-mail:   
UCDE-CTS@ou.ad3.ucdavis.edu  

E-mail:  mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
21. Attorneys’ Fees:  If any action at law or equity is brought to enforce or interpret the terms of this 

Agreement, including collection of delinquent payment, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to 
which it may be entitled.  

 

UNIVERSITY USER 
Jennifer Lowery Tyler Davis 
Program Analyst Administrative Secretary II 
Continuing & Professional Education Inyo County 
University of California, Davis Health and Human Services 
463 California Avenue 1360 N Main Street 
Davis, CA 95616 Bishop, CA 93514 
E-mail:  jndavis@ucdavis.edu E-mail:  tdavis@inyocounty.us 



 
CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 

Control #C000114271 
 
 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 7 of 9 

22. Relationship of the Parties:  The parties to this Agreement shall be and remain at all times 
independent contractors, neither being the employee, agent, representative, or User of the other 
in their relationship under this Agreement. 

 
23. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be construed pursuant to California law. 

 
24. Amendment:  No change in any term or condition of this Agreement shall become effective 

unless by amendment in writing signed by both parties. 
 

25. Severability:  If a provision of this Agreement becomes, or is determined to be, illegal, invalid, 
or unenforceable, that will not affect the legality, validity, or enforceability of any other 
provision of the Agreement or of any portion of the invalidated provision that remains legal, 
valid, or enforceable. 

 
26. Entire Agreement:  The terms of User’s addendum or purchase order shall have no effect on the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement.  This Agreement contains all of the terms and conditions 
applicable to the Services provided hereunder and constitutes the entire understanding of the 
parties respecting the subject matter hereof, superseding any prior understanding or Agreement 
between them, written or oral, regarding the same subject matter. 

 
 
AGREED AND ACCEPTED:   
 
 
THE REGENTS OF THE    INYO COUNTY 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA   HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
 
 
By:         By:        
        (authorized signatory)  
         
       Print Name:       
 UC Davis         
 
Date:         Date:        
 



 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 8 of 9 

CPE Agreement #GENT-2022-11 
Control #C000114271 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
TRAINING PROGRAM 

 
1. 30.00    Unit(s) of training in the subject areas selected by the agency from the UC Davis 

Continuing and Professional Education curriculum. 
 
2. University will provide the following: 

 
a. Needs assessment, curriculum planning and implementation. 
b. Instructional and student services. 
c. Instructional materials. 
d. Evaluation and feedback. 
e. Continuing education credit. 
f. Off-site training site and audio-visual equipment when on-site facility and 

equipment are not available.  (Extra training units may be charged.) 
g. Food and non-alcoholic beverages when requested by the User in writing.  (Extra 

training units may be charged.) 
h. Any other items when requested by the User in writing and approved by 

University.  (Extra training units may be charged.) 
i. Per client request, 7% cost share shall be applied only to actual expenses incurred 

under this contract.   
 
3. User will provide the following: 

 
a. Training facility and audio-visual equipment. 
b. On-site coordination of training.  

 
 

Training Units CHS Daily Rate   
30.00 $ 4,250.00 $127,500.00 Total Contract Amount 

  ($8,925.00) Less CPE 7% Cost Share 
  $118,575.00 Total Client Contract Share 

 
 
 



 

UCD #A_______ 
Page 9 of 9 

Exhibit B 
 

INSERT EXHIBIT B INFORMATION HERE, IF THERE IS NO EXHIBIT B, PLEASE 
STATE “N/A” ON THIS EXHIBIT.   
 
N/A 



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment 6 - Hydrodynamics 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request the Board approve Amendment No. 6 to the contract between County of Inyo and the Hydrodynamics 
Group (Hydrodynamics) to amend Section 2 – Term  of the agreement to be July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget; and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Inyo County has been involved as an Affected Unit of Local Government (AULG) throughout the Yucca Mountain 
high-level radioactive waste repository proceedings. The Hydrodynamics Group LLC has provided consistent and 
high quality consulting services for the evaluation and monitoring of groundwater regarding the proposed Yucca 
Mountain repository during this time.
The County had the Hydrodynamics Group LLC under contract from 1997-2013 for professional services 
regarding groundwater and the proposed Yucca Mountain repository, but let it lapse when the licensing 
proceedings were halted by the NRC. On June 24, 2014 the County entered into a new sole-source Contract with 
Hydrodynamics to provide technical expertise in the review and evaluation of the Department of Energy’s (DOE) 
Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement (SEIS)  with regard to technical reports, data and information on 
groundwater impacts of the proposed Yucca Mountain repository and any updates to the 2009 report titled: 
Analysis of Post Closure Groundwater Impacts for a Geologic Repository for the Disposal of Spent Nuclear Fuel 
and High-Level Radioactive Waste at Yucca Mountain, Nye County, Nevada. Once this work was completed, this 
contract also lapsed due to inactivity. The County entered into a new sole-source Contract with Hydrodynamics 
on July 1, 2016 for further review of the SEIS. The contract was amended on June 27, 2017 extending the time of 
the contract to end on June 30, 2018; on June 5, 2018 to extend it to June 30, 2019; and on June 11, 2019 to 
extend to June 30, 2020; and on June 15, 2021 to extend to June 30, 2022. The contract with Hydrodynamics is 
now proposed to be amended to extend the time of the contract to end on June 30, 2023.
Although presently there is not a lot of active interest in storing high-level radioactive waste at Yucca Mountain, 
there is always the possibility of the licensing proceedings to restart. It would be in the County’s best interest to 
keep its consultants under contract in case the licensing proceedings or other activities related to Yucca 
Mountain are to begin again. Funding for Yucca Mountain oversight by the County is funded through money the 
County received from the Department of Energy.

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the amendment. This is not recommended as Hydrodynamics’ history and 
expertise are valuable assets for the County to utilize in reviewing and commenting on activities related to Yucca 
Mountain.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
U.S. Department of Energy
 
FINANCING:
Projects and oversight of the proposed Yucca Mountain repository are paid with funding through the Department 
of Energy, and fund balance is available to offset these costs.  These amendments do not affect the Yucca 
Mountain Oversight Budget (620605).  If additional funding is required in the future for this work, staff will propose 
a budget amendment.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment 6
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 5/10/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/10/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/11/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/11/2022
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 5/11/2022







































County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Contract between the Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission and the County of Inyo to provide 
staff services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request the Board of Request Board approve the contract between Inyo Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo) and Inyo County for the provision of  staff services in an amount not to exceed 19,313.46 for the period 
of July 1, 2022 through June 30,2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo LAFCO contracts with the Inyo County Planning Department for the services of LAFCO Executive 
Officer and support staff.  The Commission also contracts with the Inyo County Office of County Counsel for legal 
services.  A single contract between Inyo LAFCO and the County of Inyo Planning Department covers both staff 
and counsel services. Inyo LAFCO has budgeted $19,313.46 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 for staff and 
counsel services.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the contract and not direct staff to provide services to Inyo LAFCO as outlined in 
the contract.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop
 
FINANCING:
The Inyo LAFCO FY 2022-2023 Final Budget proposes both the City of Bishop and Inyo County contribute 
$15,000 in funding for the Inyo LAFCO FY 2022-2023 Budget. Funds are expended through the LAFCO Budget 
(451001), Professional Services & Fees (5265).  Revenues are realized in the Planning Budget (023800) and the 
County Counsel Budget (010700), LAFCO Fees Revenue Code (4817).

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. LAFCo Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2022
Cathreen Richards Approved - 6/1/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022























County of Inyo

Probation
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Jeffrey Thomson
 
SUBJECT:  Approve reimbursement using AB109 monies to Bishop Police Department
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve reimbursement using AB109 monies to Bishop Police Department in the amount of 
$42,189.91 for the purchase of in-car Mobile Data Computers (MDC).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The police department explored options to improve communication between officers in the field and the 
dispatcher. To mitigate communication challenges, the police department has installed Mobile Data Computers 
(MDC) in each patrol vehicle. They explored various options and determined that the tablet platform was the 
most feasible and economical for the organization and requirements of the project.

Regularly, officers request information from the dispatcher regarding people contacted and subjects arrested. 
Often, officers contact individuals on parole, probation, PRCS, and supervised release; terms of their release 
from custody regulate these individuals.

When contacting individuals with various terms, patrol officers require the information to investigate and navigate 
an incident successfully. To become compliant with the Department of Justice (DOJ) guidelines and ensure the 
confidentiality of an individual, certain information must be transmitted through secure means; the MDC would 
meet these needs. The pertinent information would be sent from the dispatcher to the officer through the in-car 
terminal.

This project includes the tablet, mounting hardware, software, data plan, and related taxes.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
In FY 20-21, the Executive Committee of the Inyo County Community Corrections Partnership updated the Inyo 
County criminal justice plan (CCP Plan) to include certain recommendations. One of the recommendations was 
to upgrade the current communications systems used by all justice partners to a more sustainable, reliable, and 
efficient solution. In April 2021, the Bishop Police Department submitted a proposal and request to use AB109 
funds to upgrade their communications equipment. The Executive Committee of the CCP approved the request 
contingent upon the Board of Supervisors' approval of the FY 21-22 budget. In FY 21-22, AB 109 monies were 
budgeted for the upgrade of communications equipment for the Sheriff's Office, Health and Human Services, 
Probation, and for the Bishop Police Department. These funds were approved by your board in the FY 21-22 
County Budget.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Bishop Police Department
 
FINANCING:
In September 2021 this Board approved the initial request of $100,000 to Bishop Police Department for FY21-22 
projected communications upgrade and improvement projects. The monies have been budgeted in Criminal 
Justice Realignment Budget - 023002, in Other Agency Contribution - 5539 using AB109 monies.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Mobile Data Memo 5-4-22
2. MDC Invoice
 
APPROVALS:
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 5/5/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/5/2022
Krystal Leonard Approved - 5/9/2022
Jeffrey Thomson Approved - 5/9/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/9/2022
Krystal Leonard Approved - 5/9/2022
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 5/9/2022



Bishop Police Department
Interoffice Memorandum

Date: April 27, 2022

To: Inyo County Auditor - Controller

From: J. Ellsworth, Lieutenant

Subject: Reimbursement to Bishop Police Department using AB109 Monies

The Bishop Police Department purchased in-car Mobile Data Computers (MDC) 
from CDW Government to access information related to persons contacted while 
investigating incidents within the city. 

The City of Bishop pays taxes quarterly. 

The total amount paid to CDW Government is as follows:

Equipment and Labor - $39,227.93

Taxes - $2,961.98

Grand Total: $42,189.91

AB109 monies will be reimbursing the police department for the purchase.

Richard Standridge
Chief of Police

















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Elsa Fitch
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No 2022-2575, 2021 Maintained Mileage Certification
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve Resolution No. 2022-18, titled, “Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of 
Inyo, State of California, Annual Certification of the 2021 Maintained Mileage Log," and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign; and B) authorize the Department of Public Works to file the Resolution with the District 9 
Office of the State of California Department of Transportation.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Section 2121 of the Streets and Highways Code stipulates that in May of each year, each County shall submit to 
the California Department of Transportation Districts any additions or exclusions to its mileage log of maintained 
County highways, specifying the termini and mileage of each route added or excluded from its County Maintained 
Mileage Log. The submittal is to be in the form of a Resolution by the Board of Supervisors. The reported 
maintained mileage is for the previous calendar year. The updates required for the 2021 Maintained Mileage 
Certification are shown in Exhibit A to the Resolution. There are no changes to the maintained mileage log for the 
2021 calendar year and only minor revisions to the record of the roads.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
Annual recertification of Inyo County Maintained Mileage
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not approve the Resolution certifying the additions and deletions from the Inyo County 
Maintained Mileage Log, and could direct the Public Works Department to modify the list as deemed appropriate.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Exhibit A - Maintained Mileage Certification 2022



Agenda Request 
Page 2

2. Maintained Mileage 2022
3. Resolution No. 2022-18
 
APPROVALS:
Elsa Fitch Created/Initiated - 5/26/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/26/2022
Elsa Fitch Approved - 5/26/2022
John Pinckney Approved - 5/26/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/26/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/27/2022
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/28/2022



                                                          Exhibit A

1. Relinquishment to County from State: None

2. Additions (new roads): 

Road Name Road Number
New 
Mileage Record Document

None

3. Additions (extensions): None

4. Exclusions (abandonment of portion): None

5. Exclusions/Addition (road name changes): 

Road Name Road 
Number

Corrected Road 
Name

Corrected 
Road 

Number

New 
Mileage Record Document

None

 



2019 Certification (Submitted 2020)
1001 Rock Creek Rd. Roads End Mono County  Li
1002 BOUNDARY ROAD 1003  Round Val 1007  Old Sherw
1003 ROUND VALLEY ROAD - NORTH 1006  Birchim L 1010  South Rou
1004 RANGER STATION ROAD Roads End 1003  Round Val
1005 MILL CREEK ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
1006 BIRCHIM LANE Hwy 395 South 1003  North Rou
1007 OLD SHERWIN GRADE ROAD Mono County - P 1009  Pine Cree
1008 VANADIUM RANCH ROAD 1003  Round Val 1009  Pine Cree
1009 PINE CREEK ROAD Roads End 1009  Pine Cree
1010 ROUND VALLEY ROAD - SOUTH 1013  Sawmill R 1003  Round Val
1011 ROUND VALLEY TUNGSTEN ROAD Roads End 1010  Round Val
1012 GORGE ROAD Hwy 395 1007  Old Sherw
1013 SAWMILL ROAD Hwy 395 South 1016  Ed Powers
1014 TUNGSTEN CITY ROAD Roads End 1016  Ed Powers
1015 ABELOR ROAD Roads End 1013  Sawmill R
1016 ED POWERS ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 168
1017 RED HILL ROAD Hwy 168 1016  Ed Powers
1018 VALLEY WEST CIRCLE Roads End 1023  Sunrise D
1019 PLANT FIVE ROAD Roads End 2085  Bishop Cr
1020 BUTTERMILK ROAD Roads End Hwy 168
1021 SAND CANYON ROAD 2085  Bishop Cr 8012  Non Count
1022 PLEASANT VALLEY DAM ROAD 1038  Chalk Blu Hwy 395
1023 SUNRISE DRIVE Roads End 1033  Barlow La
1024 OTEY ROAD Roads End 1017  Red Hill
1025 MUMY LANE 1028  Underwood Hwy 168
1026 SHEPARD LANE Roads End Hwy 168
1027 REATA ROAD 1028  Underwood Hwy 168
1028 UNDERWOOD LANE 1033  Barlow La 1027  Reata Roa
1029 MCLAREN LANE 1051  Mountian Hwy 168
1030 BROCKMAN LANE 1032  Dixon Lan Hwy 168
1031 RIVERSIDE ROAD Hwy 6 1030  Brockman
1032 DIXON LANE Hwy 6 1030  Brockman
1033 BARLOW LANE 1106  Saniger L 1028  Underwood
1034 BIR ROAD Roads End 1033  Barlow La
1035 SCHOBER LANE 1033  Barlow La 2034  Sunland D
1036 FIVE BRIDGES ROAD Hwy 6 1037  Jean Blan
1037 JEAN BLANC ROAD 1036  Five Brid 1038  Chalk Blu
1038 CHALK BLUFF ROAD 1037  Jean Blan 1022  Pleasant
1039 CASA DIABLO Mono County 1038  Chalk Blu
1040 FISH SLOUGH ROAD Mono County 1037  Jean Blan
1041 NORTH INYO Roads End Hwy 6
1042 RUDOLPH ROAD Roads End Mono County
1043 JOE SMITH ROAD 1037  Jean Blan 1044  Silver Ca
1044 SILVER CANYON ROAD Hwy 6 1045  Laws Pole
1045 LAWS POLETA ROAD 2045  Poleta La 1044  Silver Ca
1046 WYMAN CREEK ROAD 1083  White Mou Hwy 168
1047 OASIS ROAD 8039  Non Count Hwy 168
1048 EUREKA VALLEY ROAD 2048  Eureka Va 8039  Non Count 8.40



1049 PLANT SIX ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 0.20
1050 HIGHLAND DRIVE Roads End 1033  Barlow La 0.46
1051 MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD - SOUTH 1052  Ranch Roa 1029  McLaren L 0.16
1052 RANCH ROAD 1055  Mt. View 1053  Mt. Tom R 0.45
1053 MOUNT TOM ROAD Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.34
1054 VISTA ROAD Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.23
1055 MOUNT VIEW ROAD - NORTH Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.21
1056 SUNSET DRIVE Roads End 1033  Barlow La 0.43
1058 CHURCHILL MINE ROAD Roads End 1037  Jean Blan 1.32
1059 SEE VEE LANE Hwy 395 Hwy 168 1.00
1060 TU SU LANE Hwy 395 Hwy 168 1.00
1061 PA HA LANE Hwy 395 Roads End 1.49
1062 DIAZ LANE 1059  See Vee L 1030  Brockman 1.00
1063 PA ME LANE 1078  Indian Cr Hwy 168 0.49
1064 FLYNN ROAD Roads End 1045  Laws Pole 1.37
1065 STEWART ROAD Roads End 1064  Flynn Roa 0.54
1066 COYOTE VALLEY ROAD Roads End 1028  Underwood 4.09
1067 MEADOW LANE 1071  Pinion Ro Hwy 168 0.24
1068 MESQUITE ROAD 1069 Birch St, 1072  Laurel Ro 0.41
1069 BIRCH STREET - EAST 1063  Pa Me Lan 1082  Grandview 0.08
1070 CEDAR STREET - EAST 1068  Mesquite 1082  Grandview 0.05
1071 PINON ROAD Roads End 1070  Cedar Str 0.09
1072 LAUREL ROAD 1082  Grandview 1071  Pinion Ro 0.11
1073 RANCH VIEW LANE Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.06
1074 LONGVIEW DRIVE Roads End 1033  Barlow La 0.50
1075 WATTERSON ROAD Roads End 1027  Reata Roa 0.31
1076 SIERRA VISTA WAY Roads End 1033  Barlow La 0.50
1077 ROCKING K ROAD Roads End 1016  Ed Powers 0.91
1078 INDIAN CREEK DRIVE Roads End 1063  Pa Me Lan 0.32
1079 TUMBLEWEED ROAD - NORTH 1070  Cedar Str Roads End 0.04
1080 MORNINGSIDE DRIVE Roads End 1063  Pa Me Lan 0.24
1081 WILDROSE LANE 1069  Birch Str 1068  Mesquite 0.29
1082 GRANDVIEW DRIVE Hwy 168 1068  Mesquite 0.43
1083 WHITE MOUNTAIN ROAD Mono County 2083  White Mou 6.62
1084 LAZY A DRIVE 1086  Bar M. La Hwy 395 0.45
1085 IRENE WAY 1116  Carol Lan 1057  Irene Str 0.05
1086 BAR M LANE Roads End 1091  Rocking W 0.16
1087 BAR L LANE Roads End 1091  Rocking W 0.17
1088 GLENBROOK WAY 1090  Orinda Dr 1033  Barlow La 0.41
1089 HORTON CREEK ROAD Roads End 1010  Round Val 0.78
1090 ORINDA DRIVE 1076  Sierra Vi 1028  Underwood 0.13
1091 ROCKING W DRIVE Roads End 1087  Bar L. La 0.48
1092 ARBOLES DRIVE Roads End Roads End 0.79
1093 REINA ROAD Roads End Mesa Vista Driv 0.24
1094 VISTA VERDE ROAD Roads End 1098  Mesa Vist 0.08
1095 ALISO CIRCLE Roads End 1092  Arboles D 0.06
1096 MAJORKA CIRCLE Roads End 1092  Arboles D 0.10
1097 AVENIDA DEL MONTE 1092  Arboles D 1098  Mesa Vist 0.15
1098 MESA VISTA DRIVE 1092  Arboles D Hwy 395 0.43
1099 HOUSTEN DRIVE Roads End 1092  Arboles D 0.46



1100 BROOKSIDE DRIVE Roads End 1029  McLaren L 0.22
1101 MAJESTIC WAY Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.04
1102 LURING LANE Roads End 1052  Ranch Roa 0.06
1103 STARLITE DRIVE Roads End Hwy 168 1.15
1104 RUNNING IRON ROAD 1077  Rocking K 1077  Rocking K 0.21
1105 AURORA CIRCLE Roads End 1104  Running I 0.03
1106 SANIGER LANE 1107  Juniper S 1032  Dixon Lan 0.66
1107 JUNIPER STREET 1108  Valley Vi 1106  Saniger L 0.20
1108 VALLEY VIEW DRIVE Roads End 1032  Dixon Lan 0.44
1109 WEST STREET Roads End 1106  Saniger L 0.28
1110 POLARIS CIRCLE Roads End 1103  Starlite 0.07
1111 ALTAIR CIRCLE Roads End 1103  Starlite 0.10
1112 APOLLO CIRCLE Roads End 1103  Starlite 0.30
1113 LAWS FRONTAGE ROAD Roads End 0.20
1114 HARDY ROAD Roads End 1003  Round Val 0.25
1115 ARCTURIS CIRCLE 1103  Starlite Roads End 0.21
1116 CAROL LANE Roads End Roads End 0.34
1117 AUDREY LANE Roads End Roads End 0.09
1118 SARAH VIEW 1117  Audrey La 1076  Sierra Vi 0.08
1119 CHEROKEE CIRCLE Roads End 1121  Sioux Lan 0.03
1120 CHOCTAW LANE 1108  Valley Vi 1121  Sioux Lan 0.38
1121 SIOUX LANE Roads End 1120  Choctaw 0.06
1122 WILSON CIRCLE 1108  Valley Vi Roads End 0.07
1123 FAIRVIEW CIRCLE Roads End 1075  Watterson 0.04
1124 BEAR CREEK DRIVE Roads End 1108  Valley Vi 0.35
1125 SILVER CREEK DRIVE Roads End 1124  Bear Cree 0.03
1126 HUNTER WAY Roads End 1109  West Stre 0.04
1127 SHOSHONE DRIVE Roads End Roads End 0.31
1128 PAIUTE CIRCLE Roads End Roads End 0.06
1129 ARAPAHOE CIRCLE Roads End 1120  Choctaw L 0.03
1130 WASHOE CIRCLE Roads End 1120  Chotaw La 0.04
1131 SUNSET DRIVE Roads End 1033  Barlow La 0.51
1132 SUMMER HAZE CIRCLE Roads End Roads End 0.08
1133 LEISURE CIRCLE Roads End 1132  Summer Ha 0.03
1134 AUTUMN LEAVES CIRCLE Roads End Roads End 0.06
1135 SNOW CIRCLE Roads End 1131  Sunset Dr 0.05
1136 SUNDOWN CIRCLE Roads End 1131  Sunset Dr 0.06
1137 STONE CIRCLE Roads End 1108  Valley Vi 0.07
1138 APACHE DRIVE Roads End 1106  Saniger L 0.17
1139 CHEYENNE DRIVE 1127  Shoshone 1127  Shoshone 0.28
1140 NAVAJO CIRCLE Roads End 1106  Saniger L 0.10
1141 GRAZIDE CIRCLE Roads End 1108  Valley Vi 0.06
1142 HOPI CIRCLE Roads End 1106  Saniger L 0.05
1143 KIOWA CIRCLE Roads End 1127  Shoshone 0.10
1144 ZUNI CIRCLE Roads End 1127  Shoshone 0.03
1145 HOBBS CIRCLE Roads End 1108  Valleyvie 0.07
2011 SULFUR ROAD Roads End 2017  Death Val 0.30
2012 DEEP SPRINGS RANCH ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 0.80
2013 POLETA ROAD 2014  Eastside Bishop City Lin 4.13
2014 EASTSIDE ROAD 2018  Warm Spri 2013  Poleta Ro 2.31



2015 REDDING CANYON ROAD Roads End 2014  Eastside 1.82
2016 BLACK CANYON ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo 2014  Eastside 5.35
2017 DEATH VALLEY ROAD - NORTH 3017  Death Val 3017  Death Val 35.27
2018 WARM SPRINGS ROAD Roads End 2014  Eastside 6.60
2019 COLLINS ROAD Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro 4.36
2020 GERKIN ROAD Roads End 2019  Collins R 3.66
2021 OWENS ROAD 2020  Gerkin Ro Roads End 0.15
2022 SOUTH LAKE ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 7.37
2023 COLUMBINE DRIVE Roads End Hwy 168 0.38
2024 LAKE ROAD Roads End 2025  North Lak 0.44
2025 NORTH LAKE ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 2.08
2026 SABRINA ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 0.68
2027 NORTH STREET 2020  Gerkin Ro Roads End 0.10
2028 COUNTY ROAD 2029  Keoughs H 3028  County Ro 3.50
2029 KEOUGH HOT SPRINGS Roads End Hwy 395 0.89
2030 WYE ROAD Roads End Bishop City Lin 0.96
2031 SUNLAND INDIAN RESERVATION ROAD 1035  Schober L Hwy 395 1.69
2034 SUNLAND DRIVE 2020 Gerkin Hwy 168 3.66
2035 SCHOBER LANE 2034  Sunland R Hwy 395 0.52
2039 COTTONWOOD LANE Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.74
2040 CHERRY TREE CIRCLE Roads End 2039  Cottonwoo 0.16
2041 VISTA CIRCLE WEST Roads End 2040  Cherry Tr 0.04
2042 JEFFERY CIRCLE Roads End 2039  Cotton Wo 0.13
2043 MANDICH LANE Bishop 2034  Sunland D 0.32
2044 WEST JAY STREET Road End HWY 395 0.08
2045 POLETA LAWS ROAD 2013  Poleta Ro 1045  Poleta La 1.18
2047 WILLOW CREEK ROAD Nevada State Li 1048  Eureka Va 6.96
2048 EUREKA VALLEY ROAD 2017  Death Val 1048  Eureka Va 11.86
2049 EUREKA ROAD - SOUTH Roads End 2048  Eureka Ro 13.69
2050 VAN LOON LANE Roads End 2013  Poleta Ro 0.25
2053 AIRPORT ROAD Roads End 2013  Poleta Ro 0.80
2054 RAWSON CREEK ROAD 2059  Sierra La 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.23
2055 FOOTHILL DRIVE Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.11
2056 TRAIL CIRCLE Roads End 2055  Foothill 0.02
2057 PANORAMA DRIVE Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.12
2058 SIERRA GRANDE Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.23
2059 SIERRA LADERA STREET Roads End 2054  Rawson Cr 0.24
2060 SIERRA BONITA STREET 2059  Sierra La 2020  Gerkin Ro 0.21
2062 AGAPE CIRCLE Roads End 2019  Collins R 0.03
2081 ALPINE DRIVE Roads End Hwy 168 0.23
2083 WHITE MOUNTIAN ROAD 1083  White Mou Hwy 168 8.36
2084 BISHOP GOLF COURSE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.22
2085 BISHOP CREEK ROAD - EAST Roads End Hwy 168 2.62
2086 WHITE PINE ROAD Roads End 2088  Cataract 0.09
2087 IRIS DRIVE Roads End 2090  Cardinal 0.09
2088 CATARACT ROAD 2023  Columbine Hwy 168 0.73
2089 SAGE DRIVE 2081 Alpine Roa Hwy 168 0.15
2090 CARDINAL ROAD 2023  Columbine Hwy 168 0.41
2091 BROOK LANE Roads End 2086  White Pin 0.07
2092 MIDDLE FORK ROAD 2026  Sabrina R Hwy 168 0.27



2093 RESERVOIR ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 0.56
2094 BIG TREES ROAD Roads End Hwy 168 1.41
2095 HABEGGER LANE 2096  Canyon Ro 2022  South Lak 0.09
2096 CANYON DRIVE Roads End 2095  Habegger 0.23
2097 MOUNT TOM VIEW DRIVE Roads End 2096  Canyon Ro 0.09
2098 SIERRA SUMMIT Roads End Hwy 168 0.05
2099 SUMAC ROAD Roads End 2081  Alpine Dr 0.11
2100 MANZANITA ROAD Roads End 2081  Alpine Dr 0.11
2101 BARRETT CIRCLE Roads End 2039  Cottonwoo 0.23
3001 SUGARLOAF ROAD Roads End 3002  Glacier L 1.96
3002 GLACIER LODGE ROAD Roads End 3212  West Stre 11.74
3003 REYNOLDS ROAD Hwy 395 3028  County Ro 1.02
3004 BAKER CREEK ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.77
3005 CONE ROAD Roads End 3002  Glacier L 0.40
3006 MCMURRAY MEADOWS ROAD Roads End Nat'l Forest Bo 7.54
3007 ARC ROAD Roads End 3001  Sugar Loa 0.12
3008 BIG PINE REPEATER ROAD Roads End 3017  Death Val 0.51
3009 BARTELL ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.88
3010 LOWER GLACIER ROAD Roads End 3006  McMurray 2.13
3011 NEWMAN STREET 3009  Bartell R Hwy 395 0.95
3012 STEWARD LANE Roads End Hwy 395 2.12
3013 WAUCOBA SALINE ROAD 4013  Saline Va Nat'l Forest Bo 27.20
3014 STEWARD RANCH ROAD 3017A  Death Va Roads End 0.30
3015 BIG PINE DUMP ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.53
3016 GREGG ROAD Roads End 3015  Big Pine 0.22
3017 DEATH VALLEY ROAD - SOUTH Nat'l Forest Bo Nat'l Forest Bo 32.91
3018 TINNEMAHA ROAD 3035  Fish Spri Roads End 13.09
3019 BIRCH CREEK ROAD Roads End 3018  Tinnemaha 1.53
3020 FULLER ROAD Roads End 3018  Tinnemaha 1.79
3021 ELNA ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.24
3022 TABOOSE CREEK ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo 3018  Tinnemaha 4.29
3023 ABERDEEN STATION ROAD Hwy 395 3018 Tinnemaha 2.65
3024 BLACK ROCK SPRINGS ROAD 3027  Coloseum 3018  Tinnemaha 1.94
3025 DIVISION CREEK ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo 3018  Tinnemaha 3.63
3026 UPPER DIVISION CREEK ROAD Road End 3025  Division 1.13
3027 COLOSEUM ROAD 3024  Black Roc Hwy 395 3.24
3028 COUNTY ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo Hwy 395 4.43
3029 FORT INDEPENDENCE ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395 2.48
3030 FISH HATCHERY ROAD 3031  Oak Creek Hwy 395 1.37
3031 OAK CREEK ROAD - NORTH Roads End 3030  Fish Hatc 4.05
3032 OAK CREEK ROAD - SOUTH Roads End 3030  Fish Hatc 1.42
3033 SARAH STREET 3406  Kearsarge 3407  Payne Str 0.22
3034 BELL ACCESS ROAD 3030  Fish Hatc 3036  Shabbell 0.49
3035 FISH SPRINGS ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395 2.70
3036 SCHABBELL LANE 3029  Fort Inde Hwy 395 1.40
3037 SUSAN STREET Roads End 3405  Market St 0.19
3038 MARY STREET 3402  West Wall 3409  West Park 0.42
3039 LILY STREEET 3405  Market St 3404  Center St 0.40
3040 DALE STREET 3401 Inyo Steet 3408  Pavillion 0.42
3041 JEWEL ALLEY Roads End 3401  Inyo Stee 0.11



3042 CAROLYN STREET 3405  Market St 3411  Sierra St 0.17
3045 MAZOURKA CANYON ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo Hwy 395 14.74
3046 DUMP ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.81
3047 ONION VALLEY ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo 3405  West Mark 14.40
3048 CRATER STREET 3051  Butcher L 3050  Baker Lan 0.94
3049 PIPER STREET 3009  Bartell R 3050  Baker Lan 0.50
3050 BAKER LANE 3049  Piper Str 3048  Crater St 0.17
3051 BUTCHER LANE 3011  Newman St Hwy 395 0.25
3052 SEVEN PINES ROAD Roads End 3047  Onion Val 0.32
3053 GRIFFITH ROAD 3018  Tinnemaha 3035  Fish Spri 0.50
3054 TERRACE DRIVE 3003  Reynolds 3003  Reynolds 0.33
3055 FOOTHILL ROAD Roads End 3047  Onion Val 2.80
3056 GOODALE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 2.00
3057 PINE ROAD 3061  Elm Crest 3003  Reynolds 0.26
3058 JUNIPER ROAD 3059  Mountian 3003  Reynolds 0.17
3059 MOUNTAIN ROAD Roads End 3057  Pine Road 0.33
3060 MEADOW LARK ROAD 3061  Elmcrest 3059  Mountian 0.06
3061 ELMCREST DRIVE Roads End Roads End 0.34
3063 CARMELEA LANE 3070  Olivia La Roads End 0.22
3064 MARIANNE WAY 3070  Olivia La 3063  Carmela L 0.13
3065 JULIE ANN LANE 3064  Marianne 3003  Reynolds 0.04
3066 BETTY LOU LANE Roads End 3065  Julieanne 0.11
3067 MICHELLE CIRCLE Roads End 3066  Betty Lou 0.05
3068 MYRTLE LANE 3070  Olivia Ro 3003  Reynolds 0.15
3069 KRISTINE CIRCLE Roads End 3068  Myrtle La 0.05
3070 OLIVIA LANE Hwy 395 3028  County Ro 0.38
3071 TAMMY LANE Roads End 3063 Carmela La 0.02
3072 TAWNYA LANE Roads End 3070  Olivia La 0.04
3201 POPLAR STREET Roads End Hwy 395 0.07
3202 CENTER STREET 3215  Pine Stre 3216  Washingto 0.10
3203 LOCUST STREET Hwy 395 3216  Washingto 0.14
3204 HOME STREET 3216  Washingto 3215  Pine Stre 0.10
3205 NANCY LANE Roads End 3212  West Stre 0.08
3206 CROCKER AVENUE 3212  West Stre Hwy 395 0.50
3207 CORNELL STREET Roads End 3213  School St 0.31
3208 DEWEY STREET Roads End 3213  School St 0.25
3209 CHESTNUT STREET 3213  School St Hwy 395 0.25
3210 WALNUT STREET Hwy 395 3213  West Stre 0.25
3211 BLAKE STREET 3213  School St Hwy 395 0.25
3212 WEST STREET Roads End 3206  Crocker A 0.53
3213 SCHOOL STREET 3028  County Ro 3211  Blake Roa 1.00
3214 HALL STREET 3208  Dewey Str 3209  Chestnut 0.09
3215 PINE STREET Hwy 395 3201  Poplar St 0.37
3216 WASHINGTON STREET 3202  Center St 3204  Home Stre 0.12
3217 SARA LANE Roads End 3209  Chestnut 0.04
3401 INYO STREET - EAST Roads End Hwy 395 0.18
3402 WALL STREET - EAST 3423  Crockett Hwy 395 0.22
3403 MAIN STREET - EAST 3421  Clay Stre Hwy 395 0.14
3404 CENTER STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3421  Clay Stre 0.14
3405 MARKET STREET  - WEST 3047  Onion Val Hwy 395 0.21



3406 KEARSARGE STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3421  Clay Stre 0.15
3407 PAYNE STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3421  Clay Stre 0.14
3408 PAVILION STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3424  Rosedale 0.22
3409 PARK STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3419  Jackson S 0.07
3410 CITRUS STREET - WEST 3416  Washingto Hwy 395 0.08
3411 SIERRA STREET - EAST 3426  Valley Vi 3424  Rosedale 0.08
3412 GRANT STREET - NORTH 3403  Main Stre 3402  Wall Stre 0.14
3414 WEBSTER STREET - NORTH Roads End 3405  Market St 0.17
3416 WASHINGTON STREET - NORTH 3401  Inyo Stre 3405  Market St 0.24
3419 JACKSON STREET - NORTH 3405  Market St 3401  Inyo Stre 0.29
3421 CLAY STREET - NORTH 3405  Market St 3401  Inyo Stre 0.29
3423 CROCKETT STREET - NORTH Roads End 3402  Wall Stre 0.05
3424 ROSEDALE DRIVE 3405  Market St 3408  Pavilion 0.23
3426 VALLEY VIEW DRIVE - SOUTH Roads End 3405  Market St 0.25
4001 MANZANAR REWARD ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 5.75
4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE ROAD 4010  Dolomite 4001  Manzanar 13.91
4004 MOFFAT RANCH ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 4.30
4005 PANGBORN LANE Hwy 395 Hwy 395 1.23
4006 LONE PINE NG ROAD 4003  Owenyo-Lo Hwy 395 3.37
4009 WHITE MOUNTAIN TALC ROAD Roads End 4013  Saline Va 16.29
4010 DOLOMITE LOOP ROAD Hwy 136 Hwy 136 4.52
4011 COTTONWOOD POWERHOUSE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.70
4012 UBEHEBE ROAD 4013  Saline Va Nat'l Park Boun 6.96
4013 SALINE VALLEY ROAD 5013  Saline Va 3013  Waucoba S 47.76
4014 CAMP GROUND ROAD 4018  Whitney P 4015  Putnam Ro 0.13
4015 PUTNAM ROAD 4015  Putnam Ro 4018  Whitney P 0.87
4016 BUDKE ROAD Roads End 4015  Putnam Ro 0.17
4017 HORSESHOE MEADOWS ROAD Roads End 4018  Whitney P 18.71
4018 WHITNEY PORTAL ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 13.35
4019 TUTTLE CREEK ROAD 4023  Lubken Ca 4018  Whitney P 5.10
4020 GRANITE VIEW DRIVE Roads End 4017  Horseshoe 2.73
4021 SUB STATION ROAD Roads End 4425  Line Stre 1.47
4022 INDIAN SPRINGS DRIVE 4048  Dominy Ro 4019  Tuttle Cr 1.72
4023 LUBKIN CANYON ROAD 4017  Horshoe M Hwy 395 3.44
4024 CARROLL CREEK ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.00
4025 COTTONWOOD ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 4.37
4026 HOGBACK ROAD 4004  Moffatt R 4037  Movie Roa 6.30
4027 CERRO GORDO ROAD Hwy 136 8054  Non Count 7.51
4029 SANTA ROSA ROAD Roads End 5013  Saline Va 5.12
4031 OLANCHA DUMP ROAD Roads End 4206  Old State 0.50
4032 BARTLETTE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.29
4033 LONE PINE GOLF COURSE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.23
4034 LASKY LANE Roads End 4005  Pangborn 0.25
4035 PANGBORN STREET Roads End 4034  Lone Pine 0.12
4036 KELLOGG STREET Roads End 4034  Lone Pine 0.12
4037 MOVIE ROAD 4026  Hogback R 4018  Whiteny P 5.73
4038 OLIVAS RANCH ROAD Roads End 4018  Whitney P 2.38
4039 MAGAZINE ROAD Roads End 4019  Tuttle Cr 0.50
4041 GOODWIN ROAD Roads End 4021  Sub Stati 0.49
4042 ZUCCO ROAD 4021  Sub Stati 4058  Teya Road 0.52



4043 BURKHARDT ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.56
4044 THUNDERCLOUD LANE 4045  Shahar Av 4019  Tuttle Cr 0.93
4045 SHAHAR AVENUE Roads End Roads End 0.54
4046 SUNSET DRIVE 4017  Hoshoe Me 4044  Thundercl 0.96
4047 HUNTER MOUNTAIN ROAD Roads End 4013  Saline Va 6.40
4048 DOMINY ROAD Roads End 4022  Indian Sp 0.12
4049 ALABAMA DRIVE 4050  McDonald 4019  Tuttle Cr 0.77
4050 MCDONALD ROAD 4022  Indian Sp 4045  Shahar Av 0.35
4051 A STREET 4018  Whitney P 4404  Willow St 0.11
4052 B STREET Roads End 4403  Locust St 0.27
4053 C STREET 4403  Locust St 4409  Post Stre 0.21
4054 D STREET 4403  Locust St 4404  Willow St 0.05
4055 E STREET 4422  Hay Stree 4411  Muir Stre 0.12
4056 F STREET 4407  Mountian 4411  Muir Stre 0.22
4057 MCELROY LANE 4404  Willow St 4405  Bush Stre 0.05
4058 TEYA ROAD 4042  Zucco Roa Hwy 395 0.10
4060 WHITNEY VISTA DRIVE Mt. Langley Lan Whitney Portal 0.15
4061 MT. LANGLEY LANE Road End Whitney Vista D 0.13
4062 HUNTER ROAD Road End 4022 Indian Spr 0.25
4063 Valley View Drive 4061 - Langley 4018 - Whiteny 0.17
4201 LINCOLN STREET 4205  Yerington 4206  Old State 0.03
4202 FRANKLIN STREET 4205  Yerington 4206  Old State 0.05
4203 MALONE STREET 4209  Maud Stre Hwy 136 0.26
4204 CERRO GORDO STREET Hwy 136 4209  Maud Stre 0.25
4205 YERINGTON AVENUE 4204  Cerro Gor 4201  Linclon A 0.28
4206 OLD STATE HIGHWAY Road End 4031  Olancha D 0.55
4207 RAILROAD AVENUE 4206  Old State 4204  Cerro Gor 0.25
4208 LAWS AVENUE Roads End 4204  Cerro Gor 0.13
4209 MAUD STREET 4204  Cerro Gor 4203  Malone St 0.10
4401 BEGOLE STREET Hwy 395 4419  Jackson S 0.12
4403 STATHAM WAY 4414  Brewery S 4416  Washingto 0.04
4404 WILLOW STREET - EAST 0.16
4405 BUSH STREET - WEST Hwy 395 4428  Fairbanks 0.10
4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW STREET - EAST Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S 0.36
4408 WHITNEY PORTAL ROAD Hwy 395 4421  Lone Pine 0.10
4409 POST STREET - EAST Hwy 395 4425  Line Stre 0.37
4411 MUIR STREET 4056 Street "F" 4055  Street "E 0.32
4412 SCHOOL STREET - EAST Hwy 395 4424  Lake View 0.08
4413 INYO STREET - EAST 4425  Line Stre Hwy 395 0.28
4414 BREWERY STREET - SOUTH 4407  Mountian Roads End 0.21
4416 WASHINGTON STREET - NORTH 4403  Statham W 4407  Mountian 0.37
4419 JACKSON STREET - NORTH 4407  Mountian 4401  Begole St 0.22
4421 LONE PINE AVENUE - NORTH 4407  Mountian 4403  Statham W 0.16
4422 HAY STREET - NORTH 4407  Mountian 4403  Statham W 0.15
4423 MOUNT WHITNEY DRIVE - SOUTH 4407  Mountian 4411  Muir Stre 0.25
4424 LAKE VIEW AVENUE - SOUTH 4413  Inyo Stre 4407  Mountian 0.17
4425 LINE STREET 4409  Post Stre 4413  Inyo Stre 0.20
4426 ROY ROGERS ROAD 4018  Whitney P 4414  Brewery S 0.34
4427 LUBKEN AVENUE - EAST Roads End Hwy 395 0.25
4428 FAIRBANKS STREET 4018  Whitney P 4405  Bush Stre 0.05



4429 TIM HOLT ROAD Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S 0.11
4430 GENE AUTRY LANE Roads End Hwy 395 0.02
5001 CLAY ROAD Roads End Nevada State Li 2.01
5002 STATE LINE ROAD Nevada State Li Hwy 127 5.21
5003 PETRO ROAD Hwy 127 5005  Furnace C 7.16
5005 FURNACE CREEK WASH ROAD 8083  Non Count Hwy 127 35.79
5006 TECOPA HOT SPRINGS ROAD 5007  Old Spani 5005  Furnace C 2.50
5007 OLD SPANISH TRAIL HIGHWAY Nevada State Li Hwy 127 29.98
5008 CHINA RANCH ROAD Roads End 5005  Furnace C 2.04
5009 MESQUITE VALLEY ROAD Nevada State Li 5050  Western T 20.92
5010 LOST SECTION ROAD Roads End 5005  Furnace C 6.33
5011 OLANCHA-DARWIN ROAD 5014  Zinc Hill Hwy 190 5.72
5012 TALC CITY ROAD Roads End Hwy 190 2.79
5013 SALINE VALLEY ROAD Hwy 190 4013  Saline Va 6.83
5014 ZINC HILL ROAD Roads End 5015  Ophir Roa 4.07
5015 OPHIR ROAD 5016  Old Toll 5075  Second Av 7.65
5016 OLD TOLL ROAD Hwy 190 5015  Ophir Roa 8.83
5017 NADEAU ROAD 5029  Trona-Wil Hwy 190 25.95
5018 PANAMINT VALLEY ROAD Hwy 190 5029  Trona-Wil 13.98
5019 MINIETTA ROAD 5017  Nadeau Ro 5018  Panamint 3.63
5020 FALL ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.87
5021 SHOP STREET Roads End Hwy 395 1.01
5022 WALKER CREEK ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 5.00
5023 SCHOOL ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.39
5024 CACTUS FLATS ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 10.38
5025 SAGE FLATS DRIVE Roads End Hwy 395 5.45
5026 ASH CREEK ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.61
5027 HAIWEE CANYON ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 2.62
5028 GENTRY ROAD 5007  Old Spain 5007  Old Spani 0.53
5029 TRONA-WILDROSE ROAD 8070  Non Count SBD County 34.23
5030 PADRE POINT ROAD Roads End Hwy 190 0.60
5031 LITTLE LAKE ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395 1.15
5032 SLATE RANGE ROAD 5018  Panamint 5017  Nadeu Roa 4.94
5033 SURPRISE CANYON ROAD Roads End 5035  Wingate R 4.56
5034 BALLARAT ROAD 5035  Wingate R 5029  Trona-Wil 3.64
5035 WINGATE ROAD 5034  Ballarat San Bernardino 20.08
5036 COYOTE CANYON ROAD 5035  Wingate R 8093  Non Count 9.14
5037 VALLEY WELLS ROAD 5044  Stockwell 5029  Trona-Wil 0.40
5038 GILL STATION COSO ROAD Roads End 5039  Sykes Roa 7.96
5039 SYKES ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.91
5040 NINE MILE CANYON ROAD Tulare County L Hwy 395 10.64
5041 DOWNEY ROAD 8080  Non Count 5006  Tecop Hot 0.60
5043 CINDER ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.70
5044 STOCKWELL MINE ROAD Roads End 5037  Valley We 1.74
5045 TRONA AIRPORT ROAD Roads End 5029  Trona-Wil 0.75
5046 ANDERSON WAY Roads End 5041  Downey Ro 0.25
5048 HOMEWOOD CANYON ROAD Roads End 5029  Trona-Wil 5.05
5049 SMITH TALC ROAD San Bernardino 5009  Mesquite 1.04
5050 WESTERN TALC ROAD San Bernardino 5005  Furnace C 1.14
5051 MESQUITE VALLEY ROAD 5009  Trona-Wil San Bernardino 14.82



5052 OLD STATE HIGHWAY Hwy 127 Hwy 127 0.63
5053 NESS STREET 5014  Zinc Hill 5011  Olancha-D 0.24
5054 SCHOOL STREET 5011  Olancha-D 5014  Zinc Hill 0.17
5055 TALC CITY CUTOFF Hwy 190 5012  Talc City 0.98
5056 QUARRY ROAD Roads End 5029  Trona-Wil 0.46
5057 DAWN LOOP 5006  Tecopa Ho 5006  Tecopa Ho 0.33

5058 N0ONDAY STREET 5006  Tecopa Ho 5006  Tecopa Ho 0.84
5059 SUNDOWN STREET 5058  Noonday S 5058  Noonday S 0.11
5060 BOB WHITE WAY 5005  Furnace C 5041  Downey Ro 0.45
5061 CROW CANYON ROAD Roads End 5048  Homewood 0.45
5062 ELIAS ROAD Roads End 5006  Tecopa Ho 0.23
5069 WILLIAMS ROAD Roads End 5020  Fall Road 0.50
5070 SUMMER ROAD Roads End 5020  Fall Road 0.39
5071 SPRING CIRCLE Roads End 5020  Fall Road 0.10
5072 STERLING ROAD Kern County Lin 5040  Nine Mile 2.51
5073 PEARSON ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395 1.13
5074 MARKET STREET 5075  Second Av 5015  Ophir Roa 0.10
5075 SECOND AVENUE - SOUTHEAST 5015  Ophir Roa 5074  Market St 0.19
5076 LAKEVIEW ROAD Roads End 5077 Enchanted 0.35
5077 ENCHANTED LAKES ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.50
5078 LAKE VILLAGE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 1.50
5201 WHITNEY STREET Hwy 395 5206  Mojave St 0.17
5202 LAKE STREET 5205  Cartago S Hwy 395 0.13
5203 OWENS STREET 5205  Cartago S 5204  Sierra St 0.05
5204 SIERRA STREET 5203  Owens Str 5201  Whitney S 0.24
5205 CARTAGO STREET 5201  Whitney S 5203  Owens Str 0.24
5206 MOJAVE STREET Roads End 5201  Whitney S 0.13

1001A LAKE ROAD Roads End 1001  Rock Cree 0.50
1069A BIRCH STREET - WEST Roads End Roads End 0.10
1070A CEDAR STREET - WEST 1079  Tumblewee 1097  Aveneda D 0.05
1079A TUMBLEWEED ROAD - SOUTH Roads End 1078  Indian Cr 0.22
1110A POLARIS CIRCLE Roads End 1112  Apollo Ci 0.31
2085A BISHOP CREEK ROAD - WEST Roads End Hwy 168 0.46
3027A COLOSEUM ROAD - NORTH Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3.48
3206A CROCKER AVENUE - WEST 3215 Pine Stree Hwy 395 0.05
3401A INYO STREET - WEST Roads End 3416  Washingto 0.07
3402A WALL STREET - WEST Hwy 395 3416  Washingto 0.08
3403A MAIN STREET - WEST Hwy 395 3412  Grant Str 0.22
3404A CENTER STREET - WEST 3412  Grant Str Hwy 395 0.21
3405A MARKET STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3424  Rosedale 0.40
3406A KEARSARGE STREET - WEST Roads End Hwy 395 0.17
3407A PAYNE STREET - WEST Roads End Hwy 395 0.21
3408A PAVILION STREET - WEST 3414  Webster S Hwy 395 0.14
3409A PARK STREET - WEST 3416  Washingto Hwy 395 0.08
3414A WEBSTER STREET - SOUTH 3405  Market St 3408  Pavilion 0.20
3416A WASHINGTON STREET - SOUTH 3405  Market St 3410  Citrus St 0.37
3419A JACKSON STREET - SOUTH 3409  Park Stre 3405  Market St 0.29
3421A CLAY STREET - SOUTH Roads End 3405  Market St 0.25



4006A LONE PINE NG ROAD 4006a Lone Pine 4006   Lone Pin 0.33
4006B LONE PINE NG ROAD 4003  Owenyo-Lo 4006  Lone Pine 0.26
4403A LOCUST STREET - WEST 4416  Washingto Hwy 395 0.06
4403B LOCUST STREET - EAST Hwy 395 4424  Lakeview 0.40
4404A WILLOW STREET - WEST Roads End Hwy 395 0.09
4405A BUSH STREET - EAST Roads End Hwy 395 0.53
4407A MOUNTAIN VIEW STREET - WEST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395 0.08
4409A POST STREET - WEST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395 0.11
4410A SOUTH STREET - EAST 4051  Street "A 4409  Post Stre 0.08
4413A WEST INYO STREET Road End Hwy 395 0.03
4414A BREWERY STREET - NORTH 4403  Statham W 4407  Mountian 0.15
4416A WASHINGTON STREET - SOUTH Roads End 4407  Mountian 0.21
4419A JACKSON STREET - SOUTH 4408  Whitney P 4407  Mountian 0.05
4421A LONE PINE AVENUE - SOUTH 4411  Muir Stre 4407  Mountian 0.25
4422A HAY STREET - SOUTH 4411  Muir Stre 4407  Mountian 0.26
4423A MOUNT WHITNEY DRIVE - NORTH Roads End 4407  Mountian 0.26
4424A LAKE VIEW AVENUE - NORTH 4403  Statham W 4407  Mountian 0.34
5005A FURNACE CREEK ROAD 5050  Western T Hwy 127 12.52
5013A SALINE VALLEY ALT. Hwy 190 4013  Saline Va 4.71
5035A INDIAN RANCH ROAD 5029  Trona-Wil 5034  Ballarat 12.09

2019 Certification (Submitted 2020)

1005 MILL CREEK ROAD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
1009 PINE CREEK ROAD Roads End 1009  Pine Cree
1013 SAWMILL ROAD Hwy 395 South 1016  Ed Powers
1048 EUREKA VALLEY ROAD 2048  Eureka Va 8039  Non Count 8.40
1089 HORTON CREEK ROAD Roads End 1010  Round Val 0.78
1103 STARLITE DRIVE Roads End Hwy 168 1.15
2015 REDDING CANYON ROAD Roads End 2014  Eastside 1.82
2017 DEATH VALLEY ROAD - NORTH 3017  Death Val 3017  Death Val 35.27
2018 WARM SPRINGS ROAD Roads End 2014  Eastside 6.60
2028 COUNTY ROAD 2029  Keoughs H 3028  County Ro 3.50
2048 EUREKA VALLEY ROAD 2017  Death Val 1048  Eureka Va 11.86
3017 DEATH VALLEY ROAD - SOUTH Nat'l Forest Bo Nat'l Forest Bo 32.91



3024 BLACK ROCK SPRINGS ROAD 3027  Coloseum 3018  Tinnemaha 1.94

3028 COUNTY ROAD Nat'l Forest Bo Hwy 395 4.43
3056 GOODALE ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 2.00
4036 KELLOGG STREET Roads End 4034  Lone Pine 0.12

4038 OLIVAS RANCH ROAD Roads End 4018  Whitney P 2.38

4058 TEYA ROAD 4042  Zucco Roa Hwy 395 0.10
5003 PETRO ROAD Hwy 127 5005  Furnace C 7.16
5008 CHINA RANCH ROAD Roads End 5005  Furnace C 2.04
5028 GENTRY ROAD 5007  Old Spain 5007  Old Spani 0.53
5039 SYKES ROAD Roads End Hwy 395 0.91
5044 STOCKWELL MINE ROAD Roads End 5037  Valley We 1.74
5048 HOMEWOOD CANYON ROAD Roads End 5029  Trona-Wil 5.05
5049 SMITH TALC ROAD San Bernardino 5009  Mesquite 1.04

5057 DAWN LOOP 5006  Tecopa Ho 5006  Tecopa Ho 0.33

5076 LAKEVIEW ROAD Roads End 5077 Enchanted 0.35
5203 OWENS STREET 5205  Cartago S 5204  Sierra St 0.05
5206 MOJAVE STREET Roads End 5201  Whitney S 0.13

3027A COLOSEUM ROAD - NORTH Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3.48

3405A MARKET STREET - EAST Hwy 395 3424  Rosedale 0.40





Current GIS Length (2021)
2.83 2.28 0.55 1001 3 2.28 12037.94508680000
0.63 0.61 0.02 1002 1 0.61 3235.76381533000
4.85 4.90 -0.05 1003 10 4.90 25873.00583410000
1.30 1.29 0.01 1004 2 1.29 6809.28178652000
0.70 1.19 -0.49 1005 4 1.24 6545.32672671000
1.27 1.28 -0.01 1006 1 1.28 6739.17064581000
3.35 3.65 -0.30 1007 3 3.65 19285.18350530000
1.75 1.76 -0.01 1008 3 1.76 9309.42990409000
9.40 9.47 -0.07 1009 14 9.50 50152.73293240000
5.54 4.80 0.74 1010 9 4.80 25352.74627190000
1.81 1.77 0.04 1011 6 1.77 9336.98143678000
0.20 0.21 -0.01 1012 1 0.21 1113.31859751000
1.87 1.89 -0.02 1013 4 2.60 13748.91608380000
2.73 2.71 0.02 1014 9 2.71 14308.39531730000
0.34 0.39 -0.05 1015 2 0.39 2071.40340487000
2.43 2.43 0.00 1016 4 2.43 12805.13577570000
1.42 1.31 0.11 1017 8 1.31 6898.42914462000
0.06 0.06 0.00 1018 1 0.06 317.03817424800
0.17 0.38 -0.21 1019 1 0.38 1982.07348857000
7.64 7.24 0.40 1020 17 7.24 38234.25175950000
0.80 0.80 0.00 1021 2 0.80 4243.41739009000
2.40 2.35 0.05 1022 6 2.35 12407.65973770000
0.50 0.49 0.01 1023 2 0.49 2579.20651205000
0.69 0.51 0.18 1024 2 0.51 2679.37084905000
1.17 1.04 0.13 1025 3 1.04 5483.25751073000
0.40 0.41 -0.01 1026 1 0.41 2152.86937964000
0.80 0.82 -0.02 1027 3 0.82 4346.64287618000
3.80 1.18 2.62 1028 5 1.18 6208.63675272000
0.37 0.37 0.00 1029 3 0.37 1950.66354793000
2.52 2.51 0.01 1030 9 2.51 13258.07413590000
2.10 2.01 0.09 1031 10 2.01 10633.42416810000
2.01 2.01 0.00 1032 3 2.01 10615.02168850000
3.80 3.71 0.09 1033 20 3.71 19568.84935340000
2.16 2.92 -0.76 1034 1 2.92 15421.50887900000
1.10 1.09 0.01 1035 3 1.09 5761.80108356000
1.84 1.86 -0.02 1036 2 1.86 9812.93080271000
4.64 4.64 0.00 1037 21 4.64 24479.61611700000
5.90 5.88 0.02 1038 27 5.88 31047.02988990000
4.46 4.46 0.00 1039 2 4.46 23540.05620100000
3.12 3.10 0.02 1040 2 3.10 16360.14781790000
0.58 1.01 -0.43 1041 1 1.01 5351.45402499000
2.35 1.44 0.91 1042 1 1.44 7621.50347454000
1.27 1.28 -0.01 1043 4 1.28 6737.17275743000
13.86 11.54 2.32 1044 10 11.54 60929.16500330000
3.03 1.72 1.31 1045 6 1.72 9102.31387451000
17.70 17.64 0.06 1046 7 17.64 93164.39151470000
1.20 1.23 -0.03 1047 2 1.23 6515.24981060000

8.40 0.00 1048 6 7.31 38619.479143700008.40



0.20 0.00 1049 1 0.20 1047.90313001000
0.46 0.00 1050 2 0.46 2421.10347575000
0.16 0.00 1051 1 0.16 862.12720995400
0.46 -0.01 1052 7 0.46 2411.01611052000
0.39 -0.05 1053 2 0.39 2056.85456187000
0.23 0.00 1054 1 0.23 1234.76829785000
0.17 0.04 1055 1 0.17 881.60438706300
0.46 -0.03 1056 1 0.46 2407.62711990000
1.53 -0.21 1058 5 1.53 8096.84017393000
1.00 0.00 1059 4 1.00 5290.03308032000
1.00 0.00 1060 3 1.00 5285.89561291000
1.50 -0.01 1061 4 1.50 7895.45379635000
1.01 -0.01 1062 5 1.01 5324.97866494000
0.50 -0.01 1063 5 0.50 2658.45932656000
1.29 0.08 1064 2 1.29 6828.78570908000
0.53 0.01 1065 1 0.53 2805.06702224000
3.90 0.19 1066 5 3.90 20580.11414700000
0.25 -0.01 1067 3 0.25 1327.99561308000
0.44 -0.03 1068 5 0.44 2332.40093491000
0.12 -0.04 1069 3 0.12 607.36374574900
0.07 -0.02 1070 1 0.07 351.26822182400
0.09 0.00 1071 2 0.09 501.43452320500
0.11 0.00 1072 2 0.11 604.37150742300
0.06 0.00 1073 1 0.06 316.01834210500
0.50 0.00 1074 1 0.50 2658.59059296000
0.30 0.01 1075 2 0.30 1586.12507104000
0.47 0.03 1076 3 0.47 2461.68983914000
0.86 0.05 1077 3 0.86 4539.47423335000
0.32 0.00 1078 2 0.32 1678.86394342000
0.12 -0.08 1079 2 0.12 632.81886505600
0.24 0.00 1080 4 0.24 1273.03787352000
0.29 0.00 1081 2 0.29 1544.47737318000
0.40 0.03 1082 5 0.40 2111.57515077000
8.70 -2.08 1083 5 8.70 45958.36357180000
0.33 0.12 1084 1 0.33 1767.80685300000
0.27 -0.22 1085 1 0.27 1438.33789542000
0.16 0.00 1086 3 0.16 821.81150518700
0.15 0.02 1087 3 0.15 783.49801937100
0.41 0.00 1088 1 0.41 2152.69616733000
0.78 0.00 1089 1 1.52 8006.98613919000
0.13 0.00 1090 2 0.13 680.74630048200
0.50 -0.02 1091 2 0.50 2651.38228072000
0.68 0.11 1092 5 0.68 3613.86210713000
0.24 0.00 1093 2 0.24 1267.19631110000
0.08 0.00 1094 1 0.08 437.33886679900
0.06 0.00 1095 1 0.06 307.13200559000
0.11 -0.01 1096 1 0.11 592.94121001400
0.16 -0.01 1097 1 0.16 853.89961390100
0.43 0.00 1098 4 0.43 2265.26736964000
0.45 0.01 1099 1 0.45 2393.79970263000

0.20
0.46
0.16
0.45
0.34
0.23
0.21
0.43
1.32
1.00
1.00
1.49
1.00
0.49
1.37
0.54
4.09
0.24
0.41
0.08
0.05
0.09
0.11
0.06
0.50
0.31
0.50
0.91
0.32
0.04
0.24
0.29
0.43
6.62
0.45
0.05
0.16
0.17
0.41
0.78
0.13
0.48
0.79
0.24
0.08
0.06
0.10
0.15
0.43
0.46



0.23 -0.01 1100 1 0.23 1214.87752650000
0.04 0.00 1101 1 0.04 193.59572224600
0.06 0.00 1102 1 0.06 308.37862051700
1.28 -0.13 1103 5 2.02 10650.08987950000
0.22 -0.01 1104 2 0.22 1176.82742378000
0.04 -0.01 1105 1 0.04 191.04526128700
0.62 0.04 1106 10 0.62 3295.33399542000
0.21 -0.01 1107 2 0.21 1132.42039360000
0.45 -0.01 1108 7 0.45 2389.46097888000
0.28 0.00 1109 4 0.28 1502.47278813000
0.34 -0.27 1110 1 0.34 1785.92703625000
0.10 0.00 1111 1 0.10 516.78748434700
0.33 -0.03 1112 2 0.33 1723.06566801000
0.21 -0.01 1113 2 0.21 1125.48862020000
0.25 0.00 1114 1 0.25 1293.63245417000
0.21 0.00 1115 1 0.21 1107.42837614000
0.33 0.01 1116 2 0.33 1760.04919683000
0.19 -0.10 1117 2 0.19 990.41485931600
0.08 0.00 1118 1 0.08 429.69035335100
0.03 0.00 1119 1 0.03 146.81293625300
0.31 0.07 1120 4 0.31 1647.25674279000
0.09 -0.03 1121 3 0.09 468.00542487800
0.06 0.01 1122 1 0.06 323.09620896300
0.05 -0.01 1123 1 0.05 276.07836488100
0.35 0.00 1124 2 0.35 1838.69804318000
0.03 0.00 1125 1 0.03 166.51223373500
0.06 -0.02 1126 1 0.06 329.43207490300
0.52 -0.21 1127 7 0.52 2730.42650321000
0.06 0.00 1128 2 0.06 311.45184345400
0.04 -0.01 1129 1 0.04 195.18835566600
0.04 0.00 1130 1 0.04 212.08115341700
0.52 -0.01 1131 5 0.52 2752.79896080000
0.09 -0.01 1132 3 0.09 487.97720186200
0.03 0.00 1133 1 0.03 160.89212682900
0.07 -0.01 1134 2 0.07 387.96988768500
0.06 -0.01 1135 1 0.06 342.12215593100
0.07 -0.01 1136 2 0.07 376.34872585100
0.07 0.00 1137 1 0.07 369.03686761400
0.18 -0.01 1138 1 0.18 959.05380092300
0.27 0.01 1139 1 0.27 1424.85483913000
0.09 0.01 1140 1 0.09 459.87896537600
0.06 0.00 1141 1 0.06 316.19170508900
0.05 0.00 1142 1 0.05 273.74441569100
0.11 -0.01 1143 1 0.11 572.60211302500
0.03 0.00 1144 1 0.03 156.15984776500
0.07 0.00 1145 1 0.07 348.86581814800
0.56 -0.26 2011 1 0.56 2940.44497743000
1.19 -0.39 2012 3 1.19 6292.78161897000
4.20 -0.07 2013 8 4.20 22190.61370990000
2.19 0.12 2014 5 2.19 11565.45087240000

0.22
0.04
0.06
1.15
0.21
0.03
0.66
0.20
0.44
0.28
0.07
0.10
0.30
0.20
0.25
0.21
0.34
0.09
0.08
0.03
0.38
0.06
0.07
0.04
0.35
0.03
0.04
0.31
0.06
0.03
0.04
0.51
0.08
0.03
0.06
0.05
0.06
0.07
0.17
0.28
0.10
0.06
0.05
0.10
0.03
0.07
0.30
0.80
4.13
2.31



1.96 -0.14 2015 8 3.30 17449.75183800000
5.65 -0.30 2016 1 5.65 29853.07324560000
31.76 3.51 2017 28 51.34 271086.69606100000
6.61 -0.01 2018 25 7.78 41102.20064640000
4.11 0.25 2019 18 4.11 21691.80374400000
3.60 0.06 2020 20 3.60 19031.51333990000
0.15 0.00 2021 1 0.15 806.28887677200
7.07 0.30 2022 2 7.07 37314.71878140000
0.29 0.09 2023 3 0.29 1525.05572678000
0.43 0.01 2024 4 0.43 2285.47314981000
2.00 0.08 2025 2 2.00 10542.29381320000
0.77 -0.09 2026 3 0.77 4087.85464005000
0.09 0.01 2027 1 0.09 490.54792295400
3.92 -0.42 2028 8 3.75 19825.94879840000
0.91 -0.02 2029 3 0.91 4823.77458601000
1.13 -0.17 2030 3 1.13 5946.07115065000
1.69 0.00 2031 2 1.69 8916.24422424000
3.67 -0.01 2034 12 3.67 19364.60978040000
0.52 0.00 2035 1 0.52 2729.63631916000
0.81 -0.07 2039 6 0.81 4300.98780957000
0.16 0.00 2040 2 0.16 845.44112381900
0.05 -0.01 2041 1 0.05 244.88564830600
0.13 0.00 2042 1 0.13 665.40396126900
0.27 0.05 2043 1 0.27 1443.68899354000
0.08 0.00 2044 1 0.08 406.80876642700
1.16 0.02 2045 1 1.16 6098.50520625000
6.14 0.82 2047 1 6.14 32425.76412940000
12.00 -0.14 2048 2 13.09 69130.35784270000
9.35 4.34 2049 2 9.35 49353.79677810000
0.25 0.00 2050 1 0.25 1314.73561436000
0.75 0.05 2053 1 0.75 3967.25782620000
0.25 -0.02 2054 1 0.25 1300.34343994000
0.12 -0.01 2055 2 0.12 651.79136627600
0.02 0.00 2056 1 0.02 124.90492382700
0.24 -0.12 2057 1 0.24 1268.28031775000
0.47 -0.24 2058 2 0.47 2504.77076591000
0.24 0.00 2059 2 0.24 1250.68369422000
0.21 0.00 2060 1 0.21 1104.26993116000
0.03 0.00 2062 1 0.03 167.53709398300
0.27 -0.04 2081 5 0.27 1444.03045032000
8.51 -0.15 2083 7 8.51 44941.97914210000
0.25 -0.03 2084 1 0.25 1321.92079931000
2.71 -0.09 2085 4 2.71 14321.95993300000
0.10 -0.01 2086 2 0.10 552.29451611700
0.09 0.00 2087 1 0.09 465.52249643400
0.72 0.01 2088 4 0.72 3820.23880026000
0.16 -0.01 2089 1 0.16 870.34040921900
0.48 -0.07 2090 3 0.48 2542.30483336000
0.07 0.00 2091 1 0.07 356.76021772300
0.24 0.03 2092 4 0.24 1274.49093454000

1.82
5.35
35.27
6.60
4.36
3.66
0.15
7.37
0.38
0.44
2.08
0.68
0.10
3.50
0.89
0.96
1.69
3.66
0.52
0.74
0.16
0.04
0.13
0.32
0.08
1.18
6.96
11.86
13.69
0.25
0.80
0.23
0.11
0.02
0.12
0.23
0.24
0.21
0.03
0.23
8.36
0.22
2.62
0.09
0.09
0.73
0.15
0.41
0.07
0.27



0.24 0.32 2093 2 0.24 1242.55202366000
1.04 0.37 2094 2 1.04 5476.66543824000
0.09 0.00 2095 1 0.09 460.35589917700
0.23 0.00 2096 2 0.23 1230.17363357000
0.08 0.01 2097 1 0.08 405.79357780900
0.06 -0.01 2098 1 0.06 305.57240556900
0.11 0.00 2099 1 0.11 565.87114822100
0.10 0.01 2100 1 0.10 535.26437737200
0.10 0.13 2101 1 0.10 551.44363925100
1.58 0.38 3001 3 1.58 8364.06098442000
9.95 1.79 3002 5 9.95 52541.60721120000
1.04 -0.02 3003 11 1.04 5506.66974935000
0.99 0.78 3004 2 0.99 5239.86175515000
0.39 0.01 3005 1 0.39 2053.40518374000
7.44 0.10 3006 11 7.44 39281.58958180000
0.37 -0.25 3007 1 0.37 1974.13981940000
0.50 0.01 3008 1 0.50 2656.64464142000
1.94 -0.06 3009 14 1.94 10238.96461730000
0.47 1.66 3010 1 0.47 2490.33017658000
1.03 -0.08 3011 3 1.03 5426.95672715000
1.39 0.73 3012 2 1.39 7360.72398583000
27.63 -0.43 3013 21 27.63 145865.28059300000
0.34 -0.04 3014 1 0.34 1788.31377982000
0.48 0.05 3015 3 0.48 2547.64021612000
0.24 -0.02 3016 1 0.24 1242.49287228000
31.57 1.34 3017 4 11.99 63313.12251870000
13.29 -0.20 3018 33 13.29 70151.91229950000
0.79 0.74 3019 1 0.79 4166.96759076000
1.77 0.02 3020 1 1.77 9349.88280868000
0.22 0.02 3021 1 0.22 1141.47759892000
4.45 -0.16 3022 8 4.45 23494.90504160000
2.63 0.02 3023 6 2.63 13870.17412670000
1.97 -0.03 3024 1 0.79 4188.30421111000
3.52 0.11 3025 2 3.52 18568.17712250000
1.07 0.06 3026 1 1.07 5655.58075855000
3.13 0.11 3027 3 3.13 16514.74681780000
4.26 0.17 3028 5 4.43 23385.09699900000
2.60 -0.12 3029 9 2.60 13725.07520780000
1.22 0.15 3030 4 1.22 6453.01281888000
4.45 -0.40 3031 3 4.45 23521.47912500000
1.41 0.01 3032 1 1.41 7469.16997875000
0.39 -0.17 3033 6 0.39 2060.72330139000
0.17 0.32 3034 1 0.17 895.75273994300
3.06 -0.36 3035 3 3.06 16167.52214140000
1.29 0.11 3036 4 1.29 6799.66238376000
0.33 -0.14 3037 5 0.33 1755.83129431000
0.50 -0.08 3038 7 0.50 2650.22461303000
0.48 -0.08 3039 7 0.48 2543.64173288000
0.50 -0.08 3040 7 0.50 2646.07994260000
0.14 -0.03 3041 2 0.14 714.43545757100

0.56
1.41
0.09
0.23
0.09
0.05
0.11
0.11
0.23
1.96
11.74
1.02
1.77
0.40
7.54
0.12
0.51
1.88
2.13
0.95
2.12
27.20
0.30
0.53
0.22
32.91
13.09
1.53
1.79
0.24
4.29
2.65
1.94
3.63
1.13
3.24
4.43
2.48
1.37
4.05
1.42
0.22
0.49
2.70
1.40
0.19
0.42
0.40
0.42
0.11



0.16 0.01 3042 1 0.16 856.96458197700
13.63 1.11 3045 3 13.63 71977.35681080000
0.80 0.01 3046 2 0.80 4244.19117407000
12.78 1.62 3047 5 12.78 67460.22115450000
0.98 -0.04 3048 6 0.98 5193.38874982000
0.49 0.01 3049 1 0.49 2605.41552651000
0.17 0.00 3050 2 0.17 872.63108526400
0.26 -0.01 3051 3 0.26 1372.61483757000
0.34 -0.02 3052 1 0.34 1814.68426241000
0.50 0.00 3053 2 0.50 2646.78890297000
0.35 -0.02 3054 2 0.35 1826.01444503000
2.78 0.02 3055 5 2.78 14693.45883140000
2.21 -0.21 3056 2 2.34 12331.29089050000
0.23 0.03 3057 2 0.23 1222.21438515000
0.17 0.00 3058 1 0.17 880.59435195800
0.23 0.10 3059 2 0.23 1219.84188064000
0.05 0.01 3060 2 0.05 287.45241656700
0.32 0.02 3061 2 0.32 1680.84136789000
0.22 0.00 3063 3 0.22 1171.57170060000
0.14 -0.01 3064 3 0.14 747.72019159700
0.06 -0.02 3065 2 0.06 327.10107379000
0.09 0.02 3066 2 0.09 500.61770013100
0.04 0.01 3067 1 0.04 188.94140844700
0.15 0.00 3068 2 0.15 766.43469792400
0.06 -0.01 3069 1 0.06 323.91442879400
0.34 0.04 3070 5 0.34 1779.96014211000
0.03 -0.01 3071 1 0.03 142.10563835700
0.04 0.00 3072 1 0.04 237.56248507200
0.07 0.00 3201 2 0.07 377.80705034700
0.10 0.00 3202 1 0.10 537.53469173900
0.15 -0.01 3203 2 0.15 783.06203613400
0.10 0.00 3204 1 0.10 548.89443486200
0.09 -0.01 3205 1 0.09 465.62498584000
0.50 0.00 3206 3 0.50 2623.03376305000
0.32 -0.01 3207 3 0.32 1701.52928569000
0.25 0.00 3208 3 0.25 1295.44131738000
0.25 0.00 3209 3 0.25 1298.68141365000
0.25 0.00 3210 2 0.25 1295.20646586000
0.25 0.00 3211 3 0.25 1309.63427584000
0.46 0.07 3212 5 0.46 2447.00375102000
1.00 0.00 3213 8 1.00 5271.23470359000
0.10 -0.01 3214 2 0.10 529.61440163700
0.39 -0.02 3215 4 0.39 2051.07736876000
0.12 0.00 3216 2 0.12 653.69208062200
0.04 0.00 3217 1 0.04 213.73400334300
0.22 -0.04 3401 6 0.22 1148.43659455000
0.22 0.00 3402 6 0.22 1146.81857823000
0.15 -0.01 3403 4 0.15 766.32651733000
0.14 0.00 3404 4 0.14 765.36256093000
0.22 -0.01 3405 6 0.22 1147.36189979000

0.17
14.74
0.81
14.40
0.94
0.50
0.17
0.25
0.32
0.50
0.33
2.80
2.00
0.26
0.17
0.33
0.06
0.34
0.22
0.13
0.04
0.11
0.05
0.15
0.05
0.38
0.02
0.04
0.07
0.10
0.14
0.10
0.08
0.50
0.31
0.25
0.25
0.25
0.25
0.53
1.00
0.09
0.37
0.12
0.04
0.18
0.22
0.14
0.14
0.21



0.14 0.01 3406 4 0.14 757.03978872400
0.14 0.00 3407 4 0.14 757.63968074200
0.31 -0.09 3408 6 0.31 1634.74132233000
0.15 -0.08 3409 3 0.15 773.00909642500
0.08 0.00 3410 2 0.08 422.82851120200
0.07 0.01 3411 2 0.07 385.13536377200
0.14 0.00 3412 2 0.14 762.66317778800
0.18 -0.01 3414 3 0.18 956.60549946000
0.21 0.03 3416 3 0.21 1124.89756992000
0.29 0.00 3419 5 0.29 1518.98958046000
0.29 0.00 3421 4 0.29 1516.20956396000
0.05 0.00 3423 1 0.05 280.00436182000
0.24 -0.01 3424 2 0.24 1251.44649801000
0.25 0.00 3426 2 0.25 1299.04113324000
5.49 0.26 4001 19 5.49 28968.28412920000
13.89 0.02 4003 11 13.89 73343.25830190000
4.06 0.24 4004 15 4.06 21456.84639520000
1.11 0.12 4005 5 1.11 5872.04384787000
3.38 -0.01 4006 5 3.38 17842.76297680000
16.17 0.12 4009 6 16.17 85393.68121950000
4.53 -0.01 4010 2 4.53 23893.42985730000
0.26 0.44 4011 1 0.26 1398.14918769000
7.03 -0.07 4012 1 7.03 37101.07692770000
48.69 -0.93 4013 18 48.69 257075.68702300000
0.13 0.00 4014 2 0.13 670.57101817400
0.93 -0.06 4015 9 0.93 4907.78322000000
0.18 -0.01 4016 1 0.18 953.32985321600
18.96 -0.25 4017 10 18.96 100097.89854900000
11.83 1.52 4018 28 11.83 62454.85903080000
5.45 -0.35 4019 15 5.45 28757.86472160000
2.87 -0.14 4020 1 2.87 15133.34936600000
1.47 0.00 4021 7 1.47 7780.76798010000
1.83 -0.11 4022 4 1.83 9674.43647676000
3.36 0.08 4023 3 3.36 17718.12817830000
0.93 0.07 4024 2 0.93 4905.84024076000
4.25 0.12 4025 3 4.25 22460.34808310000
6.77 -0.47 4026 3 6.77 35725.62397900000
7.81 -0.30 4027 1 7.81 41260.75162770000
4.90 0.22 4029 2 4.90 25863.78579830000
0.54 -0.04 4031 1 0.54 2872.14515098000
0.19 0.10 4032 2 0.19 985.82524662200
0.51 -0.28 4033 1 0.51 2676.73981469000
0.26 -0.01 4034 4 0.26 1356.43199067000
0.12 0.00 4035 1 0.12 619.57304345000
0.13 -0.01 4036 1 0.11 600.11742830600
5.73 0.00 4037 9 5.73 30253.51838440000
2.40 -0.02 4038 1 1.92 10145.55817880000
0.78 -0.28 4039 2 0.78 4143.29712253000
0.50 -0.01 4041 2 0.50 2647.25818619000
0.50 0.02 4042 1 0.50 2641.28884274000

0.15
0.14
0.22
0.07
0.08
0.08
0.14
0.17
0.24
0.29
0.29
0.05
0.23
0.25
5.75
13.91
4.30
1.23
3.37
16.29
4.52
0.70
6.96
47.76
0.13
0.87
0.17
18.71
13.35
5.10
2.73
1.47
1.72
3.44
1.00
4.37
6.30
7.51
5.12
0.50
0.29
0.23
0.25
0.12
0.12
5.73
2.38
0.50
0.49
0.52



0.56 0.00 4043 2 0.56 2939.12396106000
0.93 0.00 4044 2 0.93 4914.35993536000
0.58 -0.04 4045 3 0.58 3038.61608658000
0.95 0.01 4046 2 0.95 5039.17097520000
7.07 -0.67 4047 1 7.07 37351.45079110000
0.12 0.00 4048 1 0.12 652.70432111000
0.75 0.02 4049 1 0.75 3972.11944074000
0.35 0.00 4050 2 0.35 1839.16260534000
0.10 0.01 4051 2 0.10 542.99758398900
0.27 0.00 4052 5 0.27 1401.42579379000
0.11 0.10 4053 2 0.11 561.16597888100
0.06 -0.01 4054 1 0.06 295.76187033300
0.12 0.00 4055 1 0.12 657.69211900000
0.24 -0.02 4056 2 0.24 1268.33972549000
0.05 0.00 4057 1 0.05 270.61670919700
0.12 -0.02 4058 4 0.50 2630.14457429000
0.16 -0.01 4060 1 0.16 864.61732193900
0.39 -0.26 4061 4 0.39 2037.03657463000
0.25 0.00 4062 1 0.25 1310.55912287000
0.17 0.00 4063 1 0.17 916.37250096200
0.03 0.00 4201 1 0.03 150.33450885400
0.06 -0.01 4202 2 0.06 292.07381750600
0.26 0.00 4203 9 0.26 1365.00933801000
0.24 0.01 4204 9 0.24 1256.98044041000
0.28 0.00 4205 3 0.28 1463.01741095000
0.55 0.00 4206 6 0.55 2919.88457664000
0.24 0.01 4207 3 0.24 1270.00280917000
0.19 -0.06 4208 2 0.19 1017.62704056000
0.11 -0.01 4209 1 0.11 557.63267774500
0.07 0.05 4401 1 0.07 359.65429542400
0.05 -0.01 4403 1 0.05 270.11555114100
0.16 0.00 4404 4 0.16 838.02982187900
0.46 -0.36 4405 5 0.46 2446.95801797000
0.33 0.03 4407 7 0.33 1733.47928431000
0.10 0.00 4408 2 0.10 505.11880542200
0.36 0.01 4409 6 0.36 1912.05155274000
0.32 0.00 4411 6 0.32 1665.98232659000
0.08 0.00 4412 1 0.08 403.68218670900
0.28 0.00 4413 2 0.28 1467.36313130000
0.20 0.01 4414 5 0.20 1051.09823493000
0.16 0.21 4416 3 0.16 847.75155028800
0.20 0.02 4419 4 0.20 1043.30762191000
0.16 0.00 4421 2 0.16 859.60899909800
0.16 -0.01 4422 1 0.16 857.83916918300
0.24 0.01 4423 2 0.24 1260.94468223000
0.33 -0.16 4424 6 0.33 1750.33854014000
0.19 0.01 4425 4 0.19 998.55946770300
0.34 0.00 4426 1 0.34 1801.31708266000
0.26 -0.01 4427 1 0.26 1361.18933463000
0.10 -0.05 4428 1 0.10 524.93007361700

0.56
0.93
0.54
0.96
6.40
0.12
0.77
0.35
0.11
0.27
0.21
0.05
0.12
0.22
0.05
0.10
0.15
0.13
0.25
0.17
0.03
0.05
0.26
0.25
0.28
0.55
0.25
0.13
0.10
0.12
0.04
0.16
0.10
0.36
0.10
0.37
0.32
0.08
0.28
0.21
0.37
0.22
0.16
0.15
0.25
0.17
0.20
0.34
0.25
0.05



0.11 0.00 4429 3 0.11 565.54269494800
0.08 -0.06 4430 2 0.08 433.04729815200
1.80 0.21 5001 3 1.80 9488.54362675000
5.17 0.04 5002 6 5.17 27318.77371700000
7.31 -0.15 5003 4 16.96 89545.28775690000
36.70 -0.91 5005 20 36.70 193757.51955900000
2.53 -0.03 5006 7 2.53 13332.19640630000
30.17 -0.19 5007 32 30.17 159274.20171400000
2.04 0.00 5008 2 2.60 13744.02653410000
20.81 0.11 5009 10 20.81 109864.38608200000
6.19 0.14 5010 2 6.19 32699.57014000000
5.48 0.24 5011 12 5.48 28947.17528160000
2.80 -0.01 5012 8 2.80 14772.48528640000
5.75 1.08 5013 8 5.75 30386.26872680000
4.11 -0.04 5014 12 4.11 21689.97148050000
7.85 -0.20 5015 4 7.85 41423.08984010000
8.66 0.17 5016 3 8.66 45731.71524660000
23.92 2.03 5017 20 23.92 126307.11820900000
13.92 0.06 5018 6 13.92 73508.32454280000
3.60 0.03 5019 3 3.60 19033.31889040000
0.87 0.00 5020 5 0.87 4594.35934648000
1.07 -0.06 5021 3 1.07 5673.83974037000
4.25 0.75 5022 6 4.25 22461.19302870000
0.40 -0.01 5023 2 0.40 2093.22229692000
10.15 0.23 5024 2 10.15 53575.72192600000
5.46 -0.01 5025 5 5.46 28824.34616810000
1.57 0.04 5026 1 1.57 8280.10125917000
2.61 0.01 5027 3 2.61 13798.87219530000
0.23 0.30 5028 1 0.52 2722.90038948000
34.13 0.10 5029 43 34.13 180213.58676500000
0.42 0.18 5030 1 0.42 2221.56692624000
0.53 0.62 5031 2 0.53 2773.18588032000
4.90 0.04 5032 1 4.90 25862.20460220000
4.46 0.10 5033 2 4.46 23559.49887280000
3.64 0.00 5034 3 3.64 19228.02694640000
20.06 0.02 5035 8 20.06 105937.33872200000
9.11 0.03 5036 3 9.11 48119.54829050000
0.41 -0.01 5037 1 0.41 2159.31036664000
5.48 2.48 5038 3 5.48 28918.38611940000
1.08 -0.17 5039 1 1.42 7471.67819185000
9.84 0.80 5040 5 9.84 51958.22679740000
0.58 0.02 5041 5 0.58 3077.42963659000
0.77 -0.07 5043 2 0.77 4091.99309946000
1.85 -0.11 5044 7 3.82 20160.35717180000
0.80 -0.05 5045 1 0.80 4206.90054864000
0.19 0.06 5046 1 0.19 983.88935932200
4.96 0.09 5048 2 6.03 31854.89152730000
1.04 0.00 5049 1 1.03 5414.88720423000
1.11 0.03 5050 1 1.11 5839.93761317000
13.95 0.87 5051 2 13.95 73633.48555220000

0.11
0.02
2.01
5.21
7.16
35.79
2.50
29.98
2.04
20.92
6.33
5.72
2.79
6.83
4.07
7.65
8.83
25.95
13.98
3.63
0.87
1.01
5.00
0.39
10.38
5.45
1.61
2.62
0.53
34.23
0.60
1.15
4.94
4.56
3.64
20.08
9.14
0.40
7.96
0.91
10.64
0.60
0.70
1.74
0.75
0.25
5.05
1.04
1.14
14.82



0.61 0.02 5052 1 0.61 3206.56905268000
0.20 0.04 5053 1 0.20 1077.19283277000
0.11 0.06 5054 2 0.11 567.92005189300
1.01 -0.03 5055 6 1.01 5356.64943991000
0.63 -0.17 5056 3 0.63 3343.40328648000
0.33 0.00

0.00
0.90 -0.06 5058 3 0.90 4747.60785265000
0.25 -0.14 5059 1 0.25 1336.01526500000
0.67 -0.22 5060 5 0.67 3527.96326290000
0.46 -0.01 5061 1 0.46 2438.04151211000
0.43 -0.20 5062 3 0.43 2279.08509409000
0.51 -0.01 5069 3 0.51 2713.58206285000
0.40 -0.01 5070 1 0.40 2106.37272907000
0.11 -0.01 5071 1 0.11 559.65145273800
3.03 -0.52 5072 2 3.03 16022.97853680000
1.26 -0.13 5073 4 1.26 6669.49549036000
0.42 -0.32 5074 8 0.42 2195.07579904000
0.19 0.00 5075 3 0.19 1025.35938765000
0.41 -0.06 5076 1 0.71 3728.90974062000
1.53 -0.03 5077 5 1.53 8065.29273450000
1.51 -0.01 5078 4 1.51 7948.67979134000
0.18 -0.01 5201 4 0.18 963.89911568800
0.11 0.02 5202 2 0.11 573.86919414400
0.05 0.00 5203 2 0.09 477.16496384200
0.25 -0.01 5204 2 0.25 1318.67084827000
0.24 0.00 5205 3 0.24 1275.96496150000
0.17 -0.04 5206 1 0.25 1340.44835408000
0.58 -0.08 1001A 1 0.58 3064.16831505000
0.09 0.01 1069A 2 0.09 488.88967369500
0.06 -0.01 1070A 1 0.06 303.79482806300
0.25 -0.03 1079A 1 0.25 1310.16768557000
0.07 0.24 1110A 1 0.07 362.52436511500
0.46 0.00 2085A 1 0.46 2418.13178852000
3.15 0.33 3027A 4 4.32 22831.05010670000
0.05 0.00 3206A 1 0.05 262.04232090200
0.03 0.04 3401A 1 0.03 138.12752396400
0.07 0.01 3402A 2 0.07 378.48504545400
0.22 0.00 3403A 6 0.22 1142.18283149000
0.22 -0.01 3404A 6 0.22 1143.92424948000
0.39 0.01 3405A 9 0.77 4046.28524514000
0.18 -0.01 3406A 4 0.18 945.81577480700
0.22 -0.01 3407A 6 0.22 1141.37602241000
0.18 -0.04 3408A 5 0.18 960.51764003600
0.18 -0.10 3409A 5 0.18 960.68751912100
0.34 -0.14 3414A 5 0.34 1776.93433291000
0.37 0.00 3416A 5 0.37 1946.21826365000
0.29 0.00 3419A 4 0.29 1515.16457592000
0.47 -0.22 3421A 6 0.47 2498.93095414000

0.63
0.24
0.17
0.98
0.46
0.33

0.84
0.11
0.45
0.45
0.23
0.50
0.39
0.10
2.51
1.13
0.10
0.19
0.35
1.50
1.50
0.17
0.13
0.05
0.24
0.24
0.13
0.50
0.10
0.05
0.22
0.31
0.46
3.48
0.05
0.07
0.08
0.22
0.21
0.40
0.17
0.21
0.14
0.08
0.20
0.37
0.29
0.25



0.21 0.12 4006A 1 0.21 1092.01571429000
0.20 0.06 4006B 1 0.20 1037.66810118000
0.06 0.00 4403A 2 0.06 294.03232625800
0.40 0.00 4403B 5 0.40 2091.39004850000
0.08 0.01 4404A 3 0.08 444.89657114300
0.09 0.44 4405A 4 0.09 498.61295980700
0.11 -0.03 4407A 3 0.11 570.74567714500
0.11 0.00 4409A 3 0.11 571.85633068900
0.08 0.00 4410A 1 0.08 399.32679097100
0.03 0.00 4413A 1 0.03 167.69262848000
0.16 -0.01 4414A 3 0.16 839.00902102500
0.21 0.00 4416A 4 0.21 1123.57597717000
0.05 0.00 4419A 1 0.05 278.12525360900
0.24 0.01 4421A 3 0.24 1264.90817236000
0.24 0.02 4422A 3 0.24 1271.05662523000
0.25 0.01 4423A 2 0.25 1325.16097601000
0.16 0.18 4424A 1 0.16 863.16018841400
12.32 0.20 5005A 11 12.32 65045.46218130000
4.75 -0.04 5013A 1 4.75 25089.52736420000
11.87 0.22 5035A 5 11.87 62685.65851230000

5053A 1 0.05 265.68170999400
5054A 1 0.06 293.45990860400

1095.56

1114.79

old MM from
prior
submittals

GIS
corrected
(2020)

Prior
year
delta
(2019/20
20)

current
year delta

(20/21)
RD# freq.

Current GIS Length (2021)

0.70 1.19 -0.49 0.05 1005 4 1.24 6545.32672671000
9.40 9.47 -0.07 0.03 1009 14 9.50 50152.73293240000
1.87 1.89 -0.02 1013 4 2.60 13748.91608380000

8.40 0.00 -1.09 1048 6 7.31 38619.47914370000
0.78 0.00 1089 1 1.52 8006.98613919000
1.28 -0.13 1103 5 2.02 10650.08987950000
1.96 -0.14 2015 8 3.30 17449.75183800000
31.76 3.51 19.58 2017 28 51.34 271086.69606100000
6.61 -0.01 2018 25 7.78 41102.20064640000
3.92 -0.42 -0.17 2028 8 3.75 19825.94879840000
12.00 -0.14 1.09 2048 2 13.09 69130.35784270000
31.57 1.34 -19.58 3017 4 11.99 63313.12251870000

0.33
0.26
0.06
0.40
0.09
0.53
0.08
0.11
0.08
0.03
0.15
0.21
0.05
0.25
0.26
0.26
0.34
12.52
4.71
12.09

8.40
0.78
1.15
1.82
35.27
6.60
3.50
11.86
32.91



1.97 -0.03 -1.18

3024 1 0.79 4188.30421111000
4.26 0.17 0.17 3028 5 4.43 23385.09699900000
2.21 -0.21 0.13 3056 2 2.34 12331.29089050000
0.13 -0.01 -0.02

4036 1 0.11 600.11742830600
2.40 -0.02 -0.48

4038 1 1.92 10145.55817880000
0.12 -0.02 4058 4 0.50 2630.14457429000
7.31 -0.15 5003 4 16.96 89545.28775690000
2.04 0.00 0.56 5008 2 2.60 13744.02653410000
0.23 0.30 0.29 5028 1 0.52 2722.90038948000
1.08 -0.17 0.34 5039 1 1.42 7471.67819185000
1.85 -0.11 5044 7 3.82 20160.35717180000
4.96 0.09 5048 2 6.03 31854.89152730000
1.04 0.00 -0.01

5049 1 1.03 5414.88720423000
0.33 0.00 -0.33 REMOVED

0.00
0.41 -0.06 5076 1 0.71 3728.90974062000
0.05 0.00 0.04 5203 2 0.09 477.16496384200
0.17 -0.04 0.08 5206 1 0.25 1340.44835408000
3.15 0.33 1.17

3027A 4 4.32 22831.05010670000
0.39 0.01 3405A 9 0.77 4046.28524514000

5053A 1 0.05 265.68170999400

5054A 1 0.06 293.45990860400

1.94

4.43
2.00
0.12

2.38

0.10
7.16
2.04
0.53
0.91
1.74
5.05
1.04

0.33

0.35
0.05
0.13
3.48

0.40



0.41 0.31 0.42



Mono County  LiRoads End 1001 1
1007  Old Sherwin Grade Road1003  Round Valley Road1002 1
1010  South Rou1002 Boundary Rd1003 1
1003  Round ValRoads End 1004 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 1005 2
1003  North Round Valley RoadHwy 395 South1006 1
1009  Pine CreeMono County - P1007 1
1009  Pine Cree1003  Round Val1008 1
1009  Pine CreeRoads End 1009 2
1003  Round Val1013  Sawmill R1010 1
1010  Round ValRoads End 1011 1
1007  Old Sherwin Grade RoadHwy 395 1012 1
1016  Ed PowersHwy 395 South1013 2
1016  Ed PowersRoads End 1014 1
1013 Sawmill RdRoad End 1015 1
Hwy 168 Hwy 395 1016 1
1016  Ed PowersHwy 168 1017 1
1023  Sunrise DRoads End 1018 1
2085  Bishop CrRoads End 1019 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 1020 1
8012  Non Count2085  Bishop Cr1021 1
Hwy 395 1038  Chalk Bluff Road1022 1
1033  Barlow LaRoads End 1023 1
1017  Red HillRoads End 1024 1
Hwy 168 1027 Reata Rd1025 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 1026 1
Hwy 168 1028  Underwood1027 1
1027  Reata Roa1033  Barlow La1028 1
Hwy 168 1051  Mountian1029 1
Hwy 168 1032  Dixon Lane1030 1
1030  BrockmanHwy 6 1031 1
1030  Brockman LaneHwy 6 1032 1
1028 Underwood Ln1106 Saniger Ln1033 1
1033  Barlow LaneRoads End 1034 1
2034  Sunland D1033  Barlow La1035 1
1037  Jean Blanc RoadHwy 6 1036 1
1038  Chalk Bluff Road1036  Five Bridges Road1037 1
1022  Pleasant Valley Dam Road1037  Jean Blanc Road1038 1
1038 Chalk Bluff RdMono County1039 1
1037  Jean Blanc RoadMono County Line1040 1
Hwy 6 Road End 1041 1
Mono CountyRoads End 1042 1
1044  Silver Canyon Road1037  Jean Blanc Road1043 1
1045  Laws PoleHwy 6 1044 1
1044  Silver Canyon Road2045  Poleta Laws Road1045 1
HWY 168 1083 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD1046 1
Hwy 168 8039  Non Count1047 1
8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road1048 2



Hwy 168 Roads End 1049 1
1033  Barlow LaneRoads End 1050 1
1029  McLaren L1052  Ranch Roa1051 1
1053  Mt. Tom R1055  Mt. View1052 1
1052 RANCH RDROAD END1053 1
1052  Ranch RoaRoads End 1054 1
1052 RANCH ROADROAD END1055 1
1033  Barlow LaRoads End 1056 1
1037  Jean Blanc RoadRoads End 1058 1
Hwy 168 Hwy 395 1059 1
Hwy 168 Hwy 395 1060 1
Hwy 395 Road End 1061 1
1030  Brockman Lane1059  See Vee Lane1062 1
HWY 168 1078 INDIAN CREEK DR1063 1
1045  Laws Poleta RoadRoads End 1064 1
1064 FLYNN RDRoads End 1065 1
1028  Underwood LaneRoads End 1066 1
Hwy 168 1071  Pinion Ro1067 1
1072  Laurel Ro"1069 Birch St,"1068 1
1082 GRANDVIEW RD1063 PA ME LN1069 1
1082 GRANDVIEW RD1068 MESQUITE RD1070 1
1070 Cedar StRoad End 1071 1
1071  Pinion Road1082  Grandview Drive1072 1
1052  Ranch RoaRoads End 1073 1
1033  Barlow LaneRoads End 1074 1
1027  Reata RoaRoads End 1075 1
1033  Barlow LaRoads End 1076 1
1016  Ed PowersRoads End 1077 1
1063  Pa Me LaneRoads End 1078 1
Roads End 1070  Cedar Str1079 1
1063  Pa Me LanRoads End 1080 1
1068 MESQUITE RD1069 BIRCH ST1081 1
1068 MesquiteHwy 168 1082 1
2083  White MouMono County1083 1
Hwy 395 1086  Bar M Lane1084 1
1057  Irene Street1116  Carol Lane1085 1
1091  Rocking W DriveRoads End 1086 1
1091  Rocking W DriveRoads End 1087 1
1033  Barlow Lane1090  Orinda Drive1088 1
1010  Round Valley RoadRoads End 1089 2
1028  Underwood1076  Sierra Vi1090 1
1087  Bar L. LaRoads End 1091 1
Roads End Roads End 1092 1
Roads End Roads End 1093 1
1098  Mesa VistRoads End 1094 1
1092  Arboles DriveRoads End 1095 1
1092  Arboles DriveRoads End 1096 1
1098  Mesa Vista Drive1092  Arboles Drive1097 1
Hwy 395 1092  Arboles D1098 1
1092  Arboles DriveRoads End 1099 1



1029  McLaren LaneRoads End 1100 1
1052  Ranch RoadRoads End 1101 1
1052  Ranch RoadRoads End 1102 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 1103 2
1077  Rocking K1077  Rocking K1104 1
1104  Running Iron RoadRoads End 1105 1
1032  Dixon Lan1107  Juniper S1106 1
1106 SANIGER LN1108 VALLEY VIEW DR1107 1
1032  Dixon LanRoads End 1108 1
1106  Saniger LRoads End 1109 1
1103  StarliteRoads End 1110 1
1103  Starlite DriveRoads End 1111 1
1103  Starlite DriveRoads End 1112 1
1044  Silver Canyon RoadUnnamed Road1113 1
1003  Round Valley RoadRoads End 1114 1
Roads End 1103  Starlite Drive1115 1
Roads End Roads End 1116 1
Roads End Roads End 1117 1
1076  Sierra Vi1117  Audrey La1118 1
1121  Sioux LaneRoads End 1119 1
1120 SIOUX LN1108 VALLEY VIEW DR1120 1
1120  ChoctawRoads End 1121 1
ROAD END1108 VALLEY VIEW DR1122 1
1075  Watterson RoadRoads End 1123 1
1108  Valley View DriveRoads End 1124 1
1124  Bear CreeRoads End 1125 1
1109  West StreetRoads End 1126 1
Roads End Roads End 1127 1
Roads End Roads End 1128 1
1120  Choctaw LaneRoads End 1129 1
1120  Chotaw LaRoads End 1130 1
1033  Barlow LaRoads End 1131 1
Roads End Roads End 1132 1
1132  Summer Haze CircleRoads End 1133 1
Roads End Roads End 1134 1
1131  Sunset DrRoads End 1135 1
1131  Sunset DrRoads End 1136 1
1108  Valley ViRoads End 1137 1
1106  Saniger LaneRoads End 1138 1
1127  Shoshone Drive1127  Shoshone1139 1
1106  Saniger LRoads End 1140 1
1108  Valley View DriveRoads End 1141 1
1106  Saniger LaneRoads End 1142 1
1127  Shoshone DriveRoads End 1143 1
1127 SHOSHONE DRROAD END1144 1
1108  Valley View DriveRoads End 1145 1
2017  Death ValRoads End 2011 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2012 1
Bishop City Lin2014  Eastside Road2013 1
2013  Poleta Road2018  Warm Springs Road2014 1



2014  EastsideRoads End 2015 2
2014  Eastside RoadNat'l Forest Boundary2016 1
Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd2017 2
2014  EastsideRoads End 2018 2
2020  Gerkin RoadRoads End 2019 1
2019  Collins RoadRoads End 2020 1
Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro2021 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2022 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2023 1
2025 North Lake RdRoads End 2024 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2025 1
HWY 168 ROAD END2026 1
Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro2027 1
3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road2028 2
Hwy 395 Roads End 2029 1

2030 1
HWY 395 1035 SCHOBER LN2031 1
Hwy 168 Hwy 395 2034 1
2034  Sunland D1033  Barlow La2035 1
2020  Gerkin RoadRoads End 2039 1
2039  Cottonwood LaneRoads End 2040 1
2040 Cherry TrailRoad End 2041 1
COTTONWOOD LNROAD END2042 1
2034  Sunland DriveBishop 2043 1
HWY 395 Road End 2044 1
1044  Silver Canyon Road2045  Poleta Laws Road2045 1
Eureka Valley Road 2047 1
8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road2048 2
Death Valley RoadRoads End 2049 1
2013  Poleta RoRoads End 2050 1
2013  Poleta RoadRoads End 2053 1
2020  Gerkin Ro2059  Sierra La2054 1
2020  Gerkin RoadRoads End 2055 1
2055  FoothillRoads End 2056 1
2020  Gerkin RoadRoads End 2057 1
2020  Gerkin RoRoads End 2058 1
2054  Rawson CrRoads End 2059 1
2020  Gerkin Ro2059  Sierra La2060 1
2019  Collins RoadRoads End 2062 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2081 1
2083  White MouMono County2083 1
HWY 395 ROAD END2084 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2085 1
2088  CataractRoads End 2086 1
2090  Cardinal RoadRoads End 2087 1
Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive2088 1
HWY 168 2081 ALPINE RD2089 1
Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive2090 1
2086  White Pine RoadRoads End 2091 1
2025 North Lake Rd2026 Sabrina Rd2092 1



Hwy 168 Roads End 2093 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2094 1
2022  South Lake Road2096  Canyon Road2095 1
2095  Habegger LaneRoads End 2096 1
2096  Canyon RoRoads End 2097 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2098 1
2081  Alpine DrRoads End 2099 1
2081  Alpine DriveRoads End 2100 1
2039  Cottonwood LaneRoads End 2101 1
3002 Glacier Lodge RdRoads End 3001 1
3212  West StreetRoads End 3002 1
3028  County RoHwy 395 3003 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3004 1
3002  Glacier Lodge RoadRoads End 3005 1
Glacier Lodge RdNon County Road3006 1
3001  Sugar Loaf RoadRoads End 3007 1
2017 Death Valley RdRoads End 3008 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3009 1
3006  McMurray Meadows RoadRoads End 3010 1
Hwy 395 3009  Bartell R3011 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3012 1
Nat'l Forest Bo4013  Saline Va3013 1
Roads End 3017A  Death Va3014 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3015 1
3015  Big Pine Dump RoadRoads End 3016 1
2017 Death Valley Rd NorthDVNP Boundary3017 2
Roads End 3035  Fish Spri3018 1
3018  Tinnemaha RoadRoads End 3019 1
3018  Tinnemaha RoadRoads End 3020 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3021 1
3018  TinnemahaNat'l Forest Bo3022 1
3018  TinnemahaROAD END3023 1
3018  Tinnemaha Road3027  Coloseum Road3024 2
3018  Tinnemaha RoadNat'l Forest Boundary3025 1
3025  DivisionRoad End 3026 1
Hwy 395 3027A N Coloseum Road3027 1
3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road3028 2
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3029 1
Hwy 395 3031  Oak Creek Road3030 1
3030  Fish HatcRoads End 3031 1
3030  Fish HatcRoads End 3032 1
3407  Payne Str3406  Kearsarge3033 1
3036  Shabbell Lane3030  Fish Hatchery Road3034 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3035 1
HWY 395 3029 FORT INDEPENDENCE3036 1
3405  Market StRoads End 3037 1
3409 PARK ST3409 PARK ST3038 1
INYO ST PARK ST 3039 1
3408  Pavillion Street3401 Inyo Steet3040 1
3401  Inyo StreetRoads End 3041 1



3411  Sierra Street3405  Market Street3042 1
Hwy 395 Nat'l Forest Bo3045 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3046 1
3405  West MarkNat'l Forest Bo3047 1
3050 Baker Ln3051 Butcher Ln3048 1
3050 BAKER LN3009 BARTELL RD3049 1
3048  Crater Street3049  Piper Street3050 1
Hwy 395 3011  Newman Street3051 1
3047  Onion ValRoads End 3052 1
3035  Fish Springs Road3018  Tinnemaha Road3053 1
3003  Reynolds3003  Reynolds3054 1
3047  Onion Valley RoadRoads End 3055 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3056 2
3003  Reynolds Road3061  Elm Crest3057 1
3003  Reynolds Road3059  Mountain Road3058 1
3057 Pine Rd3060 Meadow Lark Rd3059 1
3059  Mountian3061  Elmcrest3060 1
Roads End Roads End 3061 1
Roads End 3070  Olivia Lane3063 1
3063  Carmelea Lane3070  Olivia Lane3064 1
3003  Reynolds Road3064  Marianne Way3065 1
3065 Julie Ann LnRoad End 3066 1
3066  Betty LouRoads End 3067 1
3003  Reynolds3070  Olivia Ro3068 1
3068  Myrtle LaneRoads End 3069 1
3028  County RoHwy 395 3070 1
3063 Carmela LaRoads End 3071 1
3070 OLIVIA LANEROAD END3072 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3201 1
3216  Washington Street3215  Pine Street3202 1
3216 WASHINGTON STHWY 395 3203 1
3215  Pine Street3216  Washington Street3204 1
3212  West StreRoads End 3205 1
Hwy 395 3212  West Street3206 1
3213  School StreetRoads End 3207 1
3213  School StreetRoads End 3208 1
Hwy 395 3213  School Street3209 1
3213  West StreHwy 395 3210 1
Hwy 395 3213  School Street3211 1

3212 1
3211 Blake Rd3028 County Road3213 1
3209  Chestnut Street3208  Dewey Street3214 1
3201 POPLAR STHWY 395 3215 1
3204  Home Stre3202  Center St3216 1
3209  ChestnutRoads End 3217 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3401 1
Hwy 395 3423  Crockett3402 1
Hwy 395 3421  Clay Street3403 1
3421  Clay StreetHwy 395 3404 1
Hwy 395 3047  Onion Valley Road3405 1



3421  Clay StreetHwy 395 3406 1
3421  Clay StreHwy 395 3407 1
3424  RosedaleHwy 395 3408 1
3419  Jackson StreetHwy 395 3409 1
HWY 395 3416 WASHINGTON ST3410 1
3424 ROSEDALE ST3426 VALLEY VIEW DR3411 1
3402  Wall Street3403  Main Street3412 1
3405  Market StRoads End 3414 1
3405  Market St3401  Inyo Stre3416 1
3401  Inyo Street3405  Market Street3419 1
3401  Inyo Street3405  Market Street3421 1
3402 WALL STROAD END3423 1
3408 PAVILLION ST3405 MARKET ST3424 1
3405 MARKET STRoads End 3426 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4001 1
4001  Manzanar4010  Dolomite4003 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4004 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 4005 1
HWY 395 4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD4006 1
4013  Saline Valley RoadRoads End 4009 1
Hwy 136 Hwy 136 4010 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4011 1
Nat'l Park Boun4013  Saline Va4012 1
3013  Waucoba S5013  Saline Va4013 1
4015  Putnam Road4018  Whitney Portal Road4014 1
4018  Whitney Portal RoadRoad End 4015 1
4015 Putnam RoadRoad End 4016 1
4018  Whitney Portal RoadRoads End 4017 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4018 1
4018  Whitney P4023  Lubken Ca4019 1
4017  Horseshoe Meadows RoadRoads End 4020 1
4425  Line StreRoads End 4021 1
4019  Tuttle Creek Road4048  Dominy Road4022 1
Hwy 395 4017  Horshoe M4023 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4024 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4025 1
4037  Movie Road4004  Moffatt Ranch Road4026 1
8054  Non County RoadHwy 136 4027 1
5013  Saline VaRoads End 4029 1
4206 OLD STATE HWYROAD END4031 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4032 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4033 1
4005  Pangborn LaneRoads End 4034 1
4034 LASKY LNROAD END4035 1
4034  Lasky LaneRoads End 4036 2
4018  Whiteny P4026  Hogback R4037 1
4018  Whitney PRoads End 4038 2
TUTTLE CREEK RDUNNAMED RD4039 1
4021  Sub Station RoadRoads End 4041 1
4058 TEYA RD4021 SUB STATION RD4042 1



Hwy 395 Roads End 4043 1
4019  Tuttle Cr4045  Shahar Av4044 1
Roads End Roads End 4045 1
4044 Thundercloud Ln4017 Horseshoe Meadows Rd4046 1
4013  Saline Valley RoadRoads End 4047 1
4022  Indian Springs DriveRoads End 4048 1
4019  Tuttle Creek Road4050  McDonald Road4049 1
4045  Shahar Av4022  Indian Sp4050 1
4404  Willow St4018 Whitney Portal Rd4051 1
4403  Locust StRoads End 4052 1
4409  Post Stre4403  Locust St4053 1
4404 WILLOW ST4403 LOCUST ST4054 1
4411  Muir Stre4422  Hay Stree4055 1
4411  Muir Stre4407  Mountian4056 1
4405  Bush Stre4404  Willow St4057 1
Hwy 395 4042  Zucco Roa4058 2
4018 Whitney Portal Rd4061 Mt Langley Lane4060 1
4060 Whitney Vista Dr4063 Valley View Dr4061 1
4022 Indian Springs RdRoad End 4062 1
4018 Whitney Portal Rd4061 Mt Langley Ln4063 1
4206  Old State Highway4205  Yerington Avenue4201 1
4206  Old State Highway4205  Yerington Avenue4202 1
Hwy 136 4209  Maud Street4203 1
4209  Maud StreetHwy 136 4204 1
4201 LINCOLN ST4204 CERRO GORDO4205 1
4031  Olancha DHwy 136 4206 1
4204  Cerro Gor4206  Old State4207 1
4204  Cerro Gordo StreetRoads End 4208 1
4203 MALONE ST4204 CERRO GORDO4209 1
4419  Jackson StreetHwy 395 4401 1
4416  Washingto4414  Brewery S4403 1
HWY 395 LONE PINE AVE4404 1
4428  Fairbanks StreetHwy 395 4405 1
4414  Brewery SHwy 395 4407 1
4421 LONE PINE RDHWY 395 4408 1
4425  Line StreHwy 395 4409 1
4055  Street E"4056 Street F,0.000"4411 1
4424 Lake View Ave4425 Line St4412 1
Hwy 395 4425 Line St4413 1
Roads End 4407  West Mountain View Street4414 1
4407 Mountain View St4403 Statham Way4416 1
4401 Begole St4407 Mountain View St4419 1
4403  Statham Way4407  Mountian4421 1
4403  Statham Way4407  Mountain View Street4422 1
4411 MUIR ST4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST4423 1
4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST4413 INYO ST4424 1
4413  Inyo Street4409  Post Street4425 1
4414  Brewery S4018  Whitney P4426 1
HWY 395 ROAD END4427 1
4405  Bush Street4018  Whitney Portal Road4428 1



4414  Brewery SHwy 395 4429 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4430 1
Nevada State LineRoads End 5001 1
Hwy 127 Nevada State Li5002 1
5005  Furnace CHwy 127 5003 2
Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road5005 1
5005  Furnace C5007  Old Spani5006 1
Hwy 127 Nevada State Li5007 1
5005  Furnace Creek RoadRoads End 5008 2
5050  Western TNevada State Li5009 1
5005 FURNACE CREEK RDROAD END5010 1
Hwy 190 5074 Market St5011 1
Hwy 190 Roads End 5012 1
HWY 190 4013 Saline Valley Rd5013 1
5015 Ophir RoadRoad End 5014 1
5075  Second Av5016  Old Toll5015 1
5015  Ophir RoadHwy 190 5016 1
Hwy 190 5029  Trona-Wil5017 1
5029  Trona-WilHwy 190 5018 1
5018  Panamint5017  Nadeau Ro5019 1

5020 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5021 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5022 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5023 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5024 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5025 1
HWY 395 ROAD END5026 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5027 1
5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway5028 2
SBD County8070  Non Count5029 1
Hwy 190 Roads End 5030 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 5031 1
5017  Nadeu Roa5018  Panamint5032 1
5035  Wingate RRoads End 5033 1
5029  Trona-Wildrose Road5035  Wingate Road5034 1
SAN BERNARDINO5034 Ballarat Rd5035 1
8093  Non County Road5035  Wingate Road5036 1
5029  Trona-Wil5044  Stockwell5037 1
5039  Sykes RoadRoads End 5038 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5039 2
Hwy 395 Tulare County L5040 1
5006  Tecop Hot Springs Road8080  Non County Road5041 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5043 1
5037  Valley WeRoads End 5044 2
5029  Trona-WilRoads End 5045 1
5041  Downey RoadRoads End 5046 1
5029  Trona-Wildrose RoadRoads End 5048 2
5009 MESQUITESan Bernardino County5049 2
5005  Furnace CSan Bernardino5050 1
5050  Western TNevada State Li5051 1



Hwy 127 Hwy 127 5052 1
5014 Zinc Hill Rd5053A Fourth St5053 1 5053 1
5014 Zinc Hill Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd5054 1 5054 2
5012  Talc CityHwy 190 5055 1
5029  Trona-WilRoads End 5056 1

2 Dawn Loop was included in the 2019 submittal but is
not a road.  Remove from MM for 2020 submittal.

5006  Tecopa Ho5006  Tecopa Ho5058 1
5058  Noonday S5058  Noonday S5059 1
5041  Downey Road5005  Furnace Creek Road5060 1
5048  Homewood Canyon RoadRoads End 5061 1
5006  Tecopa Hot Springs RoadRoads End 5062 1
5020 FALL RDROAD END5069 1
5020  Fall RoadRoads End 5070 1
5020  Fall RoadRoads End 5071 1
5040  Nine MileKern County Lin5072 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 5073 1
5011 Olancha Darwin Rd5075 SE Second Ave5074 1
5074 MARKET ST5015 OPHIR RD5075 1
5077 Enchanted Lakes RoadRoads End 5076 2
Hwy 395 Roads End 5077 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 5078 1
5206  Mojave StHwy 39 5201 1

5202 1
5204  Sierra St5205  Cartago S5203 2
5201 Whitney St5203 Owen St5204 1
5203 OWENS ST5201 WHINTEY ST5205 1
5201 Whitney StRoad End 5206 2
1001 Rock Creek RdRoad End 1001A 1
ROAD ENDROAD END1069A 1
1067 MEADOW LN1079 TUMBLEWEED RD1070A 1
1078  Indian CrRoads End 1079A 1
1103  StarliteRoads End 1110A 1
Hwy 168 Roads End 2085A 1
Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3027A 2
Hwy 395 3215 Pine 3206A 1
3405  Market StROAD END3401A 1
3416  WashingtoHwy 395 3402A 1
3412  Grant StreetHwy 395 3403A 1
Hwy 395 3412  Grant Street3404A 1
3424  RosedaleHwy 395 3405A 2
Hwy 395 Roads End 3406A 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 3407A 1
Hwy 395 3414  Webster Street3408A 1
Hwy 395 3416  Washington Street3409A 1
3408  Pavilion3405  Market St3414A 1
3410  Citrus St3405  Market St3416A 1
3405  Market Street3409  Park Street3419A 1
3405  Market StreetRoads End 3421A 1



4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD4006A 1
4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD4006B 1
Hwy 395 4416  Washingto4403A 1
4424  LakeviewHwy 395 4403B 1
HWY 395 STREET A 4404A 1
Hwy 395 Roads End 4405A 1
Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S4407A 1
Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S4409A 1
4424 S Lake View Rd4425 Line St4410A 1
Hwy 395 Non County Road4413A 1
4407  West Mountain View Street4403  Statham Way4414A 1
4407 Mountain View St4430 Gene Autry Ln4416A 1
4408 E Whitney Portal Rd4407 W Mountain View St4419A 1
4407  Mountain View Street4411  Muir Street4421A 1
4407  Mountain View Street4411  Muir Stre4422A 1
4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW STROAD END4423A 1
4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST4403 STATHAM WAY4424A 1
Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road5005A 1
HWY 190 5013  Saline Va5013A 1
5034  Ballarat Road5029  Trona-Wildrose Road5035A 1
5053 Fulton StMarket St 5053A 2
5023 Reddy Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd5054A 2

514

63.33

Action

Hwy 395 Hwy 395 1005 2 Removed short segment crossing Hwy
1009  Pine CreeRoads End 1009 2 Removed short segment crossing Hwy
1016  Ed PowersHwy 395 South1013 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road1048 2 Edit to match 2019 extent
1010  Round Valley RoadRoads End 1089 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
Hwy 168 Roads End 1103 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
2014  EastsideRoads End 2015 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd2017 2 Edit to match 2019 extent
2014  EastsideRoads End 2018 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road2028 2 Edit to match 2019 extent
8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road2048 2 Edit to match 2019 extent
2017 Death Valley Rd NorthDVNP Boundary3017 2 Edit to match 2019 extent



3018  Tinnemaha Road3027  Coloseum Road3024

2
2019 had Black Rock Springs included on the east
side of 395.  GIS calls that section out as
colloseum road.  Needs to be edited to match
2019.  Coloseum needs to be name changed to
match Blackrock extent from 2019

3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road3028 2 Edit to match 2019 extent
Hwy 395 Roads End 3056 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal

4034  Lasky LaneRoads End 4036

2 Needs to be extended to match 2019 submittal…
any idea where the change came from?

4018  Whitney PRoads End 4038
2 Needs to be extended to match 2019 submittal

Hwy 395 4042  Zucco Roa4058 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5005  Furnace CHwy 127 5003 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5005  Furnace Creek RoadRoads End 5008 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway5028 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
Hwy 395 Roads End 5039 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5037  Valley WeRoads End 5044 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5029  Trona-Wildrose RoadRoads End 5048 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal

5009 MESQUITESan Bernardino County5049

2 Needs to be extended to match 2019 submittal…
Where are the small changes coming from?

2 Dawn Loop was included in 2019 MM list, need to
make sure it is included in an Exhibit A doc removing it
from MM.

5077 Enchanted Lakes RoadRoads End 5076 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal
5204  Sierra St5205  Cartago S5203 2 Edited by Ashley to match???
5201 Whitney StRoad End 5206 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal

Hwy 395 Hwy 395 3027A

2 Needs to be trimmed to match the 2019
submittal that changed the southern portion
name to black rock springs

3424  RosedaleHwy 395 3405A 2 Edited by Ashley to match 2019 submittal

5053 Fulton StMarket St 5053A

2

Ness Street (RD5053 in 2019) was split into
Fourth Street (RD5053A) and W. Fulton Street
(new name for RD5053).  I believe that the
current mileage is correct on both segments.
Need to find if name changes and mileage needs
to be added to exhibit A still.  See below.

5023 Reddy Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd5054A

2



Correct names are associated with
the 2019 shape file but for some
reason the former school street
and ness street were included in
the MM Log instead of the newly
split roads.  Still trying to figure
out what needs to happen here but
further GIS edits are not needed.

School Street (RD5054 in 2019) was split into
Reddy Street (new name for RD5054) and NW
Second Street (RD5054A).  I think the summed
mileage for the two segments is currently correct
and matches the shape file data from 2019.  I
don't know why School and Ness show up in the
MM Log certified in 2019 with 'corrected'
mileages that don't seem to match.





















0.20 1077 W FULTON ST5014 Zinc Hill Rd5053A Fourth St
0.11 568 W REDDY ST5014 Zinc Hill Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd



63.33

1005 2 1.19 6307 MILL CREEK RDHwy 395 Hwy 395
1009 13 9.47 50011 PINE CREEK RD1009  Pine CreeRoads End
1013 3 1.89 9978 SAWMILL RD1016  Ed PowersHwy 395 South
1048 7 8.40 44374 EUREKA VALLEY RD8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road
1089 1 0.78 4117 HORTON CREEK RD1010  Round Valley RoadRoads End
1103 4 1.28 6776 STARLITE DRHwy 168 Roads End
2015 6 1.96 10340 REDDING CANYON RD2014  EastsideRoads End
2017 17 31.32 165386 DEATH VALLEY RDHwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd
2018 24 6.61 34891 WARM SPRINGS RD2014  EastsideRoads End
2028 9 3.92 20706 COUNTY RD3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
2048 2 12.00 63375 EUREKA VALLEY RD8039  Non County RoadWillow Creek Road
3017 16 32.01 169013 DEATH VALLEY RDHwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd



3024 3 1.97 10387 BLACK ROCK SPRINGS RD3018  Tinnemaha Road3027  Coloseum Road
3028 5 4.26 22505 COUNTY RD3028  County Road2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
3056 2 2.21 11645 GOODALE RDHwy 395 Roads End

4036 1 0.13 662 KELLOGG ST4034  Lasky LaneRoads End

4038 2 2.39 12642 OLIVAS RANCH RD4018  Whitney PRoads End
4058 1 0.12 635 TEYA RD Hwy 395 4042  Zucco Roa
5003 3 7.31 38588 PETRO RD5005  Furnace CHwy 127
5008 1 2.04 10756 CHINA RANCH RD5005  Furnace Creek RoadRoads End
5028 1 0.23 1227 GENTRY RD5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway
5039 1 1.08 5681 SYKES RDHwy 395 Roads End
5044 6 1.85 9778 STOCKWELL MINE RD5037  Valley WeRoads End
5048 2 4.96 26213 HOMEWOOD CANYON RD5029  Trona-Wildrose RoadRoads End

5049 1 1.04 5488 SMITH TALC RD5009 MESQUITESan Bernardino County

5057 Dawn Deleted 0.00
5076 1 0.41 2189 LAKEVIEW RD5077 Enchanted Lakes RoadRoads End
5203 1 0.05 248 OWENS ST5204  Sierra St5205  Cartago S
5206 1 0.17 921 MOJAVE ST5201 Whitney StRoad End

3027A 3 3.15 16633 N COLOSEUM RDHwy 395 Hwy 395
3405A 7 0.39 2067 E MARKET ST3424  RosedaleHwy 395

5053A 1 0.05 266 FOURTH ST5053 Fulton StMarket St

5054A 1 0.06 293 NW SECOND AVE5023 Reddy Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd



0.00
5053 1 0.20 1077 W FULTON ST5014 Zinc Hill Rd5053A Fourth St
5054 2 0.11 568 W REDDY ST5014 Zinc Hill Rd5011 Olancha Darwin Rd























2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road



2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road

5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway

San Bernardino County

5011 Olancha Darwin Rd



5011 Olancha Darwin Rd



Road # Mileage Name From Road To Road
1001 2.28 ROCK CREEK RD Mono County  Li Roads End
1001A 0.58 LAKE RD 1001 Rock Creek Rd Road End
1002 0.61 BOUNDARY RD 1007  Old Sherwin Grade Road 1003  Round Valley Road
1003 4.90 N ROUND VALLEY RD 1010  South Rou 1002 Boundary Rd
1004 1.29 RANGER STATION RD 1003  Round Val Roads End
1005 1.19 MILL CREEK RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
1006 1.28 BIRCHIM LN 1003  North Round Valley Road Hwy 395 South
1007 3.65 OLD SHERWIN GRADE RD 1009  Pine Cree Mono County - P
1008 1.76 VANADIUM RANCH RD 1009  Pine Cree 1003  Round Val
1009 9.47 PINE CREEK RD 1009  Pine Cree Roads End
1010 4.80 S ROUND VALLEY RD 1003  Round Val 1013  Sawmill R
1011 1.77 ROUND VALLEY TUNGSTEN RD 1010  Round Val Roads End
1012 0.21 GORGE RD 1007  Old Sherwin Grade Road Hwy 395
1013 1.89 SAWMILL RD 1016  Ed Powers Hwy 395 South
1014 2.71 TUNGSTEN CITY RD 1016  Ed Powers Roads End
1015 0.39 ABELOR RD 1013 Sawmill Rd Road End
1016 2.43 ED POWERS RD Hwy 168 Hwy 395
1017 1.31 RED HILL RD 1016  Ed Powers Hwy 168
1018 0.06 VALLEY WEST CIR 1023  Sunrise D Roads End
1019 0.38 PLANT FIVE RD 2085  Bishop Cr Roads End
1020 7.24 BUTTERMILK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
1021 0.80 SAND CANYON RD 8012  Non Count 2085  Bishop Cr
1022 2.35 PLEASANT VALLEY DAM RD Hwy 395 1038  Chalk Bluff Road
1023 0.49 SUNRISE DR 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1024 0.51 OTEY RD 1017  Red Hill Roads End
1025 1.04 MUMY LN Hwy 168 1027 Reata Rd
1026 0.41 SHEPARD LN Hwy 168 Roads End
1027 0.82 REATA RD Hwy 168 1028  Underwood
1028 1.18 UNDERWOOD LN 1027  Reata Roa 1033  Barlow La
1029 0.37 MCLAREN LN Hwy 168 1051  Mountian
1030 2.51 BROCKMAN LN Hwy 168 1032  Dixon Lane
1031 2.01 RIVERSIDE RD 1030  Brockman Hwy 6
1032 2.01 DIXON LN 1030  Brockman Lane Hwy 6
1033 3.71 S BARLOW LN 1028 Underwood Ln 1106 Saniger Ln
1034 2.92 BIR RD 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1035 1.09 SCHOBER LN 2034  Sunland D 1033  Barlow La
1036 1.86 FIVE BRIDGES RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Hwy 6
1037 4.64 JEAN BLANC RD 1038  Chalk Bluff Road 1036  Five Bridges Road
1038 5.88 CHALK BLUFF RD 1022  Pleasant Valley Dam Road 1037  Jean Blanc Road
1039 4.46 CASA DIABLO 1038 Chalk Bluff Rd Mono County
1040 3.10 FISH SLOUGH RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Mono County Line
1041 1.01 NORTH INYO Hwy 6 Road End
1042 1.44 RUDOLPH RD Mono County Roads End
1043 1.28 JOE SMITH RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 1037  Jean Blanc Road
1044 11.54 SILVER CANYON RD 1045  Laws Pole Hwy 6
1045 1.72 LAWS POLETA RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 2045  Poleta Laws Road
1046 17.64 WYMAN CREEK RD HWY 168 1083 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD
1047 1.23 OASIS RD Hwy 168 8039  Non Count
1048 8.40 EUREKA VALLEY RD 8039  Non County Road Willow Creek Road
1049 0.20 PLANT SIX RD Hwy 168 Roads End
1050 0.46 HIGHLAND DR 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1051 0.16 S MOUNTAIN VIEW RD 1029  McLaren L 1052  Ranch Roa
1052 0.46 RANCH RD 1053  Mt. Tom R 1055  Mt. View
1053 0.39 MOUNT TOM RD 1052 RANCH RD ROAD END
1054 0.23 VISTA RD 1052  Ranch Roa Roads End
1055 0.17 N MOUNTAIN VIEW RD 1052 RANCH ROAD ROAD END
1056 0.46 SUNSET RD 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1058 1.53 CHURCHILL MINE RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Roads End
1059 1.00 SEE VEE LN Hwy 168 Hwy 395
1060 1.00 TU SU LN Hwy 168 Hwy 395



1061 1.50 S PA HA LN Hwy 395 Road End
1062 1.01 DIAZ LN 1030  Brockman Lane 1059  See Vee Lane
1063 0.50 PA ME LN HWY 168 1078 INDIAN CREEK DR
1064 1.29 FLYNN RD 1045  Laws Poleta Road Roads End
1065 0.53 STEWART RD 1064 FLYNN RD Roads End
1066 3.90 COYOTE VALLEY RD 1028  Underwood Lane Roads End
1067 0.25 MEADOW LN Hwy 168 1071  Pinion Ro
1068 0.44 MESQUITE RD 1072  Laurel Ro "1069 Birch St,"
1069 0.12 E BIRCH ST 1082 GRANDVIEW RD 1063 PA ME LN
1069A 0.09 W BIRCH ST ROAD END ROAD END
1070 0.07 E CEDAR ST 1082 GRANDVIEW RD 1068 MESQUITE RD
1070A 0.06 W CEDAR ST 1067 MEADOW LN 1079 TUMBLEWEED RD
1071 0.09 PINON RD 1070 Cedar St Road End
1072 0.11 LAUREL RD 1071  Pinion Road 1082  Grandview Drive
1073 0.06 RANCH VIEW LN 1052  Ranch Roa Roads End
1074 0.50 LONGVIEW DR 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1075 0.30 WATTERSON RD 1027  Reata Roa Roads End
1076 0.47 SIERRA VISTA WAY 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1077 0.86 ROCKING K RD 1016  Ed Powers Roads End
1078 0.32 INDIAN CREEK DR 1063  Pa Me Lane Roads End
1079 0.12 N TUMBLEWEED RD Roads End 1070  Cedar Str
1079A 0.25 S TUMBLEWEED RD 1078  Indian Cr Roads End
1080 0.24 MORNINGSIDE DR 1063  Pa Me Lan Roads End
1081 0.29 WILDROSE LN 1068 MESQUITE RD 1069 BIRCH ST
1082 0.40 GRANDVIEW DR 1068 Mesquite Hwy 168
1083 8.70 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD 2083  White Mou Mono County
1084 0.33 LAZY A DR Hwy 395 1086  Bar M Lane
1085 0.27 IRENE WAY 1057  Irene Street 1116  Carol Lane
1086 0.16 BAR M LN 1091  Rocking W Drive Roads End
1087 0.15 BAR L LN 1091  Rocking W Drive Roads End
1088 0.41 GLENBROOK WAY 1033  Barlow Lane 1090  Orinda Drive
1089 0.78 HORTON CREEK RD 1010  Round Valley Road Roads End
1090 0.13 ORINDA DR 1028  Underwood 1076  Sierra Vi
1091 0.50 ROCKING W DR 1087  Bar L. La Roads End
1092 0.68 ARBOLES DR Roads End Roads End
1093 0.24 REINA RD Roads End Roads End
1094 0.08 VISTA VERDE RD 1098  Mesa Vist Roads End
1095 0.06 ALISO CIR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1096 0.11 MAJORCA CIR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1097 0.16 AVENIDA DEL MONTE 1098  Mesa Vista Drive 1092  Arboles Drive
1098 0.43 MESA VISTA DR Hwy 395 1092  Arboles D
1099 0.45 HOUSTON DR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1100 0.23 BROOKSIDE DR 1029  McLaren Lane Roads End
1101 0.04 MAJESTIC WAY 1052  Ranch Road Roads End
1102 0.06 LURING LN 1052  Ranch Road Roads End
1103 1.28 STARLITE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
1104 0.22 RUNNING IRON RD 1077  Rocking K 1077  Rocking K
1105 0.04 AURORA CIR 1104  Running Iron Road Roads End
1106 0.62 SANIGER LN 1032  Dixon Lan 1107  Juniper S
1107 0.21 JUNIPER DR 1106 SANIGER LN 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1108 0.45 VALLEY VIEW DR 1032  Dixon Lan Roads End
1109 0.28 WEST ST 1106  Saniger L Roads End
1110 0.34 POLARIS CIR 1103  Starlite Roads End
1110A 0.07 POLARIS CIR 1103  Starlite Roads End
1111 0.10 ALTAIR CIR 1103  Starlite Drive Roads End
1112 0.33 APOLLO CIR 1103  Starlite Drive Roads End
1113 0.21 LAWS FRONTAGE RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road Unnamed Road
1114 0.25 HARDY RD 1003  Round Valley Road Roads End
1115 0.21 ARCTURIS CIR Roads End 1103  Starlite Drive
1116 0.33 CAROL LN Roads End Roads End
1117 0.19 AUDREY LN Roads End Roads End



1118 0.08 SARAH VIEW 1076  Sierra Vi 1117  Audrey La
1119 0.03 CHEROKEE CIR 1121  Sioux Lane Roads End
1120 0.31 CHOCTAW LN 1120 SIOUX LN 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1121 0.09 SIOUX LN 1120  Choctaw Roads End
1122 0.06 WILSON CIR ROAD END 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1123 0.05 FAIRVIEW CIR 1075  Watterson Road Roads End
1124 0.35 BEAR CREEK DR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
1125 0.03 SILVER CREEK DR 1124  Bear Cree Roads End
1126 0.06 HUNTER WAY 1109  West Street Roads End
1127 0.52 SHOSHONE DR Roads End Roads End
1128 0.06 PAIUTE CIR Roads End Roads End
1129 0.04 ARAPAHOE CIR 1120  Choctaw Lane Roads End
1130 0.04 WASHOE CIR 1120  Chotaw La Roads End
1131 0.52 SUNSET DR 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1132 0.09 SUMMER HAZE CIR Roads End Roads End
1133 0.03 LEISURE CIR 1132  Summer Haze Circle Roads End
1134 0.07 AUTUMN LEAVES CIR Roads End Roads End
1135 0.06 SNOW CIR 1131  Sunset Dr Roads End
1136 0.07 SUNDOWN CIR 1131  Sunset Dr Roads End
1137 0.07 STONE CIR 1108  Valley Vi Roads End
1138 0.18 APACHE DR 1106  Saniger Lane Roads End
1139 0.27 CHEYENNE DR 1127  Shoshone Drive 1127  Shoshone
1140 0.09 NAVAJO CIR 1106  Saniger L Roads End
1141 0.06 GRAZIDE CIR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
1142 0.05 HOPI CIR 1106  Saniger Lane Roads End
1143 0.11 KIOWA CIR 1127  Shoshone Drive Roads End
1144 0.03 ZUNI CIR 1127 SHOSHONE DR ROAD END
1145 0.07 HOBBS CIR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
2011 0.56 SULFUR RD 2017  Death Val Roads End
2012 1.19 DEEP SPRINGS RANCH RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2013 4.20 POLETA RD Bishop City Lin 2014  Eastside Road
2014 2.19 EASTSIDE RD 2013  Poleta Road 2018  Warm Springs Road
2015 1.96 REDDING CANYON RD 2014  Eastside Roads End
2016 5.65 BLACK CANYON RD 2014  Eastside Road Nat'l Forest Boundary
2017 31.32 DEATH VALLEY RD Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd
2018 6.61 WARM SPRINGS RD 2014  Eastside Roads End
2019 4.11 COLLINS RD 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2020 3.60 GERKIN RD 2019  Collins Road Roads End
2021 0.15 OWENS RD Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro
2022 7.07 SOUTH LAKE RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2023 0.29 COLUMBINE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
2024 0.43 LAKE RD 2025 North Lake Rd Roads End
2025 2.00 NORTH LAKE RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2026 0.77 SABRINA RD HWY 168 ROAD END
2027 0.09 NORTH ST Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro
2028 3.92 COUNTY RD 3028  County Road 2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
2029 0.91 KEOUGH HOT SPRINGS Hwy 395 Roads End
2030 1.13 WYE RD
2031 1.69 SUNLAND INDIAN RESERVATION RD HWY 395 1035 SCHOBER LN
2034 3.67 SUNLAND DR Hwy 168 Hwy 395
2035 0.52 SCHOBER LN 2034  Sunland D 1033  Barlow La
2039 0.81 COTTONWOOD LN 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2040 0.16 CHERRY TREE CIR 2039  Cottonwood Lane Roads End
2041 0.05 VISTA CIR 2040 Cherry Trail Road End
2042 0.13 JEFFERY CIR COTTONWOOD LN ROAD END
2043 0.27 MANDICH ST 2034  Sunland Drive Bishop
2044 0.08 W JAY ST HWY 395 Road End
2045 1.16 POLETA LAWS RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 2045  Poleta Laws Road
2047 6.14 WILLOW CREEK RD Eureka Valley Road
2048 12.00 EUREKA VALLEY RD 8039  Non County Road Willow Creek Road
2049 9.35 S EUREKA RD Death Valley Road Roads End



2050 0.25 VAN LOON LN 2013  Poleta Ro Roads End
2053 0.75 AIRPORT RD 2013  Poleta Road Roads End
2054 0.25 RAWSON CREEK RD 2020  Gerkin Ro 2059  Sierra La
2055 0.12 FOOTHILL DR 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2056 0.02 TRAIL CIR 2055  Foothill Roads End
2057 0.24 PANORAMA DR 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2058 0.47 SIERRA GRANDE 2020  Gerkin Ro Roads End
2059 0.24 SIERRA LADERA ST 2054  Rawson Cr Roads End
2060 0.21 SIERRA BONITA ST 2020  Gerkin Ro 2059  Sierra La
2062 0.03 AGAPE CIR 2019  Collins Road Roads End
2081 0.27 ALPINE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
2083 8.51 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD 2083  White Mou Mono County
2084 0.25 BISHOP GOLF COURSE RD HWY 395 ROAD END
2085 2.71 E BISHOP CREEK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2085A 0.46 W BISHOP CREEK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2086 0.10 WHITE PINE RD 2088  Cataract Roads End
2087 0.09 IRIS DR 2090  Cardinal Road Roads End
2088 0.72 CATARACT RD Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive
2089 0.16 SAGE DR HWY 168 2081 ALPINE RD
2090 0.48 CARDINAL RD Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive
2091 0.07 BROOK LN 2086  White Pine Road Roads End
2092 0.24 MIDDLE FORK RD 2025 North Lake Rd 2026 Sabrina Rd
2093 0.24 RESERVOIR RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2094 1.04 BIG TREES RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2095 0.09 HABEGGER LN 2022  South Lake Road 2096  Canyon Road
2096 0.23 CANYON DR 2095  Habegger Lane Roads End
2097 0.08 MOUNT TOM VIEW DR 2096  Canyon Ro Roads End
2098 0.06 SIERRA SUMMIT Hwy 168 Roads End
2099 0.11 SUMAC RD 2081  Alpine Dr Roads End
2100 0.10 MANZANITA RD 2081  Alpine Drive Roads End
2101 0.10 BARRETT CIR 2039  Cottonwood Lane Roads End
3001 1.58 SUGARLOAF RD 3002 Glacier Lodge Rd Roads End
3002 9.95 GLACIER LODGE RD 3212  West Street Roads End
3003 1.04 REYNOLDS RD 3028  County Ro Hwy 395
3004 0.99 BAKER CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3005 0.39 CONE RD 3002  Glacier Lodge Road Roads End
3006 7.44 MCMURRAY MEADOWS RD Glacier Lodge Rd Non County Road
3007 0.37 ARC RD 3001  Sugar Loaf Road Roads End
3008 0.50 BIG PINE REPEATER RD 2017 Death Valley Rd Roads End
3009 1.94 BARTELL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3010 0.47 LOWER GLACIER RD 3006  McMurray Meadows Road Roads End
3011 1.03 NEWMAN ST Hwy 395 3009  Bartell R
3012 1.39 STEWARD LN Hwy 395 Roads End
3013 27.63 WAUCOBA SALINE RD Nat'l Forest Bo 4013  Saline Va
3014 0.34 STEWARD RANCH RD Roads End 3017A  Death Va
3015 0.48 BIG PINE DUMP RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3016 0.24 GREGG RD 3015  Big Pine Dump Road Roads End
3017 32.01 DEATH VALLEY RD Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd
3018 13.29 TINNEMAHA RD Roads End 3035  Fish Spri
3019 0.79 BIRCH CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Roads End
3020 1.77 FULLER RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Roads End
3021 0.22 E ELNA RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3022 4.45 TABOOSE CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Nat'l Forest Bo
3023 2.63 ABERDEEN STATION RD 3018  Tinnemaha ROAD END
3024 1.97 BLACK ROCK SPRINGS RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road 3027  Coloseum Road
3025 3.52 DIVISION CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Nat'l Forest Boundary
3026 1.07 UPPER DIVISION CREEK RD 3025  Division Road End
3027 3.13 COLOSEUM RD Hwy 395 3027A N Coloseum Road
3027A 3.15 N COLOSEUM RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
3028 4.26 COUNTY RD Hwy 395 2028  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
3029 2.60 FORT INDEPENDENCE RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395



3030 1.22 FISH HATCHERY RD Hwy 395 3031  Oak Creek Road
3031 4.45 N OAK CREEK RD 3030  Fish Hatc Roads End
3032 1.41 S OAK CREEK RD 3030  Fish Hatc Roads End
3033 0.39 SARAH ST 3407  Payne Str 3406  Kearsarge
3034 0.17 BELL ACCESS RD 3036  Shabbell Lane 3030  Fish Hatchery Road
3035 3.06 FISH SPRINGS RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
3036 1.29 SCHABBELL LN HWY 395 3029 FORT INDEPENDENCE
3037 0.33 SUSAN ST 3405  Market St Roads End
3038 0.50 MARY ST 3409 PARK ST 3409 PARK ST
3039 0.48 LILY ST INYO ST PARK ST
3040 0.50 DALE ST 3408  Pavillion Street 3401 Inyo Steet
3041 0.14 N JEWEL ALY 3401  Inyo Street Roads End
3042 0.16 CAROLYN ST 3411  Sierra Street 3405  Market Street
3045 13.63 MAZOURKA CANYON RD Hwy 395 Nat'l Forest Bo
3046 0.80 DUMP RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3047 12.78 ONION VALLEY RD 3405  West Mark Nat'l Forest Bo
3048 0.98 CRATER ST 3050 Baker Ln 3051 Butcher Ln
3049 0.49 PIPER ST 3050 BAKER LN 3009 BARTELL RD
3050 0.17 BAKER LN 3048  Crater Street 3049  Piper Street
3051 0.26 BUTCHER LN Hwy 395 3011  Newman Street
3052 0.34 SEVEN PINES RD 3047  Onion Val Roads End
3053 0.50 GRIFFITH RD 3035  Fish Springs Road 3018  Tinnemaha Road
3054 0.35 TERRACE DR 3003  Reynolds 3003  Reynolds
3055 2.78 FOOTHILL RD 3047  Onion Valley Road Roads End
3056 2.21 GOODALE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3057 0.23 PINE RD 3003  Reynolds Road 3061  Elm Crest
3058 0.17 JUNIPER RD 3003  Reynolds Road 3059  Mountain Road
3059 0.23 MOUNTAIN RD 3057 Pine Rd 3060 Meadow Lark Rd
3060 0.05 MEADOWLARK RD 3059  Mountian 3061  Elmcrest
3061 0.32 ELMCREST DR Roads End Roads End
3063 0.22 CARMELEA LN Roads End 3070  Olivia Lane
3064 0.14 MARIANNE WAY 3063  Carmelea Lane 3070  Olivia Lane
3065 0.06 JULIE ANN LN 3003  Reynolds Road 3064  Marianne Way
3066 0.09 BETTY LOU LN 3065 Julie Ann Ln Road End
3067 0.04 MICHELLE CIR 3066  Betty Lou Roads End
3068 0.15 MYRTLE LN 3003  Reynolds 3070  Olivia Ro
3069 0.06 KRISTINE CIR 3068  Myrtle Lane Roads End
3070 0.34 OLIVIA LN 3028  County Ro Hwy 395
3071 0.03 TAMMY LN 3063 Carmela La Roads End
3072 0.04 TAWNYA CIR 3070 OLIVIA LANE ROAD END
3201 0.07 POPLAR AVE Hwy 395 Roads End
3202 0.10 CENTER ST 3216  Washington Street 3215  Pine Street
3203 0.15 LOCUST ST 3216 WASHINGTON ST HWY 395
3204 0.10 HOME ST 3215  Pine Street 3216  Washington Street
3205 0.09 NANCY LN 3212  West Stre Roads End
3206 0.50 W CROCKER AVE Hwy 395 3212  West Street
3206A 0.05 E CROCKER AVE Hwy 395 3215 Pine
3207 0.32 CORNELL ST 3213  School Street Roads End
3208 0.25 DEWEY ST 3213  School Street Roads End
3209 0.25 CHESTNUT ST Hwy 395 3213  School Street
3210 0.25 WALNUT ST 3213  West Stre Hwy 395
3211 0.25 BLAKE ST Hwy 395 3213  School Street
3212 0.46 WEST ST
3213 1.00 S SCHOOL ST 3211 Blake Rd 3028 County Road
3214 0.10 HALL ST 3209  Chestnut Street 3208  Dewey Street
3215 0.39 PINE ST 3201 POPLAR ST HWY 395
3216 0.12 WASHINGTON ST 3204  Home Stre 3202  Center St
3217 0.04 SARA LN 3209  Chestnut Roads End
3401 0.22 E INYO ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3401A 0.03 W INYO ST 3405  Market St ROAD END
3402 0.22 E WALL ST Hwy 395 3423  Crockett



3402A 0.07 W WALL ST 3416  Washingto Hwy 395
3403 0.15 E MAIN ST Hwy 395 3421  Clay Street
3403A 0.22 W MAIN ST 3412  Grant Street Hwy 395
3404 0.14 E CENTER ST 3421  Clay Street Hwy 395
3404A 0.22 W CENTER ST Hwy 395 3412  Grant Street
3405 0.22 W MARKET ST Hwy 395 3047  Onion Valley Road
3405A 0.39 E MARKET ST 3424  Rosedale Hwy 395
3406 0.14 E KEARSARGE ST 3421  Clay Street Hwy 395
3406A 0.18 W KEARSARGE ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3407 0.14 E PAYNE ST 3421  Clay Stre Hwy 395
3407A 0.22 W PAYNE ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3408 0.31 E PAVILION ST 3424  Rosedale Hwy 395
3408A 0.18 W PAVILION ST Hwy 395 3414  Webster Street
3409 0.15 E PARK ST 3419  Jackson Street Hwy 395
3409A 0.18 W PARK ST Hwy 395 3416  Washington Street
3410 0.08 W CITRUS ST HWY 395 3416 WASHINGTON ST
3411 0.07 E SIERRA ST 3424 ROSEDALE ST 3426 VALLEY VIEW DR
3412 0.14 N GRANT ST 3402  Wall Street 3403  Main Street
3414 0.18 N WEBSTER ST 3405  Market St Roads End
3414A 0.34 S WEBSTER ST 3408  Pavilion 3405  Market St
3416 0.21 N WASHINGTON ST 3405  Market St 3401  Inyo Stre
3416A 0.37 S WASHINGTON ST 3410  Citrus St 3405  Market St
3419 0.29 N JACKSON ST 3401  Inyo Street 3405  Market Street
3419A 0.29 S JACKSON ST 3405  Market Street 3409  Park Street
3421 0.29 N CLAY ST 3401  Inyo Street 3405  Market Street
3421A 0.47 S CLAY ST 3405  Market Street Roads End
3423 0.05 N CROCKETT ST 3402 WALL ST ROAD END
3424 0.24 S ROSEDALE DR 3408 PAVILLION ST 3405 MARKET ST
3426 0.25 S VALLEY VIEW DR 3405 MARKET ST Roads End
4001 5.49 MANZANAR REWARD RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4003 13.89 OWENYO LONE PINE RD 4001  Manzanar 4010  Dolomite
4004 4.06 MOFFAT RANCH RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4005 1.11 PANGBORN LN Hwy 395 Hwy 395
4006 3.38 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD HWY 395 4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD
4006A 0.21 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE  RD 4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD
4006B 0.20 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD 4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD 4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD
4009 16.17 WHITE MOUNTAIN TALC RD 4013  Saline Valley Road Roads End
4010 4.53 DOLOMITE LOOP RD Hwy 136 Hwy 136
4011 0.26 COTTONWOOD POWERHOUSE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4012 7.03 UBEHEBE RD Nat'l Park Boun 4013  Saline Va
4013 48.69 SALINE VALLEY RD 3013  Waucoba S 5013  Saline Va
4014 0.13 CAMPGROUND RD 4015  Putnam Road 4018  Whitney Portal Road
4015 0.93 PUTNAM RD 4018  Whitney Portal Road Road End
4016 0.18 BUDKE RD 4015 Putnam Road Road End
4017 18.96 HORSESHOE MEADOWS RD 4018  Whitney Portal Road Roads End
4018 11.83 WHITNEY PORTAL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4019 5.45 TUTTLE CREEK RD 4018  Whitney P 4023  Lubken Ca
4020 2.87 GRANITE VIEW DR 4017  Horseshoe Meadows Road Roads End
4021 1.47 SUB STATION RD 4425  Line Stre Roads End
4022 1.83 INDIAN SPRINGS DR 4019  Tuttle Creek Road 4048  Dominy Road
4023 3.36 LUBKEN CANYON RD Hwy 395 4017  Horshoe M
4024 0.93 CARROLL CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4025 4.25 COTTONWOOD RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4026 6.77 HOGBACK RD 4037  Movie Road 4004  Moffatt Ranch Road
4027 7.81 CERRO GORDO RD 8054  Non County Road Hwy 136
4029 4.90 SANTA ROSA RD 5013  Saline Va Roads End
4031 0.54 OLANCHA-DUMP RD 4206 OLD STATE HWY ROAD END
4032 0.19 BARTLETT RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4033 0.51 LONE PINE GOLF COURSE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4034 0.26 LASKY LN 4005  Pangborn Lane Roads End
4035 0.12 PANGBORN ST 4034 LASKY LN ROAD END



4036 0.13 KELLOGG ST 4034  Lasky Lane Roads End
4037 5.73 MOVIE RD 4018  Whiteny P 4026  Hogback R
4038 2.39 OLIVAS RANCH RD 4018  Whitney P Roads End
4039 0.78 MAGAZINE RD TUTTLE CREEK RD UNNAMED RD
4041 0.50 GOODWIN RD 4021  Sub Station Road Roads End
4042 0.50 ZUCCO RD 4058 TEYA RD 4021 SUB STATION RD
4043 0.56 BURKHARDT RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4044 0.93 THUNDERCLOUD LN 4019  Tuttle Cr 4045  Shahar Av
4045 0.58 SHAHAR AVE Roads End Roads End
4046 0.95 SUNSET DR 4044 Thundercloud Ln 4017 Horseshoe Meadows Rd
4047 7.07 HUNTER MOUNTAIN RD 4013  Saline Valley Road Roads End
4048 0.12 DOMINY RD 4022  Indian Springs Drive Roads End
4049 0.75 ALABAMA DR 4019  Tuttle Creek Road 4050  McDonald Road
4050 0.35 MCDONALD RD 4045  Shahar Av 4022  Indian Sp
4051 0.10 A ST 4404  Willow St 4018 Whitney Portal Rd
4052 0.27 B ST 4403  Locust St Roads End
4053 0.11 C ST 4409  Post Stre 4403  Locust St
4054 0.06 D ST 4404 WILLOW ST 4403 LOCUST ST
4055 0.12 E ST 4411  Muir Stre 4422  Hay Stree
4056 0.24 F ST 4411  Muir Stre 4407  Mountian
4057 0.05 MCELROY LN 4405  Bush Stre 4404  Willow St
4058 0.12 TEYA RD Hwy 395 4042  Zucco Roa
4060 0.16 WHITNEY VISTA DR 4018 Whitney Portal Rd 4061 Mt Langley Lane
4061 0.39 MT LANGLEY LN 4060 Whitney Vista Dr 4063 Valley View Dr
4062 0.25 HUNTER RD 4022 Indian Springs Rd Road End
4063 0.17 VALLEY VIEW DR 4018 Whitney Portal Rd 4061 Mt Langley Ln
4201 0.03 LINCOLN ST 4206  Old State Highway 4205  Yerington Avenue
4202 0.06 FRANKLIN ST 4206  Old State Highway 4205  Yerington Avenue
4203 0.26 MALONE ST Hwy 136 4209  Maud Street
4204 0.24 CERRO GORDO ST 4209  Maud Street Hwy 136
4205 0.28 YERINGTON AVE 4201 LINCOLN ST 4204 CERRO GORDO
4206 0.55 OLD STATE HWY 4031  Olancha D Hwy 136
4207 0.24 RAILROAD AVE 4204  Cerro Gor 4206  Old State
4208 0.19 LAWS AVE 4204  Cerro Gordo Street Roads End
4209 0.11 MAUD ST 4203 MALONE ST 4204 CERRO GORDO
4401 0.07 BEGOLE ST 4419  Jackson Street Hwy 395
4403 0.05 STATHAM WAY 4416  Washingto 4414  Brewery S
4403A 0.06 W LOCUST ST Hwy 395 4416  Washingto
4403B 0.40 E LOCUST ST 4424  Lakeview Hwy 395
4404 0.16 E WILLOW ST HWY 395 LONE PINE AVE
4404A 0.08 W WILLOW ST HWY 395 STREET A
4405 0.46 W BUSH ST 4428  Fairbanks Street Hwy 395
4405A 0.09 E BUSH ST Hwy 395 Roads End
4407 0.33 E MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395
4407A 0.11 W MOUNTAIN VIEW ST Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S
4408 0.10 E WHITNEY PORTAL RD 4421 LONE PINE RD HWY 395
4409 0.36 E POST ST 4425  Line Stre Hwy 395
4409A 0.11 W POST ST Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S
4410A 0.08 E SOUTH ST 4424 S Lake View Rd 4425 Line St
4411 0.32 MUIR ST 4055  Street E "4056 Street F,0.000"
4412 0.08 SCHOOL ST 4424 Lake View Ave 4425 Line St
4413 0.28 E INYO ST Hwy 395 4425 Line St
4413A 0.03 W INYO ST Hwy 395 Non County Road
4414 0.20 S BREWERY ST Roads End 4407  West Mountain View Street
4414A 0.16 N BREWERY ST 4407  West Mountain View Street 4403  Statham Way
4416 0.16 N WASHINGTON ST 4407 Mountain View St 4403 Statham Way
4416A 0.21 S WASHINGTON ST 4407 Mountain View St 4430 Gene Autry Ln
4419 0.20 N JACKSON ST 4401 Begole St 4407 Mountain View St
4419A 0.05 S JACKSON ST 4408 E Whitney Portal Rd 4407 W Mountain View St
4421 0.16 N LONE PINE AVE 4403  Statham Way 4407  Mountian
4421A 0.24 S LONE PINE AVE 4407  Mountain View Street 4411  Muir Street



4422 0.16 N HAY ST 4403  Statham Way 4407  Mountain View Street
4422A 0.24 S HAY ST 4407  Mountain View Street 4411  Muir Stre
4423 0.24 S MOUNT WHITNEY DR 4411 MUIR ST 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST
4423A 0.25 N MT WHITNEY DR 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST ROAD END
4424 0.33 S LAKE VIEW AVE 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4413 INYO ST
4424A 0.16 N LAKE VIEW AVE 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4403 STATHAM WAY
4425 0.19 LINE ST 4413  Inyo Street 4409  Post Street
4426 0.34 ROY ROGERS RD 4414  Brewery S 4018  Whitney P
4427 0.26 E LUBKEN AVE HWY 395 ROAD END
4428 0.10 FAIRBANKS ST 4405  Bush Street 4018  Whitney Portal Road
4429 0.11 TIM HOLT ST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395
4430 0.08 GENE AUTRY LN Hwy 395 Roads End
5001 1.80 CLAY RD Nevada State Line Roads End
5002 5.17 STATE LINE RD Hwy 127 Nevada State Li
5003 7.31 PETRO RD 5005  Furnace C Hwy 127
5005 36.70 FURNACE CREEK WASH RD Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road
5005A 12.32 FURNACE CREEK RD Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road
5006 2.53 TECOPA HOT SPRINGS RD 5005  Furnace C 5007  Old Spani
5007 30.17 OLD SPANISH TRAIL HWY Hwy 127 Nevada State Li
5008 2.04 CHINA RANCH RD 5005  Furnace Creek Road Roads End
5009 20.81 MESQUITE VALLEY RD 5050  Western T Nevada State Li
5010 6.19 LOST SECTION RD 5005 FURNACE CREEK RD ROAD END
5011 5.48 OLANCHA-DARWIN RD Hwy 190 5074 Market St
5012 2.80 TALC CITY RD Hwy 190 Roads End
5013 5.75 SALINE VALLEY RD HWY 190 4013 Saline Valley Rd
5013A 4.75 SALINE VALLEY ALT HWY 190 5013  Saline Va
5014 4.11 ZINC HILL RD 5015 Ophir Road Road End
5015 7.85 OPHIR RD 5075  Second Av 5016  Old Toll
5016 8.66 OLD TOLL RD 5015  Ophir Road Hwy 190
5017 23.92 NADEAU RD Hwy 190 5029  Trona-Wil
5018 13.92 PANAMINT VALLEY RD 5029  Trona-Wil Hwy 190
5019 3.60 MINIETTA RD 5018  Panamint 5017  Nadeau Ro
5020 0.87 W FALL RD
5021 1.07 SHOP ST Hwy 395 Roads End
5022 4.25 WALKER CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5023 0.40 SCHOOL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5024 10.15 CACTUS FLATS RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5025 5.46 SAGE FLATS DR Hwy 395 Roads End
5026 1.57 ASH CREEK RD HWY 395 ROAD END
5027 2.61 HAIWEE CANYON RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5028 0.23 GENTRY RD 5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway 5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway
5029 34.13 TRONA WILDROSE RD SBD County 8070  Non Count
5030 0.42 PADRE POINT RD Hwy 190 Roads End
5031 0.53 LITTLE LAKE RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
5032 4.90 SLATE RANGE RD 5017  Nadeu Roa 5018  Panamint
5033 4.46 SURPRISE CANYON RD 5035  Wingate R Roads End
5034 3.64 BALLARAT RD 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road 5035  Wingate Road
5035 20.06 WINGATE RD SAN BERNARDINO 5034 Ballarat Rd
5035A 11.87 INDIAN RANCH RD 5034  Ballarat Road 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road
5036 9.11 COYOTE CANYON RD 8093  Non County Road 5035  Wingate Road
5037 0.41 VALLEY WELLS RD 5029  Trona-Wil 5044  Stockwell
5038 5.48 GILLS STATION COSO RD 5039  Sykes Road Roads End
5039 1.08 SYKES RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5040 9.84 NINE MILE CANYON RD Hwy 395 Tulare County L
5041 0.58 DOWNEY RD 5006  Tecop Hot Springs Road 8080  Non County Road
5043 0.77 CINDER RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5044 1.85 STOCKWELL MINE RD 5037  Valley We Roads End
5045 0.80 TRONA AIRPORT RD 5029  Trona-Wil Roads End
5046 0.19 ANDERSON WAY 5041  Downey Road Roads End
5048 4.96 HOMEWOOD CANYON RD 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road Roads End
5049 1.04 SMITH TALC RD 5009 MESQUITE San Bernardino County



5050 1.11 WESTERN TALC RD 5005  Furnace C San Bernardino
5051 13.95 MESQUITE VALLEY RD 5050  Western T Nevada State Li
5052 0.61 OLD STATE HWY Hwy 127 Hwy 127
5053 0.20 W FULTON ST 5014 Zinc Hill Rd 5053A Fourth St
5053A 0.05 FOURTH ST 5053 Fulton St Market St
5054 0.11 W REDDY ST 5014 Zinc Hill Rd 5011 Olancha Darwin Rd
5054A 0.06 NW SECOND AVE 5023 Reddy Rd 5011 Olancha Darwin Rd
5055 1.01 TALC CITY CUTOFF 5012  Talc City Hwy 190
5056 0.63 QUARRY RD 5029  Trona-Wil Roads End
5058 0.90 NOONDAY ST 5006  Tecopa Ho 5006  Tecopa Ho
5059 0.25 SUNDOWN ST 5058  Noonday S 5058  Noonday S
5060 0.67 BOB WHITE WAY 5041  Downey Road 5005  Furnace Creek Road
5061 0.46 CROW CANYON RD 5048  Homewood Canyon Road Roads End
5062 0.43 ELIAS RD 5006  Tecopa Hot Springs Road Roads End
5069 0.51 WILLIAMS RD 5020 FALL RD ROAD END
5070 0.40 SUMMER RD 5020  Fall Road Roads End
5071 0.11 SPRING CIR 5020  Fall Road Roads End
5072 3.03 STERLING RD 5040  Nine Mile Kern County Lin
5073 1.26 PEARSON RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
5074 0.42 E MARKET ST 5011 Olancha Darwin Rd 5075 SE Second Ave
5075 0.19 SE SECOND AVE 5074 MARKET ST 5015 OPHIR RD
5076 0.41 LAKEVIEW RD 5077 Enchanted Lakes Road Roads End
5077 1.53 ENCHANTED LAKES RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5078 1.51 LAKE VILLAGE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5201 0.18 WHITNEY ST 5206  Mojave St Hwy 39
5202 0.11 LAKE ST
5203 0.05 OWENS ST 5204  Sierra St 5205  Cartago S
5204 0.25 SIERRA ST 5201 Whitney St 5203 Owen St
5205 0.24 CARTAGO ST 5203 OWENS ST 5201 WHINTEY ST
5206 0.17 MOJAVE ST 5201 Whitney St Road End

1095.36



Resolution 2022-18

                     RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,                       
                     COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,

           ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF THE 2021
       MAINTAINED MILEAGE LOG

                      WHEREAS, Section 2121 of the Streets and Highways Code requires an annual 
report to Caltrans District 9 Office of the State of California showing the Maintained County 
Road System, specifying the termini and mileage of each route added to or excluded; and

                 WHEREAS, “Exhibit A” sets the Maintained County Road System from January 1, 2021 
through December 31, 2021;

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, by the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo the “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference 
shows additions, revisions, and exclusions to the County Maintained Road System for the 
period of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020;

                 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Department of Public Works is 
hereby directed to file a certified copy of this resolution with the Caltrans District 9 Office of the 
State of California Department of Transportation.

             APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of _______, _______, by the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo:

AYES:  
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
                                                                     ______________________
                                                    Chair
                                                                      Inyo County Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:
Leslie L. Chapman, Clerk of the Board

By: ________________________________
Assistant Clerk of the Board
                                                                    



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Ashley Helms
 
SUBJECT:  Approve and accept Highway Easement Deed for the Carroll Creek Rd Bridge Replacement Project
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Accept and approve the Letter of Non-Objection for the Construction of Walker Creek Bridge Over the Los 
Angeles Aqueduct Right-of-Way, and authorize the Public Works Director to sign; and
B) Accept and approve the Letter of Non-Objection for the Construction of Carroll Creek Bridge Over the Los 
Angeles Aqueduct Right-of-Way, and authorize the Public Works Director to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Carroll Creek Road Bridge Replacement Project and Walker Creek Road Bridge Replacement Project are 
100% funded through the Highway Bridge Program, a Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) program 
administered locally by Caltrans District 9.  The projects will replace two existing bridges, located south of Lone 
Pine, which do not meet structural and safety standards. Each new bridge will cross the Los Angeles Aqueduct 
right-of-way, and therefore requires approval from the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP). 
 The Construction Obligations included in these letters have been included in the project construction plans.  

In addition to the Letter of Non-Objection, the Carroll Creek Project requires the acquisition of a road easement 
across an LADWP owned parcel.  This easement will be brought before your Board once it is approved by the 
Los Angeles City Council.  
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to accept the two Letters of Non-Objection. This is not recommended because the 
project cannot move forward without the approval of LADWP.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
LADWP
FHWA
Caltrans
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
There is no cost associated with the acceptance of the Letters of Non-Objection.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Carroll Creek - Letter of Non-Objection
2. Walker Creek - Letter of Non-Objection
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 5/17/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/17/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2022
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/24/2022















 
 
Mr. Michael Errante 
Page 7 
May 5, 2022 
 
 
 
The signature(s) affixed hereto of the County hereby warrants that he/she/they is/are 
authorized to do so and have the legal authority to bind the person or entity which they 
represent and on whose behalf they have executed this letter. The signature(s) 
certifies/certify that the County has read and does understand and accept each and 
every paragraph contained in this letter and agrees to abide by and be bound by same.  
 

Executed on this __ day of _____, 2022 
County of Inyo  

 
 

 
By:  _________________________________ 

Print Name:                                        Michael Errante_ 
Title:                    Department of Public Works_ 

                                                        County of Inyo_ 
 
 





Exhibit A. 

Inyo County Public Works Project Plans for Construction on 
Carroll Creek Road, 95% Submittal, May 15, 2020



x

x

x

x

x

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION ON

SHEET

DEL NORTE
SISKIYOU MODOC

HUMBOLDT

TRINITY SHASTA LASSEN

TEHAMA

MENDOCINO
GLENN BUTTE

PLUMAS

SIERRA

NEVADA

PLACER
Y

U
B

A
COLUSA

LAKE

YOLO

NAPASONOMA

EL DORADO

MARIN

AMADOR
ALPINE

C
A
L

A
V
E
R

A
S

CONTRA
COSTA

TUOLUMNE
MONO

SANTA
CLARA

SANTA CRUZ

S
T

A
N
IS

L
A

U
S

MARIPOSA

MERCED

M
A

D
E
R

A

FRESNO

MONTEREY

INYO

TULARE

KINGS

OBISPO KERN

SANTA

BARBARA

VENTURA

LOS ANGELES

SAN BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

IMPERIALSAN DIEGO

ORANGE

SOLANO

ALAMEDA

M
E

N
T

O

S
A

C
R

A
-

J
O

A
Q

U
INS

A
N

SAN

BENITO

SAN 

LUIS

S
U

T
T

E
R

SAN FRANCISCO

SAN MATEO

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
TOTAL

SHEETSTOTAL PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

POST MILES
No.

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T
I

O
N
 

N
o
.

L
I
C

E
N

S
E
 

E
x
p
 

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E
 

S
I

G
N

E
D

OF LICENSE AS SPECIFIED IN THE "NOTICE TO BIDDERS."

INDEX OF PLANS

C
A

L
T

R
A

N
S
 

D
E

S
I

G
N
 

O
V

E
R

S
I

G
H

T
 

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

D
E

S
I

G
N
 

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
4
5
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS THE CLASS (OR CLASSES)

STRUCTURE PLANS   

INCLUDED IN THE NOTICE TO BIDDERS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS BOOK.
THE STANDARD PLANS LIST APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT IS 

SHEET No.        DESCRIPTION        

CONTRACT No.

PROJECT ID

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE

0000000000

UNIT 0000 00000000001
S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rab01.dgn

kevin.williamsUSERNAME =>

DGN FILE =>

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 2 31
CALTRANS WEB SITE IS: HTTP//WWW.DOT.CA.GOV/BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

09 CR    1   

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

INYO COUNTY

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE, SUITE 100

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

168 N. EDWARDS, P.O. DRAWER Q

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

NO SCALE

CARROLL CREEK Rd

U
S
3
9
5

T
o
 

L
o
n
e
 

P
i
n
e

B
A
R
T
L
E
T
T
 
R
d

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION

STA 11+80.00

END CONSTRUCTION

STA 20+60.00

BARTLETT

T
o
 

C
a
r
t
a
g
o

BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION

NEW BRIDGE #48C0052

Exist BRIDGE #48C-0011

C00000

395

L
o
s
 

A
n
g
e
l
e
s

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

S
T

A
T

E
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 

A
N

D
 

P
R

A
C

T
I
C

E
S
 

A
N

D
 

T
H

A
T
 

T
E

C
H

N
I
C

A
L
 

O
V

E
R

S
I

G
H

T
 

W
A

S
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
.

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D
 

A
S
 

T
O
 
I

M
P

A
C

T
 

O
N
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 

F
A

C
I
L
I
T
I
E

S
 

A
N

D
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 

W
I
T

H
 

A
P

P
L
I
C

A
B

L
E
 

INY

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018
TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES 

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

DRAINAGE PROFILE

DRAINAGE PLAN 

CONTOUR GRADING

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

PROFILE AND SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM

LAYOUT

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

TITLE SHEET

14-15

13

12

11

10

9

6-8

4-5

3

2

1

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

DATE

C45695

James L. Foster Jr.

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

DATE

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DIRECTOR

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

    

    

     

OR  COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACCURACY

COUNTY OR THEIR OFFICERS OR AGENTS

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC. AND INYO

C48241

PROJECT MANAGER

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

DATE

Robert Ferguson

C77731

PROJECT ENGINEER

Michael Errante

CARROLL CREEK ROAD

LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

FEDERAL PROJECT No. BRLO-5948(074)

ACROSS LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD

IN INYO COUNTY NEAR LONE PINE

CREEK Rd
CARROLL 

95% SUBMITTAL

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19

18

17

16

LOG OF TEST BORINGS

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 3

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 2

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 1

CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 DETAILS No. 2

CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 DETAILS No. 1

PC/PS SLAB DETAILS

PC/PS SLAB LAYOUT

TYPICAL SECTION

ABUTMENT 2 DETAILS

ABUTMENT 2 LAYOUT

ABUTMENT 1 DETAILS

ABUTMENT 1 LAYOUT

FOUNDATION PLAN

DECK CONTOURS

GENERAL PLAN

31



9'9'4' 4'

15'

9'9'

9'9'3' 3'

9'9'3' 3'

9'9'

40' 40'

40'40'

40' 40'

40'40'

40'40'

15'

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
4
6
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rca01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

X-1
NO SCALE

NOTES:

2.  SUPERELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN ON THE SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAMS.

   SUBJECT TO TOLERANCES SPECIFIED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

1.  DIMENSIONS OF THE PAVEMENT STRUCTURES (STRUCTURAL SECTIONS) ARE

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR

FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:1 2:
1

2:
1

2:1

5% 5%

OG

OG

OG

OG

OG
OG

PG

PG

& Var & Var

•

"C" LINE

•

"L" LINE

CARROLL CREEK ROAD ETW ETW

Var

&

Var

&

SR

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:1
2:

1
5% 5%

OG

OG

OG

OG

PG

CARROLL CREEK ROAD

Var

&

Var

&

SR

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:1 2:
1

5% 5%

OG

OG

OG

OG

PG

CARROLL CREEK ROAD

SR

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:
1

2:1
5%5%

OG

OG

OG

OG

PG

Var

&

Var

&

Sta "C" 18+50.00 TO Sta "C" 20+60.00

CARROLL CREEK ROAD

R/W R/W•

"C" LINE

Var

&

Var

&

Sta "C" 16+03.89 EB TO Sta "C" 18+50.00

SR

SR

Sta "C" 14+40.00 TO Sta "C" 15+45.89 BB

SR

2' 2'

15'

SRSR

2:1 2:
1

5% 5%

OG OG

PG

CARROLL CREEK ROAD

Var

&

SR SR

2'

Var

&

2'

2'
FL

2:
1

Sta "C" 11+80.00 TO Sta "C" 12+70.00

Sta "C" 12+70.00 TO Sta "C" 14+40.00 

0.50' CL 2 AB

0.25' HMA (TYPE A)

0.50' CL 2 AB

0.25' HMA (TYPE A)

SRSR

R/WR/W

R/W

•

"C" LINE R/W

R/WR/W

•

"C" LINE

ETWETW

ETWETW

ETWETW

ETWETW

R/W

ETW•

"C" LINE

ETW

R/W

DESIGN DESIGNATION

     V = 20 MPH

ADT (FUTURE) < 50 

ADT (2014) < 50

RURAL LOCAL ROAD

OG
2:

1
2:1

PG

OG

& Var & Var

•

"L" LINE

ETW ETW
15'

SR SR

0.50' CL 2 AB

0.25' HMA (TYPE A)

Sta "L" 51+10.00 TO Sta "L" 51+90.00

LADWP  PATROL ROAD

Sta "L" 51+90.00 TO Sta "L" 53+40.00
Sta "L" 50+00.00 TO Sta "L" 51+10.00

LADWP  PATROL ROAD

2

0.75' CL 2 AB

0.75' CL 2 AB

0.75' CL 2 AB

0.75' CL 2 AB



3755

37
55

3
7
5
5

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3760

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

37
65

37
70

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

37
75

3
7
7
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

37
80

3
7
8
0

37
80

37
80

37
80

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

378
5

3790

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
5

379
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

38
00

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

380
0

3
8
0
5

38
05

3
8
0
5

3
8
0
5

3
8
1
0

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
4
9
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rea01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

NOTE:

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE.

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,

CURVE DATA

R D T L

35.88'

22.35'

21.47'

76.22'

97.01'

76° 23' 40"

76° 23' 40"

76° 23' 40"

45° 50' 12"

45° 50' 12"

5

4

3

2

1

No.

1

3

CARROLL CREEK RD

TO US39
5

Exist 48" CMP

STRUCTURE TO REMAIN

Exist OVERCHUTE

"
L
"
 
L
I

N
E

9'

9'

+
4
0

BB "C" 15+45.89

Carroll Creek

L
A

D
W

P
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

(TYPE WB-31)

TRANSITION RAILING

R/W

R/
W

R
/

W

R/W

"C" LINE

CONFORM

"L
" 

50
+0

0.
00

LAYOUT

L-1
SCALE: 1" = 30'

CULVERT

2

"C" 18+19.94 EC

"C" 18+85.53 BC

"
C
"
 
2
0

+
2
2
.
4
2
 

E
C

"L"52+70.77 BC

"L"
53

+3
7.7

0 
EC

2 3 4 5 6

1

4
9

4
9

5
0

7

8

9

20

2

3

"L
"5

1+0
0.

06
 B

C

"C" 16+54.94 BC

9'

"L"52+01.88 BC

ABBREVIATIONS:

RIGHT OF WAY

SURVEY CONTROL POINT

PROPERTY LINE

R/W

CP

P/L

R/W

R
/

W

R/
W

EB "C" 16+03.89

25.45'

S 28°40'58" W

"L" 51+54.18

"C" 16+39.22 =

+50

1
1
2
.
9
8
'

S
 
2
2
°
2
7
'
1
1
"
 
E

R
O

A
D

L
A

D
W
P
 
P

A
T

R
O

L

75.00'

75.00'

75.00'

125.00'

125.00'

R/W

+90

+
1
0

CONFORM

"L" 53+40.00

"L"52+45.31 EC

"L"51+41.89 EC

CULVERT

END PAVEMENT

LA DEPT OF WATER & POWER
APN 029-010-07

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
APN 029-010-41

N72°36'55" E

PROTECT IN PLACE

Exist POWER POLE 4

No.

SURVEY CONTROL DATA

NORTHING

2063271.363

2063144.764

EASTING

6843091.295

6843666.798

10

1

ELEV

 3811.44

 3782.96

LINE

"C"

"C"

STATION

11+29.75

19+28.17

OFFSET

445.68' Lt

139.92' Lt

DESCRIPTION

CP-X ON MON WELL

CP-1

CP-1

END PAVEMENT

3

(48C0011) TO REMAIN

Exist BRIDGE 

*

* DENOTES CONTROL POINTS NOT SHOWN ON LAYOUT.

LEGEND:

FENCING (TO BE PLACED BY LADWP)

PROTECT IN PLACE

GUY WIRE

RELOCATED BY LADWP

EXIST GATE TO BE

GATE BY LADWP

BEGIN REMOVE FENCE

230.00' Lt "C" 15+10.00

BEGIN REMOVE FENCE

25.00' Lt "C" 15+07.00

END REMOVE FENCE 

144.00' Rt "C" 16+18.00

END REMOVE FENCE

32.00' Rt "C" 15+29.00

CF

F
C

C
F

C
F

F
C

F

F

F
F

F
F

F

CF

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

C
F

(SEE STRUCTURE PLANS)
BRIDGE No. 48C0052
LA AQUEDUCT

66.93'

43.43'

41.83'

136.89'

165.00'

 

S
 
3
6
°
2
8
'1

2
"
 
E

474.94'

N 85°29'55" E

BY LADWP

GATE RELOCATED

FC CF

CF

F
C

F
C

6.9'

+
2
0
.
0
0

TERMINAL SYSTEM

ALTERNATIVE IN-LINE

5

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W
P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

DRAINAGE DITCH

PAVEMENT

BEGIN

59.99'

S 04°30'06" E

LADWP 
R/

W

P
/

L

GATE BY LADWP

B
E

G
I

N
 

G
R

A
V

E
L
 

R
O

A
D

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

"
C
"
 
1
1

+
8
0
.
0
0

P
/

L

65.59'

N 09°52'06" E

E
N

D
 

G
R

A
V

E
L
 

R
O

A
D

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
"
C
"
 
2
0

+
6
0
.
0
0

L
A

D
W
P
 

R
/

W

BEGIN PAVEMENT

CRASH CUSHION

ALTERNATIVE 



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
4
9
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rfb001.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

0%

-5%

0%

-5%

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

3820

3810

3800

3790

5% 5%

 
 PS-1

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

CARROLL CREEK ROAD
"C" LINE

9+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00

3750

3760

3770

3780

3830 3830

3820

3810

3800

3790

3780

3770

3760

3750

AXIS OF ROTATION"C" LINE

10+00 11+00 12+00

+
0
1
.
9
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
8
0

+
9
6
.
9
8
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
1
.
6
1

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
1
5

+
9
0
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
4
0

+
2
0
.
0
0
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
1
.
0
6

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
9
.
2
8

+
1
1
.
7
2
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
8
.
1
3

+
4
1
.
7
2
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
6
.
8
3

+
7
1
.
7
2
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
3
.
8
3

+
0
6
.
9
8
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
0
.
3
0

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
2
.
1
5

+
9
0
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
1
.
7
4

+
7
0
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
4
.
3
0

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
2
.
1
2

+
8
0
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
8
.
3
6

60' VC

100' VC

90' VC

190' VC

60' VC

-1.38%

-4.35%

-10.00%

0.85% -4.46%

OG

PG

+
7
4
.
8
8
 

E
C

+2.00% EP Rt

-2.00% EP Lt

+3.00% EP Rt

-3.00% EP Lt

+
8
5
.
5
3
 

B
C

+
5
4
.
9
4
 

B
C

+
5
4
.
9
4

+
7
0
.
9
4

+
4
5
.
8
9
 

B
B

+
0
3
.
8
9
 

E
B

AXIS OF ROTATION

PROFILE

1" = 10' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

+
3
4
.
0
0

+
5
0
.
0
0

+3.00% ETW Rt

-3.00% ETW Lt

+3.00% ETW Lt

-3.00% ETW Rt

+
5
0
 

E
N

D
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

+
4
0
 

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
6
.
6
7

+
0
5
.
3
5
 

B
V

C

-6.67%

+
5
0
.
3
5
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
3
.
6
7

+
9
5
.
3
5
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
3
.
0
4

-9.30%

+
2
0
.
0
0
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
8
.
9
5

+
1
9
.
9
4
 

E
C

60' VC

4

+
0
3
.
8
9
 

E
B

+
4
5
.
8
9
 

B
B

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
6
0
.
0
0

+
0
1
.
0
0

+
9
9
.
0
0

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
8
0
.
0
0

+
2
0
.
0
0
 

E
V

C

"
L
"
 
5
1

+
5
4
.
1
8

"
C
"
 
+
3
9
.
2
2
 

=

E
l
e
v
 

=
 
3
7
8
6
.
5
8

BRIDGE, Br No. 48C0052

LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
5
0
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rfb002.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

0%

-5%

0%

-5%

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

3790

3780

5% 5%

LADWP PATROL ROAD
"L" LINE

49+00 50+00 51+00 52+00 53+00 54+00 55+00

3770

3800

AXIS OF ROTATION

PROFILE

1" = 5' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

 
 PS-2

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

3800

3790

3780

3770

-0.87%

45' VC 2.00
%

45' VC

-3.50%

-0.15%

45' VC

+
0
2
.
8
4
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
2
0

+
2
5
.
3
4
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
0
0

+
4
7
.
8
4
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
4
5

+
4
5
.
1
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
6
.
4
0

+
6
3
.
1
8
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
6
.
7
6

+
8
5
.
6
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
7
.
2
1

+
0
8
.
1
8
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
6
.
4
2

+
4
2
.
5
0
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
5
.
2
2

+
6
5
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
4
3

+
8
7
.
5
0
 

E
V

C
E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
4
0

+
1
1
.
9
7
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
4
.
3
6

OG

PG

10%

-10% -10%

10%

"L" LINE

ETW R
t ETW Rt

ETW Lt ETW 
Lt

6.5%

CONTROLLED BY "C" LINE

+
4
5
.
1
8

+
6
3
.
1
8

+1%

-1%

CONTROLLED BY "C" LINE

-8%

ETW LT

ETW RT

+
0
0

+
4
0

+
0
0
.
0
6
 

B
C

+
4
1
.
8
9
 

E
C

+
0
1
.
8
8
 

B
C

+
4
5
.
3
1
 

E
C

+
3
7
.
7
0
 

E
C

+
0
0

+
4
0

0.00%

-1.3%

+1.3%

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
 

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
 

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
 

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
 

5

+
7
0
.
7
7
 

B
C



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
5
4
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rga001.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

3
8
0
0

38
02

38
04

37
98

CARROLL CREEK RD

"C" LINE

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-1
SCALE: 1"=5'

RP

RP

RP

RP

•

•

•

•Elev 3803.59

9.00' Rt "C" 12+80.05

Elev 3802.91

19.74' Rt "C" 12+82.28

14.00' Rt "''C" 12+80.05

Elev 3801.74

30.63' Rt "C" 12+99.06

24.00' Rt "C" 13+21.24

Elev 3802.94

10.82' Rt "C" 13+14.09

Elev 3802.96

9.00' Rt "C" 13+21.24 

Elev 3799.69

34.82' Lt "C" 13+13.44

Elev 3802.88

9.00' Lt "C" 12+88.53

24.00' Lt "''C" 12+88.53

Elev 3801.95

15.83' Lt "C" 13+01.11

Elev 3802.59

10.82' Lt "C" 12+95.69

Elev 3802.64

15.83' Rt "C" 13+08.66

NOTES:

Elev 3803.55

11.61' Rt "C" 12+84.44

Elev 3803.17

16.72' Rt "C" 12+84.24

CURVE DATA

R D T LNo.

1

2

3

4

4

3

2

1

15.00'

5.00'

17.00'

15.00'

57° 0' 45"

122° 59' 15"

134° 03' 19"

57° 0' 45"

14.93'

10.73'

39.78'

14.93'

8.15'

9.21'

40.10'

8.15'

3

6

Elev 3799.48

39.52' Lt "C" 13+45.45

Elev 3799.55

37.82' Lt "C" 13+43.80

26.00' Lt "C" 13+56.02

Elev 3801.63

19.37' Lt "C" 13+40.37

Elev 3801.94

9.00' Lt "C" 13+56.02

CONFORM

CONFORM

SEE RIGHT OF WAY AND UTILITY PLAN SHEETS.

EASEMENTS, AND PROPOSED  RIGHT OF WAY,

2. FOR COMPLETE UTILITY INFORMATION, 

MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE.

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD ACCESS DATA, 

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE 1.
Elev 3798.60

53.42' Lt "C" 13+31.07

Ex
is
t 

R/
W

E
x
i
s
t
 

R
/

W

R/W R/W

R/WR/W



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
5
6
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rga002.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

CARROLL CREEK RD

"C" LINE

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-2
SCALE: 1"=10'

"
L
"
 
L
I
N

E

L
A

D
W
P
 
P

A
T

R
O

L
 

R
O

A
D

14.00' Lt "C" 16+19.19

RP

54.00' Lt "C" 17+21.78

54.00' Rt "C" 16+86.18

14.00' Rt "C" 16+24.22

•

•

•

•

•

NOTES:

   RIGHT OF WAY, SEE RIGHT OF WAY AND UTILITY PLAN SHEETS.

2.  FOR COMPLETE UTILITY INFORMATION, EASEMENTS, AND PROPOSED

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE.

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,1.

12.27' Lt "''C" 15+64.22
RP

RP

RP

Elev 3786.24

15.00' Rt "L" 51+00.06

Elev 3786.71

15.00' Rt "L" 51+19.81

Elev 3787.23

14.16' Lt "C" 16+24.19

Elev 3787.38

10.52' Lt "C" 16+22.78

Elev 3787.60

9.00' Lt "C" 16+19.19

Elev 3787.96

9.00' Rt "C" 16+19.22

Elev 3787.79

14.00' Rt "C" 16+24.22

Elev 3787.80

10.46' Rt "C" 16+22.75

Elev 3784.77

17.99' Lt "L" 51+19.13

Elev 3782.01

17.13' Lt "C" 16+84.80

Elev 3778.61

9.00' Lt "C" 17+21.78

Elev 3782.65

9.00' Rt "C" 16+86.18

Elev 3785.08

20.81' Rt "C" 16+62.63

Elev 3785.65

15.00' Lt "L" 52+01.88

RP

CURVE DATA

R D T LNo.

5

4

3

2

1

2

3

4

5

1

5.00'

5.00'

45.00'

45.00'

60.00'

91° 48' 5"

90° 00' 0"

74° 45' 31"

88° 40' 10"

30° 10' 1"

8.01'

7.85'

58.70'

69.64'

31.59'

5.16'

5.00'

34.38'

43.97'

16.17'

Elev 3787.59

15.00' Rt "L" 51+90.00 Elev 3785.71

16.80' Lt "L" 51+90.00

Elev 3784.79

15.55' Lt "L" 51+08.36

Elev 3786.54

15.55' Rt "L" 51+12.62

2

1

6

7

7

BEGIN PAVEMENT

END PAVEMENT

END PAVEMENT

R
/

W

R/
W

R/W

R/W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
9
:
5
9
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rga003.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

318

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-3
NO SCALE

   

WB

"W"

24"

"B"

24"

"W"

24"

"B"

24"

"W"

24"

"B"

24"
  

(MPH)

SPEED

DESIGN

TYPE B

LENGTH

PAD

LENGTH

EFFECTIVE

UNIT    

CONCRETE BACKUP
TYPE B

L

GENERAL NOTES

BAYS

No. OF

11'-8"45 OR LESS 11'-6"

7.

6.

5.

4.

3.

2.

1.

CORNER OF THE FIXED OBJECT.

VEHICLE TRAVELLING AT 15 DEGREES TO THE ROADWAY FROM THE FACE OR 

UNIT WIDTH SELECTED SHOULD BE ADEQUATE TO PROTECT AN ERRANT

OR C OF MERGING BARRIERS.

THE QUAD SYSTEM SHOULD BE APPROXIMATELY PARALLEL WITH THE BARRIER

OBJECTS, OR DEPRESSIONS.

THE INSTALLATION AREA SHOULD BE FREE FROM CURBS, ELEVATED 

PERMISSIBLE CROSS-SLOPE IS 8%.

SYSTEM, THE CONCRETE PAD WILL REQUIRE LEVELLING. MAXIMUM

IF THE CROSS-SLOPE VARIES MORE THAN 2% OVER THE LENGTH OF THE

OF 4,000 P.S.I.

CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 2 WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH

FURNISHED TO THE ENGINEER.

DETAILS WILL BE SHOWN ON THE MANUFACTURER'S SHOP DRAWINGS 

DETAILS OF COMPONENTS FOR THE QUAD AND BACKUPS AND REINFORCING 

BE REQUIRED.

FOR BI-DIRECTIONAL TRAFFIC, APPROPRIATE TRANSITION PANELS WILL

2

TYPE I TYPE ITYPE II TYPE II TYPE II

2'-0" 

2
4
"
 

2'-6"

10"

2
'
-
8
"

TYPE I

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

 PLAN 

SYSTEM LENGTH (Var)

EFFECTIVE LENGTH - (Var)

Typ BAY

 
B

A
C

K
U

P

PANELS TO SLIDE

Min ClR FOR

DIAPHRAGM
CARTRIDGE

QUADGUARD FENDER PANEL

ASSEMBLY

NOSE

PLAN

3'-0"

MONORAIL

1
0
ƒ

"

MONORAIL ASSEMBLY DETAIL

ELEVATION

Tot RAIL LENGTH (Var)BACKUP STRUCTURE

END CAP

(SHOWN)

THREE BAY

MONORAIL

(SHOWN)

TWO BAY

MONORAIL

(SHOWN)

ONE BAY

MONORAIL

     HALF INCH

     STRAIGHT WITHIN ONE

     ASSEMBLY MUST BE

NOTE: MONORAIL & BACKUP

CL

FOR MONORAIL HARDWARE INSTALLATION.)

(SEE THE MANUFACTURER'S SHOP DRAWINGS

(TYPE B)

ELEVATION

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

SEE BRIDGE PLANS

STRUCTURE APPROACH,

QUADGUARD II SYSTEM DETAIL

BACKUP

TYPE B

BACKUP

TYPE B

EOD

S
L

A
B

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

EOD

EOD



3755

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

37
70

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

37
75

3
7
7
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

37
80

3
7
8
0

37
80

37
80

37
80

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

378
5

3790

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
5

379
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

38
00

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

38
05

3
8
0
5

3
8
0
5

3
8
1
0

3
8
1
0

75'

(6
.9

9
3

m
) 

O
f
f
 
2
2
.9

4
 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
1
1
.1

9
 

A
 
2
8
3
° 

S
l
p
 
1
1
.7

4
2

%
 

%
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
6
.1

1
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
0
5
.0

4
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
7
2
.0

1
 
 

(0
.113

m
) 

O
f
f
 
0
.3

7
 

S
t
a
 
1+

2
5
.3

2
 

A
 
2
9
4
° 

S
lp
 
12
.7

8
8

%
 

%
 

E
le

v
 
3
7
9
5
.7

5
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
11.7

6
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
7
9
.14
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
6
6
.0

5
 
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
3
9
9
.1

1
 
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
6
.7

2
 

S
l
p
 
3
2
.1

6
2

%
 

%
 

A
 
1
2
7
° 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
0
4
.8

0
 

O
f
f
 
1
7
.4

6
 

(5
.3

2
3

m
) 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
8
9
.8

7
 
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
1
6
.0

0
 
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
5
.0

8
 

S
l
p
 
7
.7

5
9

%
 

%
 

A
 
2
9
9
° 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
2
3
.5

1
 

O
f
f
 
3
9
.8

8
 

(1
2
.1

5
6

m
) 

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
0
4
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rge01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

(BOTANICAL NAME)

COMMON NAME

(SLOPE MEASUREMENT)

PER ACRE

POUNDS PURE LIVE SEED

(STIPA SPECIOSA)

DESERT NEEDLEGRASS
5

15

2

15

3

3
(LARREA TRIDENTATA)

CREOSOTE BUSH

(ENCELIA FARINOSA)

BRITTLEBRUSH

(ATRIPLEX CANESCENS)

FOURWING SALTBUSH

(ARISTIDA PURPUREA)

PURPLE THREE-AWN

(AMBROSIA DUMOSA)

BURRO BUSH

HYDROSEED SEED MIX

EROSION CONTROL (HYDROSEED)

ITEM SEQUENCE
MATERIAL

DESCRIPTION TYPE

HYDROSEED

STEP 1

STEP 2

STEP 3

FIBER

SEED

TACKIFIER

SEED MIX

WOOD

PSYLLIUM

NOTES

43 LB/ACRE

1200 LB/ACRE

150 LB/ACRE

CARROLL CREEK RD

TO US39
5

"
L
"
 
L
I
N

E

9'

9'

+
4
0

L
A

D
W

P
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

R/W

R/
W

R
/

W

R/W

"C" LINE

2 3 4 5 6

1

4
9

4
9

5
0

7

8

9

20

2

3

9'

9'

R/W

R
/

W

R/
W

R
O

A
D

L
A

D
W
P
 
P

A
T

R
O

L

R/W

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

L-1
SCALE: 1" = 30'

NOTES:

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION AND EROSION CONTROL WORK ONLY.

LADWP R/W

LADWP R/W

9

LEGEND:

BOULDERS
PLACE

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

P/L

P/L

R/W

LADWP 

(BOTANICAL NAME)

COMMON NAME

(SLOPE MEASUREMENT)

PER ACRE

POUNDS PURE LIVE SEED

15

30

5

5

DRY SEED MIX

(AMBROSIA DUMOSA)

BURRO BUSH

(ATRIPLEX POLYCARPA)

ALLSCALE SALTBUSH

(STIPA SPECIOSA)

DESERT NEEDLEGRASS

(ERIOGONUM FASCICULATUM)

CALIFORNIA BUCKWHEAT

ITEM SEQUENCE
MATERIAL

DESCRIPTION TYPE

STEP 1

STEP 2

STEP 3 SEED MIX

NOTES

RESTORATION AREA (VERTICAL MULCH AND DRY SEED)

OBLITERATE SURFACE

VERTICAL MULCH

DRY SEED

SOILS

DE-COMPACT 

VERTICAL MULCH

DRY SEED

DEPRESSION

FURROW 

NATIVE

3-FT SPACING

8-INCH MIN HT

55 LB/ACRE

Carroll Creek

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

RESTORATION AREA
CONTRACTOR STAGING AND 

CONTRACTOR STAGING AREA

HYDROSEED

RESTORATION AREA
OBLITERATE SURFACE AND 

TEMPORARY DESERT TORTOISE FENCE

TEMPORARY SILT FENCE

TEMPORARY FIBER ROLL



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
0
5
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rha001.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
9
0

1
.
3
3
'

CARROLL CREEK RD

"C" LINE "C" LINE

CARROLL CREEK RD

"
L
"
 
L
I

N
E

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
D

6

NOTE:

1. THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR CONTOUR GRADING WORK ONLY.

3787

3788

3789

3790

3791

37
86

3792

3792

3791

3790

3789

3788

3787

3786

3787

3786

3785

3788

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
6

3
7
8
7

5+505

10

CONTOUR GRADING

G-1
NO SCALE

3788

A

11.5' Lt "C" 16+15.50

15.0' Lt "C" 16+15.50

SECTION A-A

24.0' Lt "C" 16+8.50

A

P
/

L

P
/

L

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION FABRIC (CLASS 8)

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION (60 LB, CLASS II, METHOD B) (CY)



3755

37
55

3
7
5
5

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3760

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

37
65

37
70

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

37
75

3
7
7
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

37
80

37
80

37
80

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

378
5

3790

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
5

379
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

38
00

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
0

3
8
0
5

38
05

3
8
0
5

3
8
0
5

3
8
1
0

(6
.9

9
3

m
) 

O
f
f
 
2
2
.9

4
 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
1
1
.1

9
 

A
 
2
8
3
° 

S
l
p
 
1
1
.7

4
2

%
 

%
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
6
.1

1
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
0
5
.0

4
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
7
2
.0

1
 
 

(0
.113

m
) 

O
f
f
 
0
.3

7
 

S
t
a
 
1+

2
5
.3

2
 

A
 
2
9
4
° 

S
lp
 
12
.7

8
8

%
 

%
 

E
le

v
 
3
7
9
5
.7

5
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
11.7

6
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
7
9
.14
 
 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
6
6
.0

5
 
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
3
9
9
.1

1
 
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
6
.7

2
 

S
l
p
 
3
2
.1

6
2

%
 

%
 

A
 
1
2
7
° 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
0
4
.8

0
 

O
f
f
 
1
7
.4

6
 

(5
.3

2
3

m
) 

N
 
2
0
6
2
8
8
9
.8

7
 
 

E
 
6
8
4
3
4
1
6
.0

0
 
 

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
5
.0

8
 

S
l
p
 
7
.7

5
9

%
 

%
 

A
 
2
9
9
° 

S
t
a
 
1
4

+
2
3
.5

1
 

O
f
f
 
3
9
.8

8
 

(1
2
.1

5
6

m
) 

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
0
8
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300ria01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

CARROLL CREEK RD

"
L
"
 
L
I
N

E

Carroll Creek

L
A

D
W

P
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

"C" LINE

2 3 4 5 6

4
9

4
9

7

LEGEND:

b

1

2

b

c 36" FES

20

9

8

5
0

1

2

3
R

O
A

D

L
A

D
W
P
 
P

A
T

R
O

L

e

36" FES c

DRAINAGE DITCH

36" FES a

a36" FES

DRAINAGE BASIN

X

X

d

DRAINAGE UNIT NUMBER

DRAINAGE SYSTEM NUMBER

11

DRAINAGE PLAN

DP-1
SCALE: 1" = 30'

R/W

R/W

R/
W

R/
W

NOTES:

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR TEMPORARY DRAINAGE WORK ONLY.

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

R
/

W
 

T
O
 

B
E
 

R
E

L
I

N
Q

U
I
S

H
E

D

RSP (10' LONG x 5' WIDE)

3
7
7
0

6
:
1

6
:
1

3:1

36" X 59.5' RCP

36" x 39.5' RCP

DRAINAGE DITCH

d

LADWP 
R/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

RSP (10' LONG x 5' WIDE)

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

3
7
7
2

3
7
7
4

P
/

L

P
/

L

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W



1
.
7
5
'

6'

6'

3790

3800

38103810

0+00

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
1
1
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rib01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

NOTE:

1. 

DRAINAGE SYSTEM No. 1

OG

b

c

DRAINAGE SYSTEM No. 2

FG

OG

FG

b

c

21.00' Rt "C" 17+89.66

21.02' Rt "C" 13+59.42

18.5' Lt "C" 17+90.13

3760

3770

3780

3790

3760

3770

3780

3790

3800

3810

3820

17.46' Lt "C" 14+04.80

3760

3770

3780

3790

3760

3770

3780

3790

3800

3810

3820

FG

a         36" FES

a         36" FES

68.15' Lt "C" 17+91.67

d

e   DRAINAGE DITCH

d   RSP

   36" FES

   RSP

   36" FES

Inv Elev 3796.28

Inv Elev 3795.09

Inv Elev 3795.08

39.88' Lt "C" 14+23.51

Inv Elev 3768.69 Inv Elev 3767.90

12

DRAINAGE PROFILE

DP-2
NO SCALE

S=-2.03%

S=-2.11%

d

FABRIC (CLASS 8)
ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

FG

(150 LB, CLASS II, METHOD B) (CY)
ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

RSP DETAIL

36" X 39.5' RCP

3
1

R/W "C" LINE

3
1

"C" LINE

36" X 59.5' RCP



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
1
6
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rla01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

CS-1
NO SCALE

NO SCALE

B

A

100'

LEGEND ROADSIDE

(N) - NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM, FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN PANELS

CALIFORNIAFEDERAL

SIGN CODE
No.

SIGN SIGN AREA
(LxD)

PANEL SIZE

INCHxINCH SQFT

S
I

N
G

L
E
 

F
A

C
E

D

COLOR
SHEETING

COLOR
SHEETING

A
S

T
M
 

T
Y

P
E

R
E

T
R

O
F

L
E

C
T
I

V
E

A
S

T
M
 

T
Y

P
E

R
E

T
R

O
F

L
E

C
T
I

V
E

F
I
L

M
 

P
R

E
M
I

U
M

G
R

A
F
I
T

T
I

SQFT

(N)
(0.080" - UNFRAMED)

SHEET ALUMINUM
FURNISH SINGLE

A

B

C

4

6

X

X

X

8

12

W20-1 24x24 ORANGE

ORANGE

ORANGE

III

III

III III

III

IIIBLACK

M4-10 48x18

36x18

BLACK

CARROLL CREEK Rd

L
o
s
 
A
n
g
e
le
s

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

G20-2 BLACK

C

4.5 9

LEGEND:

X

CARROLL C
REEK R

d

EXISTING OVERCHUTE STRUCTURE

L
A

D
W
P
 
 
 
 
P

A
T
R

O
L
 
 
 
R

O
A

D

C

B

A

100'

EXISTING BRIDGE TO REMAIN

NOTES:

2.  SIGN LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE.  EXACT LOCATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE ENGINEER.

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN WORK ONLY.

MAINTAIN TRAFFIC ON EXISTING ROUTE

13

CONTRACTOR STAGING AREA

TYPE 3 BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

LIMITS OF WORK

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN

STATIONARY MOUNTED CAS - ONE POST

PROPOSED BRIDGE



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
1
7
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rpa01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

Q-1
NO SCALE

14



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
2
0
:
2
0
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => kevin.williams

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04300rpa02.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

XX/XX/XX

09 INY CR

C77427

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

95% SUBMITTAL

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P

E

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P

E

BRYAN STONE

31

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

Q-2
NO SCALE

15



7
'
-
0
"

6
"
 

M
i
n

PROFILE GRADE

No Scale

"C" Line

TYPICAL SECTION

‚"=1'-0"

Notes:

2

1

3

4

5

6

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
3
.
8
3

-10.00%

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
8
.
1
3

1
6

+
1
1
.
7
2
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
2
.
1
2

1
5

+
2
0
.
0
0
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
9
8
.
9
5

1
4

+
2
0
.
0
0
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
8
0
2
.
1
5

1
3

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

B
V

C

-1.38%

60' VC

-4.35%

ELEVATION

1"=10'

PLAN

1"=10'

15 16

Datum Elev 3760.00

Abut 1

Abut 2

FG

FG

OG

OG

3

4

58'-0" Measured along "C" Line

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

L
o
s
 

A
n
g
e
l
e
s

"C" Line

3

3

4

4

&1 2

&1 2

9
'

9
'

6
"

6
"

5

5

To US Hwy 395

Wilderness

To Golden Trout

Carroll Creek Road

Top of fill

Top of fill

Toe of fill

Toe of fill

Toe of fill

6

R
O

A
D

P
A

T
R

O
L

L
A

D
W

P

Elev 3791.00

BB 15+45.89

Elev 3788.47

EB 16+03.89

N 85°29'55" E

 

B
C
 
1
6

+
5
4
.
9
4

15 16

2'-0"

9'-0" 9'-0"

2'-0"

6" 6"

PG

reinforced concrete deck

Slab with 5" Min composite

PC/PS Voided Concrete

2
'
-
2
"

 

23'-0"

&
 

V
a
r

TitleSheet No.

INDEX TO PLANS

Link Railing Type 2, Typ

Bridge Rail (Mod) with Chain

California ST-75

2
:
1

T
y
p

2
:
1

T
y
p

of fill

Toe

1

16

1
6

+
7
1
.
7
2
 

E
V

C

BB
EB

(Installed by LADWP)

Patrol Road Gate

(Installed by LADWP)

Patrol Road Gate

1.5:1

-9.30%

Per Sta

R/C = 4.95% 

100' VC

Per Sta

R/C = -9.42% 

60' VC

protect in place

lined aqueduct,

Exist concrete

7

7
7

Log of Test Borings

Bridge Rail Details No. 3

Bridge Rail Details No. 2

Bridge Rail Details No. 1

Chain Link Railing Type 2 ST-75 Detail No. 2

Chain Link Railing Type 2 ST-75 Detail No. 1

PC/PS Slab Details

PC/PS Slab Layout

Typical Section

Abutment 2 Details

Abutment 2 Layout

Abutment 1 Details

Abutment 1 Layout 

Foundation Plan

Deck Contours

General Plan

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

-2.0% 2.0%

8

For Hydrologic Summary, see "Foundation Plan" sheet

For General Notes, see "Deck Contours" sheet

Existing LADWP fencing to be removed, see Road Plans

Fencing (to be placed by LADWP)

Existing LADWP fencing to remain, see Road Plans

Existing structure

RSP, see Road Plans

Existing Splash Guard, protect in place

Existing bridge 48C-0011 to remain (not shown)

Structure Approach, Type EQ (10)

Quadguard System or equivalent, see Road Plans

Midwest Guardrail System, see Road Plans

Paint "Los Angeles Aqueduct"

      

Paint Bridge "Br No. 48C0052"

Top of fill

Top of fill

8

R
a
i
l
i
n
g

C
h
a
i
n
 

L
i
n
k

C
l
r

7

7

PREPARED FOR THE

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
4
4
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

PROJECT ENGINEER

GENERAL PLAN

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY CHECKED

SPECIFICATIONS

CHECKED

PLANS AND SPECS

COMPARED

BY

BY

LAYOUT

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-a-gp01.dgnFILE =>

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

BRIDGE NO.

SHEET OF

CHECKED

CHECKEDBY

BY

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORNI

A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

POST MILES

DATE

FACTOR DESIGN
LOAD & RESISTANCE LIVE LOADING:  HL93 W/"LOW-BOY";

              PERMIT DESIGN VEHICLE

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X

X
-

X 16

REVISION DATES

09 C.R.

X

DESIGN GENERAL PLAN SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

B. Maechler

ROBERT FERGUSON

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

Iny

88803

6/30/20

11017 Cobblerock Drive, Suite 100

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

A. Hanson/J. Cruz

A. Hanson/J. Cruz

48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

31-

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

R. Ferguson

K. Gallagher

95% SUBMITTAL



1
1
'
-
6
"

1
1
'
-
6
"

PLAN

1"=10'

Contours do not include camber

 

Contours Intervals = 0.10'

 

X = 10' intervals along station line

 

Notes:

DETAIL NO. DETAIL NO.

PLAN SHEET NO.

REVISED STANDARD

SHEET NO.

STANDARD PLAN

SEISMIC

LOADING:

DESIGN:

DEAD LOAD:

LOADING:

REINFORCED

CONCRETE: y

c

n  = 8

PRESTRESSED

CONCRETE:

LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN

GENERAL NOTES

Includes 35 psf for future wearing surface.

dated January 2014

edition and with Caltrans Amendments, preface

AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, 6th

f  = 60 ksi

f' = 3.6 ksi

see ARS Curve

Soil profile Vs = 408 m/s

max

HL93 with "Lowboy" and permit design load.

DESIGN:
SEISMIC

LIVE

dated April 2013.
Caltrans Seismic Design Criteria (SDC), version 1.7,

CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS

No Scale

Edge of deck

"C" Line

• Brg Abut 2• Brg Abut 1

16

DECK CONTOURS

ACCELERATION RESPONSE SPECTRA CURVE

No Scale

QUANTITIES

Period (sec)

S
a
 
(
g
)

S
p
e
c
t
r
a
l
 

A
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
i
o
n

17

2

Peak Ground Acceleration = 0.574 g 

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018

RSP 

concrete strength requirements

Precast Prestressed Slab, see "PC/PS Slab Layout" sheet for

Structural Concrete, Bridge Footing

Structural Concrete, Bridge

Structural Concrete, Bridge (Polymer Fiber) (f'c = 4.5 ksi at 28 days)

Structural Concrete, Approach Slab (Type EQ)

See "Prestressing Notes" on "PC/PS Slab Layout" sheet.

Edge of deck

Approach

Structure 

Approach

Structure 

3
7
9
1
.
0

3
7
9
2
.
0

3
7
9
0
.
0

3
7
8
9
.
0

3
7
8
8
.
0

3
7
9
1
.
5

3
7
9
0
.
5

3
7
8
9
.
5

3
7
8
8
.
5

3
7
8
7
.
5

B9-5

B9-4

B6-21

B0-13

B0-5

B0-3

B0-1

A62C

A10H

A10G

A10F

A10E

A10D

A10C

A10B

A10A

A3C

A3B

A3A

Structure Approach - Slab Details

Structure Approach - Type EQ (10)

Joint Seals (Maximum Movement Rating = 2")

Bridge Details

Bridge Details

Bridge Details

Bridge Details

and Backfill- Bridge

Limits of Payment for Excavation

Legend - Rock

Legend - Soil (Sheet 2 of 2)

Legend - Soil (Sheet 1 of 2)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 5 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 4 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 3 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 2 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 1 of 5)

Abbreviations (Sheet 3 of 3)

Abbreviations (Sheet 2 of 3)

Abbreviations (Sheet 1 of 3)

Moment Magnitude M    = 6.7

California ST-75 Barrier Rail (Mod)

Bar Reinforcing Steel (Epoxy Coated)

Bar Reinforcing Steel (Bridge)

Joint Seal (MR=1•")

Erect Precast Prestressed Concrete Deck Unit

(Type SIV)

Furnish Precast Prestressed Concrete Slab 

Drill and Bond Dowel (Chemical Adhesive)(LF)

Structural Concrete, Approach Slab (Type EQ)

Structural Concrete, Bridge (Polymer Fiber)

Structural Concrete, Bridge

Structural Concrete, Bridge Footing

Structure Backfill (Bridge)

Structure Excavation (Bridge)

137.5

37

8,544

46

6

1334

17

18

25

41

30

34

63

LF

LBS

LBS

LF

EA

SQFT

LF

CY

CY

CY

CY

CY

CY

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-b-gnote.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
4
5
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL

0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0



1
2
'
-
7
"

1
2
'
-
7
"

1
1
'
-
6
"

1
1
'
-
6
"

1'-3", Typ

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-e-fpl01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
4
6
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL

PLAN

1"=10'

"C" Line

OG

Typ

1'-0"

No Scale

Footing

EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL

LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR

Abut 2

Abut 1

SCOUR DATA TABLE

SCOUR DEPTH (ft)
SHORT TERM (LOCAL)

SUPPORT No. CONTRACTION) SCOUR ELEVATION (ft)
LONG TERM (DEGRADATION AND

NORTHING EASTING ELEVATION DESCRIPTIONOFFSETSTATIONLINE

CP-X on Mon Well

CP-1

BENCH MARK DATA

No.

10

1

2063271.363

2063144.764

6843091.295

6843666.798

3811.44'

3782.96'

"C"

"C"

11+29.75

19+28.17

445.68' Lt

139.92' Lt

FG

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

L
o
s
 

A
n
g
e
l
e
s

N 85°29'55" E

FOUNDATION PLAN

3780.50

3780.50

Sta 16+02.64

S
 
0
4
°
3
0
'
0
5
"
 
E

•
 

B
r
g
 

A
b
u
t
 
2

S
 
0
4
°
3
0
'
0
5
"
 
E

•
 

B
r
g
 

A
b
u
t
 
1

R/W

N 85°29'55" E

WWLOL

N 85°29'55" E

WWLOL

18

3

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

• Brg Abut

GP

LOCATION
SUPPORT

(ksf)

(RESISTANCE FACTOR=0.50)

BEARING RESISTANCE

FACTORED GROSS NOMINAL

STRENGTH/CONSTRUCTION

(ksf)

(RESISTANCE FACTOR=1.00)

BEARING RESISTANCE

FACTORED GROSS NOMINAL 

EXTREME EVENT

SPREAD FOOTING DATA TABLE
LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN

(ksf)

(SETTLEMENT)

CONTACT STRESS

PERMISSIBLE NET

SERVICE

Abut 2

Abut 1

39.8

37.9

11.0

11.3

N/A

N/A

g,u R

Rg,max

g,u R

pnn,u

3 32

For benchmark locations outside of the plan limits shown above, see Road Plans.

xxx.x          Indicates bottom of footing elevation

 

 

Legend:

Indicates Structure Backfill (Bridge)

 

Indicates Structure Excavation (Bridge)

BY

BY

BY

BY

SCALE:

SURVEYED

FIELD CHECKED

DRAFTED

CHECKED

HORIZ.DATUM:VERT.DATUM:As Noted NAVD '88 CA Cord. Sys. Zone 4

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
0

Abut Edge

Abut Edge

ALIGNMENT TIES: See "BENCH MARK DATA"DATE OF SURVEY:

Jim Thornton

Alfonso Dabu

Alfonso Dabu

Ryan Kotey

04/2015

lined aqueduct

Exist Conc

lined aqueduct

Exist Conc

S
 
0
4
°
3
0
'
0
5
"
 
E

W
W

L
O

L

Sta 15+47.14

LA AQUEDUCT HYDRAULIC CRITERIA

0.50'

2.00'

 

Required

 

0.62'

2.02'

Provided

above Existing Splash Guard:

Bridge Soffit Elevation distance

above Existing Bridge Soffit:

Bridge Soffit Elevation distance 

over this controlled flow canal:

the following design criteria for the proposed bridge 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power provided 

FS

Bridge Soffit

WWLOL, parallel to • Brg Abut 2

Exist fence

   resulting in the highest ratio of q  /q  for foundations on soil.

3.  Controlling load combination for Strength, and Construction is the one

   of q   /q  for foundations on soil.

2.  Controlling load combination for Service Limit States is the one resulting in the highest ratio

   on soil, or q    /q  for foundation on rock.

1.  Controlling load combination is the one resulting in the highest ratio of q  /q  for foundations

Notes:

* Soffit elevation over LA Aqueduct is set per LADWP requirements



1'-0" 1'-3" 1'-3"

2
'
-
6
"

6'-0"

1
2
'
-
0
"
 
a
l
o
n
g
 

W
W

L
O

L
,
 
T
y
p

2" Clr

3
"

3
"

"a"+•"

3
"

6"

3'-0" 3'-0"

11'-6" 11'-6"

26'-2"

1'-1" 1'-1"

BB or EB

• Footing

• Brg Abut =

Const Jt

#5 @ 12

#5   @ 12

• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

"C" Line

"C" Line

Edge of deckEdge of deck

• Footing

• Brg Abut =

Approach

Structure 

#9    Tot 5

Typ

#5 @ 12

#5     @ 12

C
l
r

C
l
r

FG

Polystyrene

Expanded

bearing pad

same thickness as

Expanded Polystyrene

B0-13

13-2

B0-13

13-1

B6-21

#4   @ 12

#4 @ 12

#4 x 3'-0" @ 12

#5 @ 12

Top of backwall

not shown, Typ

Barrier

FG

• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

(Elastomer only), Tot 6

Pad 10x10x2

Elastomeric Bearing

Steel Reinforced

A

A

ABUTMENT 1 LAYOUT

ELEVATION

…"=1'-0"

PLAN

…"=1'-0"

OG

Typ

Bearing Pad

Elastomeric

(Abut 1 only)

#5 Dowel x 3'-0"

Dowel (Abut 1 only)

non-shrink grout for

4" Dia hole filled with

(Abutment 1 shown, Abutment 2 similar, except where noted)

19

4

B9-5

DETAIL 1

Const Jt
Abut seat

"a"+•"

"a"

1
'
-
0
"

B6-21

DETAIL 1

No Scale

Backwall

joint filler

•" Expansion

Expanded Polystyrene

B9-5

Seal (MR = 1•")

Type B Joint

B9-4

OG

Details" Sheet

"Abutment 1 

ELEVATION, See 

SHEAR KEY 

B
0
-
1

R
S

P 
 

Abut EdgeAbut Edge

3'-6"

#5 @ 12

Dowel

#5 Drill and Bond 

B9-4

Approach, Type EQ (10)

Structure 

Edge of deck

WWLOL =Edge of deck

WWLOL =

Denotes epoxy coated reinforcement

Legend:

    Details No. 2" sheets.

    "Abutment Details No. 1" and "Abutment

1.  For sections and details not shown, see

Notes:

E

E

E

#5

B0-3

Pervious Backfill

Weep Hole & 

(Abut 1 only)

Dia x 1'-5" Deep Hole, Tot 12

Adhesive into 1„" 

Drill and Bond Dowel with Chemical 

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-f-a01_lo1.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
4
8
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



1'-1"

1
'
-
0
"

3
'
-
0
"

1'-0"

2
'
-
4
"2" Clr

2'-0"

2
'
-
2
"

2" Clr

SHEAR KEY ELEVATION

1"=1'-0"

#4

Const Jt

#4    Tot 3

into backwall

#4 @ 12, extend

B0-13

13-2

B0-13

13-1

       bearing pads

       same thickness as

       Expanded Polystryrene

       Type AL Seal
B6-21

 

FG

OG
#5    Tot 2

#9    Tot 2

outside face

#5 @ 18

inside face

#7 @ 9

#5   @ 18

• Brg Abut 1

not shown

Concrete barrier

D

D

SECTION D-D

•"=1'-0"

FG

Approach

Structure 

#9    Tot 2

#5   @ 18

#5 @ 18

#7 @ 9

WWLOL

B B

SECTION B-B

1"=1'-0"

WW Reinf

#4 @ 12

Abut Reinf

ABUTMENT 1 DETAILS

not shown

Abut Reinf

       Polystyrene

       1" Expanded

•" Exp Jt filler

CC

SECTION C-C

1"=1'-0"

WW Reinf

Abut Reinf

#4 @ 12

• Brg Abut • Brg Abut

WINGWALL ELEVATION

•"=1'-0"

FG

Typ

#5   Tot 2

20

5

#9     Tot 5

Edge of deck

B0-1
RSP

extend into ftg

#5 Tot 5

#4 x 2'-9" @ 12

extend into ftg

#5 Tot 5 

extend into ftg

#5 Tot 5 

extend into ftg

#5 Tot 5 

#4 x 4'-6"  Tot 3

#4 x 4'-6" Tot 3
#4 x 4'-6" Tot 3

B9-4 B9-5

Typ

Bridge Rail Reinf

California ST-75

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-f-a01dt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
5
1
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



6"

11'-6"11'-6"

12'-7" 12'-7"

26'-2"

8'-3"

1
2
'
-
3
"

• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

"C" Line

"C" Line

WWLOL

Edge of deck

• Footing

• Brg Abut =

Top of backwall

not shown, Typ

Barrier FG• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

(Elastomer only), Tot 6

Pad 10x10x2

Elastomeric Bearing

Steel Reinforced

A

A

ABUTMENT 2 LAYOUT

Edge of deck

WWLOL

Typ

   Layout" sheets.

   see Abutment Details and "Abutment 1

1.  For sections and details not shown, 

Notes:

PLAN

…"=1'-0"

ELEVATION

…"=1'-0"

Typ

21

6

Abutment Edge

Abutment Edge

FG=OG

B9-5B9-4

Type EQ (10, Mod)

Structure Approach, 

B0-3
Weep Hole 

Elev 3784 ±
Elev 3784 ±

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-f-a02_lo1.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
5
4
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



1'-1"

1'-0"

3'-0"

2'-0"

2
'
-
8
"

2'-0"

2'-0"

SHEAR KEY ELEVATION

1"=1'-0"

Reinf not shown

Typical Abut

Const Jt

#4    Tot 3

•" Exp Jt filler

into backwall

#4 @ 12, extend

B0-13

13-2

B0-13

13-1

       Type AL Seal
B6-21

 

#4   @ 12

WWLOL

SECTION B-B

1"=1'-0"

B B

WW Reinf

• Brg Abut 2

D

D

#6    Tot 2

#4   @ 12

#4 Tot 2
#5 Tot 5

#8 Tot 4

outside face

#5 @ 12

SECTION D-D

•"=1'-0"

ABUTMENT 2 DETAILS

#8 Tot 4

#5 @ 12 #7 @ 12

WINGWALL ELEVATION

•"=1'-0"

GUARDRAIL CONNECTION

ƒ"=1'-0"

see Road Plans

Quardguard system,

EE

SECTION E-E

ƒ"=1'-0"

embedment

Min, Typ

FG

22

7

#9     Tot 5

#4 Tot 2

#6    Tot 2

Approach

Structure

Shear Key

Deck

Wingwall

H

H

SECTION H-H

ƒ"=1'-0"

Reinf not shown

Structure Approach

Road Plans

shown, see

system not

Quadguard

       Polystyrene

       1" Expanded

of deck

Edge

       as bearing pads

       same thickness

       Polystryrene

       Expanded

ST-75 Bridge Rail

EB

B0-13

13-2       Polystyrene

       1" Expanded

#4     @ 12

#5     @ 8

#5    Tot 4

#5 Cont, Tot 6

#4 @ 12

extend into ftg

#5 Tot 5

#4 x 4'-6" Tot 3

extend into Ftg

#5 Tot 5

#4 x 4'-6" Tot 3

#4

inside face

#7 @ 12

#4 x 4'-6" Tot 3

#5    Tot 4

FG

• Brg Abut 2

Type AL Seal
B6-21

 

Edge of deck

B6-21

 

see Road Plans

Quardguard system,

#5    Tot 4

Approach

Structure

#5  Tot 10

Shear Key

Wingwall

#5    Tot 4

#5

#5

Abutment Edge

Pay Limits of California Pay Limits of

Quadguard System

#5  

#5 Tot 4

#5 Tot 4

Type B Seal (Mod)

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-f-a02dt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
1
:
5
7
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



2
"

23'-0"

0" & Var

9'-6"2'-0" 9'-6" 2'-0"

TYPICAL SECTION

TYPICAL SECTION

•"=1'-0"

PART TYPICAL SECTION

1"=1'-0"

PG

2
'
-
2
"

Voided Slab

PC/PS Concrete

  6" Maximum deck thickness at midspan

* Depth Measured at • Brg Abut,

A
A

B B BC

See "Grout Seal Detail"

backer rod

Closed cell

•
"
 

M
i
n

      close as practicable

Note:  Place slab units as

Type 2 not shown

Chain Link Railing

X

Legend:

INSTANTANEOUS DEFLECTION TABLE

A

UNIT COMPONENT • ƒ

B

C

GROUT SEAL DETAIL

No Scale

"C" Line

#5 @ 12

 

Total (1+2) =

2. Barrier

1. Deck & Keyway

       L = Span Length of slab units

       Time-Dependant Camber Values.

       contractor is responsible for determining

Notes:  Deflections shown are unfactored. The 

23

8

   see "PC/PS Slab Details" sheet.

2.  For PC/PS Concrete Voided Slab details,

   unless otherwise shown.

1.  Voids do not extend into end diaphragms,

Notes:

#5 @ 12

Link Railing Type 2, Typ

Rail (Mod) with Chain 

California ST-75 Bridge 

C
l
r

&
 

V
a
r

Bridge Rail (Mod), Typ

California ST-75

Slab Unit Designation

5.0 ksi Min Compressive strength

Grouted Keyways. Non-shrink Grout

Voided Slab Unit

PC/PS Concrete

#4 Tot 3 per 36" slab unit

36" Interior slab unit

per 48" slab unit, Typ

#4 Tot 4

48" Interior slab unit
48" Exterior slab unit

5" Min*

Concrete deck,

Composite Reinf

Total (1+2) =

2. Barrier

1. Deck & Keyway

-2.0% 2.0%

Total (1+2+3) =

2. Barrier

1. Deck & Keyway

0.42"

0.07"

0.35"

0.59"

0.10"

0.49"

0.42"

0.07"

0.35"

1.05"

0.70"

0.35"

0.59"

0.10"

0.49"

1.05"

0.70"

0.35"

0.43"

0.07"

0.36"

0.60"

0.10"

0.50"

0.43"

0.07"

0.36"

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-k-ts01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
0
0
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



2'-6"2'-6"

2" Clr
2" Clr

58'-0"

PC/PS SLAB LAYOUT

@ 12 Max

 

Note: Not all reinforcement shown

 

c

ci

PRESTRESSING NOTES

Longitudinal Reinf

• Formed hole

• Brg Abut 1 =

SECTION A-A

ƒ"=1'-0"

5'-0"

• Span

"C" Line

A A

A

A

B

B

B

C

#4       or      stirrup  

• Formed hole T
y
p

 

8
"

16

FRAMING PLAN

‚"=1'-0"

 
#4       or      stirrup spacing

Symmetrical about • Span

Prestressing Notes

5'-0" Debond, see 

Edge of deck

Edge of deck

slab units, Typ

• PC/PS voided 

C

C

A B

f'   = 3.5 ksi @ time of stressing

&

A B&

C

Number of    Units = 1

Number of    Units = 3

Number of    Units = 2

Total Number of Units = 6

A

B

C

#6       @ 6, Typ

270 ksi Low Relaxation Strand:

• Formed Hole

• Brg Abut 1 =

24

9

• Brg Abut 2

Max

3 @ 64 @ 3 4 @ 3

Max

3 @ 6

                 25.0% of Bottom Row (36" Slab Unit)

        Strands  39.1% of Bottom Row (48" Slab Unit) 

        

Debond:  Length 5 ft at ends

A B&

• Brg Abut 2

(48" Slab Units only)

hole for dowel 

4" Dia formed

for dowel, see Note 2

4" Dia formed hole

• Span

Concrete: f'   = 4.0 ksi @ 28 days

Slab Unit

    or 0.6" Dia strands.

    strands is 1•" for the …" Dia strands, 1ƒ" for •" Dia strands

4.   The minimum center-to-center spacing "S" between individual

    minimum ultimate tensile strength of the prestressing steel.

    the prestressing steel shall not exceed 75% of the specified

3.   The maximum temporary tensile stress (jacking stress) in 

    ultimate tensile strength of the prestressing steel.

    release shall not exceed 75% of the specified minimum

2   The maximum tensile stress in the prestressing steel upon

    include any fabrication specific losses.

    point of control along the span. The jacking force does not

1.   The Jacking Force (P) is the force required at the

   prior to placing deck.

2.  Fill holes with non shrink grout

   see "PC/PS Slab Details" sheet.

1.  For sections and details not shown,

Notes:

P = 713 kips Bottom CG (48" Slab Units)

P = 496 kips Bottom CG (36" Slab Units)

P = 124 kips Top CG (48" Slab Units)

P = 93 kips Top CG (36" Slab Units)

1
'
-
5
"

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-l-g_lo01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
0
2
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



1
'
-
9
"

4'-0"

3
"

1
"
 
C
l
r

2‚"

7
"

7
"

7
"

1ƒ"

3'-0"

1
'
-
9
"

3
"

1
"
 
C
l
r

1
'
-
9
"

1" Clr

1" Clr

PC/PS SLAB DETAILS

BTYPICAL SECTION 48" INTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

LONGITUDINAL KEYWAY DETAIL 

3"=1'-0"

 

#4 Cont, Tot 8

force (spaced evenly)

CG of top prestressing

1" Chamfer, Typ

ƒ" Chamfer

• Voids

ƒ"

TYPICAL SECTION 48" EXTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

C

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

9
" 

D
ia

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

see Note 2, Typ

Field bend,

• Voids

• Voids

9
"
,
 
T
y
p

1
0
•

"

1
0
•

"

see Note 2, Typ

Field bend,

force (spaced evenly)

CG of top prestressing

1" Chamfer, Typ

A

TYPICAL SECTION 36" INTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

 Right Exterior Slab Unit similar

Note: Left Exterior Slab Unit shown, 

C
l
r

1
•

"

Clr

2‚"

Clr

2‚"

C
l
r

1
•

"

roughened surface

‚" Amplitude

#4

roughened surface

‚" Amplitude

 
#4

6"

groove

ƒ" Drip

#4 Cont, Tot 6

10•" 10•"1'-3"

force (spaced evenly)

CG of bottom prestressing

Clr

force (spaced evenly)

CG of bottom prestressing

T
y
p

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

stirrups, see Note 1

1'-2" 1'-2" 10"10"

9
"
 

T
y
p

see "Typical Section 48" Exterior Unit    "

For reinforcement and dimensions not shown,

Note:

stirrups, see Note 1

A

25

10

2
•

"

2
•

"

2.  Slab stirrups to be field bent after slab erection.

   layout and clearances not shown.

1.  See "Typical Section" sheet for reinforcement

Notes:

Typ

Typ

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-l-gdt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
0
5
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



CALIFORNIA

STATE OF

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING SERVICES

DIVISION OF

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

SHEET OF

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

TOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

No.

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE: CONTRACT NO.:

REVISION DATES

EARLIER REVISION DATES

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

                

BRIDGE STANDARD DETAILS

APPROVAL DATE

of California
a registered civil engineer in the State
responsible charge of the Technical Owner,
Details have been prepared under the
The components of the Bridge Standard

FILE NO.

and proper application of the component design and any modifications shown.
The Registered Civil Engineer for the project is responsible for the selection

completeness of scanned copies of this plan sheet.
shall not be responsible for the accuracy or
The State of California or its officers or agents

FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-xs-cldt01.dgn

USERNAME => kevin.williams TIME PLOTTED => DATE PLOTTED =>3:12:08 PM 5/15/2020
sheets/index.html
Refer to:  http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/techpubs/manual/bridgemanuals/bridge-standard-detail-

  

  

        

           

    

    

   
   

      

  

  

  

   

        6-26-14 7-13-16

July 2014xs16-150-1

11

-

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

09 Iny C.R.

X

-

Juan C. Cruz

88803

6/30/20

DETAILS No. 1
CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 ST-75

2

26

48C0052

16

31

TOP CABLE ANCHORAGE DETAIL

END BRACE DETAILS

ALTERNATIVE DETAILSTYPICAL DETAILS

+ -
6
"

ELEVATION

TYPICAL SECTION 
END POST INTERMEDIATE PANEL ELECTROLIER PANEL EXPANSION JOINT

†" Á Galv CABLE

A

A

1" = 1'-0"

NOTES:

ANCHORAGE DETAIL"

IS 4'-0", 5'-0" OR 

1" MESH; KNUCKLED SELVAGE

TOP AND BOTTOM. (WIDTH
TIE CABLE TO PIPE WITH 11 Ga

WIRE TIES. DOUBLE TWIST ENDS

• PIPE 2• Std 

Typ

TIE FABRIC TO INTERMEDIATE 

POSTS WITH 11 Ga WIRE 

TIES @ 16, Max

Typ

EXPANSION JOINT

TO ELECTROLIER AND 

END PANELS ADJACENT 

…" Á TRUSS RODS AT 

‰" X •" TENSION BAR

TENSION BAR BANDS

@ 14 C-C, Max

Clr

1'-6"

TENSION WIRE. SEE "BOTTOM 

…" TURNBUCKLE AT BOTH ENDS OF

‚
"

WITH 11 Ga STEEL WIRE TIES @ 12   

C-C Max, TOP AND BOTTOM

BULGE FABRIC AT 

ELECTROLIER IF NECESSARY

PROVIDE OPENING IN FABRIC

FOR HANDHOLE ACCESS. REINFORCE

TO ‚" WELDED EYEBOLT

PANEL AND ELECTROLIER PANEL. TIE

FABRIC CONTINUOUS ACROSS
ELECTROLIER PANELS AND

EXPANSION PANELS

DECK OR WALL JOINT

(SIMILAR TO ELECTROLIER PANEL)

DRIVEN FIT

1"Á STANDARD PIPE

SLIDING FIT
SLEEVE

2"

…"Á BOLTS

…"Á CARRIAGE BOLT

TENSION BAND

PROVIDE HOLE FOR
CARRIAGE BOLT

TRUSS BAR - Â  …" X 1‚"

†
"

1
•

"

•"
1•"

Min

…" WELDED EYEBOLT

THIMBLE

CRIMPLED SLEEVE CLAMP

alternative for Intermediate Chain Link Panels
A two sided tension band is an allowable 

NOTE:

ATTACH FABRIC TO 7 Ga TENSION WIRE  7 Ga TENSION WIRE ACROSS EXPANSION

WITH 7 Ga WIRE

 7 Ga TENSION WIRE

NO SCALE

• ELECTROLIER PANEL

1•" = 1'-0"

ANY MATERIAL.

BEFORE ORDERING OR FABRICATING

CONTROLLING FIELD DIMENSIONS

THE CONTRACTOR MUST VERIFY ALL

NOTE:

    

PIPE 2•" Std

PIPE 2•" Std 

PIPE 1‚" Std

BRIDGE RAIL SHOWN
CALIFORNIA ST-75

1

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

5•"

7'-0", SEE "GENERAL PLAN")

ANCHORAGE DETAIL"

Deck Jt

 

the Contractor for Engineer approval.

Alternative details may be submitted by 

 

to post.

When rail is on slope, place fabric parallel 

 

vertical alignment.

Railing shall conform to horizontal and 

 

Posts shall be vertical.

ST-75 Barrier

copensated with the cost of the California

Payment of Chain Link Railing Type 2 is 

TYPE 2 ST-75 DETAILS No. 2" sheet

For "SECTION A-A", see "CHAIN LINK RAILING 

 

anchor plate with eyebolt

the option of either „" x 2" strap or ‚" 

At intermediate posts only.  Contractor has 

 

See "GENERAL PLAN" for end post location

 

Peen all …" Dia  bolts

 

Provide thimbles at all cable loops

 

 

4.

 

 

3.

 

 

2.

 

1.

10

 

 

 9.

 

 

 

 8.

 

 7.

 

 6.

 

 5.

3

V
A

R
I
E

S
 
4
'
-
0
"
 
T

O
 
7
'
-
0
"

CHAIN LINK FABRIC WITH

Max10'-0"

LENGTH OF PAYMENT FOR CHAIN LINK FENCE

10'-0" Max
Typ

SEE "TOP CABLE • EXISTING POSTS,

1 Revised Detail

2 Revised Title

3

3

Change in Payment Method

95% SUBMITTAL



BOTTOM ANCHORAGE DETAILS

3" = 1'-0"      

ANGLE ANCHORAGE DETAILS

PLAN

ELEVATION

*

3" = 1'-0"       

SECTION A-A

PLAN

WASHERS

HEX NUTS AND 

•"  U BOLTS WITH 

ELEVATION

5•"

1"

3" = 1'-0"      

  „" Min THICKNESS

•" Typ

SHIM AS REQUIRED

3•"1‚" 1‚"

2
"

6"

…" Â

†" Á HOLES

 HEX STOCK

1•"

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1Œ"2"

Ž" X 1‡"

SLOTTED HOLE

3
•

"

Ž" X 1Œ"

SLOTTED HOLE

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1‡"

• L PLATE

BASE ANCHOR Â
L 5 X 3• X • 

ANCHORAGE ONLY

HOLE FOR Š" BOLT @

‚" TOP ANCHOR Â

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1‡"

HOLE FOR ‚" EYEBOLT

1"±3ƒ"

5•"

ƒ"

1
"

1
"

3
‚

"

 SNUG IN ANGLE
TO FIT

‚" TOP ANCHOR Â

IF NECESSARY, SEE "NUT/BOLT EXTENSION" 

AND NUT
BOLT WITH WASHER 
‚" Á WELDED EYE 

WASHERS

HEX NUTS AND 

U BOLTS WITH 

*

1
„

"

3
•

"

SEE "ANGLE ANCHORAGE DETAILS"

THIMBLE

1'-6"

DETAILS"

SEE "BOTTOM ANCHORAGE 

Â 5• X 3‚ X ‚" 

7 Ga TENSION WIRE

RAILING SHIM DETAILS

7 Ga TENSION WIRE

NUT/BOLT EXTENSION

NO SCALE

3" = 1'-0"

3" = 1'-0"      

SPACER PLATE

3•"

5"

1
•

"

WHEN EXISTING ANCHOR BOLT DOES

NOT EXTEND ABOVE TOP OF NUT,

CONTRACTOR SHALL EXTEND BOLTS

WITH NUT/BOLT EXTENSION

†
"

1
"

…
"

1„"

FOR ƒ" Á BOLT

DRILL AND TAP

Š" Á BOLT WITH NUTS AND LOCK WASHER

CRIMP SLEEVE CLAMP

EYE END AND JAW END

…" PIPE TYPE TURNBUCKLE

‚" ANCHOR 

Â WASHERS

AND 2 x 2 x‰"

WITH  HEX NUT

†"  Á BOLT

6-26-14

PIPE 2•" Std

BASE ANCHOR Â
L 5 X 3•"  X •"  

L 5 X 3•"  X •" 

CALIFORNIA

STATE OF

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING SERVICES

DIVISION OF

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

SHEET OF

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

TOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

No.

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE: CONTRACT NO.:

REVISION DATES

EARLIER REVISION DATES

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

                

APPROVAL DATE

of California
a registered civil engineer in the State
responsible charge of the Technical Owner,
Details have been prepared under the
The components of the Bridge Standard

FILE NO.

and proper application of the component design and any modifications shown.
The Registered Civil Engineer for the project is responsible for the selection

completeness of scanned copies of this plan sheet.
shall not be responsible for the accuracy or
The State of California or its officers or agents

FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-xs-cldt02.dgn

USERNAME => kevin.williams TIME PLOTTED => DATE PLOTTED =>3:12:11 PM 5/15/2020
sheets/index.html
Refer to:  http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/techpubs/manual/bridgemanuals/bridge-standard-detail-

  

  

        

           

    

    

    

       
   

  

  

  

  

   

        

   

7-13-16

July 2014xs16-150-2

09 Iny C.R. -

X

Juan C. Cruz

88803

6/30/20

-

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

12

27

BRIDGE RAIL

CALIFORNIA ST-75

1

1

REVISED BRIDGE STANDARD DETAILS

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

BRIDGE RAIL

CALIFORNIA ST-75

DETAILS No. 2
CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 ST-75

Revised Sheet Title

Revised Detail

2 2

31

"SPACER PLATE" DETAIL

SPACER PLATE, SEE

48C0052

16

Std

PIPE 2•"

SHIM DETAILS"
SEE "RAILING
REQUIRED,
SHIM AS 

95% SUBMITTAL



28

13

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 1

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-z-brdt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
1
1
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



29

14

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 2

4"

1‚"

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-z-brdt02.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
1
6
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL



30

15

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 3

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-300 Carroll Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04300a-z-brdt03.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

3
:
1
2
:
2
1
 

P
M

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

k
e
v
i

n
.

w
i
l
l
i
a

m
s

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

DESIGN OVERSIGHT

SIGN OFF DATE

X

X
- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 16

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

ON CARROLL CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

6/30/20

09 Iny C.R.

B. Maechler

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0052

Juan C. Cruz

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

31

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

M. Nguyen/S. McMauley

M. Nguyen/S. McCauley

95% SUBMITTAL





Exhibit B. Project Area Map 



Exhibit C. Federal Highway Easement Deed 

































 
 
Mr. Michael Errante 
Page 7 
May 5, 2022 
 
 
 
The signature(s) affixed hereto of the County hereby warrants that he/she/they is/are 
authorized to do so and have the legal authority to bind the person or entity which they 
represent and on whose behalf they have executed this letter. The signature(s) 
certifies/certify that the County has read and does understand and accept each and 
every paragraph contained in this letter and agrees to abide by and be bound by same.  
 

Executed on this __ day of _____, 2022 
County of Inyo  

 
 

 
By:  _________________________________ 

Print Name:                                        Michael Errante_ 
Title:                    Department of Public Works_ 

                                                        County of Inyo_ 
 
 



Exhibit A. 

Inyo County Public Works Project Plans for Construction on 
Walker Creek Road, 95% Submittal, May 29, 2020 



x

x

x

x

x

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION ON

SHEET

DEL NORTE
SISKIYOU MODOC

HUMBOLDT

TRINITY SHASTA LASSEN

TEHAMA

MENDOCINO
GLENN BUTTE

PLUMAS

SIERRA

NEVADA

PLACER
Y

U
B

A
COLUSA

LAKE

YOLO

NAPASONOMA

EL DORADO

MARIN

AMADOR
ALPINE

C
A
L

A
V
E
R

A
S

CONTRA
COSTA

TUOLUMNE
MONO

SANTA
CLARA

SANTA CRUZ

S
T

A
N
IS

L
A

U
S

MARIPOSA

MERCED

M
A

D
E
R

A

FRESNO

MONTEREY

INYO

TULARE

KINGS

OBISPO KERN

SANTA

BARBARA

VENTURA

LOS ANGELES

SAN BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

IMPERIALSAN DIEGO

ORANGE

SOLANO

ALAMEDA

M
E

N
T

O

S
A

C
R

A
-

J
O

A
Q

U
INS

A
N

SAN

BENITO

SAN 

LUIS

S
U

T
T

E
R

SAN FRANCISCO

SAN MATEO

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
TOTAL

SHEETSTOTAL PROJECT

LOCATION MAP

POST MILES
No.

OF LICENSE AS SPECIFIED IN THE "NOTICE TO BIDDERS."

INDEX OF PLANS

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

D
E

S
I

G
N
 

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
0
6
:
0
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS THE CLASS (OR CLASSES)

INCLUDED IN THE NOTICE TO BIDDERS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS BOOK.
THE STANDARD PLANS LIST APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT IS 

SHEET No.        DESCRIPTION        

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

DATE

CONTRACT No.

PROJECT ID

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE

0000000000

UNIT 0000 00000000001
S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rab01.dgn

robert.fergusonUSERNAME =>

DGN FILE =>

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 2 31
CALTRANS WEB SITE IS: HTTP//WWW.DOT.CA.GOV/BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

09 CR    1

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

INYO COUNTY

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE, SUITE 100

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

168 N. EDWARDS, P.O. DRAWER Q

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

C45695

James L. Foster Jr.

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

DATE

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

DIRECTOR

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

    

    

     

NO SCALE

END CONSTRUCTION

STA 53+24.03

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION

WALKER CREEK Rd

F
A
L
L
 
R
d

S
H

O
P
 

S
t

O
L

D
 

S
T

A
T

E
 

H
w
y

CACTUS FLATS Rd

U
S
3
9
5

GRANT

T
o
 

O
l
a
n
c
h
a

STA 33+53.22

t
c

u
d

e
u

q
A
 

s
e
l

e
g

n
A
 

s
o

L

OR  COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACCURACY

COUNTY OR THEIR OFFICERS OR AGENTS

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC. AND INYO

C00000

NEW BRIDGE #48C-0051
BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION

Exist BRIDGE #48C-0039

WALKER CREEK ROAD

S
T

A
T

E
 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 

A
N

D
 

P
R

A
C

T
I
C

E
S
 

A
N

D
 

T
H

A
T
 

T
E

C
H

N
I
C

A
L
 

O
V

E
R

S
I

G
H

T
 

W
A

S
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
.

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D
 

A
S
 

T
O
 
I

M
P

A
C

T
 

O
N
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 

F
A

C
I
L
I
T
I
E

S
 

A
N

D
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 

W
I
T

H
 

A
P

P
L
I
C

A
B

L
E
 

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018
TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY STATE OF CALIFORNIA

INY

395

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

DRAINAGE PROFILE

DRAINAGE PLAN No. 1

CONTOUR GRADING PLAN

EROSION CONTROL PAN No. 1

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

PROFILE AND SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM

LAYOUT

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

TITLE SHEET

18-19

17

16

15

14

12-13

9-11

5-8

3-4

2

1

STRUCTURE PLANS   

33

C48241

PROJECT MANAGER

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

No.

CIVIL

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

DATEPROJECT ENGINEER

Robert Ferguson

C77731

Michael Errante

FEDERAL PROJECT No. BRLO-5948(076)

ACROSS LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD

IN INYO COUNTY NEAR GRANT

LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

WALKER CREEK Rd

95% SUBMITTAL

LOG OF TEST BORINGS

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 3

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 2

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 1

CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 DETAILS No. 2

CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 DETAILS No. 1

PC/PS SLAB DETAILS

PC/PS SLAB LAYOUT

TYPICAL SECTION

ABUTMENT DETAILS

ABUTMENT LAYOUT

FOUNDATION PLAN

DECK CONTOURS

GENERAL PLAN

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20



4' 4'

18'

3' 3'

18'18'

18'

VarVar

45.0' 45.0'

1' 2'

2'2'

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
0
9
:
4
9
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rca01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS

X-1
NO SCALE

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR

FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:1 2:
1

5% 5%

OG

OG

OG

OG

PG

ETW ETW

R/W R/W

WALKER CREEK ROAD

2:1

OG
OG

PG

& Var& Var

ETWETW

FLATTER
2:

1 
OR

FLATTER

2:1 OR

2:1 2:
1

5% 5%

OG

OG OG

PG

WALKER CREEK ROAD

OG

2

2:12:
1

OG
OG

PG

& Var & Var

ETW ETW•

"L2" LINE

0.50' CLASS 2 AB

0.25' HMA (TYPE A)

Sta "L2" 1+13.57 TO Sta "L2" 4+71.69

WEST LADWP PATROL ROAD

•

"W" LINE

FG

HP HP

•

"W" LINE

34.0'-45.0'

R/W

34.0'-45.0'

R/W

& Var
14'

& Var
14'

HP HP

ETW ETW

& Var
14'

& Var
14'

OG

2:
1

SR SR
5%

5%

Sta "W" 42+50.83 EB TO Sta "W" 43+93.89

Sta "W" 40+82.60 TO Sta "W" 41+92.83 BB

SRSR

Sta "W" 43+93.89 TO Sta "W" 53+09.98

Sta "W" 33+53.22 TO Sta "W" 40+82.60

SR SR

•

"L1" LINE

0.75' CLASS 2 AB0.75' CLASS 2 AB

0.75' CLASS 2 AB

SRSR

Sta "L1" 1+32.87 TO Sta "L1" 4+58.84

EAST LADWP PATROL ROAD

DESIGN DESIGNATION

     V = 30 MPH

ADT (FUTURE) = <400 

ADT (2019) = 50

RURAL LOCAL ROAD

TO 
2:

1
VAR 

1.
5:

1 

NOTES:

2.  SUPERELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN ON THE SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAMS.

   SUBJECT TO TOLERANCES SPECIFIED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

1.  DIMENSIONS OF THE PAVEMENT STRUCTURES (STRUCTURAL SECTIONS) ARE



37
70

3
7
7
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

37
60

37
60

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

37
70

3
7
7
0

377
5

3775

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
9
0

3790

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
0
:
5
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rea01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

40

2

3

4

5 6 7 8 9 1 2

4

5

"
W
"
3
4
+
0
4
.
8
9
 

B
C

"
W
"
3
5

+
0
3
.
7
0
 

E
C

0
1

2

3

4

0
1

2

3

4
5

3

LAYOUT

L-1
SCALE: 1"=50'

NOTE:

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE.

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

1

2

CURVE DATA

R D T LNo.

MATCH LINE "W" 45+60.00 SEE SHEET L-2

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

"
W
"
 
3
3
+
5
3
.
2
2

14'
14'

1
4
'

1
4
'

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/

W

R
/

W

BB "W" 41+92.83

EB "W" 42+50.83

TO REMAIN

Exist GATE

T
O

U
S
3
9
5

Exist WALKER CREEK Rd
+
2
1
.
2
3

+
8
2
.
6
0

N
8
9
°
5
6
'3

4
"E

799.12'

N55°29'11"E

CMP CULVERT

L
A
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

+
9
3
.
8
9

3

ABBREVIATIONS:

RIGHT OF WAY

SURVEY CONTROL POINT

PROPERTY LINE

R/W

CP

P/L

No.

SURVEY CONTROL DATA

NORTHING EASTING

514

513

512

511

ELEV LINE STATION OFFSET DESCRIPTION

SET REBAR

SET 60D

SET REBAR

SET REBAR

3775.48'

3773.74'

3761.17'

3767.80'

6855348.30'

6855559.65'

6855865.99'

6855801.59'

1979019.99'

1978792.84'

1978906.96'

1978735.98'

"W"

"W"

"W"

"W"

CONFORM

"L2" 1+13.57

7

9

10

3

4

5

6

48+90.51

41+36.09

46+74.03

3+04.034

603.16' Lt

350.75' Lt

119.51' Lt

166.81' Lt

CP 
51

1

CP 513

"
L
2
"
 
L
I

N
E

1

2

5

No.

LINE DATA

DISTANCEBEARING

S 32° 45' 51" E

S 34° 30' 49" E

S 33° 54' 45" E

S 32° 26' 15" E

S 34° 30' 49" E

S 36° 46' 52" E

6

5

4

3

2

1

Exist FENCE

Exist FENCE

E
A

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

LADWP R/W

LADWP R/W

LADWP R/W

*

* DENOTES CONTROL POINTS NOT SHOWN ON LAYOUT.

LEGEND:

BY LADWP

GATE

PAVEMENT

END 

BY LADWP

GATE

BEGIN PAVEMENT

BEGIN REMOVE FENCE

33.98' Rt "L2" 2+38.51

TO REMAIN
EXIST Br No. 48C-0039

"L1" 2+59.95 EC

"W" 43+02.83 BC

"L1" 4+24.34 EC

"L1" 3+02.42 BC

"L2" 1+50.00 BC

"L2" 2+11.63 PRC

"L2" 2+69.30 EC

"L2" 2+90.53

"W" 41+53.83=

"L2" 3+11.77 BC

"L2" 3+58.44 PRC

"L2" 4+08.74 EC

CF

CF FC CF

FC

FC

C
F

F

F

FF

F

C

C

C

FC CF

F

FF

1
8
'

1
5
'

1
8
'

1
8
'

1
5
'

1
8
'

1
3
'

1
8
'

1
3
'

1
8
'

1
8
'+89.17

1
8
'

+12.50

TO REMAIN

IN HEADWALL

Exist 36" CMP

R/W

R/W

P/L

E
x
is
t
 
R
/

W

E
x
is
t
 
R
/

W

P/L

P/L

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 
R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 
R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

END REMOVE FENCE

35.07' Rt "L2" 3+33.23

P/L

METAL CATTLE GUARD

ABANDON EXIST 

CONFORM

"L1" 1+32.87

CONFORM

"L1" 4+58.84

"L1" 2+81.08

"W" 42+94.22 =

END REMOVE FENCE

19.00' Lt "L1" 3+97.84

4

6

 BC"L1" 1+49.36

42.47'

42.47'

(SEE STRUCTURE PLANS)
Br No. 48C-0051
WALKER CREEK

GUARD (8'x14')

METAL CATTLE 

7.1'10.8'

"
L
1
"
 
L
I

N
E

+00.00

CONFORM

"L2" 4+71.69

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

250.00'

170.00'

35° 03' 08"

36° 48' 06"

33° 11' 34"

34° 51' 01"

28° 49' 03"

26° 44' 29"

33° 02' 33"

35° 18' 37"

67° 16' 59"

33° 18' 15"

31.58'

33.27'

29.80'

31.39'

25.69'

23.77'

29.66'

31.83'

166.36'

50.85'

61.18'

64.23'

57.93'

60.83'

50.30'

46.67'

57.67'

61.63'

293.58'

98.82'

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

8

BEGIN REMOVE FENCE

19.00' Lt "L1" 1+79.97

"L1" 3+64.89 PRC

"L1" 2+05.18 PRC

P/L

P/L

3

LADWP R/W

T
C

E

T
C

E

TCE

TCE

TCE

T
C

E

TCE

TCE

T
C

E

TCE

T
C

E

TCE

TCE 

TCE 

ALTERNATIVE CRASH CUSHION (QUADGUARD)

FENCING (TO BE PLACED BY LADWP)

BOHL

APN 033-510-05

WATER DISTRICT

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY

APN 033-490-02

HOGAN

APN 033-510-08



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
1
:
5
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rea02.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

3
7
4
5

3750

375
0

3
7
5
0

37
55

3
7
5
5

3
7
5
5

3
7
5
5

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3760

50

5
5

5
5

6 7 8 9

1

2

3

4

5

"
W
"
4
5

+
9
6
.
4
1
 

E
C

"
W
"
5
0

+
3
6
.
6
6
 

B
C

"W"52+72.36 EC

LAYOUT

L-2
SCALE: 1"=50'

NOTE:

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE.

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

L
-
1

440.25'

N 11°47'48" W

T
O
 

U
S
3
9
5

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

R/W

R/W

14'

14'

R/W

R/W

R
/

W

R
/

W

Exist WALKER CREEK Rd
Exist FENCE TO REMAIN

1
4
'

1
4
'

S
8
7
°
5
4
'
4
8
"
E

4

CP 512

12

CURVE DATA

R D T L

166.04' 235.70'130.00' 103° 53' 01" 12

No.

RELINQUISHED

R/W TO BE 

RELINQUISHED

R/W TO BE 

P/L

P/L

FC

FC

C

C

Exist Shop Street

1
3
.
2
'

Exist ROAD EASEMENT

E
x
i
s
t
 

R
O

A
D
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

R
/

W
R
/

W

R/W

P/L

P/L
R/W

 Lt CONFORM

Elev 3748.63

14.00' Lt "W" 51+94.46

 Rt CONFORM

Elev 3746.26 

13.23' Rt "W"  53+09.98

 CL CONFORM

"W" 52+17.06

WATER DISTRICT

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY

APN 033-490-02

BOHL

APN 033-510-05

NUNEZ

APN 033-400-10



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
2
:
2
7
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rfb001.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

0%

-5%

0%

-5%

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

3810

3800

3790

3780

5% 5%

 
 PS-1

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

WALKER CREEK ROAD
"W" LINE

36+00 37+00 38+00 39+00 40+00 41+00 42+00 43+00 44+00 45+00

3740

3750

3760

3770

3820

AXIS OF ROTATION

PROFILE

1" = 5' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

32+00 33+00 34+00 35+00

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

P
S
-
2

3820

3810

3800

3790

3780

3770

3760

3750

3740

+
5
3
.
2
2
 

P
I

-2.49% +
6
7
.
3
4
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
0
.
9
9

+
6
7
.
3
5
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
8
.
4
3

200' VC

+
6
7
.
3
5
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
7
.
4
3

-1.00%

+
7
6
.
3
4
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
3
4

197' VC

+
7
5
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
3
5

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
6
.
6
2

-5.80%

+
7
3
.
6
7
 

P
R

V
C

OG

PG

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
4
.
1
7

+
5
0
.
8
3
 

E
B

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
5
9

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
2

"
L
"
 
1
9

+
4
9
.
5
7

"
W
"
 
+
9
4
.
2
2
 

=

34+00 43+00 44+00 45+0042+0041+0040+0039+0038+0037+0036+0035+00

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

P
S
-
2

"W" LINE

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
5
3
.
2
2

+
0
4
.
8
9
 

B
C

+
0
3
.
7
0
 

E
C

R=170.00' Rt

+
0
2
.
8
3
 

B
C

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
8
.
7
5

+
1
5
.
2
2

+
9
2
.
8
3
 

B
B

+
5
0
.
8
3
 

E
B

+
9
3
.
8
9

33+0032+00

+
5
7
.
6
0

+
8
2
.
6
0

CULVERT

CMP

5

R=250.00' Rt

+2.00% Rt ETW

-2.00% Lt ETW

-2.00% Rt ETW & Lt ETW

+2.00% Rt ETW

-2.00% Lt ETW
-1.50% Rt ETW & Lt ETW

"
L
2
"
 
2

+
9
0
.
5
3

"
W
"
 
+
5
3
.
8
3
 

= "
L
1
"
 
2

+
8
1
.
0
8

"
W
"
 
+
8
9
.
8
3
 

=

+
9
2
.
8
3
 

B
B

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

E
N

D
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

"
L
2
"
 
2

+
9
7
.
9
3

"
W
"
 
+
4
6
.
1
3

=

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
4
.
6
4

-0.50% Rt ETW

0.50% Lt ETW

+
6
2
.
8
3

+
1
9
.
4
0

+
2
8
.
8
3

+
5
8
.
7
0

+
9
2
.
7
0

Br No. 48C-0051

LA AQUEDUCT

+
6
5
.
0
0



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
2
:
4
2
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rfb002.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

+
0
5
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
9
.
0
0

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
6
.
6
3

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
6
.
6
3

+
8
1
.
3
4
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
5
.
8
2

+
2
6
.
3
4
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
3
.
8
5

+
1
3
.
8
4
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
0
.
0
1

+
0
1
.
3
4
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
0
.
3
2

+
7
1
.
3
4
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
0
.
5
7

+
4
1
.
3
4
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
4
9
.
3
1

-1.80%

-1.80%

263' VC 90' VC

175' VC 140' VC

+
3
6
.
3
3
 

P
R

V
C

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

0%

-5%

0%

-5%

3800

3790

3780

3770

5% 5%

WALKER CREEK ROAD
"W" LINE

48+00 49+00 50+00 51+00 52+00 53+00 54+00 55+00 56+00

3730

3740

3750

3760

3810

AXIS OF ROTATION

PROFILE

1" = 5' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

46+00 47+00

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

P
S
-
1

46+00 55+00 56+0054+0053+0052+0051+0050+0049+0048+0047+00

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

P
S
-
1

"W" LINE

-2.00% Rt & Lt ETW

+
3
6
.
6
6
 

B
C

+
9
6
.
4
1
 

E
C

R=130.00' Rt

R=250.00' Lt

3810

3800

3790

3780

3770

3760

3750

3740

3730

+
0
5
.
0
0
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
5
9
.
0
0

OG

PG

 
 PS-2

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

+
7
2
.
3
6
 

E
C

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

+
2
9
.
0
8

+
6
1
.
7
4

6

+3.00% Rt ETW

-3.00% Lt ETW

+2.00% Lt ETW

-2.00% Rt ETW

+
3
8
.
0
0

+
6
8
.
0
6

R
t
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
9
.
9
8

L
t
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
9
4
.
4
6

 
L
t
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
9
4
.
4
6

R
t
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
9
.
9
8

C
L
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
1
7
.
0
6

 
C

L
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
1
7
.
0
6

+
9
9
.
0
4

+
7
8
.
1
3



CONTROLLED BY "W" LINE

CONTROLLED BY "W" LINE

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
2
:
5
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rfb003.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
4
4

+
6
7
.
8
7
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
4
4

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
5
5

+
3
4
.
9
7
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
4
9

+
6
7
.
0
7
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
9
7

+
8
1
.
0
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
8

+
9
5
.
0
8
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
7

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
4

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
1
4

+
2
6
.
9
6
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
2
2

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
0
6

-0.50%

70' VC

64' VC 100' VC

64' VC

+
4
5
.
0
8
 

P
I

+
9
5
.
0
8
 

P
R

V
C

+
0
2
.
8
7
 

P
R

V
C

-0.50%

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
5
8
.
8
4
 

E
V

C

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
3
2
.
8
7
 

B
V

C

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

 
 PS-3

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

3760

PROFILE

1" = 5' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

02+00 03+00 04+00 05+00 06+0001+0000+00

3770

3780

3760

3770

3780

7

OG

PG

07+00

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

AXIS OF ROTATION0%

5%

-5%

"L" LINE

EAST LADWP PATROL ROAD
"L1" LINE

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
4
4

+
6
7
.
8
7
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
4
4

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
5
5

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
5
5

+
3
4
.
9
7
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
4
9

+
6
7
.
0
7
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
2
.
9
7

+
8
1
.
0
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
8

+
9
5
.
0
8
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
7

+
4
5
.
0
8
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
1
4

+
9
5
.
0
8
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
0
.
1
4

+
9
5
.
0
8
 

B
V

C

+
2
6
.
9
6
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
2
2

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
0
6

+
0
2
.
8
7
 

P
R

V
C

R=100.00' Rt

R=100.00' Lt

R=100.00' Rt

R=100.00' Lt

-4.4% Lt ETW

4.4% Rt ETW

-3.2% Lt ETW

3.2% Lt ETW

+
3
2
.
8
7

+
2
0
.
0
0

+
5
8
.
8
4

02+00 03+00 04+00 05+0001+00

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
+
3
2
.
8
7
 

B
V

C

C
O

N
F

O
R

M
+
5
8
.
8
4
 

E
V

C



CONTROLLED BY "W" LINE

CONTROLLED BY "W" LINE

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
3
:
1
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rfb004.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

+
1
3
.
5
7
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
9
5

+
1
6
.
5
3
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
9
6

+
5
6
.
5
3
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
9
.
1
6

+
9
6
.
5
3
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
1
.
4
6

+
3
6
.
5
3
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
7
5

+
7
6
.
5
3
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
4
.
3
5

+
9
0
.
5
3
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
4
.
5
6

+
0
4
.
5
3
 

B
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
4
.
3
5

+
4
4
.
5
3
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
7
5

+
8
4
.
5
3
 

P
R

V
C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
1
.
3
2

+
2
4
.
5
3
 

P
I

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
9
0

+
6
4
.
5
3
 

E
V

C

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
7
0

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
8
.
6
6

0.50% -0.50%
80' VC 80' VC 80' VC 80' VC

+
7
1
.
6
9
 

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

Exc

Emb

STATION

CY

TOTAL

0%

 
 PS-4

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
PROFILE AND

PROFILE

1" = 5' Vert

1" = 50' Horiz

5+001+000+00

3770

3780

3760

3780

3770

3760

OG
PG

2+00 3+00 4+00 6+00

8

WEST LADWP PATROL ROAD
"L2" LINE

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM
1" = 50' Horiz

AXIS OF ROTATION

5+001+000+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 6+00

1.0%

"L2" LINE

0.5%

-0.5%

-1.0% -1.0%

-0.5%

0%

0.5%

+
1
5
.
0
0

+
6
0
.
0
0

+
6
0
.
3
8

+
5
5
.
0
0

+
2
3
.
4
7
 

B
C

R=100.00' Rt

+
9
0
.
8
5
 

P
R

C

R=100.00' Lt

+
5
4
.
1
6
 

E
C

+
3
3
.
8
2
 

B
C

+
8
7
.
1
9
 

P
R

C

+
4
4
.
6
9
 

E
C

-0.66% Rt ETW

+1.00% Rt ETW

-1.00% Lt ETW

+0.68% Lt ETW

-0.68% Rt ETW

+0.66% Lt ETW

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
1
3
.
5
7

R=100.00' Lt
R=100.00' Rt

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I
S

T
I

N
G

C
O

N
F

O
R

M

+
7
1
.
6
9

+
2
0
.
2
8



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
3
:
3
7
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rga01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

CURVE DATA

R D T LNo.

NOTE:

RIGHT OF WAY, SEE RIGHT OF WAY AND UTILITY PLAN SHEETS.

FOR COMPLETE UTILITY INFORMATION, EASEMENTS, AND PROPOSED2.

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,1.

24.00' Rt "W" 41+81.89
RP

RP
•

24.00' Lt "W" 41+81.89
RP

RP

1

2

3

4

"
L
2
"
 
L
I

N
E

34.00' Lt "W" 41+16.42

34.00' Rt "W" 41+16.42

Elev 3774.73

14.00' Lt "W" 41+16.42

Elev 3774.07

14.00' Lt "W" 41+81.89

Elev 3774.07

14.00' Rt "W" 41+81.89

"L2" 2+90.53

"W" 41+53.83 =

Elev 3774.21

32.09' Lt "W" 41+36.28

Elev 3774.41

19.22' Lt "W" 41+29.90

Elev 3774.41

19.22' Rt "W" 41+29.90

Elev 3774.21

32.15' Rt "W" 41+36.34

Elev 3773.97

24.38' Lt "W" 41+81.89

Elev 3773.99

17.07' Lt "W" 41+74.68

Elev 3773.99

17.07' Rt "W" 41+74.68

Elev 3773.97

24.38' Lt "W" 41+71.89

20.0'

10.0'

10.0'

20.0'

84° 41' 33"

92° 12' 03"

92° 12' 03"

84° 41' 33"

4

3

2

1

1

9

18.23'

10.39'

10.39'

18.23'

R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-1
SCALE: 1"=5'

BEGIN PAVEMENT

END PAVEMENT

Elev 3774.17

24.36' Rt "W" 41+53.88

END PAVEMENT

•

•

•

Elev 3774.73

14.00' Rt "W" 41+16.42

Elev 3774.17

24.40' Lt "W" 41+53.88

29.56'

16.09'

16.09'

29.56'



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
4
:
0
5
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rga02.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

CURVE DATA

R D T LNo.

NOTE:

RIGHT OF WAY, SEE RIGHT OF WAY AND UTILITY PLAN SHEETS.

FOR COMPLETE UTILITY INFORMATION, EASEMENTS, AND PROPOSED2.

SEE RIGHT OF WAY RECORD MAPS AT THE COUNTY OFFICE

FOR COMPLETE RIGHT OF WAY AND ACCURATE ACCESS DATA,1.

34.06' Rt "W" 43+24.43
RP

RP

RP

33.99' Lt "W" 43+30.98
RP

•

•

•

Elev 3773.48

14.00' Lt "W" 42+61.78

24.00' Lt "W" 42+61.78

Elev 3772.58

14.06' Rt "W" 43+24.04

Elev 3772.42

13.99' Lt "W" 43+31.18

Elev 3773.18

17.07' Lt "W" 42+68.99

Elev 3772.60

33.25' Lt "W" 43+07.88

Elev 3772.99

19.21' Rt "W" 43+12.31

Elev 3773.09

31.35' Rt "W" 43+06.90

24.00' Rt "W" 42+61.78

1

2

3

4

3

2

1

92° 06' 50"

79° 02' 01"

91° 05' 20"

92° 17' 16"

3

10

16.08'

27.59'

31.80'

16.11'

10.37'

16.49'

20.38'

10.41'

Elev 3773.48

14.00' Rt "W" 42+61.78

Elev 3773.18

17.06' Rt "W" 42+68.98

Elev 3773.13

24.37' Rt "W" 42+71.78

Elev 3772.76

24.40' Lt "W" 42+71.77

R
O

A
D

E
A

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-2
SCALE: 1"=5'

BEGIN PAVEMENT

END PAVEMENT

10.0'

20.0'

20.0'

10.0'

"
L
1
"
 
L
I

N
E

4

•

"L1" 2+81.08

"W" 42+89.83 =

Elev 3772.49

19.41' Lt "W" 43+15.64

Elev 3773.35

24.37' Rt "W" 42+89.79

Elev 3772.98

24.40' Lt "W" 42+89.78



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
4
:
2
3
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rga003.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

3311

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C-3
NO SCALE

   

WB

"W"

24"

"B"

24"

"W"

24"

"B"

24"

"W"

24"

"B"

24"

TYPE I TYPE ITYPE II TYPE II TYPE II

2'-0" 

2
4
"
 

2'-6"

10"

2
'
-
8
"

TYPE I

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

 PLAN 

  

(MPH)

SPEED

DESIGN

TYPE B

LENGTH

PAD

LENGTH

EFFECTIVE

UNIT    

SYSTEM LENGTH (Var)

EFFECTIVE LENGTH - (Var)

Typ BAY

 
B

A
C

K
U

P

PANELS TO SLIDE

Min ClR FOR

DIAPHRAGM
CARTRIDGE

QUADGUARD FENDER PANEL

ASSEMBLY

NOSE

PLAN

3'-0"

MONORAIL

1
0
ƒ

"

MONORAIL ASSEMBLY DETAIL

ELEVATION

Tot RAIL LENGTH (Var)BACKUP STRUCTURE

END CAP

(SHOWN)

THREE BAY

MONORAIL

(SHOWN)

TWO BAY

MONORAIL

(SHOWN)

ONE BAY

MONORAIL

     HALF INCH

     STRAIGHT WITHIN ONE

     ASSEMBLY MUST BE

NOTE: MONORAIL & BACKUP

CL

FOR MONORAIL HARDWARE INSTALLATION.)

(SEE THE MANUFACTURER'S SHOP DRAWINGS

CONCRETE BACKUP
TYPE B

L

GENERAL NOTES

BAYS

No. OF

11'-3"45 OR LESS 11'-6"

(TYPE B)

7.

6.

5.

4.

3.

2.

1.

CORNER OF THE FIXED OBJECT.

VEHICLE TRAVELLING AT 15 DEGREES TO THE ROADWAY FROM THE FACE OR 

UNIT WIDTH SELECTED SHOULD BE ADEQUATE TO PROTECT AN ERRANT

OR C OF MERGING BARRIERS.

THE QUAD SYSTEM SHOULD BE APPROXIMATELY PARALLEL WITH THE BARRIER

OBJECTS, OR DEPRESSIONS.

THE INSTALLATION AREA SHOULD BE FREE FROM CURBS, ELEVATED 

PERMISSIBLE CROSS-SLOPE IS 8%.

SYSTEM, THE CONCRETE PAD WILL REQUIRE LEVELLING. MAXIMUM

IF THE CROSS-SLOPE VARIES MORE THAN 2% OVER THE LENGTH OF THE

OF 4,000 P.S.I.

CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 2 WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH

FURNISHED TO THE ENGINEER.

DETAILS WILL BE SHOWN ON THE MANUFACTURER'S SHOP DRAWINGS 

DETAILS OF COMPONENTS FOR THE QUAD AND BACKUPS AND REINFORCING 

BE REQUIRED.

FOR BI-DIRECTIONAL TRAFFIC, APPROPRIATE TRANSITION PANELS WILL

ELEVATION

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

SEE BRIDGE PLANS

STRUCTURE APPROACH,

QUADGUARD II SYSTEM DETAIL

BACKUP

TYPE B

BACKUP

TYPE B

3

EOD

S
L

A
B

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

EOD

EOD



37
70

3
7
7
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

37
60

37
60

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

37
70

3
7
7
0

377
5

3775

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
0

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
8
5

3
7
9
0

3790

3
7
9
0

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

3
7
9
5

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
5
:
1
9
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rge01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

40

2

3

4

5 6 7 8 9 1 2

4

5

"
W
"
3
4
+
0
4
.
8
9
 

B
C

"
W
"
3
5

+
0
3
.
7
0
 

E
C

3

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

1
4
'

1
4
'

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/

W

R
/

W

T
O

U
S
3
9
5

1
4
0
4
.8

9
'

N
8
9
°
5
6
'3

4
"E

799.12'

N55°29'11"E

L
A
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

LEGEND:

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

E-1
SCALE: 1"=50'

MATCH LINE "W" 45+60.00 SEE SHEET E-2

"
L
2
"
 
L
I

N
E

E
A

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

12

CREEK ROAD

Exist WALKER 

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

E
x
is
t
 
R
/

W

E
x
is
t
 
R
/

W

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

R
E
L
IN

Q
U
IS

H
E

D

R
/

W
 
T

O
 
B
E
 

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

OBLITERATE SURFACE AND HYDROSEED

(BOTANICAL NAME)

COMMON NAME

(SLOPE MEASUREMENT)

PER ACRE

POUNDS PURE LIVE SEED

(STIPA SPECIOSA)

DESERT NEEDLEGRASS
5

15

2

15

3

3
(LARREA TRIDENTATA)

CREOSOTE BUSH

(ENCELIA FARINOSA)

BRITTLEBRUSH

(ATRIPLEX CANESCENS)

FOURWING SALTBUSH

(ARISTIDA PURPUREA)

PURPLE THREE-AWN

(AMBROSIA DUMOSA)

BURRO BUSH

HYDROSEED SEED MIX

EROSION CONTROL (HYDROSEED)

ITEM SEQUENCE
MATERIAL

DESCRIPTION TYPE

HYDROSEED

STEP 1

STEP 2

STEP 3

FIBER

SEED

TACKIFIER

SEED MIX

WOOD

PSYLLIUM

NOTES

43 LB/ACRE

1200 LB/ACRE

150 LB/ACRE

TEMPORARY DESERT TORTOISE FENCE

TEMPORARY REINFORCED SILT FENCE (TYPE 1)

TEMPORARY FIBER ROLL

"
L
1
"
 
L
I

N
E

HYDROSEED

BOULDERS

PLACE 

CONTRACTOR STAGING AREA

TCE 

TCE 

TCE

TCE
TCE

T
C

E

TCE

T
C

E
TCE

TCE

T
C

E
T

C
E

T
C

E
T

C
E

SEE NOTE 2

SEE NOTE 2

NOTES:

2.  MOVE SILT FENCE ABOVE PIPE INLET/OUTLET AFTER PIPE IS PLACED

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION AND EROSION CONTROL WORK ONLY.



3
7
4
5

3750

375
0

3
7
5
0

37
55

3
7
5
5

3
7
5
5

3
7
5
5

3
7
6
0

3
7
6
0

3760

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
5
:
3
9
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rge02.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

50

5
5

5
5

6 7 8 9

1

2

3

4

5

"
W
"
4
5

+
9
6
.
4
1
 

E
C

"
W
"
5
0

+
3
6
.
6
6
 

B
C

"W"52+72.36 EC

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
I

N
E
 
"

W
"
 
4
5

+
6
0
.
0
0
 

S
E

E
 

S
H

E
E

T
 

L
-
1

440.25'

N 11°47'48" W

2
4
7
.
8
9
'

T
O
 

U
S
3
9
5

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

R/W

R/W

R
/

W

S
8
7
°
5
4
'
4
8
"
E

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

E-2
SCALE: 1"=50'

NOTES:

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION AND EROSION CONTROL WORK ONLY.

LEGEND:

13

CREEK ROAD

Exist WALKER 

P/L

RELINQUISHED

R/W TO BE 
RELINQUISHED

R/W TO BE 

OBLITERATE ROAD AND HYDROSEED

SHOP STREET

TEMPORARY DESERT TORTOISE FENCE

TEMPORARY REINFORCED SILT FENCE (TYPE 1)

TEMPORARY FIBER ROLL

HYDROSEED

R/W

P/L

E
x
i
s
t
 

R
O

A
D
 

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

R
/

W

P/L

R
/

W

R
/

W

Exist ROAD EASEMENT

PLACE BOULDERS



3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
5
:
5
5
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rha01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

1
.
3
3
'

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

CONTOUR GRADING PLAN

G-1
SCALE: 1"=5'

"
L
2
"
 
L
I

N
E

NOTE:

THIS PLAN IS ACCURATE FOR CONTOUR GRADING WORK ONLY.1.

"L1" 2+81.08

"W" 42+89.83 =

3

3773

3772

3771

3770
3769

3773
3772
3771

3770
3769

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

14

"L2" 2+90.53

"W" 41+53.83=

3770

3769
377137723773

3774

3
7
7
0

3
7
6
93

7
7
1

3
7
7
2

3
7
7
337

74

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

E
A

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 3

7
6
9

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
1

3
7
7
2

3
7
7
3

3
7
7
0

3771
3772
3773

3774

3774

3
7
7
3

3774

3773

3772

3771

3
7
6
8

3
7
6
9

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
1

3
7
7
2

3
7
7
3

37
74

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
1

3
7
7
2

3
7
6
9

3
7
6
8

3
7
6
7

3
7
6
6

3772

3771

3770

3769

3768

3767

3766

21

3775

FILL LIMITS

FILL LIMITS

CUT LIMITS

FILL LIMITS

FILL LIMITS

FILL LIMITS

FILL LIMITS

P/L

P/L

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

Elev 3768.18

30.70' Rt "L2" 2+40.00

Elev 3770.38

26.69' Lt "W" 40+97.50

Elev 3770.56

26.31' Rt "W" 40+97.50

Elev 3766.16

34.32' Rt "L2" 3+46.00

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

SECTION A-A

FABRIC (CLASS 8)
ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION 

METHOD B) (CY)
(60 LB, CLASS II, 
PROTECTION 
ROCK SLOPE 

26.34' Lt "W" 42+51.84

27.22' Lt "W" 42+60.69

16.74 Lt "W" 42+51.83

16.74' Rt "W" 42+51.83

26.34' Rt "W" 42+51.83

27.61' Rt "W" 42+59.49

17.07' Rt "W" 42+68.98

17.07 Rt "W" 42+68.99

3765

3

2

3

2

"
L
1
"
 
L
I

N
E

1.5:1

2:1

+18.00

+40.00

2
:
1

2
:
1

2:
1

2:1

2:1

2:
1

2:
1

2:1

2:1

2
:
1

2
:
1

FILL LIMITS

TCE

T
C

E

TCE

T
C

E

T
C

E

A A

A A



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
8
:
2
6
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400ria01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
6
5

3
7
7
0
3
7
7
0

3
7
7
0

3
7
7
5

3
7
7
5

"W" LINE

WALKER CREEK Rd

R/W

R/W

L
A
 

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

DRAINAGE PLAN NO. 1

DP-1
SCALE: 1"=20'

"
L
2
"
 
L
I

N
E

LEGEND:

DRAINAGE UNIT NUMBER

DRAINAGE SYSTEM NUMBER

36" FES

36" FES

36" X 56' CMP

R/W

R/W

9 40 1 2 3

a

1

b

c

d

X

X

15

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

W
E

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P

P
A

T
R

O
L
 

R
O

A
D

E
A

S
T
 

L
A

D
W

P
 

NOTES:

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR DRAINAGE WORK ONLY.

P/L

P/L

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

L
A

D
W

P
 

R
/

W

RSP (10' LONG x 5' WIDE)

"
L
1
"
 
L
I

N
E

P/L

3

2

3

4

2

4

TCE
 

T
C

E

T
C

E

TCE

TCE

T
C

E

T
C

E

T
C

E

T
C

E

T
C

E

T
C

E



28' 28'

1
.
7
5
'

x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
8
:
4
0
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rib01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

DRAINAGE PROFILE

DP-2
SCALE: 1"=10'

DRAINAGE SYSTEM No. 1

OG

c

3760

3770

3780

3790

3800

S=-0.50%

3760

3770

3780

3790

3800

FG

a         36" FES
d   RSP

   36" FES

3750 3750

b

Inv Elev 3769.28

16

0+00 1+00 2+00

"W" LINE

Inv Elev 3769.00

   36" x 56' RCP

OG

e

FABRIC (CLASS 8)
ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

FG

(150 LB, CLASS II, METHOD B) (CY)
ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

RSP DETAIL

R/W R/W

A

A



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
8
:
5
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rla01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS

CS-1
NO SCALE

L
o
s
 
A
n
g
e
le
s

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

NO SCALE

LEGEND ROADSIDE

(N) - NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM, FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN PANELS

CALIFORNIAFEDERAL

SIGN CODE
No.

SIGN SIGN AREA
(LxD)

PANEL SIZE

INCHxINCH SQFT

S
I

N
G

L
E
 

F
A

C
E

D

COLOR
SHEETING

COLOR
SHEETING

A
S

T
M
 

T
Y

P
E

R
E

T
R

O
F

L
E

C
T
I

V
E

A
S

T
M
 

T
Y

P
E

R
E

T
R

O
F

L
E

C
T
I

V
E

F
I
L

M
 

P
R

E
M
I

U
M

G
R

A
F
I
T

T
I

SQFT

(N)
(0.080" - UNFRAMED)

SHEET ALUMINUM
FURNISH SINGLE

A

B

C

4

6

X

X

X

8

12

W20-1 24x24 ORANGE

ORANGE

ORANGE

III

III

III III

III

IIIBLACK

M4-10 48x18

36x18

BLACK

G20-2 BLACK4.5 9

LEGEND:

X

EXISTING BRIDGE TO REMAIN

TYPE 3 BARRICADE

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

LIMITS OF WORK

CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN

STATIONARY MOUNTED CAS - ONE POST

NOTES:

2.  SIGN LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE.  EXACT LOCATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE ENGINEER.

1.  THIS PLAN ACCURATE FOR CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGN WORK ONLY.

MAINTAIN TRAFFIC ON EXISTING ROUTE

WALKER CREEK Rd

WALKER CREEK Rd

SHOP ST

B

A

100'

C

100'

A

B

C

O
L

D
 
S
T

A
T
E
 

H
W

Y

E
A
S
T
 
L

A
D

W
P
 
P

A
T
R

O
L
 
R

O
A

D

W
E
S
T
 
L

A
D

W
P
 
P

A
T
R

O
L
 
R

O
A

D

17



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
9
:
1
0
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rpa01.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

Q-1
NO SCALE

18



x

x

x

x

x

Dist COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET

No.

TOTAL

SHEETS

L
A

S
T
 

R
E

V
I
S
I

O
N

No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
1
9
:
2
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 

B
Y

D
E

S
I

G
N

E
D
 

B
Y

C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

E
D
-

R
E

V
I
S

E
D
 

B
Y

D
A

T
E
 

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

DATE

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T
 

F
U

N
C

T
I

O
N

A
L
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S

O
R

0
0
-
0
0
-
0
0

USERNAME => robert.ferguson

DGN FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Road\I04400rpa02.dgn

RELATIVE BORDER SCALE

IS IN INCHES

0 1 2 3
UNIT 0000 PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE 00000000001BORDER LAST REVISED 7/2/2010

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

X
X
/

X
X
/

X
X

09 CR            

RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

11017 COBBLEROCK DRIVE

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC.

       

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SCANNED

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE COUNTY OF INYO OR ITS OFFICERS

I
N

Y
O
 

C
O

U
N

T
Y
 
-
 
 

D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T
 

O
F
 

P
U

B
L
I
C
 

W
O

R
K

S

J
A

M
E

S
 

L
.
 
F

O
S

T
E

R
 
J

R
.
,
 
P

E

INY

C77427

R
O

B
E

R
T
 

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N
,
 
P
.
E
.

95% SUBMITTAL

S
E
J
I

N
 

O
H
,
 
P
.
E
.

BRYAN STONE

33

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES

Q-2
NO SCALE

19



33'-0"

2'-0" 2'-0"

6" 6"

6
"
 

M
i
n

7
'
-
0
"

PROFILE GRADE

No Scale

ELEVATION

1"=10'

PLAN

1"=10'

Abut 1 Abut 2

FG

OG

OG

3

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

L
o
s
 

A
n
g
e
l
e
s

"W" Line

3

3

&1 2

&1 2

6
"

6
"

4

4

To US Hwy 395

PG

TYPICAL SECTION

‚"=1'-0"

Notes:

2

1

3

4

Toe of fill

Toe of fill

5

5

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
8
0
.
9
9

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
7
.
4
3

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
7
3
.
3
4

E
l
e
v
 
3
7
6
6
.
6
2

-5.80%

-1.00%

-2.49%

3
6

+
6
7
.
3
4
 

B
V

C

3
8

+
6
7
.
3
5
 

E
V

C

4
2

+
7
6
.
3
4
 

B
V

C

200' VC

197' VC

42 43

Datum Elev 3750.00

42 43Walker Creek Road

N 55°29"11" E

"W" Line

* Along "W" Line

2
:
1

2
:
1

2
:
1

2:1

2:1

2
:
1

Toe of fill

3

6

6 6

FG

Elev 3773.59

EB 42+50.83

58'-0" Measured along "W" Line

2
'
-
4
"
*

3

3

TitleSheet No.

INDEX TO PLANS

1

20

(Installed by LADWP)

Patrol Road Gate

(Installed by LADWP)

Patrol Road Gate

BB EB

4
4

+
7
3
.
6
7
 

E
V

C

Elev 3774.17

BB 41+92.83

Link Railing Type 2, Typ

Bridge Rail (Mod) with Chain

California ST-75

R
O

A
D

P
A

T
R

O
L

L
A

D
W

P

E
A

S
T

R
O

A
D

P
A

T
R

O
L

L
A

D
W

P

W
E

S
T

protect in place

lined aqueduct,

Exist concrete

Forest

To Inyo National

(Installed by LADWP)

Patrol road gate

per station

R/C=0.75%

For Hydrologic Summary, see "Foundation Plan" sheet

For General Notes, see "Deck Contours" sheet

Fencing (to be placed by LADWP)

Existing structure

RSP, see Road Plans

Existing Splash Guard, protect in place

Existing bridge 48C-0039 to remain (not shown)

Structure Approach, Type EQ (10) (Mod)

Quadguard System or equivalent, see Road Plans

Paint "Los Angeles Aqueduct"

      

Paint Bridge "Br No. 48C0051"

7

Shld

4'-0"

Lane

10'-0"

Lane

10'-0"

Shld

4'-0"

7

7

Top of fill

Top of fill

Top of fill

Top of fill

-1.5%-1.5%

C
l
r

per station

R/C=-2.44%

Toe of fill

L
a
n
e

1
0
'

L
a
n
e

1
0
'

4' Shld

4' Shld

Log of Test Borings

Bridge Rail Details No. 3

Bridge Rail Details No. 2

Bridge Rail Details No. 1

Chain Link Railing Type 2 ST-75 Detail No. 2

Chain Link Railing Type 2 ST-75 Detail No. 1

PC/PS Slab Details

PC/PS Slab Layout

Typical Section

Abutment Details

Abutment Layout 

Foundation Plan

Deck Contours

General Plan

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

reinforced concrete deck

slab with 4.25" Min composite

PC/PS voided concrete

R
a
i
l
i
n
g

C
h
a
i
n
 

L
i
n
k

6

6

PREPARED FOR THE

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
0
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

PROJECT ENGINEER

GENERAL PLAN

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY CHECKED

SPECIFICATIONS

CHECKED

PLANS AND SPECS

COMPARED

BY

BY

LAYOUT

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-a-gp01.dgnFILE =>

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

BRIDGE NO.

SHEET OF

CHECKED

CHECKEDBY

BY

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORNI

A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

POST MILES

DATE

FACTOR DESIGN
LOAD & RESISTANCE LIVE LOADING:  HL93 W/"LOW-BOY";

              PERMIT DESIGN VEHICLE

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X

X
X

X 14

REVISION DATES

09 C.R. XXXX

X

DESIGN GENERAL PLAN SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

B. Maechler R. Ferguson

ROBERT FERGUSON

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

Iny

88803

11017 Cobblerock Drive, Suite 100

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

QUINCY ENGINEERING, INC

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGEA. Hanson/J. Cruz

A. Hanson/J. Cruz

JUAN C. CRUZ

33

48C0051

95% SUBMITTAL

K. GallagherM. Nguyen J. Willson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



1
6
'
-
6
"

1
6
'
-
6
"

PLAN

1"=10'

Contours do not include camber

 

Contours Intervals = 0.10'

 

X = 10' intervals along station line

 

Notes:

DETAIL NO. DETAIL NO.

PLAN SHEET NO.

REVISED STANDARD

SHEET NO.

STANDARD PLAN

SEISMIC

LOADING:

DESIGN:

DEAD LOAD:

LOADING:

REINFORCED

CONCRETE: y

c

n  = 8

PRESTRESSED

CONCRETE:

LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN

GENERAL NOTES

Includes 35 psf for future wearing surface.

dated January 2014

edition and with Caltrans Amendments, preface

AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications, 6th

f  = 60 ksi

f' = 3.6 ksi

see ARS Curve

max

HL93 with "Lowboy" and permit design load.

DESIGN:
SEISMIC

LIVE

dated April 2013.
Caltrans Seismic Design Criteria (SDC), version 1.7,

CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS

No Scale

Edge of deck

Edge of deck

• Brg Abut 2• Brg Abut 1

DECK CONTOURS

ACCELERATION RESPONSE SPECTRA CURVE

No Scale

QUANTITIES

Period (sec)

S
a
 
(
g
)

S
p
e
c
t
r
a
l
 

A
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
i
o
n

21

2

Peak Ground Acceleration = 0.556 g 

Soil profile Vs = 390 m/s

42

"W" Line

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018

concrete strength requirements

Precast Prestressed Slab, see "PC/PS Slab Layout" sheet for

Structural Concrete, Bridge Footing

Structural Concrete, Bridge

Structural Concrete, Bridge (Polymer Fiber) (f'c = 4.5 ksi at 28 days)

Structural Concrete, Approach Slab (Type EQ)

See "Prestressing Notes" on "PC/PS Slab Layout" sheet.

Structure Approach

Structure Approach

37
74

3774

3773

37
73

Moment Magnitude M    = 6.7 

B9-5

B9-4

B6-21

B0-13

B0-3

A62C

A10H

A10G

A10F

A10E

A10D

A10C

A10B

A10A

A3C

A3B

A3A

Structure Approach - Slab Details

Structure Approach - Type EQ (10)

Joint Seals (Maximum Movement Rating = 2")

Bridge Details

Bridge Details

and Backfill- Bridge

Limits of Payment for Excavation

Legend - Rock

Legend - Soil (Sheet 2 of 2)

Legend - Soil (Sheet 1 of 2)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 5 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 4 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 3 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 2 of 5)

Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 1 of 5)

Abbreviations (Sheet 3 of 3)

Abbreviations (Sheet 2 of 3)

Abbreviations (Sheet 1 of 3)

116

37

11,081

66

9

1914

17

27

36

47

41

58

106

California ST-75 Barrier Rail (Mod)

Bar Reinforcing Steel (Epoxy Coated)

Bar Reinforcing Steel (Bridge)

Joint Seal (MR=1•")

Erect Precast Prestressed Concrete Deck Unit

(Type SIV)

Furnish Precast Prestressed Concrete Slab 

Drill & Bond Dowel (Chemical Adhesive)(LF)

Structural Concrete, Approach Slab (Type EQ)  

Structural Concrete, Bridge (Polymer Fiber)

Structural Concrete, Bridge

Structural Concrete, Bridge Footing

Structure Backfill (Bridge)

Structure Excavation (Bridge)

LF

LBS

LBS

LF

EA

SQFT

LF

CY

CY

CY

CY

CY

CY

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-b-gnote.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
1
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5



1
7
'
-
7
"

1
7
'
-
7
"

1
7
'
-
7
"

1
7
'
-
7
"

1'-3"

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-e-fpl01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
2
6
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

PLAN

1"=10'

No Scale

EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL

LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR

Abut 2

Abut 1

SCOUR DATA TABLE

SCOUR DEPTH (ft)

SHORT TERM (LOCAL)
SUPPORT No.

CONTRACTION) SCOUR ELEVATION (ft)

LONG TERM (DEGRADATION AND

BENCH MARK DATA

A
q
u
e
d
u
c
t

L
o
s
 

A
n
g
e
l
e
s

FOUNDATION PLAN

S
 
3
4
°
3
0
'
4
9
"
 
E

•
 

B
r
g
 

A
b
u
t
 
2

S
 
3
4
°
3
0
'
4
9
"
 
E

•
 

B
r
g
 

A
b
u
t
 
1

22

3

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
Indicates Structure Backfill

 

Indicates Structure Excavation

LOCATION

SUPPORT

(ksf)

(RESISTANCE FACTOR=0.5)

BEARING RESISTANCE

FACTORED GROSS NOMINAL

STRENGTH/CONSTRUCTION

(ksf)

(RESISTANCE FACTOR=1.00)

BEARING RESISTANCE

FACTORED GROSS NOMINAL 

EXTREME EVENT

SPREAD FOOTING DATA TABLE
LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN

(ksf)

(SETTLEMENT)

CONTACT STRESS

PERMISSIBLE NET

SERVICE

Abut 2

Abut 1

N/A

N/A

g,u R

Rg,max

g,u R

pnn,u

3 32

For benchmark locations outside of the plan limits shown above, see Road Plans.

3765.00

3765.00

N 55°29'11" E

S 34°30'49" E

WWLOL

S 34°30'49" E

WWLOL

S 34°30'49" E

WWLOL

S 34°30'49" E

WWLOL

42 43

NORTHING EASTING

514

513

512

511

ELEV LINE STATION OFFSET DESCRIPTION

SET REBAR

SET 60D

SET REBAR

SET REBAR

3775.48'

3773.74'

3761.17'

3767.80'

6855348.30'

6855559.65'

6855865.99'

6855801.59'

1979019.99'

1978792.84'

1978906.96'

1978735.98'

"W"

"W"

"W"

"W"

603.16' Lt

350.75' Lt

119.51' Lt

166.81' Lt

No.

48+90.51

41+36.09

46+74.03

43+04.03

   .            Indicates bottom of footing elevation

 

 

Legend:

"W" Line

OG

Typ

1'-0"

Footing

FG

• Brg Abut

GP

BY

BY

BY

BY

SCALE:

SURVEYED

FIELD CHECKED

DRAFTED

CHECKED

HORIZ.DATUM:VERT.DATUM:As Noted NAVD '88 CA Cord. Sys. Zone 4

ALIGNMENT TIES: See "BENCH MARK DATA"DATE OF SURVEY:

Jim Thornton

Alfonso Dabu

Alfonso Dabu

Ryan Kotey

04/2015

lined aqueduct

Exist Conc

lined aqueduct

Exist Conc

Abut Edge

Abut Edge

Abut Edge

Abut Edge

3
7
6
5

Typ

R/W

R/WR/W

R/W

Sta 42+49.58

Sta 41+94.08

3
7
6
5

   resulting in the highest ratio of q  /q for foundations on soil.

3.  Controlling load combination for Strength and Construction is the one

   of q   /q  for foundations on soil.

2.  Controlling load combination for Service Limit States is the one resulting in the highest ratio

   on soil, or q    /q  for foundation on rock.

1.  Controlling load combination is the one resulting in the highest ratio of q  /q  for foundations

Notes:

LA AQUEDUCT HYDRAULIC CRITERIA

* Soffit elevation over LA Aqueduct is set per LADWP requirements

above Existing Splash Guard:

Bridge Soffit Elevation distance

over this controlled flow canal:

the following design criteria for the proposed bridge 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power provided 

0.42'

 

Required

0.43'

Provided

22.4

33.1

20.3

20.0



1'-0" 1'-3" 1'-3"

2
'
-
6
"

16'-6"16'-6"

6'-0"

2" Clr

3
"

3
"

"a"+•"

3
"

3'-0" 3'-0"

17'-7" 17'-7" 

37'-0"

1'-1" 1'-1"

3'-6"

1
2
'
-
3
"

SECTION A-A

ƒ"=1'-0"

BB or EB

• Footing

• Brg Abut =

Const Jt

#5 @ 12

#5   @ 12

• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

"W" Line

"W" Line

WWLOL

Edge of deck
Edge of deck

• Footing

• Brg Abut =

Approach

Structure 

#9    Tot 4

Typ

#5 @ 12

#5 @ 12

#5     @ 12

C
l
r

C
l
r

Polystyrene

Expanded

bearing pad

same thickness as

Expanded Polystyrene

B0-13

13-2

B0-13

13-1

B6-21

#4   @ 12

#4 @ 12

#4 x 3'-0" @ 12

#5 @ 12

Top of backwall

not shown, Typ

Barrier

OG

• PC/PS unit, Typ

• Brg Pad =

(Elastomer only), Tot 9

Pad 10x10x2

Elastomeric Bearing

Steel Reinforced

A

A
ELEVATION

…"=1'-0"

PLAN

…"=1'-0"

OG

Bearing Pad

Elastomeric

23

4

B9-5

DETAIL 1

Const Jt
Abut seat

"a"+•"

"a"

1
'
-
0
"

B6-21

DETAIL 1

No Scale

Backwall

joint filler

•" Expansion

Expanded Polystyrene

WWLOL

non-shrink grout for Dowel

4" Dia hole filled with

ABUTMENT LAYOUT

B9-5

B9-4

Abut Edge

Abut Edge

(Abut 1 only)

#5 Dowel x 3'-0" 

B9-4

   (Except where noted).

2.  Abutment 1 shown, Abutment 2 similar

   "Abutment Details" sheet.

1.  For sections and details not shown, see

Notes:

along WWLOL, Typ

measured

8'-6" 

Tot 12 (Abut 1 only)

#5 Drill and Bond Dowel 

Level

Approach (Mod)

Structure 

Seal (MR = 1")

Type B Joint

Weephole, Typ
B0-3

T
y
p

Elev 3769.00

Elev 3769.00

E Denotes epoxy coated reinforcement

Legend:

E

E

#5

E Denotes epoxy coated reinforcement

Legend:

hole (Abut 1 Only)

Adhesive into 1„" Dia x 1'-5" deep 

Drill and Bond Dowel with Chemical 

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-f-a01_lo1.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
4
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



1'-1"

3'-0"

2'-0"

3
'
-
0
"

2'-0" 2'-0"

SHEAR KEY ELEVATION

1"=1'-0"

#4

Const Jt

#4    Tot 3

•" Exp Jt fillerinto backwall

#4 @ 12, extend

B0-13

13-2

B0-13

13-1

       Type AL Seal
B6-21

 

#4   @ 12

WWLOL

SECTION B-B

1"=1'-0"

B B

WW Reinf

D

D

#6     Tot 2

#4   @ 12

#4 Tot 2

#5 Tot 5

#8 Tot 4

outside face

#5 @ 12

inside face

#7 @ 12

SECTION D-D

•"=1'-0"

#8 Tot 4

#5 @ 12

#7 @ 12

WINGWALL ELEVATION

•"=1'-0"

GUARDRAIL CONNECTION

ƒ"=1'-0"

see Road Plans

Quadguard system,

EE

SECTION E-E

ƒ"=1'-0"

embedment

Min, Typ

24

5

#9     Tot 4

#4 Tot 2

#6    Tot 2

Approach

Structure

Shear Key

Deck

Wingwall

H

H

SECTION H-H

ƒ"=1'-0"

       Polystyrene

       1" Expanded

of deck

Edge

       as bearing pads

       same thickness

       Polystryrene

       Expanded

ST-75 Bridge Rail

B0-13

13-2       Polystyrene

       1" Expanded

ABUTMENT DETAILS

BB or EB

• Brg Abut

• Brg Abut 2

Type AL Seal
B6-21

 

Edge of deck

B6-21

 

see Road Plans

Quardguard system,

Approach

Structure

#5  Tot 10

Shear Key

Wingwall

#5    Tot 4

Reinf not shown

Structure Approach

Road Plans

shown, see

system not

Quadguard

#5     @ 8

#5 Cont, Tot 6

1 Only)

Dowel (Abut 

Drill & Bond 

#4 Tot 3

extend into footing

#5 Tot 5,

extend into footing

#5 Tot 5,

#4 x 4'-6"  Tot 3

#4 x 4'-6"  Tot 3

#4 @ 12

Pay Limits of California

FG

#5

#5

Abutment Edge

Abutment Edge

#5    Tot 5
#5    Tot 5

Pay Limits of

Quadguard System

#5 Tot 4

#5    Tot 4#5 Tot 4

Type B Seal (Mod)

#5

#5  

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-f-a01dt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
5
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



2
"

0" & Var

14'-6"2'-0" 14'-6" 2'-0"

33'-0"

TYPICAL SECTION

TYPICAL SECTION

•"=1'-0"

PART TYPICAL SECTION

1"=1'-0"

PG

2
'
-
4
"
*

Voided Slab

PC/PS Concrete

A AB B BC

See "Grout Seal Detail"

•
"
 

M
i
n

      close as practicable

Note:  Place slab units as

Type 2 not shown

Chain Link Railing

X

Legend:

INSTANTANEOUS DEFLECTION TABLE

GROUT SEAL DETAIL

No Scale

#5 @ 12

 

       L = Span Length of slab units

       Time-Dependant Camber Values.

       contractor is responsible for determining

Notes:  Deflections shown are unfactored. The 

25

6

Link Railing Type 2, Typ

Rail (Mod) with Chain 

California ST-75 Bridge 

C
l
r

&
 

V
a
r

B C C

UNIT COMPONENT • ƒ

Total (1+2) =

2. Barrier

1. Deck & Keyway

Total (1+2) =

2. Barrier

1. Deck & Keyway

A

B

C

0.37"

0.05"

0.32"

0.52"

0.07"

0.45"

0.37"

0.05"

0.32"

0.44"

0.04"

0.40"

0.62"

0.06"

0.56"

0.44"

0.04"

0.40"

"W" Line

Bridge Rail (Mod), Typ

California ST-75

Slab Unit Designation

5.0 ksi Min Compressive strength

Grouted Keyways. Non-shrink Grout

Voided Slab Unit

PC/PS Concrete

#4 Tot 4 per 48" slab unit, Typ

36" slab unit, Typ

#4 Tot 3 per

48" Exterior slab unit

48" Interior slab unit
36" Interior slab unit

see Note 3

Sealant system,

Total (1+2) =

2. Barrier

1.Deck & Keyway

0.31"

0.06"

0.25"

0.43"

0.08"

0.35"

0.31"

0.06"

0.25"

-1.5%-1.5%

   sealant system.

   hydrophilic type or equivalent expanding

3.  Send gap with cloud cell backer rod,

   see "PC/PS Slab Details" sheet.

2.  For PC/PS Concrete Voided Slab details,

   unless otherwise shown.

1.  Voids do not extend into end diaphragms,

Notes:

4.25" Min 

Concrete deck,

Composite Reinf

* Depth Measured at midspan

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-k-ts01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
0
:
5
9
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



2'-6"2'-6"

2"

2"

PC/PS SLAB LAYOUT

@ 12 Max

 

Note: Not all reinforcement shown

 

c

ci

PRESTRESSING NOTES

• Formed hole

• Brg Abut 1 =

SECTION A-A

ƒ"=1'-0"

5'-0"

• Span

"W" Line

A A

A

A

B

B

B

C

#4       or      stirrup  

• Formed hole T
y
p

 

8
"

FRAMING PLAN

‚"=1'-0"

 
#4       or      stirrup spacing

Symmetrical about • Span

Prestressing Notes

5'-0" Debond, see 

Edge of deck

Edge of deck

slab units, Typ

• PC/PS voided 

C

C

A B

f'   = 3.5 ksi @ time of stressing

&

A B&

C

A

B

C

#6       @ 6, Typ

270 ksi Low Relaxation Strand:

26

7

Max

3 @ 64 @ 3 4 @ 3

Max

3 @ 6

                 25.0% of Bottom Row (36" Slab Unit)

        Strands  39.1% of Bottom Row (48" Slab Unit) 

        

Debond:  Length 5 ft at ends

A B&

(48" Slab Units only)

hole for dowel 

4" Dia formed

for dowel, see Note 2

4" Dia formed hole

• Span

Number of    Units = 3

Number of    Units = 4

Number of    Units = 2

Total Number of Units = 9

B

C

C
42

• Formed Hole

• Brg Abut 1 =

Concrete: f'   = 4.0 ksi @ 28 days

Slab Unit

    or 0.6" Dia strands.

    strands is 1•" for the …" Dia strands, 1ƒ" for •" Dia strands

4.   The minimum center-to-center spacing "S" between individual

    minimum ultimate tensile strength of the prestressing steel.

    the prestressing steel shall not exceed 75% of the specified

3.   The maximum temporary tensile stress (jacking stress) in 

    ultimate tensile strength of the prestressing steel.

    release shall not exceed 75% of the specified minimum

2   The maximum tensile stress in the prestressing steel upon

    include any fabrication specific losses.

    point of control along the span. The jacking force does not

1.   The Jacking Force (P) is the jacking force required at the

   prior to placing deck.

2.  Fill holes with non shrink grout 

   see "PC/PS Slab Details" sheet.

1.  For sections and details not shown,

Notes:

• Brg Abut 2

P = 713 kips Bottom CG (48" Slab Units)

P = 496 kips Bottom CG (36" Slab Units)

P = 124 kips Top CG (48" Slab Units)

P = 93 kips Top CG (36" Slab Units)

1
'
-
5
"

Clr

Clr

Longitudinal Reinf

• Brg Abut 2

PC void, Typ

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-l-g_lo01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
1
:
0
8
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



1
'
-
9
"

4'-0"

3
"

1
"
 
C
l
r

2‚"

7
"

7
"

7
"

1ƒ"

3'-0"

1
'
-
9
"

3
"

1
"
 
C
l
r

1
'
-
9
"

1" CLR

1" CLR

PC/PS SLAB DETAILS

BTYPICAL SECTION 48" INTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

LONGITUDINAL KEYWAY DETAIL 

3"=1'-0"

force (spaced evenly)

CG of top prestressing

1" Chamfer, Typ

ƒ" Chamfer

• Voids

ƒ"

TYPICAL SECTION 48" EXTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

C

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

9
" 

D
ia

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

• Voids

• Voids

9
"
,
 
T
y
p

1
0
•

"

1
0
•

"

see Note 2, Typ

Field bend,

force (spaced evenly)

CG of top prestressing

1" Chamfer, Typ

A

TYPICAL SECTION 36" INTERIOR UNIT  

1•"=1'-0"

 Right Exterior Slab Unit similar

Note: Left Exterior Slab Unit shown, 

C
l
r

1
•

"

Clr

2‚"

Clr

2‚"

C
l
r

1
•

"

roughened surface

‚" Amplitude

 
#4

6"
groove

ƒ" Drip

#4 Cont, Tot 6

10•" 10•"1'-3"

force (spaced evenly)

CG of bottom prestressing

Clr

force (spaced evenly)

CG of bottom prestressing

T
y
p

T
y
p

1
2
" 

D
ia

1'-2" 1'-2" 10"10"

9
"
 

T
y
p

see "Typical Section 48" Exterior Unit    "

For reinforcement and dimensions not shown,

Note:

stirrups, see Note 1

A

27

8

2
•

"

2
•

"

2.  Slab stirrups to be field bent after slab erection.

   layout and clearances not shown.

1.  See "Typical Section" sheet for reinforcement

Notes:

 

#4 Cont, Tot 8 see Note 2, Typ

Field bend,

roughened surface

‚" Amplitude
#4 stirrups, see Note 1

Typ

Typ

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-l-gdt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
1
:
1
6
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

-

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



TOP CABLE ANCHORAGE DETAIL

END BRACE DETAILS

ALTERNATIVE DETAILSTYPICAL DETAILS

+ -
6
"

ELEVATION

TYPICAL SECTION 
END POST INTERMEDIATE PANEL ELECTROLIER PANEL EXPANSION JOINT

†" Á Galv CABLE

A

A

1" = 1'-0"

NOTES:

SEE "TOP CABLE 

ANCHORAGE DETAIL"

IS 4'-0", 5'-0" OR 

1" MESH; KNUCKLED SELVAGE

CHAIN LINK FABRIC WITH

TOP AND BOTTOM. (WIDTH

Max10'-0"

LENGTH OF PAYMENT FOR CHAIN LINK FENCE

10'-0" Max

TIE CABLE TO PIPE WITH 11 Ga

WIRE TIES. DOUBLE TWIST ENDS

• EXISTING POSTS,

• PIPE 2• Std 

Typ

TIE FABRIC TO INTERMEDIATE 

POSTS WITH 11 Ga WIRE 

TIES @ 16, Max

Typ

EXPANSION JOINT

TO ELECTROLIER AND 

END PANELS ADJACENT 

…" Á TRUSS RODS AT 

‰" X •" TENSION BAR

TENSION BAR BANDS

@ 14 C-C, Max

V
A

R
I
E

S
 
4
'
-
0
"
 
T

O
 
7
'
-
0
"

Clr

1'-6"

TENSION WIRE. SEE "BOTTOM 

…" TURNBUCKLE AT BOTH ENDS OF

‚
"

WITH 11 Ga STEEL WIRE TIES @ 12   

C-C Max, TOP AND BOTTOM

BULGE FABRIC AT 

ELECTROLIER IF NECESSARY

PROVIDE OPENING IN FABRIC

FOR HANDHOLE ACCESS. REINFORCE

TO ‚" WELDED EYEBOLT

PANEL AND ELECTROLIER PANEL. TIE

FABRIC CONTINUOUS ACROSS
ELECTROLIER PANELS AND

EXPANSION PANELS

DECK OR WALL JOINT

(SIMILAR TO ELECTROLIER PANEL)

DRIVEN FIT

1"Á STANDARD PIPE

SLIDING FIT
SLEEVE

2"

…"Á BOLTS

…"Á CARRIAGE BOLT

TENSION BAND

PROVIDE HOLE FOR
CARRIAGE BOLT

TRUSS BAR - Â  …" X 1‚"

†
"

1
•

"

•"
1•"

Min

…" WELDED EYEBOLT

THIMBLE

CRIMPLED SLEEVE CLAMP

alternative for Intermediate Chain Link Panels
A two sided tension band is an allowable 

NOTE:

ATTACH FABRIC TO 7 Ga TENSION WIRE  7 Ga TENSION WIRE ACROSS EXPANSION

WITH 7 Ga WIRE

 7 Ga TENSION WIRE

NO SCALE

• ELECTROLIER PANEL

1•" = 1'-0"

ANY MATERIAL.

BEFORE ORDERING OR FABRICATING

CONTROLLING FIELD DIMENSIONS

THE CONTRACTOR MUST VERIFY ALL

NOTE:

CALIFORNIA

STATE OF

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING SERVICES

DIVISION OF

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

SHEET OF

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

TOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

No.

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE: CONTRACT NO.:

REVISION DATES

EARLIER REVISION DATES

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

                

APPROVAL DATE

of California
a registered civil engineer in the State
responsible charge of the Technical Owner,
Details have been prepared under the
The components of the Bridge Standard

FILE NO.

and proper application of the component design and any modifications shown.
The Registered Civil Engineer for the project is responsible for the selection

completeness of scanned copies of this plan sheet.
shall not be responsible for the accuracy or
The State of California or its officers or agents

FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-xs-cldt01.dgn

USERNAME => robert.ferguson TIME PLOTTED => DATE PLOTTED =>5:21:48 PM 5/29/2020
sheets/index.html
Refer to:  http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/techpubs/manual/bridgemanuals/bridge-standard-detail-

  

        

              

    

   
   

      

  

  

  

   

        

   

6-26-14 7-13-16

July 2014xs16-150-1

PIPE 2•" Std

PIPE 2•" Std 

PIPE 1‚" Std

9

-

09 Iny C.R.

X

- 28

1 Revised Detail

DETAILS No. 1
CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 ST-75

BRIDGE RAIL SHOWN
CALIFORNIA ST-75

1

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

5•"

7'-0", SEE "GENERAL PLAN")

2 Revised Title 2

14

33

88803

6/30/20

JUAN C. CRUZ
95% SUBMITTAL

ANCHORAGE DETAIL"

REVISED BRIDGE STANDARD DETAILS

Deck Jt

Typ

48C0051 ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

 

the Contractor for Engineer approval.

Alternative details may be submitted by 

 

to post.

When rail is on slope, place fabric parallel 

 

vertical alignment.

Railing shall conform to horizontal and 

 

Posts shall be vertical.

ST-75 Barrier

copensated with the cost of the California

Payment of Chain Link Railing Type 2 is 

TYPE 2 ST-75 DETAILS No. 2" sheet

For "SECTION A-A", see "CHAIN LINK RAILING 

 

anchor plate with eyebolt

the option of either „" x 2" strap or ‚" 

At intermediate posts only.  Contractor has 

 

See "GENERAL PLAN" for end post location

 

Peen all …" Dia  bolts

 

Provide thimbles at all cable loops

 

 

4.

 

 

3.

 

 

2.

 

1.

10

 

 

 9.

 

 

 

 8.

 

 7.

 

 6.

 

 5.

3

3 Change in Payment Method



BOTTOM ANCHORAGE DETAILS

3" = 1'-0"      

PLAN

ELEVATION

*

3" = 1'-0"       

SECTION A-A

PLAN

WASHERS

HEX NUTS AND 

•"  U BOLTS WITH 

ELEVATION

5•"

1"

3" = 1'-0"      

  „" Min THICKNESS

•" Typ

SHIM AS REQUIRED

3•"1‚" 1‚"

2
"

6"

…" Â

†" Á HOLES

 HEX STOCK

1•"

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1Œ"2"

Ž" X 1‡"

SLOTTED HOLE

3
•

"

Ž" X 1Œ"

SLOTTED HOLE

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1‡"

• L PLATE

BASE ANCHOR Â
L 5 X 3• X • 

ANCHORAGE ONLY

HOLE FOR Š" BOLT @

‚" TOP ANCHOR Â

SLOTTED HOLE

Ž" X 1‡"

HOLE FOR ‚" EYEBOLT

1"±3ƒ"

5•"

ƒ"

1
"

1
"

3
‚

"

 SNUG IN ANGLE
TO FIT

‚" TOP ANCHOR Â

IF NECESSARY, SEE "NUT/BOLT EXTENSION" 

AND NUT
BOLT WITH WASHER 
‚" Á WELDED EYE 

WASHERS

HEX NUTS AND 

U BOLTS WITH 

*

1
„

"

3
•

"

SEE "ANGLE ANCHORAGE DETAILS"

REQUIRED
SHIM AS 

THIMBLE

1'-6"

DETAILS"

SEE "BOTTOM ANCHORAGE 

Â 5• X 3‚ X ‚" 

7 Ga TENSION WIRE

RAILING SHIM DETAIL

7 Ga TENSION WIRE

NUT/BOLT EXTENSION

NO SCALE

3" = 1'-0"

3" = 1'-0"      

SPACER PLATE

3•"

5"

1
•

"

WHEN EXISTING ANCHOR BOLT DOES

NOT EXTEND ABOVE TOP OF NUT,

CONTRACTOR SHALL EXTEND BOLTS

WITH NUT/BOLT EXTENSION

†
"

1
"

…
"

1„"

FOR ƒ" Á BOLT

DRILL AND TAP

Š" Á BOLT WITH NUTS AND LOCK WASHER

CRIMP SLEEVE CLAMP

EYE END AND JAW END

…" PIPE TYPE TURNBUCKLE

‚" ANCHOR 

Â WASHERS

AND 2 x 2 x‰"

WITH  HEX NUT

†"  Á BOLT

6-26-14

PIPE 2•" Std

BASE ANCHOR Â
L 5 X 3•"  X •"  

L 5 X 3•"  X •" 

PIPE 2•" Std

CALIFORNIA

STATE OF

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING SERVICES

DIVISION OF

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

SHEET OF

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I
S

T
E

R
E

D
P

ROFESSIONA
L

E
N

G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE

OF CALIF
ORN

IA

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

TOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

No.

UNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE: CONTRACT NO.:

REVISION DATES

EARLIER REVISION DATES

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

                

APPROVAL DATE

of California
a registered civil engineer in the State
responsible charge of the Technical Owner,
Details have been prepared under the
The components of the Bridge Standard

FILE NO.

and proper application of the component design and any modifications shown.
The Registered Civil Engineer for the project is responsible for the selection

completeness of scanned copies of this plan sheet.
shall not be responsible for the accuracy or
The State of California or its officers or agents

FILE => S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-xs-cldt02.dgn

USERNAME => robert.ferguson TIME PLOTTED => DATE PLOTTED =>5:22:07 PM 5/29/2020
sheets/index.html
Refer to:  http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/techpubs/manual/bridgemanuals/bridge-standard-detail-

  

        

           

    

    

    

       
   

  

  

  

  

   

        7-13-16

July 2014xs16-150-2

09 Iny C.R. -

X

-

10

29

BRIDGE RAIL

CALIFORNIA ST-75

1 Revised Detail

1

REVISED BRIDGE STANDARD DETAILS

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

BRIDGE RAIL

CALIFORNIA ST-75

DETAILS No. 2
CHAIN LINK RAILING TYPE 2 ST-75

2 Revised Title 2

33

14

88803

6/30/20

JUAN C. CRUZ
95% SUBMITTAL

ANGLE ANCHORAGE DETAIL
Shim Detail"

see "Railing

Spacer Plate

"Spacer Plate" detail

Spacer Plate, see

48C0051 ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE



30

11

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 1

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-z-brdt01.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
2
:
2
7
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



31

12

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 2

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-z-brdt02.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
2
:
4
1
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



32

13

BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS No. 3

S:\Client\Inyo\I04-400 Walker Creek\500-Design\505 - CADD Files\Bridge\I04400a-z-brdt03.dgnFILE =>

T
I

M
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

D
A

T
E
 

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 

=
>

5
:
2
3
:
0
2
 

P
M

5
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
0

U
S

E
R

N
A

M
E
 

=
>

r
o
b
e
r
t
.
f
e
r
g
u
s
o
n

BRIDGE NO.

POST MILE

DESIGN

DETAILS

QUANTITIES

BY

BY

BY

CHECKED

ORIGINAL SCALE IN INCHES

FOR REDUCED PLANS
0 1 2 3

CHECKED

CHECKED

PREPARED FOR THE

PROJECT ENGINEER

- X

DISREGARD PRINTS BEARING

EARLIER REVISION DATES

SHEET OFUNIT:

PROJECT NUMBER & PHASE:

X

X CONTRACT NO.: X X 14

REVISION DATES

DIST COUNTY ROUTE
SHEET TOTAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

CIVIL

R
E

G
I

S
T

E
R

E

D
 
P

ROFESSIONA
L

 
E

N
G
I

N
E

E
R

S

T
A
TE OF CALIF

ORNI
A

REGISTERED CIVIL ENGINEER

NoTOTAL PROJECT SHEETS

POST MILES

DATE

X

DESIGN DETAIL SHEET (ENGLISH) (REV.03/14/12)

INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ROBERT FERGUSON

88803

09 Iny C.R.

A. Hanson/J. Cruz
48C0051

JUAN C. CRUZ

-

INYO COUNTY - PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX Q

Independence, CA 93526

completeness of electronic copies of this plan sheet.

shall not be responsible for the accuracy or

The County or its officers or agents

33

ON WALKER CREEK ROAD
LOS ANGELES AQUEDUCT BRIDGE

P. Kenney

95% SUBMITTAL

M. Nguyen J. Wilson

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley

I. Kotsyubuk/S. McCauley



 PROFILE 2

LOG OF TEST BORINGS

 PLAN 

robert.ferguson
Text Box
33      33



 

 

Exhibit B. Project Area Map 
 



Exhibit C. Federal Highway Easement Deeds 



 

1 
 

Free Recording Pursuant to Gov’t Code § 
27382 Requested By: Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors 

When Recorded Mail To: 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards St.  
PO Box Q 
Independence, CA  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Above space for Recorder’s Use Only 

HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX is $0 pursuant to the exemption established in Revenue and Taxation Code § 
11922 
 
This HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED, made this _____ day of ________________, 20__, by and between Indian 
Wells Water District, a public agency (hereinafter “Grantor”), and the County of Inyo, as political subdivision of the 
state of California (hereinafter “Grantee”), and is with reference to the following: 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Grantee is in the process of replacing Inyo County bridge No. 48C0051, which conveys a County 
highway in the Olancha, California area;  
 
WHEREAS, in the process of said bridge replacement, it has become necessary to shift the location of a County 
highway such that the highway runs over Grantor’s property; 
 
WHEREAS, following the realignment, the County highway will encroach on Grantor’s property in the below-
described location (hereinafter the “Highway Easement Zone”): 
 

All that real property described in the attached legal description as Exhibit “A” and associated map as 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Grantor, 
it is agreed as follows. 
 

1. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee a permanent easement and right-of-way for public road purposes including 
the right to lay, construct, repair, maintain, operate, renew and replace roadway and any necessary cut and fill 
slope improvements, sanitary sewer and storm drain collection systems, water distribution systems, public 
utilities facilities and appurtenances incidental thereto, together with the right of ingress and egress to and from 
same, in, over, under and across the Highway Easement Zone;  

 
2. Said rights granted herein are subject to the following:  

a. If outstanding valid claims exist on the date of the grant, the Grantee shall obtain such permission as 
may be necessary on the account of any claim. 

b. Any and all agreements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, reservations, rights and rights-
of-way of record, and other matters of record. 

c. Any rights-of-way which may be apparent if a visual inspection is made of said Highway Easement 
Zone.  

d. Any vested or accrued water rights for mining, agricultural, manufacturing, or other purposes, and 
rights to ditches and reservoirs used in connection with such water rights, as may be recognized and 
acknowledged by the local customs, laws, and decisions of courts; and there is reserved from the lands 
hereby granted a right-of-way thereon for ditches and canals constructed by the authority of the United 
States. 

e. Such rights and right-of-way as the City of Los Angeles may have under the Act of June 30, 1906, 
together with any amendments thereto. An such rights and right-of-way as the City of Los Angeles 
may have under the Act of March 4, 1911, together with any amendments thereto. 















 

1 
 

Free Recording Pursuant to Gov’t 
Code § 27382 Requested By: Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors 

When Recorded Mail To: 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards St.  
PO Box Q 
Independence, CA  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Above space for Recorder’s Use Only 

HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX is $0 pursuant to the exemption established in Revenue 
and Taxation Code § 11922 
 
This HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED, made this _____ day of ________________, 2022, by 
and between Michael Robin Hogan (hereinafter “Grantor”), and the County of Inyo, as political 
subdivision of the state of California (hereinafter “Grantee”), and is with reference to the 
following: 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, Grantee is in the process of replacing Inyo County bridge No. 48C0051, which 
conveys a County highway in the Olancha, California area;  
 
WHEREAS, in the process of said bridge replacement, it has become necessary to shift the 
location of a County highway such that the highway runs over Grantor’s property; 
 
WHEREAS, following the realignment, the County highway will encroach on Grantor’s property 
in the below-described location (hereinafter the “Highway Easement Zone”): 
 

All that real property described in the attached legal description as Exhibit “A” and 
associated map as Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged by Grantor, it is agreed as follows. 
 

1. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee a permanent easement and right-of-way for public road 
purposes including the right to lay, construct, repair, maintain, operate, renew and replace 
roadway and any necessary cut and fill slope improvements, sanitary sewer and 
stormdrain collection systems, water distribution systems, public utilities facilities and 
appurtenances incidental thereto, together with the right of ingress and egress to and from 
same, in, over, under and across the Highway Easement Zone;  
 

2. Said rights granted herein are subject to the following:  
a. If outstanding valid claims exist on the date of the grant, the Grantee shall obtain 

such permission as may be necessary on the account of any claim. 



 

2 
 

b. Any and all agreements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, 
reservations, rights and rights-of-way of record, and other matters of record. 

c. Any rights-of-way which may be apparent if a visual inspection is made of said 
Highway Easement Zone.  

d. Any vested or accrued water rights for mining, agricultural, manufacturing, or other 
purposes, and rights to ditches and reservoirs used in connection with such water 
rights, as may be recognized and acknowledged by the local customs, laws, and 
decisions of courts; and there is reserved from the lands hereby granted a right-of-
way thereon for ditches and canals constructed by the authority of the United States. 

e. Such rights and right-of-way as the City of Los Angeles may have under the Act of 
June 30, 1906, together with any amendments thereto. An such rights and right-of-
way as the City of Los Angeles may have under the Act of March 4, 1911, together 
with any amendments thereto. 

 
3. Grantor recognize and consents that by granting an easement to Grantor over the 

Highway Easement Zone, Grantor is also permitting the public at large—including 
pedestrian and vehicular traffic—to cross on, over, or through the Highway Easement 
Zone, subject to any controls or limitations that may be imposed by Grantee;  
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor and Grantee have executed this HIGHWAY EASEMENT 
DEED on the dates indicated below. 
 
Dated: _______________________________ ______________________________________ 

Michael Robin Hogan 
 

Dated: _______________________________ ______________________________________ 
Michael Errante 
Director, Inyo County Public Works 
 

 
  



 

3 
 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE PURSUANT TO GOV’T CODE § 27281 
 
This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by this Deed of Easement and 
Easement Agreement between Michael Robin Hogan and THE COUNTY OF INYO, a political 
subdivision of the State of California, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer or agent on 
behalf of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors pursuant to authority conferred by Resolution 
No. 2022-____ of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors on __________________, and the 
Grantee consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 
 

Dated: _______________________________ ______________________________________ 
Michael Errante 
Inyo County Public Works Director 
 

 



1 

Free Recording Pursuant to Gov’t Code § 
27382 Requested By: Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors 

When Recorded Mail To: 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards St.  
PO Box Q 
Independence, CA  

Above space for Recorder’s Use Only 

HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED 

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX is $0 pursuant to the exemption established in Revenue and Taxation Code § 
11922 

This HIGHWAY EASEMENT DEED, made this _____ day of ________________, 20__, by and between Jeffrey 
Bohl, a public agency (hereinafter “Grantor”), and the County of Inyo, as political subdivision of the state of 
California (hereinafter “Grantee”), and is with reference to the following: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Grantee is in the process of replacing Inyo County bridge No. 48C0051, which conveys a County 
highway in the Olancha, California area;  

WHEREAS, in the process of said bridge replacement, it has become necessary to shift the location of a County 
highway such that the highway runs over Grantor’s property; 

WHEREAS, following the realignment, the County highway will encroach on Grantor’s property in the below-
described location (hereinafter the “Highway Easement Zone”): 

All that real property described in the attached legal description as Exhibit “A” and associated map as 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

NOW THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Grantor, 
it is agreed as follows. 

1. Grantor hereby grants to Grantee a permanent easement and right-of-way for public road purposes including
the right to lay, construct, repair, maintain, operate, renew and replace roadway and any necessary cut and fill
slope improvements, sanitary sewer and storm drain collection systems, water distribution systems, public
utilities facilities and appurtenances incidental thereto, together with the right of ingress and egress to and from
same, in, over, under and across the Highway Easement Zone;

2. Said rights granted herein are subject to the following:
a. If outstanding valid claims exist on the date of the grant, the Grantee shall obtain such permission as

may be necessary on the account of any claim.
b. Any and all agreements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, reservations, rights and rights-

of-way of record, and other matters of record.
c. Any rights-of-way which may be apparent if a visual inspection is made of said Highway Easement

Zone.
d. Any vested or accrued water rights for mining, agricultural, manufacturing, or other purposes, and

rights to ditches and reservoirs used in connection with such water rights, as may be recognized and
acknowledged by the local customs, laws, and decisions of courts; and there is reserved from the lands
hereby granted a right-of-way thereon for ditches and canals constructed by the authority of the United
States.

e. Such rights and right-of-way as the City of Los Angeles may have under the Act of June 30, 1906,
together with any amendments thereto. An such rights and right-of-way as the City of Los Angeles
may have under the Act of March 4, 1911, together with any amendments thereto.



















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Sally Faircloth
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Contract for Inyo County Floor Cleaning Services to Bishop Building Maintenance Janitorial 
Services & Carpet Cleaning of Bishop, CA
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Bishop Building Maintenance Janitorial 
Services & Carpet Cleaning of Bishop, CA for the provision of County Floor Cleaning Services in an amount not 
to exceed $137,323.53, or  $45,774.51 annually, for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent 
upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This project will provide hard floor service in the common area twice a year.  The County reserves the right to 
add/delete to the specified list stated in the bid during the term of the agreement.  Pricing for new facilities would 
be agreed upon in advance and added to the contract by amendment.  All manufacturer's recommendations must 
be followed for the type of flooring as specified in the table.  Carpet cleaning will be on an as-needed basis and 
may not include the full quantity.
 
 On April 1, 2022, the Public Works Department advertised for Floor Cleaning Services and received no bids. 
 Inyo county's past contract with Toss Properties did not bid as they are no longer in business. However, Osvaldo 
Vera, owner of Bishop Building Maintenance Janitorial Services & Carpet Cleaning contacted Public Works in 
regards to providing a quote. Upon review of Osvaldo Vera's quote, the proposal meets the project bid 
requirements.
 
 The Inyo County Public Works Department would like to enter into a Service Contract with Bishop Building 
Maintenance Janitorial Services & Carpet Cleaning of Bishop, CA to provide floor cleaning services for County 
buildings, as and when requested, for a period of three years from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2025.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to award the bid and service contract for the project and to re-advertise. This is not 
recommended because it is unlikely that re-advertising will result in additional bids.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's Office
County Counsel
 
FINANCING:
The service costs will be paid through budget unit 011100, Building & Maintenance, object code 5265, the 
amount of not to exceed $137,323.53 or $45,774.51 annually.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Sole Source Flooring - Osvaldo Vera
2. Floor Cleaning Services Contract
3. Insurance Specs
 
APPROVALS:
Sally Faircloth Created/Initiated - 5/9/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/9/2022
Sally Faircloth Approved - 5/9/2022
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/10/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/31/2022
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/31/2022



Sole Source Justification 

 

In order to meet the purchasing policy requirements, a formal bid was created, an ad was run in the 
newspaper for a two-week period and upon the bid opening day there were no bids. This contractor was 
able to provide a quote.  However, it was not until after the closing date of the bids. Inyo County 
Building and Maintenance Supervisor, Christopher Cox, was able to speak with the potential contractor 
in regards to the county’s flooring needs and found this contractor would meet the requirements stated 
in the quote. 



























Attachment   : Insurance Requirements for Services & Projects  
where a professional license is not required 

(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 
 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Services/Projects where a professional license is not required 
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 

Updated 20220601  

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance 
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.  
 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 

1. Commercial General Liability: ISO Form CG 00 01 covering general liability on an “occurrence” 
basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, and 
personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general 
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the 
required occurrence limit. For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people 
under the age of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct (“SAM”) coverage is required 
with limits no less than those listed in this paragraph for other types of loss. The general liability 
policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. Proof of additional 
insured status must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance showing general liability 
coverage limits. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if Contractor 
has no owned autos, hired (Code 8), and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. May be waived with signed and 
dated letter on Contractor’s letterhead certifying that no vehicle or mobile equipment will be 
used in the execution of the agreement. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

3. Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease. May be waived with signed and dated letter on Contractor’s letterhead certifying 
that Contractor has no employees. See “Other Insurance Provisions” below. 

 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, 
Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained 
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of 
insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 
Additional Insured Status: Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the 
form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or 
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its 



Attachment   : Insurance Requirements for Services & Projects  
where a professional license is not required 

(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 
 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Services/Projects where a professional license is not required 
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 

Updated 20220601  

officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo 
County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.  

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability 
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the 
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, 
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true 
“following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the 
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional 
Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called 
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess liability policies are exhausted. 
 
Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo 
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of 
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention 
may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 
unless approved in writing by Inyo County. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole 
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the 
Indemnified Additional Insured Parties. Inyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due 
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) 
provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense 
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Inyo County 
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 
 
Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the 
state with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  
 
Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning 

of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years 

after completion of the contract of work.  



Attachment   : Insurance Requirements for Services & Projects  
where a professional license is not required 

(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 
 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards for Services/Projects where a professional license is not required 
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal) 

Updated 20220601  

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase 
“extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

 
Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and 
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and 
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by Inyo County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. Inyo 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, 
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
 
Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting 
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Duration of Coverage: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but 
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years 
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 
 
Special Risks or Circumstances: Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including 
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 
-end- 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Sally Faircloth
 
SUBJECT:  Award contract for Insect and Pest Control Services to Owens Valley Pest of Bishop, CA for the 
period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Owens Valley Pest of Bishop, CA for the 
provision of Insect and Pest Control Services for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 in the amount 
not to exceed $46,800.00, contingent upon the Boards' adoption of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On April 22, 2022 , one bid was received for insect and pest control services to designated County facilities.

Owens Valley Pest of Bishop, CA at $15,600.00 per year.  The Department of Public Works, Building and 
Maintenance is recommending your Board authorize the contract for Insect and Pest Control Services.  The total 
expense not to exceed $46,800.00.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The alternative to the above recommendation is for your Board to not approve this contract and discontinue 
providing insect and pest control services to our facilities.  This is not recommended as we have several county 
facilities with kitchens and insect and pest control is a much needed service in the area in which we work.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor's Office
Risk Management 
 
FINANCING:
This will be a budgeted General Fund expenditure through Building and Maintenance budget 011100 object code 
5265 Professional Services, and has been included in the FY 22/23.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Insect and Pest Control Bid Tabulation
2. Owens Valley Pest Contract 
 
APPROVALS:
Sally Faircloth Created/Initiated - 5/3/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/5/2022
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/5/2022
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 5/11/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/25/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/25/2022
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/25/2022





























County of Inyo

Public Works - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Cap Aubrey
 
SUBJECT:  Award the bid and approve the contract between County of Inyo and Chuck Stewart for Olancha 
Transfer Station Maintenance
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and  Chuck Stewart of Olancha, CA for the 
provision of maintenance of the Olancha Transfer Station in an amount not to exceed $16,776 for the period of 
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Recycling and Waste Management (RWM) operates four transfer stations and utilizes individuals to provide 
maintenance services.  Since this is considered a small volume transfer station a permanent gate attendant is not 
practical at this time.  RWM has determined that contracting for this service is the most cost effective method 
available. This contract is for maintenance of the Olancha Transfer Station which includes removal of windblown 
litter, weed removal and trash clean-up.

The solicitation for this service was posted in Olancha. Two proposals were received and Mr. Stewart, who 
currently performs these duties for the County, was the lowest bidder expressing an interest in doing the work. 
Department staff is happy with Mr Stewart's performance.

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
County staff coud be utilized to provide maintenance services, however, utilizing a local contractor is more cost 
effective.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

These services will be paid out of the Solid Waste Budget, 045700, Object Code 5265 Special and Professional 
Services
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Chuck Stewart Contract - 2022
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 5/19/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2022
Teresa Elliott Approved - 5/20/2022
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/20/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/23/2022
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/24/2022



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 1     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 
AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 
  

INTRODUCTION 

 
 WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for  
the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from                           to                                      
unless sooner terminated as provided below.  

3. CONSIDERATION. 

 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  
 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  
 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars  



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 2     05/21/2019 

($______________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     05/21/2019 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 

 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 

http://www.sam.gov/


 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     05/21/2019 

 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     05/21/2019 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     05/21/2019 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 
(22) (Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
                                                                          Department 
                                                                          Address 
                                                                          City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Address  
                                                                          City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

  ////       //// 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 7     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 

 IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS 
THIS                DAY OF                                           ,         . 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:                                                                   By:                                            

  Signature                      Signature 
 
 _________________________________  _______________________________________       
  Print or Type Name              Print or Type Name  
 
Dated:  ___________________    Dated:          
       
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
                                                                                      
  
County Counsel  
 
_________________________________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                           
Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                                      
County Risk Manager 
 
 
  
 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 8     05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 TERM: 

           FROM:                          TO:       

 SCOPE OF WORK: 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 9     05/21/2019 

 ATTACHMENT B 

  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 

TERM: 

   FROM:                              TO:    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 10     05/21/2019 

 

ATTACHMENT  C 

 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

TERM: 

 

   FROM:                              TO:     

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Office of the Sheriff
 
SUBJECT:  Accept bid for duty pistols
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Proforce Law Enforcement of (Prescott, AZ) the successful bidder for sixty (60) Glock 
service pistols per Bid No. 2022-01 Glocks; and B) authorize the purchase of Sixty (60) Glock Duty Pistols from 
Proforce Law Enforcement of (Prescott, AZ) in an amount not to exceed $27,716.00. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Sheriff's Office is in need of replacing our issued Glock duty pistols. Our current fleet of Glock pistols 
averages about 20 years of time in service, which far exceeds industry standards for replacement.

We received one bid for this project:
ProForce Law Enforcement $27,715.94
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the purchase and put off the replacement of duty pistols for another 
year. This option is not recommended as our current fleet of Glock pistols has reached the end of its service life 
and would need numerous replacement parts to keep them reliable.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Funding is available in the Sheriff's General 022700, in the Personal and Safety Equipment object code (5112). 
COPS fund (500103) reimbursement, no general funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid 2022-01 - Glocks
 
APPROVALS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 5/19/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2022
Riannah Reade Approved - 5/19/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/23/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/23/2022
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/23/2022
Eric Pritchard Final Approval - 5/24/2022





















County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Supervisor Matt Kingsley
 
SUBJECT:  Letter Supporting Supervisor Kingsley's Reappointment to the BLM Central California Resource 
Advisory Council
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the letter supporting the reappointment of Fifth District Supervisor Matt Kingsley to the 
Bureau of Land Management Central California Resource Advisory Council, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The BLM's Central California Resource Advisory Council is one of three advisory councils in the state. They are 
charged with helping BLM land managers receive varying perspectives in order to achieve their mission of 
managing the public lands for multiple uses.

The Central California RAC, which advises BLM officials in the Bakersfield, Bishop, Central Coast, Mother Lode, 
and Ukiah field offices, is comprised of 12 members representing a balance of public land resources and users in 
the following categories: conservationists, ranchers, outdoor recreationists, state and local government officials, 
tribal officials and academics. 

Supervisor Kingsley has served on the Central California RAC since 2013. He is now seeking reappointment and 
requests a letter of support from the Board of Supervisors. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose not to approve the letter of support, but this is not recommended as Supervisor Kingsley 
brings institutional knowledge to the position as well as continuity for Inyo County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
BLM
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. RAC Reappointment Support Letter 2022
2. RAC Appointment Support Letter 2013
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/1/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/1/2022
Matt Kingsley Final Approval - 6/1/2022



 

June 1, 2022

Deb Haaland 
Secretary of the Interior 
Department of the Interior 
1849 C Street N.W. 
Washington, DC 20240

SUBJECT: REAPPOINTMENT OF SUPERVISOR MATT KINGSLEY TO THE BUREAU OF 
LAND MANAGEMENT'S RESOURCE ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR CALIFORNIA

Dear Honorable Haaland: 

The Inyo County Board of Supervisors continues to support Supervisor Matt Kingsley's participation in the 
Bureau of Land Management's Resource Advisory Council for the California jurisdiction. On behalf of the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I am writing to ask that you renew Supervisor Kingsley's appointment to 
the RAC. 

Prior to being elected Supervisor of Inyo County's Fifth Supervisorial District, Matt had a long and 
distinguished fire management career with the U.S. Forest Service and BLM. This extensive public land use 
management experience has served him, the RAC, and the BLM well since his appointment to the RAC in 
2013. Reappointing Matt to the RAC will ensure continuity of excellence as he serves his third consecutive 
four-year term for the Fifth District. 

As a county that has over 98% of its land owned by public agencies, how those lands are governed is very 
important to our constituency. Ensuring that public lands are managed for the benefit of the people who live 
near, and recreate on our public lands is vital to the overall well-being of Inyo County. We depend on these 
vast public lands in the County to provide jobs and support the local economy, as well as provide unparalleled 
recreational opportunities for the millions of people who visit the Eastern Sierra each year. We believe that our 
constituents are some of the best stewards of our public lands because of the community's dependency on the 
uses of those lands, and Supervisor Kingsley is a fine representative of our constituents. 

The Inyo County Board of Supervisors believes it will be of benefit to not only the County and the state, but 
also the BLM and the nation, to have Supervisor Kingsley reappointed to the BLM RAC for California. 

Thank you for your consideration.

Chairperson Dan Totheroh
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

MEMBERS  OF THE  BOARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF GRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI    
JENNIFER  ROESER
MATT  KINGSLEY     

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board

DARCY ELLIS
Assistant Clerk of the Board

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us



 

February 26, 2013

Mr. Ken Salazar
Secretary of the Interior
Department of the Interior
1849 C Street N.W.
Washington, DC  20240

Dear Secretary Salazar:

The Inyo County Board of Supervisors is pleased to support the appointment of Inyo County Fifth 
District Supervisor Matt Kingsley to the Bureau of Land Management Resource Advisory Council 
(RAC) for the California jurisdiction.  Supervisor Kingsley is a recently elected District Supervisor in 
Inyo County and prior to that he had a long and distinguished career with the U.S. Forest Service in 
its Fire Management Division.  Because of his extensive experience in public land use management, 
he has a breadth and depth of knowledge of public land use issues that Inyo County believes will be 
extremely beneficial to the BLM and feel that Supervisor Kingsley is ideally suited to serve on the 
RAC. 

As a County that has over 98% of its lands owned by public agencies, the governance of those 
lands is very important to our constituency.   Ensuring that the public lands are managed for the 
benefit of the people who live and recreate on our public lands is vital to the overall well being of 
Inyo County.   We depend on the vast amount of public lands in our area to help support our 
County’s economic stability, provide jobs for many of our residents, and offer unique recreational 
opportunities for the millions of people who visit the Eastern Sierra annually.  We believe that those 
who live in Inyo County are some of the best stewards of our public lands because of our 
dependency on and for the protection of uses on those public lands.  

Therefore, we believe that it will be very beneficial to have Supervisor Kingsley, who has both the 
vast experience in public land management and who serves as a local public official, appointed to 
the BLM’s RAC.  The Inyo County Board of Supervisors is, once again, pleased to support and 
request that you appoint Supervisor Matt Kingsley to the Bureau of Land Management Resource 
Advisory Council (RAC) for the California jurisdiction. 

Sincerely,

Supervisor Linda Arcularius, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

MEMBERS  OF  THE    BOARD
LINDA  ARCULARIUS

JEFF GRIFFITHS
RICK PUCCI    

MARK  TILLEMANS             
MATT  KINGSLEY     

KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO      
Clerk of the Board

PATRICIA  GUNSOLLEY  
Assistant Clerk  of  the  Board

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. BOX  N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373    FAX  (760) 878-2241

e-mail: pgunsolley@inyocounty.us



County of Inyo

District Attorney
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Tom Hardy
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County District Attorney's Military Equipment Policy
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of proposed ordinance titled, "An Ordinance of the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors Adopting the Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military Equipment Pursuant to 
AB 481," and set enactment for Tuesday, June 14 in the Board of Supervisors Chambers, Independence. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
AB 481 from the 2021 Legislative session requires certain law enforcement agencies which acquire or use 
certain "military equipment" to obtain approval from their applicable governing body. District Attorneys are 
included in the list of agencies and offices required to comply with AB 481. AB 481 provides specific definitions of 
items considered "military equipment". While the District Attorney is a Constitutionally independent officer, the 
Board of Supervisors maintains budgetary authority over expenditures of the District Attorney, and the District 
Attorney believes that this Board, pursuant to the terms of AB 481, must review and approve (by ordinance) the 
District Attorney's "military equipment" policy. At this time, the only "military equipment" owned by the District 
Attorney's office are three patrol rifles and related ammunition. These rifles are assigned to DA Investigators for 
use in potential high risk law enforcement operations. The District Attorney does not plan to acquire any new or 
additional "military equipment".

In seeking the approval of the governing body, a law enforcement agency shall submit a proposed military 
equipment use policy to the governing body and make those documents available on the law enforcement 
agency’s internet website at least 30 days prior to any public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue. 
Following the requisite 30-day posting, the Board must consider approval of an ordinance adopting that policy at 
a noticed public meeting. Accordingly, the Inyo County District Attorney's Office submitted its Policy to the Board 
at the April 26, 2022 Board meeting and subsequently posted the policy on it's internet website for the required 
30 days.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
None.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Delaying the process will affect the County's ability to use the necessary equipment.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None.
 
FINANCING:
No fiscal impact.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proposed Ordinance Adopting DA Military Equipment Policy
 
APPROVALS:
Maureen McVicker Created/Initiated - 5/23/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/23/2022
Maureen McVicker Approved - 5/23/2022
Keri Oney Approved - 5/23/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 5/31/2022
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/31/2022
Tom Hardy Final Approval - 5/31/2022



1

ORDINANCE NO. -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTING 
THE INYO COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY POLICY REGARDING 

MILITARY EQUIPMENT PURSUANT TO AB 481 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 481 was signed into law on September 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the legislative intent behind AB 481 is to increase the public 
transparency by which California law enforcement agencies fund, acquire, and/or use military 
equipment, as defined under AB 481; and

WHEREAS, AB 481 requires California law enforcement agencies to obtain approval 
of their applicable governing body, by adoption of a military equipment use policy, prior to 
taking certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, and/or use of military equipment; 
and

WHEREAS, AB 481 requires California law enforcement agencies that receive 
approval for a military equipment use policy to submit to the applicable governing body an 
annual military equipment report for each type of military equipment approved by the 
governing body within one year of approval, and annually thereafter so long as the military 
equipment is available for use; and

WHEREAS, AB 481 defines law enforcement agencies to include a district attorney’s 
office; and

WHEREAS, AB 481 requires the applicable governing body of the California law 
enforcement agency to annually review the military equipment use policy to either disapprove 
a renewal of the authorization of a type of military equipment or amend the military 
equipment use policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military Equipment 
(“Policy”), attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, has been 
prepared by the Inyo County District Attorney as its proposed military equipment use policy; 
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 7071(b), the Policy was submitted 
to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors on April 26, 2022 and posted on the District 
Attorney’s internet website for 30 days thereafter; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Section 7071(c), a duly noticed public meeting 
was conducted by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors on June 7, 2022, to consider the 
Policy. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as 
follows:



2

SECTION I.  
Based on the above recitals, which are incorporated herein as findings, and the 

information provided to the Board at its June 7, 2022 meeting, the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors determines that the Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military 
Equipment complies with the standards for approval under Government Code section 7071:

1. The identified military equipment is necessary because there is no reasonable 
alternative that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety. 

2. The Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military Equipment will 
safeguard the public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties. 

3. The purchase and use of the identified military equipment is reasonably cost 
effective compared to available alternatives that can achieve the same objective of 
officer and civilian safety. 

4. All military equipment use prior to the adoption of the above-mentioned policy 
complied with applicable Department policy in effect at that time, and adoption of 
the policy will ensure future compliance.

SECTION II:
The Inyo County District Attorney Policy Regarding Military Equipment 

(Exhibit A), is hereby approved and adopted. 

SECTION III:   EFFECTIVE DATE
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 

adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this Ordinance 
shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124.  The Clerk of the Board is 
hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with the names of the 
Board members voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS __ DAY OF ________, 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

_______________________________
Dan Totheroh, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

By:______________________________________



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors meeting minutes
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of May 17, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/27/2022
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 5/27/2022



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - Cannabis
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Nathan Reade
 
SUBJECT:  Cosideration of Commercial Cannabis Business Applications
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on the consideration of county commercial cannabis business 
licenses for cultivation classification licenses in cannabis zones 4 and 5G; B) conditionally approve those 
applications that exceeded the 80% minimum scoring threshold as set forth in Inyo County Code section 
5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of licenses contingent on the application paying the fees established by your 
board as well as payment of all other required fees and taxes; and C) deny those applications that failed to meet 
the 80% minimum scoring requirement and authorize final letters of rejection.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Commercial Cannabis Permit Office has received several applications for licenses in recent months.  Staff 
has been working with the applicants since that time to ensure applications are complete while also compiling 
scoring for these applications.  At this time, there are two applications that staff is ready to make 
recommendations on to your board.  Applications were scored on a point system pursuant to Inyo County Code. 
 The following criteria were considered:

 Adequacy of the security plan;
 Adequacy of the operations plan;
 Appropriateness of the proposed site;
 Proposed measures to mitigate potential negative impacts to the community;
 Residency;
 Community benefit plan;
 Any prior or existing operation of a commercial cannabis business subject to Inyo County Code chapter 

5.40

Results for the scoring of these two licenses are outlined below.

Applicant Result
Glacier Fed Farms 85%
The Tree Farm 80%

Note that the maximum score for application types that include a cultivation component is 1,580, and for all other 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

types is 1,370.

Inyo County code section 5.40.090(H) requires that a cannabis license application receives a minimum score of 
80% to qualify for a license to be issued.   
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to adjust scoring to change the results of the staff recommendation or decide to deny 
all applications.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
If the staff's recommendation is confirmed by your Board, annual fees of $8,850 would be collected on each 
license.  Future tax revenues would also be realized by the county as the businesses begin to operate.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. June 2022 License Availablity
2. Glacier Fed Farms Final Scoring BOS
3. Tree Farm Final Scoring BOS
4. Tree Farm Glacier Fed Maps
 
APPROVALS:
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 5/26/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/26/2022
Nathan Reade Approved - 5/31/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/1/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/1/2022



*Currently closed for review of applications.

Zone Major Communities Cultivation Manufacturing
Level 1

Manufacturing
Level 2 Testing Retail

Non-storefront 
Retail Distributor Microbusiness

1
Round Valley, 

Mustang Mesa, Dixon 
Lane, Meadowcreek

2 1 0 1 0 1* 1 1

2 Laws 2 2 1 0 1 1 1

3 West Bishop No Licenses Authorized in Zone 3

4
Wilkerson, 
Big Pine, 

Independence
2 1 0 0 0 1 1 1

5A Lone Pine, Alabama 
Hills 2 1 0 1 0 1 1 1

5B Olancha, Cartago No Licenses Authorized in Zone 5B

5C
W. Sage Flat Road, 

Coso Junction, 
Pearsonville

2 1 0 1 1 2 1 2

5D Keeler, Darwin 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 1

5E Trona Area, 
Homewood Canyon 5 2 1 1 1 1 2 0

5F Tecopa 10 5 1 1 1 2 2

5G
Stewart Valley, 
Charleston View, 

Sandy Valley

4* 
(less than 5,000 

square feet)

8
(Greater than 

5,000 square feet)
5 1 0 0 1 5

License Type All Cultivation All Manufacturing Testing Retailer Non-storefront 
Retail Distributor Microbusiness

Total Number 39 20 7 3 9 11 14

COUNTY OF INYO
COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE

207 WEST SOUTH STREET
BISHOP, CA 93514
760.873.7860



1 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE 
207 WEST SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 
760.873.7860 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT APPLICATION SCORING SHEET

Application Version:       
 Initial Application    Revised Application  

Business Name: Date Received: 

Section 1 – License Type and Status 
Incomplete   Complete 

Notes:

Section 2 – Contact Information 
  Complete Incomplete 

Notes:

Section 3 – Location Information and Zoning Conformity 
   Complete Incomplete 

Notes:

Sections 4 – 9 Scoring 

Section 
4 

Section 
5 

Section 
6 

Section 
7 

Section 
8 

Section 
9 Total Application Score 

Review Panel 
Scoring 

Weight Assigned to 
Section Grand Total Application Score 

Score After Section 
Weighting 

*The weight of each section may be determined by Board of Supervisors in open session, independent and without
knowledge of the scoring criteria assigned to each application.



2 
 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT APPLICATION SCORING SHEET (CONTINUED) 

 
The following sections will be scored on merit and when applicable, relative to other applicants for the same license type(s) 
in the same zones.  Each question will have a point value range listed, with higher scores assigned to better responses.   
 
SECTION 4 – SECURITY PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your security plan to this application as “Attachment 4”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Describe any video surveillance system(s) that will be used on site and specify the manufacturer and model of 
each.  Also include what areas will be under this surveillance and length of time that recordings will be archived 
and available, and any other pertinent information. 

2. Describe any alarm systems that you intend to use including manufacturer, model, and service provider if 
applicable. 

3. Describe how cash on premises will be secured. 
4. Describe any security fencing or other perimeter security methods that will be used on site including dimensions and 

materials used. 
5. If any security personnel are to be used, explain how personnel are to be used and include number of personnel 

and how personnel will be trained/certified.  If security is provided by a contractor, include name and contact 
information for the company. 

6. Describe facility lighting and explain how it will help provide security, taking into account maintaining consistency 
with Inyo County General Plan requirements for lighting. 

7. Describe any other security measures not covered by the previous sections. 
 
 

Section 4 – Security Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Surveillance system adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

2. Alarm system adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

3. Cash security (Sheriff) 0-25  

4. Perimeter/security fencing adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

5. Security personnel use and training (Sheriff) 0-25  

6. Security lighting adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

7. Additional security measures (Sheriff) 0-25  

TOTAL 0-175  

 

Notes: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

SECTION 5 – OPERATIONS PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your operations plan to this application as “Attachment 5”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Description of products and/or services to be provided. 
2. If any improvements other construction are proposed, describe this activity and identify the type of permits 

needed. 
3. Describe the measures/equipment/software your business will use to ensure California Track and Trace System 

compliance. 
4. Provide a detailed list of any toxic or flammable materials, pesticides, fertilizers or other materials that may be 

used by the business.  Also describe how these materials will be stored to maintain security or safety.  Attach any 
applicable permits. 

5. Provide a detailed description of how cannabis waste will be disposed of including but not limited to organic 
waste produced by cultivation and harvesting activities, manufacturing waste, or waste produced by retail 
establishments that contain, or have contained, cannabis and/or cannabis products. 

6. List equipment that will be used to measure or weight cannabis products for sale.  If weighmaster laws apply to 
your business, indicate how you will conform to state laws and regulations. 

7. Will cannabis food products be produced on site?  If so, explain how this will occur and with what equipment. 
8. Provide a three year pro-forma statement. 

 

Section 5 – Operations Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Adequacy of improvements and permit status 0-40  

2. Track and Trace compliance system adequacy 0-40  

3. Hazardous materials (EH and Ag) 0-40  

4. Storage safety and security (EH and Ag) 0-40  

5. Waste disposal plan adequacy (EH and Ag) 0-40  

6. Adequacy of weights & measures equipment and practices 0-40  

7. Adequacy of equipment to proposed activity 0-40  

            Pro Forma Included                                                                         TOTAL         0-280  

 

Notes: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

SECTION 6 - CULTIVATION PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your cultivation plan to this application as “Attachment 6”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of the existing land use and surrounding land uses (e.g. residential, commercial, 
agriculture crop production, vacant land, rangeland, etc.). 

2. Describe how pest management will be conducted including if pesticides will be used and if employees will be 
using pesticides. 

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized and the products to be used for this process. 
4. Describe any processing that will occur on site, including but not limited to, trimming, drying, curing or grading. 

 

Section 6 – Cultivation Plan (only applicable for cultivation license type) Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Surrounding land use compatibility 0-60  

2. Pest management plan adequacy 0-30  

3. Fertilizer plan adequacy 0-30  

4. Adequacy of processing equipment and facilities 0-30  

5. Overall plan adequacy 0-60  

                                                             TOTAL 0-210  

 

Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

SECTION 7 – COMMUNITY IMPACT MITIGATION MEASURES 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
To complete this section attach your community impact mitigation plan to this application as “Attachment 7”.  Provide, at a 
minimum, information that will answer the following: 

1. Describe any measures you intend to implement that would avoid impacts to fire and law enforcement agencies 
and reduce callouts from these entities. 

2. Explain what your business intends to do to minimize other types of impacts on surrounding communities.   
3. Describe any arrangements or agreements reached with local agencies, service districts, nongovernmental groups, 

or other community related groups to minimize impacts to the local community.  Attach copies of any agreements.  
If no written agreement exists, indicate what benefits you are committing to provide. 

 

Section 7 – Community Impact Mitigation Measures Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Measures to avoid impacts to fire and law enforcement 0-60  

2. Measures to reduce other impacts to surrounding communities 0-60  

3. Agency agreements or statement of commitments business would agree to 0-60  

                                                         TOTAL         0-180  

 

Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

SECTION 8 – ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach an overview covering environmental considerations to this application as “Attachment 8”.  Provide, at a minimum, 
information that will answer the following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of where water will be sourced (e.g. well, stream diversion, public water system) 
and attach any application or permit required by the California State Water Resources Control Board, 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency, County Environmental Health Department, Community Service District, etc.  
Also indicate if recycled water will be used by the proposed business and how it will be used. 

2. Provide a detailed description of how any wastewater produced will be disposed of, including manufacturing 
runoff and sewage. 

3. Provide a detailed description of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible to the outside of the business property 
and what measures will be taken to minimize impact on the public.  Also describe how these measures will meet 
Inyo County General Plan requirements. 

4. Provide a detailed description of ventilation systems used to prevent cannabis odors or control toxic fumes both 
indoor and outdoor related to the business operations, if any. 

5. Provide a detailed description any dust mitigation that will be implemented on the business site, if any. 
6. Provide a detailed description any noise mitigation that will be implemented on the business site, if any. 

 

Section 8 – Environmental Considerations Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Water source status and feasibility (EH) 0-60  

2. Wastewater management adequacy (EH) 0-60  

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with general plan and any dark skies mitigation 0-60  

4. Odor control and ventilation systems  0-60  

5. Dust control plan adequacy 0-60  

6. Noise mitigation plan adequacy 0-60  

                                                                                                                 TOTAL         0-360  

 
Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

SECTION 9 – COMMUNITY BENEFIT PLAN 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your Community Benefit Plan to this application as “Attachment 9”.  The Plan must provide, at a minimum, 
information that will answer the following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of any community benefit plan including but not limited to support of school-related 
and community-based organizations.  Attach any documentation that can be used to substantiate community 
benefit.  

2. Describe your strategies to recruit and hire local employees. 
3. Provide a complete list of jobs anticipated to be created by the proposed business, including number of jobs to be 

created, wage to be paid for each job classification, and a short description of these positions using the following 
table.  Attach additional copies if needed. 

 

Section 9 – Community Benefit Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Strength of community benefit plan 0-230  

2. Local hiring plan/strategies 0-60  

3. Wage comparison  0-60  

4. Local applicant (based on live scan residence address, ownership percentage) 0-30  

                                                                                                                 TOTAL         0-380  

 
Notes: 

 



1 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE 
207 WEST SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 
760.873.7860 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT APPLICATION SCORING SHEET

Application Version:       
 Initial Application    Revised Application  

Business Name: Date Received: 

Section 1 – License Type and Status 
Incomplete   Complete 

Notes:

Section 2 – Contact Information 
  Complete Incomplete 

Notes:

Section 3 – Location Information and Zoning Conformity 
   Complete Incomplete 

Notes:

Sections 4 – 9 Scoring 

Section 
4 

Section 
5 

Section 
6 

Section 
7 

Section 
8 

Section 
9 Total Application Score 

Review Panel 
Scoring 

Weight Assigned to 
Section Grand Total Application Score 

Score After Section 
Weighting 

*The weight of each section may be determined by Board of Supervisors in open session, independent and without
knowledge of the scoring criteria assigned to each application.



2 
 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT APPLICATION SCORING SHEET (CONTINUED) 

 
The following sections will be scored on merit and when applicable, relative to other applicants for the same license type(s) 
in the same zones.  Each question will have a point value range listed, with higher scores assigned to better responses.   
 
SECTION 4 – SECURITY PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your security plan to this application as “Attachment 4”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Describe any video surveillance system(s) that will be used on site and specify the manufacturer and model of 
each.  Also include what areas will be under this surveillance and length of time that recordings will be archived 
and available, and any other pertinent information. 

2. Describe any alarm systems that you intend to use including manufacturer, model, and service provider if 
applicable. 

3. Describe how cash on premises will be secured. 
4. Describe any security fencing or other perimeter security methods that will be used on site including dimensions and 

materials used. 
5. If any security personnel are to be used, explain how personnel are to be used and include number of personnel 

and how personnel will be trained/certified.  If security is provided by a contractor, include name and contact 
information for the company. 

6. Describe facility lighting and explain how it will help provide security, taking into account maintaining consistency 
with Inyo County General Plan requirements for lighting. 

7. Describe any other security measures not covered by the previous sections. 
 
 

Section 4 – Security Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Surveillance system adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

2. Alarm system adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

3. Cash security (Sheriff) 0-25  

4. Perimeter/security fencing adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

5. Security personnel use and training (Sheriff) 0-25  

6. Security lighting adequacy (Sheriff) 0-25  

7. Additional security measures (Sheriff) 0-25  

TOTAL 0-175  

 

Notes: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

SECTION 5 – OPERATIONS PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your operations plan to this application as “Attachment 5”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Description of products and/or services to be provided. 
2. If any improvements other construction are proposed, describe this activity and identify the type of permits 

needed. 
3. Describe the measures/equipment/software your business will use to ensure California Track and Trace System 

compliance. 
4. Provide a detailed list of any toxic or flammable materials, pesticides, fertilizers or other materials that may be 

used by the business.  Also describe how these materials will be stored to maintain security or safety.  Attach any 
applicable permits. 

5. Provide a detailed description of how cannabis waste will be disposed of including but not limited to organic 
waste produced by cultivation and harvesting activities, manufacturing waste, or waste produced by retail 
establishments that contain, or have contained, cannabis and/or cannabis products. 

6. List equipment that will be used to measure or weight cannabis products for sale.  If weighmaster laws apply to 
your business, indicate how you will conform to state laws and regulations. 

7. Will cannabis food products be produced on site?  If so, explain how this will occur and with what equipment. 
8. Provide a three year pro-forma statement. 

 

Section 5 – Operations Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Adequacy of improvements and permit status 0-40  

2. Track and Trace compliance system adequacy 0-40  

3. Hazardous materials (EH and Ag) 0-40  

4. Storage safety and security (EH and Ag) 0-40  

5. Waste disposal plan adequacy (EH and Ag) 0-40  

6. Adequacy of weights & measures equipment and practices 0-40  

7. Adequacy of equipment to proposed activity 0-40  

            Pro Forma Included                                                                         TOTAL         0-280  

 

Notes: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

SECTION 6 - CULTIVATION PLAN  
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your cultivation plan to this application as “Attachment 6”.  Provide, at a minimum, information that will answer the 
following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of the existing land use and surrounding land uses (e.g. residential, commercial, 
agriculture crop production, vacant land, rangeland, etc.). 

2. Describe how pest management will be conducted including if pesticides will be used and if employees will be 
using pesticides. 

3. Describe how crops will be fertilized and the products to be used for this process. 
4. Describe any processing that will occur on site, including but not limited to, trimming, drying, curing or grading. 

 

Section 6 – Cultivation Plan (only applicable for cultivation license type) Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Surrounding land use compatibility 0-60  

2. Pest management plan adequacy 0-30  

3. Fertilizer plan adequacy 0-30  

4. Adequacy of processing equipment and facilities 0-30  

5. Overall plan adequacy 0-60  

                                                             TOTAL 0-210  

 

Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

SECTION 7 – COMMUNITY IMPACT MITIGATION MEASURES 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
To complete this section attach your community impact mitigation plan to this application as “Attachment 7”.  Provide, at a 
minimum, information that will answer the following: 

1. Describe any measures you intend to implement that would avoid impacts to fire and law enforcement agencies 
and reduce callouts from these entities. 

2. Explain what your business intends to do to minimize other types of impacts on surrounding communities.   
3. Describe any arrangements or agreements reached with local agencies, service districts, nongovernmental groups, 

or other community related groups to minimize impacts to the local community.  Attach copies of any agreements.  
If no written agreement exists, indicate what benefits you are committing to provide. 

 

Section 7 – Community Impact Mitigation Measures Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Measures to avoid impacts to fire and law enforcement 0-60  

2. Measures to reduce other impacts to surrounding communities 0-60  

3. Agency agreements or statement of commitments business would agree to 0-60  

                                                         TOTAL         0-180  

 

Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

SECTION 8 – ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach an overview covering environmental considerations to this application as “Attachment 8”.  Provide, at a minimum, 
information that will answer the following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of where water will be sourced (e.g. well, stream diversion, public water system) 
and attach any application or permit required by the California State Water Resources Control Board, 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency, County Environmental Health Department, Community Service District, etc.  
Also indicate if recycled water will be used by the proposed business and how it will be used. 

2. Provide a detailed description of how any wastewater produced will be disposed of, including manufacturing 
runoff and sewage. 

3. Provide a detailed description of outdoor lighting or other lighting visible to the outside of the business property 
and what measures will be taken to minimize impact on the public.  Also describe how these measures will meet 
Inyo County General Plan requirements. 

4. Provide a detailed description of ventilation systems used to prevent cannabis odors or control toxic fumes both 
indoor and outdoor related to the business operations, if any. 

5. Provide a detailed description any dust mitigation that will be implemented on the business site, if any. 
6. Provide a detailed description any noise mitigation that will be implemented on the business site, if any. 

 

Section 8 – Environmental Considerations Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Water source status and feasibility (EH) 0-60  

2. Wastewater management adequacy (EH) 0-60  

3. Outdoor lighting consistency with general plan and any dark skies mitigation 0-60  

4. Odor control and ventilation systems  0-60  

5. Dust control plan adequacy 0-60  

6. Noise mitigation plan adequacy 0-60  

                                                                                                                 TOTAL         0-360  

 
Notes: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

SECTION 9 – COMMUNITY BENEFIT PLAN 
 
Application questions include the following: 
 
Attach your Community Benefit Plan to this application as “Attachment 9”.  The Plan must provide, at a minimum, 
information that will answer the following: 

1. Provide a detailed description of any community benefit plan including but not limited to support of school-related 
and community-based organizations.  Attach any documentation that can be used to substantiate community 
benefit.  

2. Describe your strategies to recruit and hire local employees. 
3. Provide a complete list of jobs anticipated to be created by the proposed business, including number of jobs to be 

created, wage to be paid for each job classification, and a short description of these positions using the following 
table.  Attach additional copies if needed. 

 

Section 9 – Community Benefit Plan Point Value Points Assigned 

1. Strength of community benefit plan 0-230  

2. Local hiring plan/strategies 0-60  

3. Wage comparison  0-60  

4. Local applicant (based on live scan residence address, ownership percentage) 0-30  

                                                                                                                 TOTAL         0-380  

 
Notes: 

 



Glacier Fed Farms Location 



Tree Farm Location 



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

WORKSHOPS AND PRESENTATIONS - NO ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Meaghan McCamman
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation on housing and development related activities. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive presentation on housing and development related activities.  
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Background
Inyo County is a wonderful place to live and do business. However, like the rest of California, Inyo County suffers 
from a lack of housing options relative to growing demand. The lack of housing makes renting and 
homeownership expensive, makes it difficult to recruit and retain employees, and generally depresses economic 
development.

By April 30, 2029, the State has estimated that the unincorporated County will need a minimum of 205 new 
housing units to meet existing and projected demand, with 86 of those units for households earning less than 
80% of the Area Median Income. During the eight years between 2013 and the end of 2020, there were 61 new 
houses built in the unincorporated part of the County. This is an average of approximately 7.6-units per year, all 
of which are in the “above moderate” income category.  To meet the State’s numbers, new housing development 
will have to increase substantially in the unincorporated County.  

The 2014-2018 American Community Survey (ACS) shows that there are 1,312 vacant units in the 
unincorporated County, and that 719 of those are reported as second homes for seasonal, recreational, or 
occasional use, meaning approximately 590 homes are vacant and not being used as a vacation home.  To 
effectively meet housing needs for the local population and workforce, the County must focus its policy efforts on 
facilitating new growth within and contiguous to existing communities, as well as maximizing the use of existing 
housing stock by bringing vacant or underutilized homes back onto the market.  To support these efforts, staff are 
exploring the following possibilities and seek Board direction and feedback on these opportunities.  

Identifying Land for Development
Without a sufficient supply of housing that is affordable to individuals and families along the income spectrum, 
Inyo County will not be able to reach its full potential. However, Inyo County lacks private land available for new 
development - much of the prime developable land in Inyo County is owned by the Los Angeles Department of 
Water and Power, and the majority of privately owned land that is realistically developable is already developed. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 Inyo County staff is approaching this problem by identifying parcels that are excellent candidates for residential 
development, regardless of owner; re-zoning these parcels to maximize their potential; and, in some cases, using 
grant funds to complete CEQA environmental analysis and otherwise preparing them for residential development. 
 Once this pre-development work is complete, the property may be attractive to developers for construction of 
much-needed housing.

Prime Parcels for Residential Development
Inyo County staff have identified some of the prime parcels for residential development that are located within fire 
districts; within or adjacent to water and sewer service districts; are outside of environmentally sensitive areas; 
and are vacant.  Some of these parcels were identified in the Inyo County Housing Element and represent 
enough developable land to meet our Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) of 205 units.  Others were 
identified by the Planning Department as a part of the SB 2 Vacant Lands Project and are in the process of being 
rezoned to high density and undergoing CEQA review, using grant funds acquired by the County.  All of the 
parcels represent infill in some of our highest-need areas and would make excellent candidates for development. 
 A list of staff-identified prime parcels for residential development is included in Attachment A.  (Please note that 
the “total unit capacity” number was generated by multiplying the acreage by the maximum number of units 
allowed by the current General Plan density; the numbers are estimates only).  

County Parcels
The County owns several parcels, some of which are vacant and undeveloped.  The Board could evaluate the 
possibility of divesting of County-owned property for the purpose of housing development.  The County Real 
Property Management Policy sets forth a process to be used in determining whether County-owned Real 
Property is surplus to County needs and whether such property should be sold, exchanged, leased, or developed 
through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  The Real Property Management Policy is included in 
Attachment B.  A list of vacant or potentially underutilized County parcels is included in Attachment C.
 
Technical Assistance for Developers
Four separate parties with a background in development and an interest in working on local housing have 
approached County staff for technical assistance.  These parties have expressed interest in building residential 
housing in Lone Pine, Independence, Fort Independence, Big Pine, and the unincorporated area outside of 
Bishop.  In some cases, these parties have expressed interest in partnering with the County to acquire grants in 
exchange for building affordable housing.

Developers have sought technical assistance and advice on topics such as rezoning, subdividing, utilities and 
infrastructure, and CEQA. County staff stand ready to support individuals and organizations interested in 
residential development and encourage them to reach out.  

Silver Peaks Affordable Housing Complex, Bishop
Work to develop the Silver Peaks 72-unit affordable housing complex in Bishop is ongoing.  Visionary Home 
Builders, an Affordable Housing Developer out of the San Joaquin Valley, had originally partnered with IMACA as 
the administrative co-partner on the project; with the closure of IMACA’s Housing department the interest in the 
project is in process of moving to Mammoth Lakes Housing (MLH).  

Inyo County Health and Human Services has provided $50,000 to the project to help acquire the site and fund 
pre-development, and has submitted an application for $500,000 through the No Place Like Home (NPLH) 
program that will fund 4 units in the Silver Peaks complex for Inyo County Behavioral Health clients.  Notice of 
Award is expected in June 2022.

Programs to Maintain and Enhance Access to Existing Housing Stock

Rehabilitation Assistance Program
In 2020, the County partnered with MLH using No Place Like Home Technical Assistance funding to develop 
draft program guidelines for a rehabilitation assistance program.  The program guidelines were completed in 
December, 2021.  When implemented, the Rehabilitation Assistance Program could offer grants or low- to no-



Agenda Request 
Page 3

interest loans to eligible homeowners to rehabilitate existing housing, bring housing to code, or add an accessory 
dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit.  The purpose of this program is to increase habitable dwelling 
stock in the County on already-developed privately owned parcels.  

Next steps are to identify a funding source and implement the program.  MLH has applied for a CalHOME grant 
to provide a rehabilitation and Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) loan program in Inyo County, and is awaiting 
award decision from the state office of Housing and Community Development (HCD).  Other potential sources of 
funding include Permanent Local Housing Allocation funding, Community Development Block Grant funding, or 
County funding.  Prior to applying for HCD funds, the State requires the completion of the Housing Element, as 
well as other preparatory activities. Downsides to using HCD funding sources is that the programs would likely be 
restricted to specific types of low-income households, may include onerous operational requirements, and may 
restrict the types of eligible improvements.

The parameters required by the funding source may determine specific elements of the rehabilitation program, 
but the program guidelines are written to serve as a menu that can be tweaked to provide a wide variety of 
options, depending on funding source requirements as well as Board preference.  Some key decision-points 
include:

•    Eligible Improvements (rehabilitation, mobile homes, ADUs/JADUs)
•    Type of Funding (Below Market Interest Rate, Deferred Payment, Grant)
•    Target Population/Geography
•    Income requirements of owner/investor/tenant
•    Maximum Funding Amount
•    Rent Limitations/Deed Restrictions

Down Payment Assistance Program
In 2007, Inyo County used funding from the HCD CalHOME program to provide first time homebuyer down 
payment assistance.  The program offered assistance in the form of deferred payment “silent” second priority 
loans as “gap” financing toward the purchase and closing costs of affordable housing units that will be occupied 
by the homebuyers.  The program was limited to households at or below 80% of the Area Median Income.  

In the last year, two $200,000 loans have been repaid, creating a balance of $400,000 that can be reinvested into 
CalHOME programs.  Under the CalHOME guidelines, these repaid funds can be utilized for tenant-based rental 
assistance, owner-occupied rehabilitation, or first-time homebuyer assistance.  All activities must benefit low-
income renters or owners.  With the success of the first round of the 2007 program, staff recommends reinvesting 
the funds into down payment assistance.

ADU Assistance Program
With such limited land available for development, a key strategy for additional housing capacity is through infill in 
previously developed lots.  Encouraging local homeowners to build ADUs and Junior Accessory Dwelling Units 
(JADUs) and rent them out plays a dual purpose in making homeownership more affordable for the owner, and 
providing additional units.  One popular program for expanding the use of ADUs that has been enacted in other 
municipalities, including Los Angeles, San Diego, and the City of Encinitas, is to pre-approve ADU plans in order 
to streamline, simplify, and lower the cost of adding ADUs for the homeowner.  Inyo County could consider a 
similar program to provide pre-approved ADU architectural plans, though a variety of plans would likely be 
required in order to account for the County’s varied geographic landscape.

Staff Recommendation
At this time staff is seeking to facilitate Board discussion on housing activities and receive possible direction on 
priorities and areas of interest.  This update is the first of what we hope will be regular conversations with the 
Board on housing-related activities.  

The County currently has $200,000 budgeted for housing-related activities and the Board has discussed 
allocating some additional American Rescue Plan Act funds for housing programs.  In addition, there is $400,000 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

in repaid CalHOME loans for down payment assistance that could be used to re-seed the Down Payment 
Assistance Program.  

Staff recommends prioritizing the re-start of the CalHOME Down Payment Assistance Program because funds 
are available, as well as already-written guidelines from the 2007 program that could be updated.  

In addition, staff recommends that the Board consider investing in an ADU Assistance Program that provides pre-
approved ADU plans for homeowners interested in building an additional unit on their property.  Every residential 
lot in the state is allowed to have one ADU and one JADU by right.  These ADU Assistance programs require 
minimal ongoing administration and have proven popular in other jurisdictions.  

Staff recommends waiting on the launch of a Rehabilitation Assistance Program because state funding sources 
for the program may be available in the next few months.
 
Finally, staff recommends that the Board consider bringing in a consultant who can help the County develop a 
strategy to incentivize and finance housing development along the entire income spectrum.  A consultant with 
expertise in finance could help the County explore ways to build upon local investment through a local housing 
trust fund, shared equity homeownership models, and other financing programs that could have concrete impacts 
on development in Inyo County and help meet the obligations of the Housing Element.  

Staff also seeks feedback on the proposed Priority Housing Parcels for Development in Attachment A, and 
whether there is interest in pursuing the release of DWP lands and/or County lands for development.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could decide not to discuss the housing update or provide direction to staff.  This is not 
recommended, as understanding the Board's priorities will help staff forward housing programs quickly and 
efficiently. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Planning Department, City of Bishop, Mammoth Lakes Housing
 
FINANCING:
$200,000 in housing funds is currently budgeted in the Economic Development budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Attachment A Priority Housing Parcels 
2. Attachment B Real Property Management Policy 
3. Attachment C County Owned Parcels
 
APPROVALS:
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 5/25/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/27/2022
Leslie Chapman Approved - 6/2/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/2/2022
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 6/2/2022



APN Parcel Name Owner Parcel Size 
005-072-24 County Road Yard/160 N. Lone Pine Ave County 0.24 acres
005-072-07 County Road Yard 2/N. Hay St. County .17 acres
005-072-06 DWP/Contiguous to Road Yard/N. Hay St. DWP .17 acres
005-072-30 DWP/Contiguous to Road Yard/300 Mandich St. DWP .20 acres 
002-160-08 Mazourka Canyon DWP 15.9 acres
008-190-01 East South Street DWP 5.2 acres
008-240-02 Jay Street DWP DWP 3.7 acres
008-240-01 Jay Street County County 5.7 acres
008-240-03 Bishop Road Yard County 1 acre
001-174-06 Old County Services Building/South Street County .29 acres
003-151-16 Big Pine/Poplar and Center DWP 1.58 acres
004-160-05 Bartell Rd/Big Pine DWP 3.12 acres



Community LTWA Area Zoning & Land Use Designation 
Lone Pine N/A R3/ Residential High Density
Lone Pine N/A R3/ Residential High Density
Lone Pine NO R3/ Residential High Density
Lone Pine NO R3/ Residential High Density
Independence YES LTWA R3/Residential Medium Density
Bishop YES LTWA R3/ Residential High Density
Bishop YES LTWA Central Business District
Bishop N/A Central Business District
Bishop N/A Public/ would require a zone change
Bishop N/A C1 (general commercial)/ would require a zone change
Big Pine YES LTWA R2/RMH No Planning changes required
Big Pine YES LTWA R3/ Residential High Density



Total unit capacity
3 Dwelling Units
2 Dwelling Units
2 Dwelling Units
3 Dwelling Units
238 Dwelling Units
126 Dwelling Units
55 Dwelling Units
86 Dwelling Units
N/A; Up to 15 @ R3 
N/A; up to 10 @ R3
23 Dwelling Units
47 Dwelling Units



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 1 of 12 
 

 

COUNTY OF INYO 
REAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT POLICY 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. Purpose 
The intent and purpose of this Policy (“Policy”) is to establish uniform principles to guide 
actions by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors (“Board”) related to the management, 
disposition and sale of County-owned Real Property, and the acquisition thereof. The 
Policy sets forth the process to be used in determining whether County-owned Real 
Property is surplus to County needs and whether such property should be sold, exchanged, 
leased, or developed through a Request For Proposal (RFP) process. The Policy also 
establishes the procedures to be used in the process of selling, exchanging, developing 
through RFP, or leasing of County-owned Real Property. 

B. Prohibition of Interest in the Disposition of Surplus Property 
Inyo County employees, representatives, consultants, and agents shall comply with all 
applicable County and State conflict of interest laws and policies in the disposition of 
surplus property.  

II. POLICY STATEMENT 
 

Over many years the County of Inyo (County) has obtained various parcels of land that may not be 
required or suitable for the public's benefit. If the County subsequently determines that a 
property/properties are no longer required for a public purpose, it may sell, exchange, develop 
using the RFP-process provided for by law, or lease such real property or interest therein in the 
manner and upon the terms, standards, and conditions established herein and approved by the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors. All sales of property will be made in exchange for payment in 
cash; exchange for other lands that may be used for a public purpose; or, other value as 
determined by the Board. The Board will obtain appraised fair market value for any surplus real 
property offered for sale, except that less than fair market value may be accepted if it is 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 2 of 12 
 

 

determined to be in the County's best interest by the Board to sell the property for a negotiated 
amount that is subsequently approved by the Board by 4/5ths vote. 

III. COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 
 

A. The disposal of surplus property, and the acquisition of real property should be in 
accordance with all laws that are in existence at the time of disposal or acquisition. 
 

Properties that have been determined to be surplus to the County by the Board 
may be disposed of according to state law, which is summarized in Attachment A. 

 

B. Sale to Public Entity 
First consideration for properties determined to be surplus to the County shall be sold or 
traded to another public entity for public purposes in accordance with Government Code 
§§ 54220 et seq. Prior to disposing of any potential surplus real property, a written offer 
will be made to sell or lease the property to public agencies for the purpose of developing 
low and moderate income housing, parks and recreational facilities, schools, or other 
public purposes. The offer to sell or lease the property to a public entity will be exclusive 
for a period of sixty (60) days. In the event more than one public entity responds, first 
priority shall be given to the public entity which agrees to use the site for low- to 
moderate-income housing, except that first priority shall be given to a public entity which 
agrees to use the site for park or recreational purposes if the surplus property is already 
being used and will continue to be used for park or recreational purposes, or if the surplus 
property is designated for park and recreational use in the local general plan and will be 
developed for that purpose. The next priority will be given to the public entity that makes 
the first offer to purchase the property for fair market value as established by the Board.  
 

C. Sale by Competitive Sealed Bid 
If no public entity accepts the County’s offer to sell or lease the surplus property within 
sixty (60) days, then the County may, at its sole discretion, dispose of the property to the 
general public by sealed bid in the manner prescribed in Government Code §§ 25520, 
25521, 25528, 25530, 25531, 25533 and 25534 et seq. These sections provide for 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 3 of 12 
 

 

sealed bids, require the County to provide additional notice of the sale to the public 
through posting and advertising, allow the Board to reject any proposal and withdraw 
the property from sale, and allow for oral bids to be received at the public meeting 
provided that any oral bid be five percent higher than the highest written bid.  
 

D. Sale by Public Auction 
The County may also dispose of property to the general public by public auction and in 
the manner prescribed in Government Code § 25363 et seq. This method authorizes 
the sale of property and requires that the sale be made at the courthouse door or such 
other place as the Board directs by four-fifths vote, with notice of the sale given five 
days prior, and published in a newspaper in the County or posted in three public 
places, and provided that notification has been made to those public agencies 
identified in Government Code § 54220 et seq. 
 
Each person submitting a proposal to purchase a property by sealed bid or public 
auction must submit a deposit of ten percent (10%) of the offered price at the time his 
or her proposal is submitted.  
 

E. Sale or Lease By Request for Proposals 
The Board may elect to sell surplus property via the Request For Proposals (RFP) method 
as prescribed in Article 7.5, commencing within § 25515 of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of 
Division 2 of Title 3 of the Government Code. 
 
The Board would direct the County staff to prepare an RFP for sale and development 
of surplus property in a manner consistent with the County Zoning Ordinance and the 
County’s General Plan.  
 
Upon expiration of the time during which public entities may offer to purchase the 
property, and assuming no sale of the property to any such entity is made, County staff 
will return to the Board with the proposed RFP for its consideration. If approved, the Board 
will, by a 4/5ths vote, approve the issuance of the RFP. 

The Board will adopt a resolution which, in addition to describing the particulars of the 
property and the County's vision for its development, will set a place, time and date for a 
hearing, to be held at least 60 days later, at which the Board will consider all timely 
responses to the RFP. That resolution, containing the directions on how interested persons 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 4 of 12 
 

 

could respond to the RFP, must be published in the newspaper once a week for three 
successive weeks.  

After the mandatory 60-day period for receiving responses to the RFP expires, County staff 
will review all timely responses to the RFP and prepare a recommendation for 
consideration by the County Financial Advisory Committee ("Committee") and/or the 
Board.  

At the place, date and at the time set forth in the above-described resolution for the 
Board's consideration of them, the Board will review the responses to the RFP and staff's 
recommendations. The Board will then select a successful respondent and direct staff and 
the successful respondent to meet and negotiate a final arrangement for the sale of the 
property and its subsequent development by that respondent.  

Additionally, the Board will direct the preparation of a California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) analysis of any necessary general plan amendment and zone change that, if 
approved, would allow the uses on the property contemplated in the RFP. The Inyo County 
Planning Department will, as directed by the Board, commence the CEQA review process 
for the above-described general plan amendment and zone change. 

Following the CEQA process and review period, the Inyo County Planning Commission 
("Commission") will consider the CEQA document concerning the proposed general plan 
amendment and zone change, and will consider recommending approval of those 
amendments and consider recommending certification of the CEQA document. The 
Commission will also consider making the finding required by Government Code 
§§25515.l(a) and 65402 that the proposed development of the property is consistent with 
the County's general plan.  

Once a final arrangement is worked out with the successful respondent, it must be 
memorialized in the form of an ordinance. The ordinance will be scheduled for 
consideration by the Board at the first reading noticed in accordance with Government 
Code §6066, which requires the advertisement to run once a week for two weeks.  

If the Board approves the proposed arrangement for the sale and development of 
property, it will adopt the ordinance at a subsequent public hearing. The ordinance and 
the agreement will not go into effect for 30 days, during which time it could be challenged 
via a citizen referendum. During this 30-day period, County staff will prepare all 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 5 of 12 
 

 

documents, and make the arrangements necessary to consummate the sale and ensure 
that the property will be used in accordance with the RFP and the approving ordinance; 
this will include retaining a title company to prepare a title report, opening escrow, and 
preparing the deed that will be used to transfer title to the property.  

Once the 30-day referendum period expires, the sale of the property will be consummated 
(i.e./e.g. the purchase price will be paid to the County or deposited into the escrow, the 
deed will be signed and recorded, any agreements respecting the use/development of the 
property will be signed, etc.).  

Thereafter, the Planning Director will monitor the development and use of the property to 
ensure that the terms of the sale and development agreement are adhered to. This would 
carry on indefinitely, or if the restrictions on the use of the property are of limited 
duration, until that time expires.  

If the surplus property is not subsequently sold as a result of the sealed bid, public auction 
or RFP process, the property may be sold to the party who makes the highest reasonable 
offer to purchase the property that is acceptable to the Board. 

IV. EXCHANGE, DISPOSAL, OR LEASE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY 
 

County property for which there is not an immediate or foreseeable public purpose should be 
made available for private ownership. For the purposes of this Policy, public purpose will be 
determined by the Board in accordance with the law. 

A. Purpose 
1. To facilitate the identification of County Property for which there is not an immediate 

or foreseeable public purpose, no less frequently than once every three years the 
County shall review its inventory of real property and identify holdings that could be 
designated as surplus property.  

2. The review identified in Section IV.A.1. shall be initiated by the County Administrative 
Officer (CAO) in consultation with, and assistance from other County Departments. The 
CAO shall prepare an inventory of all real property owned by the County, consistent 
with the requirement of Section IV.A.3., and present the inventory to the Committee 
for review and recommendation to the Board.  



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 6 of 12 
 

 

3. The inventory of County-owned property shall include the Assessor’s Parcel Number, 
legal description and a map showing the location of the property and a description of 
its current use. If available, the most recent appraised fair market value of the 
property, as well any indication of the County’s water and/or mineral rights, should be 
identified in the inventory. The inventory should identify those properties for which 
there is a current or foreseeable public purpose, and those properties recommended 
for consideration as surplus. In addition, the CAO may, in preparing the inventory, 
make recommendations relative to the manner in which the property should be 
disposed.  

4. The Committee shall review the inventory and make recommendations to the Board 
regarding County-owned property that could be designated as surplus, whether 
mineral and water rights should be retained, and the manner in which the surplus 
property should be disposed. In the event the Committee does not reach a unanimous 
recommendation, both the majority and minority Committee recommendations may 
be forwarded to the Board. Any recommendation forwarded to the Board shall include 
with the list a checklist, developed by the Committee, which includes the reasons for 
the Committee’s recommendation for exchange, sale or lease of County owned 
property. The checklist, at a minimum, will include access consideration, infrastructure 
availability, community nee, financial return to the County, potential highest and best 
use, and land use designations. 

5. The Board shall consider the inventory of County-owned property, and the 
Committee’s recommendations for the designation of surplus property and the 
manner of disposal at a public meeting duly noticed by advertisement in a local 
newspaper once a week for two weeks. 

6. The Board, Committee, or County staff may initiate the consideration of the 
designation of a specific County-owned property as surplus property independent of 
the inventory process described herein provided that all other provisions of this Policy 
are implemented. 
 

B. Manner of Disposal of Surplus Property 
In determining the manner in which surplus property might be disposed, the Committee 
and the Board shall consider the following: 
 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 7 of 12 
 

 

1. The manner of disposal that will maximize the financial return to the County. In 
evaluating the financial return to the County, the financial return generated from the 
outright sale of the property shall be weighed against the cost of acquiring land and/or 
facilities, using the methods described in Section IV.B.2. and 3. below to meet a public 
purpose. 

2. The possibility of exchanging the County-owned property for real property owned by 
other public agencies and private properties for public purpose. 

3. Opportunities to use the Request For Proposal process, described in Section III.F., to 
meet a public purpose through the sale or lease of property to private interests. 

4. County –owned real property for which there is a possible future public purpose 
should be leased in a manner that provides the highest and best use of the land and 
maximizes the financial return to the County. Any lease will include at a minimum a 
standard escalation clause pertaining to the lease payment and terms for 
renegotiations. 
 

C. Use of Proceeds 
Proceeds realized from the sale of County-owned property disposed in accordance with 
this Policy shall be used to fund one-time costs associated with the acquisition of real 
property for a public purpose, the construction or deferred maintenance of County 
property and facilities (including tenant improvements at leased properties), and other 
capital improvement projects. Proceeds realized from the sale of County-owned real 
property disposed in accordance with this Policy shall not be used to fund ongoing County 
operating expense.  
 

D. Property Research Prior to Exchange, Disposal or Lease 
Subsequent to the Board’s designation of County-owned real property as surplus, and 
prior to the disposal or lease of any County-owned surplus real property, the County shall 
do the following: 
1. Determine actual title to the property/properties and whether the subject 

property/properties hold water and mineral rights; 
2. Determine actual fair market value of the subject property/properties by independent 

appraisal; 
3. Solicit other affected County Departments for comments to the exchange, sale, or 

lease of surplus property; 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 8 of 12 
 

 

4. Identify the Zoning and determine the General Plan conformance of the subject 
property/properties; 

5. Identify whether subject property/properties are within an Alquist Priolo Study area, 
Flood Hazard Zone, Avalanche Zone, etc.  
 

E. Other Provisions of Sale 
In order to maximize the financial return to the County from the sale, exchange, disposal 
through RFP-process, or lease of County-owned surplus land in a manner consistent with 
law: 
1. Parcels will be exchanged, sold or leased on an “As Is Where Is” basis. 
2. The minimum price established for a parcel shall include the appraised value plus all 

County costs to dispose of the property. 
3. The Board will reserve the right to reject all offers at its sole discretion for the sale, 

exchange, purchase, development, or lease of any surplus property. 
4. The Board will reserve the right to cancel, for any reason whatsoever, any exchange, 

sale or lease of any parcel prior to the conveyance of title. 
5. The Board will reserve the right to place covenants, conditions, or restrictions on the 

deed for any parcel as allowed by law. 
6. The Board reserves the right at its sole discretion to approve or reject such a 

transaction based upon its determination of the prospective transferee’s ability, 
including but not limited to the financial ability, to perform as contemplated under the 
terms of the transaction. 

V. ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY  
 

A. The County may acquire real property, consistent with the provisions of state and law to 
meet an identified or foreseeable public need. This includes the acquisition of tax-
defaulted property by Agreement of Sale as legally defined. 

B. The County may object to the sale of the tax-defaulted property and apply to purchase the 
property for the express purpose of facilitating a land exchange to meet a public need 
including, for the purpose of this section, increasing the amount of privately-owned 
property near existing communities and town sites. If the County acquires a tax-defaulted 
property for the purpose of facilitating a land exchange, and the land exchange process 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 9 of 12 
 

 

has not formally commenced within two-years of the date of the County taking title to the 
property, the Board shall take immediate steps to dispose of the property in accordance 
with this Policy unless a finding is made that the property serves an immediate public 
purpose or the initiation of a land exchange is imminent. 

C. The County shall not acquire real property for the sole purpose of land speculation (e.g., 
acquiring land for the sole purpose of selling it for a profit). 

VI. DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 

• Appraised Value – The monetary value of the County-owned property as determined by 
the County, which may be based on the fair market value of the property as determined by 
an MAI appraiser employed by the County to make such determination. 

• “Cash” – U.S. currency, Bank Cashier’s Check in dollars, or Electronic Funds Transfer in 
dollars. 

• “Fair Market Value” – The price that would be paid by a knowledgeable and informed 
buyer if the property was sold on the open market. 

• “Proceeds of Sale” – The monetary amount received by the County from the disposition of 
a piece of real property net of the costs incurred by the County to dispose of the property. 

• “Public Entity” –  As referenced in Section 54222 of the Government Code and as further 
defined in Section 50079 of the California Health and Safety Code, includes any: county, 
city; duly constituted governing body of an Indian reservation; redevelopment agency or 
housing authority, as specifically defined; state agency; public district; other political 
subdivision of the state, or instrumentality thereof which is authorized to engage in or 
assist in the development or operation of housing for persons and families of low or 
moderate income.  

• “Real Property” – County owned fee simple parcels of land, mineral and water rights and 
County owned improvements thereon. 
 

 

 

 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 10 of 12 
 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

Summary of State Laws Governing the Exchange, Disposal or Lease of Inyo County 
Property 

 

The exchange, disposal or lease of those properties that have been determined to be 
surplus by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors (Board), or not needed for public purpose 
or use, may be disposed of by any of the following means: 

a. Directly to a public entity at their request without providing notice to other agencies or 
calling for a competitive bid at a price representing fair market value and upon 
determination that the public entity’s use shall be for low to moderate income housing 
purposes as described in Government Code § 54220 et seq. 

b. Directly to a public entity in accordance with Government Code § 25515.1 (a) et 
seq., which requires notification to those public agencies described in Government 
Code § 54220 et seq. offering the property for sale or trade.  
 
California Government Code § 54220 et seq. requires surplus government land to 
be first made available for housing for persons and families of low and moderate 
income of recreational or open space purposes. Surplus government land means 
land owned by an entity of the state, or any local entity that is determined to be no 
longer necessary for the entity’s use. 
 

c. Directly to the Public in the manner prescribed in Government Code § 25363 et 
seq., which authorizes the sale of property at public auction. Requiring that the sale 
be made at the courthouse door or such other place within the County as the Board 
directs by four-fifths vote, with notice of the sale given five days prior, and 
published in a newspaper in the County or posted in three public places, and 
provided that notification has been made to those public agencies identified in 
Government Code § 54220 et seq. 

d. Directly to the Public in the manner prescribed in Government Code §§25520, 
25521, 25528, 25530, 25531, 25533, and 25534 et seq. These sections provide for 
sealed bids, require the County to provide additional notice of the sale to the public 
through posting and advertising, allow the Board to reject any proposal and 
withdraw the property from sale, and allow for oral bids to be received at the 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 11 of 12 
 

 

public meeting provided that any oral bid be five percent higher than the highest 
written bid. 

e. Directly to the Public through the preparation of an RFP for its sale and/or 
development in accordance with Article 7.5, commencing within §25515 of 
Chapter 5 of Part 2 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the Government Code. 

The sales price of any surplus real property will be based on the appraised fair market value. Less 
than appraised fair market value may be accepted if it is determined to be in the County’s best 
interest to sell the property for a negotiated amount that is subsequently approved by the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors by a 4/5’s vote. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Fixed assets are items which cost $500 or more and have a life expectancy in excess of one year. 

1. Requisitions must be submitted to Purchasing. (Departments shall not independently 
purchase Fixed Assets.) 

2. Purchasing will issue a purchase order if: 
a. The item was approved in the budget or a budget amendment was made to reflect 

the budgeted amount; and 
b. The cost of the fixed asses does not exceed amount budgeted. 

3. If a Department wishes to purchase a different fixed asset in lieu of that authorized in the 
budget, a request shall be submitted to the County Administrator for approval. 

4. It is the Department Head’s responsibility to initiate the  appropriate course of action 
necessary to ensure that sufficient funds are available to make the purchase, e.g., 
submitting an Appropriation Change Request Form (object category transfer) to the 
County Administrator for approval. 

Note: If departments continually purchase fixed assets (not as a result of an emergency 
situation), the County Administrator, after trying to resolve the problem with the 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved August 7, 2007 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Real Property Management Policy 

Page 12 of 12 
 

 

Department Head, reserves the right to request (a) the Auditor-Controller to stop making 
payments for any or all fixed assets and (b) the Board of Supervisors to implement budget 
controls on the department’s entire budget.  



APN Property Type Address (street) Community Parcel Size 
004-040-07 INSTITUTIONAL PINE ST BIG PINE 0.07
003-090-01 AGRICULTURAL BAKER CREEK RD BIG PINE 19.5
003-010-01 AGRICULTURAL COUNTY RD BIG PINE 19.5
008-240-01 AGRICULTURAL FIRST ST BISHOP 5.7
001-174-06 COMMERCIAL 207 SOUTH ST BISHOP .29
029-120-14 VACANT NSF CARTAGO 1.25
016-180-04 VACANT DEEP SPRINGS DEEP SPRINGS 40
031-180-02 VACANT HWY 190 KEELER 145
005-146-05 RECREATIONAL S BREWERY ST LONE PINE .81
009-070-02 VACANT PINE CREEK RD PINE CREEK 20.7



Land Type Notes
Vacant Very small; also on a creek
Pasture Enviromental factors likely require mitigation
Pasture Enviromental factors likely require mitigation
Vacant Currently being rezoned as part of Housing Element
Vacant County Services Building City of Bishop; currently commercial zoning
Vacant Land No services
Vacant Land No services
Vacant Land No services
Vacant Land Part of LP Rodeo Grounds
Vacant Land No services



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  June 7, 2022
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Short-Term Rentals
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Receive a presentation from staff on an updated status of short-term rentals in Inyo County; discuss possible 
changes to the short-tern rental ordinance; and, provide direction to staff. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Staff updated the Board in January on the status of Short-Term Rentals in unincorporated Inyo County. Since 
then the Planning Department has received ten new applications for hosted short-term rental permits. Of these 
ten four have been granted, two are pending, one was withdrawn and three were denied. This brings the new 
grand total to eight-five permits, fifty-nine hosted and twenty-six non-hosted. The number of permit applications 
was very high in 2018 (31) and 2019 (30). The numbers slowed in 2020 (11), and in 2021 (8).

Only about a dozen of the hosted permits that were acquired before the non-hosted permit was eliminated were 
applied for to use. According to staff surveys of the applicants, most got the hosted permit just so they could get 
the non-hosted. There are 59 hosted short-term rental permits and 26 of those were obtained with non-hosted 
permits. The total of non-hosted short-term rental permits is 26 and since the County no longer allows this type of 
short-term rental there will be no more unless the code is updated.

Currently, a person may only have one property with a short-term rental permit associated with it in the County. 
 On the open space, rural residential, one-family residential, and one-family residential mobile home combined 
zones there can be two hosted rental permits, per property, (in case there is a second unit such as an ADU on 
the property), but the owner or a designated representative must be on the property during the short-term rental 
period. In the multiple-family 2-unit zone only one hosted short-term rental permit is allowed and these also must 
have the owner or designated representative on the property during the rental period.

Violations
Short-term rentals without permits and those operating in a way that are in conflict with a granted permit are 
considered zoning violations. The County contracted with Host Compliance to help track unpermitted short-term 
rentals. Planning and code enforcement staffs also receive complaints regarding short-term rentals. The county 
code enforcement officer handles all of the complaints and notifies the planning department. Presently, there are 
no short-term rental violations under review.

How many are enough?



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Staff has been asked on several occasions whether there are enough short-terms rentals in the county now and 
have even been told that there are too many in particular areas. These comments have been submitted mainly 
by people who do not like them in their neighborhood as they are perceived as degrading to the residential 
character of certain places and/or have had an unpleasant experience with one. Staff has also been informed 
that short-term rentals are taking away long-term rental opportunities in some communities (primarily Lone Pine). 
This is difficult at best to prove, but warrants some attention since the county is in need of housing and any 
program that may be hindering housing availability should be reviewed.

How many short-term rentals the County should have and where they should be allowed is a matter of policy 
direction from the Board of Supervisors and that decision should come from a review of available information. To 
do this, staff prepared an evaluation of existing housing units compared to the number of short-term rentals by 
area. The number of units available was determined with assessor data by creating a pool of parcels that have a 
dwelling unit(s) built on them and are in a zone that allows for short-term rentals. This includes: open space, rural 
residential, one-family residential, one-family residential mobile home combined, and multiple residential-2 units. 
There are a total of 4,565 housing units in the County that fit into this criteria. Presently, with the 85-short-term 
rental permits and 4,565-dwelling units, about 1.8-percent of dwelling units in the County have a short-term rental 
permit associated with them.

To further break this down by area, staff used the existing cannabis license areas to evaluate if there are 
concentrations of short-term rentals in specific areas.  Cannabis business license areas were used as they have 
proven to be effective in the allocation of cannabis business licenses and people are already familiar with them. 
Different areas can be used if the Board so chooses, for example by neighborhood or community. The 
breakdown of short-term rentals by cannabis license areas is as follows:

Area Dwelling Units Short-term Rental Permits 
(hosted & non-hosted)

Percentage

1 1,071 18 1.7
2 45 0 0
3 1,080 18 1.7
4 1,151 10 0.87
5A 671 32 4.7
5B 117 1 0.85
5C 41 0 0
5D 119 5 4.2
5E 50 0 0
5F 168 1 0.6
5G 52 0 0
TOTAL 4,565 85 1.8

*Maps attached.

Area 5A that includes Lone Pine and the Alabama Hills at 4.7-percent and 5D with Darwin and Keeler at 4.2-
percent have the highest percentages of short-term rentals in the County. The rest have percentages lower than 
the County’s overall percentage and several have no permitted short-term rentals.  

How could the number of permits be regulated?
There are several ways that the County could regulate the number of short-term rental permits. One would be to 
implement a short-term rental business license similar to the cannabis business license, where only so many per 
area would be allowed, or a decided percentage of the total dwelling units per area could also be used. A full 
county business license program could also be developed that would include short-term rentals. Determining a 
cap on the number of short-term rental permits might also be developed and applied to the landuse permitting 
process as is currently done. A specific number or percentage of permits or licenses will have to be developed for 
any of these methods to work. A limit on the number of days per year for each short-term rental could also be 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

established or the County could also decide not to allow any more short-term rental permits and leave it status 
quo with what is already approved.

Many other jurisdictions throughout the State, especially those with high visitation rates or tourist based 
economies, are grappling with the same issues and questions as Inyo County. Mono County recently put a 
moratorium on new short-term rentals. Other jurisdictions have also implemented moratoriums, while others have 
come up with caps. For example, Sonoma County is exploring a 10-percent cap; the City of Encinitas 3-percent; 
and, East Placer County in the Tahoe area a 25-percent cap. There is clearly a large range in what individual 
jurisdictions see as an appropriate amount of short-term rentals. A cap on the number of Inyo County’s short-
term rentals would likely be best designed by area since some places in the County are in much more demand 
for short-term rental use than others. This is directly related to their proximity to tourist attractions. Other areas 
might benefit from less restrictive short-term rental regulations as an economic development strategy. There is 
also a benefit to lower income homeowners and seniors to having short-term rental income. It can help offset 
mortgage and property tax costs that can, in turn, lower the odds of displacement without the concerns that many 
perceive as coming with longer term renters.

Others ideas for regulating are: imposing a limitation on how many days a year a short-term rental can be rented 
out, for example the City of San Francisco has a 90-day per year limit on short-term rentals. This could also 
include requiring that the owner live in the dwelling the rest of the year. The City of San Diego is implementing a 
lottery for their existing short-term rental permits. Inyo County could use a similar lottery system for new permits; 
again this would be based on a defined cap on the number of short-tern rentals.

With regard to the availability of housing, the County is being asked to make major changes to its zoning code 
and General Plan as part of the 6th Cycle Housing Element Update. These proposed changes will be presented 
to the Board soon, but as a preview for how this might tie into short-term rentals, some of these changes are to 
the residential zoning districts’ design standards. These would primarily to be to create smaller lot size 
requirements and reduced setbacks to entice subdivision and higher density development; an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit (ADU) promotional program, again to promote higher densities; and, by right residential use in the 
County’s Central Business Zone. For some of these changes, such as an ADU development program, short-term 
rental restrictions might be appropriate and will be part of the discussion as the Housing Element Update is 
completed.

The short-term rental program in the County overall has been successful with respect to property owners being 
able to generate income from their property along with the very few nuisance complaints they have generated. 
Losses of permanent housing is, however, a serious issue in the County and staff is seeking direction from the 
Board on how to proceed in the short-term rental evaluation and possible changes with regard to the County’s 
housing issues.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
General fund resources are utilized for this review and for the code enforcement portion of the short-term rental 
ordinance implementation. Short-term rental permits are subject to permit fees on a cost recovery basis.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Short-Term Rentals by Cannabis BL Area
 



Agenda Request 
Page 4

APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 5/31/2022
Leslie Chapman Approved - 6/2/2022
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/2/2022
John Vallejo Approved - 6/2/2022
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 6/2/2022



1,071 Dwelling Units

1,071 Dwelling Units

HWY 16
8

SIERRA

PINE CREEK
US HWY 395

ROUND VALLEY

SO
UT

H 
LA

KE

BUTTERMILK

CHALK BLUFF

DIXON

JEAN BLANC
BIRCHIM

FIS
H 

SL
OU

GH

RIVERSIDE

LA
KE

LAKE

Area 1

1,071 Dwelling Units
19 Short-term Rental Permits



WYMAN CREEK

SILVER CANYON

POLETA

COLLINS

MA
IN

WARM SPRINGS

AI
RP

OR
T

WYE

LEIGHTON

EA
ST

SI
DE

JO
E 

SM
ITH

PO
LE

TA
 LA

W
S

Area 2

45 Dwelling Units
0   Short-term Rental Permits



PA
 H

A

BA
RL

OW DIAZ

TU
 S

U

WI
NU

BA

SE
E 

VE
E

SUNSET SU
NL

AN
D

BR
OC

KM
AN

PA
 M

E

SUNRISE

MANDICH

RANCH

CAROL

LONGVIEW

NU
UM

U

HIGHLAND

SH
EP

AR
D VIS

TA

PA
YA

HU
UP

U
SIERRA VISTA

MO
UN

T T
OM

RED HILL

GLENBROOK

IRENE

WI
LD

RO
SEME

AD
OW

AUDREY

TIBEC

RICE

BROOKSIDE

SE
WA

YE

ME
SQ

UI
TE

PA
CU

SN
OW

GR
AN

DV
IEW

Area 3

1,080 Dwelling Units
18      Short-term Rental Permits



HWY 1
68

3D

US
 H

WY
 39

5

STEEL PASS

WAUCOBA SALINE

EUREKA

TINNEMAHA

COUNTY

FOOTHILL

HINES

FULLER

MAIN

OAK CREEK

US HWY 395

Area 4

1,151 Dwelling Units
10      Short-term Rental Permits



US HWY 395

MAIN

MOVIEWHITNEY PORTAL

HO
GBA

CK

HO
RS

ES
HO

E M
EA

DO
WS

GRANITE VIEW

E-
SH

A

SHAHAR

Area 5A

671 Dwelling Units
33      Short-term Rental Permits



US HWY 395

L A AQUEDUCT FALL

HWY 1
90

SH
OP

WALKER CREEK

AS
H C

RE
EK

LAKE

Area 5B

117 Dwelling Units
1     Short-term Rental Permits



US HWY 395

CACTUS FLATS

HA
IW

EE

SAGE FLATS

STERLING

US HWY 395

Area 5C

41 Dwelling Units
0     Short-term Rental Permits



HWY 190
HWY 136

OLANCHA-DARWIN

SANTA ROSA

Area 5D

119 Dwelling Units
5    Short-term Rental Permits



NADEAU

WINGATE

TRONA WILDROSE

CINDER

PANAMINT VALLEY

G2 TOWER

SL
AT

E R
AN

GE

BALLARAT

Area 5E

50 Dwelling Units
0   Short-term Rental Permits



HWY 127

NORTH

BADWATER

WEST SIDE
PETRO

WILDROSE

HARRY WADE

HWY 178

SKIDOO

HW
Y 1

78

Area 5F

168 Dwelling Units
1     Short-term Rental Permits



OLD SPANISH TRAIL
MABEL

AVE D

MESQUITE VALLEY

AVE B

LONG

BEARONABEARONA

Area 5G

52  Dwelling Units
0    Short-term Rental Permits



NonTHERN
IxyO HEALTHCARE
Drsrnrcr

150 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, California

93514
(760) 873-s81 1

NonrsEnN INyo HTITTHCARE Drsrxrcr
One Team. One Goal. Your Healtlt

Board of Directors

+ Jody Veenker,
Chair

a Mary Mae
Kilpatrick,
Vice Chair

i| Topah
Spoonhunter,
Secretary

+ Jean Turner,
Treasurer

* Robert Sharp,
Member atLarge

+ Kelli Davis, MBA
CEO

Mission

Web Site
www.nih.org

May 24,2022

RBOEN'ED

tvlAY t7 2s22

**.offiS#;Effi*
Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O Drawer N
Independence, CA 93526

Dear County Board of Supervisors:

Pursuant to the enclosed copy of Resolution 22-09, adopted by the Northern Inyo
Healthcare District Board of Directors on May 18,2022, we respectfully request
permission to hold the Healthcare District election of directors at the time of the
general election on November 8,2022.

Also enclosed please find a copy of our Notice of Election Filed with the Inyo County
Clerk.

Thank you for your consideration of this request.

Respectfully

Erika Hernandez
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
760-873-2079
Erika.hernandez@nih. org

Enclosures



RESOLUTION NO. 22.09

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF ELECTION

WHERAS, it is necessary that three (3) directors be elected to the Board of
Directors of Northern Inyo Healthcare District, one each from Zones II, ilI, and V of said
District; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Northern
Inyo Healthcare District that it request that the Board of supervisors of the
County of Inyo, State of California, consolidate said election of directors with the
statewide election to be held on November 8,2022; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE Hospital Chief Executive Officer be,
and is hereby directed to file copies of this Resolution with said Board of Supervisors of
the County of Inyo, State of Califomia, and the County Clerk-Recorder, Registrar of
Voters of said County.

Adopted, signed and approved this 18th day of May,2022.

Jody V Chair

Attest:
Topah Secretary



Notice to County Clerk of Elective Offices to be

Filled and Transmittal of Map and Boundaries
(Residential and Landowner Voting Districts)

(Elections Code S1O509, 10522, 10524)

Nlfl.-'-',ltL,u-$r r *..\lt', !\l tu-t\-\L \\{\: l:}:-1*-tC{l
(Name of District)

To the County Clerk of lnyo County.

(1) Notice is hereby given that the elective offices of the district to be filled at the General District Election
on November 8,2022 are as foiiows:

2 yrj!-oru/S - Bo,eoqt, rrr.rn6erL-
7s$\,€ Ji L*WXo*ru

4vr' Zox-re S
The divisions of the district, if any, in which a director is to be elected is as follows:l

s ze A -'trzrc v\e rJ Zc;s-ri CI ts-l rl- ' C-r s A n -rr: rrY+ p
The elective officers of the district to be elected are as follows:2

3,- q;o,t+vc-Q
.n{*-r.6ee*

(2)

(3)

Name of officers: ZOr-E *U 1 
'JOn*-l -lwra*n'*'u'f(-

/cn -U b{ 3 , VtrcflA =vr 
A*-p

Zcl*ra l* S , -1t>tsA\-L Sf oocl ggprk'(-

(4) A map showing the boundaries of the district and the boundaries of the divisions of the district, if any,
within this county is attached hereto.

(5) The qualifications of a nominee and of an elective officer of the district are as follows:3
Yft"S r OGx>-t €,qt=C-r(-I-- r-r'.rr 1 H \ tL) -t \*e V)rSr €'tC-1 C)tL rr\ r/ tt \Lt'J

"Tvt(<.Lr (Jgl llr ,/\ r-Y
(6) The 4 fA*lnr Can€ =- is to pay for the publication of a Candidate's Statement,

pursuant to E.C. Si3307.

(7) Measures, if any:s

5

(District Secretary) Cr-rrC,t D. 11*.*etucZ

I Insert narne or number designating the division as it is to appear on the ballot

2If offrcers are to be elected by division wite NONE in this space

Dated:



 

California Natural Resources Building 

715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, California 95814 

Commissioners 
Samantha Murray, President 

Del Mar 
Erika Zavaleta, Vice President 

Santa Cruz 
Jacque Hostler-Carmesin, Member 

McKinleyville 
Eric Sklar, Member 

Saint Helena 
Vacant, Member 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Gavin Newsom, Governor 

Fish and Game Commission 

 

Wildlife Heritage and Conservation 
Since 1870 

Melissa Miller-Henson 
Executive Director 

P.O. Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 

(916) 653-4899 
fgc@fgc.ca.gov 

www.fgc.ca.gov

MEETING AGENDA 
June 15-16, 2022 

Participate in Person

California Department of Transportation 
Conference Room 1.040 (1st Floor) 

100 S. Main Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

Trinidad Rancheria 
Administrative Office Conference Room 

1 Cher-Ae Lane 
Trinidad, CA 95570  

Participate via Webinar/Teleconference 

The meeting will be live streamed; visit www.fgc.ca.gov the day of the meeting to watch 
or listen. To provide public comment during the meeting, please join at an in-person 

location, via Zoom, or by telephone; click here for instructions on how to join. 

Note: See important meeting deadlines and procedures, including written public 
comment deadlines, starting on page 12. Unless otherwise indicated, the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife is identified as Department. 

Invitation: The Commission invites members of the public to join commissioners and 
staff for a field trip that will take place Wednesday night to observe a 
California grunion run— a species of marine fish found only along the coast 
of southern California and northern Baja California. Details will be available 
in advance of the Commission meeting. Members of the public are welcome 
to join, but must provide their own transportation. 

Day 1 – June 15, 2022, 8:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL TO ESTABLISH QUORUM  

1. Consider approving agenda and order of items 

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

2. Recognition of former Commission president 

Recognize former President Peter S. Silva for his commitment and service to the 
Commission.  

mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov
http://www.fgc.ca.gov/
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=201927&inline
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=201927&inline


 

2 

3. Commission executive director and Department reports 

Receive updates on items of note since the previous Commission meeting. 

(A) Commission executive director’s report 
I. Justice, equity, diversity and inclusion update 

(B) Department director and Law Enforcement Division 

4. Wildlife Prosecutor of the Year 

Announce recipient of the Commission’s annual Wildlife Prosecutor of the Year award, 
consistent with the Commission’s policy adopted in 2016.  

5. Western Joshua tree 

Consider the petition, the Department’s status review report, and comments received to 
determine whether listing western Joshua tree (Yucca brevifolia) as threatened under 
the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) is warranted. 
(Pursuant to sections 2075 and 2075.5, Fish and Game Code) 
Note: Findings will be adopted at a future meeting. 

6. Temblor legless lizard 

Consider and potentially act on the petition, Department’s evaluation report, and 
comments received to determine whether listing Temblor legless lizard (Anniella 
alexanderae) as threatened or endangered under CESA may be warranted. 
(Pursuant to sections 2074 and 2074.2, Fish and Game Code) 

7. Milo Baker’s lupine 

Consider the petition, the Department’s status review report, and comments received to 
determine whether changing the status of Milo Baker’s lupine (Lupinus milo-bakeri) from 
threatened to endangered under CESA is warranted. 
(Pursuant to sections 2075 and 2075.5, Fish and Game Code) 
Note: Findings will be adopted at a future meeting. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Note: Items on the consent calendar are expected to be routine and non-controversial. After public 
comment, the Commission will consider approving items on the consent calendar in a single vote 
without discussion. The presiding commissioner may choose to remove any item from the consent 
calendar and allow a separate discussion and potential action on that item in response to a request by 
a Commission member, staff, or an interested person. 

8. White Seabass Fishery Management Plan 

Receive the Department’s White Seabass Fishery Management Plan 2020-2021 Annual 
Review report. 
(Pursuant to Section 5.9, White Seabass Fishery Management Plan) 

9. Pink (ocean) shrimp fishery management plan implementing regulations 

Consider adopting proposed additions and amendments to existing prawn or shrimp 
commercial trawling regulations that implement the Pink (Ocean) Shrimp, Pandalus 
jordani, Fishery Management Plan.   
(Add sections 56.00 and 56.01 and amend sections 120, 120.1 and 705, Title 14, CCR) 



 

3 

10. Clarification of allowed and prohibited use for state marine recreational 
management areas (SMRMAs) 

Consider adopting proposed regulations to clarify allowed and prohibited uses for 
SMRMAs. 
(Amend subsections 632(b)(9), (37), (41), (42) and (91), Title 14, CCR) 

11. Kelp Harvest Plan 

Receive updated kelp harvest plan proposed by Sustainable Ocean Harvest, LLC for 
mechanical harvest of giant kelp (Macrocystis pyrifera) in leasable administrative kelp 
beds 29, 30, 31, 32 (Santa Barbara County) and open beds 114 and 117 (Santa 
Barbara County); and receive Department recommendation. 
(Pursuant to Section 165(c)(6), Fish and Game Code) 

Potential action is expected to be scheduled for the August 17-18, 2022 meeting. 

12. Five-year private lands wildlife habitat enhancement and management area (PLM) 
plans 

Consider approving five-year PLM plans and 2022-2026 licenses for 4 properties. 
(Pursuant to Section 601, Title 14, CCR) 

(A) Butte County 

I. Deseret Farms 

(B) Humboldt County 

I. Stover Ranch 

(C) Lassen County 

I. Ash Valley Ranch 

II. Walton Homestead Family, LLC 

(D) Modoc County 

I. Lookout Ranch 

(E) Shasta County 

I. Jerusalem Creek Ranch 

II. Rickert Ranch 

(F) Tehama County 

I. El Rancho Rio Frio 

13. Annual PLM plans 

Consider approving annual PLM plans and 2022/2023 licenses for 44 properties. 
(Pursuant to Section 601, Title 14, CCR) 

(A) Butte County 

I. Llano Seco Ranch 

II. Soper-Wheeler Ranch 

(B) Butte/Tehama Counties 

I. Rock Creek Ranch 

(C) Calaveras County 

I. Ordway Ranch 

(D) Glenn County 

I. Anderson Ranch 

II. Bird Haven Ranch 

III. Spurlock Ranch 



 

4 

(E) Humboldt/Trinity Counties 

I. Wilkinson Hunting Club 

(F) Lassen County 

I. Clarks Valley Ranch 

II. Dixie Valley Ranch 

III. Five Dot Ranch Avila Unit 

IV. Five Dot Ranch Horse Lake Unit 

V. Five Dot Ranch School Section Unit 

VI. Five Dot Ranch Tunnel Springs Unit 

VII. Five Dot Ranch Willow Creek Unit 

VIII. Kramer Ranch 

IX. Mendiboure Cold Springs Ranch 

X. Mendiboure Ranch 

XI. Observation Peak Ranch 

XII. Red Rock Ranch 

(G) Los Angeles County 

I. Santa Catalina Island 

(H) Mendocino County 

I. Four Pines Ranch 

II. R-R Ranch 

III. Spring Valley Ranch 

(I) Modoc County 

I. Basin View Ranch 

II. Roberts Ranch 

III. SL Ranch 

(J) Monterey County 

I. Bardin Ranch 

(K) San Bernardino County 

I. Big Morongo Springs Ranch 

(L) Shasta County 

I. Black Ranch 

II. Clover Creek Ranch 

III. Duncan Creek Ranch 

IV. Hathaway Oak Run Ranch 

V. JS Ranch 

(M) Siskiyou County 

I. Long Prairie Farms 

II. Pondosa 

III. Red Rock Valley Farms 

(N) Santa Clara County 

I. Coon Creek Ranch 

(O) San Joaquin County 

I. Corral Hollow Ranch 

(P) Solano County 

I. Buckeye Ranch 

(Q) Tehama County 

I. Big Bluff Ranch 

II. Little Dry Creek Ranch 



 

5 

III. Salt Creek Ranch 

(R) Yuba County 

I. Sugarloaf-Bangor Ranch 

14. Initial PLM plans 

Consider approving initial PLM plans and 2022-2026 licenses for 5 properties. 
(Pursuant to Section 601, Title 14, CCR) 

(A) Butte County 

I. Angel Slough 

II. M&T Chico Ranch 

(B) Shasta County 

I. Kampmann Ranch 

(C) Tehama County 

I. Mill Creek Ranch 

(D) Yolo County 

I. Smith Flat Ranch 

15. Inyo rock daisy 

Receive the Department’s 90-day evaluation report on the petition to list Inyo rock daisy 
(Perityle inyoensis synonym Laphamia inyoensis) as threatened or endangered under 
CESA. 
(Pursuant to Section 2074, Fish and Game Code) 

16. Duck stamp expenditure proposals 

Consider approving proposed Duck Stamp projects from the Duck Stamp Dedicated 
Account funds for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 
(Pursuant to Section 3702, Fish and Game Code) 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

17. General public comment for items not on the agenda 

Receive public comment regarding topics within the Commission’s authority that are not 
included on the agenda.  
Note: New petitions for regulation change submitted since the previous meeting are now 
received under the agenda item “Regulation change petitions.” 
Note: The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during this item, 
except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting (sections 11125 
and 11125.7(a), California Government Code). 

 

  



 

6 

Day 2 – June 16, 2022, 9:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL TO ESTABLISH QUORUM  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

18. General public comment for items not on the agenda 

Receive public comment regarding topics within the Commission’s authority that are not 
included on the agenda.  
Note: New petitions for regulation change submitted since the previous meeting are now 
received under the agenda item “Regulation change petitions.” 
Note: The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during this item, 
except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting (sections 11125 
and 11125.7(a), Government Code). 

DISCUSSION, ACTION, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  

19. Recreational sub-bag limits for vermilion, copper and quillback rockfishes 
emergency 

Discuss and consider adopting a 90-day extension of emergency regulations for sub-
bag limits for vermilion rockfish, quillback rockfish, and copper rockfish. 
(Amend Section 28.55, Title 14, CCR) 

20. Recreational and commercial fishing regulations for federal groundfish and 
associated species 

Consider authorizing publication of notice of intent to amend recreational and 
commercial regulations for federal groundfish and associated species for consistency 
with federal rules in 2023 and 2024. 
(Amend sections 27.20, 27.25, 27.30, 27.35, 27.40, 27.45, 27.50, 28.26, 28.27, 28.28, 
28.29, 28.47, 28.48, 28.49, 28.54, 28.55, 28.56, 28.58, 52.10, 150.06 and 150.16, 
Title 14, CCR) 

21. Pending aquaculture lease amendment requests 

(A) Hog Island Oyster Company 

Consider approving Department recommendation to authorize harvest of edible 
macroalgal species naturally recruited on aquaculture gear for state water bottom 
lease nos. M-430-10, M-430-11, M-430-12, and M-430-15 in Tomales Bay.  
(Pursuant to Section 15400, Fish and Game Code) 

22. Game fish contests 

Consider adopting proposed amendments to game fish contest regulations. 
(Amend Section 230, Title 14, CCR) 

23. Low flow fishing restrictions due to drought conditions 

Discuss and consider adopting a 90-day extension of emergency regulations for low 
flow inland sport fishing restrictions due to drought conditions. 
(Amend subsections 7.40(b)(40)(A) and 8.00(a) and (b), Title 14, CCR) 



 

7 

24. Sport fishing regulation updates 

Discuss proposed amendments to freshwater and ocean sport fishing regulations. 
(Amend sections 2.00, 2.25, 2.30, 5.00, 5.15, 5.41, 5.75, 5.79, 5.85, 5.87, 7.40, 7.50, 
8.00, and 29.85, Title 14, CCR) 

25. Regulation change petitions 

(A) New petitions 
Receive new petitions for regulation change. 
(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

Consideration of whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review is expected 
to be scheduled for the August 17-18, 2022 meeting. 

(B) Previously received petitions 
Consider whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review, petitions for 
regulation change received at previous meetings. Any petitions granted today will 
be added to the Commission’s rulemaking calendar for development and future 
consideration. 

(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

I. Petition 2021-015: Request to make shortfin corvina an official California 
game fish and change size limit to 15 inches 

I. Petition 2022-04: Request to revise boundaries of Vandenburg State 
Marine Reserve to allow some shore fishing 

II. Petition 2022-05: Request to change the way waterfowl reservations are 
drawn 

III. Petition 2022-06: Request to rename the Casino Point State Marine 
Conservation Area to commemorate Dr. Bill Bushing 

26. Non-regulatory requests from previous meetings 

Consider and potentially act on requests for non-regulatory action received from 
members of the public at previous meetings. 

27. Committee and Department reports 

Receive updates on items of note since the previous Commission meeting from 
Commission committees and Department divisions. 

(A) Marine Resources Committee 

Discuss referred topics and consider revisions to topics and timing. Consider 
approving draft agenda topics for the next committee meeting on July 14, 2022.  

(B) Department Marine Region 

(C) Wildlife Resources Committee 

Receive summary and consider approving recommendations from the May 19, 
2022 committee meeting. Discuss referred topics and consider revisions to topics 
and timing.  

(D) Department Wildlife and Fisheries Division, and Department Ecosystem 
Conservation Division 

(E) Tribal Committee  

Discuss referred topics and consider revisions to topics and timing. Consider 
approving draft agenda topics for the next committee meeting on August 16, 
2022.  



 

8 

28. Commission administrative items 

(A) Legislation and other agency regulations 

(B) Rulemaking timetable updates 

(C) Next meeting – August 17-18, 2022 

(D) Discuss draft meeting dates and locations for 2023 

(E) New business 

Adjourn  



 

9 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(Not Open to Public) 

At a convenient time during the regular agenda of the meeting listed above, the Commission 
will recess from the public portion of the agenda and conduct a closed session on the agenda 
items below. The Commission is authorized to discuss these matters in a closed session 
pursuant to Government Code Section 11126, subdivisions (a)(1), (c)(3), and (e)(1), and Fish 
and Game Code Section 309. After closed session, the Commission will reconvene in public 
session, which may include announcements about actions taken during closed session. 

(A) Pending litigation to which the Commission is a Party 

I. Almond Alliance of California et al. v. California Fish and Game Commission and 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (bumble bees California Endangered 
Species Act determination) 

II. The Ballona Wetlands Land Trust v. California Fish and Game Commission 
(Ballona Wetlands Ecological Reserve petition for regulation change) 

III. California Construction and Industrial Materials Association et al. v. California 
Fish and Game Commission (western Joshua tree California Endangered 
Species Act determination)  

IV. Albert Thomas Paulek v. California Fish and Game Commission (CEQA 
determination regarding Section 749.10, Title 14, CCR authorizing take of 
western Joshua tree under 2084) 

V. Albert Thomas Paulek v. California Fish and Game Commission (CEQA 
determination regarding Sections 749.11 and 749.12, Title 14, CCR authorizing 
take of western Joshua tree under section 2084) 

VI. Fall River Conservancy and California Trout v. California Fish and Game 
Commission and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CEQA determination 
regarding amendments to inland trout regulations) 

(B) Possible litigation involving the Commission 

(C) Staffing 

(D) Deliberation and action on license and permit items  



 

10 

California Fish and Game Commission 
2022 Meeting Schedule 

Note: As meeting dates and locations can change, please visit www.fgc.ca.gov for the 
most current list of meeting dates and locations. All Commission meetings will 
include a webinar/teleconference option for attendance and every effort will be 
made to ensure that committee meetings include the same. 

Meeting Date Commission Meeting Committee Meeting 

July 14  

Marine Resources 
North Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board 
5550 Skylane Blvd  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

August 16  
Tribal  
Fortuna 

August 17-18 Fortuna  

September 15  
Wildlife Resources  
Los Angeles/Inland Empire 

October 12-13 Truckee  

November 17  
Marine Resources 
San Diego area 

December 13  
Tribal  
San Diego area 

December 14-15 San Diego area  

* Commission and committee meetings are anticipated to include a teleconference 
option, via webinar and/or phone.  

http://www.fgc.ca.gov/


 

11 

Other Meetings of Interest 

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 

• September 18-21, 2022 – Fort Worth, TX 

Pacific Fishery Management Council 

• September 7-14, 2022 – Boise, ID 

• November 2-8, 2022 – Orange County, CA 

Pacific Flyway Council 

• August 26, 2022 – Juneau, AK 

Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 

• July 10-15, 2022 – Oklahoma City, OK 

Wildlife Conservation Board 

• August 25, 2022 – Sacramento, CA 

• November 17, 2022 – Sacramento, CA 



 

12 

Important Commission Meeting Procedures Information 

Welcome to a Meeting of the California Fish and Game Commission 

April marks the beginning 153 years of operation of the Commission in partnership with the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Our goal is the preservation of our heritage and 
conservation of our natural resources through informed decision making; Commission 
meetings are vital in achieving that goal and we provide this information to be as effective and 
efficient toward that end. Welcome, and please let us know if you have any questions. 

Persons with Disabilities 

Persons with disabilities needing reasonable accommodation to participate in public meetings 
or other Commission activities are invited to contact the Department’s Equal Employment 
Opportunity (EEO) Office at EEO@wildlife.ca.gov. Accommodation requests for facility and/or 
meeting accessibility and requests for American Sign Language interpreters should be 
submitted at least two weeks prior to the event. Requests for real-time captioners should be 
submitted at least four weeks prior to the event. These timeframes are to help ensure that the 
requested accommodation is met. If a request for an accommodation has been submitted but 
is no longer needed, please contact the EEO Office immediately. 

Stay Informed 

To receive meeting agendas and regulatory notices about those subjects of interest to you, 
visit the Commission’s website, www.fgc.ca.gov, to sign up on our electronic mailing lists. 

Submitting Written Comments 

The public is encouraged to comment on any agenda item. Submit written comments by one of 
the following methods: E-mail to fgc@fgc.ca.gov; mail to California Fish and Game 
Commission, P.O. Box 944209, Sacramento, CA 94244-2090; deliver to California Fish and 
Game Commission, 715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 (you must call at least 
one business day in advance to arrange delivery). Materials provided to the Commission may 
be made available to the general public. 

Comment Deadlines 

The Comment Deadline for this meeting is 5:00 p.m. on June 2, 2022. Written comments 
received at the Commission office by this deadline will be made available to Commissioners 
prior to the meeting. 

The Supplemental Comment Deadline for this meeting is noon on June 10, 2022. 
Comments received by this deadline will be made available to Commissioners at the meeting. 

Written comments will not be accepted after the supplemental comment deadline.  

Petitions for Regulation Change 

Any person requesting that the Commission adopt, amend, or repeal a regulation must 
complete and submit form FGC 1, Petition to the California Fish and Game Commission for 
Regulation Change (as required by Section 662, Title 14, CCR), available at 
https://fgc.ca.gov/Regulations/Petition-for-Regulation-Change. To be received by the 
Commission at this meeting, petition forms must be delivered by the Supplemental Comment 
Deadline (or delivered in person at the meeting during the regulation change petitions agenda 
item). Petitions received at this meeting will be scheduled for consideration at the next 

file://///HQGroup3.AD.Dfg.Ca.Gov/HQ10/Groups/FGC/Meetings/Agendas/Templates/www.fgc.ca.gov
mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov
https://fgc.ca.gov/Regulations/Petition-for-Regulation-Change


 

13 

regularly scheduled business meeting, unless the petition is rejected under staff review 
pursuant to subsection 662(b), Title 14, CCR. 

Non-Regulatory Requests 

All non-regulatory requests will follow a two-meeting cycle to ensure proper review and 
thorough consideration of each item. All requests submitted by the Supplemental Comment 
Deadline (or heard during general public comment at the meeting) will be scheduled for 
receipt at this meeting and scheduled for consideration at the next regularly scheduled 
business meeting. 

Speaking at the Meeting 

To speak on an agenda item in-person, please complete a “speaker card" and provide it to 
the designated staff member before the agenda item is announced. Cards will be available 
near the entrance of the meeting room. Only one speaker card is necessary for speaking to 
multiple items.  

To speak on an agenda item by webinar/teleconference, pre-registration via Zoom is 
requested and highly encouraged; please see the instructions for joining the meeting to pre-
register. If you do not pre-register to speak, you will be asked to “raise” your hand either 
through the Zoom function or by pressing *9 once on your phone when prompted at the 
beginning of the agenda item. 

1. In-person speakers will be identified in groups; please line up when your name is called. 
Speakers by webinar/teleconference will be identified two at a time; please pay attention 
to when your name is called. 

2. When addressing the Commission, please give your name and the name of any 
organization you represent, and provide your comments on the item under 
consideration. 

3. If there are several speakers with the same concerns, please appoint a spokesperson 
and avoid repetitive testimony. 

4. The presiding commissioner will allot between one and three minutes per speaker per 
agenda item, subject to the following exceptions: 

a. The presiding commissioner may allow up to five minutes to an individual 
speaker if a minimum of three individuals who are present when the agenda item 
is called have ceded their time to the designated spokesperson, and the 
individuals ceding time forfeit their right to speak to the agenda item. 

b. In-person participants ceding their time shall complete a speaker card and 
approach the staff table with the spokesperson so that staff may confirm the 
presence of those ceding their time. Those participating via Zoom and ceding 
their time to another speaker, must pre-register to speak on the agenda item, 
indicate in their registration to whom they are ceding their time, and be present 
on Zoom during the agenda item. 

c. Individuals may receive advance approval for additional time to speak if requests 
for additional time to speak are received by email or delivery to the Commission 
office by the Supplemental Comment Deadline. The president or designee will 
approve or deny the request no later than 5:00 p.m. two days prior to the 
meeting. 

d. An individual requiring an interpreter is entitled to at least twice the allotted time 
pursuant to Government Code Section 11125.7(c). 

https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=199050&inline


 

14 

e. An individual may receive additional time to speak to an agenda item at the 
request of any commissioner. 

Agenda items may be heard in any order and on either day pursuant to the discretion of 
the presiding commissioner. 

Visual Presentations/Materials 

All electronic presentations must be submitted by the Supplemental Comment Deadline and 
approved by the Commission executive director before the meeting. 

1. Electronic presentations must be provided by email to fgc@fgc.ca.gov. If the 
presentation file is too large to send via email, contact staff to identify an alternative 
method for submitting the file. 

2. All electronic formats must be Windows PC compatible. 

3. If presenting at the in-person meeting location, it is recommended that a print copy of 
any electronic presentation be submitted in case of technical difficulties. 

 

mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov

	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S)

	 Closed Session
	2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – Pursuant 
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursu

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	Agenda Request Form

	8. PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Roeser will present and 
	Proclamation 


	 Consent Agenda
	9. Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County, CA Sales Order 5.5.22
	Original Agreement
	Amendment 1
	Amendment 2 

	10. Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	NPA Contract Amendment No. 3
	NPA Contract Amendment No. 2
	NPA Contract Amendment No. 1
	NPA Contract

	11. Request Board ratify and approve the CPS HR Consul
	Agenda Request Form
	CPS HR Agreement

	12. Request Board: A) approve the contract between the
	Agenda Request Form
	Harvey Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25

	13. Request Board: A) approve the contract between the
	Agenda Request Form
	Walker Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25

	14. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Corpora Contract 07.01.22-06.30.25

	15. Request Board ratify and approve the agreement bet
	Agenda Request Form
	Corpora Amendment No. 3
	Corpora Original Contract

	16. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Johnson Contract 06.14.2022
	Insurance_2

	17. Request Board: A) declare FloridAquatic of North F
	Agenda Request Form
	FloridAquatic Bid
	Truxor Amphibious Machine Contract of Sale

	18. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	Rivera Hewitt Paul LLP Amendment 1
	Rivera Hewitt Paul LLC Contract

	19. Request Board approve the agreement between the Co
	Agenda Request Form
	Porter Scott Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025

	20. Request Board: A) declare Eva S. Wasef, M.D. a sol
	Agenda Request Form
	Wasef Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025

	21. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Central Valley Toxicology Contract 07.01.2022-06.30.2025

	22. Request Board: A) approve the Agreement between th
	Agenda Request Form
	Master Agreement - County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities and/or Targeted Case Management 

	23. Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 01 
	Agenda Request Form
	Crestwood-Inyo County Contract Amendment 1
	Crestwood-Inyo Contract 157 

	24. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Crestwood Contract - FY 22-23 

	25. Request Board approve the participation agreement 
	Agenda Request Form
	Participation Agreement

	26. Request Board: A) approve the appointment of Pete 
	Agenda Request Form
	Email Notification of Desire to Serve on EMCC

	27. Request Board approve Contract No. AP-2223-16 with
	Agenda Request Form
	CDA Agreement #AP-2223-16
	Exhibit A, Attachment 1
	Exhibit B, Attachment 1
	Exhibits A, B, D, E
	Contractor Certification Clause
	Information Integrity and Security Statement
	Civil Rights Laws Certification
	Summary of Changes
	FY 22-23 Inyo-Mono Baseline Allocations

	28. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Harshwal Contract
	HCLLP - Insurance Certificate 2022-23[886]
	HCLLP - Professional Liability Insurance[887]

	29. Request Board: A) ratify and approve Amendment No.
	Agenda Request Form
	Civil Rights Laws Certification
	Contractor Certification Clause
	Exhibits
	Agreement Continuation
	CDHC Agreement

	30. Approve contract with UC Davis Extension
	Agenda Request Form
	Training Services Agreement

	31. Request the Board approve Amendment No. 6 to the c
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment 6

	32. Request the Board of Request Board approve the con
	Agenda Request Form
	LAFCo Contract

	33. Request Board approve reimbursement using AB109 mo
	Agenda Request Form
	Mobile Data Memo 5-4-22
	MDC Invoice

	34. Request Board: A) approve Resolution No. 2022-18, 
	Agenda Request Form
	Exhibit A - Maintained Mileage Certification 2022
	Maintained Mileage 2022
	Resolution No. 2022-18

	35. Request Board:A) Accept and approve the Letter of 
	Report
	Carroll Creek - Letter of Non-Objection
	Walker Creek - Letter of Non-Objection

	36. Request Board: A) approve the contract between the
	Agenda Request Form
	Sole Source Flooring - Osvaldo Vera
	Floor Cleaning Services Contract
	Insurance Specs

	37. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Insect and Pest Control Bid Tabulation
	Owens Valley Pest Contract 

	38. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Chuck Stewart Contract - 2022

	39. Request Board: A) declare Proforce Law Enforcement
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid 2022-01 - Glocks


	 Departmental
	40. Request Board approve the letter supporting the re
	Agenda Request Form
	RAC Reappointment Support Letter 2022
	RAC Appointment Support Letter 2013

	41. Introduce, read title, and waive further reading o
	Agenda Request Form
	Proposed Ordinance Adopting DA Military Equipment Policy

	42. Request Board change the Authorized Strength in th
	43. Request Board hear a Broadband Update
	44. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	45. Public Hearing on Cannabis Licensing
	Agenda Request Form
	June 2022 License Availablity
	Glacier Fed Farms Final Scoring BOS
	Tree Farm Final Scoring BOS
	Tree Farm Glacier Fed Maps

	46. Request Board receive presentation on housing and 
	Agenda Request Form
	Attachment A Priority Housing Parcels 
	Attachment B Real Property Management Policy 
	Attachment C County Owned Parcels

	47. Receive a presentation from staff on an updated st
	Agenda Request Form
	Short-Term Rentals by Cannabis BL Area


	 Correspondence - Action
	48. Northern Inyo Healthcare District - Request to con
	NIH Consolidation Request & Reso. 22-09


	 Comment
	49. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	50. California Fish & Game Commission - Agenda for the
	Fish & Game Commission Agenda June 15-16



	Type or Print: Lee Rosenberg
	Dated_2: 5/26/2022
	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed: 
	Federal ID Number: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
	Date Executed: 
	Executed in the County of: 
	Authorized Signature: 
	Is: Off
	Contract Number: 
	Isnt: Off
	compliance by: 
	ContractorVendor Printed Name and Title: 
	SigDate: 
	CDA ProgramProject: 
	ContractorVendorSig: 
	Date Executed1: 
	Executed in the County and State of: 
	Contractor Name: 
	Fed: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing1: 
	AP: Off
	FA: Off
	HI: Off
	MI: Off
	MS: Off
	SP: Off
	TV: Off
	Signature: 
	Opening Paragraph: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Certification: 
	ProposerBidder Firm Name Printed: County of Inyo
	Federal ID Number1: 95-6005445
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing2: 
	Executed in the County of1: 
	Executed in the State of: 
	mm/dd/yyyy: 
	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed1: County of Inyo
	Federal ID Number2: 95-6005445
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing3: 
	Date Executed2: 
	Executed in the County of2: 
	the: OLANCHA WASTE CLEANUP
	services of:   CHUCK STEWART
	of:    OLANCHA, CA
	Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by:   CAP AUBREY
	whose title is: Waste Management Superintendent 
	The term of this Agreement shall be from:   July 1, 2022
	to:   JUNE 30, 2025
	Dollars: $   SIXTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED SEVENTY SIX AND 00/100
	undefined: 16,776.00
	Department: RECYCLING & WASTE MANAGEMENT
	Address: 1360 N MAIN ST
	City and State: BISHOP, CA 93514
	Name: CHUCK STEWART
	Address_2: P O BOX 240
	City and State_2: OLANCHA, CA 93549
	FROM:  July 1, 2022
	TO:  June 30, 2025
	FROM_2: JULY 1, 2022
	TO_2:   JUNE, 30, 2025
	FROM_3:  JULY 1, 2022
	TO_3:  JUNE 30, 2025
	Text1:    CHUCK STEWART
	Text2:   CLEAN UP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE
	Text3:   CHUCK STEWART
	Text4:   CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE
	Text5:   CHUCK STEWART
	Text6:   CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE
	Text7: Contractor agrees to provide the tools necessary to clean up waste and litter debris inside and outside of the transfer station.  Areas of maintenance will include, but not necessarily be limited to the entry road and the area surrounding the transfer station in all directions at a minimum of 100 yards from the Olancha Transfer Station.  All windblown paper and debris including all solid waste located in and around the area discussed above will be picked up and placed into the transfer station waste containers by the Contractor.Maintenance will be provided as-needed but no less that often than twice a week.  Waste and litter will be picked up and placed in the waste bins for removal by the waste hauler.If the Contractor suspects that hazardous material has been disposed of at the site, they will contact Recycling and Waste Management for instructions.Contractor is entitled to claim all recycling salvage materials that are picked up during the contractor's maintenance activities.  No scavenging from dumpsters will be allowed due to inherent safety concerns.Every month a calendar showing which days were worked, signed by contractor, shall be sent to:Recycling & Waste Management1360 N. Main StBishop, CA 93514
	Text8:   CHUCK STEWART
	Text9:   CLEANUP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE
	Text10: $466.00 PER MONTH
NOT TO EXCEED $16,776 for the duration of the contract
	Text11:   CHUCK STEWART
	Text12:    CLEAN UP OF LITTER AT OLANCHA WASTE SITE
	undefined1: Off
	undefined_2: On
	Business Name: Glacier Fed Farms 
	Date Received: 6/25/21
	Complete: On
	Incomplete: Off
	Notes 1: 
	Complete_2: On
	Incomplete_2: Off
	Notes 1_2: 
	Complete_3: On
	Incomplete_3: Off
	Notes 1_3: 
	Section 4Review Panel Scoring: 145
	Section 5Review Panel Scoring: 235
	Section 6Review Panel Scoring: 190
	Section 7Review Panel Scoring: 160
	Section 8Review Panel Scoring: 305
	Section 9Review Panel Scoring: 313
	Total Application ScoreReview Panel Scoring: 1348
	Section 4Weight Assigned to Section: 
	Section 5Weight Assigned to Section: 
	Section 6Weight Assigned to Section: 
	Section 7Weight Assigned to Section: 
	Section 8Weight Assigned to Section: 
	Section 4Score After Section Weighting: 
	Section 5Score After Section Weighting: 
	Section 6Score After Section Weighting: 
	Section 7Score After Section Weighting: 
	Section 8Score After Section Weighting: 
	Points Assigned025: 15
	Points Assigned025_2: 20
	Points Assigned025_3: 25
	Points Assigned025_4: 20
	Points Assigned025_5: 25
	Points Assigned025_6: 25
	Points Assigned025_7: 15
	Points Assigned0175: 145
	Points Assigned040: 35
	Points Assigned040_2: 40
	Points Assigned040_3: 35
	Points Assigned040_4: 35
	Points Assigned040_5: 35
	Points Assigned040_6: 20
	Points Assigned040_7: 35
	Pro Forma Included: On
	Points Assigned0280: 235
	Points Assigned060: 50
	Points Assigned030: 30
	Points Assigned030_2: 30
	Points Assigned030_3: 30
	Points Assigned060_2: 50
	Points Assigned0210: 190
	Points Assigned060_3: 50
	Points Assigned060_4: 50
	Points Assigned060_5: 60
	Points Assigned0180: 160
	Points Assigned060_6: 50
	Points Assigned060_7: 50
	Points Assigned060_8: 60
	Points Assigned060_9: 30
	Points Assigned060_10: 55
	Points Assigned060_11: 60
	Points Assigned0360: 305
	Points Assigned0230: 175
	Points Assigned060_12: 50
	Points Assigned060_13: 58
	Points Assigned030_4: 30
	Points Assigned0380: 313
	Text13: 
	Text21: 
	Text31: 0
	Text41: 
	Text51: 
	Text61: 
	Text71: 
	Text81: 
	Text91: 
	undefined2: Off
	undefined_21: On
	Business Name1: The Tree Farm
	Date Received1: 5/13/2022
	Complete1: On
	Incomplete1: Off
	Notes 11: 
	Complete_21: On
	Incomplete_21: Off
	Notes 1_21: 
	Complete_31: On
	Incomplete_31: Off
	Notes 1_31: 
	Section 4Review Panel Scoring1: 95
	Section 5Review Panel Scoring1: 268
	Section 6Review Panel Scoring1: 194
	Section 7Review Panel Scoring1: 157
	Section 8Review Panel Scoring1: 268
	Section 9Review Panel Scoring1: 288
	Total Application ScoreReview Panel Scoring1: 1270
	Section 4Weight Assigned to Section1: 
	Section 5Weight Assigned to Section1: 
	Section 6Weight Assigned to Section1: 
	Section 7Weight Assigned to Section1: 
	Section 8Weight Assigned to Section1: 
	Section 4Score After Section Weighting1: 
	Section 5Score After Section Weighting1: 
	Section 6Score After Section Weighting1: 
	Section 7Score After Section Weighting1: 
	Section 8Score After Section Weighting1: 
	Points Assigned0251: 25
	Points Assigned025_21: 5
	Points Assigned025_31: 19
	Points Assigned025_41: 5
	Points Assigned025_51: 18
	Points Assigned025_61: 18
	Points Assigned025_71: 5
	Points Assigned01751: 95
	Points Assigned0401: 36
	Points Assigned040_21: 40
	Points Assigned040_31: 36
	Points Assigned040_41: 40
	Points Assigned040_51: 40
	Points Assigned040_61: 40
	Points Assigned040_71: 36
	Pro Forma Included1: On
	Points Assigned02801: 268
	Points Assigned0601: 55
	Points Assigned0301: 30
	Points Assigned030_21: 27
	Points Assigned030_31: 27
	Points Assigned060_21: 55
	Points Assigned02101: 194
	Points Assigned060_31: 55
	Points Assigned060_41: 51
	Points Assigned060_51: 51
	Points Assigned01801: 157
	Points Assigned060_61: 30
	Points Assigned060_71: 10
	Points Assigned060_81: 60
	Points Assigned060_91: 51
	Points Assigned060_101: 60
	Points Assigned060_111: 57
	Points Assigned03601: 268
	Points Assigned02301: 138
	Points Assigned060_121: 60
	Points Assigned060_131: 60
	Points Assigned030_41: 30
	Points Assigned03801: 288
	Text14: 
	Text22: 
	Text32: 0
	Text42: 
	Text52: 
	Text62: 
	Text72: 
	Text82: 
	Text92: 


